The HOPE Initiative

NATIONAL COLLABORATIVE FOR HEALTH EQUITY

TEXAS HEALTH INSTITUTE

APPENDIX

VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH UNIVERSITY CENTER ON SOCIETY AND HEALTH



Support provided by



Robert Wood Johnson Foundation

Introduction

For each of HOPE's 28 indicators, *The HOPE Initiative: Appendix* presents the following data at the state level:

- STATE RATES show how each state performs on a particular indicator overall, and by each race, ethnic, and socioeconomic status group.
- DISTANCE TO GOAL shows how much progress must be made for each state to achieve the HOPE Goal on a particular indicator, overall and by each race, ethnic, and socioeconomic status group. Distance to Goal is presented as the number of people (# to Goal), and the portion of each group's population (% to Goal) whose outcomes or opportunity would need to improve for that state to meet the Goal.
- STATE RANKINGS show how states are performing relative to each other on each indicator. Numerical rankings are provided for states' overall rates and overall Distance to Goal. For each indicator, the Data Chartbook displays state rankings for Distance to Goal by race and ethnicity only. These data are graphically summarized in a wheel for every domain. This Appendix includes all rankings, including those not featured in the Data Chartbook.

In addition, state rates and Distance to Goal by race, ethnicity, and socioeconomic status have been divided into quartiles and shaded from light to dark. Lightest shades are given to states in the top quartile (reflecting the best opportunity or outcomes), and progressively darker shades are applied to values in the second, third, and fourth quartiles. A visual scan of the shades applied to groups in each state makes clear the relative opportunity experience of each subpopulation within a state.

For a detailed explanation of design, methodology, and limitations of HOPE data, please refer to the *Technical Summary*.

Contents

HEALTH OUTCOMES

| Adult H | lealth Status | 3 |
|----------|---------------|----|
| Mental | Health Status | 6 |
| Child H | ealth Status | 9 |
| Premat | ure Mortality | 11 |
| Infant N | Nortality | 13 |
| Low Bir | th Weight | 16 |

SOCIOECONOMIC FACTORS

| Livable Income | 19 |
|--------------------------|----|
| Affordable Housing | 22 |
| Post-secondary Education | 25 |
| Connected Youth | 28 |
| Preschool Enrollment | 30 |
| Employment | 32 |

SOCIAL ENVIRONMENT

| Low Poverty Concentration | 35 |
|---------------------------|----|
| Low Murder Rate | 37 |
| Low Assault Rate | 40 |
| Low Rape Rate | 43 |
| Low Robbery Rate | 46 |

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

| Home Ownership | 49 |
|----------------------------------|----|
| Housing Quality | 52 |
| Air Quality – Particulate Matter | 55 |
| Low Liquor Store Density | 58 |
| Food Security | 61 |

ACCESS TO HEALTH CARE

| Access to Primary Care | 64 |
|-----------------------------|----|
| Access to Psychiatric Care | 67 |
| Health Insurance Coverage | 70 |
| Affordable Health Care | 73 |
| Usual Source of Care | 76 |
| Colorectal Cancer Screening | 79 |

Recommended Citation

Siddiqui, N., Stelter, A., Cocking, M., Wilson, K., Andrulis, D., Smedley, B., Wong, N., Chapman, D., Woolf, S., Hill, L., & Whitley, J. (2018). The HOPE Initiative: Appendix.

ADULT HEALTH STATUS

Tables show the portion of adults age 25 and older who say their health is very good or excellent in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2012-2014 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|------------------|-------|------------------|-----------------|---------------|-------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Vermont | 1 | 60.0% | 60.4% | 52.1% | 65.7% | 52.2% | 42.2% | 41.7% | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 59.8% | 59.9% | 57.5% | 65.2% | 56.7% | 33.5% | 50.5% | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 3 | 58.8% | 78.5% | 43.8% | 65.2% | 69.3% | 40.4% | 53.9% | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 57.5% | 60.3% | 46.9% | 34.1% | 64.7% | 30.6% | 50.0% | | | | | |
| Colorado | 5 | 57.4% | 62.7% | 44.2% | 37.1% | 61.3% | 39.7% | 52.2% | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 6 | 57.3% | 61.8% | 45.9% | 35.8% | 61.5% | 42.3% | 54.0% | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 7 | 57.1% | 58.9% | 44.8% | 39.0% | 53.9% | 38.5% | 43.6% | | | | | |
| Utah | 8 | 56.7% | 59.8% | 45.7% | 37.1% | 53.4% | 40.8% | 46.2% | | | | | |
| Maine | 9 | 55.5% | 55.6% | 53.4% | 56.4% | 65.3% | 37.2% | 42.4% | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 10 | 55.1% | 56.7% | 53.4% | 47.2% | 56.4% | 36.8% | 50.5% | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 11 | 54.4% | 55.9% | 48.1% | 41.1% | 67.6% | 34.6% | 51.7% | | | | | |
| Marvland | 12 | 54.2% | 57.5% | 50.1% | 37.2% | 63.8% | 45.3% | 50.4% | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 13 | 53.7% | 56.4% | 39.6% | 30.3% | 56.6% | 45.3% | 44.4% | | | | | |
| Alaska | 14 | 53.7% | 58.3% | 44.6% | 49.8% | 48.6% | 38.3% | 42.4% | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 15 | 53.4% | 56.7% | 43.5% | 35.1% | 49.1% | 35.9% | 38.9% | | | | | |
| lowa | 16 | 53.2% | 54.3% | 43.6% | 33.6% | 60.1% | 33.9% | 35.3% | | | | | |
| Oregon | 17 | 53.2% | 54.7% | 43.1% | 37.8% | 67.1% | 43.1% | 41.3% | | | | | |
| Virginia | 18 | 52.7% | 55.9% | 43.1% | 44.1% | 57.3% | 34.8% | 48.7% | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 10 | 52.7% | 54.5% | 38.4% | 34.5% | 58.5% | 36.5% | 22.8% | | | | | |
| Washington | 20 | 52.570 | 54.9% | 19.4% | 21.1% | 53.6% | 38.6% | 46.1% | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 20 | 51.0% | 52 7% | 58.2% | /8.9% | 58.6% | 21.7% | 57.8% | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 21 | 51.976 | 52.776 | 42.0% | 20.976 | 50.0% EE 20/ | J 1.7 /8 | 26.49/ | | | | | |
| Kansas | 22 | 51.9% | 50.270 EA 19/ | 42.9% | 55.170 25.49/ | 53.270 | 40.0% | 30.4 /0 42 19/ | | | | | |
| Ndlisds | 25 | 51.0% | 54.1% | 41.0% | 55.4% | 59.2% | 50.5 <i>%</i> | 42.1% | | | | | |
| New Yerk | 24 | 51.1% | 55.0% | 50.5% | 41.2% | 50.0% | 40.7% | 50.1% | | | | | |
| Delawara | 25 | 50.0% | 50.1% | 45.0% | 51.7% 27.49/ | 43.9% | 54.4% | 42.4% | | | | | |
| | 20 | 50.4% | 54.1% | 59.0% | 37.4% | 50.2% | 55.0% | 51.5% | | | | | |
| | 27 | 50.4% | 01.0% | 43.7% | 33.0% | 55.7% | 41.2% | 51.4% | | | | | |
| Arizona | 28 | 49.7% | 50.2% | 46.7% | 34.2% | 57.5% | 33.2% | 40.4% | | | | | |
| Michigan | 29 | 49.6% | 52.1% | 35.4% | 42.4% | 61.6% | 36.9% | 34.2% | | | | | |
| MISSOURI | 30 | 49.6% | 51.0% | 40.0% | 46.3% | 61.4% | 34.5% | 30.6% | | | | | |
| Ohio | 31 | 49.0% | 50.4% | 39.1% | 41.7% | 61.6% | 25.9% | 41.0% | | | | | |
| Illinois | 32 | 48.8% | 54.2% | 37.9% | 28.5% | 57.0% | 51.9% | 52.3% | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 33 | 48.6% | 53.2% | 38.5% | 27.1% | 67.1% | 41.5% | 39.2% | | | | | |
| Nevada | 34 | 48.4% | 53.9% | 43.2% | 31.4% | 56.1% | 47.4% | 55.2% | | | | | |
| Florida | 35 | 48.3% | 53.3% | 43.3% | 36.7% | 54.6% | 37.6% | 45.3% | | | | | |
| Georgia | 36 | 48.3% | 52.7% | 41.7% | 33.6% | 57.4% | 43.5% | 50.3% | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 37 | 47.8% | 51.0% | 38.6% | 51.6% | 56.9% | 31.4% | 45.9% | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 38 | 47.7% | 63.3% | 54.9% | 43.3% | 41.8% | 60.9% | 41.3% | | | | | |
| Indiana | 39 | 46.4% | 48.0% | 38.0% | 32.1% | 54.5% | 31.7% | 34.3% | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 44.8% | 47.6% | 37.5% | 29.6% | 50.7% | 39.1% | 39.9% | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 41 | 44.8% | 45.3% | 38.1% | 55.1% | 64.9% | 35.3% | 37.2% | | | | | |
| New Mexico | 42 | 44.1% | 53.8% | 41.0% | 35.5% | 48.6% | 31.8% | 44.2% | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 43 | 44.0% | 47.4% | 34.4% | 47.9% | 67.1% | 43.8% | 45.4% | | | | | |
| Texas | 44 | 43.7% | 53.2% | 38.9% | 29.3% | 53.5% | 43.9% | 49.2% | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 45 | 42.7% | 43.0% | 37.5% | 46.8% | 51.4% | 27.1% | 32.5% | | | | | |
| Alabama | 46 | 42.2% | 44.1% | 34.1% | 58.3% | 64.0% | 31.1% | 38.7% | | | | | |
| Mississippi | 47 | 41.7% | 45.0% | 35.8% | 36.7% | 47.9% | 43.6% | 37.7% | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 48 | 41.3% | 43.8% | 33.8% | 26.3% | 40.3% | 33.4% | 30.5% | | | | | |
| West Virginia | 49 | 39.6% | 39.6% | 31.8% | 46.4% | 59.6% | 33.8% | 37.4% | | | | | |
| Idahoª | | | 55.7% | | 37.1% | 59.4% | 36.5% | 46.5% | | | | | |
| Montana ^a | | | 5/ 9% | | 11 3% | 16.8% | 31 1% | 11 5% | | | | | |

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|---------|--------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 60.2% | 28.4% | 43.8% | 54.0% | 76.3% | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 59.5% | 35.0% | 49.5% | 60.8% | 72.7% | | | | | | |
| Vermont | 3 | 59.2% | 29.0% | 49.8% | 59.4% | 76.3% | | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 4 | 57.4% | 27.7% | 47.6% | 56.6% | 73.9% | | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 5 | 57.3% | 25.8% | 46.8% | 55.1% | 73.7% | | | | | | |
| Colorado | 6 | 57.2% | 24.7% | 47.9% | 56.1% | 72.0% | | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 7 | 57.2% | 33.4% | 46.8% | 56.1% | 72.1% | | | | | | |
| Utah | 8 | 56.7% | 30.2% | 48.2% | 57.4% | 70.3% | | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 9 | 55.4% | 32.2% | 46.7% | 58.6% | 69.8% | | | | | | |
| Maine | 10 | 55.3% | 30.0% | 47.8% | 55.4% | 72.0% | | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 11 | 54.6% | 28.5% | 46.5% | 55.4% | 70.6% | | | | | | |
| Maryland | 12 | 54.5% | 26.4% | 45.4% | 54.3% | 69.3% | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 13 | 54.0% | 23.6% | 46.0% | 55.5% | 69.9% | | | | | | |
| Idaho | 14 | 53.8% | 26.6% | 47.1% | 55.7% | 69.8% | | | | | | |
| Alaska | 15 | 53.7% | 31.4% | 46.2% | 54.1% | 67.2% | | | | | | |
| Montana | 16 | 53.6% | 27.3% | 44.7% | 54.3% | 68.7% | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 53.3% | 28.1% | 46.4% | 54.8% | 70.0% | | | | | | |
| lowa | 18 | 53.2% | 26.9% | 45.6% | 55.6% | 68.5% | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 19 | 52.9% | 26.8% | 44.2% | 52.4% | 70.1% | | | | | | |
| Virginia | 20 | 52.7% | 25.4% | 41.8% | 53.1% | 69.5% | | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 21 | 52.7% | 25.8% | 46.0% | 53.2% | 69.1% | | | | | | |
| Washington | 22 | 52.2% | 23.4% | 44.8% | 51.9% | 66.9% | | | | | | |
| New Jersey | 23 | 52.1% | 24.4% | 43.8% | 52.7% | 67.2% | | | | | | |
| Kansas | 24 | 52.0% | 26.7% | 43.3% | 52.0% | 67.8% | | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 25 | 51.9% | 27.1% | 43.9% | 53.5% | 65.8% | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 26 | 51.3% | 27.4% | 44.3% | 52.6% | 68.8% | | | | | | |
| California | 27 | 50.6% | 19.5% | 46.3% | 53.8% | 69.2% | | | | | | |
| Delaware | 28 | 50.6% | 24.1% | 44.2% | 51.5% | 67.3% | | | | | | |
| New York | 29 | 50.5% | 22.7% | 42.6% | 51.8% | 68.1% | | | | | | |
| Arizona | 30 | 50.1% | 20.5% | 46.1% | 51.6% | 67.4% | | | | | | |
| Missouri | 31 | 50.0% | 26.8% | 42.5% | 51.2% | 68.0% | | | | | | |
| Michigan | 32 | 49.3% | 24.8% | 42.4% | 50.2% | 66.4% | | | | | | |
| Illinois | 33 | 49.2% | 21.1% | 38.9% | 50.3% | 68.0% | | | | | | |
| Ohio | 34 | 49.1% | 25.5% | 41.2% | 50.7% | 68.4% | | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 35 | 49.0% | 19.3% | 40.2% | 51.9% | 70.2% | | | | | | |
| Florida | 36 | 48.6% | 21.9% | 43.2% | 50.5% | 66.0% | | | | | | |
| Georgia | 37 | 48.5% | 24.3% | 41.3% | 49.7% | 67.6% | | | | | | |
| Nevada | 38 | 48.4% | 25.2% | 42.0% | 51.9% | 67.1% | | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 39 | 47.9% | 23.2% | 40.4% | 50.9% | 68.0% | | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 40 | 47.8% | 30.2% | 39.0% | 46.9% | 62.4% | | | | | | |
| Indiana | 41 | 46.4% | 23.5% | 39.4% | 49.0% | 65.6% | | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 45.2% | 20.2% | 39.0% | 47.4% | 64.7% | | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 43 | 45.0% | 19.9% | 38.1% | 49.6% | 64.8% | | | | | | |
| New Mexico | 44 | 44.5% | 18.7% | 38.6% | 46.1% | 64.7% | | | | | | |
| Texas | 45 | 44.0% | 17.9% | 38.0% | 47.8% | 63.6% | | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 46 | 43.9% | 23.1% | 37.9% | 48.8% | 63.5% | | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 47 | 43.0% | 20.1% | 37.7% | 46.8% | 64.0% | | | | | | |
| Alabama | 48 | 42.5% | 23.6% | 35.5% | 44.8% | 62.5% | | | | | | |
| Mississinni | 49 | 42.2% | 25.8% | 35.8% | 45.6% | 61.3% | | | | | | |
| | - / | | 20.0/0 | 55.070 | -5.070 | 01.570 | | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 50 | 41 5% | 20.4% | 36.6% | 45 1% | 61.0% | | | | | | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goal 75% of adults with very

good or excellent health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with very good or excellent health in VT, DC, CT, MA, and NH.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



ADULT HEALTH STATUS

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to be in very good or excellent health to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | rall | White | | Black | | Hisp | oanic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | iracial |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Vermont | 1 | 63,464 | 14.6% | 59,159 | 14.2% | 715 | 22.5% | 465 | 8.9% | 1,161 | 22.4% | 467 | 32.4% | 1,498 | 32.9% |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 136,218 | 14.8% | 126,659 | 14.7% | 1,498 | 17.1% | 1,925 | 9.4% | 3,603 | 17.9% | 771 | 41.1% | 1,762 | 24.1% |
| District of Columbia | 3 | 70,000 | 15.8% | 0 | 0.0% | 63,416 | 30.8% | 3,759 | 9.4% | 930 | 5.3% | 355 | 34.2% | 1,542 | 20.7% |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 777,606 | 17.0% | 516,195 | 14.2% | 74,713 | 27.7% | 147,944 | 40.5% | 25,217 | 9.9% | 3,436 | 44.0% | 10,102 | 24.6% |
| Colorado | 5 | 593,329 | 17.2% | 307,273 | 11.9% | 38,389 | 30.4% | 217,030 | 37.5% | 13,731 | 13.3% | 7,423 | 34.9% | 9,482 | 22.4% |
| Connecticut | 6 | 423,937 | 17.3% | 233,748 | 12.7% | 62,248 | 28.7% | 109,192 | 38.8% | 12,941 | 13.1% | 1,490 | 32.3% | 4,320 | 20.6% |
| Minnesota | 7 | 629,697 | 17.5% | 489,211 | 15.7% | 45,748 | 29.8% | 45,078 | 35.6% | 27,758 | 20.7% | 11,565 | 36.1% | 10,337 | 31.0% |
| Utah | 8 | 294,719 | 17.9% | 201,795 | 14.8% | 4,202 | 28.9% | 68,301 | 37.5% | 10,867 | 21.2% | 5,173 | 33.8% | 4,380 | 28.4% |
| Maine | 9 | 181,465 | 19.1% | 172,565 | 19.0% | 1,641 | 21.2% | 1,689 | 18.2% | 842 | 9.3% | 2,011 | 37.4% | 2,717 | 32.2% |
| South Dakota | 10 | 106,011 | 19.5% | 85,853 | 17.9% | 1,476 | 21.2% | 3,350 | 27.4% | 995 | 18.2% | 13,083 | 37.8% | 1,254 | 24.1% |
| Wyoming | 11 | 77,040 | 20.2% | 62,657 | 18.7% | 1,111 | 26.5% | 9,576 | 33.5% | 246 | 7.0% | 2,624 | 40.0% | 827 | 22.9% |
| Maryland | 12 | 808,765 | 20.4% | 388,057 | 17.0% | 271,098 | 24.5% | 108,776 | 37.3% | 26,252 | 10.8% | 2,876 | 29.3% | 11,706 | 24.2% |
| Nebraska | 13 | 251,543 | 20.9% | 188,435 | 18.2% | 16,577 | 35.0% | 37,377 | 44.2% | 4,057 | 18.0% | 2,359 | 29.2% | 2,739 | 30.2% |
| Alaska | 14 | 96,479 | 20.9% | 51,921 | 16.3% | 4,419 | 30.0% | 5,612 | 24.8% | 7,918 | 26.0% | 20,908 | 36.3% | 5,700 | 32.2% |
| Rhode Island | 15 | 151,696 | 21.2% | 103,464 | 17.9% | 10,717 | 31.0% | 28,540 | 39.5% | 5,276 | 25.5% | 1,061 | 38.7% | 2,638 | 35.7% |
| Iowa | 16 | 435,332 | 21.4% | 377,268 | 20.3% | 15,054 | 31.0% | 30,803 | 41.0% | 5,297 | 14.5% | 2,080 | 40.7% | 4,829 | 39.2% |
| Oregon | 17 | 572,713 | 21.4% | 440,845 | 19.9% | 13,138 | 31.5% | 84,885 | 36.8% | 8,282 | 7.5% | 8,793 | 31.5% | 16,771 | 33.3% |
| Virginia | 18 | 1,202,514 | 21.9% | 692,602 | 18.7% | 312,187 | 31.5% | 116,612 | 30.5% | 57,262 | 17.3% | 5,860 | 39.8% | 17,991 | 25.9% |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 849,218 | 22.1% | 672,147 | 20.1% | 71,350 | 36.2% | 68,407 | 40.1% | 12,337 | 16.1% | 11,311 | 38.1% | 13,667 | 51.8% |
| Washington | 20 | 1,040,385 | 22.4% | 701,265 | 19.7% | 38,883 | 25.2% | 170,239 | 43.5% | 80,696 | 21.0% | 20,207 | 36.0% | 29,094 | 28.5% |
| North Dakota | 21 | 103,919 | 22.7% | 91,572 | 21.9% | 849 | 16.4% | 2,024 | 25.7% | 786 | 16.0% | 8,022 | 42.9% | 666 | 16.8% |
| New Jersey | 22 | 1,372,680 | 22.7% | 613,258 | 16.4% | 232,520 | 31.7% | 400,298 | 40.9% | 105,057 | 19.4% | 2,293 | 27.8% | 19,254 | 38.2% |
| Kansas | 23 | 424,544 | 22.8% | 313,038 | 20.5% | 32,424 | 32.8% | 58,980 | 39.2% | 7,235 | 15.4% | 5,471 | 38.3% | 7,397 | 32.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 24 | 2,059,341 | 23.5% | 1,554,518 | 21.5% | 298,760 | 36.3% | 134,247 | 33.4% | 44,792 | 17.9% | 4,016 | 33.9% | 23,008 | 36.4% |
| New York | 25 | 3,201,135 | 24.0% | 1,335,835 | 16.5% | 583,238 | 31.6% | 915,165 | 42.9% | 309,453 | 28.7% | 14,473 | 40.2% | 42,970 | 32.2% |
| Delaware | 26 | 150,369 | 24.2% | 88,308 | 20.5% | 41,678 | 35.0% | 14,955 | 37.2% | 3,512 | 16.3% | 414 | 19.6% | 1,502 | 23.3% |
| California | 27 | 6,026,303 | 24.2% | 1,438,384 | 12.8% | 444,695 | 30.9% | 3,307,955 | 41.6% | 698,086 | 18.8% | 37,024 | 33.4% | 100,160 | 23.2% |
| Arizona | 28 | 1,068,089 | 24.9% | 510,106 | 18.4% | 43,266 | 27.9% | 413,746 | 40.4% | 23,211 | 17.1% | 61,664 | 41.4% | 16,097 | 34.2% |
| Michigan | 29 | 1,651,711 | 25.0% | 1,186,199 | 22.5% | 330,383 | 39.2% | 72,307 | 32.2% | 21,339 | 13.0% | 13,204 | 37.7% | 28,279 | 40.4% |
| Missouri | 30 | 1,006,711 | 25.0% | 796,047 | 23.6% | 144,334 | 34.6% | 31,935 | 28.3% | 9,416 | 13.2% | 6,621 | 40.1% | 18,359 | 44.0% |
| Ohio | 31 | 1,991,138 | 25.6% | 1,576,360 | 24.2% | 303,299 | 35.5% | 62,395 | 32.9% | 18,324 | 13.0% | 7,419 | 48.7% | 23,341 | 33.6% |
| Illinois | 32 | 2,207,267 | 25.8% | 1,183,034 | 20.4% | 412,959 | 36.6% | 517,482 | 46.1% | 76,309 | 17.6% | 2,894 | 22.7% | 14,589 | 22.3% |
| North Carolina | 33 | 1,685,566 | 25.9% | 962,356 | 21.4% | 469,459 | 36.1% | 198,788 | 47.5% | 11,573 | 7.5% | 23,246 | 33.1% | 20,143 | 35.4% |
| Nevada | 34 | 483,581 | 26.2% | 226,604 | 20.6% | 43,744 | 31.3% | 172,217 | 43.2% | 30,107 | 18.5% | 4,345 | 27.2% | 6,564 | 19.3% |
| Florida | 35 | 3,561,568 | 26.3% | 1,782,912 | 21.3% | 565,096 | 31.3% | 1,094,316 | 37.9% | 70,649 | 20.0% | 12,992 | 37.0% | 35,603 | 29.3% |
| Georgia | 36 | 1,685,861 | 26.3% | 837,333 | 21.9% | 600,641 | 32.9% | 188,983 | 41.0% | 39,883 | 17.2% | 4,670 | 31.1% | 14,352 | 24.3% |
| South Carolina | 37 | 846,817 | 26.8% | 507,883 | 23.6% | 289,588 | 36.0% | 29,877 | 23.0% | 7,916 | 17.6% | 4,892 | 43.1% | 6,661 | 28.7% |
| Hawaii | 38 | 256,075 | 26.9% | 27,658 | 11.2% | 3,213 | 19.7% | 20,625 | 31.3% | 158,305 | 32.8% | 301 | 13.7% | 45,973 | 33.3% |
| Indiana | 39 | 1,209,705 | 28.2% | 962,835 | 26.6% | 129,004 | 36.6% | 86,038 | 42.5% | 14,337 | 20.1% | 4,273 | 42.9% | 13,219 | 40.3% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 740,550 | 29.8% | 496,325 | 27.0% | 61,666 | 37.0% | 76,126 | 45.0% | 11,367 | 23.9% | 63,732 | 35.5% | 31,333 | 34.7% |
| Tennessee | 41 | 1,293,921 | 29.8% | 1,001,770 | 29.3% | 237,365 | 36.5% | 30,149 | 19.5% | 6,564 | 9.7% | 4,708 | 39.3% | 13,365 | 37.4% |
| New Mexico | 42 | 414,502 | 30.5% | 131,565 | 20.8% | 8,107 | 33.6% | 220,957 | 39.1% | 5,500 | 26.0% | 44,335 | 42.8% | 4,039 | 30.3% |
| Louisiana | 43 | 922,444 | 30.6% | 521,318 | 27.1% | 351,819 | 40.2% | 33,210 | 26.7% | 3,832 | 7.5% | 5,496 | 30.8% | 6,769 | 29.2% |
| Texas | 44 | 5,071,400 | 30.9% | 1,764,141 | 21.3% | 663,687 | 35.7% | 2,438,097 | 45.3% | 153,349 | 21.1% | 17,481 | 30.7% | 34,645 | 25.4% |
| Kentucky | 45 | 937.687 | 31.9% | 820,470 | 31.6% | 77,075 | 37.0% | 19,510 | 27.7% | 8,188 | 23.2% | 3.007 | 47.5% | 9,437 | 42.1% |
| Alabama | 46 | 1,041,334 | 32.4% | 689,886 | 30.5% | 313,975 | 40.5% | 15,859 | 16.3% | 4,213 | 10.6% | 7,749 | 43.5% | 9,651 | 35.9% |
| Mississippi | 47 | 635,592 | 32.9% | 353,267 | 29.6% | 253,250 | 38.8% | 17,593 | 37.9% | 4,986 | 26.7% | 2,529 | 31.0% | 3,967 | 36.9% |
| Arkansas | 48 | 649.360 | 33.3% | 469.904 | 30.8% | 109.155 | 40.7% | 46.172 | 48.3% | 9.789 | 34.2% | 5.514 | 41.2% | 8.828 | 44.1% |
| West Virginia | 49 | 454.945 | 35.0% | 427.441 | 35.0% | 17.591 | 42.8% | 3.736 | 28.2% | 1.410 | 15.0% | 1.121 | 40.8% | 3.647 | 37.1% |
| Idahoª | | | | 167,559 | 18.9% | | | 32,790 | 37.5% | 2,243 | 15.2% | 4,212 | 38.1% | 3,265 | 28.1% |
| Montanaª | | | | 121,980 | 19.7% | | | 4,700 | 30.3% | 1,332 | 27.8% | 13,184 | 40.2% | 2,966 | 30.1% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY



of adults with very good or excellent health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with very good or excellent health in VT, DC, CT, MA, and NH.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



ADULT HEALTH STATUS

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to be in very good or excellent health to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | an HS | HS | Grad | Some (| College | College | Grad |
|------------------------|----------|-----------|-----------|---------------|----------------|-----------|------------------|--------------------|-----------|--------------------|----------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 63,519 | 14.4% | 22,906 | 46.2% | 25,255 | 30.8% | 15,358 | 20.6% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 139,121 | 15.1% | 29,549 | 39.6% | 67,546 | 25.1% | 36,265 | 13.8% | 5,761 | 1.8% |
| Vermont | 3 | 66,834 | 15.4% | 16,664 | 45.6% | 33,119 | 24.8% | 17,051 | 15.2% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Connecticut | 4 | 421,773 | 17.2% | 121,646 | 46.8% | 183,516 | 27.0% | 110,287 | 18.0% | 6,324 | 0.7% |
| Massachusetts | 5 | 788,765 | 17.3% | 233,682 | 48.8% | 326,502 | 27.8% | 212,268 | 19.4% | 16,314 | 0.9% |
| Colorado | 6 | 600,694 | 17.4% | 166,898 | 49.9% | 203,626 | 26.7% | 197,141 | 18.5% | 33,030 | 2.6% |
| Minnesota | 7 | 627,157 | 17.4% | 114,905 | 41.2% | 265,116 | 27.8% | 217,777 | 18.5% | 29,359 | 2.5% |
| Utah | 8 | 294,094 | 17.9% | 65,682 | 44.4% | 101,704 | 26.4% | 105,038 | 17.2% | 21,670 | 4.3% |
| South Dakota | 9 | 104,484 | 19.2% | 21,200 | 42.4% | 47,914 | 27.9% | 28,372 | 16.0% | 6,998 | 4.8% |
| Maine | 10 | 182,838 | 19.3% | 36,884 | 44.5% | 85,580 | 26.8% | 53,490 | 19.2% | 6,884 | 2.6% |
| Wyoming | 11 | 76,065 | 20.0% | 13,318 | 46.1% | 31,445 | 28.1% | 27,444 | 19.2% | 3,858 | 4.0% |
| Maryland | 12 | 797,343 | 20.1% | 211,360 | 48.2% | 299,425 | 29.2% | 209,237 | 20.3% | 77,321 | 5.2% |
| Nebraska | 13 | 248,279 | 20.6% | 58,612 | 51.0% | 95,994 | 28.6% | 77,470 | 19.1% | 16,203 | 4.7% |
| Idaho | 14 | 211,393 | 20.8% | 52,257 | 47.9% | 77,813 | 27.5% | 69,106 | 18.9% | 12,217 | 4.8% |
| Alaska | 15 | 96,277 | 20.9% | 16,171 | 43.2% | 36,042 | 28.4% | 34,611 | 20.5% | 9,454 | 7.4% |
| Montana | 16 | 143,965 | 21.0% | 24,543 | 47.3% | 61,362 | 29.9% | 46,473 | 20.3% | 11,587 | 5.8% |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 152,447 | 21.3% | 49,187 | 46.5% | 55,138 | 28.1% | 37,798 | 19.7% | 10,324 | 4.6% |
| lowa | 18 | 435,899 | 21.4% | 84.620 | 47.7% | 193,311 | 29.0% | 125,165 | 19.0% | 32,802 | 6.1% |
| Oregon | 19 | 579.575 | 21.6% | 134.431 | 47.8% | 201.482 | 30.4% | 207.369 | 22.2% | 36,292 | 4.5% |
| Virginia | 20 | 1.201.368 | 21.9% | 328,192 | 49.2% | 453,193 | 32.8% | 319.860 | 21.4% | 100.123 | 5.1% |
| Wisconsin | 21 | 845,429 | 21.9% | 175,118 | 48.8% | 358,741 | 28.6% | 254,465 | 21.4% | 57,105 | 5.4% |
| Washington | 22 | 1 037 758 | 27.3% | 232 797 | 51.2% | 325 028 | 29.8% | 364 913 | 22.7% | 115 021 | 7.7% |
| New Jersev | 23 | 1 361 050 | 22.5% | 351 743 | 50.2% | 538 105 | 30.8% | 309 160 | 21.9% | 162 043 | 7.4% |
| Kansas | 24 | 421 289 | 22.6% | 89 327 | 47.9% | 158 564 | 31.3% | 134 933 | 22.6% | 38,466 | 6.8% |
| North Dakota | 25 | 10/ 17/ | 22.0% | 18 939 | 47.5% | 38 759 | 30.7% | 35 /// | 22.0% | 11 031 | 8.8% |
| Pennsylvania | 26 | 2 044 887 | 22.7% | 457 942 | 47.3% | 980 368 | 30.7% | 757,444 767,955 | 21.1% | 1/1 622 | 5.8% |
| California | 20 | 5 9/9 107 | 24.0% | 2 5 3 8 6 1 4 | 55.1% | 1 461 479 | 28.2% | 1 534 928 | 20.7% | 414.086 | 5.0% |
| Dolowaro | 27 | 1/8 887 | 24.0% | 2,330,014 | 50.5% | 59 607 | 20.278 | 38 807 | 20.778 | 12 227 | 7.2% |
| Now York | 20 | 3 206 805 | 24.0% | 1 014 515 | 51.9% | 1 153 122 | 30.470 | 7/8 9/2 | 23.070 | 289.925 | 6.5% |
| Arizona | 20 | 1 0/0 123 | 24.170 | 329.064 | 5/ 1% | 300.846 | 28.5% | 226 522 | 22.078 | 82 681 | 7.2% |
| Missouri | 21 | 1,049,123 | 24.370 | 229,004 | J4.170 | 407.040 | 20.370 | 20,352 | 23.070 | 70 725 | 1.2.70 6.6% |
| Mishigan | 22 | 1 670 972 | 24.0% | 250,011 | 47.0% | 407,949 | 52.170 22.29/ | 202,214 | 23.470 | 141 024 | 0.0% |
| Wichigan | 32 | 1,070,075 | 25.2% | 555,755 | 49.0% | 040,975 | 52.2% 25.7% | 520,242 | 24.3% | 141,924 | 0.2% |
| Ohio | 22 | 2,175,902 | 25.4% | 421 422 | 55.5% 40.1% | 050,555 | 22.49 | 590,702 | 24.3% | 179,755 | 6.0% |
| Unio Narth Caralina | 54 25 | 1,907,520 | 25.5% | 431,422 | 49.1% | 697,559 | 55.4% 24.40/ | 555,127 | 25.9% | 125,240 | 0.2% |
| North Carolina | 20 | 1,000,555 | 25.0% | 525,075 | 55.570 | 1 264 950 | 24.4% | 455,449 | 22.1% | 79,207 | 4.4% |
| Coorgio | 20 | 5,510,210 | 20.0% | 900,745 | 52.7% | 612 701 | 21.2% 22.20/ | 970,152 | 24.0% | 500,454 136,019 | 0.0% |
| Georgia | 20 | 1,070,797 | 20.1% | 403,970 | 50.2% | 172 455 | 22.2% | 440,010 | 24.9% | 120,010 | 7.0% |
| Nevada | 30 | 484,247 | 20.2% | 130,933 | 49.4% | 173,455 | 32.0% | 140,641 | 22.1% | 31,219 | 7.5% |
| South Carolina | 39 | 043,/04 | 20.7% | 243,645 | 51.4% | 325,414 | 34.2% | 221,905 | 23.1% | 52,620 | 0.0% |
| nawaii | 40 | 254,002 | 20.0% | 39,093 | 44.4% | 95,550 | 25.0% | 04,921 | 21.1% | 55,097 | 12.2% |
| Indiana | 41 | 1,208,866 | 28.2% | 272,021 | 51.1% | 528,302 | 35.2% | 317,812 | 25.6% | 90,731 | 9.0% |
| Oklanoma | 42 | /32,132 | 29.4% | 181,003 | 54.4% | 281,556 | 35.6% | 211,217 | 27.2% | 58,356 | 9.9% |
| Tennessee | 43 | 1,282,970 | 29.6% | 357,614 | 54.7% | 526,048 | 36.5% | 296,502 | 25.0% | 102,806 | 9.8% |
| New Mexico | 44 | 408,634 | 30.1% | 122,613 | 55.9% | 129,340 | 36.0% | 122,023 | 28.5% | 34,658 | 9.8% |
| Texas | 45 | 5,011,192 | 30.6% | 1,721,057 | 56.7% | 1,521,140 | 36.6% | 1,281,972 | 26.8% | 487,023 | 11.0% |
| Louisiana | 46 | 922,117 | 30.7% | 265,/32 | 51.5% | 376,344 | 36.7% | 207,045 | 25.8% | /2,995 | 11.1% |
| Kentucky | 47 | 927,349 | 31.6% | 265,099 | 54.5% | 366,677 | 36.9% | 227,946 | 27.8% | 67,627 | 10.6% |
| Alabama | 48 | 1,031,205 | 32.1% | 268,269 | 51.0% | 391,671 | 39.1% | 282,536 | 29.8% | 88,729 | 12.1% |
| Mississippi | 49 | 622,026 | 32.4% | 169,545 | 48.8% | 226,480 | 38.8% | 174,224 | 29.0% | 51,777 | 13.3% |
| Arkansas | 50 | 644,541 | 33.1% | 165,986 | 54.2% | 260,227 | 38.0% | 163,812 | 29.4% | 54,516 | 13.6% |
| West Virginia | 51 | 448,649 | 34.6% | 113,496 | 55.9% | 209,579 | 39.4% | 96,105 | 30.0% | 29,470 | 12.3% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION

HOPE Goal

75%

of adults with very good or excellent health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with very good or excellent health in VT, DC, CT, MA, and NH.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



MENTAL HEALTH STATUS

Tables show the portion of adults age 25 and older who reported their mental health was not good for 14 or more days in the past 30 days in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. These adults are defined as having poor mental health. Source: 2012-2014 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
|----------------------|------|---------|-------|-------|----------|----------|-------|-------------|
| North Dakota | 1 | 7.5% | 7.0% | 12.4% | 13.7% | 8.7% | 12.3% | 12.8% |
| South Dakota | 2 | 7.6% | 7 1% | 1.8% | 14.4% | 5.5% | 10.8% | 20.7% |
| Hawaii | 3 | 7.7% | 82% | 12.4% | 11.9% | 5.3% | 15.7% | 11.2% |
| Minnesota | 4 | 8.1% | 7 7% | 12.8% | 10.2% | 4.0% | 16.0% | 18.8% |
| lowa | 5 | 8.2% | 8.1% | 11.6% | 7.2% | 5.3% | 16.9% | 23.8% |
| Nebraska | 6 | 8.3% | 8.2% | 11.5% | 6.6% | 7.2% | 16.9% | 19.6% |
| Alaska | 7 | 8.7% | 8.1% | 13.1% | 10.8% | 6.4% | 10.1% | 11 1% |
| Colorado | 8 | 9.2% | 8.7% | 12.1% | 10.4% | 7.2% | 17 5% | 16.4% |
| Kansas | 9 | 9.3% | 8.9% | 14 1% | 8.6% | 3.5% | 21.1% | 22.5% |
| Maryland | 10 | 9.8% | 9.9% | 10.9% | 8.0% | 5.5% | 11.2% | 10.1% |
| Utah | 11 | 9.9% | 9.7% | 11.9% | 10.6% | 6.0% | 16.3% | 19.2% |
| Illinois | 12 | 9.9% | 9.2% | 12.9% | 11.6% | 4.2% | 21.8% | 23.7% |
| Wyoming | 13 | 9.9% | 9.4% | 25.3% | 12.0% | 6.8% | 17.7% | 15 1% |
| Vermont | 14 | 9.9% | 9.8% | 19.4% | 9.9% | 10.0% | 16.5% | 12.7% |
| Texas | 15 | 10.0% | 9.3% | 13.8% | 10.3% | 3.8% | 18.2% | 18.4% |
| District of Columbia | 16 | 10.0% | 5.0% | 14.8% | 7.0% | 7.9% | 25.6% | 13.8% |
| New Jersev | 17 | 10.1% | 9.9% | 11.2% | 12 5% | 3.9% | 11 3% | 20.7% |
| Virginia | 18 | 10.2% | 10.1% | 10.2% | 11.0% | 8.1% | 18.8% | 17.9% |
| New Hampshire | 19 | 10.2% | 10.0% | 15.6% | 15.8% | 3.0% | 13.9% | 16.3% |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 10.2% | 9.3% | 18.0% | 17.8% | 7.4% | 14.0% | 23.9% |
| Connecticut | 21 | 10.5% | 10.0% | 13.0% | 13.2% | 4 3% | 11.4% | 19.0% |
| Nevada | 22 | 10.8% | 10.9% | 14.0% | 10.1% | 6.9% | 23.4% | 15.5% |
| Washington | 23 | 10.0% | 10.5% | 12.8% | 14.1% | 5.3% | 22.2% | 15.4% |
| Delaware | 24 | 11.0% | 10.9% | 11.5% | 11.6% | 4 4% | 23.9% | 18.6% |
| New York | 25 | 11.0% | 9.7% | 14.2% | 14.9% | 7.9% | 17.9% | 20.6% |
| Massachusetts | 26 | 11.3% | 10.7% | 15 5% | 16.7% | 5.8% | 22.2% | 21.0% |
| Rhode Island | 27 | 11.3% | 11.0% | 11.3% | 12.3% | 11.6% | 20.7% | 19.2% |
| California | 28 | 11.3% | 11.0% | 15.4% | 12.6% | 8.1% | 21.5% | 13.9% |
| Georgia | 29 | 11.5% | 11.3% | 12.4% | 11.2% | 1.2% | 23.1% | 16.6% |
| Missouri | 30 | 11.5% | 11.3% | 12.9% | 11.0% | 3.6% | 27.6% | 18.3% |
| Maine | 31 | 11.5% | 11.3% | 17.8% | 17.9% | 10.9% | 24.9% | 18.1% |
| Arizona | 32 | 11.6% | 10.2% | 13.7% | 14.6% | 8.0% | 17.1% | 18.8% |
| North Carolina | 33 | 11.7% | 11.7% | 12.5% | 8.4% | 5.0% | 19.4% | 23.6% |
| Pennsylvania | 34 | 11.9% | 11.2% | 15.4% | 19.2% | 7 3% | 21.1% | 16.9% |
| Michigan | 35 | 12.0% | 11.2% | 16.2% | 14.6% | 4.6% | 24.9% | 20.3% |
| Ohio | 36 | 12.1% | 11.5% | 15.2% | 18.4% | 4 3% | 23.0% | 23.0% |
| Oregon | 37 | 12.3% | 12.0% | 20.1% | 13.2% | 6.7% | 25.7% | 21.5% |
| South Carolina | 38 | 12.3% | 12.2% | 12.8% | 9.9% | 6.2% | 29.5% | 20.7% |
| New Mexico | 39 | 12.5% | 11.0% | 14.3% | 13.8% | 8.1% | 13.3% | 20.1% |
| Indiana | 40 | 12.6% | 12.5% | 13.4% | 12.5% | 5.1% | 18.7% | 26.3% |
| Florida | 41 | 12 7% | 11.9% | 14 5% | 14 1% | 5.6% | 27.9% | 22.2% |
| Louisiana | 42 | 12.7% | 12.1% | 14.5% | 12.0% | 3.3% | 19.9% | 15.8% |
| Oklahoma | 43 | 13.4% | 12 9% | 15.2% | 11 1% | 8.4% | 15.9% | 20.9% |
| Tennessee | 44 | 13.8% | 14.2% | 13.0% | 12.1% | 0.0% | 29.3% | 13.8% |
| Arkansas | 45 | 14.1% | 13.9% | 16.2% | 9,1% | 11.0% | 21.3% | 26.5% |
| Kentucky | 46 | 14 7% | 14.8% | 13.4% | 11.9% | 10.3% | 35.7% | 27.9% |
| Mississippi | 47 | 14.7% | 13.7% | 16.1% | 22.4% | 8.9% | 11.5% | 18.6% |
| West Virginia | 48 | 15.2% | 15.1% | 18.2% | 12.7% | 3.8% | 32.8% | 18.4% |
| Alabama | 49 | 15.2% | 15.1% | 16.0% | 13.7% | 6.8% | 28.4% | 20.1% |
| Idahoª | | | 10.0% | | 11.6% | 9.4% | 19.0% | 19.1% |
| Montanaª | | | 9.6% | | 10.7% | 8.9% | 14.9% | 19.2% |

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|----------|---------|--------------|---------|--------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 1 | 7.5% | 13.5% | 7.8% | 7.8% | 4.7% | | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 2 | 7.6% | 10.2% | 8.5% | 8.4% | 4.7% | | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 3 | 8.1% | 14.5% | 9.1% | 8.9% | 4.8% | | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 4 | 8.1% | 10.3% | 9.7% | 8.6% | 5.3% | | | | | | |
| lowa | 5 | 8.3% | 14.3% | 9.1% | 8.4% | 5.1% | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 6 | 8.4% | 13.3% | 9.0% | 9.3% | 5.2% | | | | | | |
| Alaska | 7 | 8.7% | 16.5% | 8.5% | 9.0% | 6.2% | | | | | | |
| Colorado | 8 | 9.3% | 12.5% | 11.1% | 11.3% | 5.7% | | | | | | |
| Kansas | 9 | 9.3% | 15.3% | 10.5% | 10.3% | 5.2% | | | | | | |
| Maryland | 10 | 9.7% | 15.3% | 12.7% | 10.3% | 5.5% | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 11 | 9.9% | 17.9% | 13.5% | 13.8% | 5.6% | | | | | | |
| New Jersey | 12 | 9.9% | 15.1% | 11.7% | 10.9% | 6.2% | | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 13 | 9.9% | 17.7% | 10.8% | 10.3% | 5.9% | | | | | | |
| Utah | 14 | 9.9% | 16.2% | 11.8% | 10.7% | 5.6% | | | | | | |
| Illinois | 15 | 9.9% | 12.8% | 12.5% | 11.0% | 5.6% | | | | | | |
| Vermont | 16 | 10.0% | 18.5% | 11.5% | 11.3% | 5.6% | | | | | | |
| Montana | 17 | 10.0% | 19.1% | 11.3% | 9.7% | 6.5% | | | | | | |
| Texas | 18 | 10.0% | 13.5% | 10.1% | 10.9% | 6.4% | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 19 | 10.1% | 20.6% | 12.4% | 10.1% | 5.7% | | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 10.2% | 19.0% | 11.0% | 11.0% | 5.2% | | | | | | |
| Idaho | 21 | 10.2% | 17.7% | 10.8% | 10.8% | 5.6% | | | | | | |
| Virginia | 22 | 10.3% | 19.3% | 11.8% | 11.3% | 5.3% | | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 23 | 10.4% | 17.4% | 12.4% | 12.3% | 5.7% | | | | | | |
| Nevada | 24 | 10.8% | 14 5% | 12.0% | 10.4% | 7 5% | | | | | | |
| Washington | 25 | 10.9% | 19.2% | 12.5% | 11.8% | 6.2% | | | | | | |
| Delaware | 26 | 11.0% | 16.8% | 13.0% | 11.7% | 5.9% | | | | | | |
| New York | 27 | 11.2% | 18.8% | 11.8% | 11.6% | 7.2% | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 28 | 11 3% | 17.0% | 12.9% | 12.1% | 6.4% | | | | | | |
| Georgia | 29 | 11.4% | 19.7% | 12.3% | 10.8% | 6.1% | | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 30 | 11.4% | 21.7% | 13.7% | 13.3% | 6.1% | | | | | | |
| California | 31 | 11 5% | 16.0% | 13.0% | 12.4% | 6.8% | | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 32 | 11.5% | 18.1% | 13.2% | 12.0% | 5.8% | | | | | | |
| Maine | 33 | 11.6% | 20.0% | 13.7% | 12.2% | 6.0% | | | | | | |
| Arizona | 34 | 11.7% | 18.2% | 12.0% | 12.8% | 6.5% | | | | | | |
| Missouri | 35 | 11.7% | 20.9% | 11.8% | 12.8% | 6.0% | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 36 | 11.9% | 20.1% | 12.7% | 13.1% | 6.8% | | | | | | |
| Ohio | 37 | 12.0% | 23.1% | 12.5% | 12 1% | 6.3% | | | | | | |
| Michigan | 38 | 12.0% | 25.5% | 13.2% | 11.4% | 6.2% | | | | | | |
| New Mexico | 39 | 12.4% | 17.4% | 12.5% | 13.9% | 7.5% | | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 40 | 12.1% | 20.7% | 13.5% | 12.2% | 6.6% | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 41 | 12.5% | 22.7% | 13.7% | 13.3% | 6.9% | | | | | | |
| Indiana | 42 | 12.5% | 22.6% | 13.3% | 13.0% | 5.9% | | | | | | |
| Florida | 43 | 12.8% | 21.6% | 13.3% | 12.6% | 7.7% | | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 43 | 12.8% | 21.5% | 12.7% | 12.0% | 6.7% | | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 13.2% | 21.2% | 14.0% | 13.4% | 7.4% | | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 46 | 13.2% | 25.9% | 14.0% | 13.4% | 6.6% | | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 40 47 | 1/ 1% | 23.5% | 13.7% | 1/ 2% | 7.2% | | | | | | |
| Mississinni | | 14.170 | 23.7% | 1/ 0% | 13.1% | 7 5% | | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 40 | 14.4% | 25.1% | 14.5% | 1/ 20/ | 7.3% | | | | | | |
| Alahama | 49 50 | 14.0% | 20.1% | 14.4% | 14.2% | 7.3% | | | | | | |
| Wost Virginia | 50 | 15.1% | 24.5% | 10.1% | 14.3% | 7.0% | | | | | | |
| west virgillia | ار | 15.2% | 24.0% | 15.4% | 14.5% | 0.0% | | | | | | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goal



of adults with poor mental health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with poor mental health in SD, ND, MN,

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



MENTAL HEALTH STATUS

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) whose mental health would need to improve to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | nite | Bla | ck | Hisp | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | 'AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------------|--------------|----------------|-----------|----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 11,988 | 2.6% | 9,028 | 2.2% | 388 | 7.5% | 692 | 8.8% | 187 | 3.8% | 1,379 | 7.4% | 315 | 7.9% |
| South Dakota | 2 | 14,579 | 2.7% | 10,510 | 2.2% | - | 0.0% | 1,163 | 9.5% | 31 | 0.6% | 2,055 | 5.9% | 820 | 15.8% |
| Hawaii | 3 | 26,908 | 2.8% | 8,138 | 3.3% | 1,223 | 7.5% | 4,610 | 7.0% | 3,955 | 0.8% | 237 | 10.8% | 8,744 | 6.3% |
| Minnesota | 4 | 114,650 | 3.2% | 87,615 | 2.8% | 12,144 | 7.9% | 6,704 | 5.3% | 0 | 0.0% | 3,557 | 11.1% | 4,630 | 13.9% |
| Iowa | 5 | 68,156 | 3.3% | 60,088 | 3.2% | 3,245 | 6.7% | 1,742 | 2.3% | 142 | 0.4% | 615 | 12.0% | 2,325 | 18.9% |
| Nebraska | 6 | 41,395 | 3.4% | 34,026 | 3.3% | 3,139 | 6.6% | 1,411 | 1.7% | 520 | 2.3% | 967 | 12.0% | 1,332 | 14.7% |
| Alaska | 7 | 17,384 | 3.8% | 10,270 | 3.2% | 1,202 | 8.2% | 1,332 | 5.9% | 463 | 1.5% | 3,026 | 5.2% | 1,092 | 6.2% |
| Colorado | 8 | 149,993 | 4.3% | 99,154 | 3.8% | 9,108 | 7.2% | 31,773 | 5.5% | 2,376 | 2.3% | 2,683 | 12.6% | 4,898 | 11.6% |
| Kansas | 9 | 82,391 | 4.4% | 61,416 | 4.0% | 9,119 | 9.2% | 5,534 | 3.7% | 0 | 0.0% | 2,322 | 16.3% | 4,000 | 17.6% |
| Maryland | 10 | 194,748 | 4.9% | 114,255 | 5.0% | 66,448 | 6.0% | 9,436 | 3.2% | 1,481 | 0.6% | 623 | 6.4% | 2,506 | 5.2% |
| Utah | 11 | 82,020 | 5.0% | 66,037 | 4.8% | 1,021 | 7.0% | 10,424 | 5.7% | 574 | 1.1% | 1,753 | 11.5% | 2,211 | 14.3% |
| Illinois | 12 | 428,928 | 5.0% | 248,205 | 4.3% | 90,817 | 8.1% | 75,450 | 6.7% | 0 | 0.0% | 2,149 | 16.9% | 12,307 | 18.8% |
| Vermont | 12 | 428,928 | 5.0% | 20,440 | 4.9% | 460 | 14.5% | 262 | 5.0% | 262 | 5.1% | 167 | 11.6% | 358 | 7.9% |
| Wyoming | 13 | 19,166 | 5.0% | 14,995 | 4.5% | 856 | 20.4% | 2,043 | 7.2% | 65 | 1.9% | 840 | 12.8% | 368 | 10.2% |
| Texas | 15 | 841,746 | 5.1% | 361,091 | 4.4% | 165,643 | 8.9% | 289,019 | 5.4% | 0 | 0.0% | 7,593 | 13.3% | 18,400 | 13.5% |
| District of Columbia | 16 | 22,768 | 5.1% | 205 | 0.1% | 20,315 | 9.9% | 833 | 2.1% | 534 | 3.0% | 214 | 20.7% | 666 | 9.0% |
| New Jersey | 17 | 315,233 | 5.2% | 186,221 | 5.0% | 46,211 | 6.3% | 74,285 | 7.6% | 0 | 0.0% | 526 | 6.4% | 7,990 | 15.8% |
| Virginia | 18 | 289,910 | 5.3% | 191,894 | 5.2% | 53,073 | 5.4% | 23,307 | 6.1% | 10,526 | 3.2% | 2,042 | 13.9% | 9,068 | 13.1% |
| New Hampshire | 19 | 48,491 | 5.3% | 44,314 | 5.2% | 934 | 10.7% | 2,240 | 10.9% | 0 | 0.0% | 169 | 9.0% | 834 | 11.4% |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 206,016 | 5.3% | 148,435 | 4.4% | 25,971 | 13.2% | 21,961 | 12.9% | 1,939 | 2.5% | 2,707 | 9.1% | 5,004 | 19.0% |
| Connecticut | 21 | 137,005 | 5.6% | 92,766 | 5.1% | 17,500 | 8.1% | 23,477 | 8.3% | 0 | 0.0% | 300 | 6.5% | 2,963 | 14.1% |
| Nevada | 22 | 109,033 | 5.9% | 65,763 | 6.0% | 12,767 | 9.1% | 20,650 | 5.2% | 3,284 | 2.0% | 2,965 | 18.5% | 3,603 | 10.6% |
| Washington | 23 | 279,702 | 6.0% | 209,561 | 5.9% | 12,229 | 7.9% | 35,871 | 9.2% | 1,612 | 0.4% | 9,705 | 17.3% | 10,724 | 10.5% |
| Delaware | 24 | 37,659 | 6.1% | 25,780 | 6.0% | 7,910 | 6.7% | 2,683 | 6.7% | 0 | 0.0% | 400 | 19.0% | 885 | 13.7% |
| New York | 25 | 832,808 | 6.2% | 388,842 | 4.8% | 172,606 | 9.3% | 213,162 | 10.0% | 32,551 | 3.0% | 4,676 | 13.0% | 20,971 | 15.7% |
| Massachusetts | 26 | 292,542 | 6.4% | 210,463 | 5.8% | 28,557 | 10.6% | 43,141 | 11.8% | 2,425 | 0.9% | 1,354 | 17.3% | 6,602 | 16.1% |
| Rhode Island | 27 | 45,979 | 6.4% | 35,550 | 6.1% | 2,195 | 6.4% | 5,356 | 7.4% | 1,387 | 6.7% | 434 | 15.8% | 1,058 | 14.3% |
| California | 28 | 1,616,122 | 6.5% | 691,682 | 6.2% | 151,447 | 10.5% | 596,243 | 7.5% | 119,312 | 3.2% | 18,384 | 16.6% | 39,054 | 9.0% |
| Georgia | 29 | 421,467 | 6.6% | 245,511 | 6.4% | 137,190 | 7.5% | 29,117 | 6.3% | 0 | 0.0% | 2,742 | 18.2% | 6,907 | 11.7% |
| Missouri | 30 | 265,301 | 6.6% | 215,603 | 6.4% | 33,446 | 8.0% | 6,922 | 6.1% | 0 | 0.0% | 3,748 | 22.7% | 5,581 | 13.4% |
| Maine | 31 | 62,980 | 6.6% | 58,036 | 6.4% | 1,000 | 12.9% | 1,205 | 13.0% | 544 | 6.0% | 1,076 | 20.0% | 1,119 | 13.3% |
| Arizona | 32 | 288,794 | 6.7% | 146,735 | 5.3% | 13,729 | 8.9% | 99,492 | 9.7% | 4,158 | 3.1% | 18,158 | 12.2% | 6,522 | 13.9% |
| North Carolina | 33 | 439,538 | 6.8% | 304,446 | 6.8% | 99,149 | 7.6% | 14,857 | 3.6% | 247 | 0.2% | 10,211 | 14.5% | 10,629 | 18.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 34 | 618,733 | 7.1% | 458,781 | 6.4% | 86,925 | 11.5% | 57,465 | 14.3% | 6,039 | 2.4% | 1,916 | 16.2% | 7,606 | 12.0% |
| Michigan | 35 | 472,799 | 7.1% | 337,631 | 6.4% | 95,610 | 10.3% | 21,717 | 9.7% | 0 | 0.0% | 7,026 | 20.0% | 10,815 | 10.1% |
| Onio | 30 | 557,794 | 7.2% | 429,088 | 0.0% | 67,730 | 10.3% | 25,030 | 9.2% | 1 072 | 0.0% | 2,765 | 10.2% | 12,573 | 16.1% |
| South Carolina | 29 | 199,012 | 7.4% | 157,200 | 7.1% | 64 095 | 9.0% | 6 450 | 0.3% 5.0% | 1,975 | 1.0% | 5,004 2,702 | 20.0% | 0,333 | 10.0% |
| Now Movico | 20 | 233,303 | 7.470 | 28 0/5 | 6 29/ | 04,003 | 0.0% | 0,430 50,246 | 9.0% | 505 | 2.70 | 2,795 | 24.070 | 2,003 | 15.0% |
| Indiana | 40 | 330 731 | 7.0% | 276 906 | 7.6% | 2,275 | 9.470 | 15 298 | 7.6% | 128 | 0.2% | 1 380 | 12.9% | 2,020 | 21 /% |
| Florida | 40 | 1 056 340 | 7.8% | 584 274 | 7.0% | 17/ 222 | 0.5% | 266 427 | 9.2% | 2 224 | 0.2% | 8 100 | 22.0% | 20.083 | 17.3% |
| Louisiana | 41 | 235 786 | 7.0% | 137 866 | 7.078 | 83 904 | 9.178 | 200,427 | 7.1% | 2,354 | 0.7% | 2,670 | 15.0% | 20,903 | 10.9% |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 210 566 | 8.5% | 147.025 | 8.0% | 17 098 | 10.3% | 10.484 | 6.2% | 1 668 | 3.5% | 19 777 | 11.0% | 14 514 | 16.1% |
| Tennessee | 43 | 288 050 | 8.9% | 317 751 | 0.0% | 52 027 | 8.2% | 11 157 | 7.2% | 1,000 | 0.0% | 2 Q2R | 24.4% | 2 179 | 8 Q% |
| Arkansas | 45 | 180 439 | 9.3% | 137 938 | 9.0% | 30 196 | 11 3% | 4 044 | 4.2% | 1 7 <u>4</u> 1 | 6.1% | 2,520 | 16.4% | 4 327 | 21.6% |
| Kentucky | 46 | 288 073 | 9.8% | 256 348 | 9.9% | 17 766 | 8.5% | 4 944 | 7.0% | 1 912 | 5.4% | 1 951 | 30.8% | 5 152 | 23.0% |
| Mississippi | 47 | 189 723 | 9.8% | 105 490 | 8.8% | 73 364 | 11.2% | 8 116 | 17.5% | 743 | 4.0% | 527 | 6.6% | 1 473 | 13.7% |
| West Virginia | 48 | 133,829 | 10.3% | 125.236 | 10.2% | 5.461 | 13.3% | 1.036 | 7.8% | , 45 0 | 0.0% | 767 | 27.9% | 1,329 | 13.5% |
| Alabama | 49 | 333,274 | 10.5% | 229,510 | 10.2% | 86,194 | 11.1% | 8,533 | 8.8% | 756 | 1.9% | 4.187 | 23.5% | 4.095 | 15.2% |
| Idahoª | | | | 44.901 | 5.1% | | | 5.826 | 6.7% | 665 | 4.5% | 1.560 | 14.1% | 1.651 | 14.2% |
| Montana ^a | | | | 29,211 | 4.7% | | | 895 | 5.8% | 191 | 4.0% | 3,270 | 10.0% | 1,413 | 14.4% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.



of adults with poor mental health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with poor mental health in SD, ND, MN, IA, and WI.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



MENTAL HEALTH STATUS

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) whose mental health would need to improve to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | an HS | HS G | Grad | Some | College | College | Grad |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| South Dakota | 1 | 14,381 | 2.6% | 4,310 | 8.6% | 4,922 | 2.9% | 5,149 | 2.9% | 0 | 0.0% |
| North Dakota | 2 | 12,560 | 2.7% | 2,133 | 5.4% | 4,531 | 3.6% | 5,896 | 3.5% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Minnesota | 3 | 114,257 | 3.2% | 26,933 | 9.7% | 40,640 | 4.3% | 46,683 | 4.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 4 | 30,200 | 3.2% | 4,785 | 5.4% | 12,921 | 4.8% | 11,317 | 3.7% | 1,178 | 0.4% |
| Iowa | 5 | 69,187 | 3.4% | 16,612 | 9.4% | 28,263 | 4.2% | 23,027 | 3.5% | 1,284 | 0.2% |
| Nebraska | 6 | 42,222 | 3.5% | 9,707 | 8.4% | 13,699 | 4.1% | 17,875 | 4.4% | 941 | 0.3% |
| Alaska | 7 | 17,605 | 3.8% | 4,363 | 11.7% | 4,588 | 3.6% | 7,013 | 4.2% | 1,641 | 1.3% |
| Colorado | 8 | 152,339 | 4.4% | 25,424 | 7.6% | 47,396 | 6.2% | 68,552 | 6.4% | 10,967 | 0.9% |
| Kansas | 9 | 82,311 | 4.4% | 19,399 | 10.4% | 28,378 | 5.6% | 32,597 | 5.4% | 1,938 | 0.3% |
| Maryland | 10 | 190,267 | 4.8% | 45,658 | 10.4% | 79,676 | 7.8% | 55,508 | 5.4% | 9,426 | 0.6% |
| District of Columbia | 11 | 21,918 | 5.0% | 6,470 | 13.1% | 7,058 | 8.6% | 6,635 | 8.9% | 1,756 | 0.7% |
| New Jersey | 12 | 302,918 | 5.0% | 71,892 | 10.2% | 119,093 | 6.8% | 84,342 | 6.0% | 27,591 | 1.3% |
| Wyoming | 13 | 19,052 | 5.0% | 3,707 | 12.8% | 6,620 | 5.9% | 7,770 | 5.4% | 955 | 1.0% |
| Utah | 14 | 82,448 | 5.0% | 16,775 | 11.3% | 26,388 | 6.9% | 35,581 | 5.8% | 3,703 | 0.7% |
| Illinois | 15 | 432,251 | 5.1% | 84,593 | 7.9% | 177,883 | 7.6% | 150,526 | 6.1% | 19,248 | 0.7% |
| Vermont | 16 | 22,049 | 5.1% | 4,958 | 13.6% | 8,867 | 6.6% | 7,155 | 6.4% | 1,068 | 0.7% |
| Montana | 17 | 34,802 | 5.1% | 7,351 | 14.2% | 13,183 | 6.4% | 11,079 | 4.8% | 3,189 | 1.6% |
| Texas | 18 | 835,302 | 5.1% | 260,361 | 8.6% | 217,721 | 5.2% | 289,725 | 6.0% | 67,495 | 1.5% |
| New Hampshire | 19 | 48,049 | 5.2% | 11,703 | 15.7% | 20,245 | 7.5% | 13,596 | 5.2% | 2,505 | 0.8% |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 203,015 | 5.3% | 50,680 | 14.1% | 76,712 | 6.1% | 72,789 | 6.1% | 2,834 | 0.3% |
| Idaho | 21 | 54,166 | 5.3% | 13,909 | 12.8% | 16,711 | 5.9% | 21,596 | 5.9% | 1,951 | 0.8% |
| Virginia | 22 | 295,271 | 5.4% | 95,848 | 14.4% | 95,831 | 6.9% | 94,989 | 6.4% | 8,604 | 0.4% |
| Connecticut | 23 | 136,505 | 5.6% | 32,430 | 12.5% | 51,267 | 7.5% | 45,218 | 7.4% | 7,589 | 0.8% |
| Nevada | 24 | 109,329 | 5.9% | 27,089 | 9.6% | 37,610 | 7.1% | 33,892 | 5.5% | 10,738 | 2.6% |
| Washington | 25 | 279,463 | 6.0% | 65,116 | 14.3% | 83,192 | 7.6% | 111,787 | 7.0% | 19,369 | 1.3% |
| Delaware | 26 | 37,989 | 6.1% | 8,773 | 11.9% | 15,926 | 8.1% | 11,453 | 6.8% | 1,836 | 1.0% |
| New York | 27 | 841,446 | 6.3% | 271,944 | 13.9% | 247,780 | 6.9% | 220,471 | 6.7% | 101,251 | 2.3% |
| Rhode Island | 28 | 45,592 | 6.4% | 12,834 | 12.1% | 15,636 | 8.0% | 13,844 | 7.2% | 3,278 | 1.5% |
| Georgia | 29 | 415,878 | 6.5% | 142,930 | 14.8% | 144,543 | 7.9% | 106,652 | 5.9% | 21,752 | 1.2% |
| Massachusetts | 30 | 298,278 | 6.5% | 80,481 | 16.8% | 103,828 | 8.9% | 91,673 | 8.4% | 22,296 | 1.2% |
| California | 31 | 1,639,019 | 6.6% | 514,453 | 11.2% | 420,596 | 8.1% | 557,012 | 7.5% | 146,958 | 1.9% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 430,915 | 6.6% | 125,525 | 13.3% | 146,469 | 8.3% | 142,638 | 7.2% | 16,283 | 0.9% |
| Maine | 33 | 64,009 | 6.8% | 12,521 | 15.1% | 28,175 | 8.8% | 20,431 | 7.3% | 2,882 | 1.1% |
| Arizona | 34 | 290,063 | 6.8% | 81,004 | 13.3% | 75,080 | 7.1% | 115,939 | 7.9% | 18,040 | 1.6% |
| Missouri | 35 | 272,958 | 6.8% | 77,307 | 16.0% | 88,226 | 6.9% | 95,155 | 7.9% | 12,269 | 1.2% |
| Pennsylvania | 36 | 618,411 | 7.1% | 147,376 | 15.2% | 251,882 | 7.8% | 173,169 | 8.2% | 45,984 | 1.9% |
| Ohio | 37 | 553,604 | 7.1% | 159,893 | 18.2% | 203,424 | 7.6% | 162,350 | 7.3% | 27,937 | 1.4% |
| Michigan | 38 | 478,128 | 7.2% | 147,269 | 20.6% | 166,313 | 8.3% | 141,124 | 6.5% | 23,423 | 1.4% |
| New Mexico | 39 | 102,553 | 7.5% | 27,477 | 12.5% | 27,479 | 7.6% | 38,378 | 9.0% | 9,219 | 2.6% |
| South Carolina | 40 | 239,027 | 7.6% | 75,223 | 15.9% | 81,877 | 8.6% | 68,134 | 7.3% | 13,793 | 1.7% |
| Oregon | 41 | 203,534 | 7.6% | 50,204 | 17.8% | 58,570 | 8.8% | 78,416 | 8.4% | 16,344 | 2.0% |
| Indiana | 42 | 331,840 | 7.7% | 94,616 | 17.8% | 126,516 | 8.4% | 100,839 | 8.1% | 9,869 | 1.0% |
| Florida | 43 | 1,065,467 | 7.9% | 307,728 | 16.8% | 341,734 | 8.5% | 313,067 | 7.7% | 102,938 | 2.9% |
| Louisiana | 44 | 237,293 | 7.9% | 85,585 | 16.6% | 79,635 | 7.8% | 60,050 | 7.5% | 12,023 | 1.8% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 207,344 | 8.3% | 54,354 | 16.3% | 72,090 | 9.1% | 66,296 | 8.6% | 14,604 | 2.5% |
| Tennessee | 46 | 382,991 | 8.8% | 137,644 | 21.1% | 131,368 | 9.1% | 96,021 | 8.1% | 17,957 | 1.7% |
| Arkansas | 47 | 180,018 | 9.2% | 59,053 | 19.3% | 60,042 | 8.8% | 51,637 | 9.3% | 9,286 | 2.3% |
| Mississippi | 48 | 183,702 | 9.6% | 65,386 | 18.8% | 58,490 | 10.0% | 49,572 | 8.3% | 10,254 | 2.6% |
| Kentucky | 49 | 290,715 | 9.9% | 103,094 | 21.2% | 94,504 | 9.5% | 76,337 | 9.3% | 16,780 | 2.6% |
| Alabama | 50 | 329,069 | 10.2% | 105,309 | 20.0% | 112,822 | 11.3% | 89,252 | 9.4% | 21,686 | 3.0% |
| West Virginia | 51 | 133,129 | 10.3% | 40,025 | 19.7% | 55,622 | 10.5% | 30,079 | 9.4% | 7,403 | 3.1% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION



of adults with poor mental health

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with poor mental health in SD, ND, MN, IA, and WI.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



CHILD HEALTH STATUS

Table shows the portion of children age 0-17 whose parents rate their health as very good or excellent in each state, overall and by income. Source: 2011-2012 National Survey of Children's Health, Child and Adolescent Health Measurement Initiative

| State | Rank | Overall | 0-100% | 101-200% | 201-300% | 301-400% |
|-----------------------|------|---------|--------|-----------------|----------------|----------|
| New Hampshire | 1 | 91.2% | 81.3% | 85.8% | 92.3% | 90.99 |
| South Dakota | 2 | 91.2% | 85.0% | 92.1% | 89.1% | 91.79 |
| North Dakota | 3 | 90.8% | 78.1% | 89.0% | 93.4% | 94.79 |
| Montana | 4 | 90.3% | 80.8% | 88.8% | 91.7% | 95.19 |
| Missouri | 5 | 90.1% | 82.3% | 88.2% | 91.3% | 94.89 |
| Alaska | 6 | 89.8% | 80.1% | 90.0% | 87.2% | 94.99 |
| Vermont | 7 | 89.5% | 71.4% | 89.9% | 92.3% | 95.99 |
| Virginia | 8 | 89.5% | 79.0% | 82.2% | 91.3% | 92.89 |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 89.3% | 74.4% | 86.4% | 88.4% | 91.19 |
| lowa | 10 | 89.0% | 80.9% | 84.9% | 89.9% | 94.89 |
| Maine | 11 | 88.8% | 83.1% | 82.7% | 90.8% | 97.89 |
| Idaho | 12 | 88.4% | 76.8% | 88.2% | 91.0% | 94.39 |
| Michigan | 13 | 87.8% | 82.2% | 83.0% | 91.2% | 92.09 |
| Utah | 14 | 87.6% | 68.0% | 89.0% | 91.3% | 92.29 |
| Wisconsin | 15 | 87.6% | 73.1% | 86.3% | 91.7% | 91.69 |
| Minnesota | 16 | 87.6% | 71.4% | 85.3% | 82.9% | 96.09 |
| Hawaii | 17 | 87.4% | 78.5% | 81.3% | 85.4% | 94.89 |
| Nebraska | 18 | 87.3% | 66.9% | 84.6% | 90.9% | 95.19 |
| Colorado | 19 | 87.2% | 76.2% | 78.9% | 89.1% | 93.99 |
| Rhode Island | 20 | 87.1% | 69.2% | 87.7% | 86.3% | 93.19 |
| Louisiana | 21 | 87.0% | 79.7% | 84.5% | 90.3% | 96.79 |
| Marvland | 22 | 87.0% | 73.6% | 82.5% | 84.4% | 89.29 |
| Kansas | 23 | 87.0% | 65.9% | 83.9% | 94.2% | 95.19 |
| Ohio | 24 | 86.9% | 78.1% | 83.6% | 88.5% | 93.09 |
| West Virginia | 25 | 86.8% | 75.9% | 86.1% | 87.4% | 96.09 |
| Wyoming | 26 | 86.7% | 77.8% | 82.0% | 88.2% | 88.49 |
| South Carolina | 27 | 86.6% | 80.0% | 82.6% | 86.3% | 92.69 |
| Pennsylvania | 28 | 86.3% | 72.2% | 81.1% | 88.0% | 92.29 |
| North Carolina | 29 | 86.0% | 76.4% | 81.4% | 93.5% | 86.49 |
| Kentucky | 30 | 85.6% | 74.9% | 84.6% | 89.2% | 92.39 |
| Georgia | 31 | 85.5% | 74.2% | 84.9% | 89.2% | 91.8 |
| Connecticut | 32 | 85.2% | 64.0% | 75.3% | 83.7% | 90.19 |
| Alabama | 33 | 85.1% | 74.0% | 83.9% | 86.2% | 93.09 |
| Mississinni | 34 | 84.7% | 74.6% | 83.5% | 92.4% | 94.09 |
| Oklahoma | 35 | 84.7% | 72.5% | 86.2% | 83.1% | 94 39 |
| Washington | 36 | 84.6% | 65.2% | 79.1% | 89.0% | 93.39 |
| Tennessee | 37 | 84 5% | 68.8% | 84.3% | 90.4% | 93.3 |
| Illinois | 38 | 84.2% | 68.7% | 75.2% | 88.2% | 94.49 |
| Delaware | 39 | 84.1% | 61.7% | 81.5% | 87.0% | 95 59 |
| Indiana | 40 | 84.1% | 73.4% | 81.3% | 86.3% | 92.19 |
| Oregon | 40 | 84.1% | 70.6% | 81.7% | 82.5% | 96.49 |
| Florida | 41 | 83.6% | 68.1% | 82.2% | 89.9% | 90.90 |
| Now Jorsov | 12 | 83.5% | 59.4% | 73.2% | 0J.J70 | 90.0 |
| New York | 43 | 83.4% | 67.5% | 79.2% | 84.4% | 86.69 |
| | 44 | 81.0% | 68.6% | 79.5% | 04.4% 00.5% | 87.70 |
| Arkansas | 45 | 01.5% | 66.99/ | PA 19/ | 90.5% | 95.00 |
| Now Movico | 40 | 01.0% | 67 79 | 04.4% | 00.0% 86.6% | 00.20 |
| District of Columbia | 4/ | 01.4% | 66.20 | 00.0% | 00.0% | 90.3 |
| | 40 | 01.4% | 60.3% | 80.6% | 04.1% | 03.0 |
| Novada | 49 | 70.0% | 62.0% | 80.9% 76.99/ | 90.4% | 91.8 |
| INEVOUD California | 50 | 79.0% | 50.1% | 70.8% | 00.0% | 03.0 |
| California | 51 | 11.8% | 54.7% | 75.6% | 81.7% | 92.3 |

INCOME (% FPL)

Data not reported by race and ethnicity due to insufficient group size and absence of AI/AN, Asian/PI, and Multiracial reporting categories.

STATE RATES BY INCOME

| 0% | >400% |
|---------|-------|
| 0.9% | 96.0% |
| 1.7% | 98.4% |
| 4.7% | 94.0% |
| 5.1% | 96.4% |
| 4.8% | 95.3% |
| 4.9% | 92.8% |
| 5.9% | 93.9% |
| 2.8% | 95.5% |
| 1.1% | 95.3% |
| 4.8% | 93.2% |
| 7.8% | 92.2% |
| 4.3% | 94.0% |
| 2.0% | 93.0% |
| 2.0% | 93.0% |
| 1 6% | 92.5% |
| 1.0% | 93.0% |
| 0.0% | 94.5% |
| 4.8% | 93.1% |
| 15.1% | 96.8% |
| 3.9% | 95.0% |
| 3.1% | 96.0% |
| 6.7% | 91.1% |
| 9.2% | 93.3% |
| 5.1% | 95.5% |
| 3.0% | 93.6% |
| 6.0% | 94.7% |
| 8.4% | 93.2% |
| 2.6% | 96.9% |
| 2.2% | 95.4% |
| 6.4% | 95.9% |
| 2.3% | 92.9% |
| 1.8% | 93.4% |
| 0.1% | 94.5% |
| 3.0% | 95.8% |
| 4.0% | 93.1% |
| 4 3% | 92.9% |
| 3 3% | 93.8% |
| 3.3% | 94.2% |
| 1 1% | 94.7% |
| 5 5 5 % | 94.7% |
| 12 10/ | 92.1% |
| 6 10/ | 91.2% |
| 0.4% | 94.1% |
| 0.9% | 93.6% |
| 0.0% | 91.8% |
| 6.6% | 95.5% |
| \$7.7% | 92.4% |
| 5.9% | 92.4% |
| 0.3% | 95.3% |
| 3.6% | 92.5% |
| 1.8% | 90.5% |
| 9.6% | 92.0% |
| 2 3% | 91.0% |

97% of children in very good or excellent health Calculated as the average portion of children in

HOPE Goal

calculated as the average portion of children in very good or excellent health in households with income 301-400% FPL in LA and ME, and households with income greater than 400% FPL in SD, SC, and NE.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2^{nd} , 3^{rd} , and 4^{th} quartiles.



CHILD HEALTH STATUS

1.3%

0.0% 3.3%

0.9%

2.0% 4.5%

3.4%

1.8%

2.0%

4.1%

5.1% 3.3% 4.3% 4.8% 3.7% 2.8% 4.2% 0.5% 2.3% 1.3% 6.2% 4.0%

1.8%

3.7%

2.6%

4.1%

0.4%

1.9%

1.4%

4.4%

3.9%

2.8%

1.5%

4.2% 4.4%

3.5%

3.1% 2.6%

5.2%

6.1% 3.2% 3.7%

5.5%

1.8%

4.9%

4.9% 2.0%

4.8%

6.8%

5.3%

6 3%

Table shows the number of additional children age 0-17 (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's child population (% to Goal) who would need to be in very good or excellent health to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-100 | % FPL | 101-20 | 0% FPL | 201-300 | % FPL | 301-400 | % FPL | >4009 | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 16,506 | 6.1% | 5,007 | 16.0% | 4,997 | 11.5% | 2,295 | 5.0% | 2,813 | 6.4% | 1,392 | 1.39 |
| South Dakota | 2 | 12,298 | 6.1% | 4,574 | 12.3% | 2,410 | 5.2% | 3,529 | 8.2% | 1,785 | 5.6% | 0 | 0.0 |
| North Dakota | 3 | 10,124 | 6.5% | 4,314 | 19.2% | 2,355 | 8.3% | 1,224 | 3.9% | 703 | 2.6% | 1,529 | 3.39 |
| Montana | 4 | 15,306 | 7.0% | 7,181 | 16.5% | 4,595 | 8.5% | 2,408 | 5.6% | 737 | 2.2% | 385 | 0.99 |
| Missouri | 5 | 99,799 | 7.2% | 44,310 | 15.0% | 29,030 | 9.1% | 15,472 | 6.0% | 4,630 | 2.5% | 6,357 | 2.04 |
| Alaska | 6 | 13,770 | 7.5% | 4,381 | 17.2% | 2,791 | 7.3% | 3,228 | 10.1% | 720 | 2.4% | 2,650 | 4.5 |
| Vermont | 7 | 9,483 | 7.8% | 4,941 | 25.9% | 1,904 | 7.4% | 1,179 | 5.0% | 260 | 1.4% | 1,199 | 3.49 |
| Virginia | 8 | 144,011 | 7.8% | 51,033 | 18.3% | 51,942 | 15.1% | 18,238 | 6.0% | 10,769 | 4.5% | 12,028 | 1.89 |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 110,346 | 8.0% | 47,946 | 22.9% | 22,464 | 10.9% | 16,875 | 8.9% | 10,769 | 6.2% | 12,291 | 2.04 |
| Iowa | 10 | 59,160 | 8.3% | 18,822 | 16.4% | 19,096 | 12.4% | 10,905 | 7.4% | 2,867 | 2.5% | 7,470 | 4.19 |
| Maine | 11 | 22,103 | 8.5% | 6,911 | 14.2% | 8,818 | 14.6% | 3,217 | 6.5% | 0 | 0.0% | 3,157 | 5.19 |
| Idaho | 12 | 37,617 | 8.9% | 16,751 | 20.5% | 11,086 | 9.1% | 5,848 | 6.3% | 1,634 | 3.0% | 2,298 | 3.39 |
| Michigan | 13 | 211,331 | 9.5% | 80,183 | 15.1% | 68,246 | 14.3% | 23,633 | 6.1% | 15,752 | 5.3% | 23,517 | 4.39 |
| Utah | 14 | 84,769 | 9.7% | 38,371 | 29.3% | 17,935 | 8.3% | 12,857 | 6.0% | 7,182 | 5.1% | 8,424 | 4.89 |
| Wisconsin | 15 | 125,167 | 9.7% | 57,887 | 24.2% | 29,625 | 11.0% | 13,539 | 5.6% | 11,160 | 5.7% | 12,957 | 3.79 |
| Minnesota | 16 | 122,757 | 9.7% | 48,363 | 25.9% | 28,386 | 12.0% | 31,637 | 14.4% | 2,604 | 1.4% | 11,768 | 2.89 |
| Hawaii | 17 | 29,828 | 9.9% | 8,701 | 18.8% | 9,040 | 16.0% | 6,993 | 11.9% | 1,212 | 2.5% | 3,882 | 4.29 |
| Nebraska | 18 | 45,211 | 10.0% | 24,274 | 30.4% | 13,084 | 12.7% | 5,720 | 6.4% | 1,545 | 2.2% | 588 | 0.59 |
| Colorado | 19 | 122,860 | 10.1% | 44,068 | 21.1% | 47,193 | 18.4% | 17,119 | 8.2% | 5,599 | 3.4% | 8,880 | 2.39 |
| Rhode Island | 20 | 21,825 | 10.2% | 12,133 | 28.1% | 4,052 | 9.6% | 3,589 | 11.0% | 1,171 | 4.2% | 880 | 1.39 |
| Louisiana | 21 | 113,327 | 10.3% | 53,616 | 17.6% | 31,838 | 12.8% | 11,662 | 7.0% | 845 | 0.6% | 15,365 | 6.29 |
| Maryland | 22 | 136,999 | 10.3% | 41,459 | 23.7% | 33,634 | 14.8% | 26,047 | 12.9% | 14,011 | 8.1% | 21,848 | 4.0 |
| Kansas | 23 | 73,571 | 10.3% | 41,542 | 31.5% | 22,298 | 13.4% | 4,366 | 3.1% | 2,309 | 2.2% | 3,056 | 1.8 |
| Ohio | 24 | 273,297 | 10.4% | 116,424 | 19.2% | 76,592 | 13.7% | 40,913 | 8.8% | 15,428 | 4.3% | 23,941 | 3.79 |
| West Virginia | 25 | 39,310 | 10.5% | 20,257 | 21.4% | 9,764 | 11.2% | 6,710 | 9.9% | 673 | 1.3% | 1,905 | 2.69 |
| Wyoming | 26 | 14,234 | 10.6% | 4,015 | 19.5% | 4,227 | 15.3% | 2,471 | 9.1% | 2,041 | 8.9% | 1,481 | 4.19 |
| South Carolina | 27 | 114,312 | 10.7% | 49,491 | 17.3% | 38,167 | 14.7% | 19,715 | 11.0% | 6,030 | 4.7% | 909 | 0.49 |
| Pennsylvania | 28 | 296,664 | 11.0% | 129,510 | 25.1% | 88,528 | 16.2% | 44,737 | 9.3% | 18,881 | 5.1% | 15,007 | 1.99 |
| North Carolina | 29 | 253,904 | 11.3% | 117,620 | 20.9% | 85,831 | 15.9% | 14,372 | 3.8% | 28,804 | 10.9% | 7,277 | 1.49 |
| Kentucky | 30 | 116,227 | 11.7% | 57,999 | 22.4% | 28,494 | 12.7% | 13,831 | 8.1% | 6,670 | 5.0% | 9,232 | 4.4 |
| Georgia | 31 | 288,569 | 11.8% | 147,125 | 23.1% | 71,423 | 12.4% | 32,626 | 8.1% | 15,534 | 5.5% | 21,861 | 3.9 |
| Connecticut | 32 | 95,294 | 12.1% | 36,623 | 33.3% | 27,103 | 22.0% | 14,537 | 13.6% | 7,512 | 7.2% | 9,519 | 2.8 |
| Alabama | 33 | 134,262 | 12.2% | 70,545 | 23.3% | 34,354 | 13.4% | 20,074 | 11.1% | 5,807 | 4.3% | 3,483 | 1.59 |
| Mississippi | 34 | 92,070 | 12.6% | 53,395 | 22.7% | 25,450 | 13.8% | 6,065 | 4.9% | 2,499 | 3.3% | 4,662 | 4.29 |
| Oklahoma | 35 | 116,835 | 12.6% | 54,149 | 24.8% | 26,602 | 11.1% | 24,856 | 14.2% | 3,517 | 3.0% | 7,711 | 4.49 |
| Washington | 36 | 198,556 | 12.7% | 90,859 | 32.1% | 60,085 | 18.2% | 22,796 | 8.3% | 8,244 | 4.0% | 16,573 | 3.59 |
| Tennessee | 37 | 188,071 | 12.8% | 107,807 | 28.5% | 46,346 | 13.0% | 17,674 | 6.9% | 7,116 | 4.0% | 9,127 | 3.19 |
| Illinois | 38 | 393,633 | 13.1% | 175,057 | 28.6% | 139,346 | 22.1% | 44,962 | 9.1% | 11,291 | 2.9% | 22,976 | 2.69 |
| Delaware | 39 | 26,468 | 13.2% | 12,472 | 35.6% | 6,825 | 15.8% | 3,486 | 10.3% | 479 | 1.8% | 3,206 | 5.29 |
| Indiana | 40 | 205,528 | 13.2% | 82,481 | 23.9% | 58,544 | 16.0% | 32,845 | 11.0% | 11,401 | 5.2% | 20,257 | 6.19 |
| Oregon | 41 | 111,654 | 13.2% | 49,822 | 26.7% | 31,858 | 15.6% | 22,730 | 14.8% | 963 | 0.9% | 6,281 | 3.29 |
| Florida | 42 | 540,682 | 13.7% | 278,273 | 29.2% | 150,075 | 15.1% | 50,715 | 7.4% | 29,574 | 6.4% | 32,045 | 3.79 |
| New Jersey | 43 | 277,105 | 13.8% | 117,559 | 37.9% | 77,968 | 24.1% | 16,484 | 5.9% | 17,673 | 7.3% | 47,421 | 5.59 |
| New York | 44 | 585,834 | 13.9% | 277,025 | 29.8% | 150,255 | 18.0% | 81,217 | 12.9% | 53,281 | 10.7% | 24,056 | 1.8 |
| Texas | 45 | 1,063,351 | 15.4% | 501,048 | 28.7% | 335,287 | 19.8% | 75,859 | 6.8% | 73,127 | 9.6% | 78,029 | 4.9 |
| Arkansas | 46 | 108,105 | 15.5% | 58,896 | 30.5% | 24,027 | 12.9% | 10,537 | 8.7% | 8,733 | 11.4% | 5,912 | 4.9 |
| New Mexico | 47 | 80,134 | 15.9% | 43,937 | 29.6% | 21,599 | 16.7% | 8,947 | 10.7% | 3,913 | 7.0% | 1,738 | 2.09 |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 16,958 | 15.9% | 9,105 | 31.0% | 3,322 | 16.7% | 1,695 | 13.2% | 1,089 | 13.7% | 1,746 | 4.89 |
| Arizona | 49 | 263,095 | 16.5% | 145,796 | 35.3% | 66,336 | 16.4% | 19,176 | 6.9% | 10,115 | 5.5% | 21,672 | 6.89 |
| Nevada | 50 | 119,326 | 18.3% | 60,213 | 41.2% | 35,572 | 20.5% | 10,549 | 8.5% | 6,193 | 7.7% | 6,799 | 5.39 |
| California | 51 | 1,769,387 | 19.5% | 877,143 | 42.6% | 466,086 | 21.7% | 220,731 | 15.6% | 48,639 | 5.0% | 156,789 | 6.39 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal



of children in very good or excellent health

Calculated as the average portion of children in very good or excellent health in households with income 301-400% FPL in LA and ME, and households with income greater than 400% FPL in SD, SC, and NE.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



PREMATURE MORTALITY

Tables show the number of annual deaths due to any cause per 100,000 population age 25-64 in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2010-2014 National Vital Statistics System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| Chata | D | 0 | RAC | E AND ETHNICI | | | A1/AN | NA. JAL |
|----------------------|------|---------|-------|---------------|----------|----------|---------|-------------|
| State | Kank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | | Multiracial |
| iviinnesota | | 282.3 | 287.8 | 362.5 | 123.1 | 137.2 | 833.8 | 164.6 |
| Utan | 2 | 286.9 | 303.4 | 402.1 | 174.9 | 198.5 | 605.5 | 197.8 |
| | 3 | 292.2 | 380.7 | 559.8 | 201.4 | 161.6 | 489.9 | 183.8 |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 305.1 | 332.3 | 353.4 | 190.9 | 96.4 | 270.3° | 10.4 |
| Connecticut | 5 | 306.6 | 325.2 | 403.4 | 216.0 | 90.1 | 159.8° | 13.9 |
| Colorado | 6 | 310.7 | 324.4 | 450.3 | 263.2 | 128.9 | 514.7 | 6.2 |
| New York | 7 | 310.7 | 329.0 | 468.1 | 219.2 | 130.7 | 307.3 | 40.3 |
| New Jersey | 8 | 320.4 | 355.1 | 526.4 | 1/6.6 | 96.6 | 219.1° | 83.2 |
| Washington | 9 | 318.7 | 355.3 | 404.9 | 149.0 | 153.5 | 679.0 | 166.3 |
| Hawaii | 10 | 324.0 | 364.8 | 230.8 | 256.8 | 267.3 | 256.8ª | 471.0 |
| New Hampshire | 11 | 329.6 | 343.3 | 265.4 | 133.7 | 71.0 | 198.5ª | 52.9 |
| Nebraska | 12 | 330.6 | 341.0 | 545.1 | 146.9 | 110.9 | 775.3 | 154.1 |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 337.9 | 335.6 | 602.1 | 149.4 | 143.2 | 672.6 | 104.1 |
| Vermont | 14 | 338.4 | 348.4 | 310.3ª | 151.6ª | 119.5ª | 229.2ª | 56.6 |
| Idaho | 15 | 340.7 | 363.6 | 321.6ª | 172.0 | 146.2 | 612.0 | 102.9 |
| North Dakota | 16 | 342.2 | 321.8 | 201.9ª | 257.0 | 102.2ª | 879.8 | 320.4 |
| Virginia | 17 | 346.2 | 359.5 | 491.3 | 102.4 | 116.3 | 239.8 | 4.2 |
| Illinois | 18 | 349.0 | 359.5 | 611.2 | 158.4 | 111.5 | 218.6 | 83.9 |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 350.2 | 389.0 | 351.4 | 172.8 | 134.1 | 470.5ª | 85.3 |
| Iowa | 20 | 353.3 | 366.5 | 497.6 | 128.8 | 136.6 | 505.2ª | 47.0 |
| Maryland | 21 | 361.1 | 367.4 | 477.9 | 113.2 | 118.4 | 219.0ª | 3.7 |
| South Dakota | 22 | 359.5 | 324.1 | 197.3 | 152.3 | 123.7ª | 907.0 | 467.2 |
| Oregon | 23 | 359.9 | 399.4 | 489.4 | 147.3 | 145.6 | 565.5 | 145.7 |
| Texas | 24 | 362.2 | 433.6 | 522.2 | 251.5 | 120.8 | 195.1 | 71.6 |
| Arizona | 25 | 374.7 | 428.6 | 445.5 | 238.1 | 134.9 | 702.4 | 256.0 |
| Maine | 26 | 380.9 | 388.5 | 330.9 | 181.7 | 80.2 | 491.0ª | 88.1 |
| Kansas | 27 | 381.7 | 398.3 | 576.1 | 184.2 | 128.0 | 601.0 | 354.3 |
| Alaska | 28 | 386.3 | 361.2 | 405.8 | 182.3 | 224.9 | 778.1 | 62.3 |
| Wyoming | 29 | 398.3 | 406.3 | 349.0ª | 245.8 | 110.8ª | 1015.2ª | 134.1 |
| Pennsylvania | 30 | 398.8 | 397.2 | 611.0 | 231.4 | 119.9 | 229.6 | 124.0 |
| Florida | 31 | 403.4 | 493.7 | 474.0 | 190.5 | 130.6 | 295.8 | 128.6 |
| Nevada | 32 | 403.3 | 524.2 | 546.1 | 171.1 | 200.3 | 556.7 | 173.2 |
| District of Columbia | 33 | 408.2 | 112.5 | 780.4 | 130.7 | 78.5 | 191.0ª | 11.9 |
| Montana | 34 | 405.8 | 388.5 | 399.6ª | 240.7 | 129.2ª | 862.5 | 211.4 |
| North Carolina | 35 | 414.6 | 424.0 | 538.9 | 99.3 | 108.0 | 535.3 | 15.0 |
| Georgia | 36 | 415.9 | 444.7 | 492.7 | 99.8 | 128.1 | 155.2 | 45.5 |
| Delaware | 37 | 418.5 | 446.6 | 506.0 | 145.8 | 98.2 | 231.9ª | 31.6 |
| Michigan | 38 | 426.3 | 404.2 | 681.9 | 259.0 | 100.9 | 599.5 | 106.3 |
| Indiana | 39 | 434.8 | 447.8 | 582.8 | 168.6 | 115.3 | 212.7ª | 49.5 |
| Ohio | 40 | 442.4 | 440.1 | 607.5 | 189.2 | 103.2 | 201.1 | 54.5 |
| Missouri | 41 | 445.4 | 445.7 | 619.6 | 161.4 | 136.7 | 277.2 | 106.1 |
| New Mexico | 42 | 445.9 | 474.1 | 526.0 | 398.7 | 163.0 | 620.8 | 237.1 |
| South Carolina | 43 | 492.0 | 483.3 | 614.8 | 119.1 | 138.4 | 337.2 | 53.6 |
| Tennessee | 44 | 514.1 | 529.9 | 608.3 | 123.3 | 136.7 | 215.0 | 39.5 |
| Louisiana | 45 | 517.2 | 489.4 | 665.6 | 147.0 | 167.2 | 251.5 | 31.4 |
| Kentucky | 46 | 525.3 | 544.7 | 570.5 | 137.1 | 110.7 | 209.1ª | 37.0 |
| Arkansas | 47 | 529.7 | 549.7 | 674.5 | 132.6 | 162.6 | 168.8 | 70.7 |
| Oklahoma | 48 | 529.7 | 565.7 | 652.6 | 199.1 | 177.5 | 644.7 | 296.8 |
| Alabama | 49 | 551.9 | 555.7 | 645.9 | 128.0 | 99.1 | 222.7 | 6,2 |
| Mississippi | 50 | 579.7 | 562.4 | 660.1 | 120.5 | 182.4 | 723.6ª | 40.4 |
| West Virginia | 51 | 582.6 | 592.2 | 705.8 | 1137 | 75.3 | 213 7ª | 5.0 |

| | 1 | 1 | EDUCA | TION | | r |
|---------------------------|------|---------|----------------|---------|--------------|--------------|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad |
| Minnesota | 1 | 283.2 | 504.0 | 480.5 | 242.0 | 146.6 |
| Connecticut | 2 | 294.5 | 418.3 | 543.1 | 213.4 | 145.6 |
| California | 3 | 288.3 | 310.5 | 520.5 | 253.1 | 158.8 |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 301.1 | 434.1 | 633.9 | 204.8 | 143.4 |
| New York | 5 | 306.7 | 375.2 | 558.1 | 234.9 | 153.5 |
| New Hampshire | 6 | 321.3 | 630.0 | 571.1 | 207.9 | 164.6 |
| Utah | 7 | 293.2 | 426.6 | 476.5 | 262.4 | 155.5 |
| New Jersey | 8 | 315.3 | 413.7 | 574.3 | 237.2 | 157.9 |
| Hawaii | 9 | 314.5 | 479.4 | 547.3 | 219.0 | 184.5 |
| Colorado | 10 | 312.3 | 417.2 | 574.1 | 258.7 | 184.6 |
| Washington | 11 | 317.9 | 474.7 | 561.4 | 270.1 | 158.3 |
| Vermont | 12 | 333.5 | 820.5 | 517.2 | 229.1 | 169.7 |
| Nebraska | 13 | 331.2 | 538.5 | 589.5 | 244.9 | 165.3 |
| Wisconsin | 14 | 337.3 | 608.6 | 538.5 | 229.6 | 173.4 |
| Virginia | 15 | 342.2 | 697 3 | 587.8 | 234 3 | 161.0 |
| Idaho | 16 | 342.0 | 522.0 | 499.1 | 289.1 | 183.9 |
| Illinois | 17 | 3/17 | 509.2 | 591.8 | 203.1 | 160.7 |
| North Dakota | 18 | 350.1 | 825.0 | 564.4 | 273.3 | 167.5 |
| | 10 | 252.6 | 680.2 | 568.0 | 205.0 | 107.5 |
| Maina | 20 | 264.0 | 840.2 | 500.9 | 243.9 | 173.0 |
| Mandand | 20 | 252.9 | 049.5 E00.E | 554.7 | 230.4 | 105.4 |
| Naryland | 21 | 352.8 | 599.5 | 050.0 | 242.8 | 172.7 |
| Oregon | 22 | 356.5 | 526.1 | 617.0 | 298.3 | 170.6 |
| South Dakota | 23 | 364.9 | / 18.0 | 579.3 | 251.3 | 185.0 |
| Arizona | 24 | 368.5 | 458.9 | 587.3 | 313.5 | 203.8 |
| Texas | 25 | 364.9 | 481.5 | 578.7 | 286.0 | 180.9 |
| Kansas | 26 | 378.4 | 629.6 | 629.8 | 312.8 | 178.2 |
| Alaska | 27 | 379.0 | 651.0 | 668.7 | 252.4 | 196.3 |
| Pennsylvania | 28 | 394.1 | 660.9 | 612.5 | 256.3 | 182.5 |
| Montana | 29 | 403.7 | 811.0 | 585.1 | 348.4 | 207.2 |
| Florida | 30 | 400.9 | 581.1 | 599.7 | 305.6 | 219.9 |
| Wyoming | 31 | 402.0 | 862.5 | 596.2 | 308.0 | 205.7 |
| Nevada | 32 | 393.7 | 355.2 | 671.2 | 275.6 | 248.6 |
| Delaware | 33 | 406.0 | 657.4 | 682.2 | 252.4 | 186.0 |
| Georgia | 34 | 401.5 | 696.0 | 591.7 | 302.5 | 180.0 |
| Michigan | 35 | 418.3 | 812.1 | 692.3 | 269.2 | 189.9 |
| North Carolina | 36 | 414.2 | 742.0 | 655.8 | 276.1 | 198.1 |
| Ohio | 37 | 430.4 | 797.5 | 685.2 | 258.8 | 185.8 |
| Indiana | 38 | 432.2 | 730.9 | 662.5 | 269.0 | 190.7 |
| New Mexico | 39 | 438.4 | 624.4 | 625.2 | 363.9 | 236.1 |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 414.7 | 751.0 | 1099.5 | 385.4 | 125.6 |
| Missouri | 41 | 442.2 | 867.3 | 662.2 | 309.7 | 197.9 |
| South Carolina | 42 | 489.8 | 898.8 | 690.8 | 343.9 | 216.6 |
| Tennessee | 43 | 509.0 | 993.1 | 694.3 | 332.0 | 220.9 |
| Louisiana | 44 | 518.5 | 919.8 | 666.5 | 339.5 | 242.2 |
| Kentucky | 45 | 523.0 | 1033.9 | 706.9 | 311.8 | 211.9 |
| Arkansas | 46 | 524.1 | 866.8 | 701.9 | 349.5 | 255.4 |
| Oklahoma | 47 | 532.5 | 889.3 | 735.3 | 413.5 | 258.1 |
| Alahama | 18 | 548.2 | 009.5 | 796.7 | 226.9 | 250.1 |
| West Virginia | 10 | 540.2 | 1048 7 | 750.7 | 288.2 | 204.0 |
| Mississippi | 49 | 571.7 | 007.9 | 757.0 | 200.2 | 200.0 |
| Phodo Island ^b | 50 | 0.605 | 997.8 | 754.0 | 572.0 | 201.0 |
| Knode Island | | | | | | |

^a Estimates may be unreliable due to small population size (<4,000 annual population for 25-44 year olds and <700 for 45-64 year olds).

^b Data for RI not reported by education due to unreported educational attainment data in majority of deaths.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goals

42

deaths per 100,000 adults age 25-44

260

deaths per 100,000 adults age 45-64

Calculated separately for each age group as the average premature mortality rate among college graduates age 25-44 in DC, MA, CT, NY, and MN, and the average premature mortality rate among college graduates age 45-64 in CT, MA, NH, VT, and MN.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



PREMATURE MORTALITY

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOALS BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

EDUCATION

Tables show the number of additional 25-64 year old adults that would need to survive per year to achieve the HOPE Goals in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education.

Due to the use of separate age-based HOPE Goals for adults age 25-44 and age 45-64, a combined Rate to Goal cannot be calculated. For this reason, states are displayed in rank order of their overall premature mortality rates by race, ethnicity, and education, and no shading by quartiles has been applied.

| | | | KAC | E AND ETHNI | CITY | | | | | | EDUCAI | ION | | |
|----------------------|------|----------------|----------------|--------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------------|------|--------------|---------|--------------|---------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | State | Rank | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College |
| Minnesota | 1 | 3,698 | 3,093 | 338 | 22 | 32 | 195 | 16 | Minnesota | 1 | 3,712 | 639 | 2,138 | |
| Utah | 2 | 2,119 | 1,858 | 37 | 110 | 35 | 65 | 14 | Connecticut | 2 | 2,634 | 436 | 1,910 | |
| California | 3 | 29,786 | 18,313 | 4,912 | 5,463 | 576 | 305 | 217 | California | 3 | 28,626 | 5,982 | 15,308 | |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 5,433 | 4,696 | 492 | 237 | 0 | 7 ^a | 0 | Massachusetts | 4 | 5,262 | 832 | 4,003 | |
| Connecticut | 5 | 2,839 | 2,120 | 478 | 241 | 0 | 1 ^a | 0 | New York | 5 | 16,429 | 2,935 | 10,619 | |
| Colorado | 6 | 4,646 | 3,492 | 341 | 734 | 10 | 70 | 0 | New Hampshire | 6 | 1,153 | 223 | 815 | |
| New York | 7 | 16,924 | 10,310 | 4,880 | 1,675 | 13 | 47 | 0 | Utah | 7 | 0 | 353 | 1,038 | |
| New Jersey | 8 | 7,979 | 5,222 | 2,321 | 432 | 0 | 4ª | 0 | New Jersey | 8 | 7,769 | 1,191 | 5,361 | |
| Washington | 9 | 6,306 | 5,423 | 368 | 146 | 68 | 257 | 44 | Hawaii | 9 | 1,193 | 155 | 785 | |
| Hawaii | 10 | 1,288 | 403 | 19 | 83 | 376 | 2ª | 405 | Colorado | 10 | 4,573 | 738 | 2,475 | |
| New Hampshire | 11 | 1,193 | 1,178 | 10 | 5 | 0 | 1ª | 0 ^a | Washington | 11 | 0 | 1,146 | 3,369 | |
| Nebraska | 12 | 1,698 | 1,450 | 170 | 29 | 0 | 46 | 4 | Vermont | 12 | 0 | 143 | 358 | |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 5,474 | 4,438 | 811 | 65 | 22 | 137 | 1 | Nebraska | 13 | 1,682 | 313 | 988 | |
| Idaho | 15 | 1,532 | 1,430 | 9ª | 46 | 2 | 44 | 1 | Wisconsin | 14 | 0 | 1,068 | 3,407 | |
| North Dakota | 16 | 679 | 531 | 5ª | 11 | 0ª | 124 | 8ª | Virginia | 15 | 0 | 2,476 | 4,593 | |
| Virginia | 17 | 8,690 | 5,796 | 2,848 | 36 | 0 | 10 | 0 | Idaho | 16 | 1,518 | 301 | 737 | |
| Illinois | 18 | 13.684 | 8,916 | 4,336 | 425 | 0 | 7 | 1 | Illinois | 17 | 13,208 | 2,706 | 7.468 | |
| Vermont | 18 | 13.684 | 576 | , 5ª | 1 ^a | 1 ^a | 1 ^a | 0ª | North Dakota | 18 | 676 | 117 | 345 | |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 1.075 | 967 | 64 | 34 | 2 | 7ª | 0 | lowa | 19 | 3.072 | 597 | 1.815 | |
| lowa | 20 | 3.096 | 2.896 | 162 | 14 | 8 | 16ª | 0 | Maine | 20 | 1.451 | 320 | 929 | |
| Maryland | 21 | 6 680 | 3 541 | 3 077 | 51 | 7 | . 5 5ª | 0 | Maryland | 21 | 6 3 5 0 | 1 370 | 3 891 | |
| South Dakota | 22 | 862 | 597 | 5,077 | 5 | , 1ª | 238 | 16ª | Oregon | 22 | 4 2 3 0 | 814 | 2 223 | |
| Oregon | 23 | 4 357 | 4 027 | 128 | 81 | 14 | 99 | 9 | South Dakota | 23 | 1,230 | 169 | 511 | |
| Texas | 24 | 29.809 | 17 546 | 6 164 | 6.060 | 20 | 18 | 0 | Arizona | 24 | 7 206 | 1467 | 3 362 | |
| Arizona | 25 | 7 506 | 5 249 | 418 | 1 049 | 9 | 726 | 56 | Tevas | 25 | 1,200 | 7 871 | 14 222 | |
| Maine | 26 | 1,500 | 1 5 1 3 | 410 14 | 1,045 | 0 | 16ª | 0 | Kansas | 26 | 3 300 | 645 | 1 722 | |
| Kansas | 27 | 3 372 | 2 799 | 368 | 99 | 4 | 56 | 46 | Alaska | 27 | 892 | 138 | 554 | |
| Alaska | 28 | 945 | 558 | 36 | 13 | 22 | 316 | 0 | Pennsylvania | 28 | 15 806 | 2 909 | 10 335 | |
| Wyoming | 29 | 746 | 657 | 7ª | 31 | 0ª | 50ª | O ^a | Montana | 29 | 1 263 | 219 | 624 | |
| Pennsylvania | 30 | 16 152 | 12 540 | 3 179 | 412 | 10 | 7 | 5 | Florida | 30 | 24 240 | 5 151 | 12 565 | |
| Florida | 31 | 24 909 | 18 //3 | 5 084 | 1 3 1 6 | 10 | 38 | 10 | Wyoming | 31 | 24,240 | 139 | 380 | |
| Nevada | 32 | 3 817 | 3 000 | 2,004 479 | 1,310 | 74 | 55 | 10 | Nevada | 32 | 3 629 | 488 | 2 175 | |
| District of Columbia | 32 | 1 044 | 3,000 | 1 018 | 9 | /4 0 | 0ª | 0 | Delaware | 32 | 1 189 | 255 | 7/8 | |
| Montana | 34 | 1,044 | 1 052 | 1,010 6ª | 16 | 2ª | 206 | 6 | Georgia | 3/ | 13 301 | 3 878 | 6 / 25 | |
| North Carolina | 34 | 13 578 | 9.051 | 4 242 | 53 | ے ح | 200 | 0 | Michigan | 35 | 13,501 | 3,070 | 7 886 | |
| Goorgia | 36 | 14 179 | 8 5 4 8 | 5 564 | 50 | 15 | 220 | 0 | North Carolina | 36 | 13,000 | 2 0 2 2 | 6 5 8 5 | |
| Delaware | 37 | 1 260 | 887 | 358 | 14 | 0 | ے 1ª | 0ª | Obio | 37 | 16 689 | 3,555 | 10.405 | |
| Michigan | 38 | 12 825 | 9.687 | 3 7 3 3 | 281 | 2 | 122 | 0 | Indiana | 38 | 9.463 | 2 174 | 5 612 | |
| Indiana | 30 | 9 569 | 8 1 2 9 | 1 324 | 110 | 2 | /a | 0 | New Mexico | 30 | 3,403 | 7/8 | 1 308 | |
| Obio | 40 | 17 332 | 12 952 | 2 2/8 | 170 | 3 | - | 0 | District of Columbia | 40 | 3,004 | 212 | 606 | |
| Missouri | 40 | 9 152 | 7 406 | 1,667 | 124 | 11 | 16 | 2 | Missouri | 40 | 9.021 | 213 | 4 672 | |
| New Movico | 41 | 3,133 2 114 | 1,400 | 1,007 | 1 2 2 2 | | 10 | 12 | South Carolina | 41 | 3,021 | 2,311 | 2 800 | |
| South Carolina | 42 | 9,114 | 5 200 | 2 006 | 1,222 | ر د | 427 | 12 | Toppossoo | 42 | 0 | 2,410 | 5,090 | |
| Toppossoo | 45 | 12 250 | 0,209 | 3,090 | 20 | о О | 17 F | 0 | Leuisiana | 45 | 0 721 | 2,000 | 3,301 | |
| Leuisiana | 44 | 12,550 | 9,710 | 2,505 | 22 | 0 | 5 16 | 0 | Louisiana | 44 | 0,751 | 2,014 | 4,000 | |
| Louisiana | 45 | 0,004 9,636 | 4,954 | 5,044 | 33 | 17 | 10 | 0 | Arkansas | 45 | 0,373 | 2,707 | 4,271 | |
| Arkansas | 40 | 0,030 | 1,003 | 1 200 | 22 | 3 | 2° 2ª | 0 | Arkansas | 40 | 5,5/4 | 1,490 | 2,017 | |
| Oklahoma | 41 | 5,090 | 4,440 E 634 | 1,200 | 23 1 4 1 | 12 | 760 | 120 | Okidijulid | 47 | 1,554 | 1,752 | 3,455 | |
| Alabama | 40 | 1,418 | 5,034 | 121 | 141 | 21 | /08 | 126 | | 40 | 9,076 | 2,094 | 4,030 | |
| Alabama | 49 | 10,017 | 6,739 | 3,243 | 25 | 0 | 10 | 0 | west virginia | 49 | 0 | 1,11/ | 2,378 | |
| wississippi | 50 | 6,540 | 3,625 | 2,856 | 10 | 9 | 41° | 0 | Mississippi | 50 | 6,364 | 2,070 | 2,729 | |
| west Virginia | 51 | 4,171 | 3,978 | 191 | 2 | 0 | 1ª | 0 | Rhode Island | | | | | |

^a Estimates may be unreliable due to small population size (<4,000 annual population for 25-44 year olds and <700 for 45-64 year olds).

^b Data for RI not reported by education due to unreported educational attainment data in majority of deaths.

| e Grad | НО | PF Goals |
|---------------|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| 890 | | |
| 283 | | 10 |
| 6,344 | | 42 |
| 427 | · | |
| 2,313 | deaths per | [•] 100,000 adults |
| 100 | ag | e 25-44 |
| 646 | | |
| 1,000 | | |
| 183 | | (60) |
| 958 | | |
| 1,524 | deaths per | · 100,000 adults |
| 62 | ag | e 45-64 |
| 317 | , | |
| 773 | Calculated separately | y for each age group as the |
| 1.056 | average premature n | nortality rate among college |
| 410 | graduates age 25-44 | in DC, MA, CT, NY, and |
| 2,525 | MN, and the average | e premature mortality rate |
| 187 | NH, VT, and MN. | uates age 45-04 III CT, MA, |
| 518 | | |
| 161 | | |
| 786 | | |
| 1.055 | | |
| 145 | WHAT DOES THE | DISTANCE TO HOPE |
| 1 895 | GOALS MEASURE | ? |
| 5 752 | For this indicator. D | vistance to Goal data are |
| 789 | only provided in ter | rms of the additional |
| 155 | number of non-eld | erly adults age 25-64 who |
| 1 818 | would need to surv | ive annually (# to Goal). |
| 2/2 | Because progress to | oward reducing premature |
| 4 7 <i>41</i> | mortality is based o | on two age-specificc goals, |
| 182 | the rate of addition | al non-elderly adults who |
| 638 | would need to surv | rve each year (Kate to |
| 134 | | כמוכטומוכט. |
| 2 /0/ | | |
| 2,404 | | |
| 2,000 | | |
| 2,009 | , | |
| 2,UZ7 | | |
| 1,203 752 | | |
| 172 | | |
| 144 | | |
| 1,570 | | |
| 1,469 | | |
| 1,798 | | |
| 1,303 | | |
| 1,154 | | |
| 919 | | |
| 1,660 | | |
| 1,462 | | |
| 372 | | |
| 1,139 | | |
| - | | |

INFANT MORTALITY

HS Grad

5.2

5.8

6.2

EDUCATION Less than HS

5.3

6.9

7.9

Tables show the infant mortality rate in each state overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Infant mortality is measured as the annual number of infants who die before their first birthday per 1,000 live births. Source: 2006-2010 National Vital Statistics System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

State

California

Washington

Massachusetts

| | | | RACE AND E | I HNICI I Y | | | |
|-----------------------------------|----------|---------|------------|-------------|------------|------------|-------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN |
| Washington | 1 | 4.8 | 4.5 | 7.1 | 5.1 | 3.8 | 11.0 |
| Massachusetts | 2 | 4.8 | 4.0 | 9.7 | 6.3 | 3.7 | 0.0 |
| California | 3 | 4.9 | 4.4 | 10.2 | 4.7 | 4.0 | 8.8 |
| Utah | 4 | 5.0 | 4.7 | 11.0 | 5.1 | 7.6 | 5.1 |
| Minnesota | 5 | 5.1 | 4.5 | 9.9 | 4.7 | 5.2 | 10.3 |
| New Jersey | 6 | 5.1 | 3.6 | 11.9 | 4.9 | 3.1 | 4.7 |
| lowa | 7 | 5.1 | 4.7 | 11.4 | 6.3 | 4.1 | 2.0 |
| Oregon | 8 | 5.2 | 5.1 | 9.4 | 4.9 | 5.5 | 9.1 |
| New Mexico | 9 | 5.3 | 5.6 | 11.1 | 5.0 | 4.4 | 5.3 |
| New York | 10 | 5.4 | 4.1 | 10.8 | 5.0 | 3.3 | 10.0 |
| Nebraska | 11 | 5.6 | 5.0 | 13.1 | 5.2 | 5.4 | 9.7 |
| Nevada | 12 | 5.8 | 5.3 | 11.2 | 5.3 | 4.8 | 3.1 |
| Maine | 13 | 5.8 | 5.8 | 8.0 | 5.7 | 3.5 | 5.3 |
| Alaska | 14 | 5.9 | 3.9 | 10.4 | 4.9 | 5.7 | 9.8 |
| Connecticut | 15 | 5.9 | 4.4 | 12.4 | 6.6 | 4.7 | 3.5 |
| Texas | 16 | 5.9 | 5.3 | 11.0 | 5.3 | 4.0 | 7.2 |
| Idaho | 17 | 59 | 5 5 | 10.5 | 72 | 74 | 11.1 |
| Colorado | 18 | 6.0 | 53 | 12.9 | 6.6 | 5.4 | 6.4 |
| Arizona | 19 | 62 | 5.6 | 13.4 | 59 | 63 | 7.8 |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 63 | 5.0 | 14.6 | 5.8 | 6.2 | 8.9 |
| North Dakota | 21 | 6.5 | 5.5 | 8.0 | 5.0 | 5.2 | 14.8 |
| Rhode Island | 22 | 6.5 | 5.5 | 13.7 | 63 | 5.6 | 11.5 |
| Illinoic | 22 | 6.0 | 5.5 | 13.7 | 5.8 | 5.2 | 8.1 |
| Elorida | 23 | 7.0 | 5.5 | 12.6 | 5.0 | J.J 4 Q | 2.1 |
| Fiuliud South Dakota | 24 | 7.0 | 5.0 | 0.1 | 5.2 | 4.0 | 12.0 |
| Miccouri | 25 | 7.0 | 5.7 | 5.1 12.5 | 0.0 E E | 4.3 | 12.5 |
| Vancas | 20 | 7.1 | 0.0 | 14.2 | 5.5 | 4.0 | 4.2 |
| Virginia | 27 | 7.1 | 0.0 E.4 | 14.2 | 5.0 | 3.0 | 6.5 |
| Depresiduaria | 20 | 7.1 | 5.4 | 14.5 | J.9 0 1 | 4.5 | 16.1 |
| Michigan | 29 | 7.5 | 5.9 | 14.5 | 0.2 | 5.0 | 10.1 |
| Indiana | 50 21 | 7.4 | 5.0 | 14.0 | 0.0 6 F | 4.7 | 0.4 |
| inularia Coorreio | 21 | 7.5 | 0.5 | 11.0 | 0.5 | 3.5 | 9.5 |
| Georgia | 32 | 7.5 | 5.7 | 11.0 | 4.9 | 3.0 | 9.2 |
| Unio Magdagal | 33 | 7.0 | 0.3 | 14.5 | 0.9 5 1 | 4.3 | 7.5 |
| Naryland Okłabarza | 34 | 7.0 | 5.0 | 12.9 | 5.1 | 4.7 | 0.0 |
| Oklanoma | 35 | 7.0 | 1.2 | 13.0 | 5.3 | 5.0 | 9.2 |
| Arkansas | 30 | 7.0 | 0.0 | 12.3 | 5.8 | 0.7 | 7.3 |
| South Carolina | 37 | 7.8 | 5.7 | 12.3 | 5.6 | 3.9 | 8.0 |
| | 38 | 8.0 | 5.9 | 14.2 | 6.1 | 5.3 | 14.3 |
| lennessee | 39 | 8.2 | 6.5 | 14.9 | 6.3 | 5.3 | 1.8 |
| Louisiana | 40 | 8.5 | 6.2 | 12.5 | 3.4 | 6.7 | 8.4 |
| Alabama | 41 | 9.1 | 7.3 | 13.4 | 7.0 | 4.6 | 4.2 |
| Mississippi | 42 | 10.0 | 7.0 | 13.7 | 6.4 | 5.2 | 15.7 |
| Delaware ^v | | | 5.9 | 13.8 | 6.4 | 2.8 | |
| District of Columbia ^D | | | 4.3 | 15.7 | 5.2 | 4.1 | |
| Hawaii [⊳] | | | 3.5 | 20.4 | 5.5 | 5.9 | |
| Kentucky | | | 6.6 | 11.5 | 4.7 | 3.4 | |
| Montana ^b | | | 5.8 | | 5.8 | 5.0 | 9.3 |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 4.7 | 7.7 | 6.8 | 3.9 | |
| Vermont ^b | | | 5.1 | | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| West Virginia ^b | | | 7.3 | 12.4 | 6.1 | 3.5 | |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 61 | | 7.8 | | 13.0 |

| Utah | 4 | 4.7 | 7.2 | 5.9 |
|-----------------------------------|----|-----|------|------|
| New Hampshire | 5 | 4.7 | 12.2 | 4.6 |
| New Mexico | 6 | 4.7 | 6.1 | 5.0 |
| Minnesota | 7 | 4.8 | 8.3 | 6.4 |
| lowa | 8 | 4.9 | 7.8 | 7.1 |
| Oregon | 9 | 4.9 | 6.8 | 5.8 |
| New Jersey | 10 | 4.9 | 8.7 | 6.3 |
| New York | 11 | 4.9 | 7.0 | 6.3 |
| Vermont | 12 | 4.9 | 10.9 | 6.4 |
| Nevada | 13 | 5.2 | 6.8 | 5.7 |
| Connecticut | 14 | 5.4 | 8.2 | 7.2 |
| Nebraska | 15 | 5.5 | 7.4 | 7.9 |
| Maine | 16 | 5.5 | 11.3 | 6.0 |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 5.5 | 7.5 | 6.5 |
| Texas | 18 | 5.5 | 6.6 | 6.6 |
| Idaho | 19 | 5.6 | 9.0 | 6.7 |
| Alaska | 20 | 5.6 | 10.9 | 6.0 |
| Colorado | 21 | 5.7 | 7.9 | 6.9 |
| Hawaii | 22 | 5.7 | 12.7 | 5.6 |
| Arizona | 23 | 5.9 | 7.3 | 6.8 |
| Wisconsin | 24 | 5.9 | 10.4 | 6.8 |
| Montana | 25 | 6.1 | 11.0 | 6.4 |
| North Dakota | 26 | 6.2 | 12.7 | 6.7 |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 6.4 | 10.9 | 7.8 |
| Kentucky | 28 | 6.5 | 9.7 | 7.8 |
| South Dakota | 29 | 6.5 | 12.4 | 7.3 |
| Florida | 30 | 6.5 | 9.8 | 7.5 |
| Illinois | 31 | 6.5 | 8.8 | 8.1 |
| Wyoming | 32 | 6.5 | 13.0 | 9.5 |
| Missouri | 33 | 6.6 | 9.7 | 8.2 |
| Virginia | 34 | 6.7 | 11.2 | 8.2 |
| Kansas | 35 | 6.8 | 10.7 | 8.5 |
| Ohio | 36 | 7.0 | 11.1 | 8.6 |
| Georgia | 37 | 7.0 | 9.4 | 7.9 |
| Indiana | 38 | 7.0 | 10.4 | 8.3 |
| Michigan | 39 | 7.0 | 11.7 | 8.6 |
| West Virginia | 40 | 7.1 | 12.3 | 7.4 |
| Maryland | 41 | 7.1 | 9.5 | 9.7 |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 7.1 | 10.5 | 7.9 |
| Arkansas | 43 | 7.2 | 10.7 | 7.6 |
| South Carolina | 44 | 7.3 | 10.2 | 8.8 |
| Delaware | 45 | 7,3 | 11.1 | 9.5 |
| North Carolina | 46 | 7.5 | 10.5 | 9.1 |
| Tennessee | 47 | 7.8 | 11.6 | 9,2 |
| Louisiana | 48 | 8.1 | 12.1 | 8.8 |
| Alabama | 49 | 8.6 | 11.7 | 9,9 |
| Mississippi | 50 | 9.3 | 13.8 | 10.1 |
| District of Columbia ^c | | | | |
| | | | • | • |

Rank

2

3

Overall

4.5

4.5

4.6

^a Data for Multiracial group not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births to reliably estimate rates of infant mortality.

^b Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births in some race and ethnicity groups to reliably estimate rates of infant mortality.

^c Data not reported due to >20% missing maternal education data.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

| Some College | College Grad |
|--------------|--------------|
| 4.4 | 3.0 |
| 4.1 | 2.2 |
| 5.1 | 2.6 |
| 4.0 | 3.2 |
| 4.4 | 3.0 |
| 4.0 | 3.3 |
| 4.6 | 3.0 |
| 4.0 | 2.8 |
| 4.1 | 3.3 |
| 5.2 | 2.6 |
| 4.9 | 2.6 |
| 4.6 | 2.6 |
| 4.4 | 3.2 |
| 6.0 | 3.1 |
| 5.3 | 3.0 |
| 4.6 | 3.6 |
| 5.3 | 3.9 |
| 5.0 | 3.2 |
| 4.4 | 3.8 |
| 4.3 | 2.6 |
| 5.8 | 3.3 |
| 5.1 | 4.1 |
| 5.1 | 3.6 |
| 5.4 | 3.4 |
| 6.1 | 3.1 |
| 5.5 | 4.7 |
| 5.9 | 3.5 |
| 5.5 | 3.1 |
| 5.8 | 3.1 |
| 5.5 | 3.4 |
| 6.8 | 3.8 |
| 4.2 | 2.0 |
| 5.5 | 3.9 |
| 6.5 | 3.6 |
| 5.7 | 3.8 |
| 6.1 | 3.6 |
| 6.6 | 3.9 |
| 5.8 | 3.6 |
| 5.7 | 3.9 |
| 5.8 | 3.2 |
| 7.0 | 4.4 |
| 5.4 | 4.1 |
| 6.3 | 3.7 |
| 6.4 | 3.5 |
| 6.3 | 3.5 |
| 7.2 | 3.6 |
| 6.5 | 3.6 |
| 7.1 | 4.1 |
| 8.1 | 4.5 |
| 7.3 | 5.1 |
| | |

HOPE Goal

2.4

infant deaths per 1,000 live births

Calculated as the average mortality rate of infants born to college graduate mothers in WY, WA, VT, MA, and NY.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



INFANT MORTALITY

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional infants (# to Goal) that would need to survive to their first birthday, and the amount by which the infant mortality rate would need to decrease (Rate to Goal) in each state to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.^a

| | | Ov | verall | W | /hite | В | lack | His | spanic | As | ian/Pl | А | I/AN |
|-----------------------------------|------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | Rate to Goal |
| Washington | 1 | 205 | 2.4 | 119 | 2.1 | 17 | 4.7 | 45 | 2.7 | 11 | 1.4 | 13 | 8.6 |
| Massachusetts | 2 | 186 | 2.4 | 83 | 1.6 | 53 | 7.3 | 42 | 3.9 | 8 | 1.3 | 0 | 0.0 |
| California | 3 | 1,311 | 2.5 | 310 | 2.0 | 235 | 7.8 | 641 | 2.3 | 112 | 1.6 | 13 | 6.4 |
| Utah | 4 | 137 | 2.6 | 99 | 2.3 | 4 | 8.6 | 24 | 2.7 | 8 | 5.2 | 2 | 2.7 |
| Minnesota | 5 | 192 | 2.7 | 109 | 2.1 | 47 | 7.5 | 13 | 2.3 | 13 | 2.7 | 10 | 7.8 |
| New Jersev | 6 | 307 | 2.7 | 62 | 1.1 | 164 | 9.5 | 73 | 2.5 | 8 | 0.7 | 0 | 2.3 |
| lowa | 7 | 109 | 27 | 79 | 23 | 15 | 9.0 | 13 | 3.9 | 2 | 17 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Oregon | 8 | 132 | 2.8 | 88 | 2.7 | 7 | 7.0 | 24 | 2.5 | 8 | 3.0 | 5 | 6.7 |
| New Mexico | 9 | 85 | 2.0 | 27 | 3.2 | 4 | 87 | 43 | 2.6 | 1 | 2.0 | 10 | 29 |
| New York | 10 | 733 | 3.0 | 209 | 1.7 | 346 | 8.4 | 154 | 2.0 | 21 | 0.9 | 3 | 7.5 |
| Nebraska | 10 | 85 | 3.0 | 51 | 2.6 | 17 | 10.7 | 12 | 2.0 | 21 | 3.0 | 3 | 7.3 |
| Nevada | 12 | 130 | 3.4 | 19 | 2.0 | 31 | 8.8 | 12 | 2.0 | 7 | 2.4 | 0 | 0.7 |
| Maino | 12 | 130 | 3.4 | 45 | 2.5 | 51 | 5.6 | | 2.5 | , | 1.1 | 0 | 2.9 |
| Alacka | 17 | 47 | 3.4 | 44 | 1.5 | 2 | 5.0 | י ז | 3.5 | 2 | 2.2 | 21 | 2.9 |
| Connecticut | 14 | 140 | 3.5 | 10 | 1.5 | 5 | 10.0 | 2 | 4.2 | 5 | 2.2 | 21 | 1.4 |
| Toyac | 15 | 140 | 3.5 | 49 | 2.0 | 207 | 10.0 | 50 | 4.2 | 25 | 2.5 | 0 | 1.1 |
| Idaha | 10 | 1,401 | 5.5 | 404 | 2.9 | 507 | 0.0 | JOI 19 | 2.9 | 25 | 1.0 | 4 | 4.0 |
| Colorado | 10 | 249 | 5.5 | 01 | 5.1 | 21 | 10.5 | 10 | 4.0 | 2 | 5.0 | с С | 0.7 |
| | 10 | 240 | 5.0 | 110 | 2.9 | 51 | 10.5 | 90 | 4.2 | 12 | 5.0 | 2 | 4.0 |
| | 19 | 370 | 3.0 | 135 | 3.2 | 44 | 11.0 | 140 | 3.5 | 12 | 3.9 | 33 | 5.4 |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 278 | 3.9 | 150 | 2.8 | 87 | 12.2 | 23 | 5.4 | 11 | 3.0 | 12 | 0.5 |
| North Dakota | 21 | 36 | 4.1 | 22 | 3.1 | 1 | 5.0 | 1 | 3.2 | 0 | 2.8 | 12 | 12.4 |
| Rhode Island | 22 | 49 | 4.2 | 24 | 3.1 | 12 | 11.3 | 10 | 3.9 | 2 | 3.2 | 1 | 9.0 |
| | 23 | 790 | 4.5 | 286 | 3.1 | 331 | 10.9 | 144 | 3.4 | 28 | 2.9 | 1 | 5.7 |
| Florida | 24 | 1,042 | 4.6 | 328 | 3.2 | 517 | 10.2 | 181 | 2.8 | 16 | 2.4 | 0 | 0.7 |
| South Dakota | 25 | 54 | 4.6 | 30 | 3.3 | 1 | 6.7 | 3 | 6.2 | 0 | 2.1 | 20 | 10.5 |
| Missouri | 26 | 3/3 | 4.7 | 221 | 3.6 | 134 | 11.1 | 14 | 3.1 | 3 | 1.6 | 1 | 1.8 |
| Kansas | 27 | 192 | 4.7 | 124 | 4.2 | 34 | 11.8 | 28 | 4.3 | 4 | 3.2 | 2 | 6.1 |
| Virginia | 28 | 501 | 4.7 | 185 | 3.0 | 252 | 10.9 | 49 | 3.5 | 14 | 1.9 | 1 | 4.1 |
| Pennsylvania | 29 | 710 | 4.9 | 361 | 3.5 | 254 | 12.1 | 80 | 5.8 | 14 | 2.6 | 1 | 13.7 |
| Michigan | 30 | 602 | 5.0 | 286 | 3.4 | 268 | 12.2 | 36 | 4.2 | 9 | 2.3 | 3 | 6.0 |
| Indiana | 31 | 444 | 5.1 | 276 | 4.1 | 128 | 12.7 | 34 | 4.1 | 5 | 3.1 | 1 | 7.1 |
| Georgia | 32 | 734 | 5.1 | 215 | 3.3 | 451 | 9.4 | 61 | 2.5 | 6 | 1.1 | 1 | 6.8 |
| Ohio | 33 | 750 | 5.2 | 429 | 3.9 | 284 | 12.1 | 30 | 4.5 | 6 | 1.9 | 1 | 5.1 |
| Maryland | 34 | 395 | 5.2 | 90 | 2.6 | 265 | 10.5 | 28 | 2.7 | 11 | 2.3 | 1 | 4.2 |
| Oklahoma | 35 | 280 | 5.2 | 165 | 4.8 | 51 | 10.6 | 21 | 2.9 | 3 | 2.6 | 40 | 6.8 |
| Arkansas | 36 | 211 | 5.2 | 115 | 4.2 | 78 | 9.9 | 14 | 3.4 | 3 | 4.3 | 1 | 4.9 |
| South Carolina | 37 | 329 | 5.4 | 112 | 3.3 | 197 | 9.9 | 18 | 3.2 | 1 | 1.5 | 1 | 5.6 |
| North Carolina | 38 | 709 | 5.6 | 246 | 3.5 | 355 | 11.8 | 76 | 3.7 | 11 | 2.9 | 21 | 11.9 |
| Tennessee | 39 | 481 | 5.8 | 230 | 4.1 | 215 | 12.5 | 31 | 3.9 | 5 | 2.9 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Louisiana | 40 | 395 | 6.1 | 132 | 3.8 | 252 | 10.1 | 3 | 1.0 | 5 | 4.3 | 3 | 6.0 |
| Alabama | 41 | 420 | 6.7 | 183 | 4.9 | 212 | 11.0 | 23 | 4.6 | 2 | 2.2 | 0 | 1.8 |
| Mississippi | 42 | 334 | 7.6 | 101 | 4.6 | 222 | 11.3 | 6 | 4.0 | 1 | 2.8 | 4 | 13.3 |
| Delaware ^b | | | | 22 | 3.5 | 35 | 11.4 | 7 | 4.0 | 0 | 0.4 | | |
| District of Columbia ^b | | | | 4 | 1.9 | 65 | 13.3 | 4 | 2.8 | 0 | 1.7 | | |
| Hawaii ^b | | | | 4 | 1.1 | 6 | 18.0 | 9 | 3.1 | 23 | 3.5 | | |
| Kentucky ^b | | | | 201 | 4.2 | 47 | 9.1 | 7 | 2.3 | 1 | 1.0 | | |
| Montana ^b | | | | 35 | 3.4 | | | 1 | 3.4 | 0 | 2.6 | 10 | 6.9 |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 28 | 2.3 | 1 | 5.3 | 2 | 4.4 | 1 | 1.5 | | |
| Vermont ^b | | | | 16 | 2.7 | | | 0 | 0.1 | 0 | 1.6 | | |
| West Virginia ^b | | | | 97 | 4.9 | 8 | 10.0 | 1 | 3.7 | 0 | 1.1 | | |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 24 | 37 | | | 5 | 54 | | | 3 | 10.6 |

^a Data for Multiracial group not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births to reliably estimate rates of infant mortality.

^b Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births in some race and ethnicity groups to reliably estimate rates of infant mortality.



infant deaths per 1,000 live births

Calculated as the average mortality rate of infants born to college graduate mothers in WY, WA, VT, MA, and NY.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



INFANT MORTALITY

Table shows the number of additional infants (# to Goal) that would need to survive to their first birthday, and the amount by which the infant mortality rate would need to decrease (Rate to Goal) in each state to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.^a

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | nan HS | HS (| Grad | Some (| College | College | e Grad |
|-----------------------------------|------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | Rate to Goal |
| California | 1 | 1,100 | 2.1 | 430 | 2.9 | 364 | 2.8 | 235 | 2.0 | 71 | 0.6 |
| Washington | 2 | 186 | 2.1 | 71 | 4.5 | 70 | 3.4 | 45 | 1.7 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Massachusetts | 3 | 167 | 2.2 | 45 | 5.5 | 73 | 3.8 | 42 | 2.7 | 7 | 0.2 |
| Utah | 4 | 121 | 2.3 | 35 | 4.8 | 48 | 3.5 | 27 | 1.6 | 11 | 0.8 |
| New Hampshire | 5 | 31 | 2.3 | 13 | 9.8 | 7 | 2.2 | 8 | 2.0 | 3 | 0.6 |
| New Mexico | 6 | 68 | 2.3 | 27 | 3.7 | 25 | 2.6 | 12 | 1.6 | 4 | 0.9 |
| Minnesota | 7 | 171 | 2.4 | 46 | 5.9 | 70 | 4.0 | 40 | 2.2 | 15 | 0.6 |
| lowa | 8 | 99 | 2.5 | 31 | 5.4 | 41 | 4.7 | 22 | 1.6 | 5 | 0.4 |
| Oregon | 9 | 119 | 2.5 | 42 | 4.4 | 44 | 3.4 | 22 | 1.7 | 11 | 0.9 |
| New Jersey | 10 | 282 | 2.5 | 94 | 6.3 | 116 | 3.9 | 62 | 2.8 | 10 | 0.2 |
| New York | 11 | 629 | 2.5 | 227 | 4.6 | 235 | 3.9 | 150 | 2.5 | 17 | 0.2 |
| Vermont | 12 | 16 | 2.5 | 5 | 8.4 | 7 | 4.0 | 4 | 2.2 | 0 | 0.2 |
| Nevada | 13 | 107 | 2.8 | 45 | 4.3 | 39 | 3.3 | 18 | 2.0 | 5 | 0.8 |
| Connecticut | 14 | 120 | 3.0 | 30 | 5.8 | 48 | 4.8 | 31 | 3.6 | 11 | 0.7 |
| Nebraska | 15 | 82 | 3.1 | 22 | 5.0 | 29 | 5.5 | 26 | 2.8 | 5 | 0.6 |
| Maine | 16 | 42 | 3.1 | 13 | 8.9 | 17 | 3.6 | 7 | 2.2 | 5 | 1.2 |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 35 | 3.1 | 10 | 5.1 | 13 | 4.1 | 6 | 2.9 | 6 | 1.5 |
| Texas | 18 | 1,252 | 3.1 | 470 | 4.2 | 456 | 4.2 | 264 | 2.6 | 62 | 0.8 |
| Idaho | 19 | 76 | 3.2 | 25 | 6.6 | 27 | 4.3 | 17 | 2.0 | 7 | 1.4 |
| Alaska | 20 | 35 | 3.2 | 13 | 8.5 | 17 | 3.6 | 5 | 1.9 | 0 | 0.2 |
| Colorado | 21 | 222 | 3.3 | 77 | 5.5 | 68 | 4.5 | 59 | 3.4 | 18 | 0.9 |
| Hawaii | 22 | 62 | 3.3 | 17 | 10.3 | 23 | 3.2 | 13 | 2.7 | 9 | 1.7 |
| Arizona | 23 | 335 | 3.5 | 122 | 4.9 | 130 | 4.4 | 59 | 2.7 | 24 | 1.2 |
| Wisconsin | 24 | 247 | 3.5 | 83 | 8.0 | 88 | 4.4 | 54 | 3.0 | 22 | 1.0 |
| Montana | 25 | 45 | 3.7 | 15 | 8.6 | 16 | 4.0 | 12 | 3.7 | 2 | 0.7 |
| North Dakota | 26 | 34 | 3.8 | 9 | 10.3 | 8 | 4.3 | 10 | 3.1 | 7 | 2.3 |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 593 | 4.0 | 198 | 8.5 | 210 | 5.4 | 136 | 3.5 | 49 | 1.1 |
| Kentucky | 28 | 233 | 4.0 | 85 | 7.3 | 87 | 5.3 | 53 | 3.1 | 8 | 0.7 |
| South Dakota | 29 | 49 | 4.1 | 20 | 10.0 | 15 | 4.9 | 12 | 3.4 | 2 | 0.7 |
| Florida | 30 | 932 | 4.1 | 328 | 7.4 | 363 | 5.1 | 192 | 3.1 | 49 | 1.0 |
| Illinois | 31 | 711 | 4.1 | 209 | 6.4 | 254 | 5.7 | 172 | 4.4 | 76 | 1.3 |
| Wyoming | 32 | 32 | 4.1 | 12 | 10.6 | 15 | 7.1 | 5 | 1.8 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Missouri | 33 | 334 | 4.2 | 105 | 7.3 | 135 | 5.8 | 60 | 3.1 | 34 | 1.5 |
| Virginia | 34 | 450 | 4.3 | 131 | 8.8 | 185 | 5.8 | 92 | 4.1 | 42 | 1.2 |
| Kansas | 35 | 181 | 4.4 | 62 | 8.3 | 61 | 6.1 | 41 | 3.3 | 17 | 1.4 |
| Ohio | 36 | 669 | 4.6 | 221 | 8.7 | 241 | 6.2 | 163 | 3.7 | 44 | 1.2 |
| Georgia | 37 | 632 | 4.6 | 223 | 7.0 | 235 | 5.5 | 126 | 4.2 | 48 | 1.5 |
| Indiana | 38 | 401 | 4.6 | 150 | 8.0 | 147 | 5.9 | 78 | 3.4 | 26 | 1.2 |
| Michigan | 39 | 554 | 4.6 | 183 | 9.3 | 210 | 6.2 | 111 | 3.3 | 50 | 1.5 |
| West Virginia | 40 | 98 | 4.7 | 39 | 9.9 | 39 | 5.0 | 16 | 3.4 | 4 | 0.8 |
| Maryland | 41 | 357 | 4.7 | 80 | 7.1 | 148 | 7.3 | 73 | 4.6 | 56 | 2.0 |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 256 | 4.7 | 97 | 8.1 | 103 | 5.5 | 39 | 3.0 | 17 | 1.7 |
| Arkansas | 43 | 192 | 4.8 | 69 | 8.3 | 81 | 5.2 | 32 | 3.9 | 10 | 1.3 |
| South Carolina | 44 | 298 | 4.9 | 108 | 7.8 | 101 | 6.4 | 74 | 4.0 | 15 | 1.1 |
| Delaware | 45 | 58 | 4.9 | 23 | 8.7 | 21 | 7.1 | 11 | 3.9 | 3 | 1.1 |
| North Carolina | 46 | 651 | 5.1 | 229 | 8.1 | 240 | 6.7 | 139 | 4.8 | 43 | 1.2 |
| Tennessee | 47 | 447 | 5.4 | 166 | 9.2 | 166 | 6.8 | 93 | 4.1 | 22 | 1.2 |
| Louisiana | 48 | 365 | 5.7 | 133 | 9.7 | 141 | 6.4 | 67 | 4.7 | 24 | 1.7 |
| Alabama | 49 | 389 | 6.2 | 128 | 9.3 | 145 | 7.5 | 86 | 5.7 | 30 | 2.1 |
| Mississippi | 50 | 304 | 6.9 | 120 | 11.4 | 104 | 7.7 | 57 | 4.9 | 23 | 2.7 |
| District of Columbia ^a | | | | | | | | | | | |

^a Data not reported due to >20% missing maternal education data.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION



infant deaths per 1,000 live births

Calculated as the average mortality rate of infants born to college graduate mothers in WY, WA, VT, MA, and NY.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW BIRTH WEIGHT

Tables show the annual portion of infants weighing less than 2,500 grams at birth in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2006-2010 National Vital Statistics System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| | | - | RACE AND | ETHNICITY ^a | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|------------------------|----------|----------|----------------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN |
| Alaska | 1 | 5.9% | 5.3% | 11.8% | 6.6% | 6.3% | 5.9% |
| Oregon | 2 | 6.1% | 5.9% | 10.1% | 6.0% | 7.6% | 6.8% |
| Washington | 3 | 6.4% | 6.0% | 10.3% | 6.1% | 7.5% | 8.1% |
| Maine | 4 | 6.5% | 6.5% | 7.3% | 8.0% | 6.6% | 5.1% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 6.5% | 6.0% | 10.6% | 5.9% | 8.0% | 7.0% |
| North Dakota | 6 | 6.6% | 6.3% | 8.4% | 7.7% | 7.1% | 7.8% |
| Idaho | 7 | 6.6% | 6.5% | 9.1% | 7.0% | 9.4% | 8.0% |
| South Dakota | 8 | 6.6% | 6.4% | 11.4% | 7.1% | 8.9% | 6.9% |
| New Hampshire | 9 | 6.7% | 6.6% | 9.4% | 8.1% | 7.5% | 4.6% |
| lowa | 10 | 6.8% | 6.6% | 11.7% | 6.4% | 8.1% | 6.8% |
| California | 11 | 6.8% | 6.4% | 12.2% | 6.2% | 7.8% | 7.0% |
| Utah | 12 | 6.9% | 6.6% | 11.1% | 7.5% | 8.8% | 7.5% |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 7.0% | 6.2% | 13.6% | 6.2% | 7.3% | 6.8% |
| Nebraska | 14 | 7.1% | 6.6% | 13.8% | 6.6% | 8.4% | 7.0% |
| Arizona | 15 | 7.1% | 6.9% | 12.3% | 6.8% | 8.6% | 7.0% |
| Kansas | 16 | 7.2% | 6.8% | 13.0% | 6.0% | 9.0% | 7.2% |
| Montana | 17 | 7.3% | 7.2% | 9.1% | 6.9% | 8.1% | 7.7% |
| Massachusetts | 18 | 7.8% | 7.2% | 11.2% | 8.4% | 8.2% | 9.6% |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 8.0% | 7.3% | 11.2% | 8.0% | 9.2% | 14.3% |
| Connecticut | 20 | 8.1% | 6.9% | 12.6% | 8.5% | 8.5% | 8.9% |
| Missouri | 21 | 8.1% | 7.1% | 13.8% | 6.3% | 8.0% | 7.5% |
| Nevada | 22 | 8.2% | 8.0% | 14.1% | 6.8% | 9.9% | 7.3% |
| New York | 23 | 8.2% | 6.9% | 12.8% | 7.8% | 7.9% | 7.0% |
| Oklahoma | 24 | 8.3% | 7 9% | 14.8% | 6.6% | 7.2% | 7.4% |
| Indiana | 25 | 8.3% | 7.6% | 14.1% | 6.8% | 8.1% | 6.1% |
| Virginia | 26 | 8.4% | 7.1% | 13.1% | 6.4% | 8.1% | 5.6% |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 8.4% | 7.2% | 13.9% | 8.8% | 8.1% | 8.5% |
| Hawaii | 28 | 8.4% | 5.9% | 12.6% | 8.5% | 9.5% | 6.1% |
| New Jersev | 29 | 8.4% | 7.4% | 13.3% | 7.4% | 8.7% | 9.9% |
| Michigan | 30 | 8.4% | 7 1% | 14.1% | 6.9% | 8.7% | 7.2% |
| Texas | 31 | 8.5% | 7.7% | 14.2% | 7.6% | 9.1% | 8.6% |
| Illinois | 32 | 8.5% | 7 3% | 14.2% | 6.8% | 9.0% | 8.7% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 8.7% | 8.6% | 14.8% | 8.7% | 10.2% | 7.6% |
| Ohio | 34 | 8.7% | 7.5% | 14.4% | 7.6% | 8.5% | 10.6% |
| Florida | 35 | 8.7% | 7.3% | 13.6% | 7.1% | 8.6% | 6.6% |
| Wyoming | 36 | 8.8% | 8.6% | 16.0% | 8.7% | 12.9% | 9.6% |
| Colorado | 37 | 8.9% | 8.6% | 14.9% | 8.5% | 10.9% | 9.6% |
| Delaware | 38 | 8.9% | 7.2% | 13.7% | 6.9% | 7 9% | 15.8% |
| Arkansas | 39 | 9.1% | 7.8% | 14.8% | 6.6% | 8.8% | 7.5% |
| Kentucky | 40 | 9.1% | 8.7% | 14 5% | 6.9% | 8.4% | 7.5% |
| North Carolina | 41 | 9.1% | 7.7% | 14.4% | 6.3% | 8.8% | 10.8% |
| Maryland | 42 | 9.2% | 7.2% | 13.0% | 7.0% | 8.4% | 8.1% |
| Tennessee | 42 | 9.2% | 8.2% | 14.3% | 6.4% | 8.7% | 7.3% |
| West Virginia | 43 | 9.0% | 9.3% | 15.0% | 5.3% | 6.9% | 7.5% |
| Georgia | 45 | 9.6% | 7.6% | 14 1% | 6.4% | 8.2% | 9.4% |
| South Carolina | 45 | 10.0% | 7.0% | 15.0% | 6.6% | 0.2% | 9.470 8.20/ |
| Alahama | 40 | 10.0% | 7.0% 8.4% | 15.0% | 6.5% | 9.5% | 0.2 /0 |
| District of Columbia | 47 | 10.3% | 6.99/ | 13.5% | 7 19 | 7 49/ | 0.3% |
| | 40 | 11.0% | 0.0% | 15.9% | 6.0% | 1.4% | 9.5% |
| Mississippi | 49 | 12.2% | 0.2% | 15.5% | 0.9% | 9.0% | 9.20/ |
| Vormont ^b | 50 | 12.270 | 6.0% | 0.0% | F 99/ | 7.0% | 0.5 /0 |
| VEITION | | | 0.5% | 9.0% | 5.0% | 1.9% | |

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|------|---------|----------------|-----------------|----------------|----------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | |
| Alaska | 1 | 5.9% | 7.5% | 5.5% | 6.3% | 4.8% | | | | | |
| Oregon | 2 | 6.2% | 6.7% | 6.4% | 5.9% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| Washington | 3 | 6.4% | 7.0% | 6.7% | 6.2% | 5.9% | | | | | |
| Maine | 4 | 6.5% | 8.4% | 7.2% | 6.0% | 5.5% | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 5 | 6.5% | 7.5% | 7.7% | 6.2% | 5.6% | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 6 | 6.6% | 8.2% | 7.1% | 6.6% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 7 | 6.6% | 7.9% | 7.2% | 6.4% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| Idaho | 8 | 6.6% | 8.3% | 7.2% | 6.1% | 5.6% | | | | | |
| Vermont | 9 | 6.7% | 10.7% | 7.6% | 6.1% | 5.0% | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 6.7% | 9.0% | 7.4% | 6.3% | 6.0% | | | | | |
| California | 11 | 6.8% | 6.6% | 6.7% | 6.9% | 6.9% | | | | | |
| lowa | 12 | 6.8% | 8.3% | 7.8% | 6.6% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| Utah | 13 | 6.8% | 8.7% | 7.6% | 6.4% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 14 | 7.0% | 8.9% | 8.0% | 6.5% | 5.5% | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 15 | 7.1% | 8.2% | 8.0% | 7.0% | 6.0% | | | | | |
| Arizona | 16 | 7.1% | 7.3% | 7.5% | 6.8% | 6.6% | | | | | |
| Kansas | 17 | 7.2% | 8.4% | 8.5% | 6.8% | 5.7% | | | | | |
| Montana | 18 | 7.3% | 9.2% | 7.9% | 7.2% | 5.6% | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 7.6% | 9.8% | 8.0% | 7.5% | 6.4% | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 20 | 7.8% | 9.1% | 8.8% | 7.7% | 6.9% | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 21 | 8.0% | 9.7% | 9.0% | 7.8% | 7.1% | | | | | |
| Missouri | 22 | 8.1% | 10.0% | 8.9% | 7.7% | 6.3% | | | | | |
| Nevada | 23 | 8.1% | 7.7% | 8.3% | 8.4% | 8.1% | | | | | |
| New York | 24 | 8.2% | 8.9% | 8.6% | 8.3% | 7.4% | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 25 | 8.2% | 9.3% | 8.1% | 8.1% | 8.2% | | | | | |
| Indiana | 26 | 8.3% | 9.7% | 9.1% | 8.0% | 6.4% | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 27 | 8.3% | 9.6% | 8.7% | 7.9% | 6.8% | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 28 | 8.3% | 10.2% | 9.6% | 8.1% | 6.5% | | | | | |
| Virginia | 29 | 8.3% | 9.9% | 9.5% | 8.3% | 6.8% | | | | | |
| Michigan | 30 | 8.4% | 10.6% | 9.2% | 7.9% | 6.8% | | | | | |
| Now Jorsov | 30 | 8.4% | 8.9% | 0.1% | 8.5% | 7.7% | | | | | |
| Illinoic | 22 | 8.4% | 0.3% | 9.176 | 8.5% | 7.7% | | | | | |
| Тохас | 32 | 8.4% | 8.5% | 8.8% | 8.4% | 7.8% | | | | | |
| Now Movico | 34 | 8.6% | 0.570 | 8.6% | 8.5% | 7.070 | | | | | |
| Ohio | 34 | 8.7% | 11 1% | 9.6% | 0.5% 8.1% | 6.7% | | | | | |
| Elorida | 26 | 9 70/ | 0.9% | 9.076 | 0.170 9.20/ | 7 10/ | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 27 | 0.7 /0 | 9.070 10.2% | 9.4 % | 0.2 /0 | 7.1/0 | | | | | |
| Colorado | 20 | 0.7 /0 | 0.5% | 9.970 | 0.1% | 7.4/c 9.10/ | | | | | |
| Delowaro | 20 | 0.970 | 9.570 | 9.5% | 0.0% | 6.0% | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 59 | 0.9% | 9.0% 10.2% | 0.7% | 0.4% | 0.9% | | | | | |
| Arkdrisds Kontuclar | 40 | 9.0% | 11.2% | 9.7% | 0.5% | 7.1% 6.6% | | | | | |
| Nerth Caroline | 41 | 9.170 | 10.0% | 9.970 10.20/ | 0.3% | 0.07 | | | | | |
| North Carolina Mandand | 42 | 9.1% | 10.0% | 10.2% | 9.1% | 7.270 | | | | | |
| Tananaaaaa | 45 | 9.1% | 10.4% | 10.5% | 9.1% | 7.0% | | | | | |
| Vect Virginia | 44 | 9.3% | 10.9% | 10.3% | 8.8% | 7.0% | | | | | |
| west virginia | 45 | 9.4% | 10.20 | 10.2% | 0.4% | 0.9% | | | | | |
| Georgia | 40 | 9.6% | 11.5% | 11.5% | 9.5% | 7.8% | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 4/ | 10.0% | 11.5% | 11.2% | 9.8% | 7.3% | | | | | |
| Alabama | 48 | 10.4% | 12.1% | 11.2% | 10.0% | 8.1% | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 49 | 10.4% | 10.9% | 12.6% | 12.2% | 7.8% | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 50 | 11.0% | 13.9% | 11.5% | 10.3% | 8.1% | | | | | |
| Mississippi | 51 | 12.2% | 14.4% | 13.2% | 11.5% | 8.7% | | | | | |

^aData for Multiracial group not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births to reliably estimate rates of low birth weight.

^b Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN live births.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goal

5%

of infants born with low birth weight

Calculated as the average portion of low-weight births to college graduate mothers in AK, VT, ME, WI, and ID.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW BIRTH WEIGHT

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional low-weight births (# to Goal) and additional portion of low-weight births (% to Goal) in each group that would need to be avoided per year to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | Overall | | White | | Black | | Hisp | panic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | |
|----------------------|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Alaska | 1 | 65 | 0.6% | 3 | 0.0% | 28 | 6.6% | 9 | 1.3% | 9 | 1.0% | 16 | 0.6% |
| Oregon | 2 | 407 | 0.9% | 215 | 0.7% | 51 | 4.9% | 72 | 0.7% | 58 | 2.3% | 11 | 1.5% |
| Washington | 3 | 930 | 1.1% | 391 | 0.7% | 177 | 5.0% | 138 | 0.8% | 181 | 2.2% | 43 | 2.9% |
| Maine | 4 | 169 | 1.2% | 153 | 1.2% | 7 | 2.0% | 6 | 2.7% | 3 | 1.3% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 876 | 1.2% | 353 | 0.7% | 337 | 5.4% | 32 | 0.6% | 131 | 2.7% | 23 | 1.7% |
| North Dakota | 6 | 114 | 1.3% | 76 | 1.0% | 5 | 3.2% | 7 | 2.4% | 2 | 1.8% | 24 | 2.5% |
| Idaho | 7 | 327 | 1.4% | 235 | 1.2% | 4 | 0.0% | 65 | 1.7% | 15 | 4.1% | 8 | 2.7% |
| South Dakota | 8 | 160 | 1.4% | 105 | 1.2% | 12 | 6.1% | 8 | 1.8% | 5 | 3.6% | 30 | 1.6% |
| New Hampshire | 9 | 196 | 1.4% | 159 | 1.3% | 9 | 4.1% | 16 | 2.8% | 12 | 2.3% | 0 | 0.0% |
| lowa | 10 | 611 | 1.5% | 438 | 1.3% | 108 | 6.4% | 35 | 1.1% | 27 | 2.8% | 3 | 1.5% |
| California | 11 | 8,229 | 1.5% | 1,771 | 1.2% | 2,069 | 6.9% | 2,615 | 0.9% | 1,739 | 2.6% | 35 | 1.7% |
| Utah | 12 | 849 | 1.6% | 565 | 1.3% | 27 | 5.9% | 191 | 2.2% | 52 | 3.5% | 14 | 2.2% |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 1,244 | 1.7% | 512 | 1.0% | 595 | 8.3% | 62 | 0.9% | 58 | 2.0% | 17 | 1.5% |
| Nebraska | 14 | 472 | 1.8% | 253 | 1.3% | 139 | 8.6% | 54 | 1.3% | 19 | 3.2% | 7 | 1.7% |
| Arizona | 15 | 1,778 | 1.8% | 665 | 1.6% | 280 | 7.0% | 624 | 1.5% | 106 | 3.4% | 103 | 1.7% |
| Kansas | 16 | 768 | 1.9% | 443 | 1.5% | 224 | 7.8% | 51 | 0.8% | 45 | 3.7% | 5 | 1.9% |
| Montana | 17 | 244 | 2.0% | 196 | 1.9% | 2 | 0.0% | 7 | 1.7% | 3 | 2.8% | 36 | 2.5% |
| Massachusetts | 18 | 1.934 | 2.5% | 993 | 1.9% | 422 | 5.9% | 337 | 3.1% | 175 | 3.0% | 7 | 4.3% |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 314 | 2.7% | 156 | 2.1% | 60 | 5.9% | 68 | 2.7% | 21 | 3.9% | 9 | 9.0% |
| Connecticut | 20 | 1,122 | 2.8% | 393 | 1.6% | 372 | 7.4% | 274 | 3.2% | 75 | 3.2% | 8 | 3.6% |
| Missouri | 21 | 2.254 | 2.8% | 1,125 | 1.9% | 1.026 | 8.5% | 44 | 1.0% | 52 | 2.7% | 7 | 2.2% |
| Nevada | 22 | 1,123 | 2.9% | 449 | 2.7% | 305 | 8.8% | 220 | 1.5% | 140 | 4.6% | 9 | 2.0% |
| New York | 23 | 7.247 | 2.9% | 2.018 | 1.6% | 3,109 | 7.5% | 1.519 | 2.5% | 594 | 2.6% | 7 | 1.7% |
| Oklahoma | 24 | 1,619 | 3.0% | 918 | 2.7% | 459 | 9.5% | 94 | 1.3% | 23 | 1.9% | 125 | 2.1% |
| Indiana | 25 | 2.645 | 3.0% | 1.586 | 2.4% | 883 | 8.8% | 127 | 1.5% | 48 | 2.9% | 1 | 0.8% |
| Virginia | 26 | 3.291 | 3.1% | 1.113 | 1.8% | 1.820 | 7.9% | 150 | 1.1% | 208 | 2.8% | 0 | 0.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 4.485 | 3.1% | 2.033 | 2.0% | 1.806 | 8.6% | 488 | 3.5% | 155 | 2.8% | 3 | 3.2% |
| Hawaii | 28 | 424 | 3.1% | 23 | 0.6% | 25 | 7.3% | 97 | 3.2% | 279 | 4.3% | 0 | 0.8% |
| New Jersev | 29 | 3.536 | 3.2% | 1.125 | 2.1% | 1.385 | 8.0% | 623 | 2.1% | 397 | 3.4% | 6 | 4.6% |
| Michigan | 30 | 3.775 | 3.2% | 1.546 | 1.8% | 1,941 | 8.8% | 139 | 1.7% | 138 | 3.4% | 11 | 2.0% |
| Texas | 31 | 12.622 | 3.2% | 3.291 | 2.4% | 4.038 | 8.9% | 4.682 | 2.3% | 585 | 3.9% | 26 | 3.3% |
| Illinois | 32 | 5.544 | 3.2% | 1.826 | 2.0% | 2,703 | 8.9% | 656 | 1.6% | 351 | 3.7% | 8 | 3.5% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 997 | 3.4% | 280 | 3.3% | 45 | 9.5% | 565 | 3.4% | 22 | 4.9% | 85 | 2.4% |
| Ohio | 34 | 4,928 | 3.4% | 2.527 | 2.3% | 2,131 | 9.1% | 158 | 2.4% | 103 | 3.2% | 9 | 5.4% |
| Florida | 35 | 7,820 | 3.4% | 2,192 | 2.1% | 4,202 | 8.3% | 1,202 | 1.8% | 218 | 3.3% | 6 | 1.3% |
| Wyoming | 36 | 270 | 3.5% | 213 | 3.4% | 6 | 10.8% | 33 | 3.4% | 6 | 7.7% | 12 | 4.3% |
| Colorado | 37 | 2,478 | 3.6% | 1,373 | 3.3% | 280 | 9.6% | 679 | 3.2% | 126 | 5.6% | 20 | 4.3% |
| Delaware | 38 | 429 | 3.7% | 125 | 2.0% | 261 | 8.5% | 28 | 1.6% | 13 | 2.7% | 2 | 10.5% |
| Arkansas | 39 | 1.524 | 3.8% | 692 | 2.5% | 745 | 9.5% | 58 | 1.4% | 23 | 3.5% | 6 | 2.2% |
| Kentucky | 40 | 2,199 | 3.8% | 1.644 | 3.4% | 479 | 9.2% | 47 | 1.6% | 28 | 3.1% | 1 | 2.2% |
| North Carolina | 41 | 4.923 | 3.9% | 1.727 | 2.4% | 2.740 | 9.1% | 220 | 1.1% | 139 | 3.5% | 97 | 5.5% |
| Maryland | 42 | 2,958 | 3.9% | 677 | 1.9% | 1,944 | 7.7% | 176 | 1.7% | 157 | 3.2% | 4 | 2.8% |
| Tennessee | 43 | 3,338 | 4.0% | 1.641 | 2.9% | 1,556 | 9.0% | 84 | 1 1% | 55 | 3 5% | 2 | 2.0% |
| West Virginia | 44 | 879 | 4 1% | 801 | 4.0% | 75 | 9.7% | 0 | 0.1% | 3 | 1.6% | 0 | 2.0% |
| Georgia | 45 | 6.168 | 4 3% | 1.532 | 2 3% | 4,221 | 8.8% | 259 | 1 1% | 149 | 2.9% | 7 | 4 1% |
| South Carolina | 46 | 2,884 | 4.8% | 844 | 2.5% | 1,923 | 9.7% | 73 | 1 3% | 40 | 4 1% | 4 | 2.9% |
| Alabama | 47 | 3,259 | 5.2% | 1,189 | 3.2% | 1,969 | 10.2% | 64 | 1 3% | 31 | 3.4% | 6 | 3.0% |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 485 | 5.4% | 34 | 1.5% | 421 | 8.6% | 25 | 1.8% | 5 | 2.2% | 0 | 4.0% |
| Louisiana | 49 | 3 692 | 5.7% | 1 023 | 3.0% | 2 550 | 10.2% | 54 | 1.0% | ۵ 43 | 3.8% | 22 | 4.8% |
| Mississippi | 50 | 3 044 | 6.9% | 785 | 3.6% | 2,550 | 11.2% | 27 | 1.7% | -45 | 3.5% | 9 | 3.1% |
| Vermont ^b | | | | 74 | 1.2% | 3 | 3.7% | 0 | 0.5% | 3 | 2.6% | | |

^a Data for Multiracial group not reported due to insufficient numbers of live births to reliably estimate rates of low birth weight.

^b Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN live births.

HOPE Goal



of infants born with low birth weight

Calculated as the average portion of low-weight births to college graduate mothers in AK, VT, ME, WI, and ID.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW BIRTH WEIGHT

Table shows the number of additional low-weight births (# to Goal) and additional portion of low-weight births (% to Goal) in each group that would need to be avoided per year to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | Overall | | Less than HS | | HS Grad | | Some C | College | College Grad | | |
|----------------------|---------|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Alaska | 1 | 70 | 0.6% | 32 | 2.2% | 10 | 0.2% | 28 | 1.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Oregon | 2 | 421 | 0.9% | 136 | 1.4% | 144 | 1.1% | 85 | 0.7% | 56 | 0.4% |
| Washington | 3 | 963 | 1.1% | 274 | 1.7% | 283 | 1.4% | 249 | 0.9% | 157 | 0.7% |
| Maine | 4 | 166 | 1.2% | 46 | 3.1% | 88 | 1.9% | 22 | 0.7% | 10 | 0.2% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 862 | 1.2% | 174 | 2.3% | 425 | 2.4% | 166 | 0.9% | 97 | 0.4% |
| North Dakota | 6 | 113 | 1.3% | 25 | 2.9% | 33 | 1.8% | 43 | 1.3% | 12 | 0.4% |
| South Dakota | 7 | 163 | 1.4% | 51 | 2.6% | 59 | 1.9% | 41 | 1.1% | 12 | 0.4% |
| Idaho | 8 | 328 | 1.4% | 114 | 3.1% | 123 | 2.0% | 75 | 0.9% | 16 | 0.3% |
| Vermont | 9 | 87 | 1.4% | 33 | 5.4% | 41 | 2.3% | 13 | 0.8% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 192 | 1.4% | 48 | 3.7% | 70 | 2.1% | 38 | 1.0% | 36 | 0.7% |
| California | 11 | 7,806 | 1.5% | 1,980 | 1.3% | 1,880 | 1.4% | 1,925 | 1.6% | 2,021 | 1.6% |
| Iowa | 12 | 626 | 1.6% | 175 | 3.0% | 221 | 2.5% | 175 | 1.3% | 55 | 0.5% |
| Utah | 13 | 831 | 1.6% | 251 | 3.4% | 327 | 2.3% | 196 | 1.2% | 57 | 0.4% |
| Wisconsin | 14 | 1,202 | 1.7% | 372 | 3.6% | 542 | 2.7% | 230 | 1.3% | 58 | 0.3% |
| Nebraska | 15 | 484 | 1.8% | 128 | 3.0% | 147 | 2.8% | 155 | 1.7% | 54 | 0.7% |
| Arizona | 16 | 1,756 | 1.8% | 507 | 2.0% | 641 | 2.2% | 332 | 1.5% | 276 | 1.4% |
| Kansas | 17 | 778 | 1.9% | 230 | 3.1% | 316 | 3.2% | 180 | 1.5% | 52 | 0.4% |
| Montana | 18 | 245 | 2.0% | 67 | 3.9% | 104 | 2.6% | 63 | 1.9% | 11 | 0.3% |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 263 | 2.3% | 85 | 4.5% | 90 | 2.8% | 44 | 2.2% | 44 | 1.1% |
| Massachusetts | 20 | 1,907 | 2.5% | 309 | 3.8% | 686 | 3.6% | 365 | 2.4% | 547 | 1.6% |
| Connecticut | 21 | 1,099 | 2.8% | 228 | 4.4% | 365 | 3.7% | 217 | 2.5% | 289 | 1.8% |
| Missouri | 22 | 2,221 | 2.8% | 676 | 4.7% | 837 | 3.6% | 479 | 2.4% | 229 | 1.0% |
| Nevada | 23 | 1,078 | 2.9% | 248 | 2.4% | 355 | 3.1% | 279 | 3.1% | 196 | 2.9% |
| New York | 24 | 7,217 | 2.9% | 1,790 | 3.6% | 1,992 | 3.3% | 1,775 | 3.0% | 1,660 | 2.1% |
| Hawaii | 25 | 551 | 2.9% | 67 | 4.0% | 204 | 2.8% | 134 | 2.8% | 146 | 2.9% |
| Indiana | 26 | 2,632 | 3.0% | 823 | 4.4% | 949 | 3.8% | 618 | 2.7% | 242 | 1.2% |
| Oklahoma | 27 | 1,638 | 3.0% | 510 | 4.3% | 642 | 3.4% | 330 | 2.6% | 156 | 1.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 28 | 4,482 | 3.1% | 1,140 | 4.9% | 1,679 | 4.3% | 1,087 | 2.8% | 576 | 1.3% |
| Virginia | 29 | 3,230 | 3.1% | 686 | 4.6% | 1,334 | 4.2% | 670 | 3.0% | 540 | 1.5% |
| Michigan | 30 | 3,753 | 3.1% | 1,047 | 5.3% | 1,327 | 3.9% | 865 | 2.6% | 514 | 1.6% |
| New Jersey | 31 | 3,501 | 3.1% | 530 | 3.6% | 1,139 | 3.8% | 719 | 3.2% | 1,113 | 2.5% |
| Illinois | 32 | 5,444 | 3.2% | 1,325 | 4.1% | 1,772 | 4.0% | 1,265 | 3.2% | 1,082 | 1.9% |
| Texas | 33 | 12,672 | 3.2% | 3,629 | 3.2% | 3,872 | 3.6% | 3,170 | 3.2% | 2,001 | 2.5% |
| New Mexico | 34 | 963 | 3.3% | 290 | 3.9% | 319 | 3.4% | 236 | 3.2% | 118 | 2.5% |
| Ohio | 35 | 4,923 | 3.4% | 1,483 | 5.8% | 1,664 | 4.3% | 1,250 | 2.9% | 526 | 1.4% |
| Florida | 36 | 7,755 | 3.4% | 2,037 | 4.6% | 2,985 | 4.2% | 1,804 | 2.9% | 929 | 1.9% |
| Wyoming | 37 | 267 | 3.5% | 58 | 5.0% | 95 | 4.6% | 81 | 2.8% | 33 | 2.1% |
| Colorado | 38 | 2,444 | 3.6% | 584 | 4.2% | 629 | 4.2% | 614 | 3.5% | 617 | 2.9% |
| Delaware | 39 | 426 | 3.6% | 124 | 4.6% | 160 | 5.4% | 90 | 3.1% | 52 | 1.6% |
| Arkansas | 40 | 1,491 | 3.7% | 404 | 4.9% | 684 | 4.4% | 265 | 3.2% | 138 | 1.8% |
| Kentucky | 41 | 2,195 | 3.8% | 725 | 6.2% | 757 | 4.7% | 555 | 3.2% | 158 | 1.3% |
| North Carolina | 42 | 4,892 | 3.8% | 1,339 | 4.7% | 1,782 | 5.0% | 1,102 | 3.8% | 669 | 2.0% |
| Maryland | 43 | 2,908 | 3.8% | 575 | 5.1% | 1,020 | 5.0% | 613 | 3.9% | 700 | 2.5% |
| Tennessee | 44 | 3,346 | 4.0% | 1,012 | 5.6% | 1,217 | 5.0% | 816 | 3.6% | 301 | 1.7% |
| West Virginia | 45 | 872 | 4.1% | 268 | 6.8% | 382 | 4.9% | 146 | 3.1% | 76 | 1.6% |
| Georgia | 46 | 5,879 | 4.3% | 1,551 | 4.9% | 2,200 | 5.2% | 1,293 | 4.3% | 835 | 2.5% |
| South Carolina | 47 | 2,884 | 4.7% | 863 | 6.2% | 922 | 5.9% | 826 | 4.5% | 273 | 2.1% |
| Alabama | 48 | 3,243 | 5.2% | 948 | 6.8% | 1,161 | 6.0% | 725 | 4.7% | 409 | 2.9% |
| District of Columbia | 49 | 440 | 5.2% | 102 | 5.6% | 177 | 7.3% | 86 | 6.9% | 75 | 2.5% |
| Louisiana | 50 | 3,687 | 5.7% | 1,178 | 8.6% | 1,394 | 6.3% | 721 | 5.1% | 394 | 2.8% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 3,028 | 6.9% | 959 | 9.1% | 1,068 | 7.9% | 717 | 6.2% | 284 | 3.4% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION

HOPE Goal



of infants born with low birth weight

Calculated as the average portion of low-weight births to college graduate mothers in AK, VT, ME, WI, and ID.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LIVABLE INCOME

EDUCATION

Tables show the portion of people living in households with income greater than 250% of the federal poverty level (FPL) in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Income greater than 250% FPL is used as a proxy to define livable income, or the minimum income needed to afford a decent standard of living.

Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|------|-----------------|----------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|--------|-------------|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | | |
| Maryland | 1 | 73.5% | 79.3% | 65.7% | 54.5% | 76.8% | 67.0% | 71.8% | | | |
| Connecticut | 2 | 72.6% | 78.8% | 56.3% | 44.5% | 75.4% | 63.5% | 63.6% | | | |
| New Hampshire | 3 | 72.5% | 73.3% | 53.9% | 57.0% | 68.4% | 48.2% | 61.9% | | | |
| Alaska | 4 | 72.2% | 79.1% | 64.0% | 64.8% | 61.1% | 46.0% | 64.7% | | | |
| New Jersey | 5 | 71.7% | 79.2% | 58.1% | 49.0% | 80.0% | 52.3% | 66.4% | | | |
| Massachusetts | 6 | 71.0% | 75.7% | 53.7% | 40.8% | 69.3% | 50.9% | 59.6% | | | |
| Hawaii | 7 | 70.3% | 70.4% | 72.4% | 62.0% | 71.5% | 57.1% | 69.6% | | | |
| Minnesota | 8 | 69.8% | 73.3% | 37.9% | 41.7% | 61.8% | 37.8% | 53.4% | | | |
| Virginia | 9 | 69.6% | 74.2% | 55.6% | 55.3% | 76.3% | 59.2% | 68.4% | | | |
| North Dakota | 10 | 69.5% | 72.1% | 34.0% | 55.3% | 44.4% | 34.8% | 55.8% | | | |
| Wyoming | 11 | 68.0% | 70.1% | 54.9% | 54.4% | 57.7% | 36.9% | 51.5% | | | |
| Delaware | 12 | 67.9% | 73.1% | 56.4% | 44.2% | 74.5% | 57.6% | 59.8% | | | |
| Colorado | 13 | 67.1% | 73.0% | 53.6% | 44.1% | 67.8% | 49.5% | 60.7% | | | |
| Washington | 14 | 66.9% | 70.6% | 50.4% | 40.6% | 69.4% | 46.2% | 61.6% | | | |
| Rhode Island | 15 | 66.4% | 71.7% | 45.8% | 34.9% | 66.2% | 45.2% | 58.3% | | | |
| Vermont | 16 | 65.8% | 66.3% | 47.5% | 59.4% | 52.5% | 45.3% | 58.0% | | | |
| lowa | 17 | 65.4% | 67.5% | 37.2% | 37.9% | 64.9% | 31.2% | 43.7% | | | |
| Wisconsin | 18 | 65.3% | 68.8% | 36.0% | 36.8% | 56.4% | 44.0% | 53.2% | | | |
| Nebraska | 19 | 65.0% | 69.0% | 39.2% | 34.9% | 63.3% | 30.9% | 52.9% | | | |
| Illinois | 20 | 64.9% | 72.2% | 46.0% | 43.8% | 71.4% | 52.1% | 60.3% | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 64.6% | 68.4% | 44.8% | 38.7% | 62.9% | 51.8% | 53.3% | | | |
| New York | 22 | 64.1% | 72.5% | 53.7% | 44.5% | 58.3% | 50.6% | 59.0% | | | |
| Kansas | 23 | 63.8% | 67.7% | 47.8% | 38.6% | 62.1% | 50.9% | 51.1% | | | |
| Utah | 24 | 63.4% | 67.4% | 47.0% | 39.0% | 56.2% | 39.5% | 55.5% | | | |
| South Dakota | 25 | 63.0% | 67.0% | 26.9% | 46.6% | 53.8% | 23.3% | 43.0% | | | |
| Ohio | 26 | 61 5% | 64.6% | 40.5% | 43.4% | 70.0% | 43.5% | 48.9% | | | |
| Michigan | 27 | 60.7% | 64.6% | 41.3% | 42.6% | 68.4% | 46.5% | 45.5% | | | |
| California | 28 | 60.7% | 72.1% | 53.7% | 42.1% | 68.4% | 51.8% | 63.5% | | | |
| Indiana | 29 | 60.5% | 63.7% | 41 7% | 38.3% | 60.8% | 42.5% | 46.3% | | | |
| Missouri | 30 | 60.1% | 62.8% | 43.6% | 43.1% | 63.2% | 47.9% | 47.7% | | | |
| Maine | 31 | 59.9% | 60.5% | 29.6% | 45.8% | 58.3% | 39.3% | 45.1% | | | |
| Montana | 32 | 59.6% | 61.5% | 47.2% | 48.1% | 67.1% | 35.9% | 39.4% | | | |
| Oregon | 33 | 59.0% | 62.3% | 46.2% | 34.9% | 60.0% | 44.4% | 48.6% | | | |
| Nevada | 34 | 59.2% | 66.6% | 40.2% | 41.7% | 62.1% | 47.4% | 60.9% | | | |
| Tevas | 35 | 59.0% | 72.0% | 50.3% | 40.4% | 69.1% | 59.1% | 60.1% | | | |
| Arizona | 36 | 58.3% | 66.8% | 19.3% | 39.0% | 66.5% | 32.5% | 58.5% | | | |
| Georgia | 37 | 57.5% | 65.8% | 45.6% | 32.6% | 62.0% | 19.6% | 55.9% | | | |
| North Carolina | 38 | 57.5% | 64.6% | 43.0% | 28.3% | 63.5% | 39.1% | 47.7% | | | |
| Oklahoma | 30 | 57.470 | 61.5% | 43.6% | 20.370 | 56.8% | 46.1% | 51.8% | | | |
| Idaho | 39 | 57.1% | 61.3% EQ 7% | 43.0% | 22.270 22.00/ | 50.070 E2 70/ | 40.1% | 16.0% | | | |
| Elorida | 40 | 56.7% | 64.5% | /1.3% | /3.3% | 62.3% | 17.6% | 40.9% | | | |
| Louisiana | 41 | 50.778 | 65 A9/ | 41.370 29.19/ | 43.370 | 52.570 E8.6% | 47.078 | 54.7% | | | |
| South Carolina | 42 | 56.2% | 64.29/ | 27 0% | 24 19/ | 60.2% | 47.170 | 50.3% | | | |
| Toppossoo | 45 | 50.5% | EQ 79/ | AD 49/ | 22.0% | 65 29/ | 41.1% | 44.09/ | | | |
| Alahama | 44 | 50.2% EE 99/ | 53.1% | 45.4% | 52.0% 22.1% | 62 19/ | 43.3% | 44.0% | | | |
| Kaptucky | 45 | 55.8% | 02.4% | 50.8% | 52.1% | 64.0% | 47.3% | 52.0% | | | |
| Nert Virginia | 40 | 55.5% | 57.0% | 40.3% | 30.1% | 64.9% | 31.2% | 47.5% | | | |
| west virginia | 47 | 54.3% | 54.9% | 41.7% | 46.1% | 62.0% | 42.9% | | | | |
| | 48 | 54.1% | 66.1% | 54.1% | 44.1% | 59.3% | 34.0% | 57.1% | | | |
| Arkansas | 49 | 52.8% | 57.2% | 36.4% | 27.8% | 57.2% | 44.1% | 47.5% | | | |
| IVIISSISSIPPI | 50 | 49.7% | 59.9% | 32.0% | 53.4% | 55.5% | 33.8% | 40.3% | | | |
| JISTRICT OF COLUMBIA® | | | 88 5% | 53 1% | 5/6% | 18.4% | | (h 8% | | | |

| | 1 | | | | - |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|---------|-----|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Sor |
| Maryland | 1 | 73.3% | 41.9% | 63.2% | |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 72.5% | 43.5% | 64.0% | |
| Connecticut | 3 | 72.5% | 39.1% | 63.0% | |
| Alaska | 4 | 72.2% | 43.6% | 62.3% | |
| New Jersey | 5 | 71.7% | 40.2% | 62.2% | |
| Massachusetts | 6 | 70.9% | 36.9% | 59.9% | |
| Hawaii | 7 | 70.3% | 48.7% | 62.4% | |
| Minnesota | 8 | 69.8% | 33.0% | 59.8% | |
| Virginia | 9 | 69.6% | 35.8% | 58.2% | |
| North Dakota | 10 | 69.5% | 40.6% | 62.9% | |
| District of Columbia | 11 | 69.0% | 30.8% | 46.7% | |
| Wyoming | 12 | 68.0% | 40.4% | 63.2% | |
| Delaware | 13 | 67.9% | 38.2% | 60.3% | |
| Colorado | 14 | 67.1% | 32.7% | 55.9% | |
| Washington | 15 | 66.9% | 34.4% | 57.4% | |
| Rhode Island | 16 | 66.3% | 36.3% | 57.7% | |
| Vermont | 17 | 65.7% | 33.6% | 56.7% | |
| lowa | 18 | 65.4% | 33.9% | 58.1% | |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 65.3% | 32.9% | 57.3% | |
| Nebraska | 20 | 65.0% | 31.4% | 56.0% | |
| Illinois | 21 | 64.9% | 32.6% | 54.8% | |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 64.6% | 33.0% | 56.8% | |
| New York | 23 | 64.1% | 31.9% | 54.5% | |
| Kansas | 24 | 63.8% | 32.3% | 54.1% | |
| Utah | 25 | 63.4% | 33.2% | 56.7% | |
| South Dakota | 26 | 63.0% | 33.8% | 56.2% | |
| Ohio | 27 | 61.4% | 30.2% | 53.9% | |
| Michigan | 28 | 60.7% | 30.2% | 51.1% | |
| California | 29 | 60.7% | 28.6% | 50.4% | |
| Indiana | 30 | 60.5% | 30.6% | 54.7% | |
| Missouri | 31 | 60.1% | 29.2% | 51.9% | |
| Maine | 32 | 59.9% | 29.0% | 49.1% | |
| Montana | 33 | 59.6% | 33.9% | 49.9% | |
| Oregon | 34 | 59.2% | 28.1% | 49.2% | |
| Nevada | 35 | 59.1% | 34.1% | 53.1% | |
| Texas | 36 | 59.0% | 26.1% | 50.2% | |
| Arizona | 37 | 58.3% | 25.4% | 48.6% | |
| Georgia | 38 | 57.5% | 25.5% | 47.5% | |
| North Carolina | 39 | 57.4% | 23.8% | 47.7% | |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 57.1% | 28.2% | 49.1% | |
| Idaho | 41 | 57.0% | 30.6% | 48.6% | |
| Florida | 42 | 56.7% | 28.4% | 47.3% | |
| Louisiana | 43 | 56.6% | 29.4% | 50.3% | |
| South Carolina | 44 | 56.3% | 24.7% | 47.0% | |
| Tennessee | 45 | 56.2% | 25.5% | 47.7% | |
| Alabama | 46 | 55.8% | 26.0% | 47.8% | |
| Kentucky | 47 | 55.3% | 25.4% | 48.8% | |
| West Virginia | 48 | 54.3% | 26.2% | 50.1% | |
| New Mexico | 49 | 54.1% | 23.2% | 45.7% | |
| Arkansas | 50 | 52.8% | 25.5% | 45.2% | |
| Mississippi | 51 | 49.7% | 21.9% | 42.4% | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

| 73.9% 89.1 71.7% 86.8 72.4% 88.9 73.1% 88.3 72.6% 88.3 70.5% 86.9 70.2% 84.0 | % % |
|--|-----------------------|
| 71.7% 86.8 72.4% 88.9 73.1% 88.3 72.6% 88.3 70.5% 86.9 70.2% 84.0 | % |
| 72.4% 88.9 73.1% 88.3 72.6% 88.3 70.5% 86.9 70.2% 84.0 | % |
| 73.1% 88.3 72.6% 88.3 70.5% 86.9 70.2% 84.0 | |
| 72.6% 88.3 70.5% 86.9 70.2% 84.0 | % |
| 70.5% 86.9 | % |
| 70.2% | % |
| 0.270 | % |
| 69.5% 86.2 | % |
| 69.7% 88.3 | % |
| 70.9% 82.1 | % |
| 58.5% 87.5 | % |
| 68.3% 80.9 | % |
| 70.2% 85.5 | % |
| 65.8% 83.1 | % |
| 66.4% 83.9 | % |
| 68.5% 85.7 | % |
| 65.5% 80.9 | % |
| 66.0% 83.3 | % |
| 66.2% 84.0 | % |
| 65.3% 83.4 | % |
| 65.5% 84.9 | % |
| 66.7% 84.8 | % |
| 66.2% 83.7 | % |
| 62.9% 83.3 | % |
| 63.1% 77.4 | % |
| 63.1% 80.1 | % |
| 62.3% 83.8 | % |
| 61.2% 82.8 | % |
| 64.3% 82.9 | % |
| 62.2% 82.0 | % |
| 60.6% 82.3 | % |
| 62.1% 79.3 | % |
| 58.4% 76.9 | % |
| 58.8% 78.4 | % |
| 62.5% 78.2 | % |
| 63.4% 84.0 | % |
| 61.0% 80.3 | % |
| 59.0% 82.1 | % |
| 59.0% 82.2 | % |
| 59.5% 79.9 | % |
| 57.7% 75.8 | % |
| 59.4% 78.1 | % |
| 60.5% 91.1 | % |
| 00.370 01.1 | % |
| 59.9% 81.0 | |
| 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 | % |
| 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 59.1% 82.4 | % |
| 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 | % % % |
| 00.3% 81.1 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 58.5% 81.1 | % % % % |
| 00.3% 81.1 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 58.5% 81.1 56.7% 78.1 | % % % % |
| 00.3% 81.1 59.9% 81.0 59.9% 81.8 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 59.1% 82.4 58.5% 81.1 56.7% 78.1 55.9% 81.0 | % % % % % |

HOPE Goal 89%

of people live in households with a livable income

Calculated as the average portion of college graduates living in households with livable income in MD, CT, AK, NJ,

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LIVABLE INCOME

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in households with livable income to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | Overall | | White | | Black | | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial | |
|-----------------------------------|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Maryland | 1 | 590,510 | 15.1% | 207,518 | 9.2% | 246,119 | 22.9% | 98,176 | 34.0% | 27,911 | 11.7% | 1,760 | 21.6% | 9,025 | 16.8% |
| Connecticut | 2 | 383,010 | 15.9% | 175,196 | 9.7% | 66,595 | 32.3% | 121,466 | 44.1% | 12,663 | 13.1% | 780 | 25.1% | 6,309 | 25.0% |
| New Hampshire | 3 | 145,307 | 16.0% | 129,123 | 15.2% | 2,849 | 34.7% | 6,425 | 31.6% | 3,990 | 20.2% | 733 | 40.4% | 2,187 | 26.7% |
| Alaska | 4 | 74,144 | 16.4% | 29,754 | 9.5% | 3,411 | 24.6% | 5,245 | 23.8% | 8,251 | 27.4% | 22,903 | 42.6% | 4,580 | 23.9% |
| New Jersey | 5 | 1,000,873 | 16.8% | 343,145 | 9.3% | 213,293 | 30.5% | 383,105 | 39.6% | 45,935 | 8.6% | 2,629 | 36.2% | 12,767 | 22.1% |
| Massachusetts | 6 | 782,395 | 17.5% | 458,241 | 12.9% | 88,241 | 34.8% | 171,162 | 47.7% | 48,263 | 19.3% | 2,108 | 37.7% | 14,380 | 29.0% |
| Hawaii | 7 | 170,969 | 18.3% | 43,939 | 18.2% | 2,388 | 16.2% | 17,045 | 26.6% | 81,134 | 17.0% | 464 | 31.5% | 25,998 | 19.0% |
| Minnesota | 8 | 667,957 | 18.8% | 469,231 | 15.3% | 75,079 | 50.7% | 58,770 | 46.9% | 35,811 | 26.7% | 14,881 | 50.7% | 14,185 | 35.2% |
| Virginia | 9 | 1,024,563 | 19.0% | 526,946 | 14.4% | 313,237 | 33.0% | 125,468 | 33.3% | 39,621 | 12.2% | 3,580 | 29.4% | 15,710 | 20.1% |
| North Dakota | 10 | 85,929 | 19.1% | 67,567 | 16.5% | 2,561 | 54.6% | 2,679 | 33.3% | 2,244 | 44.2% | 9,591 | 53.8% | 1,286 | 32.7% |
| Wyoming | 11 | 77,017 | 20.6% | 60,839 | 18.4% | 960 | 33.7% | 9,427 | 34.2% | 1,186 | 30.8% | 2,749 | 51.7% | 1,856 | 37.1% |
| Delaware | 12 | 126,097 | 20.7% | 65,925 | 15.5% | 37,296 | 32.2% | 17,604 | 44.3% | 3,041 | 14.1% | 584 | 31.0% | 1,647 | 28.8% |
| Colorado | 13 | 728,770 | 21.5% | 396,569 | 15.6% | 40,658 | 35.0% | 250,331 | 44.4% | 20,546 | 20.8% | 6,614 | 39.1% | 14,053 | 27.9% |
| Washington | 14 | 994,253 | 21.7% | 630,228 | 17.9% | 55,548 | 38.1% | 184,317 | 47.9% | 72,208 | 19.2% | 20,816 | 42.3% | 31,136 | 27.0% |
| Rhode Island | 15 | 155,041 | 22.2% | 95,052 | 16.8% | 13,065 | 42.8% | 38,529 | 53.7% | 4,332 | 22.3% | 1,172 | 43.4% | 2,891 | 30.3% |
| Vermont | 16 | 98,174 | 22.8% | 91,203 | 22.2% | 1,288 | 41.1% | 1,500 | 29.2% | 1,947 | 36.1% | 708 | 43.2% | 1,527 | 30.5% |
| Iowa | 17 | 462,402 | 23.1% | 383,708 | 21.0% | 23,496 | 51.4% | 37,169 | 50.7% | 8,656 | 23.7% | 2,612 | 57.4% | 6,761 | 44.9% |
| Wisconsin | 18 | 882,086 | 23.3% | 651,709 | 19.7% | 95,763 | 52.6% | 86,781 | 51.8% | 24,024 | 32.2% | 12,205 | 44.6% | 11,603 | 35.3% |
| Nebraska | 19 | 278,875 | 23.5% | 198,962 | 19.6% | 21,532 | 49.4% | 44,887 | 53.7% | 5,643 | 25.3% | 3,830 | 57.7% | 4,022 | 35.7% |
| Illinois | 20 | 1,986,467 | 23.6% | 931,919 | 16.3% | 459,944 | 42.6% | 496,550 | 44.7% | 73,226 | 17.1% | 3,716 | 36.5% | 21,111 | 28.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 2,053,622 | 23.9% | 1,430,350 | 20.2% | 340,017 | 43.8% | 192,938 | 49.9% | 62,371 | 25.7% | 3,546 | 36.7% | 24,400 | 35.3% |
| New York | 22 | 3,199,205 | 24.5% | 1,282,942 | 16.1% | 617,834 | 34.9% | 925,899 | 44.0% | 318,196 | 30.3% | 11,032 | 38.0% | 43,302 | 29.6% |
| Kansas | 23 | 450,795 | 24.7% | 312,967 | 20.9% | 36,708 | 40.8% | 73,733 | 50.0% | 11,859 | 26.4% | 4,247 | 37.6% | 11,281 | 37.5% |
| Utah | 24 | 408,747 | 25.2% | 285,260 | 21.1% | 5,765 | 41.6% | 88,415 | 49.5% | 16,434 | 32.4% | 7,685 | 49.0% | 5,188 | 33.1% |
| South Dakota | 25 | 135,916 | 25.6% | 101,327 | 21.6% | 3,576 | 61.6% | 4,804 | 42.0% | 1,816 | 34.8% | 21,418 | 65.3% | 2,974 | 45.6% |
| Ohio | 26 | 2,069,627 | 27.1% | 1,532,881 | 23.9% | 389,333 | 48.1% | 84,389 | 45.2% | 25,761 | 18.5% | 5,481 | 45.1% | 31,783 | 39.7% |
| Michigan | 27 | 1,817,406 | 27.9% | 1,253,262 | 24.0% | 381,550 | 47.3% | 101,787 | 46.0% | 32,766 | 20.2% | 12,919 | 42.1% | 35,122 | 43.1% |
| California | 28 | 6,828,340 | 27.9% | 1,822,813 | 16.5% | 468,935 | 34.8% | 3,643,557 | 46.5% | 741,124 | 20.2% | 34,798 | 36.7% | 117,113 | 25.1% |
| Indiana | 29 | 1,179,111 | 28.1% | 885,341 | 24.9% | 155,369 | 46.8% | 99,662 | 50.2% | 19,287 | 27.8% | 3,874 | 46.1% | 15,579 | 42.3% |
| Missouri | 30 | 1,123,982 | 28.5% | 852,062 | 25.8% | 178,419 | 45.0% | 50,147 | 45.4% | 17,481 | 25.4% | 6,377 | 40.6% | 19,496 | 40.8% |
| Maine | 31 | 268,611 | 28.7% | 251,771 | 28.1% | 3,668 | 59.0% | 3,883 | 42.8% | 2,748 | 30.2% | 2,125 | 49.3% | 4,416 | 43.5% |
| Montana | 32 | 194,755 | 28.9% | 165,551 | 27.1% | 815 | 41.3% | 5,867 | 40.4% | 940 | 21.4% | 17,446 | 52.7% | 4,136 | 49.2% |
| Oregon | 33 | 777,122 | 29.4% | 574,568 | 26.3% | 16,746 | 42.4% | 121,338 | 53.6% | 31,277 | 28.6% | 10,987 | 44.1% | 22,205 | 39.9% |
| Nevada | 34 | 537,217 | 29.4% | 238,365 | 22.0% | 55,573 | 41.4% | 184,604 | 46.9% | 42,290 | 26.5% | 6,590 | 41.2% | 9,794 | 27.7% |
| Texas | 35 | 4,757,544 | 29.6% | 1,341,003 | 16.5% | 676,575 | 38.3% | 2,542,479 | 48.2% | 138,814 | 19.5% | 12,774 | 29.5% | 45,899 | 28.5% |
| Arizona | 36 | 1,271,821 | 30.2% | 595,827 | 21.8% | 57,848 | 38.8% | 493,946 | 49.6% | 29,658 | 22.0% | 80,120 | 56.0% | 14,421 | 30.1% |
| Georgia | 37 | 1,950,122 | 31.1% | 854,697 | 22.7% | 759,698 | 43.0% | 252,116 | 56.0% | 59,995 | 26.5% | 4,737 | 39.0% | 18,880 | 32.7% |
| North Carolina | 38 | 1,991,599 | 31.2% | 1,061,935 | 23.9% | 583,848 | 46.5% | 249,096 | 60.3% | 37,760 | 25.1% | 32,586 | 49.5% | 26,374 | 40.9% |
| Oklahoma | 39 | 765,282 | 31.5% | 486,242 | 27.1% | 69,454 | 44.9% | 88,073 | 53.3% | 14,941 | 31.8% | 63,248 | 42.5% | 43,324 | 36.8% |
| Idaho | 40 | 315,805 | 31.6% | 252,254 | 28.9% | 1,324 | 37.3% | 46,797 | 54.7% | 5,002 | 34.9% | 4,940 | 48.7% | 5,489 | 41.7% |
| Florida | 41 | 4,236,050 | 31.8% | 1,980,270 | 24.1% | 818,480 | 47.3% | 1,291,266 | 45.2% | 90,475 | 26.2% | 11,540 | 41.0% | 44,019 | 33.9% |
| Louisiana | 42 | 938,018 | 32.0% | 437,378 | 23.2% | 420,748 | 50.5% | 48,497 | 40.3% | 15,120 | 30.0% | 6,579 | 41.4% | 9,697 | 38.0% |
| South Carolina | 43 | 1,002,702 | 32.3% | 514,228 | 24.2% | 394,087 | 50.7% | 68,311 | 54.5% | 12,085 | 28.4% | 4,215 | 47.5% | 9,776 | 38.3% |
| Tennessee | 44 | 1,379,813 | 32.4% | 970,572 | 28.9% | 283,250 | 45.2% | 86,497 | 56.6% | 15,613 | 23.3% | 4,437 | 43.2% | 19,444 | 44.6% |
| Alabama | 45 | 1,035,992 | 32.8% | 582,061 | 26.1% | 372,754 | 49.7% | 54,243 | 56.4% | 9,750 | 25.5% | 6,565 | 41.2% | 10,619 | 36.0% |
| Kentucky | 46 | 956,492 | 33.3% | 805,418 | 31.6% | 94,812 | 48.2% | 34,698 | 52.4% | 8,072 | 23.7% | 2,853 | 57.4% | 10,640 | 41.2% |
| West Virginia | 47 | 436,064 | 34.3% | 405,322 | 33.7% | 16,216 | 46.9% | 4,725 | 42.4% | 2,318 | 26.6% | 933 | 45.7% | 6,550 | 47.5% |
| New Mexico | 48 | 461,062 | 34.5% | 140,394 | 22.5% | 7,881 | 34.5% | 246,452 | 44.5% | 5,737 | 29.3% | 56,387 | 54.5% | 4,212 | 31.5% |
| Arkansas | 49 | 682,357 | 35.8% | 468,282 | 31.3% | 134,517 | 52.2% | 56,625 | 60.8% | 8,190 | 31.4% | 5,001 | 44.4% | 9,742 | 41.1% |
| Mississippi | 50 | 731,359 | 38.9% | 336,243 | 28.7% | 358,701 | 56.6% | 22,013 | 55.2% | 5,991 | 33.0% | 4,020 | 54.8% | 4,390 | 48.3% |
| District of Columbia ^a | | | | 164 | 0.1% | 69,969 | 34.8% | 12,483 | 31.0% | 1,686 | 10.1% | | | 862 | 11.8% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN respondents.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY



of people live in households with a livable income

Calculated as the average portion of college graduates living in households with livable income in MD, CT, AK, NJ, and VA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LIVABLE INCOME

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in households with livable income to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Overall | | Less than HS | | HS Grad | | Some College | | College Grad | |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------------|--------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Maryland | 1 | 599,499 | 15.3% | 195,335 | 46.7% | 254,478 | 25.4% | 149,686 | 14.6% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire | 2 | 145,445 | 16.0% | 31,338 | 45.1% | 64,888 | 24.6% | 43,522 | 16.8% | 5,696 | 1.8% |
| Connecticut | 3 | 388,603 | 16.1% | 121,654 | 49.5% | 168,851 | 25.5% | 98,098 | 16.2% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Alaska | 4 | 74,205 | 16.4% | 16,363 | 45.0% | 31,315 | 26.3% | 26,193 | 15.5% | 332 | 0.3% |
| New Jersey | 5 | 1,007,334 | 16.9% | 327,076 | 48.3% | 452,204 | 26.3% | 222,176 | 16.0% | 5,879 | 0.3% |
| Massachusetts | 6 | 791,355 | 17.6% | 237,044 | 51.7% | 328,762 | 28.7% | 194,972 | 18.1% | 30,578 | 1.7% |
| Hawaii | 7 | 171,248 | 18.3% | 34,270 | 39.9% | 68,247 | 26.2% | 55,564 | 18.4% | 13,167 | 4.6% |
| Minnesota | 8 | 668,634 | 18.8% | 149,072 | 55.5% | 269,123 | 28.8% | 222,548 | 19.1% | 27,891 | 2.3% |
| Virginia | 9 | 1,026,365 | 19.0% | 337,229 | 52.8% | 406,989 | 30.3% | 276,702 | 18.8% | 5,446 | 0.3% |
| North Dakota | 10 | 85,934 | 19.1% | 17,252 | 48.0% | 31,026 | 25.6% | 29,597 | 17.7% | 8,058 | 6.4% |
| District of Columbia | 11 | 85,491 | 19.6% | 27,579 | 57.8% | 33,079 | 41.8% | 22,314 | 30.1% | 2,519 | 1.1% |
| Wyoming | 12 | 77,056 | 20.6% | 13,227 | 48.2% | 27,906 | 25.4% | 28,476 | 20.3% | 7,447 | 7.7% |
| Delaware | 13 | 126,371 | 20.7% | 35,726 | 50.4% | 54,261 | 28.3% | 30,775 | 18.4% | 5,609 | 3.1% |
| Colorado | 14 | 730,022 | 21.5% | 178,707 | 55.8% | 240,959 | 32.6% | 240,462 | 22.8% | 69,895 | 5.4% |
| Washington | 15 | 995,299 | 21.7% | 241,399 | 54.2% | 331,776 | 31.1% | 352,091 | 22.1% | 70,034 | 4.7% |
| Rhode Island | 16 | 156,385 | 22.2% | 52,934 | 52.2% | 59,076 | 30.8% | 37,992 | 20.0% | 6,382 | 2.9% |
| Vermont | 17 | 98,272 | 22.8% | 18,629 | 55.0% | 42,129 | 31.9% | 25,848 | 23.1% | 11,665 | 7.6% |
| lowa | 18 | 463,007 | 23.1% | 90,462 | 54.7% | 197,045 | 30.4% | 147,661 | 22.6% | 27,839 | 5.2% |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 882,645 | 23.3% | 188,165 | 55.7% | 382,669 | 31.3% | 264,170 | 22.4% | 47,642 | 4.5% |
| Nebraska | 20 | 279,270 | 23.6% | 61,865 | 57.2% | 106,280 | 32.6% | 92,761 | 23.3% | 18,364 | 5.2% |
| Illinois | 21 | 1,989,682 | 23.6% | 565,063 | 55.9% | 766,686 | 33.7% | 557,423 | 23.0% | 100,510 | 3.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 2,056,205 | 23.9% | 509,220 | 55.6% | 997,859 | 31.8% | 457,697 | 21.9% | 91,430 | 3.7% |
| New York | 23 | 3,217,455 | 24.5% | 1,072,846 | 56.7% | 1,198,105 | 34.1% | 729,968 | 22.4% | 216,535 | 4.9% |
| Kansas | 24 | 451.022 | 24.7% | 101.826 | 56.3% | 168,108 | 34.5% | 151.099 | 25.7% | 29,990 | 5.3% |
| Utah | 25 | 409,320 | 25.2% | 78,523 | 55.4% | 121,326 | 31.9% | 153,600 | 25.4% | 55,872 | 11.2% |
| South Dakota | 26 | 136,069 | 25.6% | 25,637 | 54.8% | 54,091 | 32.4% | 44,089 | 25.4% | 12,251 | 8.5% |
| Ohio | 27 | 2,071,507 | 27.1% | 486,149 | 58.4% | 912,504 | 34.7% | 578,824 | 26.3% | 94,031 | 4.8% |
| Michigan | 28 | 1,818,897 | 27.9% | 397,063 | 58.4% | 732,966 | 37.5% | 588,955 | 27.4% | 99,914 | 5.7% |
| California | 29 | 6,840,751 | 27.9% | 2,698,168 | 60.0% | 1,933,633 | 38.1% | 1,773,457 | 24.3% | 435,493 | 5.7% |
| Indiana | 30 | 1,180,910 | 28.1% | 294,812 | 57.9% | 497,766 | 33.9% | 322,707 | 26.3% | 65,625 | 6.6% |
| Missouri | 31 | 1,124,934 | 28.5% | 270.856 | 59.4% | 455,112 | 36.7% | 332,189 | 28.0% | 66,777 | 6.3% |
| Maine | 32 | 268,720 | 28.7% | 46,113 | 59.5% | 124,949 | 39.5% | 73,092 | 26.5% | 24,566 | 9.2% |
| Montana | 33 | 194,914 | 29.0% | 26.333 | 54.6% | 76.827 | 38.7% | 68.667 | 30.1% | 23,087 | 11.6% |
| Oregon | 34 | 778,642 | 29.4% | 166,963 | 60.5% | 255,090 | 39.3% | 275,182 | 29.7% | 81,407 | 10.2% |
| Nevada | 35 | 537,965 | 29.4% | 147.867 | 54.5% | 186.622 | 35.5% | 160,792 | 26.1% | 42,684 | 10.3% |
| Texas | 36 | 4,763,173 | 29.6% | 1.825.864 | 62.5% | 1,546,348 | 38.3% | 1,187,858 | 25.2% | 203,103 | 4.6% |
| Arizona | 37 | 1,273,527 | 30.2% | 368,446 | 63.1% | 410.273 | 39.9% | 399.207 | 27.6% | 95,600 | 8.3% |
| Georgia | 38 | 1,954,425 | 31.1% | 578.318 | 63.1% | 733.399 | 41.0% | 525.623 | 29.5% | 117.085 | 6.5% |
| North Carolina | 39 | 1,994,695 | 31.2% | 593,795 | 64.8% | 702.974 | 40.9% | 584,580 | 29.6% | 113.346 | 6.4% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 765.845 | 31.5% | 189,996 | 60.3% | 303.265 | 39.5% | 221.764 | 29.0% | 50.820 | 8.7% |
| Idaho | 41 | 316.056 | 31.6% | 61.444 | 58.0% | 110.183 | 39.9% | 111.624 | 30.9% | 32,804 | 12.7% |
| Florida | 42 | 4,244,322 | 31.8% | 1.062.808 | 60.1% | 1,630,303 | 41.3% | 1,172,554 | 29.2% | 378.657 | 10.5% |
| Louisiana | 43 | 939.130 | 32.0% | 285.408 | 59.2% | 382.028 | 38.2% | 222.185 | 28.1% | 49.509 | 7.5% |
| South Carolina | 44 | 1 003 543 | 32.3% | 289 669 | 63.8% | 387 841 | 41.6% | 265 901 | 28.7% | 60 132 | 7.6% |
| Tennessee | 45 | 1 380 672 | 32.4% | 396 665 | 63.1% | 575 654 | 40.9% | 337 620 | 28.7% | 70 734 | 6.7% |
| Alahama | 46 | 1,036,541 | 32.4% | 314 451 | 62.5% | 399.060 | 40.5% | 277 950 | 29.5% | 45 079 | 6.1% |
| Kentucky | 47 | 957 052 | 33.3% | 294 057 | 63.2% | 384 547 | 39.8% | 239 019 | 29.5% | 39 428 | 6.2% |
| West Virginia | 48 | 436.085 | 34.3% | 122 606 | 62.3% | 199 995 | 38.5% | 95 664 | 30.1% | 17 820 | 7.5% |
| New Mexico | 49 | 461 765 | 34.5% | 139 292 | 65.4% | 150 896 | 42.9% | 134 994 | 31.8% | 36 582 | 10.5% |
| Arkansas | 50 | 627 808 | 25.8% | 182 888 | 63.1% | 200 202 | 12.570 13.4% | 170 2/1 | 37.0% | 30,302 | 7.6% |
| Mississioni | 50 | 722 020 | 28.0% | 102,000 221 000 | 66.7% | 290,303 261 0E0 | 45.4% | 173,241 208 002 | 25.0% | 20,407 11 799 | 10.7% |
| Initialization | 10 | 132,020 | 50.9% | 221,090 | 00.7% | 201,030 | 40,170 | 200,092 | 53.0% | 41,700 | 10.7% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION

HOPE Goal



of people live in households with a livable income

Calculated as the average portion of college graduates living in households with livable income in MD, CT, AK, NJ, and VA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Tables show the portion of households spending no more than 30% of monthly household income on housing and related expenses in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/Pl | ΔΙ/ΔΝ | Multiracial |
|-----------------------------------|------|---------|--------|-------|----------|----------|-------|-------------|
| North Dakota | 1 | 81.0% | 81.9% | 59.2% | 74.0% | 72.9% | 72 5% | 70.2% |
| West Virginia | 2 | 78.5% | 79.2% | 62.5% | 74.0% | 80.7% | 68.3% | 67.1% |
| South Dakota | 2 | 78.3% | 79.0% | 67.4% | 76.3% | 81.5% | 69.7% | 71.2% |
| | 4 | 70.5% | 78.9% | 52.3% | 68.1% | 76.3% | 66.5% | 57.6% |
| Nebraska | 5 | 75.7% | 70.5% | 54.3% | 67.1% | 75.8% | 57.0% | 68.6% |
| Kansas | 6 | 75.2% | 77.4% | 58.5% | 66.3% | 75.7% | 66.1% | 65.6% |
| Arkansas | 7 | 74.3% | 78.1% | 57.6% | 64.9% | 72.7% | 67.2% | 70.3% |
| Oklahoma | 8 | 74.5% | 76.1% | 58.5% | 65.6% | 69.3% | 73.3% | 70.3% |
| Indiana | 9 | 73.7% | 76.3% | 54.3% | 62.5% | 73.7% | 67.9% | 62.9% |
| Kentucky | 10 | 73.2% | 70.5% | 57.9% | 60.6% | 73.3% | 66.6% | 64.6% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 73.270 | 74.0% | 46.9% | 58.7% | 69.4% | 59.3% | 59.1% |
| Missouri | 12 | 72.0% | 74.0% | 52.7% | 63.9% | 73.6% | 61.5% | 62.4% |
| Louisiana | 12 | 71.6% | 78.5% | 57.2% | 66.2% | 70.8% | 71.6% | 62.9% |
| Alahama | 14 | 71.0% | 76.8% | 56.9% | 64.8% | 70.0% | 70.4% | 66.4% |
| | 14 | 71.470 | 73.4% | 57.1% | 59.8% | 62.9% | 69.2% | 67.2% |
| Ohio | 15 | 71.170 | 73.4% | 52.7% | 62.6% | 76.1% | 62.9% | 61.1% |
| Idaho | 10 | 71.076 | 71.4% | 64.0% | 65.4% | 66.4% | 71.2% | 58.9% |
| lltah | 18 | 70.7% | 73.2% | 56.3% | 54.2% | 62.1% | 62.8% | 59.5% |
| Tennessee | 10 | 70.7% | 74.4% | 54.3% | 54.2% | 71.1% | 69.7% | 59.9% |
| Тоузс | 20 | 70.5% | 76.2% | 58.2% | 64.8% | 71.1% | 70.5% | 66.0% |
| Mississioni | 21 | 70.4% | 77.6% | 57.0% | 62.5% | 64.7% | 70.5% | 56.5% |
| South Carolina | 27 | 70.0% | 74.9% | 57.8% | 62.5% | 70.7% | 58.9% | 66.0% |
| Wisconsin | 22 | 69.8% | 74.570 | 14.3% | 55.3% | 67.3% | 67.1% | 61.8% |
| New Mexico | 23 | 69.7% | 72.1% | 62.5% | 64.7% | 69.5% | 77.0% | 61.0% |
| Poppovlyania | 25 | 69.7% | 73.5% | 55.0% | 49.6% | 66.7% | 56.0% | 60.4% |
| Michigan | 25 | 69.3% | 72.5% | 51.6% | 62.9% | 74.0% | 63.4% | 57.5% |
| Virginia | 20 | 69.2% | 73.7% | 57.0% | 55.4% | 66.9% | 62.0% | 61.7% |
| North Carolina | 28 | 69.1% | 74.1% | 55.3% | 57.6% | 71.7% | 67.6% | 59.6% |
| Maine | 20 | 68.4% | 68.8% | 51.0% | 63.4% | 61.2% | 58.6% | 64.0% |
| Delaware | 30 | 68.4% | 72.5% | 56.9% | 57.0% | 73.1% | 53.7% | 54.0% |
| Colorado | 31 | 67.7% | 70.5% | 53.8% | 57.6% | 66.9% | 57.8% | 61.0% |
| Arizona | 32 | 66.7% | 69.7% | 53.8% | 57.8% | 71.3% | 73.1% | 65.8% |
| Illinois | 33 | 66.2% | 71.7% | 49.5% | 52.0% | 65.1% | 56.8% | 62.6% |
| Georgia | 34 | 66.2% | 73.3% | 54.2% | 53.7% | 66.2% | 60.2% | 60.5% |
| Maryland | 35 | 65.9% | 72.0% | 56.3% | 52.0% | 66.3% | 59.7% | 61.2% |
| Washington | 36 | 65.4% | 67.4% | 48.1% | 55.7% | 64.1% | 63.7% | 59.7% |
| Massachusetts | 37 | 64.1% | 66.8% | 50.2% | 47.6% | 63.8% | 45.2% | 54.7% |
| Oregon | 38 | 63.5% | 64.9% | 46.8% | 54.4% | 62.7% | 54.7% | 55.5% |
| Connecticut | 39 | 62.3% | 66.4% | 46.9% | 44.8% | 68.1% | 62.3% | 56.4% |
| Nevada | 40 | 62.0% | 65.5% | 47.0% | 55.0% | 65.8% | 68.7% | 61 5% |
| Rhode Island | 41 | 61.9% | 64.6% | 50.7% | 46.3% | 61.2% | 39.0% | 48.8% |
| Florida | 42 | 60.7% | 66.7% | 47.2% | 48.4% | 64.1% | 57.8% | 56.6% |
| New York | 43 | 59.9% | 66.4% | 48.6% | 45.2% | 53.2% | 61.2% | 54.2% |
| New Jersev | 44 | 58.1% | 62.3% | 47.9% | 45.1% | 65.7% | 48.3% | 50.8% |
| California | 45 | 56.2% | 61.5% | 44.4% | 47.8% | 59.2% | 54.9% | 53.9% |
| District of Columbia ^a | | | 73.0% | 54.6% | 58.5% | 61.9% | | 64.5% |
| Hawaii ^a | | | 53.7% | 40.8% | 47.3% | 63.7% | | 57.8% |
| Montanaª | | | 72.4% | | 64.3% | 69.5% | 68.8% | 65.2% |
| New Hampshire ^a | | | 65.7% | 61.8% | 52.4% | 62.5% | | 58.3% |
| Vermont ^a | | | 65.6% | | 59.6% | 65.0% | | 59.2% |
| Wyoming ^a | | | 78.5% | | 71.5% | 64.7% | 71.8% | 70.3% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black and/or Al/AN respondents.

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|----------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 1 | 80.9% | 71.0% | 75.9% | 82.3% | 86.9% | | | | | |
| West Virginia | 2 | 78.3% | 69.2% | 77.9% | 77.5% | 87.7% | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 3 | 78.1% | 67.5% | 74.5% | 76.7% | 87.1% | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 4 | 77.7% | 67.2% | 75.4% | 77.5% | 83.0% | | | | | |
| Iowa | 5 | 77.7% | 63.9% | 74.8% | 76.8% | 85.7% | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 6 | 75.7% | 62.6% | 70.6% | 75.1% | 84.0% | | | | | |
| Kansas | 7 | 75.2% | 61.5% | 70.4% | 73.8% | 83.9% | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 8 | 74.3% | 63.2% | 72.0% | 73.8% | 85.6% | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 9 | 74.0% | 62.0% | 71.2% | 73.6% | 83.0% | | | | | |
| Indiana | 10 | 73.7% | 58.1% | 71.5% | 73.1% | 84.0% | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 11 | 73.2% | 60.7% | 71.4% | 72.3% | 84.9% | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 12 | 72.0% | 52.3% | 67.1% | 70.0% | 81.2% | | | | | |
| Missouri | 13 | 72.0% | 56.8% | 69.2% | 69.9% | 82.8% | | | | | |
| Montana | 14 | 71.9% | 62.7% | 69.0% | 69.4% | 79.1% | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 15 | 71.6% | 58.7% | 70.7% | 70.5% | 81.9% | | | | | |
| Alabama | 16 | 71.4% | 57.4% | 68.4% | 71.3% | 82.9% | | | | | |
| Alaska | 17 | 71.0% | 57.0% | 65.7% | 68.6% | 81.3% | | | | | |
| Ohio | 18 | 70.9% | 54.3% | 67.9% | 69.1% | 82.7% | | | | | |
| Idaho | 19 | 70.7% | 61.2% | 66.6% | 68.9% | 79.9% | | | | | |
| Utah | 20 | 70.6% | 53.5% | 66.0% | 69.1% | 78.8% | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 21 | 70.5% | 57.2% | 67.8% | 69.6% | 81.1% | | | | | |
| Texas | 22 | 70.4% | 57.5% | 66.3% | 69.8% | 80.6% | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 23 | 70.0% | 57.3% | 66.3% | 69.6% | 80.2% | | | | | |
| Mississinni | 24 | 70.0% | 57.5% | 68.7% | 69.4% | 81.6% | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 25 | 69.8% | 52.4% | 65.3% | 68.8% | 80.7% | | | | | |
| New Mexico | 26 | 69.7% | 59.3% | 66.3% | 68.1% | 79.2% | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 69.7% | 52.6% | 66.2% | 68.3% | 80.4% | | | | | |
| Michigan | 28 | 69.3% | 52.5% | 64.3% | 67.4% | 81.6% | | | | | |
| Virginia | 29 | 69.1% | 55.2% | 63.9% | 65.7% | 78.3% | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 30 | 69.1% | 55.1% | 65.2% | 67.6% | 79.5% | | | | | |
| Maine | 31 | 68.4% | 56.6% | 63.2% | 67.7% | 75.5% | | | | | |
| Delaware | 32 | 68.3% | 53.7% | 63.7% | 65.9% | 78.9% | | | | | |
| Colorado | 32 | 67.7% | 50.3% | 60.6% | 64.4% | 76.8% | | | | | |
| Arizona | 3/ | 66.7% | 51.5% | 61.4% | 65.3% | 70.0% | | | | | |
| Illinois | 35 | 66.2% | 48.6% | 62.1% | 64.4% | 76.0% | | | | | |
| Georgia | 36 | 66.1% | 50.3% | 62.1% | 64.0% | 70.0% | | | | | |
| Maryland | 37 | 65.9% | 47.8% | 57.7% | 62.4% | 76.5% | | | | | |
| Washington | 38 | 65.0% | 51.0% | 50.8% | 62.4% | 70.5% | | | | | |
| Vormont | 30 | 65.4% | /8 7% | 61.3% | 62.4% | 74.5% | | | | | |
| Now Hampshire | 40 | 65.2% | FO 0% | EQ 6% | 62.1% | 73.076 | | | | | |
| Maccachucotto | 40 | 64.0% | J0.978 | 59.078 EE 49/ | 61 19/ | 74.470 | | | | | |
| Orogon | 41 | 62.5% | 40.576 | 50.470 EQ EQ/ | 60.8% | 74.470 | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 42 | 62.0% | 49.970 | JU.J /0 | 00.0% E4 1% | 75.1% | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 45 | 62.0% | 42.270 | 47.570 ED 10/ | 54.1% | 75.170 | | | | | |
| Novada | 44 | 62.0% | 45.1% | 55.4% | 59.5% 61.0% | 74.4% | | | | | |
| Phodo Island | 45 | 61.0% | 49.0% | 57.2% | 61.9% 58.5% | 75.2% | | | | | |
| Elorida | 40 | 60.70 | 40.5% | 55.0% | 50.5% | 74.5% | | | | | |
| Fiorida Now York | 47 | 50.7% F0.90/ | 40.1% | 55.4% | 59.0% | 71.5% | | | | | |
| | 40 | 59.0% | 39.0% E4.00/ | 55.5% | 59.9% | / 1.2% | | | | | |
| | 49 | 50.5% | 54.6% | 54.7% | 54.2% | 05.1% | | | | | |
| California | 50 | 58.1% | 39.4% | 49.4% | 54.7% | 71.0% | | | | | |
| California | 51 | 56.2% | 41.0% | 49.9% | 54.7% | 66.9% | | | | | |

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goal

87%

of households with affordable housing

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with affordable housing in WV. SD. ND. IA. and AR.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



AFFORDABLE HOUSING

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households within each group (% to Goal) who would need affordable housing to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wh | nite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|-----------------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 14,278 | 5.6% | 11,046 | 4.7% | 748 | 27.4% | 568 | 12.6% | 294 | 13.7% | 1,287 | 14.1% | 335 | 16.4% |
| West Virginia | 2 | 54,438 | 8.1% | 46,989 | 7.4% | 4,624 | 24.1% | 900 | 14.8% | 230 | 5.8% | 229 | 18.3% | 1,466 | 19.5% |
| South Dakota | 3 | 24,725 | 8.3% | 20,176 | 7.6% | 648 | 19.2% | 575 | 10.3% | 107 | 5.1% | 2,672 | 16.9% | 547 | 15.4% |
| Iowa | 4 | 100,424 | 8.9% | 80,397 | 7.7% | 8,879 | 34.3% | 6,571 | 18.4% | 1,743 | 10.3% | 442 | 20.0% | 2,392 | 29.0% |
| Nebraska | 5 | 72,967 | 10.9% | 53,094 | 9.1% | 8,636 | 32.3% | 8,156 | 19.5% | 1,061 | 10.8% | 975 | 29.6% | 1,044 | 17.9% |
| Kansas | 6 | 115,778 | 11.4% | 79,443 | 9.4% | 15,200 | 28.1% | 14,458 | 20.3% | 2,190 | 10.9% | 1,261 | 20.5% | 3,227 | 21.0% |
| Arkansas | 7 | 125,301 | 12.3% | 68,390 | 8.5% | 42,660 | 29.0% | 9,190 | 21.7% | 1,624 | 13.9% | 1,244 | 19.4% | 2,193 | 16.3% |
| Oklahoma | 8 | 164,575 | 12.6% | 99,927 | 10.2% | 25,242 | 28.1% | 16,475 | 21.0% | 3,251 | 17.3% | 10,204 | 13.3% | 9,476 | 14.8% |
| Indiana | 9 | 296,573 | 12.9% | 201,794 | 10.3% | 62,299 | 32.2% | 22,611 | 24.1% | 3,980 | 12.9% | 848 | 18.6% | 5,041 | 23.7% |
| Kentucky | 10 | 207,508 | 13.4% | 160,064 | 11.7% | 33,400 | 28.7% | 8,045 | 26.0% | 2,130 | 13.3% | 535 | 20.0% | 3,333 | 22.0% |
| Minnesota | 11 | 289,110 | 14.6% | 218,985 | 12.6% | 33,327 | 39.7% | 15,992 | 27.9% | 10,397 | 17.2% | 4,322 | 27.3% | 6,087 | 27.5% |
| Missouri | 12 | 318,046 | 14.6% | 213,740 | 11.7% | 79,737 | 33.8% | 12,006 | 22.7% | 3,763 | 13.0% | 2,217 | 25.0% | 6,584 | 24.2% |
| Louisiana | 13 | 232,230 | 15.0% | 80,692 | 8.1% | 131,943 | 29.4% | 11,589 | 20.4% | 3,283 | 15.8% | 1,324 | 15.0% | 3,399 | 23.7% |
| Alabama | 14 | 255,043 | 15.2% | 115,539 | 9.8% | 123,076 | 29.7% | 9,116 | 21.8% | 2,652 | 15.7% | 1,463 | 16.2% | 3,197 | 20.2% |
| Alaska | 15 | 35,909 | 15.5% | 22,045 | 13.2% | 2,333 | 29.5% | 2,751 | 26.8% | 2,542 | 23.7% | 4,240 | 17.4% | 1,998 | 19.4% |
| Ohio | 16 | 664,204 | 15.6% | 456,079 | 12.8% | 165,578 | 33.9% | 22,489 | 24.0% | 6,618 | 10.5% | 1,697 | 23.7% | 11,743 | 25.5% |
| Idaho | 17 | 84,631 | 15.9% | 72,217 | 15.2% | 412 | 22.6% | 8,140 | 21.2% | 1,224 | 20.1% | 802 | 15.4% | 1,835 | 27.7% |
| Utah | 18 | 130,577 | 15.9% | 93,273 | 13.4% | 2,077 | 30.3% | 26,321 | 32.4% | 5,033 | 24.5% | 1,790 | 23.8% | 2,083 | 27.1% |
| Tennessee | 19 | 367,855 | 16.1% | 219,948 | 12.2% | 113,291 | 32.3% | 22,466 | 32.4% | 4,443 | 15.4% | 870 | 16.9% | 6,837 | 26.7% |
| Texas | 20 | 1,342,693 | 16.2% | 458,116 | 10.4% | 281,244 | 28.4% | 534,177 | 21.8% | 46,482 | 14.9% | 3,873 | 16.1% | 18,800 | 20.6% |
| Mississippi | 21 | 164,204 | 16.6% | 55,587 | 9.0% | 100,134 | 29.6% | 4,372 | 24.1% | 1,826 | 21.9% | 636 | 16.6% | 1,650 | 30.1% |
| South Carolina | 22 | 271,865 | 16.6% | 132,557 | 11.7% | 118,393 | 28.8% | 13,614 | 24.5% | 2,993 | 15.9% | 1,423 | 27.7% | 2,885 | 20.6% |
| Wisconsin | 23 | 357,518 | 16.8% | 272,767 | 14.5% | 45,947 | 42.3% | 25,043 | 31.3% | 6,398 | 19.3% | 2,935 | 19.5% | 4,428 | 24.7% |
| New Mexico | 24 | 117,366 | 16.8% | 46,590 | 13.3% | 3,142 | 24.0% | 60,449 | 21.9% | 1,382 | 17.1% | 3,987 | 9.6% | 1,817 | 25.2% |
| Pennsylvania | 25 | 786,042 | 16.9% | 543,954 | 14.0% | 137,991 | 31.6% | 71,180 | 37.0% | 21,057 | 19.9% | 1,719 | 30.6% | 10,141 | 26.2% |
| Michigan | 26 | 617,418 | 17.3% | 407,705 | 14.2% | 158,579 | 35.0% | 25,336 | 23.7% | 9,348 | 12.6% | 3,725 | 23.2% | 12,725 | 29.1% |
| Virginia | 27 | 495,546 | 17.4% | 255,116 | 12.8% | 151,497 | 29.6% | 50,239 | 31.1% | 26,830 | 19.7% | 1,599 | 24.5% | 10,264 | 24.9% |
| North Carolina | 28 | 602,994 | 17.5% | 301,632 | 12.5% | 221,010 | 31.3% | 54,611 | 29.0% | 10,025 | 14.9% | 6,247 | 19.0% | 9,468 | 27.0% |
| Maine | 29 | 94,508 | 18.2% | 89,055 | 17.8% | 1,212 | 35.6% | 1,179 | 23.2% | 986 | 25.4% | 761 | 28.0% | 1,316 | 22.6% |
| Delaware | 30 | 58,315 | 18.2% | 31,962 | 14.1% | 18,159 | 29.7% | 5,564 | 29.6% | 1,308 | 13.5% | 334 | 32.9% | 989 | 32.2% |
| Colorado | 31 | 349,998 | 18.9% | 230,514 | 16.1% | 21,175 | 32.8% | 80,101 | 29.0% | 8,542 | 19.7% | 2,530 | 28.8% | 7,136 | 25.5% |
| Arizona | 32 | 436,500 | 19.9% | 254,446 | 16.9% | 27,371 | 32.8% | 132,497 | 28.8% | 8,884 | 15.3% | 8,028 | 13.5% | 5,273 | 20.8% |
| Illinois | 33 | 912,343 | 20.4% | 471,315 | 14.9% | 220,715 | 37.1% | 168,995 | 34.6% | 39,621 | 21.5% | 1,802 | 29.8% | 9,895 | 24.0% |
| Georgia | 34 | 665,153 | 20.4% | 262,330 | 13.3% | 308,927 | 32.4% | 64,496 | 32.9% | 19,481 | 20.4% | 1,755 | 26.4% | 8,163 | 26.1% |
| Maryland | 35 | 423,810 | 20.7% | 175,978 | 14.6% | 177,806 | 30.3% | 41,224 | 34.6% | 20,596 | 20.3% | 1,132 | 26.9% | 7,074 | 25.4% |
| Washington | 36 | 521,318 | 21.2% | 374,461 | 19.2% | 31,645 | 38.5% | 56,109 | 30.9% | 37,143 | 22.5% | 5,804 | 22.9% | 16,155 | 26.9% |
| Massachusetts | 37 | 539,135 | 22.5% | 383,257 | 19.8% | 48,631 | 36.4% | 71,956 | 39.0% | 25,376 | 22.8% | 1,401 | 41.4% | 8,514 | 31.9% |
| Oregon | 38 | 326,702 | 23.1% | 259,548 | 21.7% | 8,626 | 39.8% | 33,661 | 32.2% | 11,463 | 23.9% | 4,030 | 31.9% | 9,374 | 31.1% |
| Connecticut | 39 | 312,455 | 24.3% | 197,130 | 20.2% | 45,073 | 39.7% | 57,707 | 41.8% | 8,081 | 18.5% | 398 | 24.3% | 4,066 | 30.1% |
| Nevada | 40 | 230,363 | 24.5% | 125,275 | 21.1% | 29,385 | 39.6% | 56,170 | 31.6% | 13,760 | 20.8% | 1,396 | 17.9% | 4,377 | 25.1% |
| Rhode Island | 41 | 94,193 | 24.7% | 69,115 | 22.0% | 5,998 | 35.9% | 14,306 | 40.3% | 2,070 | 25.4% | 795 | 47.6% | 1,910 | 37.7% |
| Florida | 42 | 1,747,898 | 25.9% | 876,412 | 19.9% | 339,237 | 39.4% | 476,481 | 38.2% | 31,386 | 22.4% | 3,995 | 28.8% | 20,386 | 30.0% |
| New York | 43 | 1,820,271 | 26.7% | 883,869 | 20.2% | 352,876 | 37.9% | 407,811 | 41.4% | 146,899 | 33.4% | 4,005 | 25.4% | 24,810 | 32.4% |
| New Jersev | 44 | 868,957 | 28.5% | 479,041 | 24.3% | 146,983 | 38.7% | 183,242 | 41.5% | 47,497 | 20.9% | 1,620 | 38.3% | 10,575 | 35.8% |
| California | 45 | 3,599,118 | 30.4% | 1,503.196 | 25.0% | 310.424 | 42.2% | 1,277.570 | 38.8% | 415.999 | 27.4% | 15.416 | 31.7% | 76.513 | 32.7% |
| District of Columbia ^a | | | | 13,774 | 13.6% | 35,727 | 31.9% | 5,191 | 28.1% | 2,144 | 24.7% | | | 1,013 | 22.1% |
| Hawaii ^a | | | | 42,553 | 32.9% | 3.737 | 45.8% | 10.743 | 39.3% | 44.520 | 22.9% | | | 16.013 | 28.8% |
| Montanaª | | | | 48.222 | 14.2% | | | 1.682 | 22.2% | 355 | 17.1% | 3.052 | 17.8% | 1.084 | 21.4% |
| New Hampshire ^a | | | | 96.794 | 20.9% | 940 | 24.8% | 3.587 | 34.2% | 2.207 | 24.1% | | | 1.355 | 28.3% |
| Vermont ^a | | | | 48,347 | 20.9% | | | 687 | 27.0% | 497 | 21.6% | | | 799 | 27.4% |
| Wyoming ^a | | | | 14,618 | 8.1% | | | 2,037 | 15.0% | 335 | 21.9% | 385 | 14.8% | 456 | 16.2% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black and/or Al/AN respondents.

HOPE Goal **87%**

of households with affordable housing

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with affordable housing in WV, SD, ND, IA, and AR.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



AFFORDABLE HOUSING

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE BENCHMARK BY EDUCATION

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households within each group (% to Goal) who would need affordable housing to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | nan HS | HS | Grad | Some | College | College | e Grad |
|-------------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|--------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 14,498 | 5.7% | 3,247 | 15.6% | 7,198 | 10.7% | 4,054 | 4.3% | 0 | 0.3% |
| West Virginia | 2 | 55,912 | 8.3% | 17,429 | 17.4% | 22,541 | 8.7% | 15,942 | 9.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| South Dakota | 3 | 25,216 | 8.5% | 4,770 | 19.1% | 10,613 | 12.1% | 9,833 | 9.8% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming | 4 | 17,991 | 8.8% | 2,606 | 19.3% | 6,311 | 11.2% | 7,084 | 9.0% | 1,990 | 3.6% |
| lowa | 5 | 100,660 | 8.9% | 19,611 | 22.7% | 41,256 | 11.8% | 36,923 | 9.8% | 2,869 | 0.0% |
| Nebraska | 6 | 73,135 | 10.9% | 13,466 | 24.0% | 27,756 | 15.9% | 26,472 | 11.5% | 5,442 | 2.6% |
| Kansas | 7 | 115,781 | 11.4% | 22,471 | 25.1% | 41,501 | 16.2% | 42,879 | 12.8% | 8,929 | 2.7% |
| Arkansas | 8 | 125,397 | 12.3% | 34,578 | 23.4% | 48,715 | 14.6% | 39,714 | 12.8% | 2,391 | 1.0% |
| Oklahoma | 9 | 164,667 | 12.6% | 37,343 | 24.6% | 59,118 | 15.4% | 55,842 | 13.0% | 12,364 | 3.6% |
| Indiana | 10 | 297,079 | 12.9% | 71,406 | 28.5% | 115,858 | 15.1% | 94,938 | 13.5% | 14,877 | 2.6% |
| Kentucky | 11 | 207,475 | 13.4% | 62,331 | 25.9% | 74,093 | 15.2% | 64,598 | 14.3% | 6,454 | 1.7% |
| Minnesota | 12 | 289,470 | 14.6% | 46,756 | 34.3% | 95,500 | 19.5% | 109,260 | 16.6% | 37,954 | 5.4% |
| Missouri | 13 | 318,260 | 14.6% | 68,747 | 29.7% | 111,405 | 17.4% | 114,491 | 16.7% | 23,617 | 3.8% |
| Montana | 14 | 54.686 | 14.7% | 5,796 | 23.9% | 18,217 | 17.6% | 21,950 | 17.2% | 8.724 | 7.5% |
| Louisiana | 15 | 232.787 | 15.0% | 65.341 | 27.8% | 78,949 | 15.9% | 70.529 | 16.1% | 17.968 | 4.7% |
| Alabama | 16 | 255 350 | 15.2% | 72 060 | 29.2% | 87 523 | 18.2% | 79 902 | 15.3% | 15 864 | 3.7% |
| Alaska | 10 | 35 970 | 15.5% | 4 669 | 29.6% | 11 025 | 20.9% | 16 484 | 18.0% | 3 792 | 5.3% |
| Ohio | 18 | 664 979 | 15.5% | 138 992 | 32.2% | 256.038 | 18.7% | 224 299 | 17.5% | 45 650 | 3.9% |
| Idaho | 10 | 84 723 | 15.0% | 12 826 | 25.4% | 26.673 | 20.0% | 35 056 | 17.5% | 10 168 | 6.7% |
| Litah | 20 | 130 829 | 15.9% | 20 158 | 23.4% | 34.408 | 20.0% | 54 039 | 17.5% | 22 225 | 7.8% |
| Toppossoo | 20 | 368 334 | 16.1% | 20,130 01 701 | 29.4% | 120 572 | 18.8% | 112 270 | 17.5% | 22,223 | 5.4% |
| Toyac | 21 | 1 344 707 | 16.1% | 285 276 | 29.470 | 376 696 | 20.3% | 112,373 | 16.8% | 15/ 202 | 5.4% |
| South Carolina | 22 | 271.066 | 16.6% | 505,270 64 241 | 29.170 | 01 225 | 20.3% | 420,433 | 17.0% | 20 644 | 6.4% |
| South Carolina Mississippi | 25 | 271,900 | 10.0% | 04,541 | 29.5% | 51,225 | 20.5% | 00,700 | 17.0% | 29,044 | 0.4% E 0% |
| | 24 | 104,547 | 10.0% | 47,475 | 29.1% | 50,105 | 17.9% | 35,460 | 17.2% | 11,229 | 5.0% |
| vvisconsin | 25 | 357,801 | 16.8% | 60,540 | 34.2% | 138,808 | 21.3% | 122,068 | 17.8% | 36,385 | 5.9% |
| | 26 | 117,513 | 16.8% | 26,392 | 27.3% | 32,955 | 20.3% | 42,760 | 18.5% | 15,406 | 7.4% |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 786,962 | 16.9% | 156,264 | 34.0% | 329,294 | 20.4% | 215,135 | 18.2% | 86,269 | 6.2% |
| | 28 | 618,019 | 17.3% | 112,756 | 34.1% | 219,397 | 22.2% | 234,797 | 19.2% | 51,069 | 5.0% |
| Virginia | 29 | 496,721 | 17.4% | 94,649 | 31.4% | 142,943 | 22.1% | 165,673 | 20.8% | 93,456 | 8.3% |
| North Carolina | 30 | 603,942 | 17.5% | 138,220 | 31.5% | 179,227 | 21.3% | 212,054 | 19.0% | 74,442 | 7.1% |
| Maine | 31 | 94,525 | 18.2% | 11,486 | 29.9% | 38,415 | 23.3% | 30,135 | 18.9% | 14,490 | 9.2% |
| Delaware | 32 | 58,567 | 18.2% | 10,564 | 32.9% | 20,570 | 22.8% | 19,272 | 20.6% | 8,161 | 1.1% |
| Colorado | 33 | 350,545 | 18.9% | 52,421 | 36.3% | 91,912 | 26.0% | 131,615 | 22.2% | 74,597 | 9.8% |
| Arizona | 34 | 437,163 | 19.9% | 89,098 | 35.5% | 115,467 | 25.2% | 169,582 | 21.3% | 63,016 | 9.1% |
| Illinois | 35 | 913,609 | 20.4% | 177,635 | 38.0% | 272,701 | 24.5% | 298,368 | 22.2% | 164,905 | 10.6% |
| Georgia | 36 | 667,041 | 20.5% | 149,427 | 36.3% | 204,988 | 24.5% | 218,235 | 22.6% | 94,390 | 9.0% |
| Maryland | 37 | 424,981 | 20.7% | 71,309 | 38.8% | 134,083 | 28.9% | 134,471 | 24.2% | 85,119 | 10.1% |
| Washington | 38 | 521,977 | 21.2% | 70,130 | 35.4% | 134,562 | 26.8% | 214,840 | 24.2% | 102,444 | 11.7% |
| Vermont | 39 | 51,097 | 21.2% | 6,343 | 37.9% | 17,267 | 25.3% | 15,767 | 23.9% | 11,720 | 13.0% |
| New Hampshire | 40 | 105,326 | 21.4% | 11,962 | 35.7% | 35,040 | 27.0% | 35,912 | 24.5% | 22,412 | 12.2% |
| Massachusetts | 41 | 543,475 | 22.6% | 89,651 | 40.1% | 176,368 | 31.2% | 152,844 | 25.5% | 124,612 | 12.2% |
| Oregon | 42 | 327,235 | 23.1% | 44,555 | 36.7% | 85,931 | 28.1% | 132,989 | 25.7% | 63,759 | 13.5% |
| District of Columbia | 43 | 58,093 | 23.6% | 10,304 | 44.4% | 14,987 | 38.7% | 13,570 | 32.5% | 19,233 | 13.5% |
| Connecticut | 44 | 314,219 | 24.3% | 52,381 | 43.5% | 107,493 | 33.1% | 92,496 | 27.3% | 61,849 | 12.2% |
| Nevada | 45 | 230,654 | 24.5% | 43,214 | 37.6% | 69,812 | 29.4% | 85,188 | 24.7% | 32,440 | 13.4% |
| Rhode Island | 46 | 94,901 | 24.7% | 19,520 | 37.7% | 29,559 | 31.0% | 30,178 | 28.1% | 15,645 | 12.1% |
| Florida | 47 | 1,751,491 | 25.9% | 301,516 | 40.5% | 556,776 | 31.2% | 581,798 | 26.9% | 311,401 | 15.0% |
| New York | 48 | 1,830,608 | 26.7% | 409,501 | 47.0% | 563,147 | 33.3% | 473,339 | 26.7% | 384,622 | 15.3% |
| Hawaii | 49 | 117,967 | 28.3% | 9,810 | 31.7% | 30,948 | 31.9% | 45,580 | 32.4% | 31,630 | 21.4% |
| New Jersey | 50 | 872,519 | 28.5% | 145,231 | 47.2% | 303,864 | 37.2% | 237,658 | 31.9% | 185,766 | 15.6% |
| California | 51 | 3,607,408 | 30.4% | 807,688 | 45.6% | 768,823 | 36.7% | 1,196,941 | 31.9% | 833,956 | 19.7% |

HOPE Goal

87%

of households with affordable housing

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with affordable housing in WV, SD, ND, IA, and AR.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

Tables show the portion of adults age 25 and older with at least some college education after graduating from high school in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| 6 1-1- | Bert | 0 | KAC | | I Y | A size (DI | A1/AN | Mariatana di J |
|----------------------|-----------|-------------------|-------------------|-----------------|------------------|----------------|--------|----------------|
| State | капк 1 | Ge 29/ | 75 10/ | 61 20/ | | | | |
| | 2 | 00.2% | 73.1% | 01.3 <i>/</i> 0 | 33.0% | C2 29/ | 40.6% | 75.7% |
| Utan Mashimatan | 2 | 67.6% | 72.0% | 59.9% | 37.0% | 63.3% | 49.0% | 70.4% |
| washington | 3 | 00.0% | 70.3% | 61.5% | 37.7% | 66.0% | 51.0% | 70.7% |
| Minnesota | 4 | 65.7% | 67.5% | 56.5% | 37.3% | 64.9% | 47.4% | 66.8% |
| Alaska | 5 | 65.2% | 72.2% | 63.2% | 62.1% | 50.6% | 37.8% | 60.3% |
| District of Columbia | 6 | 64.8% | 96.7% | 50.1% | 53.1% | 84.5% | 80.8% | 86.3% |
| Oregon | 7 | 64.8% | 67.8% | 64.4% | 35.0% | 68.6% | 54.1% | 66.1% |
| North Dakota | 8 | 64.4% | 64.9% | 67.2% | 48.3% | 71.3% | 56.3% | 69.3% |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 64.0% | 67.0% | 53.7% | 38.9% | 68.5% | 52.1% | 61.8% |
| Maryland | 10 | 63.1% | 67.0% | 57.7% | 40.5% | 76.8% | 58.0% | 73.4% |
| Wyoming | 11 | 62.9% | 64.6% | 56.1% | 44.5% | 71.0% | 60.2% | 58.3% |
| Montana | 12 | 62.9% | 63.7% | 47.8% | 51.9% | 73.5% | 53.8% | 58.6% |
| New Hampshire | 13 | 62.9% | 63.0% | 57.1% | 52.6% | 70.7% | 38.6% | 62.0% |
| Nebraska | 14 | 62.8% | 66.0% | 58.0% | 27.7% | 62.6% | 48.9% | 68.5% |
| Virginia | 15 | 62.8% | 66.0% | 52.4% | 45.1% | 76.4% | 59.7% | 71.3% |
| Kansas | 16 | 62.8% | 65.8% | 58.6% | 33.9% | 66.7% | 62.0% | 63.0% |
| Hawaii | 17 | 62.7% | 77.2% | 79.6% | 54.7% | 57.7% | 64.6% | 56.0% |
| Connecticut | 18 | 61.9% | 66.1% | 50.6% | 38.3% | 76.2% | 55.2% | 64.4% |
| Idaho | 19 | 61.4% | 64.6% | 63.4% | 30.2% | 68.6% | 48.6% | 57.0% |
| Arizona | 20 | 61.3% | 70.1% | 64.8% | 37.7% | 72.4% | 42.8% | 70.5% |
| Vermont | 21 | 61.1% | 61.0% | 72.8% | 67.3% | 58.5% | 64.8% | 64.4% |
| California | 22 | 60.6% | 74.5% | 64.4% | 34.8% | 71.3% | 55.2% | 73.4% |
| Illinois | 23 | 60.5% | 65.2% | 55.1% | 33.5% | 79.2% | 60.6% | 72.8% |
| New Jersey | 24 | 59.4% | 63.1% | 51.9% | 38.5% | 80.6% | 50.2% | 67.9% |
| South Dakota | 25 | 59.2% | 60.5% | 53.4% | 40.5% | 64.8% | 48.1% | 52.8% |
| Michigan | 26 | 59.1% | 60.3% | 52.6% | 43.7% | 76.7% | 50.7% | 62.3% |
| Iowa | 27 | 58.8% | 59.8% | 55.1% | 32.2% | 68.5% | 55.5% | 58.6% |
| New York | 28 | 58.4% | 64.9% | 51.2% | 38.9% | 60.3% | 52.2% | 62.9% |
| North Carolina | 29 | 58.3% | 62.8% | 51.1% | 30.8% | 68.8% | 43.0% | 66.5% |
| Wisconsin | 30 | 58.3% | 59.9% | 47.3% | 35.6% | 66.8% | 51.1% | 64.4% |
| Rhode Island | 31 | 57.9% | 61.3% | 51.8% | 34.9% | 57.1% | 45.2% | 57.5% |
| Maine | 32 | 57.5% | 57.6% | 51.8% | 60.2% | 57.8% | 56.4% | 51.1% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 57.4% | 72.7% | 66.4% | 41.3% | 73.3% | 44.3% | 75.2% |
| Florida | 34 | 56.6% | 61.4% | 47.0% | 47.2% | 67.2% | 50.6% | 65.3% |
| Delaware | 35 | 56.5% | 58.4% | 51.5% | 37.2% | 80.2% | 38.3% | 63.4% |
| Missouri | 36 | 56.4% | 57.0% | 52.3% | 13.7% | 70.7% | 54.9% | 60.6% |
| Georgia | 37 | 56.3% | 60.0% | 52.570 | 32.0% | 68.5% | 57.9% | 68.8% |
| Texas | 38 | 56.2% | 68.0% | 57.6% | 35.0% | 72.7% | 61.0% | 71.5% |
| Novada | 30 | 56.1% | 63.6% | 5/ 3% | 31.4% | 66.6% | 51.0% | 64.7% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 54.8% | 57.4% | 54.576 | 20.7% | 61.6% | 50.7% | 56.8% |
| Couth Carolina | 40 | 54.070 E 4.99/ | 60.4% | J4.170 | 23.170 | 64.29 | JU.776 | 61.49/ |
| Ohio | 41 | 54.0% | 00.470 E 4 49/ | 42.770 | 34.770 42.59/ | 75.29/ | 43.170 | 60.8% |
| Alahama | 42 | 54.270 | 54.4% | 50.7% | 45.5% | 75.5% | 40.0% | 00.0% |
| Alabama | 43 | 52.5% | 55.3% | 46.0% | 31.0% | 09.2% 71.2% | 51.0% | 01.1% |
| Donneulyonia | 44 | 52.5% | 53.2% | 51.0% | 33.0% | 71.2% | 40.0% | 60.5% |
| Terrasivania | 45 | 52.2% | 53.2% | 45.6% | 35.4% | 67.1% | 48.6% | 62.3% |
| 1 ennessee | 46 | 51.7% | 52.8% | 49.3% | 31.1% | 67.4% | 49.4% | 55.9% |
| iviississippi | 4/ | 51.6% | 56.0% | 44.5% | 34.2% | 56.7% | 42.8% | 63.4% |
| Kentucky | 48 | 49.7% | 49.7% | 50.5% | 36.6% | 69.2% | 48.4% | 60.5% |
| Arkansas | 49 | 49.1% | 51.3% | 43.1% | 25.1% | 62.7% | 51.2% | 56.4% |
| Louisiana | 50 | 48.7% | 52.7% | 40.6% | 41.9% | 58.2% | 33.9% | 53.3% |
| West Virginia | 51 | 43.4% | 42.9% | 48.3% | 46.9% | 76.1% | 48.2% | 48.6% |

| | | | | INCOME (% FF | PL) | | |
|----------------------|----------|---------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Colorado | 1 | 68.9% | 47.1% | 50.8% | 60.7% | 68.9% | 82.4% |
| Utah | 2 | 67.9% | 50.2% | 55.6% | 65.1% | 69.9% | 78.5% |
| District of Columbia | 3 | 67.8% | 40.6% | 44.4% | 55.9% | 65.4% | 88.4% |
| Washington | 4 | 67.1% | 47.3% | 50.8% | 58.7% | 66.1% | 80.3% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 66.1% | 42.9% | 47.8% | 56.8% | 66.0% | 79.1% |
| Alaska | 6 | 65.6% | 38.6% | 49.2% | 59.9% | 67.6% | 75.1% |
| North Dakota | 7 | 65.1% | 48.0% | 49.3% | 61.8% | 65.1% | 74.5% |
| Oregon | 8 | 65.1% | 48.4% | 50.1% | 59.3% | 66.5% | 80.7% |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 64.3% | 39.8% | 41.5% | 51.0% | 60.3% | 78.7% |
| Maryland | 10 | 63.7% | 38.5% | 40.0% | 48.0% | 57.4% | 77.8% |
| Montana | 11 | 63.4% | 47.2% | 51.6% | 58.8% | 66.3% | 76.2% |
| Wyoming | 12 | 63.3% | 47.8% | 52.3% | 58.0% | 64.5% | 71.6% |
| Kansas | 13 | 63.3% | 42.3% | 46.3% | 57.1% | 65.1% | 78.0% |
| Virginia | 14 | 63.3% | 37.2% | 40.1% | 49.6% | 60.0% | 79.8% |
| Nebraska | 15 | 63.3% | 43.6% | 45.9% | 56.6% | 66.1% | 77.1% |
| New Hampshire | 16 | 63.2% | 43.9% | 45.3% | 52.8% | 57.8% | 75.3% |
| Hawaii | 17 | 62.9% | 45.1% | 49.0% | 54.6% | 59.9% | 74.3% |
| Connecticut | 18 | 62.4% | 36.7% | 39.7% | 48.0% | 56.3% | 76.6% |
| Arizona | 19 | 61.8% | 38.3% | 45.7% | 57.1% | 65.9% | 79.8% |
| Idaho | 20 | 61.7% | 44.3% | 50.2% | 57.6% | 65.0% | 77.1% |
| Vermont | 21 | 61.3% | 41.9% | 45.1% | 52.5% | 61.1% | 75.9% |
| California | 22 | 61.0% | 37.8% | 39.1% | 50.9% | 61.9% | 81.3% |
| Illinois | 23 | 61.0% | 39.6% | 41.0% | 50.6% | 60.2% | 77.9% |
| New Jersey | 24 | 59.9% | 35.2% | 36.7% | 44.9% | 53.4% | 74.7% |
| South Dakota | 25 | 59.7% | 41.3% | 47.1% | 55.6% | 61.9% | 71.7% |
| Michigan | 26 | 59.6% | 39.8% | 44.4% | 51.9% | 60.5% | 77.0% |
| Iowa | 27 | 59.4% | 41.5% | 43.7% | 52.5% | 60.7% | 72.5% |
| North Carolina | 28 | 58.8% | 35.8% | 40.9% | 53.4% | 63.3% | 78.6% |
| New York | 29 | 58.8% | 35.2% | 38.0% | 48.6% | 57.8% | 76.6% |
| Wisconsin | 30 | 58.8% | 39.8% | 42.2% | 50.5% | 59.1% | 73.5% |
| Rhode Island | 31 | 58.4% | 34.6% | 37.5% | 47.5% | 58.6% | 74.8% |
| Maine | 32 | 58.0% | 37.0% | 42.4% | 52.3% | 59.5% | 74.8% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 57.9% | 36.5% | 42.9% | 53.6% | 63.4% | 77.4% |
| Florida | 34 | 57.2% | 36.7% | 42.0% | 51.5% | 60.2% | 75.8% |
| Delaware | 35 | 57.1% | 34.4% | 39.0% | 47.2% | 56.7% | 71.1% |
| Georgia | 36 | 57.1% | 33.7% | 39.3% | 51.4% | 59.8% | 77.4% |
| Missouri | 37 | 57.0% | 37.8% | 40.8% | 50.4% | 59.1% | 74.3% |
| Texas | 38 | 56.8% | 30.8% | 36.6% | 49.4% | 60.7% | 77.7% |
| Nevada | 39 | 56.4% | 39.9% | 41.9% | 50.3% | 57.9% | 72.1% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 55.5% | 36.2% | 40.0% | 51.1% | 59.2% | 72.8% |
| South Carolina | 41 | 55.4% | 31.6% | 38.5% | 50.7% | 60.1% | 75.8% |
| Ohio | 42 | 54.7% | 36.0% | 38.4% | 46.6% | 54.8% | 72.1% |
| Alahama | 43 | 53.0% | 31.8% | 36.5% | 47.4% | 57.5% | 73.5% |
| Indiana | 44 | 53.0% | 34.9% | 38.2% | 46.1% | 54.3% | 69.5% |
| Pennsvlvanja | 45 | 52.8% | 32.1% | 34.0% | 42.6% | 51.1% | 70.3% |
| Micciccinni | 46 | 52.4% | 32.6% | 38.6% | 50.5% | 60.0% | 73.5% |
| Τρημοςσορ | 47 | 52.3% | 30.1% | 35.0% | 46.7% | 56.0% | 73.6% |
| Kontuchy | 18 | 50.2% | 29.9% | 34.0% | 44.7% | 55.1% | 70.7% |
| Arkancac | 40 19 | 49.8% | 31.1% | 34.5% | 45.1% | 55.7% | 70.7% |
| Alkalisas | 50 | 49.5% | 29.4% | 34.2% | 45.0% | 53.7% | 67.1% |
| Wost Virginia | 51 | 43.7% | 26.4% | 30.4% | 37.9% | 46.4% | 63.4% |
| west virginia | 51 | -3.170 | 20.470 | JU.+70 | 51.570 | 40.470 | 05.470 |

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 83%

of adults with postsecondary education

Calculated as the average portion of adults with income 400% FPL or greater who have post-secondary education in DC, CO, CA, OR, and WA.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to attain post-secondary education to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | ite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Colorado | 1 | 496,399 | 14.4% | 193,109 | 7.5% | 26,842 | 21.3% | 252,516 | 43.6% | 14,562 | 14.1% | 5,586 | 26.2% | 3,783 | 8.9% |
| Utah | 2 | 245,646 | 15.0% | 143,915 | 10.5% | 3,293 | 22.7% | 81,633 | 44.8% | 9,867 | 19.3% | 5,053 | 33.0% | 1,885 | 12.2% |
| Washington | 3 | 732,366 | 15.8% | 438,454 | 12.3% | 32,611 | 21.1% | 175,753 | 44.9% | 56,067 | 14.6% | 17,367 | 31.0% | 12,115 | 11.9% |
| Minnesota | 4 | 608,574 | 16.9% | 470,809 | 15.1% | 40,151 | 26.1% | 57,399 | 45.3% | 23,675 | 17.7% | 11,262 | 35.2% | 5,279 | 15.8% |
| Alaska | 5 | 80,126 | 17.4% | 33,163 | 10.4% | 2,850 | 19.4% | 4,641 | 20.5% | 9,726 | 32.0% | 25,807 | 44.8% | 3,939 | 22.3% |
| District of Columbia | 6 | 78,742 | 17.8% | 0 | 0.0% | 66,904 | 32.5% | 11,819 | 29.5% | 0 | 0.0% | 18 | 1.8% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Oregon | 7 | 476,283 | 17.8% | 327,032 | 14.8% | 7,588 | 18.2% | 109,908 | 47.6% | 15,507 | 14.0% | 7,957 | 28.5% | 8,291 | 16.5% |
| North Dakota | 8 | 83,431 | 18.2% | 73,944 | 17.7% | 794 | 15.3% | 2,699 | 34.3% | 553 | 11.3% | 4,915 | 26.3% | 526 | 13.3% |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 850,038 | 18.6% | 565,377 | 15.6% | 78,034 | 28.9% | 159,653 | 43.7% | 36,056 | 14.1% | 2,384 | 30.5% | 8,534 | 20.8% |
| Maryland | 10 | 773,101 | 19.5% | 354,441 | 15.6% | 275,317 | 24.9% | 122,450 | 42.0% | 14,024 | 5.8% | 2,410 | 24.6% | 4,459 | 9.2% |
| Wyoming | 11 | 74,905 | 19.7% | 60,145 | 18.0% | 1,110 | 26.5% | 10,893 | 38.1% | 407 | 11.6% | 1,472 | 22.4% | 879 | 24.3% |
| Montana | 12 | 134,747 | 19.7% | 116,924 | 18.9% | 829 | 34.7% | 4,760 | 30.7% | 438 | 9.1% | 9,432 | 28.8% | 2,364 | 24.0% |
| New Hampshire | 13 | 181,417 | 19.7% | 168,307 | 19.6% | 2,233 | 25.5% | 6,147 | 30.0% | 2,396 | 11.9% | 826 | 44.0% | 1,508 | 20.6% |
| Nebraska | 14 | 238,199 | 19.8% | 171,730 | 16.6% | 11,627 | 24.6% | 46,350 | 54.9% | 4,501 | 20.0% | 2,716 | 33.7% | 1,275 | 14.1% |
| Virginia | 15 | 1,089,854 | 19.8% | 615,273 | 16.6% | 299,402 | 30.2% | 143,599 | 37.5% | 20,355 | 6.1% | 3,364 | 22.9% | 7,862 | 11.3% |
| Kansas | 16 | 369,012 | 19.8% | 257,137 | 16.8% | 23,741 | 24.0% | 73,282 | 48.7% | 7,457 | 15.9% | 2,934 | 20.5% | 4,460 | 19.6% |
| Hawaii | 17 | 189,374 | 19.9% | 13,368 | 5.4% | 488 | 3.0% | 18,391 | 27.9% | 119,956 | 24.9% | 397 | 18.0% | 36,774 | 26.6% |
| Connecticut | 18 | 507,752 | 20.7% | 302,206 | 16.5% | 69,564 | 32.0% | 124,596 | 44.3% | 6,303 | 6.4% | 1,263 | 27.4% | 3,819 | 18.2% |
| Idaho | 19 | 214,695 | 21.1% | 159,159 | 18.0% | 935 | 19.2% | 45,803 | 52.4% | 2,057 | 14.0% | 3,764 | 34.0% | 2,977 | 25.6% |
| Arizona | 20 | 913,277 | 21.3% | 347,100 | 12.5% | 27,674 | 17.8% | 459,680 | 44.9% | 13,904 | 10.2% | 59,243 | 39.8% | 5,676 | 12.1% |
| Vermont | 21 | 93,316 | 21.4% | 89,871 | 21.6% | 310 | 9.7% | 803 | 15.3% | 1,250 | 24.1% | 256 | 17.8% | 827 | 18.2% |
| California | 22 | 5,459,234 | 22.0% | 913,272 | 8.1% | 261,635 | 18.2% | 3,795,762 | 47.7% | 418,658 | 11.3% | 30,424 | 27.4% | 39,484 | 9.1% |
| Illinois | 23 | 1,894,215 | 22.1% | 1,009,654 | 17.4% | 309,449 | 27.5% | 551,378 | 49.1% | 14,554 | 3.4% | 2,799 | 22.0% | 6,380 | 9.8% |
| New Jersey | 24 | 1,404,885 | 23.2% | 727,359 | 19.5% | 225,058 | 30.7% | 431,777 | 44.1% | 10,611 | 2.0% | 2,666 | 32.4% | 7,415 | 14.7% |
| South Dakota | 25 | 127,534 | 23.4% | 105,913 | 22.1% | 2,039 | 29.2% | 5,138 | 42.0% | 970 | 17.8% | 11,925 | 34.5% | 1,549 | 29.8% |
| Michigan | 26 | 1,552,117 | 23.4% | 1,177,152 | 22.3% | 252,754 | 30.0% | 87,218 | 38.9% | 9,605 | 5.9% | 11,184 | 31.9% | 14,204 | 20.3% |
| Iowa | 27 | 484,791 | 23.8% | 424,131 | 22.8% | 13,375 | 27.5% | 37,825 | 50.4% | 5,127 | 14.1% | 1,383 | 27.1% | 2,950 | 24.0% |
| New York | 28 | 3,226,645 | 24.2% | 1,435,356 | 17.7% | 580,053 | 31.4% | 933,186 | 43.7% | 240,798 | 22.3% | 10,935 | 30.4% | 26,318 | 19.7% |
| North Carolina | 29 | 1,575,158 | 24.2% | 890,407 | 19.8% | 409,623 | 31.5% | 216,862 | 51.8% | 21,303 | 13.8% | 27,786 | 39.5% | 9,178 | 16.1% |
| Wisconsin | 30 | 935,687 | 24.3% | 759,825 | 22.7% | 69,456 | 35.2% | 80,181 | 47.0% | 12,062 | 15.7% | 9,353 | 31.5% | 4,809 | 18.2% |
| Rhode Island | 31 | 176,634 | 24.7% | 123,425 | 21.3% | 10,632 | 30.8% | 34,431 | 47.7% | 5,265 | 25.5% | 1,025 | 37.4% | 1,857 | 25.1% |
| Maine | 32 | 237,572 | 25.1% | 226,792 | 25.0% | 2,391 | 30.8% | 2,082 | 22.4% | 2,240 | 24.8% | 1,410 | 26.2% | 2,657 | 31.5% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 342,543 | 25.2% | 62,686 | 9.9% | 3,915 | 16.2% | 233,396 | 41.2% | 1,970 | 9.3% | 39,589 | 38.2% | 988 | 7.4% |
| Florida | 34 | 3,522,315 | 26.0% | 1,770,132 | 21.2% | 642,415 | 35.6% | 1,023,219 | 35.4% | 54,307 | 15.4% | 11,227 | 31.9% | 21,015 | 17.3% |
| Delaware | 35 | 162,164 | 26.1% | 104,315 | 24.2% | 36,948 | 31.1% | 18,219 | 45.4% | 513 | 2.4% | 932 | 44.2% | 1,237 | 19.2% |
| Missouri | 36 | 1,053,846 | 26.2% | 861,389 | 25.6% | 126,346 | 30.3% | 43,894 | 38.9% | 8,469 | 11.9% | 4,581 | 27.7% | 9,166 | 22.0% |
| Georgia | 37 | 1,682,660 | 26.2% | 862,495 | 22.6% | 542,541 | 29.7% | 233,170 | 50.6% | 32,627 | 14.0% | 3,715 | 24.7% | 8,112 | 13.7% |
| Texas | 38 | 4,334,236 | 26.4% | 1,207,718 | 14.6% | 464,665 | 25.0% | 2,562,342 | 47.6% | 72,045 | 9.9% | 12,286 | 21.6% | 15,180 | 11.1% |
| Nevada | 39 | 489,599 | 26.5% | 208,987 | 19.0% | 39,518 | 28.3% | 204,072 | 51.2% | 26,038 | 16.0% | 4,901 | 30.7% | 6,082 | 17.9% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 690,659 | 27.8% | 463,126 | 25.2% | 47,464 | 28.5% | 89,413 | 52.9% | 9,957 | 21.0% | 57,356 | 31.9% | 23,343 | 25.8% |
| South Carolina | 41 | 878,251 | 27.8% | 477,278 | 22.2% | 321,230 | 39.9% | 62,100 | 47.8% | 8,242 | 18.4% | 4,479 | 39.5% | 4,923 | 21.2% |
| Ohio | 42 | 2,211,547 | 28.4% | 1,834,255 | 28.2% | 272,523 | 31.9% | 74,192 | 39.1% | 10,252 | 7.3% | 5,183 | 34.0% | 15,142 | 21.8% |
| Alabama | 43 | 966,746 | 30.1% | 616,962 | 27.3% | 283,655 | 36.6% | 49,415 | 50.8% | 5,287 | 13.4% | 5,629 | 31.6% | 5,798 | 21.5% |
| Indiana | 44 | 1,292,414 | 30.1% | 1,063,159 | 29.4% | 111,219 | 31.6% | 99,130 | 49.0% | 8,090 | 11.4% | 3,582 | 36.0% | 7,234 | 22.1% |
| Pennsylvania | 45 | 2,667,883 | 30.4% | 2,117,656 | 29.4% | 304,613 | 37.0% | 190,018 | 47.2% | 38,772 | 15.5% | 4,029 | 34.0% | 12,795 | 20.3% |
| Tennessee | 46 | 1,338,264 | 30.9% | 1,018,212 | 29.8% | 216,691 | 33.3% | 79,594 | 51.5% | 10,267 | 15.2% | 3,975 | 33.2% | 9,525 | 26.6% |
| Mississippi | 47 | 598,324 | 31.0% | 317,294 | 26.6% | 248,423 | 38.1% | 22,470 | 48.4% | 4,830 | 25.9% | 3,244 | 39.8% | 2,062 | 19.2% |
| Kentucky | 48 | 966,042 | 32.9% | 855,104 | 32.9% | 66,732 | 32.1% | 32,357 | 46.0% | 4,728 | 13.4% | 2,164 | 34.2% | 4,957 | 22.1% |
| Arkansas | 49 | 652,332 | 33.5% | 476,456 | 31.3% | 105,763 | 39.5% | 54,973 | 57.5% | 5,695 | 19.9% | 4,206 | 31.4% | 5,239 | 26.2% |
| Louisiana | 50 | 1,019,591 | 33.8% | 573,747 | 29.9% | 367,340 | 41.9% | 50,516 | 40.7% | 12,532 | 24.4% | 8,676 | 48.7% | 6,781 | 29.3% |
| West Virginia | 51 | 508,857 | 39.2% | 485,137 | 39.7% | 14,094 | 34.3% | 4,736 | 35.7% | 605 | 6.4% | 944 | 34.4% | 3,341 | 34.0% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY





of adults with post-secondary education

Calculated as the average portion of adults with income 400% FPL or greater who have post-secondary education in DC, CO, CA, OR, and WA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

0.2%

4.1% 0.0%

2.3% 3.5%

7.5%

8.1%

1.9% 3.9% 4.8% 6.4% 11.0% 4.6% 2.8% 5.5% 7.3% 8.3% 6.0% 2.8% 5.5% 6.7% 1.3% 4.7%

7.9%

5.6%

4.0%

6.0%

9.1%

7.8% 7.8%

5.2%

6.8%

5.2%

8.3%

4.9%

10.5%

9.8%

6.8% 10.5%

9.1% 13.1%

12.3%

9.1%

9.0%

11.9%

12.3%

15.4%

19.2%

11.5%

10.9%

10.1%

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to attain post-secondary education to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | Ονε | erall | 0-999 | % FPL | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+ | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Colorado | 1 | 465,750 | 13.7% | 117,775 | 35.5% | 161,701 | 31.8% | 117,318 | 21.9% | 65,764 | 13.7% | 3,192 | 0.2 |
| Utah | 2 | 239,311 | 14.7% | 49,561 | 32.4% | 75,043 | 27.0% | 55,937 | 17.5% | 33,849 | 12.7% | 24,921 | 4.1 |
| District of Columbia | 3 | 64,318 | 14.8% | 24,899 | 42.0% | 19,609 | 38.2% | 11,974 | 26.7% | 7,837 | 17.2% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Washington | 4 | 711,062 | 15.5% | 169,326 | 35.3% | 214,883 | 31.8% | 171,898 | 23.9% | 106,891 | 16.5% | 48,063 | 2.3 |
| Minnesota | 5 | 584,901 | 16.5% | 121,448 | 39.7% | 172,674 | 34.8% | 142,740 | 25.8% | 90,102 | 16.6% | 57,936 | 3.5 |
| Alaska | 6 | 76,871 | 16.9% | 15,410 | 44.0% | 20,860 | 33.4% | 13,690 | 22.7% | 9,292 | 15.0% | 17,620 | 7.5 |
| North Dakota | 7 | 78,589 | 17.5% | 13,001 | 34.6% | 20,669 | 33.3% | 15,944 | 20.8% | 12,726 | 17.4% | 16,249 | 8.1 |
| Oregon | 8 | 463,989 | 17.5% | 118,205 | 34.2% | 159,351 | 32.5% | 107,804 | 23.3% | 59,844 | 16.1% | 18,785 | 1.9 |
| Massachusetts | 9 | 819,810 | 18.3% | 179,732 | 42.8% | 233,214 | 41.1% | 188,180 | 31.6% | 127,996 | 22.3% | 90,688 | 3.9 |
| Maryland | 10 | 738,711 | 18.9% | 138,665 | 44.1% | 194,827 | 42.6% | 177,436 | 34.6% | 124,795 | 25.2% | 102,988 | 4.8 |
| Montana | 11 | 129,377 | 19.2% | 27,319 | 35.4% | 39,665 | 31.0% | 29,914 | 23.8% | 17,268 | 16.3% | 15,210 | 6.4 |
| Wyoming | 12 | 72,225 | 19.2% | 10,838 | 34.8% | 17,431 | 30.3% | 14,794 | 24.5% | 10,918 | 18.1% | 18,245 | 11.0 |
| Kansas | 13 | 350,989 | 19.2% | 72,933 | 40.3% | 111,106 | 36.2% | 83,447 | 25.5% | 50,323 | 17.5% | 33,180 | 4.6 |
| Virginia | 14 | 1,041,174 | 19.3% | 216,956 | 45.3% | 321,744 | 42.5% | 262,980 | 33.0% | 165,814 | 22.6% | 73,680 | 2.8 |
| Nebraska | 15 | 228,855 | 19.3% | 42,492 | 39.0% | 72,306 | 36.7% | 56,370 | 26.0% | 31,970 | 16.5% | 25,718 | 5.5 |
| New Hampshire | 16 | 175,652 | 19.4% | 24,699 | 38.7% | 43,195 | 37.3% | 41,202 | 29.8% | 33,753 | 24.8% | 32,803 | 7.3 |
| Hawaii | 17 | 183,948 | 19.6% | 32,760 | 37.5% | 41,060 | 33.6% | 40,622 | 28.0% | 33,170 | 22.7% | 36,336 | 8.3 |
| Connecticut | 18 | 486,665 | 20.2% | 94,487 | 45.9% | 124,518 | 42.8% | 108,258 | 34.6% | 81,705 | 26.3% | 77,697 | 6.0 |
| Arizona | 19 | 876,465 | 20.8% | 257,850 | 44.3% | 289,938 | 36.9% | 188,341 | 25.5% | 98,708 | 16.7% | 41,628 | 2.8 |
| Idaho | 20 | 208,765 | 20.9% | 44,944 | 38.3% | 68,711 | 32.4% | 50,754 | 25.0% | 27,094 | 17.6% | 17,262 | 5.5 |
| Vermont | 21 | 91,359 | 21.3% | 16,292 | 40.7% | 26,549 | 37.5% | 22,439 | 30.0% | 14,142 | 21.5% | 11,938 | 6.7 |
| California | 22 | 5,286,150 | 21.6% | 1,415,483 | 44.8% | 1,920,481 | 43.5% | 1,196,420 | 31.7% | 621,483 | 20.7% | 132,283 | 1.3 |
| Illinois | 23 | 1,817,530 | 21.6% | 397,528 | 42.9% | 554,744 | 41.6% | 429,970 | 31.9% | 264,464 | 22.4% | 170,825 | 4.7 |
| New Jersey | 24 | 1,352,295 | 22.7% | 244,492 | 47.4% | 348,251 | 45.9% | 294,635 | 37.7% | 215,479 | 29.2% | 249,439 | 7.9 |
| South Dakota | 25 | 121,825 | 22.9% | 22,899 | 41.3% | 31,770 | 35.5% | 27,114 | 27.0% | 18,517 | 20.7% | 21,525 | 10.9 |
| Michigan | 26 | 1,496,840 | 22.9% | 354,104 | 42.8% | 431,586 | 38.2% | 357,528 | 30.6% | 218,929 | 22.1% | 134,693 | 5.6 |
| lowa | 27 | 463,724 | 23.2% | 74,115 | 41.1% | 125,907 | 38.9% | 110,404 | 30.1% | 73,006 | 21.9% | 80,292 | 10.1 |
| North Carolina | 28 | 1,518,267 | 23.8% | 401,152 | 46.8% | 522,604 | 41.7% | 330,527 | 29.2% | 175,467 | 19.3% | 88,517 | 4.0 |
| New York | 29 | 3,118,592 | 23.8% | 778,649 | 47.4% | 916,805 | 44.5% | 652,420 | 34.0% | 422,005 | 24.8% | 348,713 | 6.0 |
| Wisconsin | 30 | 899,956 | 23.8% | 154,513 | 42.8% | 245,958 | 40.4% | 216,177 | 32.1% | 143,937 | 23.4% | 139,372 | 9.1 |
| Rhode Island | 31 | 170,250 | 24.2% | 36,885 | 48.0% | 47,829 | 45.1% | 37,197 | 35.1% | 23,605 | 24.0% | 24,733 | 7.8 |
| Maine | 32 | 230,155 | 24.6% | 48,563 | 45.6% | 70,526 | 40.2% | 51,348 | 30.2% | 33,209 | 23.1% | 26,509 | 7.8 |
| New Mexico | 33 | 330,598 | 24.7% | 101,433 | 46.1% | 107,955 | 39.7% | 63,789 | 29.0% | 34,365 | 19.2% | 23,057 | 5.2 |
| Florida | 34 | 3,389,884 | 25.4% | 822,911 | 45.9% | 1,074,976 | 40.6% | 757,513 | 31.1% | 423,959 | 22.4% | 310,525 | 6.8 |
| Delaware | 35 | 155,396 | 25.4% | 26,808 | 48.2% | 38,554 | 43.6% | 34,085 | 35.4% | 24,155 | 25.9% | 31,795 | 11.5 |
| Georgia | 36 | 1,604,022 | 25.5% | 437,045 | 48.9% | 517,185 | 43.3% | 335,936 | 31.2% | 196,044 | 22.8% | 117,811 | 5.2 |
| Missouri | 37 | 1,008,860 | 25.6% | 211,258 | 44.8% | 302,389 | 41.8% | 235,661 | 32.1% | 142,189 | 23.5% | 117,363 | 8.3 |
| Texas | 38 | 4,154,056 | 25.8% | 1,094,967 | 51.8% | 1,403,299 | 46.0% | 887,966 | 33.2% | 467,343 | 21.9% | 300,481 | 4.9 |
| Nevada | 39 | 478,759 | 26.2% | 94,855 | 42.7% | 138,987 | 40.7% | 111,166 | 32.2% | 65,561 | 24.7% | 68,190 | 10.5 |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 657,711 | 27.1% | 145,218 | 46.4% | 205,856 | 42.6% | 141,905 | 31.5% | 83,841 | 23.4% | 80,890 | 9.8 |
| South Carolina | 41 | 845,980 | 27.2% | 220,560 | 51.0% | 277,520 | 44.0% | 177,680 | 31.9% | 99,549 | 22.5% | 70,671 | 6.8 |
| Ohio | 42 | 2,128,200 | 27.9% | 425,789 | 46.6% | 578,385 | 44.2% | 496,687 | 36.0% | 329,102 | 27.8% | 298,236 | 10.5 |
| Alabama | 43 | 933,134 | 29.5% | 233,139 | 50.8% | 294,561 | 46.0% | 197,856 | 35.2% | 111,819 | 25.1% | 95,759 | 9.1 |
| Indiana | 44 | 1,245,297 | 29.6% | 228,848 | 47.7% | 337,247 | 44.4% | 291,185 | 36.5% | 193,600 | 28.3% | 194,416 | 13.1 |
| Pennsylvania | 45 | 2,562,955 | 29.8% | 448,889 | 50.5% | 676,772 | 48.6% | 592,396 | 40.0% | 409,416 | 31.5% | 435,482 | 12.3 |
| Mississippi | 46 | 567,253 | 30.2% | 163,434 | 50.0% | 187,011 | 44.0% | 111,028 | 32.1% | 57,854 | 22.6% | 47,926 | 9.1 |
| Tennessee | 47 | 1,291,265 | 30.3% | 308,576 | 52.5% | 410,038 | 47.6% | 281,017 | 35.9% | 165,418 | 26.6% | 126,215 | 9.0 |
| Kentucky | 48 | 930,941 | 32.4% | 228,490 | 52.7% | 279,843 | 48.6% | 195,771 | 37.9% | 117,424 | 27.5% | 109,414 | 11.9 |
| Arkansas | 49 | 625,372 | 32.8% | 143,120 | 51.5% | 204,257 | 48.1% | 134,219 | 37.5% | 72,687 | 26.9% | 71,089 | 12.3 |
| Louisiana | 50 | 970,464 | 33.1% | 235,330 | 53.2% | 277,915 | 48.4% | 181,991 | 37.6% | 116,301 | 28.9% | 158,927 | 15.4 |
| West Virginia | 51 | 495,481 | 38.9% | 102,798 | 56.2% | 141,614 | 52.2% | 107,761 | 44.6% | 69,384 | 36.2% | 73,924 | 19.2 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE BENCHMARK BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 83%

of adults with post-secondary education

Calculated as the average portion of adults with income 400% FPL or greater who have post-secondary education in DC, CO, CA, OR, and WA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



CONNECTED YOUTH

Table shows the portion of young people age 16-24 enrolled in school or working (including military enlistment) in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
|-----------------------------------|------|---------|-------|------------------|-----------------|----------|--------|------------------|
| North Dakota | 1 | 97.7% | 98.4% | 97.3% | 96.1% | 100.0% | 89.5% | 95.9% |
| lowa | 2 | 96.1% | 96.4% | 94.8% | 92.7% | 99.0% | 97.6% | 95.8% |
| Kansas | 3 | 95.9% | 96.7% | 89.4% | 95.4% | 96.5% | 90.3% | 95.5% |
| South Dakota | 4 | 95.5% | 98.3% | 98.2% | 94 7% | 100.0% | 78.3% | 89.8% |
| Nebraska | 5 | 95.7% | 96.8% | 89.5% | 92.2% | 97.8% | 90.8% | 95.9% |
| Minnesota | 6 | 95.7% | 96.6% | 89.4% | 93.2% | 95.9% | 84.2% | 94.8% |
| Massachusetts | 7 | 95.1% | 96.3% | 93.6% | 91.6% | 97.6% | 79.9% | 94.0% |
| litah | 8 | 95.2% | 96.1% | 93.0% | 91.0% | 95.0% | 92.2% | 94.0% |
| Maino | 9 | 95.2% | 95.3% | 96.2% | 91.4% | 99.7% | 88.9% | 91.3% |
| Wisconsin | 10 | 95.270 | 95.5% | 90.27 | 91.0% | 99.7% | 80.9% | 91.370 |
| Virginia | 10 | 93.1% | 90.1% | 00.4 % | 95.9% | 90.4% | 04.7% | 91.370 05.29/ |
| Toyac | 10 | 94.9% | 90.1% | 90.0% | 95.0% | 90.0% | 94.7% | 95.5% |
| Texas | 12 | 94.7% | 95.8% | 91.5% | 94.4% | 98.1% | 95.8% | 95.1% |
| New Jersey | 13 | 94.5% | 95.6% | 90.1% | 94.1% | 97.9% | 98.8% | 94.8% |
| New York | 14 | 94.4% | 95.7% | 91.3% | 92.9% | 97.4% | 91.9% | 93.8% |
| Colorado | 15 | 94.4% | 95.2% | 90.7% | 92.7% | 97.8% | 92.6% | 93.9% |
| Oklahoma | 16 | 94.4% | 95.1% | 91.7% | 94.4% | 97.7% | 92.5% | 92.5% |
| Idaho | 17 | 94.3% | 95.0% | 84.9% | 91.6% | 94.2% | 83.3% | 97.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 18 | 94.1% | 95.5% | 88.5% | 89.7% | 97.5% | 92.2% | 94.3% |
| Missouri | 19 | 93.9% | 95.1% | 87.3% | 93.0% | 98.1% | 95.2% | 94.0% |
| Indiana | 20 | 93.9% | 94.4% | 88.9% | 93.8% | 99.7% | 98.6% | 93.7% |
| Maryland | 21 | 93.8% | 95.7% | 89.7% | 94.7% | 98.5% | 89.1% | 95.7% |
| California | 22 | 93.8% | 94.8% | 89.6% | 92.8% | 96.9% | 88.6% | 94.5% |
| Ohio | 23 | 93.7% | 94.7% | 88.1% | 92.9% | 98.7% | 92.5% | 93.2% |
| Illinois | 24 | 93.7% | 95.5% | 86.8% | 93.3% | 98.5% | 90.7% | 92.7% |
| Washington | 25 | 93.6% | 94.0% | 89.0% | 91.9% | 96.4% | 86.4% | 93.9% |
| Florida | 26 | 93.2% | 94.3% | 89.8% | 93.6% | 97.2% | 91.8% | 93.9% |
| New Mexico | 27 | 93.2% | 95.4% | 92.3% | 92.5% | 99.1% | 89.1% | 96.6% |
| Arizona | 28 | 93.1% | 95.0% | 90.8% | 92.2% | 97.9% | 83.1% | 95.1% |
| Arkansas | 29 | 93.1% | 93.7% | 90.1% | 95.5% | 91.1% | 94.2% | 91.2% |
| Oregon | 30 | 93.1% | 92.9% | 93.1% | 93.0% | 97.8% | 85.1% | 92.7% |
| Kentucky | 31 | 93.1% | 93.3% | 90.5% | 93.1% | 96.0% | 92.7% | 92.6% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 93.0% | 94.5% | 89.4% | 93.1% | 98.0% | 91.2% | 91.5% |
| Alaska | 33 | 92.9% | 95.2% | 89.3% | 95.8% | 97.7% | 83.1% | 91.7% |
| Michigan | 34 | 92.8% | 94.4% | 85.7% | 93.1% | 98.1% | 89.1% | 90.9% |
| Louisiana | 35 | 92.7% | 94.8% | 89.1% | 94.3% | 98.9% | 96.8% | 93.6% |
| Georgia | 36 | 92.5% | 94.2% | 89.2% | 93.8% | 97.8% | 94.5% | 93.7% |
| Tennessee | 37 | 92.5% | 93.6% | 88.3% | 94.6% | 98.9% | 87.5% | 89.8% |
| South Carolina | 38 | 92.1% | 94.3% | 87.8% | 93.4% | 97.7% | 84.3% | 91.9% |
| Alabama | 39 | 92.1% | 93.8% | 88.6% | 93.2% | 97.2% | 93.3% | 90.4% |
| Nevada | 40 | 91.7% | 93.0% | 86.9% | 91.7% | 93.6% | 81.1% | 89.0% |
| Mississippi | 41 | 91.6% | 93.9% | 88.7% | 91.9% | 96.3% | 87.5% | 94.7% |
| Connecticut ^a | | | 96.0% | 89.5% | 90.6% | 98.8% | | 95.2% |
| Delaware ^a | | | 95.0% | 92.0% | 93.0% | 99.6% | | 94.4% |
| District of Columbia ^a | | | 98.8% | 84.2% | 94.4% | 100.0% | | 96.8% |
| Hawaii ^a | | | 96.8% | 96.8% | 93.6% | 94.5% | | 94 5% |
| Montana ^a | | | 95.0% | | 95.0% | 91.9% | 79.4% | QR R% |
| New Hampshiro ^a | | _ | 95.1% | - Q1 50/ | 93.970 | 91.9% | | 90.070 |
| Rhode Islanda | | _ | 95.5% | 94.570 QA A0/ | 92.970 80.6% | 95.0% | _ | 90.5% |
| Vormont ^a | | | 95.5% | 94.4% 02.4% | 09.0% | 100.0% | | 03.5% |
| West Virginia | | | 95.6% | 92.4% | 94.0% | 100.0% | | 94.7% |
| West virginia | | | 95.6% | 94.0% | 95.2% | 100.0% | | 90.1% |
| | | | 90.0% | | 9n 4% | | 1/ 5/0 | 9/4% |

Data not reported by income or education due to confounding by age within the population of youth age 16-24.

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black, AI/AN, and/or Asian/PI respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE AND ETHNICITY



in school or working

Asian/PIs in five states have attained 100% connected youth rate. Data not available by income or education.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

CONNECTED YOUTH

Table shows the number of additional youth age 16-24 (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's youth population (% to Goal) who would need to obtain jobs or enroll in school to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wh | ite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|------------|--------------|----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 2,447 | 2.3% | 1,414 | 1.6% | 75 | 2.7% | 146 | 3.9% | 0 | 0.0% | 700 | 10.5% | 111 | 4.1% |
| Iowa | 2 | 15,290 | 3.9% | 11,943 | 3.6% | 896 | 5.2% | 1,996 | 7.3% | 102 | 1.0% | 22 | 2.4% | 331 | 4.2% |
| Kansas | 3 | 15,316 | 4.1% | 8,890 | 3.3% | 2,716 | 10.6% | 2,374 | 4.6% | 365 | 3.5% | 328 | 9.7% | 643 | 4.5% |
| South Dakota | 4 | 4,548 | 4.3% | 1,448 | 1.7% | 47 | 1.8% | 268 | 5.3% | 0 | 0.0% | 2,506 | 21.7% | 280 | 10.2% |
| Nebraska | 5 | 10,030 | 4.3% | 5,820 | 3.2% | 1,422 | 10.5% | 2,251 | 7.8% | 125 | 2.2% | 181 | 9.2% | 231 | 4.1% |
| Minnesota | 6 | 27,734 | 4.3% | 16,832 | 3.4% | 4,487 | 10.6% | 2,704 | 6.8% | 1,554 | 4.1% | 1,190 | 15.8% | 967 | 5.2% |
| Massachusetts | 7 | 39,516 | 4.6% | 22,098 | 3.7% | 4,446 | 6.4% | 10,000 | 8.4% | 1,393 | 2.4% | 314 | 20.1% | 1,264 | 5.6% |
| Utah | 8 | 19,679 | 4.8% | 12,332 | 3.9% | 333 | 7.0% | 5,389 | 8.6% | 682 | 5.0% | 334 | 7.8% | 610 | 6.0% |
| Maine | 9 | 7,192 | 4.8% | 6,346 | 4.7% | 118 | 3.8% | 283 | 9.0% | 9 | 0.3% | 162 | 11.1% | 275 | 8.7% |
| Wisconsin | 10 | 34,427 | 4.9% | 21,344 | 3.9% | 6,666 | 11.6% | 3,328 | 6.1% | 917 | 3.6% | 688 | 10.2% | 1,484 | 8.7% |
| Virginia | 11 | 51,996 | 5.1% | 23,545 | 3.9% | 21,184 | 9.4% | 4,418 | 4.2% | 1,105 | 2.0% | 137 | 5.3% | 1,607 | 4.7% |
| Texas | 12 | 181,805 | 5.3% | 53,146 | 4.2% | 37,917 | 8.5% | 85,039 | 5.6% | 2,367 | 1.9% | 325 | 4.2% | 3,012 | 4.9% |
| New Jersey | 13 | 55,940 | 5.5% | 23,250 | 4.4% | 15,845 | 9.9% | 14,121 | 5.9% | 1,670 | 2.1% | 11 | 1.2% | 1,043 | 5.2% |
| New York | 14 | 138,137 | 5.6% | 55,260 | 4.3% | 35,429 | 8.7% | 38,476 | 7.1% | 5,184 | 2.6% | 544 | 8.1% | 3,244 | 6.2% |
| Colorado | 15 | 35,848 | 5.6% | 19,031 | 4.8% | 2,734 | 9.3% | 12,113 | 7.3% | 423 | 2.2% | 314 | 7.4% | 1,232 | 6.1% |
| Oklahoma | 16 | 27,575 | 5.6% | 14,504 | 4.9% | 3,645 | 8.3% | 3,194 | 5.6% | 265 | 2.3% | 3,038 | 7.5% | 2,928 | 7.5% |
| Idaho | 17 | 11,470 | 5.7% | 7,846 | 5.0% | 255 | 15.1% | 2,609 | 8.4% | 190 | 5.8% | 440 | 16.7% | 129 | 2.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 18 | 93,320 | 5.9% | 51,546 | 4.5% | 24,699 | 11.5% | 13,654 | 10.3% | 1,381 | 2.5% | 107 | 7.8% | 1,933 | 5.7% |
| Missouri | 19 | 45,948 | 6.1% | 27,776 | 4.9% | 13,893 | 12.7% | 2,549 | 7.0% | 294 | 1.9% | 131 | 4.8% | 1,304 | 6.0% |
| Indiana | 20 | 51,447 | 6.1% | 36,390 | 5.6% | 9,738 | 11.1% | 3,952 | 6.2% | 55 | 0.3% | 18 | 1.4% | 1,294 | 6.3% |
| Maryland | 21 | 44,792 | 6.2% | 14,927 | 4.3% | 24,153 | 10.3% | 3,959 | 5.3% | 598 | 1.5% | 209 | 10.9% | 946 | 4.3% |
| California | 22 | 314,878 | 6.2% | 80,794 | 5.2% | 33,005 | 10.4% | 170,245 | 7.2% | 19,244 | 3.1% | 2,093 | 11.4% | 9,498 | 5.5% |
| Ohio | 23 | 89,080 | 6.3% | 57,014 | 5.3% | 24,885 | 11.9% | 4,065 | 7.1% | 354 | 1.3% | 137 | 7.5% | 2,624 | 6.8% |
| Illinois | 24 | 102,118 | 6.3% | 40,228 | 4.5% | 36,772 | 13.2% | 21,449 | 6.7% | 1,130 | 1.5% | 150 | 9.3% | 2,390 | 7.3% |
| Washington | 25 | 54,012 | 6.4% | 32,211 | 6.0% | 3,798 | 11.0% | 10,770 | 8.1% | 2,530 | 3.6% | 1,669 | 13.6% | 3,034 | 6.1% |
| Florida | 26 | 152,321 | 6.8% | 60,549 | 5.7% | 47,256 | 10.2% | 39,193 | 6.4% | 1,689 | 2.8% | 474 | 8.2% | 3,160 | 6.1% |
| New Mexico | 27 | 18,130 | 6.8% | 3,586 | 4.6% | 466 | 7.7% | 10,877 | 7.5% | 38 | 0.9% | 3,002 | 10.9% | 162 | 3.4% |
| Arizona | 28 | 57,207 | 6.9% | 19,051 | 5.0% | 3,625 | 9.2% | 25,428 | 7.8% | 487 | 2.1% | 7,529 | 16.9% | 1,087 | 4.9% |
| Arkansas | 29 | 25,251 | 6.9% | 15,550 | 6.3% | 6,827 | 9.9% | 1,441 | 4.5% | 588 | 8.9% | 116 | 5.8% | 727 | 8.8% |
| Oregon | 30 | 31,694 | 6.9% | 22,864 | 7.1% | 682 | 6.9% | 5,442 | 7.0% | 497 | 2.2% | 709 | 14.9% | 1,499 | 7.3% |
| Kentucky | 31 | 37,163 | 6.9% | 29,332 | 6.7% | 5,109 | 9.5% | 1,550 | 6.9% | 313 | 4.0% | 73 | 7.3% | 786 | 7.4% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 84,921 | 7.0% | 39,427 | 5.5% | 32,165 | 10.6% | 8,777 | 6.9% | 598 | 2.0% | 1,370 | 8.8% | 2,584 | 8.5% |
| Alaska | 33 | 7,114 | 7.1% | 2,608 | 4.8% | 447 | 10.7% | 345 | 4.2% | 158 | 2.3% | 2,783 | 16.9% | 773 | 8.3% |
| Michigan | 34 | 91,170 | 7.2% | 50,615 | 5.6% | 30,595 | 14.3% | 5,002 | 6.9% | 722 | 1.9% | 692 | 10.9% | 3,545 | 9.1% |
| Louisiana | 35 | 43,794 | 7.3% | 16,442 | 5.2% | 24,710 | 10.9% | 1,735 | 5.7% | 115 | 1.1% | 111 | 3.2% | 682 | 6.4% |
| Georgia | 36 | 95,896 | 7.5% | 36,456 | 5.8% | 48,459 | 10.8% | 8,258 | 6.2% | 992 | 2.2% | 126 | 5.5% | 1,604 | 6.3% |
| Tennessee | 37 | 58,871 | 7.5% | 35,104 | 6.4% | 19,449 | 11.7% | 2,441 | 5.4% | 119 | 1.1% | 188 | 12.5% | 1,570 | 10.2% |
| South Carolina | 38 | 47,606 | 7.9% | 19,673 | 5.7% | 23,723 | 12.2% | 2,510 | 6.6% | 208 | 2.3% | 405 | 15.7% | 1,087 | 8.1% |
| Alabama | 39 | 48,324 | 7.9% | 22,752 | 6.2% | 22,278 | 11.4% | 1,906 | 6.8% | 225 | 2.8% | 211 | 6.7% | 953 | 9.6% |
| Nevada | 40 | 27,141 | 8.3% | 9,666 | 7.0% | 4,053 | 11.1% | 9,781 | 0.3% | 1,631 | 6.4% | 604 | 18.9% | 1,405 | F 2% |
| Mississippi | 41 | 32,987 | 8.4% | 12,157 | 6.1% | 19,101 | 11.3% | 1,143 | 8.1% | 155 | 3.7% | 225 | 12.5% | 206 | 5.3% |
| Connecticut | | | | 10,824 | 4.0% | 5,547 | 10.5% | 7,746 | 9.4% | 206 | 1.2% | | | 537 | 4.6% |
| Delaware ^a | | | | 3,285 | 5.0% | 2,335 | 8.0% | 863 | 7.0% | 15 | 0.4% | | | 138 | 5.6% |
| | | | | 411 | 1.2% | 6,992 | 15.8% | 504 | 5.6% | 0 | 0.0% | | | /3 | 3.2% |
| Hawall ⁻ | | | | 1,136 | 3.2% | 158 | 3.2% | 1,411 | 6.4% | 3,499 | 5.5% | | | 2,332 | 5.5% |
| Now Hampshire | | | | 5,016 | 4.9% | | | 202 | 4.1% | 154 | 0.1% | 2,079 | 20.0% | 41 | 1.2% |
| | | | | 0,004 | 4.7% | 124 | 5.5% | 400 ว ב ว ว | 10.42 | 159 | 4.2% | | | 102 | 4.1% |
| Vormont ^a | | | | 4,414 2 077 | 4.5% | 540 104 | 5.0% 7.6% | 2,023 1FF | 6.0% | 251 | 2.0% | | | 517 | E 20/ |
| West Virginia ^a | | | | 3,077 11 009 | 4.2% | 529 | 7.0% 5.4% | 100 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 524 | 0.0% |
| Wyominga | | | | 1 9 90 | 2 20/ | 520 | 5.4% | 210 201 | 4.0% | | 0.0% | | | 534 | 2.5% |
| | | | - | 1,095 | 5.270 | | - | 521 | 5.070 | - | - | 459 | 21.170 | 52 | 2.070 |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black, AI/AN, and/or Asian/PI respondents.

HOPE Goal

of young people in school or working

Asian/Pls in five states have attained 100% connected youth rate. Data not available by income or education.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



PRESCHOOL ENROLLMENT

Table shows the portion of children age 3-4 enrolled in preschool in each state, overall and by income. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| | | | | INCOM | 1E (% FPL) | |
|----------------------|------|---------|-------|----------|------------|----|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 30 |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 70.8% | 65.6% | 66.4% | 69.5% | |
| Connecticut | 2 | 64.5% | 49.8% | 61.5% | 57.1% | |
| New Jersey | 3 | 63.3% | 57.3% | 55.2% | 55.4% | |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 59.0% | 48.2% | 47.1% | 49.5% | |
| New York | 5 | 58.1% | 50.5% | 51.4% | 54.0% | |
| Illinois | 6 | 53.8% | 45.9% | 47.0% | 49.4% | |
| Vermont | 7 | 52.7% | 35.5% | 47.5% | 53.8% | |
| New Hampshire | 8 | 52.2% | 34.5% | 43.9% | 42.7% | |
| Louisiana | 9 | 51.6% | 46.7% | 47.9% | 48.5% | |
| Mississippi | 10 | 51.2% | 53.4% | 44.2% | 48.5% | |
| Hawaii | 11 | 51.1% | 47.7% | 45.5% | 41.6% | |
| Florida | 12 | 50.6% | 43.2% | 43.2% | 48.4% | |
| Delaware | 13 | 50.2% | 35.9% | 42.0% | 46.3% | |
| Colorado | 14 | 49.7% | 39.7% | 39.5% | 45.1% | |
| Georgia | 15 | 49.4% | 39.5% | 42.7% | 48.4% | |
| Maryland | 16 | 49.2% | 40.1% | 36.0% | 42.4% | |
| California | 17 | 48.9% | 40.3% | 40.2% | 43.7% | |
| Arkansas | 18 | 48.8% | 46.9% | 42.9% | 50.2% | |
| lowa | 19 | 48.1% | 39.6% | 46.4% | 52.1% | |
| Virginia | 20 | 48.0% | 37.2% | 34.7% | 38.2% | |
| Rhode Island | 21 | 47.4% | 36.3% | 48.2% | 40.6% | |
| Michigan | 22 | 47.1% | 39.9% | 41.4% | 44.2% | |
| Pennsylvania | 23 | 47.0% | 37.4% | 36.5% | 44.3% | |
| Minnesota | 24 | 46.3% | 34.8% | 42.4% | 41.9% | |
| Nebraska | 25 | 46.0% | 36.5% | 38.6% | 50.4% | |
| Ohio | 26 | 46.0% | 38.7% | 40.0% | 43.8% | |
| Kansas | 27 | 45.7% | 42.2% | 39.6% | 43.0% | |
| South Carolina | 28 | 45.7% | 37.7% | 38.9% | 46.0% | |
| Missouri | 29 | 44.3% | 36.0% | 38.1% | 41.4% | |
| Maine | 30 | 44.3% | 34.9% | 33.9% | 51.3% | |
| North Carolina | 31 | 43.6% | 32.0% | 34.7% | 42.3% | |
| Wisconsin | 32 | 43.4% | 39.9% | 37.8% | 41.5% | |
| Alabama | 33 | 42.8% | 36.0% | 32.2% | 43.1% | |
| Kentucky | 34 | 42.8% | 35.5% | 37.5% | 39.5% | |
| Oklahoma | 35 | 42.2% | 37.5% | 39.4% | 43.0% | |
| Texas | 36 | 42.1% | 35.2% | 35.1% | 40.0% | |
| Wyoming | 37 | 42.0% | 47.6% | 36.7% | 38.4% | |
| Alaska | 38 | 41.5% | 40.4% | 41.9% | 34.8% | |
| Oregon | 39 | 41.3% | 33.0% | 31.9% | 38.3% | |
| Utah | 40 | 40.9% | 26.3% | 34.2% | 42.0% | |
| Washington | 41 | 40.8% | 30.2% | 29.0% | 35.0% | |
| Indiana | 42 | 40.7% | 33.1% | 34.0% | 40.8% | |
| South Dakota | 43 | 39.9% | 38.9% | 34.8% | 37.9% | |
| Tennessee | 44 | 39.8% | 33.5% | 32.8% | 36.8% | |
| Montana | 45 | 38.4% | 43.9% | 35.7% | 28.7% | |
| New Mexico | 46 | 37.9% | 32.5% | 32.4% | 38.3% | |
| North Dakota | 47 | 35.9% | 38.1% | 32.5% | 31.3% | |
| Arizona | 48 | 35.7% | 27.3% | 28.7% | 33.7% | |
| West Virginia | 49 | 35.3% | 30.6% | 35.6% | 32.4% | |
| Idaho | 50 | 34.7% | 31.8% | 27.5% | 33.8% | |
| Nevada | 51 | 32.5% | 26.3% | 23.7% | 31.3% | |

Data not reported by race and ethnicity due to insufficient sample sizes in 38 states.

STATE RATES BY INCOME

| 00-399% | 400+% |
|---------|-------|
| 81.7% | 93.1% |
| 63.8% | 74.7% |
| 61.2% | 72.9% |
| 59.1% | 71.2% |
| 60.9% | 70.2% |
| 56.5% | 67.3% |
| 64.4% | 65.9% |
| 50.6% | 68.3% |
| 52.5% | 65.5% |
| 49.9% | 62.0% |
| 44.5% | 66.2% |
| 58.0% | 69.4% |
| 54.6% | 67.4% |
| 55.8% | 65.1% |
| 57.6% | 69.0% |
| 47.1% | 63.0% |
| 50.0% | 67.8% |
| 51.2% | 60.9% |
| 48.8% | 53.5% |
| 45.1% | 67.4% |
| 50.6% | 57.8% |
| 50.7% | 62.2% |
| 53.5% | 61.9% |
| 44.8% | 58.4% |
| 53.2% | 54.7% |
| 51.8% | 60.8% |
| 49.0% | 58.4% |
| 55.3% | 65.9% |
| 50.6% | 61.1% |
| 53.7% | 53.8% |
| 54.4% | 67.1% |
| 44.4% | 52.6% |
| 53.7% | 61.6% |
| 46.4% | 62.3% |
| 44.9% | 52.5% |
| 44.5% | 60.9% |
| 47.6% | 42.4% |
| 35.1% | 49.0% |
| 47.2% | 61.9% |
| 46.1% | 58.6% |
| 40.5% | 62.7% |
| 45.4% | 57.9% |
| 41.3% | 48.9% |
| 51.8% | 57.1% |
| 37.6% | 45.6% |
| 45.1% | 54.7% |
| 30.5% | 43.2% |
| 43.5% | 57.0% |
| 41.6% | 40.4% |
| 39.6% | 56.7% |
| 42.4% | 50.5% |

HOPE Goal **76%**

of 3-4 year olds enrolled in preschool

Calculated as the average portion of children enrolled in preschool from households with income 400% FPL or greater in DC, CT, NJ, MA, and NY.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



PRESCHOOL ENROLLMENT

Table shows the number of additional children age 3-4 (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's child population (% to Goal) who would need to be enrolled in preschool to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-99% | % FPL | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+9 | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 826 | 5.6% | 395 | 10.8% | 320 | 10.0% | 112 | 6.9% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.09 |
| Connecticut | 2 | 9,695 | 11.9% | 3,544 | 26.6% | 2,210 | 14.9% | 2,121 | 19.3% | 1,287 | 12.6% | 532 | 1.79 |
| New Jersey | 3 | 28,938 | 13.1% | 7,332 | 19.1% | 8,438 | 21.2% | 6,098 | 21.0% | 3,944 | 15.2% | 3,127 | 3.55 |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 26,051 | 17.4% | 7,568 | 28.2% | 6,679 | 29.3% | 5,545 | 26.9% | 3,006 | 17.3% | 3,253 | 5.29 |
| New York | 5 | 86,605 | 18.4% | 29,840 | 25.9% | 24,761 | 25.0% | 15,463 | 22.4% | 7,978 | 15.5% | 8,563 | 6.2 |
| Illinois | 6 | 75,137 | 22.6% | 23,026 | 30.5% | 20,889 | 29.4% | 14,967 | 27.0% | 8,194 | 19.9% | 8,062 | 9.19 |
| Vermont | 7 | 3,117 | 23.7% | 975 | 40.9% | 1,071 | 28.9% | 569 | 22.6% | 205 | 12.0% | 297 | 10.59 |
| New Hampshire | 8 | 6,883 | 24.2% | 1,525 | 41.9% | 1,815 | 32.5% | 1,583 | 33.7% | 1,141 | 25.8% | 818 | 8.19 |
| Louisiana | 9 | 31,465 | 24.8% | 11,638 | 29.7% | 8,089 | 28.5% | 5,367 | 27.9% | 3,652 | 23.9% | 2,720 | 10.99 |
| Mississippi | 10 | 21,422 | 25.2% | 7,145 | 23.0% | 6,815 | 32.2% | 3,548 | 27.9% | 2,242 | 26.5% | 1,672 | 14.49 |
| Hawaii | 11 | 9,045 | 25.3% | 1,528 | 28.7% | 2,120 | 30.9% | 2,360 | 34.8% | 1,949 | 31.9% | 1,089 | 10.29 |
| Florida | 12 | 113,327 | 25.8% | 39,470 | 33.2% | 38,613 | 33.2% | 20,589 | 28.0% | 8,831 | 18.4% | 5,825 | 7.09 |
| Delaware | 13 | 6,075 | 26.2% | 1,963 | 40.5% | 1,639 | 34.4% | 1,213 | 30.1% | 688 | 21.8% | 572 | 9.09 |
| Colorado | 14 | 36,258 | 26.7% | 9,757 | 36.7% | 11,555 | 36.9% | 7,045 | 31.3% | 3,613 | 20.6% | 4,288 | 11.39 |
| Georgia | 15 | 75,682 | 27.0% | 30,812 | 36.9% | 22,662 | 33.7% | 12,559 | 28.0% | 5,680 | 18.8% | 3,970 | 7.49 |
| Maryland | 16 | 41,642 | 27.2% | 8,745 | 36.3% | 11,429 | 40.4% | 8,085 | 34.0% | 5,685 | 29.3% | 7,698 | 13.49 |
| California | 17 | 285,828 | 27.5% | 91,093 | 36.1% | 91,851 | 36.2% | 51,855 | 32.7% | 28,021 | 26.4% | 23,010 | 8.69 |
| Arkansas | 18 | 22,034 | 27.6% | 7,024 | 29.5% | 7,551 | 33.5% | 3,540 | 26.2% | 2,153 | 25.2% | 1,766 | 15.59 |
| Iowa | 19 | 23,071 | 28.3% | 5,688 | 36.8% | 5,637 | 30.0% | 3,944 | 24.3% | 3,912 | 27.6% | 3,890 | 22.99 |
| Virginia | 20 | 58,977 | 28.4% | 14,597 | 39.3% | 16,619 | 41.7% | 12,889 | 38.2% | 8,573 | 31.3% | 6,298 | 9.09 |
| Rhode Island | 21 | 6,589 | 29.0% | 2,006 | 40.1% | 1,299 | 28.2% | 1,301 | 35.8% | 772 | 25.8% | 1,212 | 18.69 |
| Michigan | 22 | 67,113 | 29.3% | 22,388 | 36.5% | 18,005 | 35.0% | 12,449 | 32.2% | 7,217 | 25.7% | 7,054 | 14.29 |
| Pennsylvania | 23 | 85,444 | 29.4% | 25,759 | 39.0% | 24,047 | 39.9% | 15,877 | 32.1% | 8,562 | 22.9% | 11,199 | 14.59 |
| Minnesota | 24 | 42,158 | 30.1% | 9,283 | 41.6% | 9,926 | 34.0% | 8,655 | 34.5% | 6,741 | 31.6% | 7,553 | 18.09 |
| Nebraska | 25 | 15,561 | 30.4% | 4,397 | 39.9% | 4,531 | 37.8% | 2,561 | 26.0% | 1,712 | 23.2% | 2,360 | 21.79 |
| Ohio | 26 | 87,802 | 30.4% | 29,537 | 37.7% | 24,273 | 36.4% | 15,834 | 32.7% | 9,088 | 24.6% | 9,071 | 15.69 |
| Kansas | 27 | 25,049 | 30.7% | 6,189 | 34.2% | 7,801 | 36.8% | 5,415 | 33.4% | 2,758 | 27.4% | 2,886 | 18.09 |
| South Carolina | 28 | 38,464 | 30.7% | 15,507 | 38.7% | 11,670 | 37.5% | 6,406 | 30.4% | 2,796 | 21.1% | 2,086 | 10.59 |
| Missouri | 29 | 49,259 | 32.1% | 15,760 | 40.4% | 13,923 | 38.4% | 9,834 | 35.0% | 5,033 | 25.8% | 4,709 | 15.39 |
| Maine | 30 | 8,604 | 32.1% | 2,402 | 41.5% | 2,798 | 42.5% | 1,328 | 25.1% | 843 | 22.7% | 1,233 | 22.69 |
| North Carolina | 31 | 82,699 | 32.8% | 31,358 | 44.4% | 27,149 | 41.7% | 13,722 | 34.1% | 5,886 | 22.0% | 4,584 | 9.39 |
| Wisconsin | 32 | 47,590 | 33.0% | 11,137 | 36.5% | 12,367 | 38.6% | 9,400 | 35.0% | 6,490 | 32.0% | 8,197 | 23.89 |
| Alabama | 33 | 41,226 | 33.6% | 15,510 | 40.4% | 12,456 | 44.2% | 6,920 | 33.3% | 3,172 | 22.7% | 3,169 | 14.89 |
| Kentucky | 34 | 39,047 | 33.6% | 13,982 | 40.9% | 10,613 | 38.9% | 7,268 | 36.9% | 4,230 | 30.0% | 2,955 | 14.19 |
| Oklahoma | 35 | 35,708 | 34.2% | 11,020 | 38.9% | 10,747 | 37.0% | 6,354 | 33.4% | 3,649 | 31.5% | 3,938 | 23.9 |
| Texas | 36 | 274,594 | 34.3% | 92,175 | 41.2% | 85,081 | 41.3% | 45,835 | 36.4% | 26,335 | 31.9% | 25,168 | 15.59 |
| Wyoming | 37 | 5,636 | 34.4% | 834 | 28.8% | 1,457 | 39.7% | 1,367 | 38.0% | 732 | 28.8% | 1,246 | 34.0 |
| Alaska | 38 | 7,404 | 34.9% | 1,252 | 36.0% | 1,754 | 34.5% | 1,666 | 41.7% | 1,077 | 41.3% | 1,656 | 27.49 |
| Oregon | 39 | 33,196 | 35.1% | 9,854 | 43.4% | 10,537 | 44.5% | 6,634 | 38.1% | 3,414 | 29.2% | 2,757 | 14.59 |
| Utah | 40 | 36,133 | 35.5% | 7,418 | 50.1% | 12,066 | 42.2% | 9,013 | 34.4% | 4,610 | 30.3% | 3,027 | 17.99 |
| Washington | 41 | 63,273 | 35.6% | 16,991 | 46.2% | 18,692 | 47.4% | 12,724 | 41.4% | 8,321 | 35.9% | 6,545 | 13.79 |
| Indiana | 42 | 61,693 | 35.7% | 19,127 | 43.3% | 18,529 | 42.4% | 11,229 | 35.6% | 7,189 | 31.1% | 5,620 | 18.59 |
| South Dakota | 43 | 8,484 | 36.5% | 1,868 | 37.5% | 2,075 | 41.6% | 2,185 | 38.6% | 1,204 | 35.1% | 1,151 | 27.5 |
| Tennessee | 44 | 59,478 | 36.6% | 20,427 | 42.9% | 18,267 | 43.6% | 11,268 | 39.6% | 4,320 | 24.6% | 5,196 | 19.39 |
| Montana | 45 | 9,553 | 38.0% | 1,953 | 32.5% | 2,893 | 40.7% | 2,139 | 47.7% | 1,174 | 38.8% | 1,393 | 30.89 |
| New Mexico | 46 | 21,819 | 38.5% | 7,806 | 43.9% | 6,861 | 44.0% | 3,637 | 38.1% | 1,739 | 31.3% | 1,776 | 21.79 |
| North Dakota | 47 | 7,055 | 40.5% | 911 | 38.3% | 1,522 | 43.9% | 1,454 | 45.1% | 1,420 | 45.9% | 1,748 | 33.29 |
| Arizona | 48 | 72,987 | 40.7% | 24,423 | 49.1% | 23,513 | 47.7% | 12,372 | 42.7% | 6,629 | 32.9% | 6,050 | 19.49 |
| West Virginia | 49 | 17,469 | 41.1% | 5,581 | 45.8% | 4,053 | 40.8% | 3,179 | 44.0% | 1,967 | 34.8% | 2,689 | 36.09 |
| Idaho | 50 | 20,093 | 41.7% | 4,610 | 44.6% | 7,970 | 48.9% | 4,394 | 42.6% | 1,951 | 36.8% | 1,168 | 19.7 |
| Nevada | 51 | 33,002 | 43.9% | 8,971 | 50.1% | 11,015 | 52.7% | 6,731 | 45.1% | 3,052 | 34.0% | 3,233 | 25.99 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

0.0%

1.7% 3.5%

5.2% 6.2%

9.1%

10.5% 8.1%

10.9%

14.4% 10.2% 7.0% 9.0% 11.3% 7.4% 13.4% 8.6% 15.5% 22.9% 9.0% 18.6%

14.2%

14.5%

18.0%

21.7%

15.6%

18.0%

10.5%

15.3% 22.6%

9.3%

23.8%

14.8%

14.1%

23.9%

15.5%

34.0%

27.4%

14.5% 17.9% 13.7%

18.5%

27.5% 19.3%

30.8%

21.7%

33.2%

19.4%

36.0%

19.7%

25.9%

HOPE Goal



of 3-4 year olds enrolled in preschool

Calculated as the average portion of children enrolled in preschool from households with income 400% FPL or greater in DC, CT, NJ, MA, and NY.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



EMPLOYMENT

Tables show the portion of people age 16 years and older in the labor force who are employed in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| State Hank Overall Winter Back Highan Alam/PH Alam/PH< | • · · | | | RAC | | 1 Y | | | |
|---|----------------------|----------|---------|-------|-------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|
| North Dakota 1 99.0% 99.7% 99.3% 99.6% 99.3% 99.6% 99.3% 99.6% 99.3% 99.6% 99.3% 99.6% 99.3% | State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/Pl | AI/AN | Multiracial |
| South Davida 2 99.2% 96.9% 86.4% 99.3% | | | 97.0% | 97.4% | 90.9% | 95.3% | 98.6% | 90.3% | 92.8% |
| Netriska 3 99.4% 99.7% 88.2% 99.2% 99.4% 63.6% 99.2% Wyoning 5 99.4% 95.1% 99.2% 90.8% 99.7% 88.8% Mw Hampshire 6 97.7% 93.9% 92.3% 90.6% 92.2% 89.0% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.8% 82.2% 80.2% 82.3% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% 82.4% </td <td>South Dakota</td> <td>2</td> <td>95.2%</td> <td>96.9%</td> <td>86.4%</td> <td>93.9%</td> <td>93.1%</td> <td>73.9%</td> <td>89.5%</td> | South Dakota | 2 | 95.2% | 96.9% | 86.4% | 93.9% | 93.1% | 73.9% | 89.5% |
| Jova 4 94.7% 95.1% 96.2% 91.6% 93.7% 93.8% 91.6% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 93.7% 90.7% 92.6% 83.7% 90.5% Minnecota 7 93.6% 94.6% 82.6% 91.4% 80.7% 93.3% 91.7% 92.6% 82.2% 86.2% 86.2% 83.2% 82.2% 86.2% 83.2% 82.2% 86.2% 83.2% 82.2% 86.2% 83.2% 93.3% 91.4% 83.7% 93.3% 91.4% 83.3% 82.2% 83.2% 93.3% 91.4% 93.3% 91.4% 93.3% 91.4% 93.3% 91.4% 90.3% 82.2% 82.0% 93.7% 93.3% 91.4% 90.3% 82.2% 82.0% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% 82.3% 93.7% <td>Nebraska</td> <td>3</td> <td>94.8%</td> <td>95.7%</td> <td>86.2%</td> <td>90.2%</td> <td>94.2%</td> <td>85.6%</td> <td>92.7%</td> | Nebraska | 3 | 94.8% | 95.7% | 86.2% | 90.2% | 94.2% | 85.6% | 92.7% |
| Wyotinig S 94.7% 93.7% 93.2% 90.2% | lowa | 4 | 94.7% | 95.1% | 86.2% | 91.8% | 95.4% | 88.1% | 86.1% |
| New Hampshire 6 93.7% 93.3% 92.7% 92.7% 93.6% 94.6% 82.2% 88.2% 88.2% Kansas 8 93.3% 94.6% 82.6% 91.4% 91.4% 91.3% 82.2% 88.2% Cklahoma 9 93.2% 94.3% 88.0% 93.1% 95.4% 90.3% 82.2% Utah 10 93.3% 93.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.6% 91.6% 97.7% 92.6% 82.7% 88.0% 93.2% 87.7% 92.6% 87.7% 92.6% 87.7% 92.6% 87.7% 92.6% 87.7% 92.7% 84.9% 83.7% 87.9% 86.5% 87.7% 92.7% 84.9% 83.6% 87.9% 86.5% 87.7% 92.7% 84.9% 86.6% 88.7% 92.7% 84.9% 86.6% 88.9% 94.6% 87.7% 82.2% 89.0% 86.6% | Wyoming | 5 | 94.5% | 95.1% | 93.2% | 90.8% | 93.7% | /8.6% | 89.8% |
| Minnesota 7 93.0% 94.0% 82.3% 90.0% 92.0% 82.2% 82.3% 82.3% 88.3% 82.3% <th< td=""><td>New Hampshire</td><td>6</td><td>93.7%</td><td>93.9%</td><td>93.3%</td><td>87.7%</td><td>92.6%</td><td>95.7%</td><td>90.5%</td></th<> | New Hampshire | 6 | 93.7% | 93.9% | 93.3% | 87.7% | 92.6% | 95.7% | 90.5% |
| Kansas 8 94.5% 94.6% 84.6% 91.4% 91.0% 68.7% 60.3% Oklahoma 9 92.3% 94.3% 80.0% 93.1% 95.4% 90.0% 89.2% 90.0% 88.2% 90.0% 88.2% 90.0% 88.2% 90.0% 88.2% 90.0% 88.2% 87.0% 92.6% 90.7% 82.7% 91.0% 90.7% 87.7% 77.9% 92.6% 80.7% 80.7% 87.7% 77.9% 92.6% 87.7% 92.6% 87.7% 80.0% 83.8% 90.0% 80.7% 87.7% 87.7% 87.7% 87.7% 87.7% 87.7% 87.9% 88.6% 87.7% 87.9% 88.6% 87.7% 89.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.6% 89.7% 87.9% 88.6% 89.7% 88.6% 89.6% 89.6% 89.2% 87.7% 88.6% 89.6% 89.2% 87.6% 88.6% 93.7% 88.6% 93.7% 88.6% 89.6% 92.2% 88.5% 88.6% 89.7% </td <td>Minnesota</td> <td>7</td> <td>93.6%</td> <td>94.6%</td> <td>82.3%</td> <td>90.6%</td> <td>92.6%</td> <td>82.2%</td> <td>88.2%</td> | Minnesota | 7 | 93.6% | 94.6% | 82.3% | 90.6% | 92.6% | 82.2% | 88.2% |
| Oklahoma 9 93.2% 94.3% 88.6% 93.1% 95.4% 90.3% 88.2% Virginia 11 93.0% 94.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.9% 91.6% 93.7% 88.1% 77.9% 92.2% Wisconsin 13 92.6% 93.7% 80.0% 93.7% 90.7% 89.4% 87.9% Maine 14 92.7% 92.9% 82.7% 94.8% 94.0% 87.7% 92.7% 88.6% 93.7% 89.9% 84.9% 87.9% 86.6% 93.7% 89.9% 84.9% 87.9% 86.6% 93.7% 89.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% 88.6% 89.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.8% 88.6% 93.8% 88.6% 93.8% 88.6% 93.8% 88.6% 89.7% 88.9% 88.6% 93.8% 88.6% 89.7% 88.9% | Kansas | 8 | 93.5% | 94.6% | 84.6% | 91.4% | 91.0% | 83.7% | 87.3% |
| Utah 10 93.1% 93.8% 87.5% 28.1% 91.9% 68.3% 67.0% Virginia 11 93.6% 94.3% 80.6% 93.2% 91.9% 89.7% 77.9% 92.6% Wisconsin 13 92.6% 93.3% 90.0% 88.8% 93.2% 87.7% 79.9% 82.7% Maine 14 92.7% 92.9% 82.7% 94.8% 90.9% 88.6% Colorado 16 92.3% 93.2% 85.6% 98.7% 94.0% 87.7% 86.9% Idaho 17 92.1% 92.7% 88.6% 93.7% 88.9% Maska 19 91.7% 94.4% 84.3% 93.8% 94.8% 87.7% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.4% 82.3% 94.8% 94.8% 87.5% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.4% 82.3% 95.2% 87.6% 87.9% Maska 29 91.4 | Oklahoma | 9 | 93.2% | 94.3% | 88.0% | 93.1% | 95.4% | 90.3% | 89.2% |
| Virginia 11 93.0% 94.4% 88.0% 93.2% 94.3% 91.4% 88.4% Montana 12 92.9% 93.3% 80.0% 89.3% 97.7% 97.2% Mine 14 92.7% 92.9% 82.7% 94.9% 94.9% 84.9% 87.9% Texas 15 92.4% 94.0% 87.3% 91.8% 94.0% 87.3% 92.7% 86.6% 89.3% 84.9% 87.9% Colorado 16 92.3% 92.2% 85.9% 89.6% 93.7% 87.9% 86.6% Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 87.7% 92.2% 94.5% 77.7% 86.9% Masschuetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 85.3% 86.5% 92.2% 94.5% 77.7% 86.9% Masschuetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 82.3% 94.5% 94.5% 77.7% 86.9% Masschuetts 21 91.6% 92.4% 85.3% 96.5% </td <td>Utah</td> <td>10</td> <td>93.1%</td> <td>93.8%</td> <td>87.5%</td> <td>89.1%</td> <td>91.9%</td> <td>83.3%</td> <td>87.0%</td> | Utah | 10 | 93.1% | 93.8% | 87.5% | 89.1% | 91.9% | 83.3% | 87.0% |
| Montana 12 92,2% 93,3% 91,5% 90,7% 87,7% 77,7% 92,2% Maine 14 92,7% 92,9% 92,2% 94,4% 96,9% 84,9% 87,9% Texas 15 92,4% 99,40% 87,3% 91,8% 94,0% 87,9% Colorado 16 92,3% 93,2% 85,5% 88,0% 93,7% 87,9% 86,6% Calorado 17 92,1% 92,7% 88,5% 88,7% 92,2% 80,9% 92,7% 86,6% 93,7% 87,7% 86,6% Maryland 18 91,9% 94,0% 87,7% 92,6% 94,5% 92,3% 92,2% 94,5% 94,5% 94,6% 87,7% 87,7% 86,6% 92,2% 94,5% 92,3% 86,2% 92,6% 86,3% 92,6% 94,5% 92,5% 90,6% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 87,7% 86 | Virginia | 11 | 93.0% | 94.4% | 88.0% | 93.2% | 94.9% | 91.4% | 89.4% |
| Wisconsin 13 92.8% 93.7% 80.0% 89.8% 93.2% 87.2% 87.2% Maine 15 92.4% 94.0% 87.3% 91.6% 94.0% 90.9% 84.8% 99.2% 87.9% Texas 15 92.4% 93.2% 85.9% 88.6% 89.7% 87.9% 88.6% Colorado 16 92.3% 93.2% 85.9% 88.6% 93.7% 87.9% 88.6% Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 87.7% 92.2% 94.5% 88.2% 89.9% Masachusetts 20 91.7% 94.3% 64.8% 93.2% 94.5% 88.2% 89.3% Masachusetts 20 91.7% 92.8% 88.6% 92.3% 89.3% 87.5% 89.3% 87.5% 89.3% 87.5% 87.5% 89.3% 87.5% 89.3% 87.5% 87.5% 89.3% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% < | Montana | 12 | 92.9% | 93.8% | 91.6% | 90.7% | 87.7% | 77.9% | 92.6% |
| Maine 14 92.7% 92.2% 82.7% 84.8% 96.9% 84.9% 73.9% Texas 15 92.2% 93.2% 85.9% 91.8% 94.0% 87.9% 86.6% Colorado 16 92.3% 93.2% 85.9% 88.9% 93.7% 87.9% 86.6% Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 87.7% 92.2% 94.5% 88.2% 88.0% Alaska 19 91.7% 94.3% 84.8% 93.6% 94.8% 77.7% 86.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.9% 82.2% 90.8% 92.2% 87.7% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.9% 82.2% 90.8% 92.8% 89.6% 89.92% 87.9% 87.9% Massarbusetts 20 91.5% 92.8% 88.6% 92.8% 89.6% 89.2% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.9% 87.8% 87.9%< | Wisconsin | 13 | 92.8% | 93.7% | 80.0% | 89.8% | 93.2% | 87.2% | 87.0% |
| Texas1592.4%94.0%87.3%91.8%94.0%90.9%88.8%Colorado1692.3%93.2%85.9%89.9%91.7%87.9%86.6%Maryland1891.1%94.0%87.7%92.2%94.5%88.2%89.0%Masachusetts2091.7%92.6%85.3%92.2%94.5%88.2%89.0%Masachusetts2091.7%92.6%85.3%90.6%92.3%80.9%77.7%86.9%Missouri2191.6%92.9%82.2%90.6%95.2%87.5%87.5%Pennsylvanic2391.5%92.6%88.0%90.6%95.2%87.5%85.8%Delaware2391.4%92.9%86.6%92.5%90.8%89.5%87.5%New York2591.4%92.9%86.6%89.2%90.7%84.3%87.4%Louisian2791.3%93.7%86.6%89.2%92.7%84.3%87.4%Louisian2891.2%93.7%86.6%99.2%91.9%86.5%89.5%87.8%Rhode Island2991.1%91.9%86.6%89.2%91.9%86.5%89.5%87.8%New Jersy3490.6%93.3%84.1%86.5%94.4%85.5%85.7%Kentucky3290.6%93.3%84.1%86.5%94.6%83.4%New Jersy3490.6%93.3%84.1%86.5%86.5% <t< td=""><td>Maine</td><td>14</td><td>92.7%</td><td>92.9%</td><td>82.7%</td><td>84.8%</td><td>96.9%</td><td>84.9%</td><td>87.9%</td></t<> | Maine | 14 | 92.7% | 92.9% | 82.7% | 84.8% | 96.9% | 84.9% | 87.9% |
| Colorado 16 92.3% 93.2% 85.6% 88.7% 92.7% 80.9% 87.7% Idaho 17 92.1% 92.7% 85.6% 88.7% 92.7% 80.9% 87.7% Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 83.7% 92.2% 94.5% 88.2.% 99.0% Massachusetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 85.3% 96.6% 92.3% 77.6% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.6% 82.2% 90.8% 92.3% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 88.9% Nessouri 22 91.5% 92.6% 88.4% 95.3% 92.6% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 88.9% 88.6% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 87.8% 86.6% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% | Texas | 15 | 92.4% | 94.0% | 87.3% | 91.8% | 94.0% | 90.9% | 89.6% |
| Idaho 17 92.1% 82.7% 85.6% 82.7% 92.7% 80.9% 87.4% Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 87.7% 92.6% 94.5% 88.2% 89.0% Maska 19 91.7% 94.3% 84.5% 93.6% 94.2% 87.7% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.9% 82.24 90.5.3% 92.6% 87.3% 87.6% 87.0% Pennsylvania 22 91.5% 92.6% 88.0% 90.6% 92.2% 87.5% 84.9% Arkansas 24 91.4% 92.2% 88.0% 90.6% 92.4% 83.3% 67.8% New York 25 91.4% 92.9% 86.6% 89.2% 92.7% 84.3% 67.8% Louisiana 27 91.3% 93.7% 86.6% 99.2% 81.6% 87.4% Louisiana 28 91.2% 82.0% 91.4% 87.8% 86.0% Rhode Island 29< | Colorado | 16 | 92.3% | 93.2% | 85.9% | 89.6% | 93.7% | 87.9% | 86.6% |
| Maryland 18 91.9% 94.0% 87.7% 92.2% 94.5% 88.2% 99.0% Alaska 19 91.7% 94.3% 84.8% 93.6% 94.4% 77.7% 86.9% Massachusetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 85.3% 86.6% 92.3% 77.7% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.9% 82.2% 99.8% 99.2% 87.6% 67.0% Pennsylvania 22 91.5% 92.6% 83.0% 90.6% 99.2% 87.5% 84.9% Arkansas 24 91.4% 92.8% 84.5% 92.5% 90.8% 87.8% New York 25 91.4% 92.9% 85.5% 92.6% 92.4% 85.1% 67.2% Louisiana 27 91.3% 93.7% 86.1% 91.4% 87.8% 67.0% Ohio 30 90.6% 92.2% 83.1% 85.5% 92.5% 85.1% 65.7% Connecticut 31 | Idaho | 17 | 92.1% | 92.7% | 85.6% | 88.7% | 92.7% | 80.9% | 87.4% |
| Alaska 19 917.7% 94.3% 84.8% 93.6% 94.8% 77.7% 66.9% Massachusetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 83.53% 80.6% 92.3% 77.6% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.9% 82.2% 90.8% 92.3% 87.6% 87.0% Pennsylvania 22 91.5% 92.6% 88.0% 99.0% 95.2% 87.5% 84.9% Arkansas 24 91.4% 92.9% 85.9% 92.6% 90.8% 87.5% 84.5% New York 25 91.4% 92.9% 85.9% 99.6% 92.4% 85.1% 87.2% Louisiana 27 91.3% 91.9% 86.6% 89.2% 92.7% 84.3% 86.6% Connecticut 30 90.7% 82.0% 80.0% 94.3% 87.8% 86.6% 94.4% 84.4% 83.4% Connecticut 31 90.7% 83.6% 99.0% 85.5% 85.5% | Maryland | 18 | 91.9% | 94.0% | 87.7% | 92.2% | 94.5% | 88.2% | 89.0% |
| Massachusetts 20 91.7% 92.6% 85.3% 96.6% 92.3% 77.6% 88.9% Missouri 21 91.6% 92.2% 82.23 90.8% 95.2% 87.6% 87.6% Pennsylvania 22 91.5% 92.8% 88.0% 90.6% 95.2% 87.5% 84.9% Arkansa 24 91.4% 92.8% 84.5% 92.5% 90.6% 89.6% 87.8% New York 25 91.4% 92.9% 85.9% 89.6% 92.4% 85.1% 87.2% Washington 26 91.3% 93.7% 86.6% 89.2% 92.7% 84.3% 87.4% Louisiana 27 91.3% 93.7% 86.6% 89.2% 91.9% 86.7% 91.9% 86.7% 91.9% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% 87.8% | Alaska | 19 | 91.7% | 94.3% | 84.8% | 93.6% | 94.8% | 77.7% | 86.9% |
| Missouri2191.6%92.9%82.2%90.8%95.2%87.6%87.0%Pensylvania2291.5%92.6%88.0%90.6%95.2%87.5%88.9%Arkansas2491.5%92.6%88.0%90.6%95.2%87.5%88.9%Arkansas2491.4%92.9%85.9%92.6%90.6%92.4%85.1%87.2%Washington2691.3%93.7%86.6%89.2%92.4%84.3%87.4%Louisiana2791.3%93.7%86.1%91.6%94.4%85.0%87.6%Indiana2891.1%92.2%82.0%89.0%94.3%86.8%87.6%Ohio3090.0%92.2%81.2%88.5%91.6%86.5%87.6%Connecticut3190.0%92.2%83.1%86.5%92.5%86.3%88.5%New Mexico3390.6%91.3%84.1%88.5%93.5%86.3%88.9%New Jersey3590.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%93.5%86.3%84.8%Ilinois3790.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%93.5%86.3%84.8%New Jersey3690.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%93.5%86.3%84.8%Ilinois3790.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%93.5%86.3%84.8%Ilinois3790.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%93.5%86.3%84.8% </td <td>Massachusetts</td> <td>20</td> <td>91.7%</td> <td>92.6%</td> <td>85.3%</td> <td>86.6%</td> <td>92.3%</td> <td>77.6%</td> <td>88.9%</td> | Massachusetts | 20 | 91.7% | 92.6% | 85.3% | 86.6% | 92.3% | 77.6% | 88.9% |
| Pennsylvania 22 91.5% 92.6% 83.0% 90.6% 92.8% 88.9% 89.3% 85.8% Delaware 23 91.5% 92.6% 83.0% 90.6% 95.2% 87.5% 84.9% Arkansas 24 91.4% 92.6% 85.5% 69.6% 92.5% 90.8% 87.5% 87.5% New York 25 91.4% 92.9% 85.6% 92.2% 90.8% 87.8% 87.8% Mashington 26 91.3% 93.7% 86.1% 91.6% 94.4% 87.8% 87.8% Indiana 27 91.3% 92.2% 82.0% 69.9% 94.3% 87.8% 87.8% Ohio 30 90.6% 91.3% 86.5% 91.9% 86.5% 87.5% 87.7% Kentucky 31 90.6% 91.3% 86.5% 99.0% 88.5% 99.5% 86.5% 88.8% 93.3% 85.5% 87.7% Kentucky 33 90.6% 91.7% </td <td>Missouri</td> <td>21</td> <td>91.6%</td> <td>92.9%</td> <td>82.2%</td> <td>90.8%</td> <td>95.2%</td> <td>87.6%</td> <td>87.0%</td> | Missouri | 21 | 91.6% | 92.9% | 82.2% | 90.8% | 95.2% | 87.6% | 87.0% |
| Delaware23915.%92.6%88.6%90.6%95.2%87.5%84.4%Arkansas2491.4%92.9%84.5%92.5%90.8%89.6%89.2%87.8%New York2591.4%92.9%85.9%89.6%92.4%88.3%87.4%Uousiana2791.3%91.9%86.6%89.2%94.4%89.7%87.8%Indiana2891.1%99.2%82.0%89.0%94.4%89.7%87.8%Indiana2991.1%91.9%86.5%91.6%94.3%85.0%87.9%Choic3090.0%92.2%83.1%86.6%94.3%85.0%87.9%Choic3090.0%92.2%83.1%86.6%94.3%85.1%85.7%Kentucky3290.0%92.2%83.1%86.6%92.5%85.1%85.7%New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%89.3%91.1%86.5%85.7%Arizona3590.4%91.7%83.8%89.9%93.5%85.5%85.5%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%92.7%83.4%90.4%93.5%86.5%84.4%North Carolina3989.9%90.7%83.4%99.4%86.5%86.5%86.5%Oregon4085.5%91.5%83.4%90.5%93.3%86.5%86.5%86. | Pennsylvania | 22 | 91.5% | 92.8% | 82.4% | 85.3% | 92.8% | 89.3% | 85.8% |
| Arkansas2491.4%92.8%84.5%92.5%90.8%88.96%87.8%New York2591.4%92.9%85.9%89.6%92.4%85.1%87.2%Washington2691.3%91.9%86.6%89.2%92.7%84.3%87.4%Louisiana2791.3%93.7%86.6%89.2%94.4%88.7%87.8%Indiana2891.1%91.9%86.2%89.0%94.4%88.7%86.0%Rhode Island2991.1%91.9%86.2%85.9%91.9%85.0%87.7%Connecticut3190.7%92.2%81.2%86.6%94.8%85.5%85.1%85.7%Kentucky3290.6%91.3%84.1%88.5%95.0%86.3%89.9%New Jersey3490.7%93.8%99.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%Arizona3590.4%91.7%83.8%89.2%93.3%77.9%86.6%Ininois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.4%North Carolina3889.9%91.5%83.4%89.3%86.5%84.4%84.4%North Carolina3998.5%91.5%83.4%93.0%86.5%84.4%Origon4089.5%91.5%83.4%90.5%93.3%86.5%84.4%Corigina4189.9%91.7%82.4%90.7%92.4%94.6%84.4%85.5% <td>Delaware</td> <td>23</td> <td>91.5%</td> <td>92.6%</td> <td>88.0%</td> <td>90.6%</td> <td>95.2%</td> <td>87.5%</td> <td>84.9%</td> | Delaware | 23 | 91.5% | 92.6% | 88.0% | 90.6% | 95.2% | 87.5% | 84.9% |
| New York 25 991,4% 92.9% 85.9% 89.6% 92.4% 85.1% 87.2% Washington 26 91.3% 91.9% 86.6% 89.2% 92.7% 84.3% 87.4% Louisiana 27 91.3% 93.7% 86.1% 91.6% 94.4% 89.7% 87.8% Indiana 28 91.2% 92.2% 88.0% 94.3% 87.8% 86.0% Rhode Island 29 91.1% 91.9% 86.2% 89.5% 91.9% 85.0% 87.0% Ohio 30 90.6% 92.2% 83.1% 86.5% 94.8% 84.8% 83.4% Connecticut 31 90.0% 91.3% 86.5% 91.9% 86.5% 88.5% | Arkansas | 24 | 91.4% | 92.8% | 84.5% | 92.5% | 90.8% | 89.6% | 87.8% |
| Washington2691.3%91.9%86.6%89.2%92.7%84.3%87.4%Louisiana2791.3%93.7%86.1%91.6%94.4%89.7%87.8%Indiana2891.1%91.2%82.0%89.0%94.3%87.8%86.0%Rhode Island2991.1%91.2%82.0%89.0%94.3%87.8%86.0%Ohio3090.0%92.2%81.2%85.6%91.9%84.4%88.8%Connecticut3190.7%92.2%83.1%86.5%99.0%83.5%85.7%Kentucky3290.6%91.3%84.1%86.5%99.0%83.5%85.7%85.7%New Mexico3190.7%93.0%90.7%88.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%Arizona3590.4%91.7%88.8%93.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%Arizona3590.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%83.8%90.4%95.5%86.5%84.4%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.4%90.4%93.0%81.1%85.2%Arizonia4089.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%86.2%Alabama3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%86.5%Cergoni4089.5%91.6%83.4%89.4%91.6%86.5%86.5% </td <td>New York</td> <td>25</td> <td>91.4%</td> <td>92.9%</td> <td>85.9%</td> <td>89.6%</td> <td>92.4%</td> <td>85.1%</td> <td>87.2%</td> | New York | 25 | 91.4% | 92.9% | 85.9% | 89.6% | 92.4% | 85.1% | 87.2% |
| Louisian 27 91.3% 93.7% 86.1% 91.6% 94.4% 89.7% 87.8% Indiana 28 91.2% 92.2% 82.0% 89.0% 94.3% 87.8% 86.0% Rhode Island 29 91.1% 91.9% 86.2% 85.9% 91.9% 85.0% 87.0% Ohio 30 90.8% 92.2% 81.2% 88.6% 94.8% 84.1% 85.7% 85.7% 85.7% Connecticut 31 90.7% 92.2% 81.4% 88.5% 92.5% 80.3% 83.5% New Mexico 33 90.6% 91.3% 84.1% 88.5% 95.0% 80.3% 89.9% New Jersey 34 90.4% 91.7% 83.8% 89.2% 93.5% 85.5% 85.7% 85.7% Arizona 35 90.4% 91.7% 83.8% 89.2% 93.5% 86.5% 84.5% Alabama 38 89.98 91.4% 83.4% 89.4% 84.5 | Washington | 26 | 91.3% | 91.9% | 86.6% | 89.2% | 92.7% | 84.3% | 87.4% |
| Indiana2891.2%92.2%82.0%89.0%94.3%87.8%86.0%Rhode Island2991.1%91.9%86.2%85.9%91.9%85.0%87.0%Ohio3090.8%92.2%81.2%88.6%94.3%84.8%83.4%Connecticut3190.0%92.2%83.1%86.5%92.5%80.3%85.7%Kentucky3290.0%91.3%84.1%88.5%99.5%80.3%83.5%New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%89.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%New Jersey3490.4%91.7%83.8%89.2%93.5%85.5%85.7%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3790.1%92.3%77.6%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Illinois3790.4%91.7%83.9%90.4%95.5%85.1%84.4%Alabama3889.5%91.5%83.4%90.4%95.5%86.4%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.3%86.5%84.4%Calfornia4189.3%90.7%83.8%90.5%86.6%86.6%86.6%Ceorgia4289.2%91.6%83.4%90.5%86.5%86.6%86.6%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.8%89.2%91.6%86.5%86.6%< | Louisiana | 27 | 91.3% | 93.7% | 86.1% | 91.6% | 94.4% | 89.7% | 87.8% |
| Rhode Island2991.1%91.9%86.2%85.9%91.9%85.0%87.0%Ohio3090.8%92.2%81.2%88.6%94.8%84.8%83.4%Connecticut3190.0%92.2%83.1%86.5%92.5%65.1%85.7%Kentucky3290.6%91.3%84.1%88.5%95.0%80.3%83.5%New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%89.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%New Jersey3490.4%91.7%83.8%88.2%93.5%85.5%85.7%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%91.7%83.8%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%North Carolina3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.6%94.6%84.4%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.8%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%Ceorgia4189.3%90.7%82.2%84.4%91.6%85.5%85.5%South Carolina4389.2%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.6%84.4%85.5%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.6%84.4%85.5%South Carolina4389.2%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.6%84.4% | Indiana | 28 | 91.2% | 92.2% | 82.0% | 89.0% | 94.3% | 87.8% | 86.0% |
| Ohio3090.8%92.2%81.2%88.6%94.8%84.8%88.8%Connecticut3190.7%92.2%83.1%86.5%92.5%85.1%85.7%Kentucky3290.6%91.3%84.1%88.5%95.0%80.3%83.5%New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%89.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%New Jersey3490.4%91.7%83.8%89.2%93.5%85.5%85.7%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Ilinois3790.4%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%86.1%84.8%Alabama3889.9%91.5%88.4%99.0%84.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%88.4%99.0%84.6%84.4%California4189.3%90.7%88.2%90.6%86.5%88.6%Georgia4289.2%91.7%88.8%90.5%86.5%88.5%South Carolina4389.9%90.7%88.4%91.6%86.5%South Carolina4389.9%90.7%88.2%90.7%88.5%87.6%South Carolina4389.9%90.7%88.2%90.7%88.5%88.7%88.5%South Carolina4389.9%90.7%88.2%90.7%88.6%89.2%87.6%88.5%South Carolina4588.5%90.7% | Rhode Island | 29 | 91.1% | 91.9% | 86.2% | 85.9% | 91.9% | 85.0% | 87.0% |
| Connecticut 31 90.7% 99.2% 83.1% 86.5% 92.5% 88.1% 88.7% Kentucky 32 90.6% 91.3% 84.1% 88.5% 95.0% 80.3% 83.5% New Mexico 33 90.6% 93.0% 90.7% 89.3% 91.1% 82.6% 89.9% New Jersey 34 90.4% 91.7% 83.8% 89.2% 93.5% 85.5% 85.7% Arizona 35 90.4% 92.0% 85.8% 88.8% 93.3% 77.9% 86.6% Tennessee 36 90.4% 91.7% 84.5% 90.4% 95.5% 86.3% 84.8% North Carolina 39 89.5% 91.5% 83.4% 89.4% 93.0% 84.4% Alabama 38 89.8% 91.5% 83.4% 89.4% 93.0% 86.5% 84.4% California 41 89.3% 90.7% 82.2% 87.4% 91.6% 82.2% 86.5% 85.5% | Ohio | 30 | 90.8% | 92.2% | 81.2% | 88.6% | 94.8% | 84.8% | 83.4% |
| Kentucky3290.6%91.3%84.1%88.5%95.0%80.3%83.5%New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%89.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%New Jersey3490.4%91.7%83.8%89.2%93.3%85.5%85.5%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.6%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.3%86.5%84.0%Oregon4089.5%89.9%82.0%88.4%91.8%82.2%86.2%Georgia4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%85.0%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.8%90.5%92.4%84.4%Mississippi4588.9%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.4%Mississippi4588.9%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.4%Michigan4688.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%76.9%87.3%Nevada4788.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4688.5%90.4% | Connecticut | 31 | 90.7% | 92.2% | 83.1% | 86.5% | 92.5% | 85.1% | 85.7% |
| New Mexico3390.6%93.0%90.7%88.3%91.1%82.8%89.9%New Jersey3490.4%91.7%83.8%89.2%93.5%85.5%85.7%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%Oregon4089.5%99.9%82.0%88.4%91.8%82.2%86.2%Georgia4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%86.2%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%Mississippi4588.9%92.2%83.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%Michigan4688.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4788.2%99.2%81.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.2%87.3%90.7%95.2%83.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.2%87.3%90.7%95.2%83.7%Vermont ^a < | Kentucky | 32 | 90.6% | 91.3% | 84.1% | 88.5% | 95.0% | 80.3% | 83.5% |
| New Jersey3490.4%91.7%88.8%89.2%93.5%88.5%85.5%Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3988.5%91.5%88.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.4%Oregon4089.5%91.5%88.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.4%California4189.3%90.7%88.2%93.3%86.5%84.4%Georgia4289.2%91.8%83.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.5%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%88.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.5%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%93.3%87.6%85.5%Mississippi4588.9%91.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Nevada4788.8%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4788.5%89.5%81.4%87.0%90.1%80.7%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%Vertont ^a <td>New Mexico</td> <td>33</td> <td>90.6%</td> <td>93.0%</td> <td>90.7%</td> <td>89.3%</td> <td>91.1%</td> <td>82.8%</td> <td>89.9%</td> | New Mexico | 33 | 90.6% | 93.0% | 90.7% | 89.3% | 91.1% | 82.8% | 89.9% |
| Arizona3590.4%92.0%85.8%88.8%93.3%77.9%86.6%Tennessee3690.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%77.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.4%Oregon4089.5%89.9%82.0%88.4%91.8%86.2%84.4%California4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%86.2%Georgia4289.2%91.7%82.9%90.7%93.3%87.6%85.5%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Ibrida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Mississippi4588.9%90.2%83.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%84.3%Nevada4788.2%89.5%81.4%87.0%90.1%80.7%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%West Virginia ^a 92.2%87.3%90.7%93.5%85.4% | New Jersev | 34 | 90.4% | 91.7% | 83.8% | 89.2% | 93.5% | 85.5% | 85.7% |
| Tennessee3690.4%91.7%84.5%90.4%95.5%86.3%84.8%Illinois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%Oregon4089.5%89.9%82.0%88.4%91.8%82.4%84.1%California4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%86.2%Georgia4289.2%91.8%83.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.0%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.9%90.7%92.6%76.9%87.3%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Mississippi4588.9%92.2%83.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%84.3%Michigan4688.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4788.2%89.5%81.4%87.0%90.1%80.7%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%West Virginia ^a 92.2%87.3%90.7%93.5%85.4% | Arizona | 35 | 90.4% | 92.0% | 85.8% | 88.8% | 93.3% | 77.9% | 86.6% |
| Illinois3790.1%92.3%78.7%88.8%93.0%81.1%85.2%Alabama3889.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%North Carolina3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%Oregon4089.5%89.9%82.0%88.4%91.8%82.4%84.1%California4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%86.2%Georgia4289.2%91.8%83.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.0%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%85.0%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%90.7%92.6%76.9%87.3%Mississippi4588.8%90.2%83.4%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Nevada4788.2%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Vermont ³ 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%West Virginia ³ 92.2%87.3%90.7%93.5%83.7% | Tennessee | 36 | 90.4% | 91.7% | 84.5% | 90.4% | 95.5% | 86.3% | 84.8% |
| Alabama3880.8%91.9%83.9%90.8%94.6%87.6%84.4%Alabama3989.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%Oregon4089.5%91.5%83.4%89.4%93.0%86.5%84.0%California4189.3%90.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%82.2%86.2%Georgia4289.2%91.8%83.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.0%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.2%87.4%91.6%76.9%85.0%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.6%76.9%87.3%Kississippi4588.8%90.2%83.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%84.3%Michigan4688.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4788.2%89.5%81.4%87.0%90.1%80.7%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%West Virginia ^a 92.2%87.3%90.7%93.5%83.7% | Illinois | 37 | 90.1% | 92.3% | 78.7% | 88.8% | 93.0% | 81.1% | 85.2% |
| North Carolina 39 89.5% 91.5% 83.4% 89.4% 93.0% 86.5% 84.0% Oregon 40 89.5% 89.9% 82.0% 88.4% 91.8% 82.4% 84.1% California 41 89.3% 90.7% 82.2% 87.4% 91.6% 82.2% 86.5% Georgia 42 89.2% 91.8% 83.8% 90.5% 93.3% 87.6% 85.0% South Carolina 43 89.2% 91.7% 82.9% 90.7% 92.6% 76.9% 87.3% Florida 44 89.1% 90.7% 82.8% 89.2% 92.4% 84.1% 86.5% Mississippi 45 88.9% 92.2% 83.4% 87.7% 94.6% 84.4% 84.3% Nichigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% 84.7% | Alabama | 38 | 89.8% | 91.9% | 83.9% | 90.8% | 94.6% | 87.6% | 84.4% |
| Oregon 40 89.5% 89.9% 82.0% 88.4% 91.8% 82.4% 84.1% California 41 89.3% 90.7% 82.2% 87.4% 91.6% 82.2% 86.2% Georgia 42 89.2% 91.8% 83.8% 90.5% 93.3% 87.6% 85.0% South Carolina 43 89.2% 91.7% 82.9% 90.7% 92.6% 76.9% 87.3% Florida 44 89.1% 90.7% 82.8% 89.2% 92.4% 84.1% 86.5% Mississippi 45 88.9% 92.2% 83.4% 87.7% 94.6% 84.4% 84.3% Michigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% 84.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West V | North Carolina | 39 | 89.5% | 91.5% | 83.4% | 89.4% | 93.0% | 86.5% | 84.0% |
| California A1 80.000 00.000< | Oregon | 40 | 89.5% | 89.9% | 82.0% | 88.4% | 91.8% | 82.4% | 84.1% |
| Georgia4289.2%91.8%83.8%90.5%93.3%87.6%85.0%South Carolina4389.2%91.7%82.9%90.7%92.6%76.9%87.3%Florida4489.1%90.7%82.8%89.2%92.4%84.1%86.5%Mississippi4588.9%92.2%83.4%87.7%94.6%84.4%84.3%Michigan4688.5%90.4%77.0%86.5%92.9%87.4%80.7%Nevada4788.2%89.5%81.4%87.0%90.1%80.7%84.7%Vermont ^a 93.8%92.7%91.2%95.2%83.7%West Virginia ^a 92.2%87.3%90.7%93.5%85.4% | California | 41 | 89.3% | 90.7% | 82.2% | 87.4% | 91.6% | 82.2% | 86.2% |
| South Carolina 43 89.2% 91.7% 82.9% 90.7% 92.6% 76.9% 87.3% Florida 44 89.1% 90.7% 82.8% 89.2% 92.4% 84.1% 86.5% Mississippi 45 88.9% 92.2% 83.4% 87.7% 94.6% 84.4% 84.3% Michigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% 84.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 91.2% 90.1% 80.7% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 93.2% 90.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% | Georgia | 42 | 89.2% | 91.8% | 83.8% | 90.5% | 93.3% | 87.6% | 85.0% |
| Social calculation 4-5 605.2% 011.7% 62.3% 56.7% 51.6% 11.5% 61.3% Florida 44 89.1% 90.7% 82.8% 89.2% 92.4% 84.1% 86.5% Mississippi 45 88.9% 92.2% 83.4% 87.7% 94.6% 84.4% 84.3% Michigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% 84.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | South Carolina | 43 | 89.2% | 91.0% | 82.9% | 90.7% | 92.6% | 76.9% | 87.3% |
| Mississippi 45 88.9% 92.2% 83.4% 87.7% 94.6% 84.4% 84.3% Michigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | Florida | 45 | 89.1% | 90.7% | 82.8% | 89.2% | 92.0% | 84 1% | 86.5% |
| Michigan 46 88.5% 90.4% 77.0% 86.5% 92.9% 87.4% 80.7% Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | Mississippi | 45 | 88.9% | 92.2% | 83.4% | 87.7% | 94.6% | 84.4% | 84.3% |
| Nevada 47 88.2% 89.5% 81.4% 87.0% 90.1% 80.7% 84.7% Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | Michigan | 46 | 88.5% | 90.4% | 77 0% | 86.5% | 92 9% | 87 /% | 80.7% |
| Vermont ^a 93.8% 92.7% 91.2% 95.2% 83.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | Nevada | 40 ⊿7 | 88.2% | 80.5% | 81 A% | 87.0% | 90.1% | 80.7% | 8/ 7% |
| Verificitit 35.0% 51.2% 51.2% 53.2% 65.7% West Virginia ^a 92.2% 87.3% 90.7% 93.5% 85.4% | Vormont ^a | +/ | 00.270 | 03.9% | 01.4% | 01.0% | 90.1% | 00.770 | 82 70/ |
| vyest virginia | West Virginia | | | 95.0% | 92.1% | 91.2% | 95.2% | | 05.7% |
| District of Columbia ^a | District of Columbia | | | 92.2% | 07.5% | 90.7% | 95.5% | | 00.4% |
| Hawaii ^a | Hawaiia | | | 90.5% | 88.1% | 90.2% | 97.0% | | 92.170 |

| | INCOME (% FPL) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|----------------|---------|--------|------------------|----------|----------|-------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% | | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 1 | 96.8% | 88.8% | 96.0% | 97.1% | 97.7% | 98.6% | | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 2 | 95.3% | 79.2% | 93.1% | 96.3% | 97.8% | 98.2% | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 3 | 94.9% | 80.0% | 90.8% | 95.6% | 97.4% | 98.1% | | | | | | |
| owa | 4 | 94.8% | 79.4% | 91.9% | 95.0% | 96.4% | 98.0% | | | | | | |
| Nyoming | 5 | 94.5% | 84.2% | 90.2% | 93.3% | 95.5% | 97.3% | | | | | | |
| /ermont | 6 | 93.7% | 73.3% | 88.8% | 94.7% | 96.2% | 97.1% | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 7 | 93.7% | 69.0% | 88.8% | 93.2% | 94.6% | 96.9% | | | | | | |
| Vinnesota | 8 | 93.7% | 75.1% | 89.5% | 93.9% | 95.0% | 97.0% | | | | | | |
| Kansas | 9 | 93.6% | 76.9% | 89.7% | 94.3% | 95.7% | 97.4% | | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 10 | 93.5% | 76.1% | 89.5% | 91.7% | 94.6% | 96.8% | | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 11 | 93.3% | 76.2% | 90.9% | 94.0% | 95.9% | 97.5% | | | | | | |
| Jtah | 12 | 93.2% | 77.3% | 90.3% | 94.2% | 95.2% | 96.6% | | | | | | |
| /irginia | 13 | 93.1% | 71.2% | 88.2% | 92.8% | 94.8% | 96.8% | | | | | | |
| Montana | 14 | 93.0% | 75.3% | 91.6% | 94.3% | 94.7% | 97.5% | | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 15 | 92.8% | 73.8% | 88.1% | 92.7% | 95.1% | 97.1% | | | | | | |
| Maine | 16 | 92.7% | 71.7% | 88.6% | 93.6% | 95.1% | 97.3% | | | | | | |
| Гехаз | 17 | 92.4% | 76.4% | 89.3% | 92.9% | 94.7% | 96.7% | | | | | | |
| Colorado | 18 | 92.4% | 74.0% | 87.8% | 91.8% | 94.3% | 96.4% | | | | | | |
| daho | 19 | 92.2% | 76.1% | 90.6% | 93.1% | 94.7% | 96.5% | | | | | | |
| West Virginia | 20 | 92.1% | 71.7% | 88.7% | 93.0% | 95.0% | 97.1% | | | | | | |
| Marvland | 21 | 91.9% | 65.7% | 84.3% | 89.6% | 92.6% | 96.1% | | | | | | |
| Alaska | 22 | 91.7% | 63.5% | 86.5% | 92.4% | 93.3% | 95.8% | | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 23 | 91.7% | 66.9% | 84.6% | 89.5% | 92.4% | 95.7% | | | | | | |
| Missouri | 24 | 91.7% | 69.4% | 87.6% | 92.8% | 94 7% | 96.9% | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 25 | 91.6% | 67.2% | 85.7% | 91.3% | 94.0% | 96.2% | | | | | | |
| Delaware | 26 | 91.5% | 70.2% | 87.0% | 90.2% | 93.3% | 95.4% | | | | | | |
| New York | 27 | 91.5% | 69.4% | 86.0% | 90.7% | 92.9% | 95.9% | | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 28 | 91.5% | 70.7% | 89.0% | 93.0% | 95.4% | 97.3% | | | | | | |
| Washington | 29 | 91.5% | 69.7% | 86.8% | 90.7% | 93.0% | 95.9% | | | | | | |
| ouisiana | 30 | 91.4% | 70.4% | 88.0% | 92.6% | 94.9% | 97.0% | | | | | | |
| ndiana | 31 | 91.2% | 68.5% | 86.8% | 92.1% | 94.5% | 96.6% | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 37 | 91.276 | 65.9% | 85.1% | 89.9% | 93.0% | 95.8% | | | | | | |
| Thio | 32 | 90.9% | 66.5% | 86.0% | 91.9% | 94.2% | 96.6% | | | | | | |
| Now Movico | 34 | 90.7% | 72.6% | 87.9% | 92.2% | 94.276 | 96.5% | | | | | | |
| Contucky | 25 | 90.7% | 68.1% | 86.8% | 92.276 | 94.1% | 96.7% | | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 26 | 90.7% | 62.0% | 82.0% | 97.976 | 01 49/ | 90.7% | | | | | | |
| Arizona | 27 | 90.7% | 60.4% | 02.0% | 01.3% | 91.4% | 95.2% | | | | | | |
| | 20 | 90.3% | 66.8% | 07.270 86.49/ | 91.4% | 95.770 | 90.2% | | | | | | |
| | 20 | 90.3% | 62.49/ | 00.4 /0 | 92.3% | 94.5% | 90.0% | | | | | | |
| New Jersey | 39 | 90.4% | 64.2% | 02.3% 94.19/ | 07.3% | 90.3% | 94.9% | | | | | | |
| | 40 | 90.1% | 64.3% | 05.7% | 09.0% | 92.5% | 95.8% | | | | | | |
| Alabama | 41 | 89.8% | 64.9% | 85.7% | 92.0% | 94.3% | 96.4% | | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 42 | 89.6% | 65.6% | 85.2% | 91.1% | 93.5% | 96.2% | | | | | | |
| Dregon | 43 | 89.5% | 68.9% | 84.9% | 90.4% | 92.9% | 95.7% | | | | | | |
| | 44 | 89.3% | 66.8% | 84.1% | 88.7% | 91.3% | 95.0% | | | | | | |
| Jeorgia | 45 | 89.3% | 65.9% | 84.9% | 90.6% | 93.2% | 95.9% | | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 46 | 89.3% | 65.0% | 84.8% | 90.9% | 94.2% | 96.3% | | | | | | |
| Jistrict of Columbia | 47 | 89.2% | 56.1% | 11.2% | 86.1% | 92.9% | 96.2% | | | | | | |
| lorida | 48 | 89.1% | 64.9% | 85.3% | 90.7% | 93.3% | 95.6% | | | | | | |
| Mississippi | 49 | 89.1% | 65.3% | 85.7% | 92.6% | 94.8% | 96.7% | | | | | | |
| Vichigan | 50 | 88.5% | 63.6% | 83.7% | 89.2% | 92.5% | 95.5% | | | | | | |
| Nevada | 51 | 88.2% | 63.6% | 82.6% | 88.9% | 92.1% | 94.8% | | | | | | |

^aData not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 98%

of people in the labor force are employed

Calculated as the average portion of employed people with income 400% FPL or greater in ND, SD, NE, IA, and MT.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



EMPLOYMENT

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people in the labor force (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population in the labor force (% to Goal) who would need to be employed to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | Overall | | White | | Black | | Hispanic | | Asian/PI | | AI/AN | | Multi | racial | |
|----------------------------|-----------|---------------------|-----------|-------------------|---------------|-----------|-----------|------------------|-----------|---------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 4,234 | 1.1% | 2,315 | 0.7% | 391 | 7.2% | 188 | 2.8% | 0 | 0.0% | 1,067 | 7.8% | 272 | 5.3% |
| South Dakota | 2 | 12,710 | 2.9% | 4,648 | 1.2% | 766 | 11.7% | 383 | 4.2% | 231 | 5.0% | 6,150 | 24.2% | 531 | 8.6% |
| Nebraska | 3 | 32,337 | 3.2% | 20,263 | 2.4% | 4,751 | 11.9% | 5,281 | 7.8% | 721 | 3.9% | 651 | 12.5% | 670 | 5.4% |
| Iowa | 4 | 55,740 | 3.4% | 44,120 | 3.0% | 4,904 | 11.9% | 3,548 | 6.3% | 875 | 2.7% | 336 | 10.0% | 1,957 | 12.0% |
| Wyoming | 5 | 10,790 | 3.6% | 7,884 | 3.0% | 113 | 4.9% | 1,384 | 7.3% | 125 | 4.4% | 896 | 19.5% | 387 | 8.3% |
| New Hampshire | 6 | 32,248 | 4.4% | 28,598 | 4.2% | 388 | 4.8% | 1,735 | 10.4% | 893 | 5.4% | 27 | 2.3% | 606 | 7.6% |
| Minnesota | 7 | 130,913 | 4.5% | 88,514 | 3.5% | 21,300 | 15.8% | 6,710 | 7.4% | 6,735 | 5.5% | 3,536 | 15.9% | 4,118 | 9.9% |
| Kansas | 8 | 66,767 | 4.6% | 42,011 | 3.5% | 10,131 | 13.5% | 7,543 | 6.7% | 2,605 | 7.0% | 1,377 | 14.4% | 3,101 | 10.8% |
| Oklahoma | 9 | 86,145 | 4.8% | 48,926 | 3.8% | 12,617 | 10.1% | 5,630 | 5.0% | 987 | 2.7% | 9,097 | 7.8% | 8,888 | 8.9% |
| Utah | 10 | 66,554 | 5.0% | 48,094 | 4.3% | 1,379 | 10.5% | 10,640 | 8.9% | 2,752 | 6.2% | 1,765 | 14.8% | 1,924 | 11.1% |
| Virginia | 11 | 207,764 | 5.0% | 100,342 | 3.7% | 78,778 | 10.1% | 13,343 | 4.9% | 8,335 | 3.2% | 543 | 6.7% | 6,423 | 8.7% |
| Montana | 12 | 26,704 | 5.2% | 19,599 | 4.2% | 116 | 6.5% | 868 | 7.4% | 376 | 10.3% | 5,359 | 20.2% | 387 | 5.5% |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 160.964 | 5.3% | 114,801 | 4.4% | 26.876 | 18.1% | 9.759 | 8.3% | 3,319 | 4.9% | 2,316 | 10.9% | 3.892 | 11.1% |
| Maine | 14 | 37,649 | 5.4% | 34,368 | 5.2% | 902 | 15.4% | 942 | 13.3% | 90 | 1.2% | 472 | 13.2% | 874 | 10.2% |
| Texas | 15 | 679.620 | 5.7% | 248,217 | 4.1% | 158,781 | 10.8% | 235.222 | 6.3% | 22,862 | 4.0% | 2,268 | 7.2% | 12.269 | 8.5% |
| Colorado | 16 | 154,160 | 5.8% | 98,401 | 4.9% | 12,045 | 12.2% | 33,255 | 8.5% | 3,461 | 4.3% | 1,429 | 10.2% | 5,569 | 11.5% |
| Idaho | 17 | 44.624 | 6.0% | 35.009 | 5.4% | 405 | 12.4% | 6.105 | 9.3% | 613 | 5.4% | 1,259 | 17.2% | 1,233 | 10.7% |
| Maryland | 18 | 189.937 | 6.1% | 71.818 | 4.1% | 95.457 | 10.4% | 10.402 | 5.8% | 6.892 | 3.6% | 622 | 9.8% | 4,746 | 9.0% |
| Alaska | 19 | 24,190 | 6.4% | 9,702 | 3.8% | 1.775 | 13 3% | 806 | 4 5% | 901 | 3 3% | 8.659 | 20.4% | 2,348 | 11 1% |
| Massachusetts | 20 | 226.668 | 6.4% | 156.100 | 5.5% | 28.924 | 12.8% | 23.927 | 11.5% | 12.224 | 5.8% | 910 | 20.5% | 4.583 | 9.1% |
| Missouri | 21 | 193 489 | 6.5% | 129,005 | 5.2% | 51 625 | 15.8% | 5 425 | 7 3% | 1 580 | 2.9% | 1 120 | 10.5% | 4 733 | 11.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 420.851 | 6.6% | 278.020 | 5.2% | 93,604 | 15.0% | 30,432 | 12.8% | 10,165 | 5.2% | 604 | 8.7% | 8,026 | 12.3% |
| Delaware | 23 | 29,704 | 6.6% | 16.848 | 5.5% | 9,527 | 10.1% | 1.934 | 7.4% | 488 | 2.9% | 148 | 10.5% | 759 | 13.2% |
| Arkansas | 24 | 88 961 | 6.6% | 54 565 | 5.3% | 26 795 | 13.6% | 3 401 | 5.6% | 1 608 | 7 3% | 702 | 8.5% | 1 891 | 10.3% |
| New York | 25 | 613 435 | 6.7% | 304 940 | 5.3% | 166 648 | 12.1% | 80 170 | 8.5% | 45 305 | 5.7% | 2 634 | 12.9% | 13 738 | 10.9% |
| Washington | 26 | 227 651 | 6.7% | 160.078 | 6.2% | 13 489 | 11 5% | 21 729 | 8.9% | 16,005 | 5.4% | 4 794 | 13.8% | 11 557 | 10.5% |
| Louisiana | 27 | 147 662 | 6.8% | 59 629 | 4 4% | 77 835 | 12.0% | 5 577 | 6.5% | 1 494 | 3.7% | 918 | 8.4% | 2 210 | 10.2% |
| Indiana | 28 | 220,606 | 6.9% | 159 848 | 5.9% | 43 192 | 16.0% | 10 519 | 9.1% | 2 169 | 3.8% | 545 | 10.3% | 4 332 | 12.1% |
| Rhode Island | 29 | 37 138 | 7.0% | 26 992 | 6.2% | 3 244 | 11.8% | 4 598 | 12.2% | 1 036 | 6.2% | 259 | 13.0% | 1,008 | 11.1% |
| Ohio | 30 | 422 619 | 7.3% | 285 319 | 5.9% | 108 926 | 16.9% | 12 235 | 9.5% | 3 653 | 3.3% | 1 065 | 13.3% | 11 421 | 14.6% |
| Connecticut | 31 | 137 175 | 7.5% | 82 659 | 5.9% | 27 738 | 15.0% | 18 742 | 11 5% | <i>4 4</i> 78 | 5.5% | 337 | 13.0% | 3 221 | 12.4% |
| Kentucky | 32 | 151 613 | 7.1% | 120 629 | 6.8% | 22 029 | 14.0% | 4 341 | 9.6% | 864 | 3.1% | 584 | 17.8% | 3 166 | 14.6% |
| New Mexico | 33 | 63 860 | 7.1% | 20 722 | 5.0% | 1 283 | 7.4% | 28 775 | 8.7% | 1 051 | 7.0% | 11 092 | 15.3% | 937 | 8.1% |
| New Jersey | 34 | 334 620 | 7.6% | 175 273 | 6.4% | 81 943 | 14.3% | 50 497 | 8.9% | 19 542 | 4.6% | 588 | 12.6% | 6 778 | 12.4% |
| Arizona | 35 | 218 399 | 7.6% | 111 043 | 6.1% | 15 155 | 12.3% | 61 810 | 9.3% | 4 934 | 4.8% | 20 397 | 20.2% | 5 061 | 11.5% |
| Tennessee | 36 | 235 399 | 7.6% | 151 504 | 6.4% | 69.612 | 13.6% | 7 445 | 7.7% | 1 371 | 2.6% | 836 | 11.8% | 4 630 | 13.3% |
| Illinois | 37 | 504 545 | 8.0% | 255 874 | 5.8% | 161 207 | 19.0% | 59 895 | 9.3% | 17 220 | 5.1% | 1 205 | 17.0% | 9 1/15 | 12.8% |
| Alahama | 38 | 183 490 | 8.3% | 94 017 | 6.2% | 79 947 | 14.2% | 4 4 2 3 | 7 3% | 1 014 | 3.5% | 1,205 | 10.5% | 2 958 | 13.7% |
| North Carolina | 30 | 397 / 29 | 8.5% | 210 123 | 6.6% | 145 524 | 14.2% | 22,222 | 8.7% | 6 102 | 5.1% | 5 131 | 10.5% | 8 3 2 8 | 14.1% |
| Oregon | 40 | 161 829 | 8.6% | 126 579 | 8.2% | 5 136 | 16.1% | 15 095 | 9.7% | 5 487 | 6.3% | 2 780 | 15.7% | 6 752 | 14.1% |
| California | 40 //1 | 1 1/19 817 | 8.8% | 578.077 | 7.4% | 159.812 | 15.9% | 175 384 | 10.7% | 176.835 | 6.5% | 9 951 | 15.7% | 19 759 | 11.9% |
| Georgia | 42 | 414 207 | 8.9% | 170,664 | 6.3% | 205 367 | 14.3% | 21 920 | 7.5% | 8 4 6 8 | 4.8% | 944 | 10.5% | 6 844 | 13.1% |
| South Carolina | 12 | 108 316 | 8.9% | 95 559 | 6.4% | 91 003 | 15.2% | 5 903 | 7.5% | 1 884 | 5.5% | 1 407 | 21.1% | 2 561 | 10.8% |
| Elorida | 43 | 815 572 | 9.0% | 385 503 | 7 1% | 216 885 | 15.2% | 182 165 | 8.9% | 1,004 | 5.7% | 2 704 | 14.0% | 13 140 | 11.5% |
| Mississippi | 44 | 122 114 | 0.2% | JUJ, JJJ 157 | F 0% | 210,005 | 14 79/ | 2 675 | 10.4% | 13,005 E2E | 2 49/ | 2,704 | 14.076 | 13,140 | 12.9% |
| Michigan | 45 | 122,114 | 9.270 | 202 022 | 7 7% | 125 536 | 21.0% | 2,073 | 11.6% | 6 6 7 3 | 5.4% | 2 2 2 1 | 10.6% | 12 857 | 17.0% |
| Nevada | 40 | 4,55,550 107 707 | 9.0% | دد دود ۲۶۵,۶۵۵ | 9.6% | 17 590 | 16.7% | 10,000 27 825 | 11.0% | 0,075 | 7.0% | 2,331 | 17 /9/ | 12,037 | 12.4% |
| Vermont ^a | 4/ | 121,291 | 5.5% | 1/ 177 | 0.0% A 2% | 160 | 5 /0/ | 21,035 | 6.0% | 5,700 | 2 00/ | 2,005 | 17.470 | 4,429 | 17.4% |
| West Virginia ^a | | | | 14,177 A5 1A0 | 4.5% 5 Q9/ | 2614 | 10.8% | 237 | 7 /0/ | 201 | 2.5% | | | 1 271 | 12.7% |
| District of Columbia | | | | 43,142 | 1.6% | 2,014 | 18.0% | 1 0/0 | 7.4% | 52 I 70 | 4.0% | | | 1,271 | 6.0% |
| Hawaiia | | | | 2,323 6 698 | 4.2% | 1 128 | 10.0% | 2 579 | 7.5% | 12 245 | 3.6% | | | 7 768 | 6.3% |
| i iawan | | | | 0,030 | 7.270 | 1,120 | 10.070 | 5,575 | 1.570 | 12,245 | 5.070 | | | 1,100 | 0.570 |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of AI/AN respondents.

HOPE Goal **98%**

of people in the labor force are employed

Calculated as the average portion of employed people with income 400% FPL or greater in ND, SD, NE, IA, and MT.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



EMPLOYMENT

0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.1%

0.8% 0.9%

1.2%

1.0%

0.7% 1.3% 0.6% 1.4% 1.3% 0.5% 1.0% 0.7% 1.4% 1.6% 1.6% 1.0% 2.0%

2.3%

2.4%

1.2%

1.9%

2.7%

2.2%

0.8%

2.2% 1.1%

1.5%

2.3%

1.4%

1.6%

1.4%

2.9%

1.9%

1.4%

3.2% 2.3% 1.7%

1.8%

2.4%

3.1%

2.2%

1.8% 1.8%

2.4%

1.3%

2.6%

3 3%

Table shows the number of additional people in the labor force (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population in the labor force (% to Goal) who would need to be employed to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | Overall | | 0-99% FPL | | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+% FPL | | |
|----------------------|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 4,728 | 1.2% | 2,796 | 9.3% | 1,002 | 2.0% | 693 | 1.0% | 237 | 0.4% | 0 | 0.0 |
| South Dakota | 2 | 12,173 | 2.8% | 7,191 | 18.9% | 3,338 | 5.0% | 1,450 | 1.7% | 194 | 0.3% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Nebraska | 3 | 30,828 | 3.1% | 14,749 | 18.1% | 10,521 | 7.3% | 4,354 | 2.5% | 1,204 | 0.7% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Iowa | 4 | 52,832 | 3.3% | 25,282 | 18.7% | 13,623 | 6.2% | 8,731 | 3.0% | 4,620 | 1.6% | 576 | 0.1 |
| Wyoming | 5 | 10,746 | 3.6% | 3,085 | 13.9% | 3,157 | 7.9% | 2,177 | 4.7% | 1,220 | 2.6% | 1,106 | 0.8 |
| Vermont | 6 | 14,736 | 4.3% | 5,847 | 24.8% | 4,441 | 9.3% | 1,962 | 3.4% | 1,024 | 1.9% | 1,462 | 0.9 |
| New Hampshire | 7 | 31,529 | 4.3% | 11,068 | 29.1% | 6,873 | 9.2% | 4,988 | 4.9% | 3,939 | 3.5% | 4,662 | 1.2 |
| Minnesota | 8 | 127,080 | 4.4% | 50,371 | 23.0% | 29,381 | 8.6% | 18,323 | 4.2% | 14,054 | 3.0% | 14,950 | 1.0 |
| Kansas | 9 | 64,662 | 4.5% | 27,568 | 21.2% | 17,720 | 8.3% | 9,825 | 3.8% | 5,413 | 2.4% | 4,136 | 0.7 |
| Hawaii | 10 | 31,458 | 4.6% | 9,885 | 22.0% | 6,548 | 8.6% | 6,727 | 6.4% | 3,903 | 3.5% | 4,395 | 1.3 |
| Oklahoma | 11 | 84,527 | 4.8% | 38,944 | 21.9% | 22,291 | 7.1% | 13,277 | 4.0% | 6,057 | 2.2% | 3,958 | 0.6 |
| Utah | 12 | 65,329 | 4.9% | 25,071 | 20.8% | 16,116 | 7.7% | 10,206 | 3.9% | 6,495 | 2.9% | 7,440 | 1.4 |
| Virginia | 13 | 202,887 | 4.9% | 76,438 | 26.9% | 47,798 | 9.9% | 31,457 | 5.3% | 18,714 | 3.2% | 28,480 | 1.3 |
| Montana | 14 | 26,048 | 5.1% | 12,890 | 22.8% | 5,870 | 6.5% | 3,424 | 3.8% | 2,843 | 3.4% | 1,021 | 0.5 |
| Wisconsin | 15 | 158,979 | 5.3% | 63,145 | 24.2% | 40,656 | 10.0% | 26,822 | 5.3% | 15,225 | 3.0% | 13,131 | 1.0 |
| Maine | 16 | 36,653 | 5.3% | 15,741 | 26.4% | 10,001 | 9.5% | 5,462 | 4.4% | 3,357 | 3.0% | 2,093 | 0.7 |
| Texas | 17 | 672,121 | 5.6% | 264,924 | 21.7% | 178,620 | 8.8% | 102,770 | 5.2% | 56,927 | 3.4% | 68,879 | 1.4 |
| Colorado | 18 | 151,147 | 5.7% | 53,167 | 24.0% | 37,194 | 10.3% | 25,520 | 6.2% | 14,495 | 3.8% | 20,772 | 1.6 |
| Idaho | 19 | 44,015 | 5.9% | 17,409 | 22.0% | 11,056 | 7.5% | 7,592 | 5.0% | 3,981 | 3.4% | 3,978 | 1.6 |
| West Virginia | 20 | 48,981 | 6.0% | 21,639 | 26.3% | 12,385 | 9.4% | 7,668 | 5.1% | 4,174 | 3.1% | 3,115 | 1.0 |
| Maryland | 21 | 188,891 | 6.1% | 56,654 | 32.4% | 41,259 | 13.8% | 32,764 | 8.4% | 21,421 | 5.5% | 36,792 | 2.0 |
| Alaska | 22 | 23,932 | 6.3% | 8,811 | 34.6% | 5,253 | 11.6% | 2,734 | 5.7% | 2,413 | 4.8% | 4,722 | 2.3 |
| Massachusetts | 23 | 221,164 | 6.4% | 65,931 | 31.2% | 43,958 | 13.4% | 36,895 | 8.6% | 25,886 | 5.7% | 48,493 | 2.4 |
| Missouri | 24 | 190,907 | 6.4% | 82,947 | 28.6% | 49,282 | 10.5% | 28,516 | 5.2% | 16,335 | 3.4% | 13,827 | 1.2 |
| Pennsylvania | 25 | 412,916 | 6.5% | 145,197 | 30.9% | 98,852 | 12.4% | 69,911 | 6.7% | 41,786 | 4.1% | 57,171 | 1.9 |
| Delaware | 26 | 29,551 | 6.6% | 8,726 | 27.9% | 6,280 | 11.1% | 5,114 | 7.9% | 3,448 | 4.8% | 5,982 | 2.7 |
| New York | 27 | 604,660 | 6.6% | 206,230 | 28.7% | 136,083 | 12.1% | 94,374 | 7.4% | 64,164 | 5.2% | 103,809 | 2.2 |
| Arkansas | 28 | 88,189 | 6.6% | 42,397 | 27.4% | 23,447 | 9.0% | 13,046 | 5.1% | 5,578 | 2.7% | 3,720 | 0.8 |
| Washington | 29 | 225,121 | 6.7% | 77,817 | 28.4% | 49,028 | 11.2% | 37,500 | 7.4% | 24,194 | 5.1% | 36,582 | 2.2 |
| Louisiana | 30 | 145,810 | 6.7% | 69,885 | 27.6% | 36,974 | 10.1% | 19,584 | 5.5% | 9,860 | 3.1% | 9,508 | 1.1 |
| Indiana | 31 | 217,905 | 6.8% | 90,210 | 29.5% | 56,507 | 11.3% | 34,436 | 5.9% | 18,059 | 3.4% | 18,693 | 1.5 |
| Rhode Island | 32 | 36,404 | 7.0% | 12,360 | 32.1% | 7,689 | 13.0% | 6,140 | 8.1% | 3,926 | 5.1% | 6,291 | 2.3 |
| Ohio | 33 | 415,065 | 7.2% | 181,262 | 31.5% | 101,522 | 12.1% | 61,489 | 6.2% | 35,939 | 3.9% | 34,853 | 1.4 |
| New Mexico | 34 | 62,925 | 7.4% | 28,470 | 25.5% | 16,264 | 10.2% | 8,265 | 5.9% | 4,853 | 4.0% | 5,074 | 1.6 |
| Kentucky | 35 | 149,217 | 7.4% | 66,706 | 30.0% | 37,606 | 11.3% | 22,979 | 6.2% | 11,079 | 3.4% | 10,847 | 1.4 |
| Connecticut | 36 | 135,691 | 7.4% | 37,877 | 36.1% | 27,562 | 16.1% | 22,826 | 10.6% | 15,659 | 6.7% | 31,766 | 2.9 |
| Arizona | 37 | 215,708 | 7.6% | 88,949 | 28.7% | 53,051 | 10.9% | 33,564 | 6.7% | 18,361 | 4.4% | 21,783 | 1.9 |
| Tennessee | 38 | 231,979 | 7.6% | 103,765 | 31.3% | 61,589 | 11.6% | 31,919 | 5.5% | 18,448 | 3.8% | 16,258 | 1.4 |
| New Jersey | 39 | 333,378 | 7.6% | 82,428 | 34.7% | 68,401 | 15.8% | 55,299 | 10.7% | 42,529 | 7.8% | 84,721 | 3.2 |
| Illinois | 40 | 499,566 | 8.0% | 185,758 | 33.7% | 114,618 | 14.0% | 78,132 | 8.3% | 50,801 | 5.6% | 70,257 | 2.3 |
| Alabama | 41 | 180,703 | 8.2% | 83,715 | 33.2% | 46,615 | 12.4% | 23,408 | 6.0% | 12,593 | 3.8% | 14,372 | 1.7 |
| North Carolina | 42 | 392,518 | 8.5% | 167,613 | 32.5% | 102,028 | 12.9% | 58,184 | 7.0% | 31,749 | 4.6% | 32,943 | 1.8 |
| Oregon | 43 | 160,425 | 8.5% | 61,500 | 29.1% | 41,869 | 13.2% | 25,343 | 7.6% | 13,786 | 5.2% | 17,926 | 2.4 |
| California | 44 | 1,439,505 | 8.8% | 477,801 | 31.2% | 351,257 | 13.9% | 229,371 | 9.4% | 140,946 | 6.8% | 240,129 | 3.1 |
| Georgia | 45 | 408,520 | 8.8% | 170,120 | 32.2% | 104,862 | 13.2% | 60,495 | 7.4% | 33,177 | 4.9% | 39,866 | 2.2 |
| South Carolina | 46 | 195,581 | 8.8% | 85,995 | 33.1% | 52,876 | 13.2% | 29,081 | 7.2% | 13,057 | 3.9% | 14,572 | 1.8 |
| District of Columbia | 47 | 30,447 | 8.9% | 13,127 | 42.0% | 7,225 | 20.9% | 4,328 | 12.0% | 2,062 | 5.2% | 3704.37 | 1.8 |
| Florida | 48 | 811,042 | 8.9% | 325,813 | 33.2% | 213,042 | 12.8% | 124,432 | 7.3% | 65,200 | 4.8% | 82,555 | 2.4 |
| Mississippi | 49 | 119,492 | 9.0% | 61,625 | 32.8% | 31,733 | 12.3% | 13,888 | 5.5% | 6,532 | 3.3% | 5,714 | 1.3 |
| Michigan | 50 | 454,105 | 9.5% | 186,486 | 34.5% | 105,001 | 14.4% | 70,764 | 8.9% | 41,207 | 5.6% | 50,647 | 2.6 |
| Nevada | 51 | 127,075 | 9.9% | 42,823 | 34.5% | 33,907 | 15.5% | 21,926 | 9.2% | 12,035 | 6.0% | 16,384 | 3.3 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 98%

of people in the labor force are employed

Calculated as the average portion of employed people with income 400% FPL or greater in ND, SD, NE, IA, and MT.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW POVERTY CONCENTRATION

Table shows the portion of people in neighborhoods with less than 20% of residents living in poverty in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity.^{a,} Source: 2010 Neighborhood Change Database, American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
|----------------------|------|---------|-------|-------|----------|----------|-------|-------------|
| New Hampshire | 1 | 94.2% | 94.8% | 83.7% | 81.2% | 93.1% | 96.6% | 91.7% |
| Wyoming | 2 | 92.1% | 93.8% | 75.6% | 92.1% | 81.5% | 38.4% | 92.6% |
| Alaska | 3 | 91.5% | 97.5% | 92.2% | 93.3% | 90.6% | 64.8% | 91.7% |
| Maryland | 4 | 90.1% | 94.4% | 81.4% | 90.3% | 93.9% | 86.8% | 90.6% |
| Delaware | 5 | 89.5% | 94.1% | 77.9% | 83.6% | 91.2% | 91.0% | 88.0% |
| Vermont | 6 | 89.1% | 89.5% | 76.7% | 84.3% | 77.5% | 84.8% | 85.9% |
| Hawaii | 7 | 88.7% | 89.9% | 91.5% | 86.3% | 88.7% | 88.2% | 88.0% |
| Virginia | 8 | 87.6% | 90.3% | 74.8% | 90.6% | 94.1% | 85.2% | 89.0% |
| New Jersey | 9 | 87.3% | 95.8% | 68.3% | 70.8% | 93.4% | 79.7% | 89.2% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 87.2% | 91.1% | 59.3% | 73.9% | 74.3% | 58.1% | 80.4% |
| Connecticut | 11 | 87.0% | 94.8% | 63.4% | 64.3% | 89.3% | 83.7% | 85.7% |
| Utah | 12 | 87.0% | 89.2% | 78.2% | 77.8% | 83.0% | 57.3% | 85.8% |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 86.1% | 91.7% | 42.6% | 63.4% | 76.9% | 64.4% | 79.0% |
| Iowa | 14 | 86.0% | 88.6% | 57.3% | 69.0% | 69.8% | 63.4% | 76.7% |
| Nebraska | 15 | 84.9% | 89.6% | 46.5% | 70.5% | 75.2% | 48.0% | 76.7% |
| North Dakota | 16 | 84.9% | 88.5% | 72.5% | 81.5% | 69.1% | 35.2% | 81.4% |
| Idaho | 17 | 84.6% | 85.7% | 77.7% | 78.7% | 87.6% | 69.2% | 81.4% |
| Maine | 18 | 84.1% | 84.8% | 62.7% | 77.3% | 79.6% | 57.2% | 76.8% |
| Massachusetts | 19 | 83.1% | 90.4% | 57.8% | 50.5% | 76.4% | 72.3% | 78.7% |
| Washington | 20 | 82.6% | 86.8% | 69.1% | 62.9% | 83.3% | 65.8% | 82.4% |
| Nevada | 21 | 82.6% | 89.5% | 74.2% | 69.4% | 89.2% | 80.2% | 86.5% |
| Kansas | 22 | 82.4% | 87.1% | 57.0% | 64.9% | 78.3% | 82.0% | 76.8% |
| South Dakota | 23 | 81.8% | 87.5% | 74.1% | 79.6% | 81.3% | 28.2% | 77.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 24 | 80.9% | 88.8% | 42.7% | 50.9% | 74.6% | 73.2% | 70.1% |
| Illinois | 25 | 80.4% | 90.3% | 46.6% | 69.9% | 86.0% | 79.1% | 78.0% |
| Oregon | 26 | 79.4% | 82.2% | 64.9% | 66.2% | 78.0% | 66.0% | 75.9% |
| Colorado | 27 | 79.1% | 85.9% | 58.8% | 60.1% | 80.8% | 67.5% | 80.8% |
| Indiana | 28 | 78.9% | 84.2% | 46.0% | 63.4% | 73.9% | 75.0% | 68.4% |
| Florida | 29 | 78.7% | 86.8% | 54.8% | 74.2% | 86.6% | 77.4% | 80.1% |
| Montana | 30 | 78.5% | 82.1% | 66.8% | 70.6% | 71.2% | 37.1% | 69.0% |
| Missouri | 31 | 77.4% | 82.9% | 44.4% | 62.6% | 76.6% | 72.5% | 71.6% |
| Rhode Island | 32 | 76.9% | 87.2% | 45.3% | 35.7% | 61.7% | 69.3% | 71.3% |
| Ohio | 33 | 76.7% | 83.0% | 40.7% | 60.9% | 80.0% | 67.9% | 66.5% |
| California | 34 | 76.2% | 87.7% | 64.4% | 62.9% | 84.2% | 71.7% | 83.3% |
| Michigan | 35 | 75.3% | 84.3% | 33.4% | 56.1% | 78.6% | 74.6% | 66.4% |
| New York | 36 | 74.6% | 88.2% | 52.1% | 50.0% | 73.5% | 70.4% | 72.9% |
| North Carolina | 37 | 72.3% | 80.1% | 54.5% | 61.6% | 80.4% | 32.4% | 69.2% |
| Arizona | 38 | 71.3% | 84.8% | 63.8% | 51.4% | 81.1% | 24.6% | 78.1% |
| Georgia | 39 | 69.3% | 78.6% | 53.8% | 59.6% | 81.3% | 73.1% | 73.2% |
| Tennessee | 40 | 68.9% | 75.3% | 43.0% | 56.6% | 78.5% | 66.8% | 65.2% |
| Oklahoma | 41 | 68.6% | 74.9% | 47.5% | 50.1% | 73.9% | 58.3% | 64.4% |
| West Virginia | 42 | 68.3% | 69.0% | 50.6% | 71.4% | 63.3% | 61.6% | 63.9% |
| South Carolina | 43 | 68.0% | 76.8% | 48.3% | 59.5% | 83.0% | 68.0% | 68.9% |
| Alabama | 44 | 67.1% | 77.2% | 42.2% | 60.5% | 74.9% | 64.0% | 69.7% |
| Texas | 45 | 66.5% | 83.4% | 55.9% | 48.0% | 81.7% | 74.3% | 77.0% |
| District of Columbia | 46 | 65.9% | 88.3% | 46.4% | 73.5% | 80.3% | 72.3% | 77.4% |
| Louisiana | 47 | 63.5% | 76.4% | 38.6% | 68.6% | 70.1% | 56.3% | 61.6% |
| Arkansas | 48 | 62.6% | 70.0% | 32.7% | 48.7% | 65.7% | 64.3% | 63.1% |
| Kentucky | 49 | 62.5% | 64.2% | 44.8% | 58.1% | 74.7% | 60.4% | 56.7% |
| New Mexico | 50 | 61.1% | 76.0% | 58.7% | 53.3% | 75.0% | 31.9% | 71.1% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 53.2% | 66 5% | 31.4% | 58.7% | 72 5% | 35.2% | 64.6% |

Data not available by income or education.

^a Estimates are based on census tract level population estimates by race and ethnicity and may be potentially unreliable for racial and ethnic groups comprising extremely small portions of the total population.

STATE RATES BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

HOPE Goal

of people living in neighborhoods with low poverty concentration

Data not available by income or education. Goal set based on review of literature.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW POVERTY CONCENTRATION

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in neighborhoods with low poverty concentration to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, by race and ethnicity.^a

| | Overall | | W | White Black | | ack | d Hispanic | | Asian/PI | | AI/AN | | Multi | racial | |
|----------------------|---------|-----------|-----------|-------------|-----------|-----------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 76,928 | 5.8% | 63,076 | 5.2% | 2,525 | 16.3% | 7,565 | 18.8% | 2,163 | 6.9% | 94 | 3.4% | 1,505 | 8.3% |
| Wyoming | 2 | 45,500 | 7.9% | 30,449 | 6.2% | 1,683 | 24.4% | 4,280 | 7.9% | 982 | 18.5% | 7,454 | 61.6% | 651 | 7.4% |
| Alaska | 3 | 61,581 | 8.5% | 11,568 | 2.5% | 1,931 | 7.8% | 3,056 | 6.7% | 4,629 | 9.4% | 36,554 | 35.2% | 3,842 | 8.3% |
| Maryland | 4 | 581,784 | 9.9% | 177,334 | 5.6% | 319,220 | 18.6% | 49,974 | 9.7% | 21,498 | 6.1% | 1,890 | 13.2% | 11,868 | 9.4% |
| Delaware | 5 | 95,951 | 10.5% | 35,011 | 5.9% | 42,682 | 22.1% | 12,906 | 16.4% | 2,836 | 8.8% | 262 | 9.0% | 2,253 | 12.0% |
| Vermont | 6 | 68,447 | 10.9% | 61,560 | 10.5% | 1,542 | 23.3% | 1,609 | 15.7% | 2,013 | 22.5% | 306 | 15.2% | 1,417 | 14.1% |
| Hawaii | 7 | 157,706 | 11.3% | 32,219 | 10.1% | 2,241 | 8.4% | 18,341 | 13.7% | 72,933 | 11.3% | 400 | 11.8% | 31,572 | 12.0% |
| Virginia | 8 | 1,017,636 | 12.4% | 507,256 | 9.7% | 392,456 | 25.2% | 64,969 | 9.4% | 28,961 | 5.9% | 3,248 | 14.8% | 20,748 | 11.0% |
| New Jersey | 9 | 1,129,541 | 12.7% | 217,099 | 4.2% | 363,400 | 31.7% | 481,242 | 29.2% | 52,017 | 6.6% | 2,617 | 20.3% | 13,166 | 10.8% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 687,660 | 12.8% | 394,509 | 8.9% | 118,410 | 40.7% | 69,014 | 26.1% | 61,016 | 25.7% | 23,885 | 41.9% | 20,827 | 19.6% |
| Connecticut | 11 | 466,632 | 13.0% | 130,936 | 5.2% | 127,501 | 36.6% | 182,966 | 35.7% | 15,995 | 10.7% | 1,206 | 16.3% | 8,028 | 14.3% |
| Utah | 12 | 372,126 | 13.0% | 247,873 | 10.8% | 6,259 | 21.8% | 84,201 | 22.2% | 14,678 | 17.0% | 11,824 | 42.6% | 7,291 | 14.2% |
| Wisconsin | 13 | 796,482 | 13.9% | 393,215 | 8.3% | 205,540 | 57.4% | 130,002 | 36.6% | 32,705 | 23.1% | 17,631 | 35.6% | 17,388 | 21.0% |
| Iowa | 14 | 431,141 | 14.0% | 307,815 | 11.4% | 40,317 | 42.7% | 50,600 | 31.0% | 18,991 | 30.2% | 3,243 | 36.6% | 10,176 | 23.3% |
| Nebraska | 15 | 280,065 | 15.1% | 157,459 | 10.4% | 45,332 | 53.5% | 53,252 | 29.5% | 9,249 | 24.8% | 7,866 | 52.0% | 6,907 | 23.3% |
| North Dakota | 16 | 106,426 | 15.1% | 71,389 | 11.5% | 3,060 | 27.5% | 3,398 | 18.5% | 2,612 | 30.9% | 23,808 | 64.8% | 2,159 | 18.6% |
| Idaho | 17 | 246,799 | 15.4% | 191,333 | 14.3% | 2,249 | 22.3% | 39,660 | 21.3% | 2,790 | 12.3% | 5,543 | 30.8% | 5,223 | 18.6% |
| Maine | 18 | 211,726 | 15.9% | 190,052 | 15.2% | 6,364 | 37.3% | 4,215 | 22.7% | 3,017 | 20.4% | 3,583 | 42.8% | 4,495 | 23.2% |
| Massachusetts | 19 | 1,124,071 | 16.9% | 483,090 | 9.6% | 185,023 | 42.2% | 337,827 | 49.5% | 92,259 | 23.6% | 3,308 | 27.8% | 22,564 | 21.3% |
| Washington | 20 | 1,200,592 | 17.4% | 652,851 | 13.2% | 76,878 | 30.9% | 300,835 | 37.1% | 94,226 | 16.7% | 31,004 | 34.2% | 44,798 | 17.6% |
| Nevada | 21 | 480,915 | 17.4% | 153,465 | 10.5% | 57,102 | 25.8% | 230,425 | 30.6% | 24,198 | 10.8% | 4,785 | 19.8% | 10,940 | 13.5% |
| Kansas | 22 | 508,368 | 17.6% | 289,004 | 12.9% | 72,079 | 43.0% | 111,182 | 35.2% | 16,457 | 21.7% | 4,209 | 18.0% | 15,439 | 23.2% |
| South Dakota | 23 | 152,175 | 18.2% | 87,357 | 12.5% | 3,414 | 25.9% | 5,479 | 20.4% | 1,797 | 18.7% | 50,643 | 71.8% | 3,485 | 22.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 24 | 2,439,389 | 19.1% | 1,122,123 | 11.2% | 774,973 | 57.3% | 385,230 | 49.1% | 97,825 | 25.4% | 4,724 | 26.8% | 54,513 | 29.9% |
| Illinois | 25 | 2,523,935 | 19.6% | 783,981 | 9.7% | 977,633 | 53.4% | 630,107 | 30.1% | 88,566 | 14.0% | 3,976 | 20.9% | 39,671 | 22.0% |
| Oregon | 26 | 802,667 | 20.6% | 539,883 | 17.8% | 23,929 | 35.1% | 160,025 | 33.8% | 36,644 | 22.0% | 14,860 | 34.0% | 27,326 | 24.1% |
| Colorado | 27 | 1,087,760 | 20.9% | 510,430 | 14.1% | 82,814 | 41.2% | 433,920 | 39.9% | 29,663 | 19.2% | 10,759 | 32.5% | 20,174 | 19.2% |
| Indiana | 28 | 1,376,929 | 21.0% | 835,648 | 15.8% | 322,962 | 54.0% | 150,892 | 36.6% | 30,973 | 26.1% | 3,662 | 25.0% | 32,793 | 31.6% |
| Florida | 29 | 4,115,927 | 21.3% | 1,457,580 | 13.2% | 1,355,370 | 45.2% | 1,166,389 | 25.8% | 68,216 | 13.4% | 11,296 | 22.7% | 57,076 | 19.9% |
| Montana | 30 | 216,107 | 21.5% | 157,318 | 17.9% | 1,648 | 33.2% | 9,489 | 29.4% | 2,222 | 28.8% | 38,540 | 62.9% | 6,891 | 31.0% |
| Missouri | 31 | 1,364,676 | 22.6% | 828,757 | 17.1% | 386,693 | 55.6% | 84,830 | 37.4% | 26,368 | 23.4% | 6,846 | 27.5% | 31,181 | 28.4% |
| Rhode Island | 32 | 243,534 | 23.1% | 101,826 | 12.8% | 31,820 | 54.7% | 89,956 | 64.3% | 12,943 | 38.3% | 1,367 | 30.8% | 5,623 | 28.7% |
| Ohio | 33 | 2,687,245 | 23.2% | 1,583,402 | 17.0% | 835,427 | 59.2% | 148,503 | 39.1% | 43,124 | 20.0% | 6,925 | 32.1% | 69,864 | 33.5% |
| California | 34 | 9,053,495 | 23.8% | 1,844,595 | 12.3% | 784,406 | 35.6% | 5,392,279 | 37.1% | 823,839 | 15.8% | 46,739 | 28.3% | 161,637 | 16.7% |
| Michigan | 35 | 2,444,310 | 24.7% | 1,187,207 | 15.7% | 921,880 | 66.6% | 200,495 | 43.9% | 56,026 | 21.3% | 14,102 | 25.4% | 64,601 | 33.6% |
| New York | 36 | 4,983,204 | 25.4% | 1,324,406 | 11.8% | 1,367,460 | 47.9% | 1,779,826 | 50.0% | 412,693 | 26.5% | 16,922 | 29.6% | 81,898 | 27.1% |
| North Carolina | 37 | 2,698,655 | 27.7% | 1,253,646 | 19.9% | 946,021 | 45.5% | 326,354 | 38.4% | 47,350 | 19.6% | 75,232 | 67.6% | 50,052 | 30.8% |
| Arizona | 38 | 1,885,799 | 28.7% | 567,303 | 15.2% | 93,163 | 36.2% | 961,033 | 48.6% | 37,794 | 18.9% | 200,376 | 75.4% | 26,130 | 21.9% |
| Georgia | 39 | 3,040,695 | 30.7% | 1,169,506 | 21.4% | 1,394,062 | 46.3% | 362,938 | 40.4% | 66,354 | 18.7% | 6,066 | 26.9% | 41,769 | 26.8% |
| Tennessee | 40 | 2,009,014 | 31.1% | 1,198,798 | 24.7% | 614,421 | 57.0% | 134,852 | 43.4% | 22,416 | 21.5% | 5,614 | 33.1% | 32,914 | 34.8% |
| Oklahoma | 41 | 1,198,491 | 31.4% | 651,108 | 25.1% | 147,140 | 52.5% | 178,488 | 49.9% | 19,907 | 26.1% | 131,217 | 41.7% | 70,631 | 35.6% |
| West Virginia | 42 | 588,131 | 31.7% | 533,374 | 31.0% | 31,622 | 49.4% | 7,081 | 28.6% | 5,166 | 36.7% | 1,414 | 38.4% | 9,475 | 36.1% |
| South Carolina | 43 | 1,513,658 | 32.0% | 702,169 | 23.2% | 672,554 | 51.7% | 100,697 | 40.5% | 11,617 | 17.0% | 5,507 | 32.0% | 21,114 | 31.1% |
| Alabama | 44 | 1,583,708 | 32.9% | 733,227 | 22.8% | 729,935 | 57.8% | 76,409 | 39.4% | 15,266 | 25.1% | 9,525 | 36.0% | 19,346 | 30.3% |
| Texas | 45 | 8,746,086 | 33.5% | 1,929,806 | 16.7% | 1,337,237 | 44.1% | 5,181,576 | 52.0% | 199,621 | 18.3% | 21,828 | 25.7% | 76,018 | 23.0% |
| District of Columbia | 46 | 215,954 | 34.1% | 26,354 | 11.7% | 164,927 | 53.6% | 16,624 | 26.5% | 4,671 | 19.7% | 392 | 27.7% | 2,985 | 22.6% |
| Louisiana | 47 | 1,677,300 | 36.5% | 649,555 | 23.6% | 903,241 | 61.4% | 66,010 | 31.4% | 23,267 | 29.9% | 12,643 | 43.7% | 22,584 | 38.4% |
| Arkansas | 48 | 1,101,487 | 37.4% | 653,530 | 30.0% | 304,854 | 67.3% | 101,779 | 51.3% | 15,911 | 34.3% | 7,594 | 35.7% | 17,818 | 36.9% |
| Kentucky | 49 | 1,645,147 | 37.5% | 1,348,013 | 35.8% | 190,866 | 55.2% | 59,276 | 41.9% | 14,403 | 25.3% | 3,512 | 39.6% | 29,076 | 43.3% |
| New Mexico | 50 | 808,124 | 38.9% | 198,799 | 24.0% | 15,451 | 41.3% | 456,715 | 46.7% | 7,485 | 25.0% | 121,196 | 68.1% | 8,479 | 28.9% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 1,396,724 | 46.8% | 575,610 | 33.5% | 758,111 | 68.6% | 35,339 | 41.3% | 7,960 | 27.5% | 9,234 | 64.8% | 10,470 | 35.4% |

^a Estimates are based on census tract level population estimates by race and ethnicity and may be potentially unreliable for racial and ethnic groups comprising extremely small portions of the total population.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY



of people living in neighborhoods with low poverty concentration

Data not available by income or education. Goal set based on review of literature.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?


LOW MURDER RATE

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with fewer than 5.1 murders per 100,000 population annually in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2012 Uniform Crime Reporting, Federal Bureau of Investigation

| State Runk Oward Wind Biods Higgand Al/AM Multing al State Runk Deval Deval Deval Biol3 | | - | | F | RACE AND ETH | INICITY | | | | | | | IN | COME | | | |
|---|----------------------------|------|---------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|----------------------|------|---------|--------|----------|----------|----------|--------|
| Constructure 1 10007 10008 | State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| idware 1 10208 10 | Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine 1 1000% 1000% 1000% 1000% 1000% Maine 1 1000% </td <td>Hawaii</td> <td>1</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>Hawaii</td> <td>1</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> | Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Shock Mard 1 10005 <t< td=""><td>Maine</td><td>1</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>Maine</td><td>1</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td><td>100.0%</td></t<> | Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| verner 1 00005 00 | Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | New Hampshire | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Mineschart 6 99.2% 99.2% 99.2% 99.2% 99.2% 94.6% 99.2% 94.6% Mineschart 1 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 93.3% 93.5% 93.6% </td <td>Vermont</td> <td>1</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>Rhode Island</td> <td>1</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> <td>100.0%</td> | Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Oregon 7 99.98 99.97 99.07 97 | Minnesota | 6 | 99.3% | 99.3% | 100.0% | 98.9% | 99.9% | 94.6% | 99.2% | Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| bah 98.3 99.2% 99 | Oregon | 7 | 98.9% | 98.9% | 99.7% | 98.3% | 99.7% | 97.0% | 99.4% | Minnesota | 7 | 99.3% | 99.0% | 99.0% | 99.0% | 99.3% | 99.5% |
| Instand 9 975% 975% 992% <th< td=""><td>Utah</td><td>8</td><td>98.3%</td><td>98.2%</td><td>99.4%</td><td>98.7%</td><td>99.5%</td><td>94.7%</td><td>98.8%</td><td>Oregon</td><td>8</td><td>98.9%</td><td>98.9%</td><td>98.6%</td><td>98.7%</td><td>98.9%</td><td>99.2%</td></th<> | Utah | 8 | 98.3% | 98.2% | 99.4% | 98.7% | 99.5% | 94.7% | 98.8% | Oregon | 8 | 98.9% | 98.9% | 98.6% | 98.7% | 98.9% | 99.2% |
| Inva 10 97.58 97.48 99.28 99.28 99.26 99.25 97.36 99.26 99.26 99.26 99.25 97.36 97.36 97.36 97.75 97.76 97.75 97.76 97.75 97. | Idaho | 9 | 97.9% | 98.0% | 98.9% | 98.0% | 99.3% | 92.7% | 97.5% | Utah | 9 | 98.3% | 98.2% | 98.0% | 98.3% | 98.3% | 98.4% |
| Alaska 11 99,7% 99,2% 99,2% 99,2% 99,2% 99,2% 99,2% 97,2% 9 | Iowa | 10 | 97.5% | 97.4% | 99.2% | 97.3% | 99.0% | 98.6% | 98.2% | Idaho | 10 | 97.9% | 97.3% | 97.7% | 97.7% | 98.1% | 98.6% |
| Indm Badria 12 99.38 99.64 99.58 99.28 | Alaska | 11 | 96.7% | 99.2% | 98.3% | 98.0% | 95.1% | 83.2% | 97.9% | Iowa | 11 | 97.5% | 97.0% | 97.0% | 97.3% | 97.4% | 98.2% |
| South Datola 13 96.08 99.98 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 99.03 | North Dakota | 12 | 96.3% | 96.4% | 98.9% | 96.5% | 99.1% | 93.2% | 95.4% | Alaska | 12 | 96.7% | 93.5% | 94.5% | 96.0% | 97.5% | 98.3% |
| Wohrspieln 14 94.98 99.08 < | South Dakota | 13 | 96.0% | 95.9% | 98.4% | 97.0% | 97.0% | 96.1% | 95.2% | North Dakota | 13 | 96.3% | 96.7% | 96.4% | 96.1% | 95.8% | 96.4% |
| Indexana 15 97.5 92.05 92.05 94.05 93.05 93.05 93.05 94.05 | Washington | 14 | 94.9% | 96.3% | 99.0% | 81.3% | 99.4% | 87.5% | 97.5% | South Dakota | 14 | 96.1% | 97.5% | 96.2% | 96.1% | 96.0% | 95.3% |
| Index Number Index Parameter Parameter <th< td=""><td>Montana</td><td>15</td><td>91.7%</td><td>92.1%</td><td>95.8%</td><td>93.0%</td><td>93.6%</td><td>84.4%</td><td>93.7%</td><td>Washington</td><td>15</td><td>94.8%</td><td>91.8%</td><td>91.6%</td><td>94.1%</td><td>95.9%</td><td>97.2%</td></th<> | Montana | 15 | 91.7% | 92.1% | 95.8% | 93.0% | 93.6% | 84.4% | 93.7% | Washington | 15 | 94.8% | 91.8% | 91.6% | 94.1% | 95.9% | 97.2% |
| Clorado 17 B8.1% 68.9% 69.2% 80.0% 44.7% 64.7% 77.7% 97.7% 91.4% 99.5% 86.6% 92.4% 92.3% Microsin 19 84.1% 86.2% 233 65.0% 72.8% 90.2% 72.8% 20.7% 86.0% 97.8% 86.1% 72.8% 86.1% 73.5% 86.0% 87.8% 87.8% Arizona 20 72.8% 86.2% 72.8% 94.4% 88.2% 73.8% 73.3% 83.4% 66.3% 76.7% 77.8% | Massachusetts | 16 | 88.8% | 92.9% | 64.7% | 77.1% | 83.7% | 83.9% | 86.4% | Montana | 16 | 91.8% | 90.1% | 90.2% | 91.5% | 92.8% | 93.3% |
| kanss 18 64.1% 66.3% 77.1% 66.5% 77.2% 00.7% Massatheerts 18 80.0% 79.9% 86.0% 88.6% 89.6% 92.0% Wiscorsin 20 77.3% 76.3% 66.3% 97.9% 84.0% 87.0% 83.1% 83.1% 83.4% 89.0% 87.8% 83.1% Arizona 20 77.3% 60.3% 57.5% 77.4% 77.4% 80.0% 83.4% 84.0% 87.6% 86.7% 83.3% 77.4% 80.3% 86.6% 87.6% 86.7% 86.0% 87.6% 86.7% 86.0% 87.6% 86.7% 86.0% 87.6% 87.7%< | Colorado | 17 | 86.1% | 88.9% | 69.2% | 80.0% | 84.7% | 84.1% | 87.6% | Wyoming | 17 | 91.4% | 89.5% | 88.6% | 90.4% | 92.4% | 93.2% |
| Misconsin 19 83.4% 89.2% 23.3% 61.0% 71.1% 90.2% 77.2% 60.0% 87.8% 88.4% 86.9% 87.8% 87.8% Virginia 21 77.6% 80.1% 51.5% 85.8% 92.8% 77.4% Virginia 21 83.3% 72.4% 80.7% 87.8% 47.8% Virginia 21 83.3% 72.4% 80.7% 87.8% 86.2% 86.7% 87.8% 47.8% 47.8% 47.8% 72.4% 47.0% 77.8% 77.8% 82.8% 86.2% 86.7% 77.8% 77.8% 77.8% 77.8% 77.8% 47 | Kansas | 18 | 84.1% | 86.8% | 63.1% | 76.1% | 86.5% | 87.2% | 80.7% | Massachusetts | 18 | 89.0% | 79.9% | 86.0% | 88.6% | 89.6% | 92.0% |
| hricona 20 77.5% 76.5% 66.3% 77.2% 84.4% 78.2% 77.4% 77.5% 83.4% 84.6% 87.6% Virginia 21 77.6% 80.1% 51.6% 55.8% 92.8% 77.6% 77.4% 77.6% 77.7% 87.7% 86.2% 87.6% Michigan 23 77.6% 77.2% 77.2% 77.8% 67.9% 77.2% 77.2% 77.4% 77.7% 87.7% 80.2% Michigan 23 77.0% 77.2% 77.7% 67.9% 77.7% 67.9% 67.9% 77.2% 77.2% 77.7% 80.0% 97.9% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 80.0% 97.9% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 80.0% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7% 77.7%< | Wisconsin | 19 | 83.4% | 89.2% | 29.3% | 63.0% | 75.1% | 90.2% | 76.2% | Colorado | 19 | 86.1% | 80.8% | 83.4% | 86.9% | 87.8% | 88.1% |
| Virginia 21 77.8% 80.2% 61.5% 68.2% 78.6% 79.4% Microsin 21 88.3% 72.4% 80.1% 51.6% 68.2% 86.7% Missouri 22 77.6% 77.8% 57.2% 76.5% 72.5% 72.4% Arizona 22 78.3% 66.0% 77.4% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 78.7% 67.0% 77.4% 68.0% 74.6% 69.5% 77.7% 87.7% 87.0% 87.0% 78.3% 66.0% 76.5% 78.8% 66.3% 67.5% 78.8% 66.0% 76.6% 77.8% 62.0% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 60.5% 77.2% 78.8% 77.2% 77.2% 78.8% 77.2% 72.4% 77.2% 77.2% 77 | Arizona | 20 | 78.5% | 76.7% | 86.3% | 79.2% | 84.4% | 88.2% | 78.1% | Kansas | 20 | 84.0% | 78.3% | 81.7% | 83.4% | 84.6% | 87.6% |
| Missouri 22 76.9% 71.9% 51.9% 72.9% 77.4% 77.4% 77.9% <th< td=""><td>Virginia</td><td>21</td><td>77.8%</td><td>80.2%</td><td>61.5%</td><td>85.8%</td><td>92.8%</td><td>78.6%</td><td>79.4%</td><td>Wisconsin</td><td>21</td><td>83.3%</td><td>72.4%</td><td>80.1%</td><td>85.2%</td><td>86.2%</td><td>86.7%</td></th<> | Virginia | 21 | 77.8% | 80.2% | 61.5% | 85.8% | 92.8% | 78.6% | 79.4% | Wisconsin | 21 | 83.3% | 72.4% | 80.1% | 85.2% | 86.2% | 86.7% |
| Michigan 23 72.0% 77.2% 97.4% 66.6% 76.9% 77.2% 76.2% 77.7% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 77.3% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% 87.0% <th< td=""><td>Missouri</td><td>22</td><td>76.8%</td><td>81.1%</td><td>51.6%</td><td>63.2%</td><td>76.5%</td><td>72.5%</td><td>74.4%</td><td>Arizona</td><td>22</td><td>78.6%</td><td>78.0%</td><td>77.6%</td><td>77.4%</td><td>78.7%</td><td>80.2%</td></th<> | Missouri | 22 | 76.8% | 81.1% | 51.6% | 63.2% | 76.5% | 72.5% | 74.4% | Arizona | 22 | 78.6% | 78.0% | 77.6% | 77.4% | 78.7% | 80.2% |
| Pennsylvania 24 70.6% 77.5% 27.3% 66.4% 52.7% 66.3% 64.1% Missouri 24 76.8% 69.6% 77.2% 77.8% 80.8% West Virginia 25 70.5% 70.9% 62.2% 79.2% 72.8% 69.3% 57.1% Michigan 25 77.8% 69.6% 77.4% 77.6% 77.6% 77.6% 77.8% 69.3% 77.4% 77.6% 77.6% 77.8% 69.3% 77.8% 77.8% 77.8% 69.3% 77.8% | Michigan | 23 | 72.0% | 78.2% | 37.4% | 69.6% | 76.9% | 78.2% | 72.8% | Virginia | 23 | 78.3% | 63.0% | 69.5% | 73.9% | 77.7% | 87.0% |
| West Virginia 25 70.5% 70.9% 62.2% 79.2% 72.8% 69.3% 57.1% Michigan 25 71.8% 62.0% 69.2% 72.9% 72.4% 65.7% 73.8% 67.7% 75.0% Maryland 26 70.8% 53.5% 66.1% 66.7% 73.3% 77.3% 66.3% 47.3% | Pennsylvania | 24 | 70.6% | 77.5% | 27.8% | 66.4% | 52.7% | 63.5% | 64.1% | Missouri | 24 | 76.8% | 69.6% | 74.6% | 77.2% | 78.8% | 80.5% |
| Maryland 26 70.4% 85.0% 42.1% 65.7% 83.4% 66.7% 75.0% Maryland 26 70.8% 53.3% 61.1% 66.4% 70.3% 77.2% Kentucky ¹ 27 67.9% 72.4% 32.4% 50.8% 60.6% 50.2% 59.4% Vest Virginia 27 70.5% 59.9% 66.5% 70.3% | West Virginia | 25 | 70.5% | 70.9% | 62.2% | 79.2% | 72.8% | 69.3% | 57.1% | Michigan | 25 | 71.8% | 62.0% | 69.2% | 72.9% | 74.6% | 76.6% |
| Kentucky ¹ 27 67.9% 72.4% 32.4% 50.8% 40.0% 67.6% 56.0% Pensylvania 27 70.5% 59.9% 68.5% 72.1% 73.3% 73.4% Nebraska 28 67.9% 71.4% 28.3% 60.6% 55.2% 80.2% 59.4% West Virginia 28 00.4% 60.5% 60.9% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.3% 70.6% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.3% 70.6% 66.3% 70.5% 66.3% 70.3% 70.6% 67.5% 72.8% 57.9% Indiana 32 66.4% 70.3% 70.6% 67.5% 72.8% 53.4% Georgia 34 61.4% 55.7% 66.0% | Maryland | 26 | 70.4% | 85.0% | 42.1% | 65.7% | 83.4% | 66.7% | 75.0% | Maryland | 26 | 70.8% | 53.5% | 61.1% | 66.4% | 70.3% | 78.2% |
| Nebras 28 67.9% 71.4% 28.3% 60.6% 56.2% 80.2% 59.4% West Virginia 28 70.4% 70.5% 68.7% 70.5% 69.2% 70.9% 71.2% Arkansas 29 66.1% 71.8% 31.5% 73.3% 74.9% 81.8% 71.5% Kentucky 29 68.0% 69.9% 70.3% 69.2% 69.6% 63.3% Indiana 30 65.1% 71.8% 33.3% 64.6% 77.2% 50.4% 66.5% Arkansas 31 66.1% 66.5% 67.6% 67.5% 67.6% 67.5% 67.6% 67.5% 63.8% 66.5% Arkansas 31 66.1% 63.5% 66.5% 67.6% 67.5% 63.8% 66.5% Arkansas 31 66.1% 63.5% 66.5% 67.6% 67.5% 75.8% 63.4% 62.9% 63.0% 66.5% 67.6% 67.5% 75.8% 63.4% 62.2% 55.5% 68.0% 66.1% 67.6% 67.6% | Kentuckv ^a | 27 | 67.9% | 72.4% | 32.4% | 50.8% | 40.6% | 67.6% | 56.0% | Pennsylvania | 27 | 70.5% | 59.9% | 68.5% | 72.1% | 73.3% | 73.4% |
| Arkansas 29 66.1% 71.8% 31.5% 78.3% 74.9% 81.8% 71.5% Kentucky 29 68.0% 69.9% 70.3% 69.2% 69.6% 63.3% Indiana 30 65.1% 71.8% 24.0% 45.18 61.5% 62.5% 59.7% Nebraska 30 67.7% 63.3% 66.9% 67.6% 67.7% 66.3% 66.9% 67.6% 67.7% 66.3% 66.9% 67.6% 67.7% 66.3% 66.9% 67.6% 67.7% 66.3% 66.9% 67.6% 67.7% 66.3% 66.7% 67.5% Indiana 32 64.8% 57.7% 63.2% 65.8% 67.6% 67.5% 66.0% 60.6% 63.1% 70.5% 65.8% 67.6% 67.5% 63.2% 65.8% 67.6% 67.5% 63.2% 65.8% 67.6% 67.5% 63.2% 62.5% 65.8% 62.6% 60.5% 53.4% 69.2% 52.5% 55.5% 60.0% 60.6% 62.6% 60.6% | Nebraska | 28 | 67.9% | 71.4% | 28.3% | 60.6% | 56.2% | 80.2% | 59.4% | West Virginia | 28 | 70.4% | 70.5% | 68.7% | 70.5% | 70.9% | 71.2% |
| Indiana 30 65.1% 71.5% 24.0% 45.1% 61.5% 62.5% 59.7% New Series 31 66.1% 63.7% 67.8% 70.3% 66.3% New Jersey 31 64.5% 71.8% 37.3% 54.6% 77.2% 50.4% 66.5% Arkansas 31 66.1% 63.7% 67.6% 67.5% 58.8% 66.8% 67.6% <t< td=""><td>Arkansas</td><td>29</td><td>66.1%</td><td>71.8%</td><td>31.5%</td><td>78.3%</td><td>74 9%</td><td>81.8%</td><td>71.5%</td><td>Kentucky</td><td>29</td><td>68.0%</td><td>69.9%</td><td>70.3%</td><td>69.2%</td><td>69.6%</td><td>63.3%</td></t<> | Arkansas | 29 | 66.1% | 71.8% | 31.5% | 78.3% | 74 9% | 81.8% | 71.5% | Kentucky | 29 | 68.0% | 69.9% | 70.3% | 69.2% | 69.6% | 63.3% |
| New Jersey 31 64.5% 71.8% 37.3% 54.6% 77.2% 50.4% 66.5% Arkansas 31 66.1% 63.5% 66.9% 67.6% 67.1% 65.8% Georgia* 32 60.9% 69.6% 43.2% 66.7% 59.6% 59.2% 57.9% Indiana 32 64.8% 57.7% 63.2% 66.8% 67.6% 67.5% 67.5% Texas 33 59.6% 68.2% 42.1% 55.3% 54.3% 64.9% 59.9% New Jersey 33 64.6% 52.1% 56.6% 60.8% 61.8% 60.8% 67.6% 67.5% 63.8% 60.8% 67.6% 67.5% 70.5% North Carolina 34 59.1% 66.5% 53.3% 52.4% 68.2% 29.5% 53.4% Georgia 34 61.2% 55.5% 58.4% 60.8% 62.6% Ohio 36 55.8% 62.1% 37.3% 53.9% 58.9% 58.1% Mississipi 37 | Indiana | 30 | 65.1% | 71.5% | 24.0% | 45.1% | 61.5% | 62.5% | 59.7% | Nebraska | 30 | 67.7% | 63.7% | 67.8% | 70.3% | 70.6% | 66.3% |
| Georgia 32 60.9% 69.6% 43.2% 66.7% 59.2% 57.9% Indian 32 64.8% 57.7% 63.2% 65.8% 67.6% 67.6% Texas 33 59.6% 66.2% 42.1% 55.3% 54.3% 64.9% 59.9% New Jersey 33 64.6% 52.1% 56.8% 60.0% 65.1% 70.5% North Carolina 34 59.1% 66.1% 42.5% 54.3% 52.6% 29.5% 53.4% Georgia 34 51.2% 55.6% 60.0% 63.4% 60.3% 66 | New Jersev | 31 | 64.5% | 71.8% | 37.3% | 54.6% | 77.2% | 50.4% | 66.5% | Arkansas | 31 | 66.1% | 63.5% | 66.9% | 67.6% | 67.1% | 65.8% |
| Texas 33 59.6% 68.2% 42.1% 55.3% 54.3% 64.9% 59.9% New Jersey 33 64.6% 52.1% 56.8% 60.0% 63.1% 70.5% North Carolina 34 59.1% 66.1% 42.5% 54.3% 52.6% 29.5% 53.4% Georgia 34 61.2% 55.6% 60.0% 63.0% 64.3% 63.0% Mississippi 35 56.6% 65.4% 42.3% 60.5% 53.1% 78.1% 59.2% Texas 35 59.4% 57.1% 56.5% 58.4% 60.8% 62.6% Ohio 36 55.8% 62.1% 18.5% 44.5% 36.2% 52.3% 48.3% North Carolina 36 55.5% 58.2% 60.0% 60.9% 62.7% Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 37.7% 53.3% 58.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.7% 59.8% 59.8% 62.7% Oklahoma | Georgiaª | 32 | 60.9% | 69.6% | 43.2% | 68.7% | 59.6% | 59.2% | 57.9% | Indiana | 32 | 64.8% | 57.7% | 63.2% | 65.8% | 67.6% | 67.5% |
| North Carolina 34 S91% 66.1% 42.5% 54.3% 52.6% 29.5% 53.4% Georgia 34 61.2% 55.6% 60.0% 63.0% 64.3% 62.6% Mississippi 35 56.6% 65.4% 42.3% 60.5% 53.1% 78.1% 59.2% 78.1% 59.2% 59.4% 57.1% 56.5% 58.4% 60.0% 64.3% 62.6% Ohio 36 55.8% 62.5% 18.5% 44.5% 36.2% 52.3% 48.3% North Carolina 36 59.2% 55.5% 58.2% 60.0% 60.9% 60.6% 62.6% Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 37.4% 38.4% 59.9% 51.5% 0hio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.7% 58.3% 59.1% 55.4% | Texas | 33 | 59.6% | 68.2% | 42.1% | 55.3% | 54.3% | 64.9% | 59.9% | New Jersev | 33 | 64.6% | 52.1% | 56.8% | 60.8% | 65.1% | 70.5% |
| Mississippi 35 56.6% 65.4% 42.3% 60.5% 53.1% 78.1% 59.2% Texas 35 59.4% 60.6% 60.6% 60.6% 60.6% Ohio 36 55.8% 62.5% 18.5% 44.5% 36.2% 52.3% 48.3% North Carolina 36 59.2% 55.5% 58.2% 60.0% 60.9% 60.6% Florida 37 53.5% 62.1% 45.5% 37.7% 53.9% 58.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.3% 57.6% 58.3% 59.8% 62.7% Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 21.8% 37.4% 38.4% 59.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.7% 58.3% 59.1% 55.4% | North Carolina | 34 | 59.1% | 66.1% | 42.5% | 54.3% | 52.6% | 29.5% | 53.4% | Georgia | 34 | 61.2% | 55.6% | 60.0% | 63.0% | 64.3% | 63.0% |
| Ohio 36 55.8% 62.5% 18.5% 44.5% 36.2% 52.3% 48.3% North Carolina 36 59.2% 55.5% 58.2% 60.0% 60.5% Florida 37 53.5% 62.1% 45.5% 37.7% 53.9% 58.9% 58.1% Mississippi 37 56.8% 49.7% 55.3% 57.6% 59.8% 62.7% Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 21.8% 37.4% 38.4% 59.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.7% 58.3% 59.1% 62.7% Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 21.8% 37.4% 38.4% 59.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.4% 49.7% 55.4% 52.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 55.4% 56.4% 55.1% | Mississippi | 35 | 56.6% | 65.4% | 42.3% | 60.5% | 53.1% | 78.1% | 59.2% | Texas | 35 | 59.4% | 57.1% | 56.5% | 58.4% | 60.8% | 62.6% |
| Florida 37 53.5% 62.1% 45.5% 37.7% 53.9% 58.9% 58.1% Mississipi 37 56.8% 49.7% 55.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 59.8% 52.3% 57.6% 58.3% 59.8% 52.4% 0hio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.3% 59.8% 59 | Ohio | 36 | 55.8% | 62.5% | 18.5% | 44.5% | 36.2% | 52.3% | 48.3% | North Carolina | 36 | 59.2% | 55.5% | 58.2% | 60.0% | 60.9% | 60.6% |
| Oklahoma 38 50.3% 54.4% 21.8% 37.4% 38.4% 59.9% 51.5% Ohio 38 55.6% 49.4% 55.7% 58.3% 59.1% 55.4% Illinois 39 50.1% 61.3% 20.1% 35.6% 41.3% 49.4% 50.4% Florida 39 53.6% 49.6% 51.8% 55.4% 55.4% 55.9% New York 40 49.0% 64.5% 25.2% 29.5% 23.9% 54.9% 48.6% Oklahoma 40 50.1% 47.0% 50.6% 51.9% 51.8% 49.7% California 41 48.0% 55.6% 30.3% 44.1% 55.1% 47.5% Illinois 41 49.8% 40.2% 45.9% 50.9% 53.0% 53.6% Alabama 42 47.1% 54.5% 27.4% 56.4% 32.8% 49.4% 49.2% New York 42 48.4% 34.9% 41.5% 47.7% 52.0% 55.8% Tennessee 43 46.4% 54.4% 32.3% 45.7% 33.3% 46.9% | Florida | 37 | 53.5% | 62.1% | 45.5% | 37.7% | 53.9% | 58.9% | 58.1% | Mississippi | 37 | 56.8% | 49.7% | 55.3% | 57.6% | 59.8% | 62.7% |
| Illinois 39 50.1% 61.3% 20.1% 35.6% 41.3% 49.4% 50.4% Florida 39 53.6% 49.6% 51.8% 54.1% 55.9% New York 40 49.0% 64.5% 25.2% 29.5% 23.9% 54.9% 48.6% Oklahoma 40 50.1% 47.0% 50.6% 51.8% 51.8% 49.7% California 41 48.0% 55.6% 30.3% 44.1% 44.1% 55.1% 47.5% Illinois 41 49.8% 40.2% 45.9% 50.9% 53.6% 47.7% 50.6% 51.8% 49.7% California 41 48.0% 55.6% 30.3% 44.1% 55.1% 47.5% Illinois 41 49.8% 40.2% 45.9% 50.9% 53.6% Alabama 42 47.1% 54.5% 27.4% 56.4% 32.8% 49.4% 49.2% New York 42 48.4% 34.9% 41.5% 47.7% 52.0% 55.8% Tennessee 43 46.4% 54.4% 33.3% 46.9% 41.7%< | Oklahoma | 38 | 50.3% | 54.4% | 21.8% | 37.4% | 38.4% | 59.9% | 51.5% | Ohio | 38 | 55.6% | 49.4% | 55.7% | 58.3% | 59.1% | 55.4% |
| New York 40 49,0% 64,5% 25,2% 29,5% 23,9% 54,9% 48,6% Oklahoma 40 50,1% 47,0% 50,6% 51,9% 51,8% 49,7% California 41 48,0% 55,6% 30,3% 44,1% 55,1% 47,5% Illinois 41 49,8% 40,2% 45,9% 50,9% 53,0% 53,6% 33,6% 44,1% 55,1% 47,5% Illinois 41 49,8% 40,2% 45,9% 50,9% 53,0% 53,6% 53,6% 33,6% 44,1% 55,1% 47,5% Illinois 41 49,8% 40,2% 45,9% 50,9% 53,0% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 53,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 52,6% 44,5% 47,5% 49,1% 5 | Illinois | 39 | 50.1% | 61.3% | 20.1% | 35.6% | 41.3% | 49.4% | 50.4% | Florida | 39 | 53.6% | 49.6% | 51.8% | 54.1% | 55.4% | 55.9% |
| California 41 48.0% 55.6% 30.3% 44.1% 41.% 55.1% 47.5% Illinois 41 49.8% 40.2% 45.9% 50.9% 53.0% 53.6% Alabama 42 47.1% 54.5% 27.4% 56.4% 32.8% 49.4% 49.2% New York 42 48.4% 34.9% 41.5% 47.7% 52.0% 55.8% Tennessee 43 46.4% 54.4% 14.6% 37.4% 31.6% 48.1% 43.8% California 43 47.9% 42.0% 44.5% 47.5% 49.1% 52.2% New Mexico 44 45.7% 46.5% 32.3% 45.7% 33.3% 46.9% 41.7% Alabama 44 47.3% 45.2% 49.3% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 44.1% 33.5% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 45.6% 43.6% 47.5% 48.8% 48.8% 45.5% Delaware 45 40.5% 44.1% 33.5% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 45.6% | New York | 40 | 49.0% | 64.5% | 25.2% | 29.5% | 23.9% | 54.9% | 48.6% | Oklahoma | 40 | 50.1% | 47.0% | 50.6% | 51.9% | 51.8% | 49.7% |
| Alabama 42 47.1% 54.5% 27.4% 56.4% 32.8% 49.4% 49.2% New York 42 48.4% 34.9% 41.5% 47.7% 52.0% 55.8% Tennessee 43 46.4% 54.4% 14.6% 37.4% 31.6% 48.1% 43.8% California 43 47.9% 44.5% 47.5% 49.1% 52.2% New Mexico 44 45.7% 46.5% 32.3% 45.7% 33.3% 46.9% 41.7% Alabama 44 47.3% 45.2% 49.3% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 44.1% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 16.6% 43.6% 47.5% 48.8% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 44.1% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 16.6% 43.6% 47.5% 48.8% 48.8% 48.8% 45.5% | California | 41 | 48.0% | 55.6% | 30.3% | 44 1% | 44 1% | 55.1% | 47.5% | Illinois | 41 | 49.8% | 40.2% | 45.9% | 50.9% | 53.0% | 53.6% |
| Tennessee 43 46.4% 54.4% 14.6% 37.4% 31.6% 48.1% 43.8% California 43 47.9% 44.0% 44.5% 47.5% 49.1% 52.2% New Mexico 44 45.7% 46.5% 32.3% 45.7% 33.3% 46.9% 41.7% Alabama 44 47.3% 45.2% 49.3% 49.8% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 44.1% 33.5% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 16.6% 43.6% 47.5% 48.8% 48.8% 45.5% | Alabama | 42 | 47.1% | 54 5% | 27.4% | 56.4% | 32.8% | 49.4% | 49.2% | New York | 42 | 48.4% | 34.9% | 41 5% | 47.7% | 52.0% | 55.8% |
| New Mexico 44 45.7% 46.5% 32.3% 45.7% 33.3% 46.9% 41.7% Alabama 44 47.3% 45.2% 49.3% 49.8% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 32.3% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 15.2% 49.3% 49.8% 48.8% 44.9% Delaware 45 40.5% 32.3% 36.9% 17.8% 64.1% 47.3% 16.6% 43.6% 47.5% 48.8% 48.8% 45.5% | Tennessee | 43 | 46.4% | 54.4% | 14.6% | 37.4% | 31.6% | 48.1% | 43.8% | California | 43 | 47.9% | 42.0% | 44 5% | 47.5% | 49.1% | 52.2% |
| New Mexico New Mex | New Mexico | 44 | 45.7% | 46.5% | 32.3% | 45.7% | 33.3% | 46.9% | 41.7% | Alabama | 44 | 47.3% | 45.2% | 49.3% | 49.8% | 48.8% | 44.9% |
| | Delaware | 45 | 40.5% | 44 1% | 33.5% | 36.9% | 17.8% | 64 1% | 47.3% | Tennessee | 45 | 46.6% | 43.6% | 47 5% | 48.8% | 48.8% | 45.5% |
| | Louisiana | 46 | 33.4% | 39.7% | .22.4% | 29.9% | 21.0% | 41 5% | 36.0% | New Mexico | 46 | 45.5% | 46.5% | 45.6% | 45.3% | 45.6% | 44.8% |
| South Carolina 47 28.3% 30.1% 23.1% 31.9% 29.1% 29.7% 31.3% Delaware 47 40.7% 44.4% 48.2% 44.0% 43.6% 34.1% | South Carolina | 47 | 28.3% | 30.1% | 23.1% | 31.9% | 29.1% | 29.7% | 31.3% | Delaware | 47 | 40.7% | 44.4% | 48.2% | 44.0% | 43.6% | 34.1% |
| Nevada 48 24.4% 32.0% 5.8% 18.2% 13.3% 49.8% 20.1% Louisiana 48 33.4% 29.0% 33.6% 34.1% 34.5% 35.1% | Nevada | 48 | 24.4% | 32.0% | 5.8% | 18.2% | 13.3% | 49.8% | 20.1% | Louisiana | 48 | 33.4% | 29.0% | 33.6% | 34 1% | 34 5% | 35.1% |
| District of Columbia 49 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0 | District of Columbia | 49 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | South Carolina | 49 | 28.5% | 25.0% | 27.4% | 28.9% | 29.4% | 30.7% |
| New Hampshire ^b 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Nevada 50 24.3% 24.4% 24.1% 22.9% 24.0% 25.5% | New Hampshire ^b | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% | Nevada | 50 | 24.3% | 24.4% | 24.1% | 22.9% | 24.0% | 25.5% |
| Wyoming ^b 92.5% 96.8% 94.1% 29.5% 90.3% District of Columbia 51 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% | Wyoming ^b | | | 92.5% | 96.8% | 94.1% | | 29.5% | 90.3% | District of Columbia | 51 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low murder rates

All people in CT, HI, ME, NH, RI, and VT live in

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW MURDER RATE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low murder rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | White | | Black | | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Minnesota | 6 | 39,635 | 0.7% | 32,569 | 0.7% | 112 | 0.0% | 2,857 | 1.1% | 309 | 0.1% | 2,827 | 5.4% | 961 | 0.8% |
| Oregon | 7 | 43,483 | 1.1% | 32,939 | 1.1% | 175 | 0.3% | 7,964 | 1.7% | 519 | 0.3% | 1,120 | 3.0% | 766 | 0.6% |
| Utah | 8 | 49,828 | 1.7% | 42,143 | 1.8% | 177 | 0.6% | 5,018 | 1.3% | 399 | 0.5% | 1,495 | 5.3% | 596 | 1.2% |
| Idaho | 9 | 33,179 | 2.1% | 27,275 | 2.0% | 92 | 1.1% | 3,656 | 2.0% | 150 | 0.7% | 1,230 | 7.3% | 776 | 2.5% |
| Iowa | 10 | 75,786 | 2.5% | 69,032 | 2.6% | 758 | 0.8% | 4,411 | 2.7% | 597 | 1.0% | 111 | 1.4% | 877 | 1.8% |
| Alaska | 11 | 23,216 | 3.3% | 3,621 | 0.8% | 406 | 1.7% | 877 | 2.0% | 2,325 | 4.9% | 14,927 | 16.8% | 1,060 | 2.1% |
| North Dakota | 12 | 25,910 | 3.7% | 22,023 | 3.6% | 118 | 1.1% | 635 | 3.5% | 71 | 0.9% | 2,464 | 6.8% | 599 | 4.6% |
| South Dakota | 13 | 33,119 | 4.0% | 28,794 | 4.1% | 197 | 1.6% | 782 | 3.0% | 288 | 3.0% | 2,190 | 3.9% | 868 | 4.8% |
| Washington | 14 | 354,643 | 5.1% | 180,604 | 3.7% | 2,297 | 1.0% | 151,113 | 18.7% | 3,374 | 0.6% | 10,316 | 12.5% | 6,939 | 2.5% |
| Montana | 15 | 83,699 | 8.3% | 69,582 | 7.9% | 184 | 4.2% | 2,248 | 7.0% | 459 | 6.4% | 9,845 | 15.6% | 1,381 | 6.3% |
| Massachusetts | 16 | 738,986 | 11.2% | 352,091 | 7.1% | 149,442 | 35.3% | 156,323 | 22.9% | 62,639 | 16.3% | 1,306 | 16.1% | 17,185 | 13.6% |
| Colorado | 17 | 721,148 | 13.9% | 399,995 | 11.1% | 61,273 | 30.8% | 217,761 | 20.0% | 22,807 | 15.3% | 4,528 | 15.9% | 14,784 | 12.4% |
| Kansas | 18 | 458,025 | 15.9% | 294,824 | 13.2% | 60,156 | 36.9% | 75,688 | 23.9% | 9,930 | 13.5% | 2,565 | 12.8% | 14,862 | 19.3% |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 952,441 | 16.6% | 510,604 | 10.8% | 248,347 | 70.7% | 131,473 | 37.0% | 34,346 | 24.9% | 4,483 | 9.8% | 23,188 | 23.8% |
| Arizona | 20 | 1,407,575 | 21.5% | 871,035 | 23.3% | 35,199 | 13.7% | 412,132 | 20.8% | 30,924 | 15.6% | 31,107 | 11.8% | 27,178 | 21.9% |
| Virginia | 21 | 1,813,010 | 22.2% | 1,037,626 | 19.8% | 596,950 | 38.5% | 97,459 | 14.2% | 34,293 | 7.2% | 3,688 | 21.4% | 42,994 | 20.6% |
| Missouri | 22 | 1,397,292 | 23.2% | 917,200 | 18.9% | 333,815 | 48.4% | 83,265 | 36.8% | 25,054 | 23.5% | 5,967 | 27.5% | 31,991 | 25.6% |
| Michigan | 23 | 2,767,271 | 28.0% | 1,642,251 | 21.8% | 856,373 | 62.6% | 138,759 | 30.4% | 59,875 | 23.1% | 10,562 | 21.8% | 59,451 | 27.2% |
| Pennsylvania | 24 | 3,745,287 | 29.4% | 2,256,877 | 22.5% | 968,372 | 72.2% | 263,809 | 33.6% | 178,434 | 47.3% | 5,553 | 36.5% | 72,242 | 35.9% |
| West Virginia | 25 | 546,034 | 29.5% | 499,484 | 29.1% | 22,065 | 37.8% | 5,014 | 20.8% | 3,671 | 27.2% | 886 | 30.7% | 14,914 | 42.9% |
| Maryland | 26 | 1,736,757 | 29.6% | 472,810 | 15.0% | 990,555 | 57.9% | 177,110 | 34.3% | 57,319 | 16.6% | 4,034 | 33.3% | 34,929 | 25.0% |
| Kentucky ^a | 27 | 1,404,156 | 32.1% | 1,037,095 | 27.6% | 229,860 | 67.6% | 68,680 | 49.2% | 32,641 | 59.4% | 2,396 | 32.4% | 33,484 | 44.0% |
| Nebraska | 28 | 594,586 | 32.1% | 431,220 | 28.6% | 60,147 | 71.7% | 71,077 | 39.4% | 15,923 | 43.8% | 2,552 | 19.8% | 13,667 | 40.6% |
| Arkansas | 29 | 997,814 | 33.9% | 614,008 | 28.2% | 311,907 | 68.5% | 43,056 | 21.7% | 11,075 | 25.1% | 3,038 | 18.2% | 14,730 | 28.5% |
| Indiana | 30 | 2,277,052 | 34.9% | 1,506,380 | 28.5% | 448,471 | 76.0% | 225,833 | 54.9% | 44,436 | 38.5% | 4,575 | 37.5% | 47,357 | 40.3% |
| New Jersey | 31 | 3,133,693 | 35.5% | 1,446,912 | 28.2% | 710,896 | 62.7% | 748,701 | 45.4% | 177,203 | 22.8% | 5,156 | 49.6% | 44,825 | 33.5% |
| Georgiaª | 32 | 3,862,396 | 39.1% | 1,654,231 | 30.4% | 1,711,498 | 56.8% | 280,482 | 31.3% | 139,994 | 40.4% | 7,462 | 40.8% | 68,729 | 42.1% |
| Texas | 33 | 10,537,508 | 40.4% | 3,677,970 | 31.8% | 1,745,270 | 57.9% | 4,448,520 | 44.7% | 490,383 | 45.7% | 23,186 | 35.1% | 152,179 | 40.1% |
| North Carolina | 34 | 3,979,126 | 40.9% | 2,132,223 | 33.9% | 1,186,156 | 57.5% | 388,191 | 45.7% | 111,576 | 47.4% | 74,893 | 70.5% | 86,087 | 46.6% |
| Mississippi | 35 | 1,294,866 | 43.4% | 593,916 | 34.6% | 639,725 | 57.7% | 33,250 | 39.5% | 13,274 | 46.9% | 2,599 | 21.9% | 12,102 | 40.8% |
| Ohio | 36 | 5,104,706 | 44.2% | 3,496,158 | 37.5% | 1,132,117 | 81.5% | 210,607 | 55.5% | 133,735 | 63.8% | 8,114 | 47.7% | 123,975 | 51.7% |
| Florida | 37 | 8,975,172 | 46.5% | 4,156,966 | 37.9% | 1,624,269 | 54.5% | 2,815,661 | 62.3% | 227,185 | 46.1% | 17,342 | 41.1% | 133,749 | 41.9% |
| Oklahoma | 38 | 1,895,895 | 49.7% | 1,180,871 | 45.6% | 213,443 | 78.2% | 224,001 | 62.6% | 45,834 | 61.6% | 105,559 | 40.1% | 126,187 | 48.5% |
| Illinois | 39 | 6,409,310 | 49.9% | 3,127,034 | 38.7% | 1,456,468 | 79.9% | 1,349,665 | 64.4% | 366,753 | 58.7% | 7,428 | 50.6% | 101,962 | 49.6% |
| New York | 40 | 9,951,093 | 51.0% | 3,982,101 | 35.5% | 2,113,493 | 74.8% | 2,510,265 | 70.5% | 1,154,090 | 76.1% | 21,314 | 45.1% | 169,830 | 51.4% |
| California | 41 | 19,763,335 | 52.0% | 6,617,960 | 44.4% | 1,502,196 | 69.7% | 8,124,143 | 55.9% | 2,905,452 | 55.9% | 65,495 | 44.9% | 548,089 | 52.5% |
| Alabama | 42 | 2,544,754 | 52.9% | 1,457,490 | 45.5% | 917,101 | 72.6% | 83,606 | 43.6% | 39,676 | 67.2% | 11,723 | 50.6% | 35,158 | 50.8% |
| Tennessee | 43 | 3,455,011 | 53.6% | 2,206,874 | 45.6% | 917,665 | 85.4% | 193,988 | 62.6% | 68,851 | 68.4% | 7,093 | 51.9% | 60,540 | 56.2% |
| New Mexico | 44 | 1,127,804 | 54.3% | 440,776 | 53.5% | 25,400 | 67.7% | 530,679 | 54.3% | 18,643 | 66.7% | 94,299 | 53.1% | 18,007 | 58.3% |
| Delaware | 45 | 544,812 | 59.5% | 329,717 | 55.9% | 128,460 | 66.5% | 49,565 | 63.1% | 26,009 | 82.2% | 868 | 35.9% | 10,193 | 52.7% |
| Louisiana | 46 | 3,059,860 | 66.6% | 1,657,055 | 60.3% | 1,138,607 | 77.6% | 147,493 | 70.1% | 60,409 | 79.0% | 14,926 | 58.5% | 41,370 | 64.0% |
| South Carolina | 47 | 3,386,820 | 71.7% | 2,111,799 | 69.9% | 996,525 | 76.9% | 169,247 | 68.1% | 45,974 | 70.9% | 9,949 | 70.3% | 53,326 | 68.7% |
| Nevada | 48 | 2,083,458 | 75.6% | 989,681 | 68.0% | 207,706 | 94.2% | 614,824 | 81.8% | 191,216 | 86.7% | 12,191 | 50.2% | 67,840 | 79.9% |
| District of Columbia | 49 | 632,425 | 100.0% | 224,184 | 100.0% | 308,766 | 100.0% | 62,637 | 100.0% | 22,698 | 100.0% | 1,384 | 100.0% | 12,756 | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 36,822 | 7.5% | 184 | 3.2% | 3,209 | 5.9% | | | 7,927 | 70.5% | 1,011 | 9.7% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

HOPE Goal

of people live in counties with low murder rates

All people in CT, HI, ME, NH, RI, and VT live in counties with low murder rates.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW MURDER RATE

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low murder rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-99% | 6 FPL | 100-199 | % FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+ | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Minnesota | 7 | 39,063 | 0.7% | 5,864 | 1.0% | 8,000 | 1.0% | 8,281 | 1.0% | 5,820 | 0.7% | 11,098 | |
| Oregon | 8 | 42,856 | 1.1% | 7,297 | 1.1% | 10,583 | 1.4% | 9,019 | 1.3% | 5,716 | 1.1% | 10,241 | |
| Utah | 9 | 48,643 | 1.7% | 6,310 | 1.8% | 11,041 | 2.0% | 10,306 | 1.7% | 7,676 | 1.7% | 13,310 | |
| Idaho | 10 | 32,444 | 2.1% | 6,663 | 2.7% | 8,430 | 2.3% | 7,550 | 2.3% | 4,141 | 1.9% | 5,660 | |
| lowa | 11 | 73,463 | 2.5% | 11,044 | 3.0% | 15,984 | 3.0% | 15,064 | 2.7% | 12,556 | 2.6% | 18,815 | |
| Alaska | 12 | 22,635 | 3.3% | 4,551 | 6.5% | 6,166 | 5.5% | 4,061 | 4.0% | 2,537 | 2.5% | 5,320 | |
| North Dakota | 13 | 25,078 | 3.7% | 2,630 | 3.3% | 3,813 | 3.6% | 4,694 | 3.9% | 4,496 | 4.2% | 9,445 | |
| South Dakota | 14 | 31,659 | 3.9% | 2,877 | 2.5% | 5,829 | 3.8% | 6,027 | 3.9% | 5,181 | 4.0% | 11,745 | |
| Washington | 15 | 349,547 | 5.2% | 75,523 | 8.2% | 95,433 | 8.4% | 65,146 | 5.9% | 38,233 | 4.1% | 75,212 | |
| Montana | 16 | 80,832 | 8.2% | 14,817 | 9.9% | 19,978 | 9.8% | 15,406 | 8.5% | 10,648 | 7.2% | 19,983 | |
| Wyoming | 17 | 48,330 | 8.6% | 6,862 | 10.5% | 10,891 | 11.4% | 9,249 | 9.6% | 6,755 | 7.6% | 14,573 | |
| Massachusetts | 18 | 705,431 | 11.0% | 149,227 | 20.1% | 120,753 | 14.0% | 98,556 | 11.4% | 85,004 | 10.4% | 251,891 | |
| Colorado | 19 | 706,053 | 13.9% | 127,250 | 19.2% | 144,211 | 16.6% | 108,169 | 13.1% | 84,984 | 12.2% | 241,439 | |
| Kansas | 20 | 449,202 | 16.0% | 83,804 | 21.7% | 97,057 | 18.3% | 85,159 | 16.6% | 65,065 | 15.4% | 118,117 | |
| Wisconsin | 21 | 931,401 | 16.7% | 203,926 | 27.6% | 195,186 | 19.9% | 147,356 | 14.8% | 119,521 | 13.8% | 265,412 | |
| Arizona | 22 | 1,372,941 | 21.4% | 256,878 | 22.0% | 300,087 | 22.4% | 253,904 | 22.6% | 179,335 | 21.3% | 382,737 | |
| Virginia | 23 | 1,723,835 | 21.7% | 338,677 | 37.0% | 374,422 | 30.5% | 316,840 | 26.1% | 237,545 | 22.3% | 456,351 | |
| Missouri | 24 | 1,358,175 | 23.2% | 276,975 | 30.4% | 294,576 | 25.4% | 246,524 | 22.8% | 180,987 | 21.2% | 359,113 | |
| Michigan | 25 | 2,725,172 | 28.2% | 621,077 | 38.0% | 552,797 | 30.8% | 457,708 | 27.1% | 353,116 | 25.4% | 740,474 | |
| Maryland | 26 | 1,675,463 | 29.2% | 266,676 | 46.5% | 296,659 | 38.9% | 265,509 | 33.6% | 217,610 | 29.7% | 629,009 | |
| Pennsylvania | 27 | 3,644,568 | 29.5% | 668,783 | 40.1% | 672,583 | 31.5% | 595,498 | 27.9% | 482,276 | 26.7% | 1,225,428 | |
| West Virginia | 28 | 533,393 | 29.6% | 96,200 | 29.5% | 122,032 | 31.3% | 98,276 | 29.5% | 75,909 | 29.1% | 140,976 | |
| Kentucky | 29 | 1,361,161 | 32.0% | 241,989 | 30.1% | 263,495 | 29.7% | 230,118 | 30.8% | 183,185 | 30.4% | 442,374 | |
| Nebraska | 30 | 582,401 | 32.3% | 84,173 | 36.3% | 109,118 | 32.2% | 99,580 | 29.7% | 83,219 | 29.4% | 206,311 | |
| Arkansas | 31 | 969,618 | 33.9% | 200,494 | 36.5% | 224,708 | 33.1% | 169,886 | 32.4% | 122,847 | 32.9% | 251,683 | |
| Indiana | 32 | 2.231.166 | 35.2% | 416,302 | 42.3% | 459.312 | 36.8% | 409.336 | 34.2% | 316.724 | 32.4% | 629,492 | |
| New Jersey | 33 | 3,076,927 | 35.4% | 447,919 | 47.9% | 519,313 | 43.2% | 457,878 | 39.2% | 375,101 | 34.9% | 1,276,716 | |
| Georgia | 34 | 3,739,494 | 38.8% | 790,933 | 44.4% | 793,040 | 40.0% | 605,326 | 37.0% | 444,144 | 35.7% | 1,106,051 | |
| Texas | 35 | 10,338,353 | 40.6% | 1,930,389 | 42.9% | 2,339,234 | 43.5% | 1,758,324 | 41.6% | 1,244,299 | 39.2% | 3,066,107 | |
| North Carolina | 36 | 3,879,164 | 40.8% | 741,954 | 44.5% | 836,565 | 41.8% | 666,026 | 40.0% | 497,208 | 39.1% | 1,137,411 | |
| Mississippi | 37 | 1,248,460 | 43.2% | 328,643 | 50.3% | 301,909 | 44.7% | 218,877 | 42.4% | 144,655 | 40.2% | 254,376 | |
| Ohio | 38 | 4,996,630 | 44.4% | 905,234 | 50.6% | 916,105 | 44.3% | 836,234 | 41.7% | 678,393 | 40.9% | 1,660,664 | |
| Florida | 39 | 8,794,005 | 46.4% | 1,591,768 | 50.4% | 1,953,804 | 48.2% | 1,572,620 | 45.9% | 1,139,012 | 44.6% | 2,536,801 | |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 1,847,659 | 49.9% | 331,672 | 53.0% | 399,604 | 49.4% | 331,465 | 48.1% | 249,226 | 48.2% | 535,692 | |
| Illinois | 41 | 6.307.329 | 50.2% | 1,083,048 | 59.8% | 1,186,899 | 54.1% | 995.329 | 49.1% | 805.608 | 47.0% | 2,236,445 | |
| New York | 42 | 9,837,554 | 51.6% | 1,939,751 | 65.1% | 1,892,788 | 58.5% | 1,478,247 | 52.3% | 1,160,010 | 48.0% | 3,366,758 | |
| California | 43 | 19,461,960 | 52.1% | 3,549,683 | 58.0% | 4,140,478 | 55.5% | 3,068,368 | 52.5% | 2,237,877 | 50.9% | 6,465,554 | |
| Alabama | 44 | 2,477,209 | 52.7% | 487,385 | 54.8% | 506,127 | 50.7% | 409,115 | 50.2% | 322,470 | 51.2% | 752,112 | |
| Tennessee | 45 | 3.357.801 | 53.4% | 632,797 | 56.4% | 710.635 | 52.5% | 584,139 | 51.2% | 441,189 | 51.2% | 989.041 | |
| New Mexico | 46 | 1,110,804 | 54.5% | 227,826 | 53.5% | 246,556 | 54.4% | 184,760 | 54.7% | 137,816 | 54.4% | 313,846 | |
| Delaware | 47 | 529.053 | 59.3% | 59.580 | 55.6% | 76.125 | 51.8% | 79.139 | 56.0% | 74.550 | 56.4% | 239.659 | |
| Louisiana | 48 | 2.979.008 | 66.6% | 620.989 | 71.0% | 612.619 | 66.4% | 473.507 | 65.9% | 383.147 | 65.5% | 888.746 | |
| South Carolina | 49 | 3.280.916 | 71.5% | 628.424 | 74.8% | 720.914 | 72.6% | 575.430 | 71.1% | 436.129 | 70.6% | 920.019 | |
| Nevada | 50 | 2.059.804 | 75.7% | 320.093 | 75.6% | 435.237 | 75.9% | 396.859 | 77.1% | 288.887 | 76.0% | 618.728 | |
| District of Columbia | 51 | 599,620 | 100.0% | 109,378 | 100.0% | 82,010 | 100.0% | 66,139 | 100.0% | 60,948 | 100.0% | 281,145 | |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

| o Goal | |
|--------|--|
| 0.0% | 1000/ |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.0% | of people live in counties with |
| 0.0% | low murder rates |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.5% | All people in CT, HI, ME, NH, RI, and VT live in |
| 0.8% | counties with low murder rates. |
| 1.6% | |
| 1.4% | |
| 1.8% | |
| 1.7% | |
| 3.6% | |
| 4.7% | |
| 2.8% | |
| 6.7% | |
| 6.8% | |
| 8.0% | |
| 11.9% | |
| 12.4% | |
| 13.3% | |
| 19.8% | |
| 13.0% | WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE |
| 19.5% | GOAL MEASURE? |
| 23.4% | It is an estimate of how far each state has to |
| 21.8% | go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured |
| 26.6% | as the number of people (# to Goal) and |
| 28.8% | portion of populations (% to Goal) within a |
| 36.7% | to improve in order for that state to meet the |
| 33.7% | HOPE Goal. |
| 34.2% | |
| 32.5% | HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND |
| 29.5% | WHAT DO THEY SHOW? |
| 37.0% | The percent distance values in every group |
| 37.4% | were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades |
| 27.2% | were applied to values in the top quartile, |
| 37.5% | closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively |
| 44.0% | carker snaces were given to values in the 2^{10} , |
| 50.3% | S 7, and 47 quartiles, farther from the HOPE |
| 16.1% | Goal. |
| 44.2% | KEY |
| 47.8% | |
| 55.1% | 1 st Quartile |
| 54.5% | |
| 55.2% | 2 nd Quartile |
| 65.9% | |
| 64.9% | 2 rd Quartila |
| 69.3% | |
| 74.5% | Ath Our wite |
| 100.0% | 4 ^m Quartile |
| | |

LOW ASSAULT RATE

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with fewer than 283 reported cases of aggravated assault per 100,000 population annually in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2012 Uniform Crime Reporting, Federal Bureau of Investigation

| | 1 | T | RAC | E AND ETHNIC | ТҮ | | | |
|----------------------------|------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|----------------|------------------|-----------------|------------------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Utah | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Minnesota | 9 | 99.7% | 99.7% | 100.0% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 95.6% | 99.6% |
| Mississippi | 10 | 98.3% | 99.3% | 96.5% | 98.8% | 98.6% | 98.6% | 98.9% |
| Ohio | 11 | 95.3% | 95.8% | 93.3% | 91.9% | 96.2% | 92.4% | 93.9% |
| Montana | 12 | 92.9% | 94.4% | 95.3% | 93.2% | 94.1% | 73.6% | 85.7% |
| New Jersey | 13 | 92.4% | 92.6% | 89.1% | 92.6% | 96.2% | 83.3% | 90.3% |
| Virginia | 14 | 89.8% | 92.5% | 77.5% | 92.7% | 95.7% | 89.2% | 88.5% |
| Arizona | 15 | 89.3% | 88.3% | 96.4% | 93.4% | 96.0% | 61.4% | 88.8% |
| Washington | 16 | 88.2% | 88.6% | 77.7% | 90.3% | 89.4% | 90.2% | 82.5% |
| South Dakota | 17 | 87.3% | 87.9% | 89.8% | 82.0% | 88.2% | 85.6% | 73.9% |
| Indiana | 18 | 84.3% | 88.0% | 57.1% | 77.2% | 81.2% | 86.3% | 78.9% |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 83.2% | 89.1% | 29.3% | 63.0% | 75.1% | 90.1% | 76.1% |
| Kentuckv ^a | 20 | 82.9% | 86.0% | 54 9% | 75.4% | 67.4% | 86.1% | 75.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 82.7% | 89.6% | 43.0% | 71.8% | 65.2% | 75.4% | 80.2% |
| Oregon | 22 | 80.4% | 81.9% | 39.6% | 82.3% | 65.8% | 86.6% | 77.1% |
| lowa | 23 | 78.4% | 79.3% | 63.4% | 71 5% | 82.8% | 80.3% | 77.2% |
| Colorado | 24 | 75.8% | 81.6% | 61.6% | 59.3% | 72.8% | 76.8% | 79.3% |
| California | 25 | 75.3% | 73.5% | 7/ 9% | 76.1% | 79.3% | 60.9% | 73.3% |
| Coorgiaª | 26 | 73.5% | 71.1% | 69.2% | 80.9% | 75.570 | 73.3% | 76.2% |
| Nobracka | 20 | 75.370 | 74.470 | 20.6% | 65.0% | F7.0% | 92.0% | 61.0% |
| West Virginia | 27 | 71.470 | 74.9% | 69.0% | 70 70/ | 57.070 69.79/ | 65.0% | 01.970 E9.10/ |
| Nest Virginia | 20 | 70.7% | 70.9% | 52.0% | 10.1% 62.6% | 00.7% 62.2% | 05.1% | 50.1% 62.5% |
| North Carolina Mishison | 29 | 66.5% CC 00/ | 75.4% | 55.0% 21.70/ | 02.0% | 05.5% | 55.0% 74.20/ | 02.5% |
| Misser | 30 | 66.0% | 72.4% | 31.7% | 01.4% | 69.5% | 74.3% | 63.1% |
| MISSOURI | 31 | 61.3% | 64.6% | 44.8% | 46.4% | 60.7% | 55.8% | 56.2% |
| Texas | 32 | 58.0% | 64.3% | 54.0% | 51.0% | 63.1% | 60.0% | 64.4% |
| New York | 33 | 57.5% | 75.6% | 33.2% | 32.4% | 27.4% | 66.2% | 57.8% |
| Arkansas | 34 | 51.7% | 58.0% | 23.8% | 49.2% | 37.7% | 55.0% | 49.5% |
| Kansas | 35 | 50.3% | 55.5% | 23.8% | 30.8% | 46.2% | 44.1% | 41.7% |
| Alaska | 36 | 47.5% | 51.4% | 27.2% | 36.7% | 22.6% | 54.9% | 43.2% |
| Massachusetts | 37 | 47.5% | 48.4% | 32.0% | 40.4% | 66.0% | 33.2% | 47.3% |
| Alabama | 38 | 45.3% | 50.5% | 31.3% | 51.3% | 38.7% | 50.5% | 46.2% |
| Illinois | 39 | 44.9% | 54.7% | 16.9% | 34.1% | 37.2% | 40.3% | 43.9% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 44.4% | 47.8% | 18.8% | 32.1% | 32.4% | 53.0% | 48.5% |
| Maryland | 41 | 42.0% | 50.6% | 19.8% | 48.8% | 62.8% | 35.1% | 46.3% |
| Florida | 42 | 37.9% | 42.0% | 33.9% | 30.6% | 37.2% | 36.3% | 37.6% |
| New Mexico | 43 | 29.9% | 31.3% | 25.5% | 31.9% | 28.0% | 14.7% | 26.6% |
| Louisiana | 44 | 27.6% | 33.7% | 16.8% | 26.2% | 16.0% | 35.4% | 29.9% |
| Nevada | 45 | 24.3% | 31.4% | 5.4% | 18.7% | 13.1% | 55.3% | 20.0% |
| Tennessee | 46 | 22.8% | 27.6% | 5.0% | 15.1% | 13.2% | 25.0% | 17.0% |
| South Carolina | 47 | 11.5% | 12.6% | 8.6% | 12.6% | 9.0% | 8.8% | 12.0% |
| Delaware | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 92.7% | 93.0% | 87 1% | | 99 5% | 01.0% |

| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
|----------------------|----------|---------|--------|----------|----------|----------|--------|
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Utah | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 99.7% | 99.6% | 99.6% | 99.7% | 99.7% | 99.8% |
| Mississippi | 11 | 98.3% | 97.1% | 97.9% | 98.6% | 99.0% | 99.1% |
| Ohio | 12 | 95.3% | 93.9% | 94.8% | 95.4% | 95.5% | 96.0% |
| Montana | 13 | 92.9% | 90.1% | 92.0% | 92.8% | 93.8% | 94.6% |
| New Jersev | 14 | 92.5% | 90.1% | 90.9% | 91.3% | 91.5% | 94.0% |
| Wvoming | 15 | 92.2% | 91.8% | 93.9% | 93.0% | 92.0% | 91.3% |
| Virginia | 16 | 90.1% | 80.6% | 86.4% | 88.8% | 90.3% | 94.4% |
| Arizona | 17 | 89.6% | 88.0% | 88.9% | 89.0% | 89.8% | 91.3% |
| Washington | 18 | 88.3% | 89.1% | 87.9% | 87.4% | 87.2% | 88.9% |
| South Dakota | 19 | 87.4% | 88.7% | 86.2% | 88.3% | 87.0% | 87.2% |
| Indiana | 20 | 84.1% | 79.5% | 82.5% | 84.7% | 86.3% | 85.9% |
| Wisconsin | 21 | 83.2% | 72.3% | 79.9% | 85.1% | 86.1% | 86.6% |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 82.7% | 71.7% | 79.9% | 83.7% | 85.6% | 86.4% |
| Kentucky | 23 | 82.7% | 84.7% | 84 5% | 83.7% | 83.3% | 79.1% |
| Oregon | 24 | 80.4% | 78.3% | 81.9% | 81.6% | 81.9% | 79.2% |
| lowa | 25 | 78.4% | 75.6% | 77.0% | 78.4% | 78.5% | 80.0% |
| Colorado | 26 | 75.7% | 68.6% | 70.5% | 74.3% | 77.1% | 80.3% |
| California | 27 | 75.5% | 71.3% | 73.7% | 74.8% | 75.8% | 78.5% |
| Georgia | 28 | 73.7% | 70.7% | 73.1% | 75.0% | 75.2% | 74.6% |
| Nebraska | 29 | 71.2% | 67.1% | 72.2% | 74.5% | 74.0% | 69.1% |
| West Virginia | 30 | 70.6% | 72.3% | 70.7% | 69.9% | 71.7% | 69.3% |
| North Carolina | 31 | 68.6% | 65.8% | 68.4% | 69.6% | 70.1% | 69.1% |
| Michigan | 32 | 66.0% | 54 7% | 63.0% | 67.4% | 69.4% | 71.4% |
| Missouri | 33 | 61.5% | 51.4% | 58.0% | 61.5% | 64 1% | 67.5% |
| Texas | 34 | 58.1% | 54.1% | 55.2% | 56.8% | 58.7% | 62.7% |
| New York | 35 | 56.9% | 43.0% | 49.6% | 57.0% | 61.9% | 63.8% |
| Arkansas | 36 | 51.8% | 46.2% | 53.3% | 54.0% | 54.4% | 51.6% |
| Kansas | 37 | 50.3% | 40.7% | 45.0% | 48.7% | 51.1% | 57.6% |
| Alaska | 38 | 48.0% | 54 9% | 52.4% | 50.9% | 48.6% | 43.8% |
| Massachusetts | 39 | 47.4% | 36.6% | 39.8% | 42.4% | 44.2% | 54.2% |
| Alabama | 40 | 45.3% | 43.1% | 45.9% | 46.8% | 46.3% | 44.8% |
| Illinois | 41 | 44.8% | 33.3% | 40.1% | 45.3% | 48.2% | 49.9% |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 44.1% | 43.5% | 45.1% | 45.3% | 44.7% | 42.6% |
| Maryland | 42 | 42.1% | 30.5% | 34.7% | 37.1% | 39.9% | 49.0% |
| Florida | 43 | 38.1% | 34.2% | 36.5% | 38.2% | 38.6% | 41.0% |
| New Mexico | 45 | 29.9% | 29.7% | 29.6% | 28.4% | 29.5% | 21.3% |
| Louisiana | 46 | 27.6% | 23.1% | 25.0% | 20.4% | 29.0% | 30.2% |
| Nevada | 47 | 24.2% | 23.4% | 23.1% | 20.3% | 24.6% | 26.1% |
| Tennessee | 2 | 22.270 | 20.2% | 23.1% | 22.078 | 24.0% | 20.1% |
| South Carolina | 40 29 | 11.6% | 10.8% | 11 1% | 11.3% | 12 2% | 12.2% |
| Delaware | 50 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 50 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | 50 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

INCOME (% FPL)

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100% of people live in

counties with low assault rates

All people in CT, HI, ID, ME, NH, ND, RI, UT, and VT live in counties with low assault rates.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW ASSAULT RATE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low assault rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | ite | Bla | ick | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | 'AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Utah | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Minnesota | 9 | 15,045 | 0.3% | 11,752 | 0.3% | 77 | 0.0% | 359 | 0.1% | 116 | 0.1% | 2,296 | 4.4% | 445 | 0.4% |
| Mississippi | 10 | 51,713 | 1.7% | 11,313 | 0.7% | 38,528 | 3.5% | 992 | 1.2% | 396 | 1.4% | 172 | 1.4% | 312 | 1.1% |
| Ohio | 11 | 542,972 | 4.7% | 394,614 | 4.2% | 93,504 | 6.7% | 30,847 | 8.1% | 7,983 | 3.8% | 1,297 | 7.6% | 14,727 | 6.1% |
| Montana | 12 | 71,432 | 7.1% | 48,865 | 5.6% | 208 | 4.7% | 2,159 | 6.8% | 420 | 5.9% | 16,652 | 26.4% | 3,128 | 14.3% |
| New Jersey | 13 | 668,828 | 7.6% | 380,016 | 7.4% | 123,178 | 10.9% | 121,325 | 7.4% | 29,659 | 3.8% | 1,736 | 16.7% | 12,914 | 9.7% |
| Virginia | 14 | 836,877 | 10.2% | 392,581 | 7.5% | 348,080 | 22.5% | 49,846 | 7.3% | 20,538 | 4.3% | 1,859 | 10.8% | 23,973 | 11.5% |
| Arizona | 15 | 698,374 | 10.7% | 435,516 | 11.7% | 9,319 | 3.6% | 130,457 | 6.6% | 7,958 | 4.0% | 101,247 | 38.6% | 13,877 | 11.2% |
| Washington | 16 | 811,611 | 11.8% | 563,215 | 11.4% | 53,670 | 22.3% | 78,724 | 9.7% | 58,890 | 10.6% | 8,076 | 9.8% | 49,036 | 17.5% |
| South Dakota | 17 | 104,529 | 12.7% | 84,545 | 12.1% | 1,254 | 10.2% | 4,728 | 18.0% | 1,134 | 11.8% | 8,122 | 14.4% | 4,746 | 26.1% |
| Indiana | 18 | 1,028,691 | 15.7% | 633,674 | 12.0% | 253,114 | 42.9% | 93,761 | 22.8% | 21,697 | 18.8% | 1,676 | 13.7% | 24,769 | 21.1% |
| Wisconsin | 19 | 958,368 | 16.8% | 516.341 | 10.9% | 248.388 | 70.7% | 131,519 | 37.0% | 34,348 | 24.9% | 4,510 | 9.9% | 23,262 | 23.9% |
| Kentucky ^a | 20 | 750,688 | 17.1% | 525,268 | 14.0% | 153,321 | 45.1% | 34,389 | 24.6% | 17,920 | 32.6% | 1,030 | 13.9% | 18,760 | 24.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 2,199,363 | 17.3% | 1.039.772 | 10.4% | 763.715 | 57.0% | 221,288 | 28.2% | 131,054 | 34.8% | 3,741 | 24.6% | 39,793 | 19.8% |
| Oregon | 22 | 763,546 | 19.6% | 549,308 | 18.1% | 40.634 | 60.4% | 84,050 | 17.7% | 56,069 | 34.2% | 5.044 | 13.4% | 28,441 | 22.9% |
| lowa | 23 | 663,342 | 21.6% | 559,702 | 20.7% | 34,122 | 36.6% | 46,539 | 28.5% | 10,480 | 17.2% | 1,546 | 19.7% | 10,953 | 22.8% |
| Colorado | 24 | 1.253.921 | 24.2% | 663,051 | 18.4% | 76,495 | 38.4% | 442,517 | 40.7% | 40,625 | 27.2% | 6,596 | 23.2% | 24,637 | 20.7% |
| California | 25 | 9,371,302 | 24.7% | 3,945,305 | 26.5% | 540,790 | 25.1% | 3,470,997 | 23.9% | 1,073,945 | 20.7% | 57,007 | 39.1% | 283,258 | 27.1% |
| Georgiaª | 26 | 2,615,703 | 26.5% | 1,394,212 | 25.6% | 928,870 | 30.8% | 170,845 | 19.1% | 78,053 | 22.5% | 4,870 | 26.7% | 38,853 | 23.8% |
| Nebraska | 27 | 530,208 | 28.6% | 378,929 | 25.1% | 59,094 | 70.4% | 61,516 | 34.1% | 15,660 | 43.0% | 2,196 | 17.0% | 12,813 | 38.1% |
| West Virginia | 28 | 543,263 | 29.3% | 499,630 | 29.1% | 18,720 | 32.0% | 5,119 | 21.3% | 4,228 | 31.3% | 1,007 | 34.9% | 14,559 | 41.9% |
| North Carolina | 29 | 3,062,001 | 31.5% | 1,548,884 | 24.6% | 969,315 | 47.0% | 317,734 | 37.4% | 86,296 | 36.7% | 70,496 | 66.4% | 69,276 | 37.5% |
| Michigan | 30 | 3,357,105 | 34.0% | 2,074,650 | 27.6% | 933,983 | 68.3% | 176,269 | 38.6% | 79,133 | 30.5% | 12,455 | 25.7% | 80,615 | 36.9% |
| Missouri | 31 | 2,327,700 | 38.7% | 1,719,261 | 35.4% | 380,999 | 55.2% | 121,327 | 53.6% | 41,881 | 39.3% | 9,582 | 44.2% | 54,650 | 43.8% |
| Texas | 32 | 10,953,563 | 42.0% | 4,124,940 | 35.7% | 1,386,495 | 46.0% | 4,885,236 | 49.0% | 395,125 | 36.9% | 26,402 | 40.0% | 135,365 | 35.6% |
| New York | 33 | 8,286,233 | 42.5% | 2,735,082 | 24.4% | 1,886,662 | 66.8% | 2,407,983 | 67.6% | 1,101,324 | 72.6% | 15,951 | 33.8% | 139,231 | 42.2% |
| Arkansas | 34 | 1,423,000 | 48.3% | 914,274 | 42.0% | 346,902 | 76.2% | 100,687 | 50.8% | 27,537 | 62.3% | 7,506 | 45.0% | 26,094 | 50.5% |
| Kansas | 35 | 1,431,577 | 49.7% | 993,020 | 44.5% | 124,237 | 76.2% | 218,625 | 69.2% | 39,625 | 53.8% | 11,191 | 55.9% | 44,879 | 58.3% |
| Alaska | 36 | 368,595 | 52.5% | 217,624 | 48.6% | 17,193 | 72.8% | 28,291 | 63.3% | 37,027 | 77.4% | 40,096 | 45.1% | 28,364 | 56.8% |
| Massachusetts | 37 | 3,472,543 | 52.5% | 2,575,360 | 51.6% | 288,374 | 68.0% | 406,300 | 59.6% | 130,579 | 34.0% | 5,415 | 66.8% | 66,515 | 52.7% |
| Alabama | 38 | 2,633,284 | 54.7% | 1,587,433 | 49.5% | 867,551 | 68.7% | 93,395 | 48.7% | 36,224 | 61.3% | 11,460 | 49.5% | 37,221 | 53.8% |
| Illinois | 39 | 7,079,793 | 55.1% | 3,667,185 | 45.3% | 1,515,184 | 83.1% | 1,380,609 | 65.9% | 392,698 | 62.8% | 8,772 | 59.7% | 115,345 | 56.1% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 2,123,067 | 55.6% | 1,350,657 | 52.2% | 221,527 | 81.2% | 243,077 | 67.9% | 50,270 | 67.6% | 123,466 | 47.0% | 134,070 | 51.5% |
| Maryland | 41 | 3,405,946 | 58.0% | 1,558,999 | 49.4% | 1,371,952 | 80.2% | 263,810 | 51.2% | 128,403 | 37.2% | 7,865 | 64.9% | 74,917 | 53.7% |
| Florida | 42 | 11,993,236 | 62.1% | 6,355,991 | 58.0% | 1,968,148 | 66.1% | 3,133,308 | 69.4% | 309,466 | 62.8% | 26,865 | 63.7% | 199,458 | 62.4% |
| New Mexico | 43 | 1,454,551 | 70.1% | 566,341 | 68.7% | 27,936 | 74.5% | 665,991 | 68.1% | 20,100 | 72.0% | 151,509 | 85.3% | 22,674 | 73.4% |
| Louisiana | 44 | 3,324,760 | 72.4% | 1,821,665 | 66.3% | 1,221,639 | 83.2% | 155,404 | 73.8% | 64,239 | 84.0% | 16,482 | 64.6% | 45,331 | 70.1% |
| Nevada | 45 | 2,088,437 | 75.7% | 998,040 | 68.6% | 208,516 | 94.6% | 611,446 | 81.3% | 191,574 | 86.9% | 10,871 | 44.7% | 67,990 | 80.0% |
| Tennessee | 46 | 4,975,385 | 77.2% | 3,504,107 | 72.4% | 1,021,172 | 95.0% | 263,092 | 84.9% | 87,385 | 86.8% | 10,240 | 75.0% | 89,389 | 83.0% |
| South Carolina | 47 | 4,181,837 | 88.5% | 2,639,610 | 87.4% | 1,184,758 | 91.4% | 217,254 | 87.4% | 59,007 | 91.0% | 12,908 | 91.2% | 68,300 | 88.0% |
| Delaware | 48 | 915,266 | 100.0% | 590,218 | 100.0% | 193,047 | 100.0% | 78,598 | 100.0% | 31,634 | 100.0% | 2,420 | 100.0% | 19,349 | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 632,425 | 100.0% | 224,184 | 100.0% | 308,766 | 100.0% | 62,637 | 100.0% | 22,698 | 100.0% | 1,384 | 100.0% | 12,756 | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 35,709 | 7.3% | 402 | 7.0% | 6,990 | 12.9% | | | 58 | 0.5% | 939 | 9.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one one race and ethnicity group.

HOPE Goal

of people live in counties with low assault rates

All people in CT, HI, ID, ME, NH, ND, RI, UT, and VT live in counties with low assault rates.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW ASSAULT RATE

0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.2% 0.9% 4.0% 5.4% 6.0% 8.7% 5.6% 8.7% 11.1% 12.8% 14.1% 13.4% 13.6% 20.9% 20.8%

20.0%

19.7%

21.5%

25.4%

30.9%

30.7%

30.9%

28.6%

32.5%

37.3%

36.2%

48.4%

42.4%

56.2%

45.8%

55.2%

50.1%

57.4% 51.0%

59.0%

68.7%

69.8%

73.9%

76.8%

87.6%

100.0% 100.0%

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low assault rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | 0 | vall | 0_00 | V EDI | 100-10 | 0% EDI | 200-200 | 0% EDI | 200-200 | % EDI | 400+0 | % EDI |
|----------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Utah | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Minnesota | 10 | 14,782 | 0.3% | 2,719 | 0.4% | 2,986 | 0.4% | 2,913 | 0.3% | 2,151 | 0.3% | 4,013 | 0.2 |
| Mississippi | 11 | 49,427 | 1.7% | 18,687 | 2.9% | 13,875 | 2.1% | 7,031 | 1.4% | 3,611 | 1.0% | 6,223 | 0.9 |
| Ohio | 12 | 529,520 | 4.7% | 108,968 | 6.1% | 106,710 | 5.2% | 91,448 | 4.6% | 73,886 | 4.5% | 148,508 | 4.0 |
| Montana | 13 | 69,277 | 7.1% | 14,837 | 9.9% | 16,308 | 8.0% | 13,042 | 7.2% | 9,206 | 6.2% | 15,884 | 5.4 |
| New Jersey | 14 | 650,998 | 7.5% | 92,368 | 9.9% | 108,750 | 9.1% | 101,230 | 8.7% | 91,471 | 8.5% | 257,179 | 6.0 |
| Wyoming | 15 | 43,811 | 7.8% | 5,325 | 8.2% | 5,866 | 6.1% | 6,739 | 7.0% | 7,150 | 8.0% | 18,731 | 8.7 |
| Virginia | 16 | 782,222 | 9.9% | 177,429 | 19.4% | 166,977 | 13.6% | 136,400 | 11.2% | 103,053 | 9.7% | 198,363 | 5.6 |
| Arizona | 17 | 668,128 | 10.4% | 139,907 | 12.0% | 149,481 | 11.1% | 123,388 | 11.0% | 86,086 | 10.2% | 169,266 | 8.7 |
| Washington | 18 | 794,608 | 11.7% | 99,743 | 10.9% | 137,821 | 12.1% | 138,288 | 12.6% | 118,709 | 12.8% | 300,047 | 11.1 |
| South Dakota | 19 | 101,617 | 12.6% | 12,960 | 11.3% | 21,313 | 13.8% | 18,210 | 11.7% | 16,830 | 13.0% | 32,304 | 12.8 |
| Indiana | 20 | 1,010,632 | 15.9% | 201,961 | 20.5% | 218,670 | 17.5% | 183,328 | 15.3% | 133,554 | 13.7% | 273,119 | 14.1 |
| Wisconsin | 21 | 937,170 | 16.8% | 204,778 | 27.7% | 196,595 | 20.1% | 148,528 | 14.9% | 120,368 | 13.9% | 266,901 | 13.4 |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 2,135,061 | 17.3% | 471,424 | 28.3% | 429,797 | 20.1% | 348,006 | 16.3% | 260,639 | 14.4% | 625,195 | 13.6 |
| Kentucky | 23 | 736,068 | 17.3% | 123,145 | 15.3% | 137,899 | 15.5% | 121,948 | 16.3% | 100,749 | 16.7% | 252,327 | 20.9 |
| Oregon | 24 | 749,838 | 19.6% | 138,707 | 21.7% | 140,227 | 18.1% | 123,289 | 18.4% | 92,214 | 18.1% | 255,401 | 20.8 |
| Iowa | 25 | 644,436 | 21.6% | 91,279 | 24.4% | 122,343 | 23.0% | 121,434 | 21.6% | 103,623 | 21.5% | 205,757 | 20.0 |
| Colorado | 26 | 1,234,036 | 24.3% | 208,631 | 31.4% | 255,853 | 29.5% | 211,233 | 25.7% | 159,577 | 22.9% | 398,742 | 19.7 |
| California | 27 | 9,151,285 | 24.5% | 1,753,151 | 28.7% | 1,964,923 | 26.3% | 1,470,561 | 25.2% | 1,061,072 | 24.2% | 2,901,578 | 21.5 |
| Georgia | 28 | 2,533,610 | 26.3% | 522,170 | 29.3% | 533,772 | 26.9% | 409,691 | 25.0% | 308,110 | 24.8% | 759,867 | 25.4 |
| Nebraska | 29 | 519,190 | 28.8% | 76,173 | 32.9% | 94,244 | 27.8% | 85,666 | 25.5% | 73,698 | 26.0% | 189,409 | 30.9 |
| West Virginia | 30 | 529,129 | 29.4% | 90,356 | 27.7% | 114,317 | 29.3% | 100,305 | 30.1% | 73,676 | 28.3% | 150,475 | 30.7 |
| North Carolina | 31 | 2,982,160 | 31.4% | 570,264 | 34.2% | 632,593 | 31.6% | 504,896 | 30.4% | 380,365 | 29.9% | 894,042 | 30.9 |
| Michigan | 32 | 3,284,393 | 34.0% | 739,570 | 45.3% | 664,173 | 37.0% | 551,579 | 32.6% | 425,033 | 30.6% | 904,038 | 28.6 |
| Missouri | 33 | 2,251,817 | 38.5% | 443,708 | 48.6% | 487,895 | 42.0% | 414,914 | 38.5% | 306,177 | 35.9% | 599,123 | 32.5 |
| Texas | 34 | 10,674,625 | 41.9% | 2,065,227 | 45.9% | 2,408,316 | 44.8% | 1,826,012 | 43.2% | 1,311,094 | 41.3% | 3,063,976 | 37.3 |
| New York | 35 | 8,219,906 | 43.1% | 1,696,394 | 57.0% | 1,630,930 | 50.4% | 1,213,594 | 43.0% | 920,963 | 38.1% | 2,758,025 | 36.2 |
| Arkansas | 36 | 1,380,579 | 48.2% | 295,726 | 53.8% | 316,964 | 46.7% | 241,239 | 46.0% | 170,237 | 45.6% | 356,413 | 48.4 |
| Kansas | 37 | 1,391,169 | 49.7% | 229,046 | 59.3% | 292,071 | 55.0% | 262,931 | 51.3% | 204,606 | 48.5% | 402,515 | 42.4 |
| Alaska | 38 | 360,757 | 52.0% | 31,461 | 45.1% | 52,914 | 47.6% | 50,108 | 49.1% | 51,248 | 51.4% | 175,026 | 56.2 |
| Massachusetts | 39 | 3,379,770 | 52.6% | 470,580 | 63.4% | 519,659 | 60.2% | 498,958 | 57.6% | 455,387 | 55.8% | 1,435,186 | 45.8 |
| Alabama | 40 | 2,572,163 | 54.7% | 506,512 | 56.9% | 540,155 | 54.1% | 433,982 | 53.2% | 338,026 | 53.7% | 753,488 | 55.2 |
| Illinois | 41 | 6,934,521 | 55.2% | 1,208,438 | 66.7% | 1,313,528 | 59.9% | 1,108,413 | 54.7% | 886,400 | 51.8% | 2,417,742 | 50.1 |
| Oklahoma | 42 | 2,069,147 | 55.9% | 353,475 | 56.5% | 442,513 | 54.7% | 376,450 | 54.7% | 285,700 | 55.3% | 611,009 | 57.4 |
| Maryland | 43 | 3,307,263 | 57.6% | 398,466 | 69.5% | 498,708 | 65.3% | 497,250 | 62.9% | 441,245 | 60.1% | 1,471,594 | 51.0 |
| Florida | 44 | 11,730,808 | 61.9% | 2,078,860 | 65.8% | 2,574,875 | 63.5% | 2,116,256 | 61.8% | 1,567,789 | 61.4% | 3,393,028 | 59.0 |
| New Mexico | 45 | 1,430,230 | 70.1% | 299,598 | 70.3% | 319,216 | 70.4% | 241,868 | 71.6% | 178,606 | 70.5% | 390,942 | 68.7 |
| Louisiana | 46 | 3,239,054 | 72.4% | 680,247 | 77.8% | 672,075 | 72.8% | 515,621 | 71.7% | 414,925 | 71.0% | 956,186 | 69.8 |
| Nevada | 47 | 2,063,416 | 75.8% | 324,557 | 76.6% | 440,587 | 76.9% | 397,730 | 77.2% | 286,356 | 75.4% | 614,186 | 73.9 |
| Tennessee | 48 | 4,849,963 | 77.1% | 894,508 | 79.8% | 1,031,719 | 76.2% | 871,896 | 76.5% | 658,890 | 76.5% | 1,392,950 | 76.8 |
| South Carolina | 49 | 4,055,382 | 88.4% | 749,412 | 89.2% | 882,888 | 88.9% | 717,338 | 88.7% | 542,912 | 87.8% | 1,162,832 | 87.6 |
| Delaware | 50 | 891,493 | 100.0% | 107,101 | 100.0% | 146,943 | 100.0% | 141,419 | 100.0% | 132,106 | 100.0% | 363,924 | 100.0 |
| District of Columbia | 50 | 599,620 | 100.0% | 109,378 | 100.0% | 82,010 | 100.0% | 66,139 | 100.0% | 60,948 | 100.0% | 281,145 | 100.0 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low assault rates

All people in CT, HI, ID, ME, NH, ND, RI, UT, and

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW RAPE RATE

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with fewer than 36.9 reported cases of rape per 100,000 population annually in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2012 Uniform Crime Reporting, Federal Bureau of Investigation

| | | | RAC | E AND ETHNIC | ТҮ | | | |
|----------------------------|------|---------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Jersey | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New York | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Arizona | 7 | 97.9% | 98.0% | 99.3% | 99.1% | 98.9% | 86.5% | 97.4% |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 97.8% | 97.6% | 99.7% | 98.6% | 99.0% | 99.0% | 98.4% |
| California | 9 | 97.7% | 95.9% | 99.4% | 99.0% | 99.1% | 88.0% | 96.7% |
| West Virginia | 10 | 97.6% | 97.6% | 97.0% | 98.2% | 97.1% | 98.7% | 98.1% |
| North Carolina | 11 | 95.6% | 95.5% | 95.4% | 96.0% | 97.5% | 95.8% | 94.4% |
| Hawaii | 12 | 95.1% | 93.5% | 98.3% | 94.7% | 95.5% | 93.9% | 95.9% |
| Georgiaª | 13 | 94.9% | 95.6% | 92.5% | 97.8% | 98.3% | 94.3% | 94.7% |
| Virginia | 14 | 89.1% | 90.5% | 80.9% | 92.6% | 95.2% | 86.9% | 88.5% |
| Maryland | 15 | 88.2% | 92.4% | 76.9% | 94.4% | 95.3% | 85.8% | 90.4% |
| Idaho | 16 | 87.2% | 86.0% | 93.2% | 95.7% | 90.7% | 77.0% | 87.4% |
| Texas | 17 | 83.9% | 79.9% | 83.1% | 87.7% | 92.9% | 78.9% | 83.6% |
| Indiana | 18 | 82.4% | 86.0% | 56.2% | 76.9% | 80.8% | 82.7% | 76.4% |
| lowa | 19 | 82.4% | 82.4% | 79.6% | 83.2% | 83.6% | 87.4% | 81.5% |
| Illinois | 20 | 82.0% | 77.7% | 85.4% | 93.5% | 91.1% | 78.3% | 78.5% |
| Alabama | 21 | 79.9% | 83.4% | 70.1% | 82.8% | 79.9% | 90.2% | 85.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 76.6% | 81.8% | 45.7% | 67.9% | 67.8% | 66.5% | 75.2% |
| Florida | 23 | 75.7% | 73.9% | 70.0% | 85.8% | 65.4% | 70.4% | 67.8% |
| Missouri | 24 | 75.7% | 79.9% | 53.0% | 60.2% | 72.3% | 64.3% | 71.8% |
| Mississippi | 25 | 75.6% | 81.5% | 66.2% | 76.6% | 75.0% | 88.4% | 77.6% |
| Montana | 26 | 75.1% | 75.5% | 81.0% | 78.1% | 72.3% | 68.5% | 71.0% |
| Massachusetts | 27 | 74.2% | 77.8% | 53.2% | 59.3% | 77.8% | 60.1% | 74.2% |
| Louisiana | 28 | 74.0% | 78.3% | 65.0% | 79.4% | 75.4% | 83.9% | 73.3% |
| Oregon | 29 | 71.3% | 72.2% | 36.4% | 73.9% | 63.0% | 74.1% | 67.8% |
| Maine | 30 | 69.6% | 69.5% | 77.9% | 72.2% | 79.4% | 78.8% | 64.4% |
| Tennessee | 31 | 64.9% | 73.4% | 30.7% | 54.4% | 52.0% | 65.6% | 67.0% |
| South Carolina | 32 | 64.7% | 65.7% | 63.3% | 60.5% | 59.6% | 62.7% | 66.2% |
| Washington | 33 | 63.3% | 62.6% | 68.1% | 56.3% | 79.3% | 54.3% | 62.1% |
| Delaware | 34 | 59.5% | 55.9% | 66.5% | 63.1% | 82.2% | 35.9% | 52.7% |
| Utah | 35 | 56.6% | 59.2% | 40.2% | 46.6% | 35.5% | 63.5% | 56.6% |
| Kentucky ^a | 36 | 55.2% | 59.4% | 22.5% | 40.2% | 28.6% | 52.2% | 41.3% |
| Ohio | 37 | 55.1% | 60.8% | 22.7% | 49.4% | 34.3% | 54.0% | 47.3% |
| Kansas | 38 | 47.2% | 51.2% | 30.5% | 30.1% | 41.1% | 41.6% | 43.6% |
| North Dakota | 39 | 43.2% | 41.9% | 28.4% | 48.6% | 23.8% | 73.0% | 38.9% |
| New Mexico | 40 | 43.0% | 42.7% | 31.8% | 48.0% | 32.9% | 21.9% | 35.2% |
| Colorado | 41 | 41.9% | 45.6% | 11.2% | 38.2% | 29.6% | 45.3% | 32.1% |
| South Dakota | 42 | 41.7% | 40.4% | 16.7% | 35.3% | 38.0% | 67.7% | 38.5% |
| Nebraska | 43 | 39.0% | 41.6% | 12.1% | 33.3% | 19.1% | 65.2% | 33.3% |
| Minnesota | 44 | 38.2% | 41.0% | 16.6% | 33.8% | 22.9% | 24.8% | 29.9% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 33.7% | 35.1% | 13.0% | 24.5% | 12.2% | 53.3% | 40.4% |
| Alaska | 46 | 27.9% | 32.9% | 8.3% | 18.9% | 13.7% | 22.4% | 23.9% |
| Arkansas | 47 | 26.6% | 28.5% | 24.6% | 16.7% | 8.3% | 16.2% | 20.5% |
| Michigan | 48 | 26.4% | 28.0% | 18.8% | 17.2% | 40.9% | 15.4% | 24.9% |
| Nevada | 49 | 24.6% | 32.1% | 5.8% | 18.5% | 13.2% | 51.6% | 20.2% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 85.8% | 90.3% | 91.7% | 86.6% | | 83.8% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 71.0% | 46.6% | 55.2% | | 90.5% | 69.2% |

| | | | | INCOME (% FF | PL) | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Jersey | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New York | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Arizona | 7 | 98.0% | 97.4% | 98.1% | 98.2% | 98.1% | 98.2% |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 97.8% | 98.4% | 97.8% | 97.7% | 97.4% | 97.9% |
| California | 9 | 97.7% | 97.2% | 97.5% | 97.6% | 97.7% | 98.2% |
| West Virginia | 10 | 97.7% | 97.9% | 97.9% | 97.6% | 97.8% | 97.4% |
| North Carolina | 11 | 95.7% | 95.6% | 95.0% | 95.1% | 95.4% | 96.6% |
| Georgia | 12 | 95.0% | 93.2% | 94.5% | 95.0% | 95.2% | 96.4% |
| Hawaii | 13 | 95.0% | 94.8% | 94.1% | 94.8% | 94.3% | 95.7% |
| Virginia | 14 | 89.5% | 82.4% | 85.9% | 87.4% | 89.3% | 93.3% |
| Maryland | 15 | 88.4% | 72.7% | 81.5% | 86.1% | 89.3% | 93.8% |
| daho | 16 | 87.2% | 89.3% | 87.7% | 86.6% | 86.2% | 86.3% |
| New Hampshire | 17 | 86.3% | 83.2% | 84.5% | 85.0% | 86.4% | 87.9% |
| Texas | 18 | 84.2% | 83.9% | 83.4% | 83.2% | 83.1% | 86.0% |
| owa | 19 | 82.6% | 79.6% | 82.8% | 82.8% | 83.0% | 83.3% |
| llinois | 20 | 82.4% | 79.0% | 81.4% | 81.2% | 81.5% | 84.9% |
| ndiana | 21 | 82.3% | 76.7% | 80.3% | 83.0% | 84.8% | 84.9% |
| Alabama | 22 | 79.8% | 78.6% | 80.5% | 80.4% | 80.4% | 79.4% |
| Pennsylvania | 23 | 76.6% | 64.0% | 71.8% | 75.6% | 78.9% | 83.1% |
| Florida | 24 | 76.0% | 74.3% | 76.7% | 75.9% | 76.0% | 76.6% |
| Missouri | 25 | 75.6% | 68.7% | 74.0% | 76.0% | 77.6% | 78.7% |
| Mississippi | 26 | 75.5% | 73.5% | 75.8% | 75.9% | 76.6% | 76.2% |
| Montana | 27 | 75.2% | 75.6% | 77.1% | 74.8% | 76.1% | 73.5% |
| Massachusetts | 28 | 74.6% | 61.7% | 68.1% | 72.1% | 74.2% | 80.3% |
| ouisiana | 29 | 74.0% | 68.9% | 72.5% | 74.6% | 75.5% | 77.4% |
| Oregon | 30 | 71.2% | 68.4% | 71.1% | 71.7% | 72.7% | 71.8% |
| Maine | 31 | 69.6% | 67.4% | 66.4% | 67.6% | 68.7% | 74.1% |
| Wyoming | 32 | 69.4% | 72.1% | 72.4% | 69.9% | 70.4% | 66.5% |
| South Carolina | 33 | 64.9% | 63.7% | 63.8% | 65.4% | 65.6% | 65.9% |
| Tennessee | 34 | 64.9% | 61.5% | 65.1% | 67.3% | 66.9% | 64.4% |
| Washington | 35 | 63.4% | 60.7% | 58.3% | 59.5% | 61.8% | 68.5% |
| Delaware | 36 | 59.3% | 55.6% | 51.8% | 56.0% | 56.4% | 65.9% |
| Jtah | 37 | 56.5% | 55.2% | 57.9% | 59.1% | 57.1% | 54.0% |
| Kentucky | 38 | 55.2% | 59.5% | 58.8% | 56.7% | 55.7% | 48.5% |
| Ohio | 39 | 54.9% | 50.7% | 55.8% | 57.5% | 57.9% | 53.7% |
| Kansas | 40 | 47.4% | 35.2% | 40.3% | 44.9% | 49.5% | 56.8% |
| North Dakota | 41 | 43.4% | 43.5% | 46.4% | 44.7% | 44.1% | 41.3% |
| New Mexico | 42 | 42.8% | 44.5% | 44.7% | 42.2% | 42.0% | 40.9% |
| South Dakota | 43 | 42.4% | 55.1% | 44.8% | 42.3% | 38.8% | 36.9% |
| Colorado | 44 | 41.8% | 40.3% | 40.4% | 41.0% | 42.6% | 42.9% |
| Nebraska | 45 | 39.0% | 32.9% | 39.2% | 41.9% | 41.7% | 38.5% |
| Minnesota | 46 | 38.3% | 28.8% | 35.7% | 39.1% | 41.1% | 40.5% |
| Oklahoma | 47 | 33.7% | 34.5% | 36.0% | 35.6% | 33.6% | 30.2% |
| Alaska | 48 | 28.9% | 32.4% | 31.7% | 29.9% | 28.8% | 26.8% |
| Michigan | 49 | 26.8% | 18.0% | 21.5% | 24.5% | 27.8% | 35.0% |
| Arkansas | 50 | 26.5% | 26.6% | 28.1% | 27.7% | 27.7% | 23.6% |
| Nevada | 51 | 24.5% | 24.5% | 24.3% | 23.3% | 24.4% | 25.6% |
| | | | | | | | |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low rape rates

All people in CT, DC, NJ, NY, RI, rape rates.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW RAPE RATE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low rape rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | all White | | Black | | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | 'AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Jersey | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New York | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Arizona | 7 | 135,669 | 2.1% | 74,410 | 2.0% | 1,792 | 0.7% | 18,683 | 0.9% | 2,215 | 1.1% | 35,395 | 13.5% | 3,174 | 2.6% |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 125,434 | 2.2% | 115,825 | 2.4% | 1,226 | 0.3% | 5,045 | 1.4% | 1,362 | 1.0% | 438 | 1.0% | 1,538 | 1.6% |
| California | 9 | 874,210 | 2.3% | 611,169 | 4.1% | 13,596 | 0.6% | 149,765 | 1.0% | 47,594 | 0.9% | 17,434 | 12.0% | 34,652 | 3.3% |
| West Virginia | 10 | 43,919 | 2.4% | 40,649 | 2.4% | 1,753 | 3.0% | 428 | 1.8% | 394 | 2.9% | 38 | 1.3% | 657 | 1.9% |
| North Carolina | 11 | 432,631 | 4.4% | 283,427 | 4.5% | 94,895 | 4.6% | 33,633 | 4.0% | 5,884 | 2.5% | 4,493 | 4.2% | 10,299 | 5.6% |
| Hawaii | 12 | 68,717 | 4.9% | 20,812 | 6.5% | 419 | 1.7% | 7,013 | 5.3% | 29,347 | 4.5% | 117 | 6.1% | 11,009 | 4.1% |
| Georgiaª | 13 | 499,749 | 5.1% | 238,799 | 4.4% | 225,909 | 7.5% | 19,343 | 2.2% | 5,953 | 1.7% | 1,050 | 5.7% | 8,695 | 5.3% |
| Virginia | 14 | 894,107 | 10.9% | 498,163 | 9.5% | 295,707 | 19.1% | 50,931 | 7.4% | 22,996 | 4.8% | 2,258 | 13.1% | 24,052 | 11.5% |
| Maryland | 15 | 694,871 | 11.8% | 239,714 | 7.6% | 394,811 | 23.1% | 28,901 | 5.6% | 16,363 | 4.7% | 1,724 | 14.2% | 13,358 | 9.6% |
| Idaho | 16 | 204,711 | 12.8% | 186,365 | 14.0% | 589 | 6.8% | 7,926 | 4.3% | 2,110 | 9.3% | 3,860 | 23.0% | 3,861 | 12.6% |
| Texas | 17 | 4,205,288 | 16.1% | 2,321,888 | 20.1% | 509,289 | 16.9% | 1,222,166 | 12.3% | 75,877 | 7.1% | 13,948 | 21.1% | 62,120 | 16.4% |
| Indiana | 18 | 1,147,874 | 17.6% | 742,513 | 14.0% | 258,072 | 43.8% | 95,200 | 23.1% | 22,193 | 19.2% | 2,108 | 17.3% | 27,788 | 23.6% |
| Iowa | 19 | 542,720 | 17.6% | 476,366 | 17.6% | 19,020 | 20.4% | 27,461 | 16.8% | 9,990 | 16.4% | 989 | 12.6% | 8,894 | 18.5% |
| Illinois | 20 | 2,312,631 | 18.0% | 1,807,733 | 22.3% | 265,590 | 14.6% | 136,266 | 6.5% | 55,755 | 8.9% | 3,185 | 21.7% | 44,102 | 21.5% |
| Alabama | 21 | 966,346 | 20.1% | 531,222 | 16.6% | 377,671 | 29.9% | 32,937 | 17.2% | 11,880 | 20.1% | 2,278 | 9.8% | 10,358 | 15.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 22 | 2,978,260 | 23.4% | 1,821,615 | 18.2% | 728,089 | 54.3% | 252,032 | 32.1% | 121,560 | 32.2% | 5,094 | 33.5% | 49,870 | 24.8% |
| Florida | 23 | 4,684,612 | 24.3% | 2,865,364 | 26.1% | 893,571 | 30.0% | 639,491 | 14.2% | 170,676 | 34.6% | 12,473 | 29.6% | 103,037 | 32.2% |
| Missouri | 24 | 1,462,469 | 24.3% | 975,699 | 20.1% | 324,291 | 47.0% | 90,125 | 39.8% | 29,482 | 27.7% | 7,739 | 35.7% | 35,133 | 28.2% |
| Mississippi | 25 | 728,024 | 24.4% | 318,358 | 18.5% | 374,906 | 33.8% | 19,654 | 23.4% | 7,083 | 25.0% | 1,377 | 11.6% | 6,646 | 22.4% |
| Montana | 26 | 250,612 | 24.9% | 214,607 | 24.5% | 843 | 19.0% | 6,988 | 21.9% | 1,980 | 27.7% | 19,862 | 31.5% | 6,332 | 29.0% |
| Massachusetts | 27 | 1,707,905 | 25.8% | 1,110,737 | 22.2% | 198,365 | 46.8% | 277,717 | 40.7% | 85,335 | 22.2% | 3,237 | 39.9% | 32,514 | 25.8% |
| Louisiana | 28 | 1,193,788 | 26.0% | 596,655 | 21.7% | 513,568 | 35.0% | 43,329 | 20.6% | 18,842 | 24.6% | 4,113 | 16.1% | 17,281 | 26.7% |
| Oregon | 29 | 1,118,812 | 28.7% | 841,996 | 27.8% | 42,816 | 63.6% | 123,669 | 26.1% | 60,651 | 37.0% | 9,775 | 25.9% | 39,905 | 32.2% |
| Maine | 30 | 402,969 | 30.4% | 381,683 | 30.5% | 3,197 | 22.1% | 5,175 | 27.8% | 2,992 | 20.6% | 1,538 | 21.2% | 8,384 | 35.6% |
| Tennessee | 31 | 2,261,042 | 35.1% | 1,285,947 | 26.6% | 745,270 | 69.3% | 141,160 | 45.6% | 48,382 | 48.0% | 4,694 | 34.4% | 35,589 | 33.0% |
| South Carolina | 32 | 1,668,613 | 35.3% | 1,036,977 | 34.3% | 475,852 | 36.7% | 98,125 | 39.5% | 26,179 | 40.4% | 5,285 | 37.3% | 26,195 | 33.8% |
| Washington | 33 | 2,530,569 | 36.7% | 1,841,196 | 37.4% | 76,791 | 31.9% | 354,051 | 43.7% | 114,677 | 20.7% | 37,587 | 45.7% | 106,267 | 37.9% |
| Delaware | 34 | 370,454 | 40.5% | 260,501 | 44.1% | 64,587 | 33.5% | 29,033 | 36.9% | 5,625 | 17.8% | 1,552 | 64.1% | 9,156 | 47.3% |
| Utah | 35 | 1,238,779 | 43.4% | 931,124 | 40.8% | 17,183 | 59.8% | 202,551 | 53.4% | 55,179 | 64.5% | 10,280 | 36.5% | 22,462 | 43.4% |
| Kentucky ^a | 36 | 1,960,416 | 44.8% | 1,525,815 | 40.6% | 263,674 | 77.5% | 83,509 | 59.8% | 39,242 | 71.4% | 3,530 | 47.8% | 44,646 | 58.7% |
| Ohio | 37 | 5,189,186 | 44.9% | 3,652,265 | 39.2% | 1,073,118 | 77.3% | 192,042 | 50.6% | 137,722 | 65.7% | 7,818 | 46.0% | 126,221 | 52.7% |
| Kansas | 38 | 1,520,788 | 52.8% | 1,088,065 | 48.8% | 113,312 | 69.5% | 220,955 | 69.9% | 43,368 | 58.9% | 11,696 | 58.4% | 43,392 | 56.4% |
| North Dakota | 39 | 400,177 | 56.8% | 359,269 | 58.1% | 7,439 | 71.6% | 9,384 | 51.4% | 6,348 | 76.2% | 9,779 | 27.0% | 7,958 | 61.1% |
| New Mexico | 40 | 1,184,064 | 57.0% | 472,717 | 57.3% | 25,600 | 68.2% | 508,418 | 52.0% | 18,733 | 67.1% | 138,586 | 78.1% | 20,010 | 64.8% |
| Colorado | 41 | 3,014,114 | 58.1% | 1,962,787 | 54.4% | 176,680 | 88.8% | 673,177 | 61.8% | 105,223 | 70.4% | 15,558 | 54.7% | 80,689 | 67.9% |
| South Dakota | 42 | 477,921 | 58.3% | 415,311 | 59.6% | 10,221 | 83.3% | 17,017 | 64.7% | 5,964 | 62.0% | 18,226 | 32.3% | 11,182 | 61.5% |
| Nebraska | 43 | 1,130,949 | 61.0% | 880,359 | 58.4% | 73,798 | 87.9% | 120,414 | 66.7% | 29,429 | 80.9% | 4,491 | 34.8% | 22,458 | 66.7% |
| Minnesota | 44 | 3,324,651 | 61.8% | 2,608,231 | 59.0% | 238,003 | 83.4% | 174,972 | 66.2% | 178,439 | 77.1% | 39,168 | 75.2% | 85,838 | 70.1% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 2,529,859 | 66.3% | 1,679,060 | 64.9% | 237,390 | 87.0% | 270,178 | 75.5% | 65,314 | 87.8% | 122,763 | 46.7% | 155,154 | 59.6% |
| Alaska | 46 | 506,295 | 72.1% | 300,133 | 67.1% | 21,656 | 91.7% | 36,201 | 81.1% | 41,291 | 86.3% | 69,016 | 77.6% | 37,998 | 76.1% |
| Arkansas | 47 | 2,162,292 | 73.4% | 1,558,397 | 71.5% | 343,188 | 75.4% | 165,088 | 83.3% | 40,544 | 91.7% | 13,978 | 83.8% | 41,097 | 79.5% |
| Michigan | 48 | 7,267,610 | 73.6% | 5,420,862 | 72.0% | 1,110,398 | 81.2% | 378,336 | 82.8% | 153,208 | 59.1% | 40,999 | 84.6% | 163,807 | 75.1% |
| Nevada | 49 | 2,079,619 | 75.4% | 987,806 | 67.9% | 207,806 | 94.2% | 613,207 | 81.5% | 191,272 | 86.8% | 11,754 | 48.4% | 67,774 | 79.8% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 171,917 | 14.2% | 1,408 | 9.7% | 3,359 | 8.3% | 4,101 | 13.4% | | | 3,329 | 16.2% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 141,288 | 29.0% | 3,081 | 53.4% | 24,290 | 44.8% | | | 1,070 | 9.5% | 3,208 | 30.8% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low rape rates

All people in CT, DC, NJ, NY, RI, and VT live in counties with low rape rates.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW RAPE RATE

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low rape rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | rall | 0-999 | 6 FPI | 100-19 | 9% FPI | 200-299 | 9% FPI | 300-399 | 9% FPI | 400+9 | % FPI |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| New Jersev | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 1 |
| New York | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 1 |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 1 |
| Arizona | 7 | 127.035 | 2.0% | 30.222 | 2.6% | 25.204 | 1.9% | 20.107 | 1.8% | 15.738 | 1.9% | 35.764 | 1 |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 121,970 | 2.2% | 12.148 | 1.6% | 21.837 | 2.2% | 22.831 | 2.3% | 22.594 | 2.6% | 42.560 | 1 |
| California | 9 | 850.877 | 2 3% | 171.561 | 2.8% | 187.867 | 2.5% | 142,504 | 2.4% | 102,409 | 2.3% | 246,536 | 1 |
| West Virginia | 10 | 41,559 | 2 3% | 6.978 | 2.1% | 8,322 | 2.1% | 8.022 | 2.4% | 5.649 | 2.2% | 12,588 | 1 |
| North Carolina | 11 | 410.391 | 4 3% | 72,823 | 4 4% | 99,178 | 5.0% | 80,948 | 4 9% | 58,451 | 4.6% | 98,991 | 1 |
| Georgia | 12 | 480 610 | 5.0% | 120 253 | 6.8% | 110 028 | 5.5% | 81 985 | 5.0% | 59,295 | 4.8% | 109 049 | 1 |
| Hawaii | 13 | 67 669 | 5.0% | 7 920 | 5.2% | 11 841 | 5.9% | 11 677 | 5.0% | 11 942 | 5.7% | 24 289 | 1 |
| Virginia | 14 | 836,994 | 10.5% | 160,483 | 17.6% | 173.056 | 14 1% | 152,461 | 12.6% | 114.382 | 10.7% | 236.612 | 1 |
| Maryland | 15 | 664 720 | 11.6% | 156 338 | 27.3% | 141 175 | 18.5% | 109 698 | 13.9% | 78 743 | 10.7% | 178 766 | i |
| Idaho | 16 | 201 460 | 12.8% | 26,226 | 10.7% | 45 537 | 12.3% | 43 224 | 13.5% | 30,855 | 13.8% | 55 618 | i |
| New Hampshire | 17 | 175 422 | 13.7% | 19.051 | 16.8% | 27 289 | 15.5% | 30 180 | 15.0% | 26 603 | 13.6% | 72 299 | i |
| Texas | 18 | 4 014 815 | 15.8% | 726 186 | 16.0% | 892 716 | 16.6% | 711 171 | 16.8% | 538.080 | 16.9% | 1 146 662 | |
| lowa | 19 | 518 579 | 17.4% | 76 339 | 20.4% | 91 525 | 17.2% | 96.425 | 17.2% | 82 005 | 17.0% | 172 285 | i |
| Illinois | 20 | 2 215 578 | 17.6% | 379 652 | 21.0% | 408 198 | 18.6% | 380 284 | 18.8% | 317 458 | 18.5% | 729 986 | i |
| Indiana | 21 | 1 119 939 | 17.7% | 229 253 | 23.3% | 245 518 | 19.7% | 203 614 | 17.0% | 148 465 | 15.2% | 293 089 | i |
| Alabama | 22 | 949,241 | 20.2% | 190,529 | 21.4% | 194,456 | 19.5% | 159.616 | 19.6% | 123,523 | 19.6% | 281,117 | |
| Pennsylvania | 23 | 2.882.926 | 23.4% | 600.562 | 36.0% | 602,356 | 28.2% | 520,606 | 24.4% | 382,269 | 21.1% | 777,133 | |
| Florida | 24 | 4 544 751 | 24.0% | 812 725 | 25.7% | 945 694 | 23.3% | 823 649 | 24.1% | 614 111 | 24.0% | 1 348 572 | 1 |
| Missouri | 25 | 1 428 333 | 24.4% | 285 262 | 31.3% | 301 737 | 26.0% | 258 577 | 24.0% | 191 149 | 22.4% | 391 608 | í |
| Mississippi | 26 | 707.816 | 24 5% | 173,561 | 26.5% | 163.672 | 24.2% | 124,338 | 24.1% | 84,179 | 23.4% | 162,066 | |
| Montana | 27 | 243,442 | 24.8% | 36.670 | 24.4% | 46.808 | 22.9% | 45.810 | 25.2% | 35,339 | 23.9% | 78,815 | |
| Massachusetts | 28 | 1.631.104 | 25.4% | 284.602 | 38.3% | 275.950 | 31.9% | 241.789 | 27.9% | 210.483 | 25.8% | 618.280 | |
| Louisiana | 29 | 1.161.123 | 26.0% | 271.599 | 31.1% | 253.872 | 27.5% | 182.507 | 25.4% | 143.148 | 24.5% | 309.997 | |
| Oregon | 30 | 1.100.633 | 28.8% | 201.758 | 31.6% | 224,138 | 28.9% | 189.589 | 28.3% | 138.994 | 27.3% | 346.154 | 1 |
| Maine | 31 | 392.704 | 30.4% | 58.716 | 32.6% | 86,333 | 33.6% | 76.220 | 32.4% | 61,125 | 31.3% | 110.310 | |
| Wyoming | 32 | 171.875 | 30.6% | 18,180 | 27.9% | 26,390 | 27.6% | 28.872 | 30.1% | 26.390 | 29.6% | 72.043 | |
| South Carolina | 33 | 1,609,140 | 35.1% | 305,273 | 36.3% | 358,964 | 36.2% | 279,573 | 34.6% | 212,550 | 34.4% | 452,780 | |
| Tennessee | 34 | 2,207,977 | 35.1% | 431,665 | 38.5% | 472,538 | 34.9% | 372,486 | 32.7% | 284,735 | 33.1% | 646,553 | |
| Washington | 35 | 2,478,686 | 36.6% | 360,579 | 39.3% | 473,692 | 41.7% | 443,969 | 40.5% | 353,676 | 38.2% | 846,770 | |
| Delaware | 36 | 362,440 | 40.7% | 47,521 | 44.4% | 70,818 | 48.2% | 62,280 | 44.0% | 57,556 | 43.6% | 124,265 | |
| Utah | 37 | 1,222,855 | 43.5% | 160,670 | 44.8% | 235,779 | 42.1% | 241,626 | 40.9% | 191,236 | 42.9% | 393,544 | |
| Kentucky | 38 | 1,903,162 | 44.8% | 325,854 | 40.5% | 365,394 | 41.2% | 324,148 | 43.3% | 267,053 | 44.3% | 620,713 | 1 |
| Ohio | 39 | 5,071,028 | 45.1% | 882,879 | 49.3% | 915,100 | 44.2% | 852,273 | 42.5% | 699,356 | 42.1% | 1,721,420 | |
| Kansas | 40 | 1,471,712 | 52.6% | 250,061 | 64.8% | 317,099 | 59.7% | 282,271 | 55.1% | 212,780 | 50.5% | 409,501 | |
| North Dakota | 41 | 384,781 | 56.6% | 45,691 | 56.5% | 56,930 | 53.6% | 66,695 | 55.3% | 60,468 | 55.9% | 154,997 | |
| New Mexico | 42 | 1,165,940 | 57.2% | 236,421 | 55.5% | 251,036 | 55.3% | 195,326 | 57.8% | 146,845 | 58.0% | 336,312 | |
| South Dakota | 43 | 464,452 | 57.6% | 51,337 | 44.9% | 85,043 | 55.2% | 89,506 | 57.7% | 79,504 | 61.2% | 159,062 | |
| Colorado | 44 | 2,956,367 | 58.2% | 396,284 | 59.7% | 517,662 | 59.6% | 485,502 | 59.0% | 399,360 | 57.4% | 1,157,559 | |
| Nebraska | 45 | 1,098,350 | 61.0% | 155,508 | 67.1% | 205,966 | 60.8% | 195,104 | 58.1% | 165,202 | 58.3% | 376,570 | |
| Minnesota | 46 | 3,246,963 | 61.7% | 431,362 | 71.2% | 526,586 | 64.3% | 512,982 | 60.9% | 467,905 | 58.9% | 1,308,128 | |
| Oklahoma | 47 | 2,457,097 | 66.3% | 409,644 | 65.5% | 517,377 | 64.0% | 443,568 | 64.4% | 343,424 | 66.4% | 743,084 | |
| Alaska | 48 | 493,794 | 71.1% | 47,152 | 67.6% | 75,884 | 68.3% | 71,484 | 70.1% | 71,074 | 71.2% | 228,200 | |
| Michigan | 49 | 7,080,208 | 73.2% | 1,339,315 | 82.0% | 1,408,660 | 78.5% | 1,276,153 | 75.5% | 1,001,947 | 72.2% | 2,054,133 | |
| Arkansas | 50 | 2,104,077 | 73.5% | 403,411 | 73.4% | 488,019 | 71.9% | 379,456 | 72.3% | 270,241 | 72.3% | 562,950 | |
| Nevada | 51 | 2,054,610 | 75.5% | 319,961 | 75.5% | 434,157 | 75.7% | 395,150 | 76.7% | 287,163 | 75.6% | 618,179 | |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

| Casl | | HOPE Goal |
|-------|-------------------|--|
| Goal | | |
| 0.0% | | |
| 0.0% | | |
| 0.0% | | f neonle live in counties with |
| 0.0% | 0 | |
| 0.0% | | low rape rates |
| 1.8% | | people in CT_DC_NU_NV_RL and VT live in |
| 2.1% | cou | nties with low rape rates. |
| 1.8% | | |
| 2.6% | | |
| 3.4% | | |
| 3.6% | | |
| 4.3% | | |
| 6.7% | | |
| 6.2% | | |
| 13.7% | | |
| 12.1% | | |
| 14.0% | | |
| 16.7% | | |
| 15.1% | | |
| 15.1% | | |
| 20.6% | | |
| 16.9% | WE | AL MEACURES |
| 23.4% | GO | AL MEASURE? |
| 21.3% | lt is | an estimate of how far each state has to |
| 23.8% | go as t | to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured |
| 26.5% | nor | tion of populations (% to Goal) within a |
| 19.7% | stat | e whose health opportunity would need |
| 22.6% | to i | mprove in order for that state to meet the |
| 20.2% | НО | PE Goal. |
| 23.5% | но | W WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND |
| 37.1% | WH | AT DO THEY SHOW? |
| 35.6% | The | percent distance values in every aroup |
| 31.5% | wei | e divided into quartiles. Lightest shades |
| 34.1% | wer | e applied to values in the top quartile, |
| 46.0% | clos | sest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively |
| 51.5% | dar | ker shades were given to values in the 2 nd , |
| 46.3% | 3 rd , | and 4 th quartiles, farther from the HOPE |
| 43.2% | Goa | al. |
| 58.7% | | |
| 59.1% | | KEY |
| 63.1% | | |
| 57.1% | | 1 st Quartile |
| 61.5% | | |
| 59.5% | | 2 nd Quartile |
| 69.8% | | |
| 73.2% | | 3 rd Quartile |
| 65.0% | | |
| 76.4% | | 4 th Quartile |
| 74.4% | 1 | |

LOW ROBBERY RATE

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with fewer than 52.1 reported cases of robbery per 100,000 population annually in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2010-2012 Uniform Crime Reporting, Federal Bureau of Investigation

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | INCOME (% FPL) | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|------|---------|--------|--------|----------|----------|----------------|-------------|----------------------|------|---------|--------|----------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Montana | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Montana | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| South Dakota | 5 | 87.3% | 87.9% | 89.8% | 82.0% | 88.2% | 85.6% | 73.9% | Wyoming | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| West Virginia | 6 | 74.5% | 75.4% | 58.8% | 78.2% | 65.3% | 70.9% | 55.7% | South Dakota | 6 | 87.4% | 88.7% | 86.2% | 88.3% | 87.0% | 87.2% |
| lowa | 7 | 71.6% | 73.4% | 41.6% | 64.4% | 60.4% | 77.7% | 64.9% | West Virginia | 7 | 74.5% | 74.7% | 75.6% | 75.1% | 74.8% | 72.9% |
| Maine | 8 | 70.6% | 71.4% | 37.7% | 62.0% | 52.1% | 90.8% | 58.4% | Iowa | 8 | 71.3% | 69.5% | 72.8% | 73.8% | 72.4% | 69.4% |
| Oregon | 9 | 69.3% | 69.8% | 34.6% | 75.3% | 59.7% | 75.0% | 64.8% | Maine | 9 | 70.6% | 72.7% | 75.7% | 73.3% | 71.2% | 64.7% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 68.3% | 73.3% | 31.4% | 55.3% | 37.8% | 80.8% | 55.4% | Oregon | 10 | 69.3% | 64.9% | 69.5% | 70.6% | 71.1% | 70.1% |
| Kansas | 11 | 66.8% | 71.5% | 32.3% | 55.5% | 58.8% | 70.5% | 58.4% | New Hampshire | 11 | 69.2% | 70.1% | 70.4% | 71.0% | 69.6% | 67.9% |
| Wisconsin | 12 | 64.7% | 71.1% | 11.2% | 38.3% | 50.9% | 83.2% | 51.1% | Minnesota | 12 | 68.3% | 61.1% | 68.7% | 72.2% | 73.2% | 66.8% |
| Virginia | 13 | 60.9% | 66.4% | 38.3% | 64.6% | 71.0% | 58.0% | 57.6% | Kansas | 13 | 66.6% | 60.0% | 64.0% | 66.5% | 66.9% | 70.5% |
| Arkansas | 14 | 59.1% | 65.1% | 26.6% | 68.0% | 57.2% | 71.6% | 58.4% | Wisconsin | 14 | 64.6% | 52.8% | 63.4% | 67.9% | 68.7% | 66.2% |
| Mississippi | 15 | 57.5% | 65.1% | 46.2% | 53.9% | 46.8% | 78.8% | 53.0% | Virginia | 15 | 61.2% | 53.1% | 57.8% | 59.1% | 59.7% | 65.6% |
| Nebraska | 16 | 55.6% | 58.6% | 16.7% | 55.7% | 25.0% | 73.6% | 43.8% | Arkansas | 16 | 59.2% | 56.6% | 61.6% | 61.7% | 60.2% | 56.8% |
| Kentucky ^a | 17 | 54.7% | 58.8% | 23.2% | 39.9% | 27.7% | 50.2% | 42.8% | Mississippi | 17 | 57.7% | 53.5% | 57.6% | 57.6% | 59.4% | 60.8% |
| Utah | 18 | 54.5% | 57.8% | 34.9% | 40.3% | 33.8% | 69.8% | 51.4% | Nebraska | 18 | 55.6% | 49.1% | 57.7% | 60.0% | 59.1% | 53.0% |
| Alaska | 19 | 51.9% | 54.3% | 27.9% | 40.3% | 30.4% | 66.9% | 46.5% | Kentucky | 19 | 54.9% | 57.7% | 58.5% | 57.0% | 56.2% | 48.5% |
| Missouri | 20 | 51.9% | 58.4% | 13.0% | 43.0% | 30.3% | 61.3% | 45.3% | Utah | 20 | 54.4% | 53.6% | 56.2% | 57.1% | 55.5% | 51.1% |
| Colorado | 21 | 51.6% | 58.3% | 13.7% | 39.2% | 39.0% | 60.7% | 40.7% | Alaska | 21 | 52.4% | 60.0% | 57.4% | 55.9% | 53.1% | 47.6% |
| New Mexico | 22 | 49.4% | 51.0% | 39.7% | 49.1% | 31.6% | 49.7% | 45.0% | Missouri | 22 | 51.7% | 48.5% | 54.4% | 55.3% | 54.1% | 48.2% |
| Michigan | 23 | 47.2% | 53.1% | 18.9% | 39.9% | 40.5% | 66.1% | 41.5% | Colorado | 23 | 51.4% | 45.7% | 46.5% | 49.3% | 51.8% | 56.1% |
| Oklahoma | 24 | 46.7% | 49.5% | 19.9% | 32.5% | 20.5% | 67.0% | 53.3% | New Mexico | 24 | 49.2% | 51.4% | 51.1% | 51.0% | 49.7% | 44.9% |
| Indiana | 25 | 46.4% | 52.3% | 9.5% | 28.8% | 44.2% | 42.9% | 32.4% | Michigan | 25 | 47.1% | 39.2% | 46.5% | 48.9% | 49.1% | 49.7% |
| Alabama | 26 | 45.0% | 51.2% | 29.0% | 50.5% | 31.7% | 57.8% | 43.5% | Indiana | 26 | 46.6% | 36.5% | 44.0% | 47.5% | 49.8% | 51.3% |
| Illinois | 27 | 44.8% | 54.9% | 16.0% | 33.5% | 36.0% | 42.0% | 43.1% | Oklahoma | 27 | 46.5% | 48.3% | 49.8% | 48.2% | 46.9% | 41.6% |
| Tennessee | 28 | 43.3% | 51.2% | 13.8% | 29.5% | 21.8% | 49.4% | 41.6% | Alabama | 28 | 45.0% | 44.6% | 46.8% | 47.2% | 45.5% | 42.5% |
| Rhode Island | 29 | 40.4% | 48.5% | 12.7% | 10.5% | 25.5% | 35.5% | 33.7% | Illinois | 29 | 44.6% | 33.2% | 40.7% | 45.6% | 48.1% | 49.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 30 | 38.2% | 44.0% | 10.7% | 19.8% | 22.9% | 33.7% | 30.8% | Tennessee | 30 | 43.3% | 41.7% | 45.5% | 45.0% | 44.6% | 40.9% |
| Ohio | 31 | 38.1% | 43.7% | 7.6% | 27.1% | 25.4% | 34.7% | 27.9% | Rhode Island | 31 | 40.5% | 24.8% | 30.4% | 36.5% | 42.5% | 50.8% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 35.6% | 41.6% | 20.9% | 33.2% | 20.5% | 25.0% | 32.3% | Ohio | 32 | 38.1% | 32.0% | 38.1% | 40.1% | 40.8% | 38.7% |
| Georgiaª | 33 | 33.8% | 45.1% | 17.0% | 30.0% | 15.7% | 35.9% | 28.0% | Pennsylvania | 33 | 38.0% | 31.4% | 37.4% | 39.5% | 39.9% | 39.2% |
| Louisiana | 34 | 32.7% | 39.3% | 22.1% | 25.7% | 16.5% | 40.3% | 32.4% | North Carolina | 34 | 35.6% | 35.3% | 37.5% | 38.2% | 37.0% | 32.4% |
| New Jersev | 35 | 30.6% | 37.9% | 10.5% | 20.7% | 33.0% | 21.8% | 27.6% | Georgia | 35 | 33.9% | 30.7% | 34.3% | 36.2% | 36.7% | 33.0% |
| Texas | 36 | 30.4% | 42.1% | 18.0% | 21.2% | 22.8% | 39.2% | 32.8% | Louisiana | 36 | 32.5% | 29.1% | 33.2% | 32.7% | 33.4% | 33.7% |
| Washington | 37 | 30.1% | 32.1% | 12.2% | 36.6% | 12.2% | 44.3% | 23.5% | New Jersev | 37 | 30.7% | 20.7% | 24.3% | 27.3% | 30.0% | 35.8% |
| Connecticut | 38 | 25.1% | 30.1% | 9.0% | 12.2% | 18.2% | 33.3% | 30.8% | Texas | 38 | 30.1% | 23.5% | 27.3% | 30.2% | 33.0% | 34.5% |
| Arizona | 39 | 24.7% | 24.5% | 12.8% | 22.5% | 10.9% | 67.5% | 22.5% | Washington | 39 | 30.0% | 34.0% | 34.6% | 32.9% | 30.8% | 25.1% |
| Massachusetts | 40 | 19.4% | 21.6% | 12.9% | 6.8% | 20.5% | 25.7% | 17.6% | Connecticut | 40 | 24.6% | 19.0% | 23.0% | 25.6% | 27.8% | 25.1% |
| Hawaii | 41 | 18.6% | 24.9% | 6.7% | 22.3% | 14.1% | 24.9% | 21.0% | Arizona | 41 | 24.1% | 27.2% | 28.1% | 26.1% | 24.2% | 18.4% |
| New York | 42 | 17.2% | 26.0% | 4.3% | 5.1% | 4.1% | 29.1% | 16.1% | Massachusetts | 42 | 19.2% | 14.7% | 16.7% | 18.8% | 19.3% | 21.1% |
| Nevada | 43 | 10.3% | 14.4% | 1.6% | 6.8% | 2.1% | 38.6% | 6.9% | Hawaii | 43 | 18.8% | 28.5% | 22.8% | 20.2% | 19.4% | 13.9% |
| Florida | 44 | 9.5% | 13.6% | 5.1% | 3.0% | 5.4% | 15.9% | 9.8% | New York | 44 | 16.7% | 15.0% | 17.6% | 19.2% | 19.5% | 15.2% |
| South Carolina | 45 | 8.5% | 9.8% | 6.0% | 6.7% | 4.6% | 7.1% | 6.8% | Nevada | 45 | 10.2% | 8.9% | 9.1% | 10.0% | 11.3% | 11.2% |
| Maryland | 46 | 8.2% | 12.9% | 2.4% | 3.1% | 2.2% | 6.4% | 7.2% | Florida | 46 | 9.4% | 8.4% | 8.9% | 10.1% | 10.5% | 9.3% |
| California | 47 | 5.0% | 9.1% | 1.3% | 2.6% | 1.5% | 11.7% | 5.0% | South Carolina | 47 | 8.4% | 9.3% | 9.1% | 9.1% | 8.5% | 6.9% |
| Delaware | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Maryland | 48 | 8.2% | 5.7% | 6.6% | 7.7% | 8.8% | 9.1% |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | California | 49 | 5.0% | 3.7% | 4.2% | 4.9% | 5.6% | 5.8% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 71.1% | 47.6% | 43.7% | 53.8% | | 65.6% | Delaware | 50 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% | 100.0% | District of Columbia | 50 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low robbery rates

All people in ID, MT, ND, VT, and WY live in counties with low robbery rates.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW ROBBERY RATE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low robbery rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | Overall White | | Black | | Hispanic | | Asian/Pl | | AI/AN | | Multiracial | | | | |
|----------------------------|---------------|------------|------------------|------------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------------|-----------|-----------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Montana | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| South Dakota | 5 | 104,529 | 12.7% | 84,545 | 12.1% | 1,254 | 10.2% | 4,728 | 18.0% | 1,134 | 11.8% | 8,122 | 14.4% | 4,746 | 26.1% |
| West Virginia | 6 | 472,883 | 25.5% | 422,634 | 24.6% | 24,085 | 41.2% | 5,239 | 21.8% | 4,696 | 34.7% | 839 | 29.1% | 15,390 | 44.3% |
| lowa | 7 | 875,239 | 28.5% | 720,024 | 26.6% | 54,443 | 58.4% | 58,046 | 35.6% | 24,110 | 39.6% | 1,756 | 22.3% | 16,860 | 35.1% |
| Maine | 8 | 391,389 | 29.5% | 357,894 | 28.6% | 9,013 | 62.3% | 7,066 | 38.0% | 6,959 | 47.9% | 669 | 9.2% | 9,788 | 41.6% |
| Oregon | 9 | 1,192,890 | 30.6% | 912,845 | 30.2% | 43,990 | 65.4% | 116,893 | 24.7% | 66,030 | 40.3% | 9,431 | 25.0% | 43,701 | 35.2% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 1,701,734 | 31.6% | 1,179,304 | 26.7% | 195,621 | 68.6% | 118,183 | 44.7% | 144,012 | 62.2% | 10,014 | 19.2% | 54,600 | 44.6% |
| Kansas | 11 | 955,043 | 33.2% | 635,669 | 28.5% | 110,330 | 67.7% | 140,743 | 44.5% | 30,389 | 41.2% | 5,897 | 29.5% | 32,015 | 41.6% |
| Wisconsin | 12 | 2,021,348 | 35.3% | 1,367,193 | 28.9% | 311,903 | 88.8% | 219,312 | 61.7% | 67,575 | 49.1% | 7,682 | 16.8% | 47,683 | 48.9% |
| Virginia | 13 | 3,189,572 | 39.0% | 1,755,489 | 33.6% | 956,630 | 61.7% | 242,955 | 35.4% | 138,568 | 29.0% | 7,254 | 42.0% | 88,676 | 42.4% |
| Arkansas | 14 | 1,202,197 | 40.8% | 759,571 | 34.9% | 334,194 | 73.4% | 63,304 | 32.0% | 18,897 | 42.8% | 4,738 | 28.4% | 21,493 | 41.6% |
| Mississippi | 15 | 1,267,589 | 42.5% | 600,403 | 34.9% | 596,965 | 53.8% | 38,720 | 46.1% | 15,056 | 53.2% | 2,519 | 21.2% | 13,926 | 47.0% |
| Nebraska | 16 | 823,806 | 44.4% | 624,389 | 41.4% | 69,942 | 83.3% | 79,856 | 44.3% | 27,281 | 75.0% | 3,413 | 26.4% | 18,925 | 56.2% |
| Kentucky ^a | 17 | 1,980,944 | 45.2% | 1,548,745 | 41.2% | 261,412 | 76.8% | 83,901 | 60.1% | 39,702 | 72.3% | 3,680 | 49.8% | 43,504 | 57.2% |
| Utah | 18 | 1,297,678 | 45.5% | 962,120 | 42.2% | 18,689 | 65.1% | 226,509 | 59.7% | 56,701 | 66.2% | 8,503 | 30.2% | 25,156 | 48.6% |
| Alaska | 19 | 337.548 | 48.0% | 204.388 | 45.7% | 17.025 | 72.1% | 26.683 | 59.7% | 33.300 | 69.6% | 29.442 | 33.1% | 26.710 | 53.5% |
| Missouri | 20 | 2,900,702 | 48.2% | 2.020,177 | 41.6% | 600,566 | 87.0% | 129,154 | 57.0% | 74,203 | 69.7% | 8,402 | 38.7% | 68,200 | 54.7% |
| Colorado | 21 | 2,510,166 | 48.4% | 1,503,492 | 41.7% | 171,769 | 86.3% | 661,980 | 60.8% | 91,221 | 61.0% | 11,185 | 39.3% | 70,519 | 59.3% |
| New Mexico | 22 | 1.049.443 | 50.5% | 403.981 | 49.0% | 22.616 | 60.3% | 497.443 | 50.9% | 19.103 | 68.4% | 89.320 | 50.3% | 16.980 | 55.0% |
| Michigan | 23 | 5.210.207 | 52.7% | 3.527.996 | 46.9% | 1.109.174 | 81.1% | 274.855 | 60.1% | 154.182 | 59.5% | 16.436 | 33.9% | 127.564 | 58.5% |
| Oklahoma | 24 | 2,035,795 | 53.3% | 1,308,165 | 50.5% | 218,483 | 80.1% | 241.678 | 67 5% | 59,122 | 79 5% | 86,861 | 33.0% | 121,486 | 46.7% |
| Indiana | 25 | 3.497.195 | 53.5% | 2.519.328 | 47.7% | 534.039 | 90.5% | 292.915 | 71.2% | 64.451 | 55.8% | 6,958 | 57.1% | 79.504 | 67.6% |
| Alabama | 26 | 2,646,989 | 55.0% | 1,566,376 | 48.8% | 896,503 | 71.0% | 94,914 | 49.5% | 40.347 | 68.3% | 9,770 | 42.2% | 39,079 | 56.5% |
| Illinois | 27 | 7,097,120 | 55.2% | 3,647,216 | 45.1% | 1,531,400 | 84.0% | 1.392.958 | 66 5% | 400.170 | 64.0% | 8,511 | 58.0% | 116,865 | 56.9% |
| Tennessee | 28 | 3,657,024 | 56.7% | 2,363,431 | 48.8% | 926.483 | 86.2% | 218,499 | 70.5% | 78,769 | 78.2% | 6,914 | 50.6% | 62,928 | 58.4% |
| Rhode Island | 29 | 622,528 | 59.5% | 406.952 | 51 5% | 48,100 | 87.3% | 125,144 | 89.5% | 24,480 | 74.5% | 2.465 | 64 5% | 15,387 | 66.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 30 | 7.873.473 | 61.8% | 5.606.556 | 56.0% | 1,197,349 | 89.3% | 629,462 | 80.2% | 290,690 | 77.1% | 10.074 | 66.3% | 139.342 | 69.2% |
| Ohio | 31 | 7 142 539 | 61.9% | 5 241 809 | 56.3% | 1 283 817 | 92.4% | 276 591 | 72.9% | 156 424 | 74.6% | 11 103 | 65.3% | 172 795 | 72.1% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 6,264,125 | 64.4% | 3,674,732 | 58.4% | 1,630,573 | 79.1% | 566.846 | 66.8% | 187,255 | 79.5% | 79,630 | 75.0% | 125.089 | 67.7% |
| Georgia ^a | 33 | 6 542 482 | 66.2% | 2 992 675 | 54.9% | 2 500 931 | 83.0% | 628.011 | 70.0% | 291 700 | 84.3% | 11 715 | 64.1% | 117 450 | 72.0% |
| Louisiana | 34 | 3 090 523 | 67.3% | 1 667 975 | 60.7% | 1 143 364 | 77.9% | 156 421 | 74.3% | 63 827 | 83.5% | 15 235 | 59.7% | 43 701 | 67.6% |
| New Jersey | 35 | 6 133 848 | 69.4% | 3 186 021 | 62.1% | 1 014 082 | 89.5% | 1 308 314 | 79.3% | 520 510 | 67.0% | 8 134 | 78.2% | 96 787 | 72.4% |
| Texas | 36 | 18 140 518 | 69.6% | 6 697 217 | 57.9% | 2 473 985 | 82.0% | 7 846 540 | 78.8% | 827 472 | 77.2% | 40 137 | 60.8% | 255 167 | 67.2% |
| Washington | 37 | 4 813 945 | 69.9% | 3 341 467 | 67.9% | 211 182 | 87.8% | 513 596 | 63.4% | 487 315 | 87.8% | 45 796 | 55.7% | 214 589 | 76.5% |
| Connecticut | 38 | 2 684 368 | 75.0% | 1 754 340 | 69.9% | 311 278 | 91.0% | 450 161 | 87.8% | 119 029 | 81.8% | 3,750 | 66.7% | 46 338 | 69.2% |
| Arizona | 39 | 4 934 324 | 75.3% | 2 818 860 | 75.5% | 224 771 | 87.2% | 1 532 429 | 77.5% | 176 621 | 89.1% | 85 391 | 32.5% | 96 252 | 77.5% |
| Massachusetts | 40 | 5 334 046 | 80.6% | 3 914 009 | 78.4% | 369 321 | 87.1% | 635 241 | 93.2% | 305 477 | 79.5% | 6.019 | 74.3% | 103 979 | 82.4% |
| Hawaii | 40 | 1 133 301 | 81.5% | 239 170 | 75.1% | 23 373 | 93.3% | 103 699 | 77.7% | 554 696 | 85.9% | 1 441 | 75.1% | 210 922 | 79.0% |
| New York | 41 | 16 153 450 | 82.8% | 8 307 357 | 74.0% | 2 702 865 | 95.3% | 3 379 263 | 94.9% | 1 453 366 | 95.9% | 33 /85 | 70.9% | 277 114 | 83.9% |
| Nevada | 13 | 2 473 032 | 89.7% | 1 244 982 | 85.6% | 217 019 | 98.4% | 701 284 | 93.2% | 215 7/8 | 97.9% | 1/ 92/ | 61.4% | 79.075 | 93.1% |
| Florida | 43 | 17 464 278 | 90.4% | 9 467 038 | 86.4% | 2 827 320 | 90. 4 76 | 1 379 712 | 97.0% | 466 557 | 94.6% | 25 457 | 84.1% | 288 104 | 90.2% |
| South Carolina | 44 | 17,404,270 | 90.478 | 2 725 905 | 90.4% | 1 218 561 | 94.9% | 4,379,712 | 97.076 | 61 8/2 | 94.076 | 13 150 | 04.178 | 72 222 | 90.2% |
| Mandand | 45 | 4,323,403 | 91.370 01.99/ | 2,723,903 | 90.276 | 1,210,301 | 94.0% | 231,093 | 95.5% | 227.216 | 93.470 | 11 245 | 92.970 | 12,332 | 95.270 |
| California | 40 | 2,252,079 | 91.0% | 12 550 650 | 07.1% | 1,005,500 | 97.0% | 433,307 | 90.9% | 557,210 E 110 920 | 97.0% | 11,545 | 95.0% | 123,403 | 92.0% |
| Dolawaro | 47 | 01E 766 | 95.0% 100.0% | 000,000,010 200,010 | 100.0% | 2,120,094 | 100.0% | 70 500 | 100.02 | 3,119,020 21 624 | 90.5% 100.0% | 120,002 | 100.0% | 10 2 40 | 95.0% |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 515,200 | 100.0% | 224 104 | 100.0% | 193,047 | 100.0% | 10,000 | 100.0% | 21,034 | 100.0% | 2,420 | 100.0% | 13,343 | 100.0% |
| Now Hampshire ^b | 40 | 032,425 | 100.0% | 24,104 | 100.0% | 300,700 7 E00 | 100.0% | 02,037 | F6 29/ | 22,098 11 160 | 100.0% | 1,384 | 100.0% | 12,750 | 100.0% |
| | | | | 549,090 | 20.9% | 000,1 | 52.4% | 22,700 | 0.0% | 14,100 | 40.2% | | | 7,059 | 54.4% |
| wyoning | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

HOPE Goal

of people live in counties with low robbery rates

All people in ID, MT, ND, VT, and WY live in counties with low robbery rates.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW ROBBERY RATE

0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

12.8% 27.1%

30.6%

35.3% 29.9% 32.1% 33.2% 29.5% 33.8% 34.4% 43.2% 39.2% 47.0% 51.5% 48.9% 52.4% 51.8%

43.9%

55.1% 50.3%

48.7%

58.4%

57.5%

51.0%

59.1%

49.2% 61.3%

60.8% 67.6%

67.0%

66.3%

64.2%

65.5%

74.9%

74.99 81.6%

78.9%

86.1%

84.8%

88.8%

90.7% 93.1%

90.9%

94.2%

100.0%

100.0%

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low robbery rates to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | Overall | | 0-99% FPL | | 100-199% FPL | | 200-299% FPL | | 300-399% FPL | | 400+% FPL | |
|----------------------|------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|--------------|------------------|------------|--------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Montana | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Wyoming | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| South Dakota | 6 | 101,617 | 12.6% | 12,960 | 11.3% | 21,313 | 13.8% | 18,210 | 11.7% | 16,830 | 13.0% | 32,304 | 12.8 |
| West Virginia | 7 | 458,974 | 25.5% | 82,383 | 25.3% | 95,060 | 24.4% | 83,163 | 24.9% | 65,633 | 25.2% | 132,735 | 27.1 |
| lowa | 8 | 853,741 | 28.7% | 114,191 | 30.5% | 144,408 | 27.2% | 146,949 | 26.2% | 132,673 | 27.6% | 315,520 | 30.6 |
| Maine | 9 | 380,675 | 29.4% | 49,042 | 27.3% | 62,504 | 24.3% | 62,761 | 26.7% | 56,338 | 28.8% | 150,030 | 35.3 |
| Oregon | 10 | 1,172,175 | 30.7% | 224,352 | 35.1% | 236,499 | 30.5% | 197,010 | 29.4% | 147,353 | 28.9% | 366,961 | 29.9 |
| New Hampshire | 11 | 394,777 | 30.8% | 33,938 | 29.9% | 52,096 | 29.6% | 58,284 | 29.0% | 59,339 | 30.4% | 191,120 | 32.1 |
| Minnesota | 12 | 1,669,544 | 31.7% | 235,671 | 38.9% | 256,815 | 31.3% | 234,650 | 27.8% | 212,813 | 26.8% | 729,595 | 33.2 |
| Kansas | 13 | 936,292 | 33.4% | 154,376 | 40.0% | 191,052 | 36.0% | 171,566 | 33.5% | 139,583 | 33.1% | 279,715 | 29.5 |
| Wisconsin | 14 | 1.971.576 | 35.4% | 348.761 | 47.2% | 358.395 | 36.6% | 319.073 | 32.1% | 272,191 | 31.3% | 673,156 | 33.8 |
| Virginia | 15 | 3.081.643 | 38.8% | 428.626 | 46.9% | 518,424 | 42.2% | 496,165 | 40.9% | 428.649 | 40.3% | 1,209,779 | 34.4 |
| Arkansas | 16 | 1,167,187 | 40.8% | 238.612 | 43.4% | 260.601 | 38.4% | 200.943 | 38.3% | 148,594 | 39.8% | 318,437 | 43.2 |
| Mississippi | 17 | 1,222,645 | 42.3% | 304.177 | 46.5% | 286.574 | 42.4% | 218.638 | 42.4% | 146.065 | 40.6% | 267,191 | 39.2 |
| Nebraska | 18 | 799.435 | 44.4% | 117,879 | 50.9% | 143,311 | 42.3% | 134,189 | 40.0% | 115,841 | 40.9% | 288,215 | 47.0 |
| Kentucky | 19 | 1.915.579 | 45.1% | 339,829 | 42.3% | 368,265 | 41 5% | 322.044 | 43.0% | 264.086 | 43.8% | 621,355 | 51.5 |
| Utah | 20 | 1 282 304 | 45.6% | 166 304 | 46.4% | 245 367 | 43.8% | 253 657 | 42.9% | 198.616 | 44 5% | 418 360 | 48.9 |
| Alaska | 21 | 330,259 | 47.6% | 27 859 | 40.0% | 47 371 | 42.6% | 45 011 | 44 1% | 46 778 | 46.9% | 163 240 | 52.4 |
| Missouri | 22 | 2,826,933 | 48.3% | 469,709 | 51.5% | 529,546 | 45.6% | 482,786 | 44 7% | 391,518 | 45 9% | 953.374 | 51.8 |
| Colorado | 23 | 2 468 041 | 48.6% | 360 301 | 54.3% | 464 896 | 53.5% | 417 463 | 50.7% | 335 398 | 48.2% | 889 983 | 43.9 |
| New Mexico | 24 | 1 035 596 | 50.8% | 206 941 | 48.6% | 221 956 | 48.9% | 165 648 | 49.0% | 127 535 | 50.3% | 313 516 | 55 1 |
| Michigan | 25 | 5 112 059 | 52.9% | 992 253 | 60.8% | 959 173 | 53.5% | 864 849 | 51 1% | 706 127 | 50.9% | 1 589 657 | 50.3 |
| Indiana | 26 | 3 386 075 | 53.4% | 624 988 | 63.5% | 699 919 | 56.0% | 628 154 | 52.5% | 491 199 | 50.2% | 941 815 | 48.7 |
| Oklahoma | 27 | 1 982 592 | 53.5% | 323 684 | 51.7% | 406 028 | 50.2% | 356 687 | 51.8% | 274 703 | 53.1% | 621 490 | 58.4 |
| Alabama | 28 | 2 583 902 | 55.0% | 492 903 | 55.4% | 531 355 | 53.2% | 430 920 | 52.8% | 343 198 | 54.5% | 785 526 | 57.5 |
| Illinois | 20 | 6 959 468 | 55.4% | 1 209 089 | 66.8% | 1 301 414 | 59.2% | 1 102 132 | 54.4% | 889 186 | 51.9% | 2 457 647 | 51.0 |
| Tennessee | 30 | 3 567 563 | 56.7% | 653 452 | 58.3% | 737 442 | 54.5% | 626 629 | 55.0% | 477 224 | 55.4% | 1 072 816 | 59.1 |
| Phodo Island | 21 | 602 792 | 59.5% | 108 246 | 75.2% | 115 641 | 69.6% | 96 796 | 63.5% | 78 93/ | 57 5% | 202 175 | 35.1 49.2 |
| Ohio | 37 | 6 961 643 | 61.9% | 1 217 917 | 68.0% | 1 281 256 | 61.9% | 1 201 097 | 59.9% | 982 373 | 59.2% | 2 279 000 | 61.3 |
| Pennsylvania | 32 | 7 655 002 | 62.0% | 1 144 070 | 68.6% | 1,201,230 | 62.6% | 1 290 724 | 60.5% | 1 087 484 | 60.1% | 2,275,000 | 60.8 |
| North Carolina | 34 | 6 116 496 | 64.4% | 1,144,070 | 64.7% | 1,350,340 | 62.5% | 1,230,724 | 61.8% | 801.018 | 63.0% | 1 953 685 | 67.6 |
| Goorgia | 25 | 6 373 054 | 66 1% | 1,000,730 | 69.3% | 1,232,723 | 65.7% | 1,020,310 | 63.8% | 787.075 | 63.3% | 2 005 854 | 67.0 |
| Louisiana | 36 | 3 017 644 | 67.5% | 620 253 | 70.9% | 616 574 | 66.8% | 1,045,054 | 67.3% | 389.081 | 66.6% | 2,005,054 | 66.3 |
| Now Jorsov | 30 | 6 028 097 | 69.3% | 7/1 583 | 70.3% | 908 869 | 75.7% | 403,033 | 72 7% | 751 194 | 70.0% | 2 775 873 | 64.2 |
| Toyas | 28 | 17 797 /12 | 69.9% | 3 441,505 | 79.5% | 3 907 310 | 73.7% | 2 949 833 | 69.8% | 2 126 484 | 67.0% | 5 272 176 | 65 5 |
| Washington | 30 | 17,737,412 | 70.0% | 604 459 | 66.0% | 7/2 815 | 65.4% | 735 017 | 67.1% | 640 396 | 69.2% | 2,575,170 | 74.9 |
| Connecticut | 40 | 2,730,001 | 70.0% | 205 226 | 91.0% | 252 112 | 77.0% | 220202 | 74.49/ | 224 767 | 09.276 72.2% | 1 200 559 | 74.9 |
| Arizona | 40 | 2,023,000 | 75.4% | 253,320 | 72.9% | 333,112 | 71.0% | 920 600 | 74.470 | 524,707 | 72.270 | 1,509,550 | 74.9 91.6 |
| Massachusotts | 41 | 4,003,201 | 90.9% | 622 207 | 95.20/ | 903,020 710,628 | 7 1.3 % | 702 262 | 01 D0/ | 659 200 | 7 3.0 % 80 7% | 1,300,310 | 79.00 |
| Massachusetts | 42 | 5,100,950 | 00.0% | 100 072 | 00.5% | 7 19,020 | 05.5% | 105,502 | 01.2% | 050,290 | 00.7 <i>%</i> | 2,474,509 | 76.9 |
| Hawaii Now York | 43 | 1, 101,220 | 01.2% 02.20/ | 109,972 | 71.5% | 154,014 | 11.2% | 2 292 009 | 79.8% | 1046 565 | 80.6% | 400,370 | 00.1 |
| New YOR | 44 | 15,009,021 | 03.3% | 2,550,505 | 05.0% | 2,000,140 | 02.4% | 2,205,900 | 00.0% | 1,940,505 | 00.5% | 0,405,097 | 04.0 |
| Nevada | 45 | 2,445,610 | 89.8% | 300,081 | 91.1% | 520,824 | 90.9% | 463,602 | 90.0% | 337,069 | 88.7% | / 38,034 | 88.8 |
| FIUTIDA | 40 | 1/,1/1,18/ | 90.6% | 2,892,926 | 91.6% | 3,009,034 | 91.1% | 3,077,927 | 89.9% | 2,207,597 | 89.5% | 5,222,903 | 90.7 |
| South Carolina | 4/ | 4,201,772 | 91.6% | /62,159 | 90.7% | 902,482 | 90.9% | / 35,445 | 90.9% | 565,730 | 91.5% | 1,235,956 | 93.1 |
| California | 48 | 5,273,114 | 91.8% | 540,608 | 94.3% | 712,991 | 93.4% | /29,//3 | 92.3% | 669,007 | 91.2% | 2,620,735 | 90.9 |
| California | 49 | 35,469,761 | 95.0% | 5,887,218 | 96.3% | 7,148,928 | 95.8% | 5,553,316 | 95.1% | 4, 147, 954 | 94.4% | 12,/32,345 | 94.2 |
| Delaware | 50 | δ91,493 500.620 | 100.0% | 107,101 | 100.0% | 146,943 | 100.0% | 141,419 | 100.0% | 132,106 | 100.0% | 363,924 | 100.0 |
| District of Columbia | 50 | 599,620 | 100.0% | 109,378 | 100.0% | 82,010 | 100.0% | 66,139 | 100.0% | 60,948 | 100.0% | 201,145 | 100.0 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low robbery rates

All people in ID, MT, ND, VT, and WY live in counties with low robbery rates.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HOME OWNERSHIP

Tables show the portion of households living in a home they own in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | ΔΙ/ΔΝ | Multiracial |
|------------------------|------|-----------------|----------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|----------------|-----------------|
| lowa | 1 | 75.3% | 77 7% | 33 5% | 55.2% | 53.2% | 44.7% | 50.6% |
| West Virginia | 2 | 75.0% | 76.3% | 46.0% | 62.7% | 51.9% | 73.1% | 57.7% |
| Minnesota | 3 | 74.7% | 79.0% | 26.4% | 45.6% | 59.3% | 50.2% | 52.8% |
| Michigan | 4 | 73.7% | 79.4% | 45.5% | 59.0% | 62.2% | 64 5% | 60.1% |
| Delaware | 5 | 73.2% | 80.7% | 54.6% | 52.0% | 61.4% | 78.2% | 61.0% |
| Utah | 6 | 73.1% | 76.4% | 39.2% | 53.7% | 60.6% | 56.4% | 59.4% |
| Maine | 7 | 72.8% | 73.8% | 21.5% | 60.0% | 61.5% | 41.3% | 53.1% |
| Wyoming | 8 | 72.5% | 74.3% | 47.9% | 61.0% | 50.0% | 58.0% | 52.3% |
| Indiana | 9 | 72.1% | 76.5% | 40.7% | 55.0% | 54.8% | 65.5% | 59.9% |
| Idaho | 10 | 72.0% | 74.0% | 26.5% | 54.9% | 61.5% | 57.4% | 63.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 11 | 71.2% | 75.9% | 46.4% | 44.3% | 60.6% | 50.8% | 54.6% |
| Alahama | 12 | 71.2% | 78.1% | 54.7% | 46.9% | 59.0% | 75.0% | 70.5% |
| South Dakota | 12 | 71.2% | 70.1% | 18.9% | 48.2% | <i>JJ.076</i> | 12.0% | 15.3% |
| South Carolina | 1/ | 71.0% | 74.470 | 55.0% | 46.7% | 63.1% | 67.1% | 59.7% |
| New Mexico | 15 | 70.5% | 73.5% | 54.2% | 68.7% | 62.2% | 66.2% | 56.9% |
| Mississinni | 16 | 70.3% | 79.0% | 56.7% | 49.0% | 63.6% | 59.8% | 62.5% |
| Wisconsin | 17 | 70.4% | 74.6% | 30.7% | 43.076 | 49.3% | 54.5% | 50.9% |
| Kansas | 18 | 70.4% | 74.0% | 40.8% | 55.2% | 49.3% 57.7% | 61 7% | 58.6% |
| Miccouri | 10 | 70.4% | 74.276 | 40.0% | 51.4% | 58.0% | 52.2% | 57.2% |
| Nobracka | 20 | 70.3% | 75.078 | 42.3% | 51.470 52.20/ | 50.076 EE E% | JJ.270 | JT.278 |
| Kontucky | 20 | 70.2% | 75.7% 72.7% | 33.770 40.19/ | J2.570 | 55.5% EE 0% | 43.5% | 43.0% |
| North Dakota | 21 | 70.1% | 75.770 | 40.1% | 42.170 | 22.0% | 54.570 | 57.470 |
| North Dakota | 22 | 70.1% | 72.4% | 9.1% | 45.0% | 52.2% | 52.0% | 57.5% 63.3% |
| Tannana | 25 | 69.4% | 73.9% | 44.5% | 52.0% | 59.2% | 07.1% CF 0% | 02.3% |
| Arkansas | 24 | 69.5% | 74.9% | 40.2% | 40.0% | 50.5% | 65.9% E0.4% | 50.5% |
| Arkansas | 25 | 69.1% | 74.4% | 47.9% | 52.2% | 52.0% | 59.4% | 00.0% 50.1% |
| Ullinois | 20 | 69.0% | 74.270 | 39.170 41.09/ | 47.470 E 4.49/ | 62.0% | 55.570 | 52.170 |
| Louisiana | 27 | 69.7% | 77.0% | 41.0% E2.0% | J4.4 /0 / 10/ | 62.5% | 67.2% | 60.2% |
| Virginia | 20 | 69.69/ | 77.0% | 52.0% | 40.170 | 05.0% | 61 19/ | 50.4% |
| Copporticut | 29 | 69.0% | 75.4% | 50.0% | 47.2% | 56 2% | 01.1% 52.7% | 59.4% |
| Mandand | 21 | 69.29/ | 77.5% | 40.2% | 54.4% | 50.5% 69.5% | 52.170 | 55.0% 60.5% |
| North Carolina | 21 | 00.3 <i>%</i> | 77.9% | 52.4% | 51.2% | 60.5% | 50.5 <i>%</i> | 60.5% EE 7% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 67.6% | 75.0% | 49.0% | 45.5% | 02.4% | 62.49/ | 55.7% |
| Fiorida | 20 | 67.0% | 75.4% | 40.4% | 55.0% | 70.4% | 02.4% | 61.1% |
| Colorado | 34 | 67.5% | 72.3% | 42.0% | 50.7% | 64.7% | 47.4% | 54.0% |
| Aldska | 22 | 66.1% | 71.9% | 54.1% | 52.7% AE 79/ | 49.5% | 64.0% | 55.4% |
| Georgia New Jarcey | 20 | 00.1% 65.0% | 70.2% | 50.0% | 45.7% | 64.2% | 54.0% | 59.9% |
| Arizono | 20 | 65.9% 65.4% | 77.0% | 41.9% | 57.1% | 61.2% | 52.270 | 54.4% EE 0% |
| Anzona | 20 | 05.4% CF 10/ | 71.5% | 54.9% | 54.1% | 61.2% | 57.5% | 55.0% |
| Vachington | 39 | 64.0% | 73.2% | 45.1% | 59.3% | 63.5% | 62.9% | 54.7% |
| Massachusatta | 40 | 62.9% | 09.1% 70.5% | 55.9% 24.6% | 44.2% | 01.5% E2.0% | 52.770 | 51.470 42.6% |
| Oregan | 41 | 03.0% | 70.5% | 54.0% | 25.0% | 52.0% | 51.4% | 45.0% |
| Oregon Dhada lalard | 42 | 63.8% | 66.9% | 30.1% | 41.6% | 59.7% | 52.5% | 49.0% |
| Rhode Island | 43 | 62.1% | 08.2% C2.7% | 35.2% | 28.0% | 54.5% | 27.0% | 39.9% |
| Nevada California | 44 | 56.9% | 63.7% | 32.2% | 44.5% | 60.1% | 52.7% | 48.1% |
| California | 45 | 56.2% | 64.9% | 36.6% | 44.2% | 58.5% | 49.8% | 48.4% |
| New York | 46 | 55.0% | 67.8% | 32.3% | 24.4% | 47.3% | 55.4% | 41.8% |
| | | | 51.4% | 38.3% | 32.4% | 39.8% | | 38.2% |
| Hawali | | | 54.0% | 20.9% | 39.2% | 66.8% | | 56.1% |
| Iviontana" | | | 72.8% | | 56.6% | 45.9% | 51.0% | 52.3% |
| New Hampshire | | | 74.3% | 35.0% | 45.2% | 58.6% | | 54.8% |
| i vermont" | | | (4.3%) | 21.0% | 60.8% | 46.9% | | bb 5% |

| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | So |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|---------|----|
| lowa | 1 | 75.3% | 61.4% | 74.6% | |
| West Virginia | 2 | 75.0% | 67.2% | 76.1% | |
| Minnesota | 3 | 74.7% | 51.5% | 73.4% | |
| Michigan | 4 | 73.7% | 60.2% | 71.6% | |
| Vermont | 5 | 73.4% | 57.6% | 72.1% | |
| Delaware | 6 | 73.2% | 57.6% | 70.2% | |
| Utah | 7 | 73.1% | 53.3% | 68.9% | |
| Maine | 8 | 72.8% | 58.5% | 70.5% | |
| New Hampshire | 9 | 72.9% | 56.3% | 67.5% | |
| Wyoming | 10 | 72.5% | 60.5% | 70.7% | |
| Indiana | 11 | 72.1% | 56.7% | 71.9% | |
| Idaho | 12 | 72.0% | 57.8% | 68.7% | |
| Pennsylvania | 13 | 71.2% | 56.4% | 70.2% | |
| Alabama | 14 | 71.2% | 60.5% | 70.0% | |
| South Dakota | 15 | 71.0% | 53.8% | 70.1% | |
| Montana | 16 | 70.9% | 56.2% | 68.8% | |
| South Carolina | 17 | 70.8% | 59.0% | 68.5% | |
| New Mexico | 18 | 70.5% | 62.7% | 69.8% | |
| Mississippi | 19 | 70.4% | 62.2% | 69.9% | |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 70.4% | 52.5% | 68.6% | |
| Kansas | 21 | 70.4% | 55.8% | 67.9% | |
| Missouri | 22 | 70.3% | 57.7% | 70.3% | |
| Nebraska | 23 | 70.2% | 54.8% | 68.8% | |
| Kentucky | 24 | 70.1% | 61.6% | 69.9% | |
| North Dakota | 25 | 70.1% | 59.9% | 68.9% | |
| Oklahoma | 26 | 69.4% | 58.0% | 67.0% | |
| Tennessee | 27 | 69.3% | 58.9% | 67.7% | |
| Arkansas | 28 | 69.1% | 59.6% | 67.9% | |
| Ohio | 29 | 68.9% | 53.4% | 67.8% | |
| Illinois | 30 | 68.8% | 53.8% | 67.1% | |
| Louisiana | 31 | 68.7% | 57.7% | 68.8% | |
| Virginia | 32 | 68.6% | 57.4% | 65.7% | |
| Connecticut | 33 | 68.3% | 41.4% | 62.0% | |
| Marvland | 34 | 68.3% | 50.3% | 63.5% | |
| North Carolina | 35 | 67.9% | 54.6% | 65.9% | |
| Florida | 36 | 67.6% | 55.4% | 64.7% | |
| Colorado | 37 | 67.5% | 46.5% | 62.5% | |
| Alaska | 38 | 66.7% | 58.5% | 63.1% | |
| Georgia | 39 | 66.1% | 52.2% | 63.0% | |
| New Jersev | 40 | 65.8% | 42.7% | 60.4% | |
| Arizona | 41 | 65.4% | 53.4% | 61.2% | |
| Texas | 42 | 65.1% | 56.8% | 61.4% | |
| Washington | 43 | 64.9% | 46.1% | 60.5% | |
| Oregon | 44 | 63.8% | 47.0% | 59.2% | |
| Massachusetts | 45 | 63.7% | 37.5% | 57.9% | |
| Rhode Island | 46 | 62.0% | 41.1% | 56.5% | |
| Hawaii | 47 | 58.6% | 51.5% | 55.4% | |
| Nevada | 48 | 56.9% | 44.0% | 51.4% | |
| California | 49 | 56.2% | 39.6% | 51.0% | |
| New York | 50 | 55.0% | 32.3% | 53.9% | |
| District of Columbia | 51 | 43.2% | 21.0% | 28.3% | |
| | | | | | |

1

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black or AI/AN respondents.

EDUCATION

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

| me College | College Grad |
|------------|----------------|
| 74.4% | 81.0% |
| 73.3% | 81.2% |
| 73.5% | 80.8% |
| 74.1% | 81.3% |
| 70.2% | 70.7% |
| 70.2% | 91.0% |
| 75.0% | 01.0% |
| 72.4% | 00.7% |
| 71.5% | 80.1% 01.7% |
| 70.7% | 81.7% |
| 72.0% | 78.2% |
| 70.7% | 80.9% |
| 71.3% | 80.8% |
| 70.3% | 78.2% |
| 69.8% | 80.7% |
| /0.5% | 11.7% |
| 69.0% | /8.2% |
| 69.7% | 80.2% |
| 67.7% | 78.0% |
| 69.8% | /8.2% |
| 69.2% | /8.8% |
| 68.6% | 78.1% |
| 67.4% | 78.4% |
| 68.5% | 77.4% |
| 67.3% | 79.6% |
| 69.2% | 75.4% |
| 68.2% | 78.7% |
| 67.8% | 78.5% |
| 68.6% | 78.1% |
| 66.5% | 79.0% |
| 68.3% | 75.0% |
| 67.5% | //.1% |
| 66.0% | 75.2% |
| 67.4% | /9.6% |
| 66.2% | 76.2% |
| 66.4% | 77.2% |
| 66.8% | 75.6% |
| 64.4% | 76.3% |
| 63.5% | 75.5% |
| 63.5% | 76.7% |
| 65.3% | 76.0% |
| 64.0% | 74.5% |
| 63.8% | 73.5% |
| 63.3% | 73.5% |
| 62.5% | 72.6% |
| 63.4% | 73.0% |
| 60.3% | 76.3% |
| 54.9% | 65.9% |
| 56.3% | 69.5% |
| 56.6% | 65.4% |
| 57.5% | 62.0% |
| 37.9% | 52.9% |

HOPE Goal 81%

of households live in a

home they own

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates living in homes they own in NH, MI, WV, DE, and IA.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

HOME OWNERSHIP

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households in each group (% to Goal) who would need to own their homes to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wh | ite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|------------------------|-----------|----------------------|-----------|---------------------|-----------|-----------------|----------------|-------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|-----------|------------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| lowa | 1 | 68,900 | 5.9% | 38,038 | 3.6% | 12,949 | 47.7% | 9,592 | 26.0% | 4,858 | 28.1% | 889 | 36.5% | 2,574 | 30.6% |
| West Virginia | 2 | 44,369 | 6.2% | 32,849 | 4.9% | 7,152 | 35.2% | 1,168 | 18.5% | 1,202 | 29.3% | 106 | 8.1% | 1,891 | 23.5% |
| Minnesota | 3 | 131,965 | 6.5% | 38,751 | 2.2% | 47,285 | 54.9% | 20,764 | 35.6% | 13,573 | 21.9% | 5,158 | 31.1% | 6,435 | 28.4% |
| Michigan | 4 | 277,248 | 7.6% | 54,628 | 1.9% | 171,006 | 35.7% | 24,710 | 22.3% | 14,486 | 19.0% | 2,774 | 16.7% | 9,644 | 21.1% |
| Delaware | 5 | 26,178 | 8.0% | 1,191 | 0.5% | 16,755 | 26.6% | 5,605 | 29.2% | 1,964 | 19.8% | 31 | 3.0% | 633 | 20.3% |
| Utah | 6 | 68,240 | 8.1% | 34,381 | 4.8% | 2,937 | 42.1% | 22,837 | 27.5% | 4,393 | 20.7% | 1,964 | 24.8% | 1,727 | 21.8% |
| Maine | 7 | 45,241 | 8.5% | 38,321 | 7.5% | 2,203 | 59.7% | 1,084 | 21.2% | 809 | 19.7% | 1,112 | 39.9% | 1,712 | 28.0% |
| Wyoming | 8 | 18,319 | 8.7% | 12,920 | 6.9% | 531 | 33.4% | 2,875 | 20.3% | 500 | 31.3% | 638 | 23.2% | 854 | 28.8% |
| Indiana | 9 | 216,565 | 9.1% | 94,703 | 4.7% | 82,276 | 40.5% | 25,623 | 26.3% | 8,520 | 26.4% | 765 | 15.7% | 4,678 | 21.3% |
| Idaho | 10 | 50,943 | 9.2% | 35,285 | 7.2% | 1,022 | 0.0% | 10,782 | 26.3% | 1,289 | 19.8% | 1,304 | 23.8% | 1,260 | 18.2% |
| Pennsylvania | 11 | 478,966 | 10.0% | 210,152 | 5.3% | 159,823 | 34.9% | 73,810 | 36.9% | 22,783 | 20.6% | 1,757 | 30.4% | 10,641 | 26.6% |
| Alabama | 12 | 177,242 | 10.1% | 38,636 | 3.1% | 117,226 | 26.6% | 15,081 | 34.3% | 3,909 | 22.2% | 583 | 6.2% | 1,807 | 10.8% |
| South Dakota | 13 | 31,437 | 10.2% | 18,788 | 6.8% | 2,158 | 62.3% | 1,913 | 33.1% | 796 | 37.1% | 6,482 | 39.1% | 1,300 | 36.0% |
| South Carolina | 14 | 179,505 | 10.5% | 36,484 | 3.1% | 115,721 | 26.2% | 19,873 | 34.5% | 3,483 | 18.1% | 770 | 14.1% | 3,174 | 21.6% |
| New Mexico | 15 | 78,013 | 10.7% | 27,979 | 7.7% | 3,648 | 27.0% | 36,141 | 12.5% | 1,596 | 19.0% | 6,839 | 15.0% | 1,810 | 24.3% |
| Mississippi | 16 | 113,478 | 10.8% | 14,228 | 2.2% | 89,615 | 24.6% | 6,162 | 32.3% | 1,525 | 17.7% | 882 | 21.4% | 1,065 | 18.8% |
| Wisconsin | 17 | 236,127 | 10.8% | 127,114 | 6.6% | 57,600 | 50.9% | 30,615 | 37.0% | 10,969 | 31.9% | 4,241 | 26.8% | 5,587 | 30.3% |
| Kansas | 18 | 113,265 | 10.9% | 61,465 | 7.1% | 22,837 | 40.4% | 19,086 | 26.0% | 5,010 | 23.5% | 1,278 | 19.5% | 3,589 | 22.7% |
| Missouri | 19 | 244,473 | 10.9% | 116,312 | 6.2% | 95,282 | 38.9% | 16,520 | 29.8% | 6,992 | 23.2% | 2,576 | 28.0% | 6,791 | 24.0% |
| Nebraska | 20 | 76,006 | 11.1% | 44,921 | 7.5% | 12,662 | 45.5% | 12,352 | 28.9% | 2,652 | 25.8% | 1,218 | 35.3% | 2,203 | 36.3% |
| Kentucky | 21 | 180,185 | 11.1% | 108,396 | 7.6% | 50,184 | 41.1% | 12,644 | 39.1% | 4,360 | 26.2% | 807 | 26.7% | 3,792 | 23.9% |
| North Dakota | 22 | 29,433 | 11.1% | 21,317 | 8.8% | 2,036 | 72.2% | 1,710 | 35.6% | 1,071 | 49.0% | 2,805 | 28.6% | 494 | 23.8% |
| Oklahoma | 23 | 161,863 | 11.8% | 74,674 | 7.3% | 34,989 | 36.8% | 23,390 | 28.7% | 4,403 | 22.0% | 11,572 | 14.2% | 12,835 | 18.9% |
| Tennessee | 24 | 282,570 | 11.9% | 117,744 | 6.3% | 121,609 | 33.0% | 29,468 | 40.7% | 6,219 | 20.9% | 832 | 15.3% | 6,698 | 24.9% |
| Arkansas | 25 | 129,524 | 12.1% | 57,309 | 6.8% | 52,051 | 33.3% | 12,968 | 29.0% | 3,506 | 28.6% | 1,487 | 21.9% | 2,203 | 15.6% |
| Ohio | 26 | 536,575 | 12.3% | 255,493 | 7.0% | 216,381 | 42.2% | 32,991 | 33.8% | 15,611 | 23.9% | 2,145 | 28.0% | 13,953 | 29.1% |
| Illinois | 27 | 573,202 | 12.5% | 138,287 | 4.3% | 251,875 | 40.2% | 134,348 | 26.8% | 35,063 | 18.3% | 1,597 | 24.7% | 12,032 | 28.2% |
| Louisiana | 28 | 204,692 | 12.5% | 35,835 | 3.4% | 140,862 | 29.2% | 19,691 | 33.1% | 3,842 | 17.7% | 1,290 | 13.9% | 3,172 | 20.9% |
| Virginia | 29 | 368,818 | 12.6% | 118,994 | 5.8% | 162,587 | 30.6% | 56,146 | 34.1% | 20,570 | 14.7% | 1,359 | 20.1% | 9,162 | 21.8% |
| Connecticut | 30 | 169,627 | 12.9% | 39,557 | 4.0% | 48,064 | 41.0% | 66,443 | 46.8% | 11,194 | 24.9% | 496 | 28.5% | 3,873 | 27.4% |
| Maryland | 31 | 270,601 | 12.9% | 40,996 | 3.3% | 172,870 | 28.8% | 36,484 | 30.0% | 13,265 | 12.8% | 989 | 22.9% | 5,998 | 20.7% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 474,222 | 13.3% | 139,767 | 5.6% | 237,758 | 32.2% | 69,682 | 35.8% | 13,083 | 18.8% | 4,566 | 12.9% | 9,367 | 25.5% |
| Florida | 33 | 946,499 | 13.6% | 264,786 | 5.8% | 295,866 | 32.8% | 353,280 | 27.4% | 15,728 | 10.8% | 2,744 | 18.8% | 14,095 | 20.1% |
| Colorado | 34 | 260,328 | 13.8% | 129,871 | 8.9% | 25,641 | 38.6% | 86,647 | 30.5% | 7,402 | 16.5% | 3,107 | 33.8% | 7,659 | 26.6% |
| Alaska | 35 | 34,656 | 14.5% | 16,053 | 9.4% | 3,785 | 47.1% | 3,064 | 28.5% | 3,532 | 31.9% | 5,443 | 20.6% | 2,779 | 25.8% |
| Georgia | 36 | 513,506 | 15.2% | 103,343 | 5.1% | 312,753 | 31.3% | 72,371 | 35.5% | 16,873 | 17.0% | 1,215 | 17.3% | 6,951 | 21.3% |
| New Jersey | 37 | 478,060 | 15.3% | 71,968 | 3.6% | 153,831 | 39.3% | 199,740 | 44.1% | 43,065 | 18.5% | 1,291 | 29.0% | 8,164 | 26.8% |
| Arizona | 38 | 358,945 | 15.8% | 153,603 | 9.9% | 40,297 | 46.3% | 130,285 | 27.1% | 12,153 | 20.1% | 15,725 | 23.8% | 6,883 | 26.3% |
| Texas | 39 | 1,381,425 | 16.2% | 366,030 | 8.1% | 371,860 | 36.1% | 556,637 | 21.9% | 57,299 | 17.8% | 4,555 | 18.3% | 25,044 | 26.5% |
| wasnington | 40 | 411,554 | 16.3% | 242,038 | 10.7% | 40,104 | 47.3% | 69,666 | 37.0% | 33,823 | 19.9% | 7,564 | 28.5% | 18,359 | 29.8% |
| Massachusetts | 41 | 426,116 | 17.4% | 211,410 | 14.20 | 64,195 | 40.0% | 105,301 | 55.7% | 33,748 | 29.2% | 1,027 | 29.9% | 10,377 | 37.7% |
| Dregon Bhada Island | 42 | 252,950 | 17.470 | 175,925 | 14.5% | 9 102 | 45.1% | 42,570 | 59.4% 52.7% | 10,055 7 9 0 1 | 21.0% | 5,770 | 20.1% | 10,077 | 52.270 41.29/ |
| Rhode Island | 43 | 75,002 | 19.1% | 42,037 | 13.1% | 8,103 | 46.0% | 19,434 | 52.7% | 2,287 | 27.0% | 200 | 20.0% | 2,187 | 41.3% |
| Nevada California | 44 | 234,300 | 24.3% | 100,598 | 16.2% | 38,047 | 49.0% | 1 249 559 | 30.7% | 14,520 | 21.2% | 2,371 | 20.0% | 5,919 | 33.1% |
| Now York | 45 | 3,044,013 1,840,620 | 25.1% | 1,004,009 500 715 | 10.5% | 255,557 17,7 071 | 44.0% | 1,240,330 | 57.0% | 155 104 | 22.1% | 10,203 10,203 | 25.0% | 13,223 | 20.49/ |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 1,040,038 | 20.2% | 333,715 | 13.4% | 4/0,/41 | 40.9% | 5/9,49/ | | 155,194 | 33.9% | 4,252 | 25.9% | 31,239 | 39.4% |
| | | | | 20,020 26 901 | 29.6% | 50,546 E 042 | 42.9% | 5,554 12 046 | 40.0% | 3,123 20.216 | 41.5% | | | 2,027 | 43.0% |
| Montana | | | | 20,001 | Q 10/ | 5,042 | 00.5% | 1 067 | 24 70/ | 29,210 | 25.49/ | =- = 106 | 20.2% | 14,310 | 29.0% |
| New Hampshire ^a | | | | 23,710 | 6.4% | 1 826 | | 1,00/ | 36.0% | 2 00 C | 22.6% | 5,420 | | 1,305 | 20.5% |
| Vermont ^a | | | | 16,378 | 6.9% | 1,003 | 60.3% | 554 | 20.4% | 808 | 34.4% | | | 435 | 14.7% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black or AI/AN respondents.

HOPE Goal 81%

of households live in a home they own

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates living in homes they own in NH, MI, WV, DE, and IA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HOME OWNERSHIP

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE BENCHMARK BY EDUCATION

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households in each group (% to Goal) who would need to own their homes to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less than HS | | HS Grad | | Some | College | College Grad | | |
|-----------------------|------|-------------------|--------------|-------------------|--------------|------------------|--------------|-----------|-----------|-------------------|----------------|--|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | Rate to Goal | # to Goal | Rate to Goal | # to Goal | Rate to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | |
| lowa | 1 | 69,079 | 6.0% | 17,937 | 19.8% | 24,159 | 6.7% | 26,228 | 6.8% | 756 | 0.2% | |
| West Virginia | 2 | 44,375 | 6.2% | 15,460 | 14.0% | 14,155 | 5.2% | 14,659 | 7.9% | 101 | 0.1% | |
| Minnesota | 3 | 132,324 | 6.5% | 42,168 | 29.7% | 39,114 | 7.8% | 47,914 | 7.1% | 3,127 | 0.4% | |
| Michigan | 4 | 278,744 | 7.6% | 73,381 | 21.0% | 98,233 | 9.6% | 107,131 | 8.5% | - | 0.0% | |
| Vermont | 5 | 19,388 | 7.8% | 4,161 | 23.6% | 6,369 | 9.1% | 7,421 | 11.0% | 1,437 | 1.6% | |
| Delaware | 6 | 26,337 | 8.0% | 8,036 | 23.6% | 10,250 | 11.1% | 7,802 | 8.2% | 249 | 0.2% | |
| Utah | 7 | 68,399 | 8.1% | 17,652 | 27.9% | 21,211 | 12.3% | 27,929 | 8.8% | 1,607 | 0.6% | |
| Maine | 8 | 45,301 | 8.5% | 9,236 | 22.7% | 18,290 | 10.7% | 15,885 | 9.7% | 1,890 | 1.2% | |
| New Hampshire | 9 | 42,774 | 8.5% | 8,705 | 25.0% | 18,261 | 13.7% | 15,808 | 10.6% | - | 0.0% | |
| Wyoming | 10 | 18,337 | 8.7% | 2,980 | 20.7% | 6,127 | 10.5% | 7,483 | 9.3% | 1,747 | 3.1% | |
| Indiana | 11 | 217,262 | 9.2% | 64,977 | 24.5% | 73,997 | 9.4% | 76,110 | 10.5% | 2,178 | 0.4% | |
| Idaho | 12 | 51,016 | 9.2% | 12,633 | 23.4% | 17,397 | 12.5% | 20,307 | 9.9% | 679 | 0.4% | |
| Pennsylvania | 13 | 479,981 | 10.0% | 120,538 | 24.9% | 183,805 | 11.0% | 132,463 | 11.0% | 43,176 | 3.0% | |
| Alabama | 14 | 177,506 | 10.1% | 55,543 | 20.7% | 57,267 | 11.2% | 62,445 | 11.5% | 2,250 | 0.5% | |
| South Dakota | 15 | 31,497 | 10.3% | 7,226 | 27.4% | 10,189 | 11.2% | 11,079 | 10.7% | 3,002 | 3.5% | |
| Montana | 16 | 39,874 | 10.3% | 6,588 | 25.1% | 13,533 | 12.5% | 16,189 | 12.2% | 3,563 | 3.0% | |
| South Carolina | 17 | 179,817 | 10.5% | 53,048 | 22.2% | 60,336 | 12.7% | 61,340 | 11.6% | 5,092 | 1.1% | |
| New Mexico | 18 | 78,147 | 10.7% | 19,193 | 18.5% | 19,528 | 11.4% | 32,596 | 13.6% | 6,831 | 3.2% | |
| Mississippi | 19 | 113,638 | 10.8% | 33,811 | 19.1% | 33,950 | 11.3% | 38,853 | 11.4% | 7,025 | 3.0% | |
| Wisconsin | 20 | 236,643 | 10.8% | 53,144 | 28.7% | 84,575 | 12.6% | 83,996 | 12.0% | 14,928 | 2.4% | |
| Kansas | 21 | 113.392 | 10.9% | 23,838 | 25.4% | 35,401 | 13.4% | 43,651 | 12.6% | 10.502 | 3.1% | |
| Missouri | 22 | 245.028 | 10.9% | 57,285 | 23.5% | 72,632 | 11.0% | 97,237 | 13.8% | 17.875 | 2.8% | |
| Nebraska | 23 | 76,114 | 11.1% | 15,369 | 26.4% | 22,421 | 12.5% | 30,142 | 12.7% | 8,181 | 3.9% | |
| Kentucky | 24 | 180.423 | 11.1% | 50.713 | 19.6% | 57.965 | 11.3% | 65.531 | 13.9% | 6.214 | 1.6% | |
| North Dakota | 25 | 29.419 | 11.1% | 4.696 | 21.3% | 8.556 | 12.3% | 11.814 | 12.1% | 4.353 | 5.8% | |
| Oklahoma | 26 | 162.074 | 11.9% | 37,780 | 23.3% | 57.071 | 14.2% | 58.344 | 13.1% | 8,878 | 2.5% | |
| Tennessee | 27 | 282,920 | 11.9% | 75.082 | 22.3% | 98,557 | 13.5% | 91,912 | 13.4% | 17,369 | 2.8% | |
| Arkansas | 28 | 129,909 | 12.1% | 34,509 | 21.7% | 47.175 | 13.4% | 40.855 | 12.7% | 7.370 | 3.1% | |
| Ohio | 29 | 537,634 | 12.3% | 126,399 | 27.8% | 190,683 | 13.4% | 194,213 | 14.8% | 26.340 | 2.2% | |
| Illinois | 30 | 574 440 | 12.5% | 134,115 | 27.4% | 162,911 | 14 1% | 178,503 | 12.9% | 98,911 | 6.3% | |
| Louisiana | 31 | 204,940 | 12.5% | 59,991 | 23.5% | 65,516 | 12 5% | 63,103 | 13.7% | 16,331 | 4 2% | |
| Virginia | 32 | 369,636 | 12.6% | 75,986 | 23.8% | 101,429 | 15 5% | 124,120 | 15.2% | 68,102 | 6.0% | |
| Connecticut | 33 | 171,000 | 12.0% | 50,470 | 39.8% | 64 272 | 19.3% | 47 956 | 13.9% | 8 302 | 1.6% | |
| Maryland | 34 | 271,590 | 13.0% | 59,002 | 30.9% | 84,445 | 17.7% | 85,158 | 15.0% | 42,985 | 5.0% | |
| North Carolina | 35 | 475 729 | 13.0% | 125 265 | 26.6% | 135 307 | 15.4% | 171 485 | 14.8% | 43 671 | 4 1% | |
| Florida | 36 | 948 541 | 13.5% | 203.007 | 25.8% | 306 793 | 16.5% | 320 521 | 14.4% | 118 220 | 5.6% | |
| Colorado | 37 | 260,883 | 13.8% | 52 547 | 34.8% | 68 371 | 18.8% | 102 224 | 16.8% | 37 742 | 4.9% | |
| Alaska | 38 | 34 697 | 14 5% | 3 820 | 22.7% | 9 871 | 18.1% | 16 877 | 17.8% | 4 129 | 5.7% | |
| Georgia | 39 | 514 795 | 15.2% | 128 372 | 29.0% | 161 244 | 18.2% | 176 734 | 17.0% | 48 445 | 4 5% | |
| New Jersey | 40 | 482 264 | 15.2% | 123,262 | 38.5% | 174 829 | 20.8% | 121 008 | 15.9% | 63 165 | 5.2% | |
| Arizona | 40 | 359 562 | 15.4% | 74 968 | 27.9% | 96 168 | 20.0% | 141 475 | 17.2% | 46 951 | 6.7% | |
| Техас | /2 | 1 383 778 | 16.2% | 3/1 658 | 24.5% | 382 391 | 19.8% | 141,473 | 17.2% | 200 696 | 7.7% | |
| Washington | 13 | /12 311 | 16.3% | 72 812 | 24.5% | 107 157 | 20.7% | 163 190 | 17.5% | 69 152 | 7.8% | |
| Oragon | 43 | 252 /71 | 17.4% | 12,012 | 34.2% | 69.458 | 20.770 | 99,100 | 18.7% | 41 132 | 8.6% | |
| Massachusotts | 44 | 421 021 | 17.470 | 43,477 | J4.270 | 125 911 | 22.070 | 100 141 | 10.7% | 95,066 | 0.0% | |
| Phodo Island | 45 | 431,931 | 10.2% | 21 576 | 45.7% | 24 407 | 25.5% | 22 107 | 20.0% | 6 5 2 7 | 0.2 /0 E_0% | |
| | 40 | 15,107 | 19.2% | 21,3/0 | 40.1% | 24,497 | 24.0% | 23,107 | 20.9% | 0,527 22 ADD | 5.0% | |
| Novada | 47 | 30,052 224.0F1 | 22.0% | דכט,פ אא אסר | 23.1% | 20,400 70 000 | 20.0% | 20,492 | 20.3% | 20,400 20 052 | 11.9% | |
| California | 40 | 204,901 | 24.5% | 44,433 761 E10 | 57.3% | 13,323 | 29.0% | 00,140 | 24.9% | 23,003 602,000 | 11.0% | |
| CallOllia Now Vork | 49 | 5,052,059 | 25.1% | /04,340 | 41.7% | 470,554 | 50.3% | 340,370 | 24.0% | 402,200 | 10.2% | |
| District of Columbia | 50 | 1,049,927 | 20.5% | 440,778 | 49.0% | 419,193 | Z1.3% | 431,700 | 25.1% | 492,171 | 19.3% | |
| District of Columbia | ונ | 90,990 | 50.0% | 15,061 | 00.2% | 21,094 | 52.9% | 19,038 | 45.4% | 40,997 | 20.5% | |

HOPE Goal 81%

of households live in a home they own

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates living in homes they own in NH, MI, WV, DE, and IA.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HOUSING QUALITY

EDUCATION

Tables show the portion of households living in homes with no severe housing problems (i.e., homes that have complete kitchens, functioning plumbing, and are not overcrowded or severely cost-burdened) in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2010-2014 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|------|----------------|----------------|----------|-----------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | |
| North Dakota | 1 | 90.9% | 91.7% | 70.4% | 92.1% | 81.2% | 81.3% | 86.8% | | |
| South Dakota | 2 | 90.1% | 91.5% | 80.7% | 77.5% | 82.6% | 75.7% | 82.7% | | |
| lowa | 3 | 89.7% | 90.5% | 72.7% | 85.1% | 83.1% | 81.9% | 75.8% | | |
| West Virginia | 4 | 89.3% | 89.8% | 78.6% | 84.0% | 88.2% | 79.9% | 80.8% | | |
| Nebraska | 5 | 88.8% | 89.9% | 75.1% | 84.6% | 89.3% | 70.8% | 84.6% | | |
| Kansas | 6 | 88.4% | 89.8% | 78.4% | 81.6% | 85.7% | 79.8% | 83.8% | | |
| Minnesota | 7 | 87.6% | 89.2% | 69.9% | 76.8% | 83.2% | 74.7% | 79.7% | | |
| Indiana | 8 | 87.6% | 89.3% | 75.0% | 79.4% | 86.2% | 83.4% | 79.6% | | |
| Oklahoma | 9 | 87.5% | 89.1% | 77.8% | 82.4% | 84.7% | 86.6% | 86.1% | | |
| Arkansas | 10 | 87.4% | 89.6% | 77.1% | 82.9% | 86.9% | 82.0% | 85.1% | | |
| Utah | 11 | 87.2% | 89.1% | 73.6% | 76.8% | 78.7% | 73.9% | 82.0% | | |
| Missouri | 12 | 86.9% | 88.7% | 75.1% | 80.7% | 86.7% | 79.7% | 81.6% | | |
| Kentucky | 13 | 86.9% | 88.0% | 76.8% | 79.2% | 82.8% | 80.9% | 81.0% | | |
| Idaho | 14 | 86.6% | 87.0% | 81.3% | 83.0% | 84.9% | 89.8% | 81.8% | | |
| Virginia | 15 | 86.2% | 88.8% | 79.0% | 78.0% | 85.0% | 85.9% | 83.1% | | |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 86.1% | 87.7% | 68.0% | 76.9% | 82.1% | 81.6% | 78.9% | | |
| Ohio | 17 | 86.1% | 88.1% | 73.2% | 78.6% | 88.1% | 77.7% | 78.4% | | |
| Alabama | 18 | 85.7% | 89.3% | 76.4% | 78.6% | 87.8% | 81.6% | 81.3% | | |
| Tennessee | 19 | 85.7% | 88.2% | 75.6% | 75.3% | 85.6% | 85.0% | 77.8% | | |
| South Carolina | 20 | 85.5% | 88.6% | 78.1% | 80.7% | 85.2% | 76.7% | 79.3% | | |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 85.5% | 87.6% | 75.4% | 70.9% | 81.4% | 73.0% | 78.7% | | |
| Delaware | 22 | 85.3% | 87.8% | 79.9% | 74.9% | 86.2% | 75.0% | 73.9% | | |
| Louisiana | 23 | 85.2% | 89.7% | 76.1% | 81.1% | 81.7% | 83.1% | 80.6% | | |
| North Carolina | 24 | 85.2% | 88.2% | 77.0% | 78.4% | 86.4% | 82.7% | 76.7% | | |
| Texas | 25 | 85.0% | 89.0% | 78.1% | 80.8% | 85.6% | 85.9% | 82.0% | | |
| Colorado | 26 | 85.0% | 86.8% | 76.6% | 78.7% | 83.5% | 76.4% | 80.1% | | |
| Michigan | 27 | 84 9% | 87.3% | 71.6% | 81.2% | 86.4% | 81.0% | 76.4% | | |
| Maine | 28 | 84.9% | 85.3% | 60.2% | 81.3% | 82.3% | 66.1% | 78.4% | | |
| Mississinni | 29 | 84.8% | 89.3% | 77.1% | 78.7% | 80.9% | 80.8% | 79.1% | | |
| Maryland | 30 | 84.3% | 87.7% | 79.4% | 75.5% | 83.8% | 80.8% | 80.3% | | |
| Washington | 31 | 84.0% | 85.5% | 73.0% | 77.3% | 82.7% | 79.2% | 79.5% | | |
| New Mexico | 32 | 83.7% | 86.8% | 81.9% | 81.3% | 82.7% | 76.0% | 81.1% | | |
| Illinois | 32 | 83.5% | 87.2% | 70.7% | 75.5% | 82.0% | 76.9% | 80.0% | | |
| Georgia | 3/ | 83.1% | 87.6% | 75.6% | 75.3% | 82.0% | 78.9% | 81.1% | | |
| Arizona | 35 | 83.0% | 85.8% | 75.0% | 76.5% | 85.8% | 70.3% | 83.1% | | |
| Massachusotts | 36 | 82.7% | 84.6% | 73.4% | 70.3% | 81.5% | 61.3% | 76.9% | | |
| Connecticut | 30 | 82.1% | 85.2% | 73.476 | 69.0% | 84.4% | 73 7% | 76.9% | | |
| Alaska | 20 | 02.170 | 05.270 | 7 1.4 /0 | 76.5% | 76.2% | 13.170 64.7% | 70.076 80.4% | | |
| Aldska | 20 | 02.170 | 05.0% | 67.6% | 70.376 | 7 0. <i>3 /</i> 0 | 75 19/ | 75.29/ | | |
| Dhada Island | 39 | 02.170 | 05.270 | 74.2% | 7 J. 1 /0 | 70 | 73.1% | 73.270 | | |
| Knode Island | 40 | ŏ1.∠% 01.2% | 83.3% 83.0% | 74.2% | 76.1% | 70.5% | 12.2% | 72.0% | | |
| Nevada Flavida | 41 | ŏ1.∠% | 83.9% | 69.9% | 76.1% | 03.5% | 01.1% | 63.1% | | |
| Florida | 42 | 79.7% | 83.8% | 70.4% | 71.9% | 81.3% | 74.2% | 77.5% | | |
| New Jersey | 43 | 78.3% | 82.1% | 70.9% | 66.3% | 82.6% | 74.1% | 71.4% | | |
| | 44 | 77.7% | 83.1% | 69.1% | 65.5% | 70.2% | 77.7% | 72.4% | | |
| | 45 | 76.0% | 80.7% | 67.3% | 68.5% | 77.9% | /5.3% | /4./% | | |
| | | | 87.5% | 74.0% | /1.3% | /8./% | | 87.1% | | |
| Hawaii | | | 75.1% | 72.1% | 69.1% | 79.6% | | 77.5% | | |
| Montana | | | 86.9% | | 79.1% | 91.6% | 79.4% | 78.4% | | |
| New Hampshire ^a | | | 85.3% | 80.6% | 82.3% | 83.6% | | 80.3% | | |
| Vermont | | | 84.2% | | 87.4% | 76.3% | | 77.6% | | |
| Wyoming ^a | | | 90.8% | 86.2% | 87.2% | 81.8% | | 81.6% | | |

| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | So |
|----------------------|----------|---------|--------------|---------|----|
| North Dakota | 1 | 90.9% | 82.5% | 89.2% | |
| Wyoming | 2 | 90.2% | 83.9% | 88.3% | |
| South Dakota | 3 | 90.1% | 80.6% | 88.6% | |
| lowa | 4 | 89.7% | 79.3% | 88.0% | |
| West Virginia | 5 | 89.3% | 82.1% | 89.0% | |
| Nebraska | 6 | 88.8% | 79.4% | 86.0% | |
| Kansas | 7 | 88.4% | 78.0% | 85.6% | |
| Minnesota | 8 | 87.6% | 72.5% | 84.8% | |
| Indiana | 9 | 87.6% | 76.7% | 86.7% | |
| Oklahoma | 10 | 87.5% | 79.4% | 85.7% | |
| Arkansas | 11 | 87.4% | 80.4% | 85.6% | |
| Utah | 12 | 87.2% | 73.8% | 84.6% | |
| Missouri | 13 | 86.9% | 75.8% | 85.4% | |
| Kentucky | 14 | 86.8% | 77.9% | 86.3% | |
| Idaho | 15 | 86.6% | 79.8% | 83.2% | |
| Montana | 16 | 86.3% | 74.7% | 84.9% | |
| Virginia | 17 | 86.2% | 74.3% | 82.6% | |
| Wisconsin | 18 | 86.1% | 73.3% | 84.2% | |
| Ohio | 19 | 86.1% | 73.6% | 84.7% | |
| Alabama | 20 | 85.7% | 76.0% | 83.9% | |
| Tennessee | 21 | 85.7% | 75.8% | 84.2% | |
| South Carolina | 22 | 85.5% | 76.3% | 83.4% | |
| Pennsylvania | 23 | 85.5% | 72.9% | 83.5% | |
| Delaware | 24 | 85.3% | 73.8% | 82.2% | |
| North Carolina | 25 | 85.2% | 74.6% | 83.1% | |
| Louisiana | 26 | 85.2% | 75.6% | 84 5% | |
| New Hampshire | 27 | 85.1% | 73.7% | 81.2% | |
| Texas | 28 | 85.0% | 74.6% | 82.6% | |
| Colorado | 29 | 85.0% | 71.5% | 80.9% | |
| Michigan | 30 | 84.9% | 72.3% | 82.2% | |
| Maine | 31 | 84.9% | 74.8% | 81.9% | |
| Mississinni | 32 | 84.7% | 76.3% | 83.4% | |
| Maryland | 33 | 84.3% | 70.0% | 78.5% | |
| Washington | 34 | 84.1% | 71.8% | 80.2% | |
| Vermont | 35 | 84.0% | 74.5% | 80.9% | |
| New Mexico | 36 | 83.7% | 74.9% | 81.5% | |
| Illinois | 37 | 83.5% | 70.3% | 80.6% | |
| Georgia | 38 | 83.1% | 71.5% | 80.2% | |
| Arizona | 39 | 83.0% | 68.5% | 79.2% | |
| Massachusetts | 40 | 82.6% | 69.1% | 76.9% | |
| Alaska | 40 | 82.1% | 61.4% | 76.5% | |
| Connecticut | 42 | 82.1% | 67.0% | 76.3% | |
| Oregon | 42 | 82.1% | 70.7% | 78.9% | |
| Rhode Island | 43 | 81.3% | 70.1% | 77.6% | |
| Nevada | 45 | 81.2% | 69.9% | 79.0% | |
| District of Columbia | 45 | 79.8% | 59.7% | 68.2% | |
| Florida | 17 | 79.0% | 67.29/ | 76.1% | |
| New Jersey | 47 78 | 78.29/ | 60.0% | 70.1% | |
| New York | 40 29 | 77.6% | 50.0% | 72.3% | |
| Намаіі | 50 | 77.0% | 69.2% | 72.976 | |
| California | 51 | 76.0% | 59.2% | 72.4% | |
| Camornia | 51 | 10.076 | 33.570 | 10.976 | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black or Al/AN respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

| me College | College Grad |
|------------|--------------|
| 91.9% | 93.6% |
| 90.7% | 92.8% |
| 90.0% | 94.6% |
| 89.6% | 94.4% |
| 89.6% | 94.5% |
| 88.9% | 93.7% |
| 88.4% | 93.4% |
| 87.2% | 92.9% |
| 87.7% | 93.3% |
| 87.7% | 93.0% |
| 87.9% | 94.0% |
| 86.8% | 92.2% |
| 86.7% | 92.6% |
| 86.6% | 93.6% |
| 86.8% | 91.8% |
| 85.5% | 90.7% |
| 85.2% | 92.0% |
| 85.7% | 92.1% |
| 85.6% | 92.8% |
| 86.0% | 93.2% |
| 85.9% | 92.2% |
| 85.9% | 91.5% |
| 85.5% | 91.9% |
| 85.3% | 91.5% |
| 85.1% | 91.4% |
| 85.5% | 91.6% |
| 84.6% | 90.4% |
| 85.7% | 91.6% |
| 84.0% | 90.2% |
| 84.4% | 92.2% |
| 85.4% | 90.0% |
| 85.2% | 91.8% |
| 83.2% | 91.3% |
| 83.2% | 89.9% |
| 82.5% | 89.3% |
| 83.2% | 90.3% |
| 83.0% | 89.8% |
| 82.4% | 90.5% |
| 83.4% | 90.3% |
| 82.0% | 89.2% |
| 82.2% | 90.8% |
| 81.8% | 89.6% |
| 81.1% | 88.2% |
| 81.1% | 88.6% |
| 81.7% | 88.3% |
| 74.1% | 88.0% |
| 80.3% | 86.8% |
| 77.1% | 87.7% |
| 78.7% | 86.3% |
| 74.7% | 83.8% |
| 76.4% | 84.9% |

HOPE Goal

94%

of households with good housing quality

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with good housing quality in SD, WV, IA, AR, and NE.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2^{nd} , 3^{rd} , and 4^{th} quartiles.



HOUSING QUALITY

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households in each group (% to Goal) who would need to have good housing quality to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | nite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | 'AN | Multi | racial |
|-----------------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|----------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|------------------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 8,466 | 3.3% | 6,106 | 2.6% | 651 | 23.8% | 95 | 2.1% | 280 | 13.0% | 1,182 | 12.9% | 152 | 7.4% |
| South Dakota | 2 | 12,312 | 4.1% | 7,317 | 2.7% | 458 | 13.6% | 942 | 16.7% | 243 | 11.6% | 2,941 | 18.5% | 412 | 11.5% |
| Iowa | 3 | 51,612 | 4.6% | 39,047 | 3.8% | 5,603 | 21.6% | 3,274 | 9.2% | 1,896 | 11.2% | 272 | 12.3% | 1,519 | 18.4% |
| West Virginia | 4 | 33,579 | 5.0% | 28,530 | 4.5% | 2,999 | 15.6% | 624 | 10.3% | 241 | 6.1% | 179 | 14.3% | 1,007 | 13.4% |
| Nebraska | 5 | 36,228 | 5.4% | 25,237 | 4.3% | 5,123 | 19.1% | 4,026 | 9.6% | 494 | 5.0% | 780 | 23.5% | 569 | 9.6% |
| Kansas | 6 | 59,224 | 5.8% | 37,383 | 4.4% | 8,563 | 15.8% | 9,056 | 12.7% | 1,719 | 8.5% | 889 | 14.5% | 1,615 | 10.5% |
| Minnesota | 7 | 131,690 | 6.6% | 88,183 | 5.1% | 20,461 | 24.4% | 9,999 | 17.4% | 6,711 | 11.1% | 3,091 | 19.5% | 3,245 | 14.6% |
| Indiana | 8 | 153,628 | 6.7% | 96,326 | 4.9% | 37,276 | 19.3% | 13,930 | 14.8% | 2,478 | 8.0% | 493 | 10.8% | 3,125 | 14.7% |
| Oklahoma | 9 | 87,828 | 6.7% | 50,770 | 5.2% | 14,813 | 16.4% | 9,279 | 11.8% | 1,804 | 9.5% | 5,919 | 7.7% | 5,243 | 8.2% |
| Arkansas | 10 | 69,932 | 6.8% | 36,970 | 4.6% | 25,279 | 17.2% | 4,808 | 11.3% | 861 | 7.4% | 784 | 12.2% | 1,229 | 9.2% |
| Utah | 11 | 57,392 | 7.0% | 36,151 | 5.2% | 1,421 | 20.7% | 14,138 | 17.4% | 3,193 | 15.5% | 1,547 | 20.3% | 942 | 12.2% |
| Missouri | 12 | 160,875 | 7.4% | 101,684 | 5.6% | 45,077 | 19.1% | 7,180 | 13.5% | 2,193 | 7.6% | 1,292 | 14.5% | 3,448 | 12.6% |
| Kentucky | 13 | 114,856 | 7.4% | 85,729 | 6.2% | 20,273 | 17.4% | 4,660 | 15.0% | 1,825 | 11.4% | 357 | 13.4% | 2,012 | 13.3% |
| Idaho | 14 | 40,576 | 7.6% | 34,378 | 7.2% | 236 | 13.0% | 4,338 | 11.2% | 564 | 9.3% | 230 | 4.4% | 829 | 12.5% |
| Virginia | 15 | 229,734 | 8.1% | 107,541 | 5.4% | 78,232 | 15.3% | 26,169 | 16.2% | 12,643 | 9.3% | 540 | 8.3% | 4,608 | 11.2% |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 174,134 | 8.2% | 123,056 | 6.6% | 28,524 | 26.2% | 13,859 | 17.3% | 4,033 | 12.2% | 1,917 | 12.7% | 2,744 | 15.3% |
| Ohio | 17 | 347,786 | 8.2% | 217,869 | 6.1% | 102,840 | 21.0% | 14,717 | 15.7% | 3,860 | 6.1% | 1,187 | 16.6% | 7,314 | 15.8% |
| Alabama | 18 | 143,006 | 8.5% | 57,908 | 4.9% | 74,263 | 17.9% | 6,548 | 15.7% | 1,090 | 6.5% | 1,144 | 12.6% | 2,053 | 12.9% |
| Tennessee | 19 | 195,373 | 8.5% | 109,537 | 6.1% | 65,457 | 18.6% | 13,186 | 19.0% | 2,493 | 8.6% | 482 | 9.3% | 4,218 | 16.5% |
| South Carolina | 20 | 142,942 | 8.7% | 64,185 | 5.6% | 66,499 | 16.1% | 7,561 | 13.6% | 1,701 | 9.0% | 899 | 17.5% | 2,099 | 15.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 21 | 406,801 | 8.7% | 258,242 | 6.7% | 82,667 | 18.9% | 45,087 | 23.4% | 13,574 | 12.8% | 1,198 | 21.2% | 6,034 | 15.6% |
| Delaware | 22 | 28,545 | 8.9% | 14,550 | 6.4% | 8,751 | 14.3% | 3,642 | 19.4% | 779 | 8.1% | 195 | 19.2% | 628 | 20.3% |
| Louisiana | 23 | 140,353 | 9.0% | 45,822 | 4.6% | 81,500 | 18.1% | 7,479 | 13.1% | 2,596 | 12.5% | 984 | 11.2% | 1,972 | 13.7% |
| North Carolina | 24 | 311,636 | 9.0% | 144,702 | 6.0% | 121,689 | 17.2% | 29,997 | 15.9% | 5,319 | 7.9% | 3,784 | 11.5% | 6,144 | 17.5% |
| Texas | 25 | 764,631 | 9.2% | 233,544 | 5.3% | 160,245 | 16.1% | 330,546 | 13.5% | 27,078 | 8.7% | 2,016 | 8.3% | 11,201 | 12.3% |
| Colorado | 26 | 171,611 | 9.3% | 106,937 | 7.5% | 11,389 | 17.6% | 43,091 | 15.6% | 4,666 | 10.7% | 1,576 | 17.9% | 3,952 | 14.1% |
| Michigan | 27 | 333,197 | 9.3% | 200,325 | 7.0% | 102,975 | 22.6% | 14,048 | 13.1% | 5,873 | 7.9% | 2,135 | 13.3% | 7,841 | 17.9% |
| Maine | 28 | 48,737 | 9.4% | 44,769 | 9.0% | 1,157 | 34.1% | 659 | 12.9% | 466 | 12.0% | 764 | 28.1% | 923 | 15.8% |
| Mississippi | 29 | 94,312 | 9.5% | 30,806 | 5.0% | 58,222 | 17.2% | 2,820 | 15.5% | 1,114 | 13.4% | 517 | 13.4% | 833 | 15.1% |
| Maryland | 30 | 203,831 | 10.0% | 78,956 | 6.5% | 87,446 | 14.9% | 22,302 | 18.7% | 10,645 | 10.5% | 571 | 13.5% | 3,912 | 14.0% |
| Washington | 31 | 251,535 | 10.2% | 171,585 | 8.8% | 17,477 | 21.2% | 30,740 | 16.9% | 19,061 | 11.5% | 3,824 | 15.0% | 8,848 | 14.7% |
| New Mexico | 32 | /3,3/2 | 10.5% | 26,107 | 7.4% | 1,611 | 12.3% | 35,946 | 13.0% | 944 | 11.6% | 7,811 | 18.3% | 953 | 13.2% |
| Illinois | 33 | 482,712 | 10.8% | 221,091 | 7.0% | 140,253 | 23.5% | 91,846 | 18.8% | 22,610 | 12.2% | 1,056 | 17.4% | 5,856 | 14.2% |
| Georgia | 34 | 363,591 | 11.2% | 131,485 | 6.7% | 178,387 | 18.7% | 37,234 | 18.9% | 11,352 | 11.9% | 1,022 | 15.3% | 4,112 | 13.1% |
| Arizona | 35 | 247,684 | 11.3% | 127,875 | 8.5% | 15,918 | 19.0% | 81,692 | 17.7% | 4,937 | 8.5% | 14,441 | 23.6% | 2,820 | 17.4% |
| Massachusetts | 36 | 277,199 | 11.6% | 185,904 | 9.6% | 27,915 | 20.9% | 43,438 | 23.5% | 14, 183 | 12.7% | 1,113 | 32.9% | 4,646 | 17.4% |
| Connecticut | 37 | 155,995 | 12.1% | 88,018 | 9.0% | 25,915 | 22.8% | 34,947 | 25.3% | 4,313 | 9.9% | 336 | 20.6% | 2,466 | 12.0% |
| Alaska | 30 | 20,204 | 12.1% | 14,100 | 0.4% | 1,341 | 16.9% | 1,820 | 10.2% | 1,930 | 17.9% | 7,562 | 29.0% | 1,445 | 10.1% |
| Diegon Bhodo Island | 39 | 172,301 | 12.2% | 151,900 | 10.0% | 2,795 | 20.7% | 20,097 | 19.2% | 0,570 | 15.5% | 2,422 | 19.1% | 5,702 1 1 2 7 | 19.1% |
| Novada | 40 | 49,002 | 12.0% | 54,277 | 10.5% | 5,570 19 121 | 20.1% | 3,237 | 19.20/ | 7 152 | 10.8% | 1 0 20 | 12 1% | 1,127 | 11 29/ |
| Florida | 41 | 978 835 | 13.0% | 01,302 461.488 | 10.5% | 205 / 10 | 24.470 | 270 587 | 22.4% | 1,135 | 12.0% | 1,029 | 20.0% | 1,931 | 16.7% |
| Now Jorsov | 42 | 485 780 | 14.576 | 220 200 | 10.476 | 89.082 | 23.076 | 122 257 | 22.470 | 26 428 | 11.6% | 2,702 | 20.078 | 6 768 | 22.9% |
| New York | 43 | 1 120 227 | 16.6% | 239,290 487 128 | 12.170 | 234 539 | 25.470 | 282 257 | 21.370 | 106 049 | 24.1% | 2 624 | 16.6% | 16 741 | 22.970 |
| California | 44 | 2 161 992 | 18.2% | 811 700 | 12.5% | 108 247 | 25.278 | 203,237 | 20.7% | 248 018 | 16.2% | 9 240 | 18.0% | 10,741 | 19.6% |
| District of Columbia ^a | 45 | 2,101,992 | 10.270 | 6.814 | 6.7% | 22 627 | 20.3% | 4 264 | 23.1% | 1 3/17 | 15.5% | 9,240 | 10.378 | 43,032 | 7.1% |
| Hawaiia | | | | 2/ 968 | 19.2% | 1 805 | 20.276 | 4,204 6 802 | 25.0% | 7,547 28 661 | 14.7% | - | | 929 | 16.8% |
| Montana ^a | | | | 24,500 | 7 3% | | | 1 142 | 15.1% | 54 | 2.6% | 2 562 | 14.9% | 808 | 15.9% |
| New Hampshire ^a | | | | 41 290 | 8.9% | 521 | 13 7% | 1 255 | 11.9% | 977 | 10.6% | | | 669 | 14.0% |
| Vermont ^a | | | | 23.176 | 10.0% | | | 174 | 6.8% | 421 | 17.9% | | | 483 | 16.6% |
| Wyoming ^a | | | | 6,241 | 3.4% | 118 | 8.1% | 956 | 7.1% | 191 | 12.4% | | | 356 | 12.6% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black or Al/AN respondents.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

HOPE Goal



of households with good housing quality

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with good housing quality in SD, WV, IA, AR, and NE.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HOUSING QUALITY

Table shows the number of additional households (# to Goal) and additional portion of households in each group (% to Goal) who would need to have good housing quality to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less than H | ligh School | High Schoo | ol Graduate | Some | College | College G | iraduate |
|----------------------------|----------|-----------|-----------|------------------|-------------|------------------|---------------|-------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 8,466 | 3.3% | 2,444 | 11.7% | 3,353 | 5.0% | 2,201 | 2.3% | 468 | 0.6% |
| Wyoming | 2 | 8,293 | 4.1% | 1,390 | 10.3% | 3,338 | 5.9% | 2,739 | 3.5% | 826 | 1.5% |
| South Dakota | 3 | 12,625 | 4.3% | 3,422 | 13.7% | 4,932 | 5.6% | 4,272 | 4.3% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Iowa | 4 | 52,465 | 4.6% | 12,930 | 14.9% | 21,989 | 6.3% | 17,546 | 4.6% | 0 | 0.0% |
| West Virginia | 5 | 33,940 | 5.0% | 12,178 | 12.1% | 13,643 | 5.3% | 8,120 | 4.6% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Nebraska | 6 | 36,234 | 5.4% | 8,326 | 14.8% | 14,422 | 8.3% | 12,441 | 5.4% | 1,045 | 0.5% |
| Kansas | 7 | 59,244 | 5.8% | 14,552 | 16.2% | 22,194 | 8.7% | 19,654 | 5.9% | 2,844 | 0.9% |
| Minnesota | 8 | 131,977 | 6.6% | 29,760 | 21.8% | 46,560 | 9.5% | 46,243 | 7.0% | 9,414 | 1.3% |
| Indiana | 9 | 153,926 | 6.7% | 44,050 | 17.5% | 57,704 | 7.5% | 46,471 | 6.6% | 5,701 | 1.0% |
| Oklahoma | 10 | 87,893 | 6.7% | 22,558 | 14.8% | 32,916 | 8.6% | 27,938 | 6.5% | 4,482 | 1.3% |
| Arkansas | 11 | 69,989 | 6.8% | 20,578 | 13.9% | 29,044 | 8.7% | 19,696 | 6.3% | 670 | 0.3% |
| Utah | 12 | 57,573 | 7.0% | 12,478 | 20.4% | 16,213 | 9.7% | 23,082 | 7.5% | 5,801 | 2.0% |
| Missouri | 13 | 161,113 | 7.4% | 42,829 | 18.5% | 56,354 | 8.8% | 51,451 | 7.5% | 10,480 | 1.7% |
| Kentucky | 14 | 115,012 | 7.4% | 39,456 | 16.3% | 38,875 | 7.9% | 34,457 | 7.6% | 2,223 | 0.6% |
| Idaho | 15 | 40,663 | 7.6% | 7.334 | 14.5% | 14.826 | 11.1% | 14,831 | 7.5% | 3.673 | 2.4% |
| Montana | 16 | 29,724 | 8.0% | 4.817 | 19.5% | 9.726 | 9.4% | 11,116 | 8.7% | 4.065 | 3.5% |
| Virginia | 17 | 230,353 | 8.1% | 60,268 | 19.9% | 73,270 | 11.6% | 71,799 | 9.0% | 25,016 | 2.2% |
| Wisconsin | 18 | 174,359 | 8.2% | 37,144 | 20.9% | 65,619 | 10.0% | 58,540 | 8.5% | 13,056 | 2.1% |
| Ohio | 19 | 348 271 | 8.2% | 88 994 | 20.6% | 131 326 | 9.6% | 110 545 | 8.6% | 17 405 | 1.5% |
| Alahama | 20 | 143 033 | 8.5% | 45 193 | 18.2% | 50.080 | 10.4% | 43 051 | 8.2% | 4 708 | 1.3% |
| Tennessee | 21 | 195 724 | 8.6% | 57 757 | 18.4% | 69 915 | 10.1% | 55 542 | 8.4% | 12 510 | 2.0% |
| South Carolina | 27 | 1/3 061 | 8.7% | 39 / 2/ | 17.9% | /8 581 | 10.1% | 42 517 | 8.3% | 12,510 | 2.0% |
| Poppsylvania | 22 | 407 612 | 8.7% | 98 403 | 21 //% | 173 /08 | 10.0% | 102.641 | 8.7% | 33 160 | 2.1% |
| Delawara | 23 | 407,012 | 0.7 % | 50,405 | 21.470 | 10 971 | 10.7% | 102,041 | 0.7 % | 2 001 | 2.470 |
| North Carolina | 24 | 20,072 | 0.9% | 0,301 | 20.47 | 02.261 | 12.170 | 102 220 | 0.9% | 2,901 | 2.7 /0 |
| Louisiana | 25 | 140.920 | 9.1% | 42 060 | 19.7% | 49,501 49,10E | 0.7% | 102,550 | 9.270 | 29,909 | 2.5% |
| Louisiana Now Hampshiro | 20 | 140,020 | 9.1% | 43,909 | 20.5% | 40,193 | 9.7% 12.0% | 1/ 129 | 0.0% | 7.055 | 2.0% |
| | 27 | 765 552 | 9.170 | 261 779 | 20.370 | 216 711 | 15.0% | 14,120 | 9.0% | 67,055 | 2.0% |
| Colorado | 20 | 103,332 | 9.270 | 201,770 | 19.770 | 210,711 | 11.770 | 219,301 61.039 | 0.0% | 20,702 | 2.0% |
| Michigan | 29 | 171,920 | 9.5% | 55,020 72,917 | 22.0% | 47,000 | 15.5% | 120 546 | 10.5% | 50,796 21.104 | 4.0% |
| Maina | 50 | 555,024 | 9.5% | 72,017 | 22.0% | 119,150 | 12.1% | 120,540 | 9.0% | 21,104 | 2.1% |
| Mississippi | 27 | 40,705 | 9.4% | 7,470 | 19.4% | 20,570 | 12.4% | 14,151 | 0.0% | 0,707 E 421 | 4.5% |
| Mandand | 52 22 | 94,590 | 9.5% | 29,394 | 17.9% | 50,444 72,927 | 10.0% | 29,150 | 9.0% | 5,42 I 25 201 | 2.4% |
| Mashiastas | 20 | 204,251 | 10.0% | 44,599 | 24.2% | 72,057 | 13.7% | 01,514 | 11.1% | 25,501 | 5.0% |
| Vashington | 25 | 251,745 | 10.2% | 44,010 | 22.4% | 70,750 | 14.0% | 90,714 | 11.1% | 57,005 | 4.5% |
| New Mawies | 35 | 24,039 | 10.2% | 5,524 | 19.7% | 9,115 | 15.5% | 7,700 | 11.0% | 4,454 | 4.9% |
| New Mexico | 30 | /3,4/8 | 10.5% | 10,043 | 19.3% | 20,828 | 12.0% | 25,623 | 11.1% | 0,104 C0.254 | 3.9% |
| Gaaraia | 20 | 405,417 | 10.0% | 02 025 | 24.0% | 151,505 | 13.0% | 151,155 | 11.2% | 00,254 | 4.4% |
| Georgia | 30 | 364,671 | 11.2% | 93,935 | 22.8% | 117,649 | 14.0% | 114,092 | 11.0% | 30,995 | 3.7% |
| Arizona | 39 | 248,025 | 11.3% | 64,921 56 015 | 25.7% | 69,218 | 15.1% | 72,202 | 10.9% | 27,049 | 5.9% |
| Massachusetts | 40 | 279,463 | 11.0% | 50,315 | 25.1% | 96,360 | 17.4% | 13,362 | 12.2% | 51,445 | 5.0% |
| Alaska | 41 | 28,256 | 12.1% | 5,318 | 32.8% | 9,382 | 17.6% | 11,093 | 12.0% | 2,463 | 3.5% |
| Connecticut | 42 | 156,951 | 12.1% | 32,851 | 27.3% | 58,085 | 17.9% | 42,287 | 12.5% | 23,728 | 4.7% |
| Oregon | 43 | 172,582 | 12.2% | 28,755 | 23.6% | 46,814 | 15.3% | 68,237 | 13.2% | 28,776 | 6.1% |
| Knode Island | 44 | 49,895 | 13.0% | 12,561 | 24.1% | 15,871 | 16.6% | 14,116 | 13.1% | 7,347 | 5.7% |
| | 45 | 122,432 | 13.0% | 28,078 | 24.4% | 36,409 | 15.3% | 43,450 | 12.6% | 14,495 | 6.0% |
| District of Columbia | 46 | 35,539 | 14.4% | 8,041 | 34.6% | 10,123 | 26.1% | 8,426 | 20.2% | 8,950 | 6.3% |
| Florida | 47 | 981,026 | 14.5% | 201,772 | 27.0% | 323,918 | 18.1% | 302,213 | 14.0% | 153,122 | 7.4% |
| New Jersey | 48 | 487,834 | 15.9% | 102,948 | 33.4% | 179,356 | 21.9% | 127,876 | 17.1% | 77,654 | 6.5% |
| New York | 49 | 1,137,510 | 16.6% | 300,349 | 34.3% | 361,324 | 21.3% | 275,359 | 15.5% | 200,477 | 8.0% |
| Hawaii | 50 | 72,096 | 17.2% | 7,774 | 25.0% | 21,365 | 21.9% | 27,528 | 19.5% | 15,430 | 10.4% |
| California | 51 | 2,167,569 | 18.3% | 610,473 | 34.4% | 488,997 | 23.3% | 669,795 | 17.8% | 398,304 | 9.4% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION

HOPE Goal

94%

of households with good housing quality

Calculated as the average portion of households headed by college graduates with good housing quality in SD, WV, IA, AR, and NE.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



AIR QUALITY – PARTICULATE MATTER

Tables show the portion of people living in counties meeting national standards for air quality, defined as those with average daily density of fine particulate matter (PM_{2.5}) below 12 micrograms per cubic meter, in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2011 WONDER, Center for Disease Control and Prevention

| | | | RAC | E AND ETHNICI | ТҮ | | | | | | | | INCOME (% | FPL) | | |
|----------------------------|------|---------|--------|---------------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|-----------------------|------|---------|--------|-----------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Arizona | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Arizona | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| California | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | California | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Delaware | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Delaware | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Idaho | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Massachusetts | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Montana | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Montana | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Jersey | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | New Hampshire | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Mexico | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | New Jersey | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | New Mexico | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Oklahoma | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | North Dakota | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Oregon | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Oklahoma | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Oregon | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Texas | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Texas | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Washington | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Vermont | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| lowa | 18 | 97.4% | 97.2% | 99.7% | 98.4% | 99.5% | 97.4% | 98.6% | Washington | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Missouri | 19 | 95.0% | 94.6% | 96.0% | 97.0% | 98.4% | 96.5% | 96.1% | Iowa | 19 | 97.4% | 98.1% | 97.3% | 97.0% | 97.3% | 97.6% |
| Nevada | 20 | 94.0% | 91.7% | 98.6% | 96.0% | 98.8% | 74.1% | 97.2% | Missouri | 20 | 95.0% | 93.5% | 93.9% | 94.5% | 95.5% | 96.4% |
| Kansas | 21 | 94.0% | 94.1% | 98.8% | 89.0% | 97.0% | 97.1% | 97.0% | Nevada | 21 | 94.1% | 94.7% | 94.7% | 94.2% | 93.4% | 93.7% |
| Florida | 22 | 89.3% | 87.5% | 85.5% | 97.0% | 87.3% | 80.0% | 81.9% | Kansas | 22 | 94.0% | 94.2% | 92.5% | 93.0% | 94.4% | 95.0% |
| New York | 23 | 84.6% | 78.3% | 90.2% | 95.9% | 95.0% | 72.6% | 84.5% | Florida | 23 | 89.5% | 89.5% | 90.2% | 89.2% | 88.8% | 89.6% |
| Nebraska | 24 | 84.1% | 83.2% | 97.2% | 83.4% | 94.9% | 82.5% | 88.4% | New York | 24 | 84.9% | 85.5% | 84.6% | 82.4% | 81.8% | 86.6% |
| Louisiana | 25 | 81.0% | 85.6% | 76.2% | 60.7% | 60.5% | 89.5% | 82.2% | Nebraska | 25 | 84.2% | 84.1% | 81.8% | 82.2% | 84.0% | 86.7% |
| Arkansas | 26 | 74.0% | 75.0% | 60.5% | 87.7% | 91.5% | 87.6% | 79.1% | Louisiana | 26 | 80.8% | 78.9% | 81.4% | 80.8% | 81.6% | 81.2% |
| South Dakota | 27 | 70.9% | 70.3% | 36.0% | 64.4% | 55.2% | 90.0% | 76.3% | Arkansas | 27 | 74.5% | 69.9% | 74.2% | 74.2% | 75.2% | 77.8% |
| Wisconsin | 28 | 50.8% | 56.0% | 8.7% | 26.9% | 39.7% | 82.3% | 41.3% | South Dakota | 28 | 71.0% | 73.4% | 72.2% | 70.1% | 70.5% | 70.1% |
| Pennsylvania | 29 | 37.8% | 31.3% | 68.2% | 55.8% | 63.5% | 44.4% | 40.5% | Wyoming | 29 | 70.9% | 61.6% | 72.0% | 70.4% | 74.1% | 72.1% |
| Utah | 30 | 26.1% | 27.0% | 17.5% | 23.0% | 12.8% | 46.8% | 22.3% | Wisconsin | 30 | 50.6% | 45.5% | 54.2% | 55.9% | 54.5% | 46.4% |
| Mississippi | 31 | 23.6% | 19.3% | 31.7% | 15.0% | 14.4% | 8.3% | 16.3% | Pennsylvania | 31 | 38.0% | 41.8% | 36.9% | 34.6% | 35.1% | 39.9% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 20.0% | 19.1% | 25.6% | 16.6% | 8.6% | 10.8% | 19.6% | Utah | 32 | 26.0% | 29.3% | 29.4% | 26.6% | 24.1% | 23.0% |
| Virginia | 33 | 18.6% | 15.6% | 32.6% | 13.4% | 11.8% | 22.5% | 22.7% | Mississippi | 33 | 23.7% | 26.0% | 24.0% | 23.7% | 22.7% | 21.9% |
| Michigan | 34 | 16.9% | 19.7% | 4.3% | 11.8% | 4.9% | 47.5% | 14.5% | North Carolina | 34 | 19.8% | 22.8% | 21.2% | 20.2% | 19.7% | 17.0% |
| Minnesota | 35 | 13.4% | 14.8% | 2.7% | 5.3% | 2.5% | 45.7% | 11.7% | Virginia | 35 | 18.4% | 20.8% | 20.8% | 21.0% | 21.2% | 15.3% |
| Illinois | 36 | 7.2% | 9.6% | 3.4% | 2.3% | 2.1% | 10.8% | 7.3% | Michigan | 36 | 16.6% | 17.4% | 19.6% | 18.8% | 17.0% | 13.1% |
| Colorado | 37 | 7.1% | 8.3% | 1.0% | 4.9% | 1.7% | 25.4% | 4.9% | Minnesota | 37 | 13.2% | 16.1% | 16.2% | 15.2% | 13.9% | 10.3% |
| Maryland | 38 | 2.6% | 3.4% | 1.8% | 1.3% | 1.0% | 1.1% | 2.2% | Colorado | 38 | 7.1% | 8.1% | 8.2% | 8.0% | 7.4% | 5.8% |
| Georgiaª | 39 | 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.2% | 0.1% | 0.1% | 0.3% | Illinois | 39 | 7.0% | 7.0% | 7.7% | 8.2% | 7.9% | 6.0% |
| Alahama | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Maryland | 40 | 2.6% | 3.9% | 3.6% | 2.9% | 2.8% | 1.9% |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Georgiaª | 41 | 0.5% | 0.6% | 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.3% |
| Indiana | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Alabama | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Kentucky ^a | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | District of Columbia | a 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Ohio | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Indiana | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| South Carolina | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Kentucky ^a | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Tennessee | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Ohio | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| West Virginia | 40 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | South Carolina | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% | Tennessee | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 71.6% | 42.2% | 61.0% | | 91.0% | 69.3% | West Virginia | 42 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Alaska ^c | | | | | | | | | Alaska ^c | | 0.076 | | 0.076 | 0.070 | | |
| Hawaii ^c | | | | | | | | | Hawajic | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | | | 1 | | | riaman | | | | | | | |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

^c Data not collected for AK and HI.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties meeting PM_{2.5} standards

All people in 18 states live in counties meeting national PM_{2.5} standards.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



AIR QUALITY – PARTICULATE MATTER

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of people in each group (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties meeting PM_{2.5} standards to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wh | ite | Bl | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Arizona | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| California | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Delaware | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Montana | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Jersey | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| New Mexico | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Oklahoma | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Oregon | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Texas | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Washington | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Iowa | 18 | 78,436 | 2.6% | 74,349 | 2.8% | 290 | 0.3% | 2,649 | 1.6% | 279 | 0.5% | 208 | 2.6% | 661 | 1.4% |
| Missouri | 19 | 302,988 | 5.0% | 261,586 | 5.4% | 27,294 | 4.0% | 6,844 | 3.0% | 1,700 | 1.6% | 749 | 3.5% | 4,815 | 3.9% |
| Nevada | 20 | 164,732 | 6.0% | 120,116 | 8.3% | 3,009 | 1.4% | 30,346 | 4.0% | 2,581 | 1.2% | 6,300 | 25.9% | 2,380 | 2.8% |
| Kansas | 21 | 173,787 | 6.0% | 132,093 | 5.9% | 1,889 | 1.2% | 34,724 | 11.0% | 2,226 | 3.0% | 577 | 2.9% | 2,278 | 3.0% |
| Florida | 22 | 2,066,713 | 10.7% | 1,367,966 | 12.5% | 432,392 | 14.5% | 137,453 | 3.0% | 62,702 | 12.7% | 8,449 | 20.0% | 57,751 | 18.1% |
| New York | 23 | 2,999,905 | 15.4% | 2,439,158 | 21.7% | 275,697 | 9.8% | 145,670 | 4.1% | 75,130 | 5.0% | 12,939 | 27.4% | 51,311 | 15.5% |
| Nebraska | 24 | 294,093 | 15.9% | 253,851 | 16.8% | 2,359 | 2.8% | 29,881 | 16.6% | 1,854 | 5.1% | 2,260 | 17.5% | 3,888 | 11.6% |
| Louisiana | 25 | 872,907 | 19.0% | 396,589 | 14.4% | 349,230 | 23.8% | 82,674 | 39.3% | 30,215 | 39.5% | 2,673 | 10.5% | 11,526 | 17.8% |
| Arkansas | 26 | 766,086 | 26.0% | 545,249 | 25.0% | 179,748 | 39.5% | 24,464 | 12.3% | 3,740 | 8.5% | 2,076 | 12.4% | 10,809 | 20.9% |
| South Dakota | 27 | 238,431 | 29.1% | 206,955 | 29.7% | 7,849 | 64.0% | 9,377 | 35.6% | 4,312 | 44.8% | 5,634 | 10.0% | 4,304 | 23.7% |
| Wisconsin | 28 | 2,812,793 | 49.2% | 2,084,268 | 44.0% | 320,480 | 91.3% | 259,684 | 73.1% | 82,995 | 60.3% | 8,096 | 17.7% | 57,270 | 58.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 29 | 7,926,267 | 62.2% | 6,887,008 | 68.7% | 426,203 | 31.8% | 347,045 | 44.2% | 137,779 | 36.5% | 8,452 | 55.6% | 119,780 | 59.5% |
| Utah | 30 | 2,109,393 | 73.9% | 1,663,642 | 73.0% | 23,698 | 82.5% | 292,233 | 77.0% | 74,608 | 87.2% | 14,974 | 53.2% | 40,238 | 77.7% |
| Mississippi | 31 | 2,277,148 | 76.4% | 1,387,769 | 80.7% | 757,970 | 68.3% | 71,450 | 85.0% | 24,236 | 85.6% | 10,906 | 91.7% | 24,817 | 83.7% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 7,790,477 | 80.0% | 5,090,248 | 80.9% | 1,534,308 | 74.4% | 707,729 | 83.4% | 215,055 | 91.4% | 94,735 | 89.2% | 148,402 | 80.4% |
| Virginia | 33 | 6,645,849 | 81.4% | 4,410,208 | 84.4% | 1,044,963 | 67.4% | 594,846 | 86.6% | 420,864 | 88.2% | 13,370 | 77.5% | 161,598 | 77.3% |
| Michigan | 34 | 8,212,750 | 83.1% | 6,042,008 | 80.3% | 1,308,973 | 95.7% | 403,074 | 88.2% | 246,612 | 95.1% | 25,441 | 52.5% | 186,642 | 85.5% |
| Minnesota | 35 | 4,658,680 | 86.6% | 3,768,804 | 85.2% | 277,540 | 97.3% | 250,285 | 94.7% | 225,667 | 97.5% | 28,263 | 54.3% | 108,121 | 88.3% |
| Illinois | 36 | 11,932,857 | 92.8% | 7,310,375 | 90.4% | 1,759,963 | 96.6% | 2,046,734 | 97.7% | 612,232 | 97.9% | 13,094 | 89.2% | 190,459 | 92.7% |
| Colorado | 37 | 4,764,947 | 92.9% | 3,263,872 | 91.7% | 196,331 | 99.0% | 1,028,478 | 95.1% | 143,497 | 98.3% | 21,105 | 74.6% | 111,664 | 95.1% |
| Maryland | 38 | 5,723,519 | 97.4% | 3,046,024 | 96.6% | 1,678,635 | 98.2% | 509,117 | 98.7% | 341,279 | 99.0% | 11,982 | 98.9% | 136,482 | 97.8% |
| Georgiaª | 39 | 9,842,565 | 99.5% | 5,422,746 | 99.5% | 2,997,735 | 99.5% | 895,295 | 99.8% | 345,862 | 99.9% | 18,262 | 99.9% | 162,665 | 99.7% |
| Alabama | 40 | 4,813,000 | 100.0% | 3,206,588 | 100.0% | 1,263,162 | 100.0% | 191,838 | 100.0% | 59,064 | 100.0% | 23,152 | 100.0% | 69,196 | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 632,425 | 100.0% | 224,184 | 100.0% | 308,766 | 100.0% | 62,637 | 100.0% | 22,698 | 100.0% | 1,384 | 100.0% | 12,756 | 100.0% |
| Indiana | 40 | 6,533,476 | 100.0% | 5,286,730 | 100.0% | 589,861 | 100.0% | 411,536 | 100.0% | 115,503 | 100.0% | 12,194 | 100.0% | 117,652 | 100.0% |
| Kentucky ^a | 40 | 4,379,113 | 100.0% | 3,760,868 | 100.0% | 340,235 | 100.0% | 139,636 | 100.0% | 54,937 | 100.0% | 7,387 | 100.0% | 76,050 | 100.0% |
| Ohio | 40 | 11,546,305 | 100.0% | 9,311,563 | 100.0% | 1,388,915 | 100.0% | 379,542 | 100.0% | 209,602 | 100.0% | 17,010 | 100.0% | 239,673 | 100.0% |
| South Carolina | 40 | 4,722,847 | 100.0% | 3,021,819 | 100.0% | 1,295,991 | 100.0% | 248,459 | 100.0% | 64,830 | 100.0% | 14,156 | 100.0% | 77,592 | 100.0% |
| Tennessee | 40 | 6,445,583 | 100.0% | 4,838,950 | 100.0% | 1,074,696 | 100.0% | 309,828 | 100.0% | 100,729 | 100.0% | 13,660 | 100.0% | 107,720 | 100.0% |
| West Virginia | 40 | 1,852,493 | 100.0% | 1,718,871 | 100.0% | 58,425 | 100.0% | 24,061 | 100.0% | 13,520 | 100.0% | 2,884 | 100.0% | 34,732 | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 138,581 | 28.4% | 3,334 | 57.8% | 21,110 | 39.0% | | | 1,008 | 9.0% | 3,200 | 30.7% |
| Alaska ^c | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Hawaii ^c | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

^c Data not collected for AK and HI.

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties meeting PM_{2.5} standards

All people in 18 states live in counties meeting national PM_{2.5} standards.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



AIR QUALITY – PARTICULATE MATTER

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of people in each group (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties meeting PM_{2.5} standards to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| State Pto Geod Pto Geod <t< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>Ove</th><th>erall</th><th>0-999</th><th>% FPL</th><th>100-19</th><th>9% FPL</th><th>200-299</th><th>9% FPL</th><th>300-399</th><th>% FPL</th><th>400+</th><th>% FPL</th></t<> | | | Ove | erall | 0-999 | % FPL | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+ | % FPL |
|--|----------------------|------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| Abben 1 0 008 0 009 00 009 00 000 000 Connectivity 1 0 0008 0 | State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Calionia 1 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% | Arizona | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Connectical 1 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Unite 1 0 0.000 0.00 0.000 < | California | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Delaware 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Maine 1 0 0.0% 0 | Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| ishino 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Maine 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Masan Ausetts 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% | Delaware | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Maine 1 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% MascAr.UserNa 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% <td>Idaho</td> <td>1</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>0</td> <td>0.0</td> | Idaho | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Massachuschis 1 0 0.08 0.09 0.095 0.0 0.095 0.0 New Jeney 1 0 0.066 0 0.065 0 0.005 0.0 0.005 0.0 New Jeney 1 0 0.066 0 0.055 0 0.0056 0.0 0.005 0.0 New Jeney 1 0 0.056 0 0.056 0.0 0.056 0.0 0.056 0.0 New Jeney 1 0 0.056 0 0.056 0 0.056 0.0 0.0 | Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Montana 1 0.0 0.0% | Massachusetts | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New Jangy 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 New Jacky 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 New Jacky 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Nuch Jacky 1 0 0.0% 0. | Montana | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Inversery 1 0 0.0% 0 | New Hampshire | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New Macrico 1 0 0.0% 0 | New Jersey | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| North Dackta 1 0 0.07% 0 0.07% 0 0.07% 0 0.07% 0 Okahoma 1 0 0.00% 0< | New Mexico | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Oklahoma 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Cregon 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Rhode Island 1 0 0.0% 0 | North Dakota | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Oregon 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Rhode Island 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Vermont 1 0 0.0% 0 | Oklahoma | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Rhode shand 1 0 0.0% 0 | Oregon | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Texas 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Vermont 1 0 0.0% 0 | Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Vermont 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Washington 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 Iowa 19 76,153 2.6% 6.930 1.9% 14,306 2.27% 17.030 3.0% 12.857 2.2.7% 25.030 Missouri 20 2.93,707 5.9% 5.8.74 6.5.% 7.1.89 6.1% 55.9% 3.8.41 4.5% 6.6.2.2 Neada 21 1.59.52 5.9% 2.2.271 5.3% 30.540 5.3% 36.681 7.0% 2.300 11.2.% 50.05 16.7.5% 16.0.6% 4.9.400 11.2.% 50.010 11.2.% 50.010 11.0.8% 2.30.10 11.1.2.% 50.010 11.0.8 2.40.10 11.0.8 2.41.00 12.8.4 49.613 10.0.8% 43.04 10.0.8% 10.0.8% 10.0.8% 10.0.8% 10.0.8% 10.0.8.% 10.0.8% 10.0.8% | Texas | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Washington 1 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 lowa 19 76,153 2.6% 6.930 1.1% 14.366 2.7% 17.030 3.0% 12.657 2.7% 25.030 Nexada 21 159,552 5.9% 2.2.21 5.3% 30.540 5.3% 2.9.722 5.8% 2.5.74 6.6% 51.945 Kanasa 22 168,925 6.0% 2.2.304 5.8% 39.555 7.5% 36.61 7.0% 2.3.705 5.6% 47.280 New York 24 2.887,598 15.1% 432.473 144.5% 499.413 15.4% 496.557 17.6% 44.0500 18.2% 101.8% 267.173 New York 24 2.887,598 15.1% 30.742 2.1% 138.60 19.2% 107.367 18.4% 267.173 Arkansa 27 731.20 2.555 165.130 30.1% 17.621 18.6% 48.0207 19.2% | Vermont | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| low 19 76,153 2.6% 6.930 1.9% 14,306 2.7% 17.030 3.0% 12.677 2.7% 2.500 Missouri 20 293,707 5.0% 56,874 6.5% 71,189 6.1% 58,904 5.5% 38,431 4.5% 66,229 Kansa 22 166,925 6.0% 22.2,04 5.8% 395,55 7.5% 36,011 7.0% 23,075 5.6% 47,200 Florida 23 1984,198 10.5% 333,108 10.5% 387,942 9.9% 36,019 10.0% 23,019 11.2% 47,801 New York 24 2.867,598 15.1% 432,473 14.5% 499,413 15.4% 496,557 17.6% 440,000 18.2% 10,108,255 Nebraska 25 255,198 15.6% 36,784 15.9% 61,752 18.2% 19,864 17,86 45,257 17,6% 440,900 18.2% 10,108,257 24,868 163,252 50,17 | Washington | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Missouri20293,7075.0%5.8746.5%71,196.1%5.8%5.5%38,4314.5%662.29Nevada21159,5525.9%2.2,715.3%30,5405.3%2.9,725.8%25,0746.6%5.1,445Kansas2216.89,256.0%2.2,3045.3%397,9429.8%368,19910.8%286,13911.2%598,64Florida231.984,19810.5%333,10810.5%397,9429.8%368,19910.8%286,13911.2%598,64New York242.887,59815.1%432,47314.5%499,41315.4%496,55717.6%40,00081,414Louisina26285,19915.8%36,78415.9%61,72518.2%59,86417.8%43,34416.0%81,414Louisina26285,90219.2%146,72421.1%171,62118.6%138,20719.2%107,36718.4%257,173Arkansas27731,28025.5%165,1300.1%174,89625.6%134,27829.9%83,15429.5%59,858South Dakota282.25,22829.0%2.8,67638.4%26,71928.0%28.44729.6%33,51075,5259,866Wisconsin302.750,86649.4%40,236854.5%1,44,671963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46945.5%59,26%53,24,94Ulah322.0 | lowa | 19 | 76,153 | 2.6% | 6,930 | 1.9% | 14,306 | 2.7% | 17,030 | 3.0% | 12,857 | 2.7% | 25,030 | 2.4 |
| Nevada21159,5525.9%22,2715.3%30,5405.3%29,7225.8%25,0746.6%51,945Kansas22168,9256.0%22,3045.8%39,5557.5%36,0817.0%23,7055.6%47,280New York242,887,59815.1%432,47314.5%499,41315.4%496,55717.6%440,90018.2%1,018,255Nebraska25256,99815.1%432,47314.5%499,41315.4%496,55717.6%440,90018.2%1,018,255Nebraska26859,09219.2%18,474211%171,61118.6%138,20719.2%107,7518.4%25.77Arkansas27731,28025.5%165,13030.1%174,89625.8%135,27825.8%92,72424.8%163,252South Dakota28229,52829.0%28,45526.6%41,90427.8%43,67629.9%38,15429.5%59.965Wyoming29163,33929.1%25.0%38,44729.6%23,10125.9%59.965Wisconsin302,750,86649.4%402,36854.5%44.821145.8%43.86,6044.1%39.51045.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%334,47773.4%336,51075.9%65.8,66North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,28,34174.0%513,6 | Missouri | 20 | 293,707 | 5.0% | 58,874 | 6.5% | 71,189 | 6.1% | 58,984 | 5.5% | 38,431 | 4.5% | 66,229 | 3.6 |
| Kansas22168,9256.0%22,3045.8%39,5557.5%36,0817.0%23,7055.6%47,200Florida231,984,19810.5%333,10810.5%377,429.8%368,19910.8%286,13911.2%598,810New York24288,758151,5%432,47314,5%499,41315,4%496,55717.6%440,90011.2%598,810Nebraska25285,19815.8%36,78415.9%61,75218.2%59.86417.8%45,38416.0%81,414Louisiana26859.09219.2%144,72421.1%171,62118.6%138,20719.2%107,36718.4%25,571,73South Dakota28229,52829.0%28,45626.6%41,90427.8%45,76229.9%38,15429.5%55,9385Wysconsin302.750,86649.4%40,26854.5%448,21145.8%438,60844,1%39.5,5145.5%16,6178Pensylvania317.652,98066.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765.460Utah322.079,00074.0%253,41977.2%1,56.1876.8%33.3,41773.4%33.8,51075.9%658,606North Carolina347.615.20980.2%1,289,34477.2%1,57.81876.8%1,322,41479.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085 | Nevada | 21 | 159,552 | 5.9% | 22,271 | 5.3% | 30,540 | 5.3% | 29,722 | 5.8% | 25,074 | 6.6% | 51,945 | 6.3 |
| Horida 23 1,984,198 10.5% 333,108 10.5% 397,942 9.8% 368,199 10.8% 286,139 11.2% 598,810 New York 24 2,887,998 15,1% 432,473 14,5% 499,413 15,4% 496,557 17,6% 440,900 18,2% 1,018,255 Nebraska 25 285,198 15,8% 36,74 15,9% 61,752 18,2% 59,864 17,8% 45,077 18,4% 45,077 18,4% 45,717.3 18,4% 25,717.3 25,8% 12,724 24,8% 163,225 25,08% 135,278 25,9% 32,724 24,8% 163,225 25,9% 33,108 20,9% 28,666 41,904 27,8% 43,608 44,1% 395,501 45,5% 166,678 14,904 28,477 29,6% 33,110 25,9% 59,985 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,661,78 10,73,5 33,419 70,7% 34,918 70,6% 43,547 73,4% 33,510 75,9% 658,606 1,339 10,73,49 43,43 <td>Kansas</td> <td>22</td> <td>168,925</td> <td>6.0%</td> <td>22,304</td> <td>5.8%</td> <td>39,555</td> <td>7.5%</td> <td>36,081</td> <td>7.0%</td> <td>23,705</td> <td>5.6%</td> <td>47,280</td> <td>5.0</td> | Kansas | 22 | 168,925 | 6.0% | 22,304 | 5.8% | 39,555 | 7.5% | 36,081 | 7.0% | 23,705 | 5.6% | 47,280 | 5.0 |
| New York 24 2,887,598 15,1% 432,473 14,5% 499,413 15,4% 496,557 17,6% 440,900 18,2% 1,018,255 Nebraska 25 285,198 15,5% 36,784 15,9% 61,752 18,2% 59,864 17,8% 45,384 16,0% 18,474 Louisiana 26 859,092 19,2% 184,724 21,1% 171,621 18,6% 138,207 19,2% 107,37 18,4% 257,173 South Dakota 28 229,528 29,0% 28,456 26,6% 41,904 27,8% 45,762 29,9% 38,154 29,5% 75,252 Wyoning 29 163,339 29,1% 25,067 38,4% 26,719 28,0% 28,447 29,6% 23,101 25,9% 19,06178 Pennsylvania 31 7,652,960 62,0% 971,035 58,2% 1,346,719 63,1% 43,36,07 73,4% 338,510 75,9% 658,666 Missispipi 33 | Florida | 23 | 1,984,198 | 10.5% | 333,108 | 10.5% | 397,942 | 9.8% | 368,199 | 10.8% | 286,139 | 11.2% | 598,810 | 10.49 |
| Nebraska25285,19815.8%36,78415.9%61,75218.2%59,86417.8%45,38416.0%81,414Louisiana26859,09219.2%184,72411.1%171,62118.6%135,20719.2%107,36718.4%257,173Arkansas27731,28025.5%165,13030.1%174,89625.8%135,27825.8%92,72424.8%163,252Wyoming29163,33929.1%25.08738.4%26.71928.0%28.44729.6%23,10125.9%39,616Pennsylvania302,750,86644.9.4%40,236854.5%448,21145.8%436,60844.1%395,50145.5%1.066,178Pennsylvania317,652,86062,0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,4664.9%2,765,400Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Missispipi332,2018,7976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%27.8,3487.73%532,2494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,283,6477.2%1,76,78678.8%1,322,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,015Virginia368,662,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,9981.2%1,151,942 <t< td=""><td>New York</td><td>24</td><td>2,887,598</td><td>15.1%</td><td>432,473</td><td>14.5%</td><td>499,413</td><td>15.4%</td><td>496,557</td><td>17.6%</td><td>440,900</td><td>18.2%</td><td>1,018,255</td><td>13.4</td></t<> | New York | 24 | 2,887,598 | 15.1% | 432,473 | 14.5% | 499,413 | 15.4% | 496,557 | 17.6% | 440,900 | 18.2% | 1,018,255 | 13.4 |
| Louisiana26859,09219.2%184,72421.1%171,62118.6%138,20719.2%107,36718.4%257,173Arkansas27731,28025.5%165,13030.1%174,89625.8%135,27825.8%92,72424.8%163,252South Dakota28229,52829.0%28,45626.6%41,90427.8%45,76229.9%33,15422.5%75,252Wisconsin302,750,86649.4%402,36854.5%448,21145.8%438,60844.1%395,50145.5%1,066,178Pennsylvania317,652,98062.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%333,54773.4%338,51077.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%339,91776.3%27.86,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,283,54777.2%1,578,18579.2%958,73479.0%83.893478.8%2,981,271Michigan366.062,13283.4%1,343,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,34283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%506,89791.9%791,26691.8%74,65384.8%636, | Nebraska | 25 | 285,198 | 15.8% | 36,784 | 15.9% | 61,752 | 18.2% | 59,864 | 17.8% | 45,384 | 16.0% | 81,414 | 13.3 |
| Arkansas27731,28025.5%165,13030.1%174,89625.8%135,27825.8%92,72424.8%163,252South Dakota28229,52829.0%28,45626.6%41,90427.8%45,76229.9%38,15429.5%75,252Wyoming29163,33929.1%25,08738.4%26,71928.0%28,44729.6%23,10125.9%59.985Wisconsin302,750,86649.4%402,36854.5%448,21145.8%43.86844.1%395,50145.5%1,061,78Pennsylvania317,652,98062.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%276,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%83.89378.8%2,981,271Michigan3564,75,33281.6%73.85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%83.89.478.8%2,981,271Minesota374,565,71186.8%508.49083.9%68.69.4683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%< | Louisiana | 26 | 859,092 | 19.2% | 184,724 | 21.1% | 171,621 | 18.6% | 138,207 | 19.2% | 107,367 | 18.4% | 257,173 | 18.8 |
| South Dakota28229,52829,0%28,45626.6%41,90427.8%45,76229,9%38,15429,5%75,252Wyoming29163,33929,1%25,08738,4%26,71928.0%28,44729.6%23,10125,9%59,985Wisconsin302,750,86649,4%402,36854,5%448,21145,8%438,60844,1%395,50145,5%1,066,178Pennsylvania317,652,98062,0%971,03558,2%1,346,71963,1%1,396,29765,4%1,173,46964,5%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074,0%253,41970,7%394,91870,6%393,91776,3%278,34877,3%658,666Mississippi332,201,87976,3%483,43174,0%513,68976,0%393,91776,3%278,34877,3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980,2%1,283,85779,2%972,53679,2%958,73479,0%838,93478,8%2,396,085Virginia356,475,33281,6%723,85779,2%972,5679,2%958,73479,0%838,93478,8%2,246,172Minchgan368,062,13283,4%1,343,4982,6%1,442,67480,4%1,372,99581,2%1,151,9484,55,971Colorado384,663,56592,9%666,89791,9%79,126691,8%74,64584,8%666,9792,6% <td< td=""><td>Arkansas</td><td>27</td><td>731,280</td><td>25.5%</td><td>165,130</td><td>30.1%</td><td>174,896</td><td>25.8%</td><td>135,278</td><td>25.8%</td><td>92,724</td><td>24.8%</td><td>163,252</td><td>22.2</td></td<> | Arkansas | 27 | 731,280 | 25.5% | 165,130 | 30.1% | 174,896 | 25.8% | 135,278 | 25.8% | 92,724 | 24.8% | 163,252 | 22.2 |
| Wyoming29163,33929.1%25,08738.4%26,71928.0%28,44729.6%23,10125.9%59,985Wisconsin302,750,86649.4%402,36854.5%448,21145.8%438,60844.1%395,50145.5%1,066,178Pennsylvania317,652,98062.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.8%2,763,48877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%2,01,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%72.385779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%83.893478.8%2,398,085Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0% <t< td=""><td>South Dakota</td><td>28</td><td>229,528</td><td>29.0%</td><td>28,456</td><td>26.6%</td><td>41,904</td><td>27.8%</td><td>45,762</td><td>29.9%</td><td>38,154</td><td>29.5%</td><td>75,252</td><td>29.9</td></t<> | South Dakota | 28 | 229,528 | 29.0% | 28,456 | 26.6% | 41,904 | 27.8% | 45,762 | 29.9% | 38,154 | 29.5% | 75,252 | 29.9 |
| Wisconsin302,750,86649,4%402,36854.5%448,21145.8%438,60844.1%395,0145.5%1,066,178Pennsylvania317,652,98062.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%278,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%72.385779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,974,6172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,970Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,602 <td>Wyoming</td> <td>29</td> <td>163,339</td> <td>29.1%</td> <td>25,087</td> <td>38.4%</td> <td>26,719</td> <td>28.0%</td> <td>28,447</td> <td>29.6%</td> <td>23,101</td> <td>25.9%</td> <td>59,985</td> <td>27.9</td> | Wyoming | 29 | 163,339 | 29.1% | 25,087 | 38.4% | 26,719 | 28.0% | 28,447 | 29.6% | 23,101 | 25.9% | 59,985 | 27.9 |
| Pennsylvania317,652,980662.0%971,03558.2%1,346,71963.1%1,396,29765.4%1,173,46964.9%2,765,460Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%278,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%723,85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%666,96683.8%714,65384.8%663,76792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%713,37597.2%2,383,611Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,8399.5%1,682,3811,365,96399.5%1,237,61099.5%2,838,611Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,9809 | Wisconsin | 30 | 2,750,866 | 49.4% | 402,368 | 54.5% | 448,211 | 45.8% | 438,608 | 44.1% | 395,501 | 45.5% | 1,066,178 | 53.6 |
| Utah322,079,00074.0%253,41970.7%394,91870.6%433,54773.4%338,51075.9%658,606Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%278,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,20980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%723,85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.6%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,338 <td< td=""><td>Pennsylvania</td><td>31</td><td>7,652,980</td><td>62.0%</td><td>971,035</td><td>58.2%</td><td>1,346,719</td><td>63.1%</td><td>1,396,297</td><td>65.4%</td><td>1,173,469</td><td>64.9%</td><td>2,765,460</td><td>60.1</td></td<> | Pennsylvania | 31 | 7,652,980 | 62.0% | 971,035 | 58.2% | 1,346,719 | 63.1% | 1,396,297 | 65.4% | 1,173,469 | 64.9% | 2,765,460 | 60.1 |
| Mississippi332,201,87976.3%483,43174.0%513,68976.0%393,91776.3%278,34877.3%532,494North Carolina347,615,00980.2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%723,85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Mayland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,838,611Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,8899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%98,255100.0%815,613< | Utah | 32 | 2,079,000 | 74.0% | 253,419 | 70.7% | 394,918 | 70.6% | 433,547 | 73.4% | 338,510 | 75.9% | 658,606 | 77.0 |
| North Carolina347,615,20980,2%1,289,36477.2%1,578,18578.8%1,328,24179.8%1,021,33480.3%2,398,085Virginia356,475,33281.6%723,85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,69100.0%1,365,963 | Mississippi | 33 | 2,201,879 | 76.3% | 483,431 | 74.0% | 513,689 | 76.0% | 393,917 | 76.3% | 278,348 | 77.3% | 532,494 | 78.1 |
| Virginia356,475,33281.6%723,85779.2%972,53679.2%958,73479.0%838,93478.8%2,981,271Michigan368,062,13283.4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,69100.0%1,365,963 | North Carolina | 34 | 7,615,209 | 80.2% | 1,289,364 | 77.2% | 1,578,185 | 78.8% | 1,328,241 | 79.8% | 1,021,334 | 80.3% | 2,398,085 | 83.0 |
| Michigan368,062,13288,4%1,348,34982.6%1,442,67480.4%1,372,99581.2%1,151,94283.0%2,746,172Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,69100.0%1,365,963 | Virginia | 35 | 6,475,332 | 81.6% | 723,857 | 79.2% | 972,536 | 79.2% | 958,734 | 79.0% | 838,934 | 78.8% | 2,981,271 | 84.7 |
| Minnesota374,565,71186.8%508,49083.9%686,94683.8%714,65384.8%683,74686.1%1,971,876Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,969100.0%1,365,963 | Michigan | 36 | 8,062,132 | 83.4% | 1,348,349 | 82.6% | 1,442,674 | 80.4% | 1,372,995 | 81.2% | 1,151,942 | 83.0% | 2,746,172 | 86.9 |
| Colorado384,663,56592.9%606,89791.9%791,26691.8%749,44692.0%636,97792.6%1,878,979Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,969100.0%1,365,963 | Minnesota | 37 | 4,565,711 | 86.8% | 508,490 | 83.9% | 686,946 | 83.8% | 714,653 | 84.8% | 683,746 | 86.1% | 1,971,876 | 89.7 |
| Illinois3911,682,27793.0%1,684,54193.0%2,024,47892.3%1,859,60291.8%1,577,68692.1%4,535,970Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,969100.0%1,365,963 | Colorado | 38 | 4,663,565 | 92.9% | 606,897 | 91.9% | 791,266 | 91.8% | 749,446 | 92.0% | 636,977 | 92.6% | 1,878,979 | 94.2 |
| Maryland405,598,80797.4%550,95796.1%735,83896.4%768,00697.1%713,37597.2%2,830,631Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,969100.0%1,365,963 | Illinois | 39 | 11,682,277 | 93.0% | 1,684,541 | 93.0% | 2,024,478 | 92.3% | 1,859,602 | 91.8% | 1,577,686 | 92.1% | 4,535,970 | 94.0 |
| Georgia419,593,70799.5%1,769,89899.4%1,972,98099.5%1,629,33899.5%1,237,61099.5%2,983,881Alabama424,699,510100.0%889,710100.0%998,255100.0%815,613100.0%629,969100.0%1,365,963 | Maryland | 40 | 5,598,807 | 97.4% | 550,957 | 96.1% | 735,838 | 96.4% | 768,006 | 97.1% | 713,375 | 97.2% | 2,830,631 | 98.1 |
| Alabama 42 4,699,510 100.0% 889,710 100.0% 998,255 100.0% 815,613 100.0% 629,969 100.0% 1,365,963 | Georgia | 41 | 9,593,707 | 99.5% | 1,769,898 | 99.4% | 1,972,980 | 99.5% | 1,629,338 | 99.5% | 1,237,610 | 99.5% | 2,983,881 | 99.7 |
| | Alabama | 42 | 4,699,510 | 100.0% | 889,710 | 100.0% | 998,255 | 100.0% | 815,613 | 100.0% | 629,969 | 100.0% | 1,365,963 | 100.0 |
| District of Columbia 42 599,620 100.0% 109,378 100.0% 82,010 100.0% 66,139 100.0% 60,948 100.0% 281,145 | District of Columbia | 42 | 599,620 | 100.0% | 109,378 | 100.0% | 82,010 | 100.0% | 66,139 | 100.0% | 60,948 | 100.0% | 281,145 | 100.0 |
| Indiana 42 6,342,824 100.0% 983,826 100.0% 1,249,259 100.0% 1,197,261 100.0% 977,745 100.0% 1,934,733 | Indiana | 42 | 6,342,824 | 100.0% | 983,826 | 100.0% | 1,249,259 | 100.0% | 1,197,261 | 100.0% | 977,745 | 100.0% | 1,934,733 | 100.0 |
| Kentucky 42 4,248,233 100.0% 803,866 100.0% 886,844 100.0% 748,248 100.0% 603.263 100.0% 1.206.012 | Kentucky | 42 | 4,248,233 | 100.0% | 803,866 | 100.0% | 886,844 | 100.0% | 748,248 | 100.0% | 603,263 | 100.0% | 1,206,012 | 100.0 |
| Ohio 42 11,243,508 100.0% 1,790,564 100.0% 2,069,250 100.0% 2,004,458 100.0% 1,659.288 100.0% 3,719.948 | Ohio | 42 | 11,243,508 | 100.0% | 1,790,564 | 100.0% | 2,069,250 | 100.0% | 2,004,458 | 100.0% | 1,659,288 | 100.0% | 3,719,948 | 100.0 |
| South Carolina 42 4,586,819 100.0% 840,141 100.0% 992,697 100.0% 808,997 100.0% 618.049 100.0% 1.326.935 | South Carolina | 42 | 4,586,819 | 100.0% | 840,141 | 100.0% | 992,697 | 100.0% | 808,997 | 100.0% | 618,049 | 100.0% | 1,326,935 | 100.0 |
| Tennessee 42 6,290,532 100.0% 1,121,344 100.0% 1.354.271 100.0% 1.139.786 100.0% 860.895 100.0% 1.814.236 | Tennessee | 42 | 6.290.532 | 100.0% | 1.121.344 | 100.0% | 1.354.271 | 100.0% | 1,139.786 | 100.0% | 860.895 | 100.0% | 1,814.236 | 100.0 |
| West Virginia 42 1,799,412 100.0% 326,225 100.0% 389,559 100.0% 333,426 100.0% 260,433 100.0% 489,769 | West Virginia | 42 | 1.799.412 | 100.0% | 326.225 | 100.0% | 389.559 | 100.0% | 333.426 | 100.0% | 260.433 | 100.0% | 489.769 | 100.0 |

0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.4% 3.6%

6.3%

5.0%

10.4%

13.4%

13.3%

18.8%

22.2%

29.9% 27.9%

53.6%

60.1%

77.0%

78.1%

83.0%

84.7%

86.9%

89.7%

94.2% 94.0% 98.1% 99.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties meeting PM_{2.5} standards

All people in 18 states live in counties meeting national PM_{2.5} standards.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

| | | KE | Y | | |
|---|-------------------|-----|--------|---|--|
| | | | | | |
| | 1 st (| Qua | rtile | ġ | |
| | | | | | |
| 2 | 2nd | Qua | artile | 9 | |
| | | | | | |
| | 3 rd (| Qua | rtile | j | |
| | | | | | |
| 4 | 4 th (| Qua | rtile | 9 | |

LOW LIQUOR STORE DENSITY

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with fewer than 1.736 liquor stores per 10,000 population in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2014 County Business Patterns, U.S. Census Bureau

| | 1 | | RAC | E AND ETHNIC | ТҮ | | | | |
|----------------------------|------|---------|--------|--------------|-----------------|----------|--------|-----------------|-----------|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | |
| Arizona | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Ariz |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Hav |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Ma |
| Nevada | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Nev |
| Ohio | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Oh |
| Washington | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Wa |
| West Virginia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | We |
| Utah | 8 | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 99.9% | 100.0% | Uta |
| Alabama | 9 | 99.8% | 99.9% | 99.4% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | Ala |
| Florida | 10 | 99.7% | 99.6% | 99.6% | 99.9% | 100.0% | 99.5% | 99.7% | Flo |
| New Mexico | 11 | 99.6% | 99.5% | 99.7% | 99.5% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 99.8% | Nev |
| South Carolina | 12 | 99.4% | 99.6% | 98.6% | 99.6% | 99.9% | 99.8% | 99.8% | Sou |
| North Carolina | 13 | 98.9% | 98.7% | 98.9% | 99.4% | 99.7% | 99.7% | 99.0% | No |
| Tennessee | 14 | 98.8% | 98.6% | 99.6% | 99.6% | 99.7% | 98.8% | 99.3% | Vire |
| Virginia | 15 | 98.8% | 98.7% | 99.1% | 98.7% | 98.8% | 98.8% | 98.7% | Ter |
| Louisiana | 16 | 98.7% | 98.8% | 98.4% | 99.4% | 99.8% | 99.0% | 98.9% | |
| Illinois | 17 | 98.6% | 98.0% | 99.6% | 99.8% | 99.9% | 98.1% | 99.1% | Illin |
| lowa | 18 | 98.6% | 98.5% | 99.8% | 98.9% | 99.8% | 99.7% | 99.1% | low |
| Texas | 10 | 97.9% | 96.9% | 98.3% | 98.7% | 99.6% | 97.3% | 98.4% | Tev |
| Missouri | 20 | 97.8% | 97.7% | 98.7% | 08.1% | 99.5% | 95.2% | 97.4% | |
| California | 20 | 97.0% | 96.8% | 90.778 | 90.176 | 99.576 | 95.276 | 97.9% | Car |
| Orogon | 21 | 97.0% | 90.078 | 99.576 | 90.078 09 E% | 99.270 | 91.170 | 90.276 07 E% | Ore |
| Wissensin | 22 | 97.7% | 97.4% | 99.4% | 90.5% | 99.5% | 90.1% | 97.5% | Ure No |
| WISCONSIN | 25 | 97.5% | 97.5% | 99.7% | 99.2% | 99.5% | 09.0% | 90.0% | Ne |
| ladiana | 24 | 97.5% | 97.4% | 99.4% | 98.5% | 99.3% | 94.0% | 97.2% | VVIS |
| Indiana | 25 | 95.9% | 95.4% | 99.2% | 97.6% | 98.8% | 97.3% | 96.8% | Ida |
| Oklanoma | 26 | 92.3% | 91.3% | 97.2% | 93.1% | 96.1% | 94.0% | 94.3% | Ind |
| Nebraska | 27 | 91.6% | 90.8% | 98.7% | 93.8% | 97.4% | 83.4% | 92.5% | OK |
| Montana | 28 | 90.6% | 91.1% | 95.2% | 93.2% | 95.2% | 83.1% | 89.8% | Nel |
| Kentucky | 29 | 90.4% | 90.5% | 89.0% | 90.8% | 94.4% | 89.6% | 88.8% | Mo |
| Georgia | 30 | 88.7% | 89.3% | 85.6% | 93.6% | 94.5% | 88.8% | 88.4% | Ker |
| Pennsylvania | 31 | 84.9% | 82.2% | 96.4% | 92.2% | 95.9% | 84.7% | 90.0% | Geo |
| South Dakota | 32 | 84.8% | 85.5% | 97.5% | 89.4% | 95.1% | 68.9% | 85.4% | Per |
| Alaska | 33 | 83.7% | 82.8% | 95.6% | 89.8% | 90.8% | 77.2% | 85.7% | Sou |
| Mississippi | 34 | 80.7% | 80.3% | 81.3% | 81.9% | 77.6% | 92.3% | 82.9% | Ala |
| North Dakota | 35 | 77.4% | 78.3% | 92.4% | 74.4% | 89.6% | 54.6% | 83.1% | Mis |
| Minnesota | 36 | 68.6% | 65.4% | 92.4% | 78.6% | 91.9% | 35.9% | 78.3% | No |
| Arkansas | 37 | 67.2% | 71.4% | 40.5% | 78.1% | 74.7% | 77.9% | 71.0% | Wy |
| New York | 38 | 65.7% | 61.9% | 76.6% | 66.1% | 71.6% | 80.8% | 65.8% | Mir |
| Michigan | 39 | 62.6% | 67.9% | 31.4% | 64.7% | 65.8% | 71.6% | 64.1% | Ark |
| Maryland | 40 | 52.3% | 47.0% | 53.4% | 74.1% | 61.7% | 44.6% | 55.8% | Ne |
| New Jersey | 41 | 35.9% | 40.7% | 28.7% | 23.6% | 39.8% | 29.9% | 40.5% | Mic |
| Kansas | 42 | 33.3% | 35.3% | 21.8% | 25.9% | 37.8% | 27.7% | 29.9% | Ma |
| Vermont | 43 | 32.0% | 32.2% | 24.1% | 33.4% | 25.5% | 31.7% | 27.8% | Ne |
| Colorado | 44 | 8.9% | 10.4% | 2.5% | 4.8% | 10.6% | 5.1% | 9.0% | Kar |
| Massachusetts | 45 | 1.1% | 1.3% | 0.1% | 0.4% | 0.3% | 1.9% | 1.0% | Ver |
| Connecticut | 46 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Col |
| Delaware | 46 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Ma |
| District of Columbia | 46 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Сог |
| Rhode Island | 46 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Del |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | 97.5% | 97.6% | 98.9% | 99.6% | | 98.6% | Dis |
| Wyoming ^b | | | 75.9% | 91.1% | 81.2% | | 94.4% | 78.7% | Rho |

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

| | | | | INCOME (% F | PL) | | |
|-----------------------|------|---------|--------|-------------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Arizona | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Nevada | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Ohio | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Washington | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| West Virginia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Utah | 8 | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.9% |
| Alabama | 9 | 99.8% | 99.5% | 99.7% | 99.8% | 99.9% | 99.9% |
| Florida | 10 | 99.7% | 99.6% | 99.7% | 99.7% | 99.8% | 99.8% |
| New Mexico | 11 | 99.6% | 99.6% | 99.5% | 99.5% | 99.5% | 99.7% |
| South Carolina | 12 | 99.4% | 99.1% | 99.2% | 99.4% | 99.4% | 99.7% |
| North Carolina | 13 | 98.9% | 99.1% | 98.8% | 98.8% | 98.6% | 98.9% |
| Virginia | 14 | 98.9% | 98.7% | 98.9% | 98.8% | 99.2% | 98.8% |
| Tennessee | 15 | 98.8% | 98.7% | 98.6% | 98.6% | 99.0% | 99.2% |
| Louisiana | 16 | 98.7% | 98.3% | 98.7% | 98.8% | 98.8% | 99.0% |
| Illinois | 17 | 98.7% | 98.7% | 98.4% | 98.3% | 98.4% | 99.0% |
| Iowa | 18 | 98.6% | 98.9% | 98.6% | 98.4% | 98.6% | 98.5% |
| Texas | 19 | 97.9% | 97.9% | 97.6% | 97.7% | 97.8% | 98.2% |
| California | 20 | 97.8% | 98.0% | 97.9% | 97.9% | 97.8% | 97.7% |
| Missouri | 21 | 97.8% | 96.7% | 96.9% | 97.7% | 98.0% | 98.9% |
| Oregon | 22 | 97.7% | 97.7% | 97.3% | 97.6% | 97.3% | 98.0% |
| New Hampshire | 23 | 97.6% | 96.4% | 95.8% | 97.0% | 97.6% | 98.6% |
| Wisconsin | 24 | 97.5% | 98.2% | 97.8% | 97.3% | 97.5% | 97.2% |
| Idaho | 25 | 97.5% | 97.6% | 97.1% | 97.2% | 97.6% | 98.0% |
| Indiana | 26 | 95.9% | 95.6% | 95.2% | 95.6% | 95.7% | 96.9% |
| Oklahoma | 27 | 92.4% | 92.8% | 91.6% | 92.3% | 92.2% | 93.1% |
| Nebraska | 28 | 91.6% | 91.5% | 90.6% | 90.6% | 91.2% | 93.0% |
| Montana | 29 | 90.6% | 89.9% | 89.6% | 90.2% | 91.6% | 91.3% |
| Kentucky ^a | 30 | 90.5% | 90.4% | 89.4% | 90.0% | 90.5% | 91.6% |
| Georgiaª | 31 | 88.9% | 86.8% | 87.7% | 88.8% | 89.0% | 90.8% |
| Pennsylvania | 32 | 85.0% | 84.8% | 82.4% | 83.1% | 83.9% | 87.6% |
| South Dakota | 33 | 84.6% | 80.4% | 82.9% | 84.1% | 86.0% | 87.1% |
| Alaska | 34 | 83.6% | 81.0% | 80.9% | 83.2% | 84.7% | 84.9% |
| Mississippi | 35 | 80.8% | 80.1% | 82.0% | 81.1% | 81.6% | 79.5% |
| North Dakota | 36 | 77.3% | 76.6% | 76.2% | 76.6% | 77.4% | 78.2% |
| Wyoming | 37 | 77.2% | 77.0% | 75.6% | 76.0% | 76.9% | 78.6% |
| Minnesota | 38 | 68.8% | 65.8% | 63.2% | 64.0% | 66.2% | 74.5% |
| Arkansas | 39 | 67.3% | 65.9% | 67.9% | 68.2% | 68.0% | 66.8% |
| New York | 40 | 65.7% | 76.5% | 73.6% | 71.3% | 68.8% | 55.1% |
| Michigan | 41 | 62.2% | 54.6% | 60.3% | 63.4% | 63.8% | 65.8% |
| Maryland | 42 | 52.4% | 44.6% | 49.4% | 50.6% | 51.4% | 55.5% |
| New Jersev | 43 | 35.8% | 29.6% | 32.3% | 35.9% | 38.9% | 37.3% |
| Kansas | 44 | 33.6% | 21.6% | 26.5% | 31.1% | 34.4% | 43.6% |
| Vermont | 45 | 31.9% | 31 5% | 32.4% | 34 5% | 33.3% | 30.0% |
| Colorado | 46 | 9.0% | 4 5% | 5.4% | 7.1% | 8.4% | 12.9% |
| Massachusetts | 47 | 1.1% | 1.1% | 1.5% | 1.4% | 1.3% | 0.9% |
| Connecticut | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Delaware | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 48 | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal **100%** of people live in

counties with low liquor store density

All people in AZ, HI, ME, NV, OH, WA, and WV live in counties with low liquor store density.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



LOW LIQUOR STORE DENSITY

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of people in each group (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low liquor store density to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ov | erall | W | nite | BI | ack | Hisp | anic | Δsia | n/Pl | Δ1/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Arizona | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Nevada | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Ohio | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Washington | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| West Virginia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Utah | 8 | 2,742 | 0.1% | 2,540 | 0.1% | 22 | 0.1% | 131 | 0.0% | 18 | 0.0% | 28 | 0.1% | 3 | 0.0% |
| Alabama | 9 | 11,367 | 0.2% | 3,082 | 0.1% | 8,197 | 0.6% | 68 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 4 | 0.0% | 16 | 0.0% |
| Florida | 10 | 59,886 | 0.3% | 42,639 | 0.4% | 13,025 | 0.4% | 2,962 | 0.1% | 187 | 0.0% | 195 | 0.5% | 878 | 0.3% |
| New Mexico | 11 | 9,136 | 0.4% | 4,420 | 0.5% | 125 | 0.3% | 4,463 | 0.5% | 5 | 0.0% | 65 | 0.0% | 58 | 0.2% |
| South Carolina | 12 | 30,697 | 0.6% | 10,871 | 0.4% | 18,497 | 1.4% | 1,048 | 0.4% | 89 | 0.1% | 30 | 0.2% | 162 | 0.2% |
| North Carolina | 13 | 110,137 | 1.1% | 80,035 | 1.3% | 22,353 | 1.1% | 4,858 | 0.6% | 713 | 0.3% | 306 | 0.3% | 1,872 | 1.0% |
| Tennessee | 14 | 74,964 | 1.2% | 68,126 | 1.4% | 4,428 | 0.4% | 1,174 | 0.4% | 320 | 0.3% | 159 | 1.2% | 757 | 0.7% |
| Virginia | 15 | 97,678 | 1.2% | 65,799 | 1.3% | 14,521 | 0.9% | 8,661 | 1.3% | 5,793 | 1.2% | 200 | 1.2% | 2,704 | 1.3% |
| Louisiana | 16 | 59,830 | 1.3% | 33,981 | 1.2% | 23,627 | 1.6% | 1,161 | 0.6% | 123 | 0.2% | 252 | 1.0% | 686 | 1.1% |
| Illinois | 17 | 177,714 | 1.4% | 163,908 | 2.0% | 7,360 | 0.4% | 3,658 | 0.2% | 692 | 0.1% | 282 | 1.9% | 1,814 | 0.9% |
| lowa | 18 | 43,742 | 1.4% | 41,236 | 1.5% | 204 | 0.2% | 1,798 | 1.1% | 151 | 0.2% | 27 | 0.3% | 326 | 0.7% |
| Texas | 19 | 556,187 | 2.1% | 361,590 | 3.1% | 50,100 | 1.7% | 132,388 | 1.3% | 4,267 | 0.4% | 1,791 | 2.7% | 6.051 | 1.6% |
| Missouri | 20 | 130,569 | 2.2% | 113,011 | 2.3% | 9.039 | 1.3% | 4,377 | 1.9% | 505 | 0.5% | 1.045 | 4.8% | 2,592 | 2.1% |
| California | 21 | 843,823 | 2.2% | 470,716 | 3.2% | 15,159 | 0.7% | 293,569 | 2.0% | 42,090 | 0.8% | 3,406 | 2.3% | 18.883 | 1.8% |
| Oregon | 22 | 91,079 | 2.3% | 77,580 | 2.6% | 412 | 0.6% | 7,339 | 1.5% | 1,198 | 0.7% | 1,462 | 3.9% | 3.088 | 2.5% |
| Wisconsin | 23 | 140.779 | 2.5% | 129.512 | 2.7% | 915 | 0.3% | 2.680 | 0.8% | 959 | 0.7% | 4.730 | 10.4% | 1.983 | 2.0% |
| Idaho | 24 | 39,741 | 2.5% | 34,805 | 2.6% | 54 | 0.0% | 2,864 | 1.5% | 154 | 0.7% | 1,001 | 6.0% | 863 | 2.8% |
| Indiana | 25 | 265,510 | 4.1% | 245,644 | 4.6% | 4,566 | 0.8% | 9,896 | 2.4% | 1,340 | 1.2% | 328 | 2.7% | 3,736 | 3.2% |
| Oklahoma | 26 | 292,262 | 7.7% | 226,248 | 8.7% | 7.766 | 2.8% | 24,567 | 6.9% | 2,911 | 3.9% | 15.812 | 6.0% | 14,958 | 5.7% |
| Nebraska | 27 | 156,264 | 8.4% | 138,347 | 9.2% | 1.079 | 1.3% | 11,200 | 6.2% | 962 | 2.6% | 2,140 | 16.6% | 2,536 | 7.5% |
| Montana | 28 | 94.071 | 9.4% | 78,464 | 8.9% | 213 | 0.0% | 2,165 | 6.8% | 343 | 4.8% | 10.670 | 16.9% | 2,216 | 10.2% |
| Kentucky ^a | 29 | 419,942 | 9.6% | 357,511 | 9.5% | 37,282 | 11.0% | 12,792 | 9.2% | 3,103 | 5.6% | 765 | 10.4% | 8,489 | 11.2% |
| Georgiaª | 30 | 1,115,632 | 11.3% | 583,906 | 10.7% | 434,612 | 14.4% | 57,200 | 6.4% | 18,967 | 5.5% | 2,048 | 11.2% | 18,899 | 11.6% |
| Pennsylvania | 31 | 1,929,916 | 15.1% | 1,782,956 | 17.8% | 47,898 | 3.6% | 61,204 | 7.8% | 15,310 | 4.1% | 2,330 | 15.3% | 20,218 | 10.0% |
| South Dakota | 32 | 124,634 | 15.2% | 100,833 | 14.5% | 306 | 2.5% | 2,785 | 10.6% | 474 | 4.9% | 17,578 | 31.1% | 2,658 | 14.6% |
| Alaska | 33 | 117,540 | 16.3% | 78,963 | 17.2% | 1,041 | 4.4% | 4,594 | 10.2% | 4,419 | 9.2% | 21,163 | 22.8% | 7,360 | 14.3% |
| Mississippi | 34 | 574,095 | 19.3% | 338,933 | 19.7% | 207,636 | 18.7% | 15,207 | 18.1% | 6,327 | 22.4% | 913 | 7.7% | 5,079 | 17.1% |
| North Dakota | 35 | 159,434 | 22.6% | 134,490 | 21.7% | 792 | 7.6% | 4,670 | 25.6% | 867 | 10.4% | 16,409 | 45.4% | 2,206 | 16.9% |
| Minnesota | 36 | 1,687,757 | 31.4% | 1,530,792 | 34.6% | 21,683 | 7.6% | 56,525 | 21.4% | 18,838 | 8.1% | 33,354 | 64.1% | 26,565 | 21.7% |
| Arkansas | 37 | 966,285 | 32.8% | 622,316 | 28.6% | 270,759 | 59.5% | 43,366 | 21.9% | 11,199 | 25.3% | 3,680 | 22.1% | 14,965 | 29.0% |
| New York | 38 | 6,695,399 | 34.3% | 4,275,143 | 38.1% | 660,525 | 23.4% | 1,206,801 | 33.9% | 431,037 | 28.4% | 9,062 | 19.2% | 112,831 | 34.2% |
| Michigan | 39 | 3,693,990 | 37.4% | 2,413,908 | 32.1% | 938,183 | 68.6% | 161,136 | 35.3% | 88,603 | 34.2% | 13,752 | 28.4% | 78,408 | 35.9% |
| Maryland | 40 | 2,800,455 | 47.7% | 1,670,345 | 53.0% | 796,332 | 46.6% | 133,340 | 25.9% | 132,063 | 38.3% | 6,708 | 55.4% | 61,667 | 44.2% |
| New Jersey | 41 | 5,664,930 | 64.1% | 3,041,359 | 59.3% | 808,498 | 71.3% | 1,260,528 | 76.4% | 467,621 | 60.2% | 7,287 | 70.1% | 79,637 | 59.5% |
| Kansas | 42 | 1,920,288 | 66.7% | 1,444,376 | 64.7% | 127,428 | 78.2% | 234,252 | 74.1% | 45,819 | 62.2% | 14,473 | 72.3% | 53,940 | 70.1% |
| Vermont | 43 | 425,599 | 68.0% | 398,468 | 67.8% | 4,766 | 75.9% | 6,810 | 66.6% | 6,200 | 74.5% | 1,289 | 68.3% | 8,066 | 72.2% |
| Colorado | 44 | 4,728,859 | 91.1% | 3,230,095 | 89.6% | 194,076 | 97.5% | 1,035,840 | 95.2% | 133,612 | 89.4% | 27,012 | 94.9% | 108,224 | 91.0% |
| Massachusetts | 45 | 6,545,523 | 98.9% | 4,927,197 | 98.7% | 423,222 | 99.9% | 679,322 | 99.6% | 382,956 | 99.7% | 7,954 | 98.1% | 124,872 | 99.0% |
| Connecticut | 46 | 3,580,466 | 100.0% | 2,508,360 | 100.0% | 342,043 | 100.0% | 512,795 | 100.0% | 145,498 | 100.0% | 4,830 | 100.0% | 66,940 | 100.0% |
| Delaware | 46 | 915.266 | 100.0% | 590.218 | 100.0% | 193.047 | 100.0% | 78.598 | 100.0% | 31.634 | 100.0% | 2.420 | 100.0% | 19.349 | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 46 | 632.425 | 100.0% | 224.184 | 100.0% | 308.766 | 100.0% | 62.637 | 100.0% | 22,698.00 | 100.0% | 1.384 | 0.0% | 12,756.00 | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 46 | 1,045.718 | 100.0% | 790.922 | 100.0% | 55.066 | 100.0% | 139.832 | 100.0% | 32.861 | 100.0% | 3.820 | 100.0% | 23.217 | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 30.777 | 2.5% | 345 | 2.4% | 459 | 1.1% | 132 | 0.4% | | | 296 | 1.4% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 117,748 | 24.1% | 514 | 8.9% | 10,163 | 18.8% | | | 632 | 5.6% | 2,226 | 21.3% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with low liquor store density

All people in AZ, HI, ME, NV, OH, WA, and WV live in counties with low liquor store density.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



LOW LIQUOR STORE DENSITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of people in each group (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with low liquor store density to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by income.

| | | 0 | المس | 0.000 | | 100.10 | 0% EDI | 200,200 | 04 EDI | 200,200 | 94 EDI | 400.0 | |
|----------------------|------|-----------------|------------------|--------------------|-------------------|--------------------|----------------|--------------------|----------------|-------------------|-----------|--------------------------|-------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % FFL |
| Arizona | 1 | <i>" to cou</i> | 0.0% | <i>"</i> to coul | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | 0.0% | | 0.0% | | 70 00 |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Nevada | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Ohio | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| Washington | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| West Virginia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | |
| l Itah | 8 | 2 705 | 0.0% | 0 177 | 0.0% | 659 | 0.0% | 715 | 0.0% | 319 | 0.0% | 535 | |
| Alabama | q | 11 120 | 0.1% | 477 | 0.1% | 2 5 5 3 | 0.1% | 1 570 | 0.1% | 7/2 | 0.1% | 1 7/2 | |
| Florida | 10 | 50 731 | 0.2% | 12 200 | 0.3% | 11 382 | 0.3% | 9354 | 0.2% | 5 928 | 0.1% | 1,742 | |
| New Mexico | 10 | 8 4 8 9 | 0.5% | 1 579 | 0.4% | 2 217 | 0.5% | 1 849 | 0.5% | 1 230 | 0.2% | 1 614 | |
| South Carolina | 12 | 28 114 | 0.4% | 7 337 | 0.9% | 7 746 | 0.5% | 5 046 | 0.5% | 3 524 | 0.5% | 4 461 | |
| North Carolina | 12 | 107 702 | 1 1% | 15 //7 | 0.9% | 23 609 | 1.2% | 19 218 | 1.2% | 17 953 | 1.4% | 31 /75 | |
| Virginia | 1/ | 90,390 | 1.1% | 13,447 | 1.3% | 13 738 | 1.2% | 17,210 | 1.2% | 8,629 | 0.8% | <i>4</i> 1 756 | |
| Tonnossoo | 15 | 73 7/3 | 1.178 | 14,716 | 1.3% | 19,730 | 1.1% | 15 5/19 | 1.270 | 8 897 | 1.0% | 1/ 952 | |
| Louisiana | 15 | 56 930 | 1.2% | 14,710 | 1.370 | 12,025 | 1.470 | 8 773 | 1.470 | 7 179 | 1.0% | 14,032 | |
| Illinois | 17 | 168.087 | 1.3% | 22 077 | 1.770 | 34 797 | 1.5% | 22 //5 | 1.276 | 26 011 | 1.270 | 14,000 | |
| lowa | 17 | 100,007 | 1.5% | 23,977 A 121 | 1.5% | 7 303 | 1.0% | 55,445 8 800 | 1.7 % | 20,911 | 1.0% | 40,937 | |
| Towas | 10 | 42,943 | 1.470 | 4,131 | 1.170 | 121.002 | 1.470 | 0,090 | 1.070 | 70.255 | 1.470 | 146 150 | |
| California | 19 | 227,292 | 2.1% | 94,277 121.022 | 2.1% | 151,092 | 2.4% | 95,010 122 E01 | 2.5% | 70,255 | 2.2% | 200 142 | |
| Miscouri | 20 | 127 027 | 2.270 | 20.002 | 2.070 | 25,203 | 2.1% | 24 202 | 2.1/0 | 90,779 16 022 | 2.270 | 20 090 | |
| Orogon | 21 | 80.440 | 2.270 | 14 966 | 2.2% | 20.842 | 2.1% | 15 042 | 2.370 | 12,522 | 2.0% | 20,009 | |
| New Hampshire | 22 | 20,700 | 2.370 | 14,000 | 2.3% | 20,043 | 2.7% | 6.056 | 2.4% | 13,032 | 2.170 | 24,137 | |
| Wisconsin | 23 | 129 942 | 2.4% | 4,000 | 5.070 1.99/ | 21,527 | 4.270 | 26 780 | 5.0% 2.7% | 4,727 | 2.470 | 0,023 EE 076 | |
| Idaha | 24 | 150,045 | 2.3% | I 3,470 | 1.070 | 21,710 | 2.270 | 20,700 | 2.770 | 21,001 | 2.370 | 33,070 | |
| Indiana | 25 | 257,100 | 2.3% | 2,032 42,275 | 2.4% | 10,595 | 2.9% | 9,100 | 2.0% | 5,254 | 2.4% | 0,323 | |
| Oklahoma | 20 | 257,950 | 4.1% | 45,275 | 4.4% | 59,517 | 4.0% | 55,250 | 4.4% | 41,597 | 4.5% | 22 209 | |
| Nebracka | 27 | 200,403 | 7.070 | 43,190 | 7.270 | 21 702 | 0.4% | 21 714 | 0.49/ | 40,343 | 7.070 | 13,100 | |
| Montono | 20 | 150,950 | 0.4% | 19,015 | 0.5% | 21,705 | 9.4% | 51,714 17,920 | 9.4% | 25,007 | 0.0% | 42,915 | |
| Kontucky | 29 | 92,341 | 9.4% | 77 102 | 0.6% | 21,223 | 10.4% | 75 196 | 9.0 <i>7</i> 0 | 12,403 E7 249 | 0.4% | 101 205 | |
| Ceorgia | 50 | 404,000 | 9.5% | 225 679 | 9.0% 12.2% | 95,707 | 10.0% | 192,070 | 10.0% | 57,540 126,294 | 9.5% | 101,595 | |
| Bonnouluania | 27 | 1,075,442 | 11.1% | 255,070 | 15.2% | 245,000 | 12.5% | 105,970 | 11.2% | 150,204 | 16.1% | 2/4,422 | |
| South Dakota | 22 | 1,031,704 | 15.0% | 20062 | 10.2% | 273,939 25 745 | 17.0% | 24 225 | 15.9% | 291,907 | 14.0% | 205,107 | |
| Alaska | 37 | 121,022 | 15.4% | 20,902 | 19.0% | 23,743 | 17.1% | 24,333 | 16.8% | 10,079 | 14.0% | 17 919 | |
| Mississippi | 25 | 555 130 | 10.4% | 13,175 | 19.0% | 121,201 | 19.1% | 97 400 | 18.0% | 15,515 | 18.4% | 120 724 | |
| North Dakota | 36 | 154 499 | 22.7% | 18 897 | 22 /04 | 25 246 | 22.8% | 28 267 | 23.4% | 24 413 | 22.6% | 57 676 | |
| Wyoming | 30 | 128.052 | 22.1% | 15,037 | 23.470 | 23,240 | 23.0% | 20,207 | 23.470 | 24,413 | 22.0% | 15 997 | |
| Minnosota | 29 | 1 642 007 | 22.070 | 13,030 | 23.0% | 23,320 | 24.4% | 20,000 | 24.0% | 20,031 | 23.170 | 43,337 | |
| Arkansas | 20 | 025 070 | 21.270 22.70/ | 197.20 | 24.270 | 219.045 | 20.0% | 166 666 | 21.9% | 110 656 | 22.0% | 244 252 | |
| Now York | 40 | 6 5 4 5 1 6 9 | 34.3% | 600 033 | 24.170 22.5% | 210,043 | 52.1% 26.4% | 812 002 | 28.7% | 753 429 | 32.0% | 244,333 | |
| Michigan | 40 | 3 653 052 | 37.8% | 7/1 1/3 | 25.J76 15 A% | 711 025 | 20.4% | 618 486 | 20.778 | 501 955 | 36.2% | 1 079 533 | |
| Mandand | 41 | 3,033,032 | AT 6% | 217 012 | 4J.470 EE //9/ | 296.021 | 59.778 | 200 680 | 10.076 | 266 402 | 19 69/ | 1,079,555 | |
| New Jarcey | 42 | 2,733,220 | 47.0% | 517,912 | 55.4% 70.4% | 500,021 912.665 | 50.0% | 590,009 740,604 | 49.4% 64.1% | 550,492 | 40.0% | 1,202,114 | |
| Kansas | 45 | 3,300,990 | 64.2% | 000,195 | 70.4% | 200,019 | 07.7% | 749,094 | 69.0% | 055,912 | 01.1% | 2,709,552 | |
| Varmont | 44 | 1,057,050 | 00.4% 69.1% | 302,030 | 70.4% 60.5% | 590,010 | 15.5% | 555,159 | 00.9% | 270,700 | 05.0% | 159,205 | |
| Celerado | 45 | 409,005 | 00.1% | 49,545 | 00.3% | 71,091 | 07.0% | 70,174 | 05.5% | 626,610 | 00.7% | 1 769 020 | |
| Massachusette | 40 | 4,024,001 | 91.0% | 000,500 734 AC3 | 95.5% | 021,300 | 94.0% | 104,095 | 92.9% | 050,019 | 91.0% | 2 100 124 | |
| Connecticut | 4/ | 0,304,057 | 90.9% | 134,403 | 90.9% | 031,1U9 | 90.5% | 004,000 | 90.0% | 0U5,5U1 | 90.7% | 5, IU9, I34 1 740 127 | |
| Delawara | 40 | 3,401,115 | 100.0% | 304,/4U | 100.0% | 450,305 | 100.0% | 400,121 | 100.0% | 449,822 | 100.0% | 1,/40,12/ | |
| District of Columbia | 40 | 031,493 | 100.0% | 107,101 | 100.0% | 140,943 | 100.0% | 141,419 | 100.0% | 152,100 | 100.0% | 202,924 | |
| | 40 | 233,020 | 100.0% | 109,378 | 100.0% | ۵۷,010 ۱۶۶ ۵۵۵ | 100.0% | 152 401 | 100.0% | 00,948 127 174 | 100.0% | 201,145 | |
| | 40 | 1,012,806 | 100.0% | 143,996 | 100.0% | 166,090 | 100.0% | 152,491 | 100.0% | 137,174 | 100.0% | 413,055 | |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

| o Goal | |
|--------|--|
| 0.0% | HOPE Goal |
| 0.0% | 1000/ |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.0% | of people live in counties with |
| 0.0% | low liquor store density |
| 0.0% | |
| 0.1% | All people in AZ, HI, ME, NV, OH, WA, and WV |
| 0.1% | live in counties with low liquor store density. |
| 0.2% | |
| 0.3% | |
| 0.3% | |
| 1.1% | |
| 1.2% | |
| 0.8% | |
| 1.0% | |
| 1.0% | |
| 1.5% | |
| 1.8% | |
| 2.5% | |
| 1.1% | |
| 2.0% | WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE |
| 2.8% | GOAL MEASURE? |
| 2.0% | It is an estimate of how far each state has to |
| 3.1% | go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured |
| 6.9% | as the number of people (# to Goal) and |
| 7.0% | portion of populations (% to Goal) within a |
| 8.7% | state whose health opportunity would need |
| 8.4% | to improve in order for that state to meet the |
| 9.2% | HOPE Goal. |
| 12.4% | HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND |
| 12.9% | WHAT DO THEY SHOW? |
| 15.1% | The percent distance values in every group |
| 20.5% | were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades |
| 21.8% | were applied to values in the top quartile, |
| 21.4% | closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively |
| 25.5% | darker shades were given to values in the 2 nd , |
| 33.2% | 3 rd , and 4 th quartiles, farther from the HOPE |
| 44.9% | Goal. |
| 34.2% | |
| 44.5% | KEY |
| 62.7% | |
| 56.4% | 1 st Quartile |
| 70.0% | |
| 87.1% | 2 nd Quartile |
| 99.1% | |
| 100.0% | 3 rd Quartile |
| 100.0% | |
| 100.0% | 4 th Quartile |
| 100.0% | |

FOOD SECURITY

Tables show the portion of people living in census tracts that are not food deserts (i.e., census tracts not designated low income and low food access) in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income.^a

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|------------------|------------------|--------|------------------|----------|--------------------|------------------|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 96.3% | 96.3% | 96.5% | 97.0% | 93.3% | 93.5% | 96.0% | | | | |
| New York | 2 | 95.7% | 95.2% | 95.7% | 96.5% | 98.1% | 92.4% | 95.5% | | | | |
| New Jersey | 3 | 94.6% | 94.1% | 94.9% | 95.3% | 96.4% | 95.9% | 94.8% | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 93.7% | 93.7% | 92.2% | 93.4% | 95.8% | 89.5% | 94.2% | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 5 | 93.5% | 93.5% | 94.0% | 93.1% | 93.3% | 93.6% | 92.8% | | | | |
| Hawaii | 6 | 93.5% | 92.9% | 94.3% | 93.2% | 93.7% | 90.2% | 93.6% | | | | |
| California | 7 | 92.8% | 92.6% | 92.9% | 92.1% | 95.6% | 89.5% | 93.1% | | | | |
| Nebraska | 8 | 92.5% | 92.2% | 93.4% | 94.9% | 91.4% | 94.1% | 91.2% | | | | |
| Connecticut | 9 | 92.0% | 93.2% | 89.4% | 88.2% | 92.9% | 93.9% | 90.5% | | | | |
| Utah | 10 | 91.9% | 92.2% | 90.2% | 90.4% | 90.3% | 94.6% | 93.1% | | | | |
| Maryland | 11 | 91.9% | 92.6% | 90.7% | 89.6% | 94.1% | 93.6% | 92.8% | | | | |
| Illinois | 12 | 91.5% | 90.4% | 93.3% | 93.6% | 92.9% | 91.6% | 91.7% | | | | |
| Vermont | 13 | 90.6% | 90.6% | 89.7% | 92.2% | 92.8% | 93.9% | 87.3% | | | | |
| Maine | 14 | 90.3% | 90.2% | 93.9% | 92.0% | 91.1% | 91.8% | 91.3% | | | | |
| Nevada | 15 | 89.8% | 89.3% | 90.6% | 90.2% | 91.3% | 88.0% | 90.2% | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 89.5% | 89.4% | 92.5% | 90.1% | 86.5% | 85.1% | 90.2% | | | | |
| Oregon | 17 | 88.9% | 88.2% | 89.9% | 91.9% | 93.3% | 87.9% | 89.1% | | | | |
| West Virginia | 18 | 88.9% | 88.7% | 90.9% | 89.1% | 92.1% | 88.2% | 92.5% | | | | |
| lowa | 19 | 88.8% | 89.3% | 89.2% | 81.6% | 89.1% | 77.8% | 87.7% | | | | |
| Michigan | 20 | 88.1% | 87.7% | 90.8% | 86.8% | 88.0% | 83.4% | 88.1% | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 21 | 88.0% | 88.1% | 86.0% | 86.9% | 88.2% | 86.9% | 86.9% | | | | |
| Kentucky | 22 | 87.3% | 87.1% | 89.0% | 87.3% | 89.4% | 87.4% | 88.9% | | | | |
| Wyoming | 23 | 87.0% | 88.5% | 63.7% | 81.6% | 81.8% | 66.6% | 83.6% | | | | |
| Minnesota | 24 | 86.8% | 86.9% | 84.6% | 85.9% | 87.7% | 92.1% | 86.6% | | | | |
| Washington | 25 | 86.7% | 86.6% | 86.3% | 86.3% | 87.8% | 87.3% | 86.5% | | | | |
| Florida | 26 | 86.3% | 84.8% | 86.7% | 89.8% | 86.5% | 83.0% | 85.4% | | | | |
| Montana | 27 | 86.1% | 86.0% | 89.3% | 88.5% | 90.5% | 84 7% | 88.5% | | | | |
| North Dakota | 28 | 86.1% | 86.3% | 82.9% | 85.7% | 88.2% | 84.1% | 84.0% | | | | |
| Delaware | 29 | 86.0% | 86.6% | 84.7% | 87.2% | 81.3% | 80.9% | 85.4% | | | | |
| Indiana | 30 | 85.6% | 86.2% | 81.6% | 84.1% | 83.6% | 88.1% | 85.6% | | | | |
| Colorado | 21 | 85.3% | 85.3% | 88.3% | 84.6% | 87.3% | 70.3% | 85.0% | | | | |
| Virginia | 22 | 85.2% | 85.8% | 83.0% | 85.0% | 86.2% | 85.7% | 85.3% | | | | |
| Idabo | 22 | 84.6% | 84.1% | 84.6% | 88.1% | 87.8% | 81.2% | 84.2% | | | | |
| Rhodo Island | 24 | 94.076 | Q / 70/ | 95 0% | 91 49/ | 70.4% | 70.2% | 97.1% | | | | |
| | 25 | 04.270 94.10/ | 04.770 | 85.0% | 01.470 92.49/ | 9.470 | 9.3 /0 | 07.1% | | | | |
| North Carolina | 26 | 04.170 97.10/ | 04.170 97.10/ | 84.0% | 05.470 | 02.0% | 02.9% | 84.0% | | | | |
| Arizona | 27 | 04.1/0 | 04.1/0 | 04.07 | 05.770 | 03.3% | 50.5% | 04.0% | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 20 | 03.270 | 92.1% | 07.1% | 01.270 97.70/ | 09.5% | 2 1.2 /0 92 09/ | 03.070 92.19/ | | | | |
| Tannaccaa | 20 | 02.770 | 02.470 | 01.370 | 04.770 | 03.470 | 05.070 90.5% | 05.170 | | | | |
| Kansas | 59 | 02.370 | 02.0% | 01.4% | 04.0% 02.00/ | 02.5% | 00.5 <i>%</i> | 02.4% | | | | |
| Ndilsds | 40 | 02.4% | 02.4% | 02.9% | 02.0% | 01.4% | 00.9% | 02.2% | | | | |
| Alabama | 41 | 02.270 | 01.5% | 07.2% | 02.9% | 70.0% | 02.1% | 01.0% | | | | |
| Alabama | 42 | 81.9% | 05.1% | 73.7% | 01.5% | 00.2% | 80.1% | 83.1% | | | | |
| AldSKd | 45 | 01.0% | 02.270 | 05.2% | 05.9% | 90.6% | 72.2% | 02.0% | | | | |
| Lexas | 44 | 80.7% | 80.0% | 81.0% | 81.7% | 78.0% | 79.4% | 80.8% | | | | |
| South Carolina | 45 | 80.2% | 80.7% | 79.6% | 79.7% | 78.1% | 11.2% | 79.4% | | | | |
| South Dakota | 46 | 79.1% | 80.7% | 71.4% | 77.0% | 81.3% | 67.9% | 67.9% | | | | |
| Louisiana | 4/ | 77.4% | 75.0% | 81.3% | 78.1% | 81.9% | 80.5% | 77.3% | | | | |
| Georgia | 48 | 77.0% | 75.9% | 78.4% | 78.3% | 11.1% | 76.0% | 76.6% | | | | |
| Arkansas | 49 | 75.9% | 76.5% | 71.6% | 76.8% | 83.2% | 77.0% | 77.1% | | | | |
| New Mexico | 50 | 75.0% | 73.5% | 72.6% | 76.1% | 75.0% | 76.9% | 73.3% | | | | |
| Mississippi | 51 | 70.4% | 71.2% | 69.0% | 69.1% | 73.5% | 79.9% | 72.0% | | | | |

| C to to | D . 1 | | 0.000/ | INCOME (% F | PL) | 200 2000/ | 400 01 |
|----------------------|--------------|---------|--------|----------------|----------|-----------------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 96.6% | 96.1% | 95.9% | 96.1% | 96.0% | 98.2% |
| New York | 2 | 96.4% | 95.0% | 95.5% | 96.0% | 96.5% | 98.0% |
| Rhode Island | 3 | 95.4% | 93.4% | 94.9% | 94.6% | 94.4% | 97.0% |
| Vermont | 4 | 94.7% | 92.2% | 92.4% | 94.0% | 94.9% | 96.8% |
| New Jersey | 5 | 94.7% | 92.5% | 92.2% | 92.4% | 93.7% | 96.7% |
| Pennsylvania | 6 | 94.2% | 90.2% | 92.2% | 93.4% | 94.8% | 96.6% |
| Massachusetts | 7 | 93.1% | 90.4% | 90.0% | 91.3% | 92.3% | 95.3% |
| North Dakota | 8 | 93.0% | 86.2% | 89.8% | 93.1% | 94.3% | 95.6% |
| California | 9 | 92.7% | 89.1% | 90.0% | 91.5% | 93.3% | 96.3% |
| Illinois | 10 | 92.2% | 87.1% | 89.2% | 90.9% | 92.7% | 95.9% |
| Nevada | 11 | 92.1% | 85.9% | 89.8% | 92.2% | 93.9% | 95.9% |
| Maryland | 12 | 91.8% | 87.0% | 87.9% | 89.1% | 90.7% | 94.8% |
| Connecticut | 13 | 91.6% | 87.3% | 86.8% | 88.1% | 89.9% | 95.0% |
| Maine | 14 | 91.0% | 85.7% | 88.9% | 91.3% | 92.0% | 93.9% |
| Utah | 15 | 90.4% | 82.9% | 87.5% | 90.9% | 92.6% | 94.0% |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 90.3% | 84.1% | 86.5% | 89.3% | 91.4% | 94.4% |
| Nebraska | 17 | 90.0% | 82.3% | 86.1% | 89.2% | 91.9% | 94.6% |
| Iowa | 18 | 89.0% | 80.0% | 85.8% | 88.3% | 90.9% | 93.4% |
| Michigan | 19 | 88.9% | 81.4% | 85.5% | 88.7% | 90.7% | 94.1% |
| Hawaii | 20 | 88.5% | 79.1% | 83.6% | 85.1% | 89.7% | 93.8% |
| Kentucky | 21 | 88.2% | 82.3% | 85.5% | 88.4% | 90.9% | 92.5% |
| Minnesota | 22 | 88.1% | 80.5% | 83.0% | 86.2% | 88.5% | 92 7% |
| Washington | 23 | 87.8% | 81 5% | 81.8% | 85.5% | 88.4% | 93.1% |
| Delaware | 24 | 86.9% | 81.0% | 80.9% | 85.4% | 87.0% | 91.7% |
| Wyoming | 25 | 86.9% | 77.2% | 83.3% | 85.6% | 89.7% | 90.9% |
| Indiana | 26 | 86.9% | 77.2% | 82.8% | 86.9% | 89.9% | 92.9% |
| Idaho | 27 | 86.8% | 79.8% | 84.7% | 87.0% | 88.6% | 91.7% |
| Oregon | 28 | 86.7% | 81.3% | 83.5% | 86.1% | 86.9% | 91.9% |
| West Virginia | 29 | 86.7% | 82.0% | 85.5% | 87.9% | 87.4% | 89.7% |
| Montana | 30 | 86.6% | 78.0% | 83.2% | 87.3% | 88.6% | 92.1% |
| South Dakota | 21 | 86.3% | 68.6% | 82.5% | 87.5% | 91.4% | 93.1% |
| Alacka | 22 | 86.2% | 73.3% | 74.9% | 82.3% | 91.470 87.5% | 93.176 |
| Obio | 22 | 86.1% | 75.5% | 81.6% | 86.0% | 88.3% | 93.176 |
| Colorado | 24 | 96.0% | 70.470 | 79 59/ | 92.0% | 00.376 | 92.470 |
| Virginia | 54 25 | 00.0% | 77.0% | 70.3% | 05.0% | 07.4% | 92.0% |
| Virginia | 22 | 05.0% | 75.5% | 70.0% | 01.0% | 00.5% 95.0% | 92.270 |
| | 30 | 05.570 | 77.470 | 7 9.4 /0 | 03.170 | 03.0% | 09.7% |
| Fiorida | 37 | 05.3% | 77.1% | 01.0% 70.0% | 04.7% | ۵ <i>1.</i> 5% | 91.8% |
| Arizona | 30 | 83.7% | 73.6% | 79.0% | 03.5% | 00.5% | 91.8% |
| Kansas | 39 | 83.0% | 70.0% | 76.5% | 81.0% | 86.0% | 91.6% |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 82.9% | 72.5% | 78.7% | 83.3% | 86.2% | 90.3% |
| North Carolina | 41 | 82.8% | 73.5% | 78.2% | 82.7% | 85.9% | 90.1% |
| Missouri | 42 | 82.8% | 73.8% | 77.6% | 81.3% | 84.7% | 90.4% |
| Alabama | 43 | 82.6% | 72.4% | 79.4% | 83.4% | 86.3% | 89.5% |
| Tennessee | 44 | 82.3% | 71.0% | 78.2% | 82.6% | 86.3% | 90.3% |
| South Carolina | 45 | 81.3% | 71.0% | 76.6% | 82.0% | 84.7% | 89.1% |
| Texas | 46 | 80.3% | 68.4% | 73.4% | 79.2% | 83.9% | 90.6% |
| Louisiana | 47 | 79.0% | 67.8% | 74.8% | 79.5% | 82.3% | 87.4% |
| Georgia | 48 | 77.6% | 66.1% | 71.8% | 76.5% | 81.0% | 87.4% |
| Arkansas | 49 | 75.0% | 64.0% | 70.9% | 75.9% | 79.3% | 83.9% |
| New Mexico | 50 | 70.9% | 57.7% | 64.1% | 72.3% | 76.1% | 83.0% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 70.7% | 58.3% | 68.2% | 73.0% | 77.4% | 79.7% |

^a Estimates are based on census tract level population estimates by race and ethnicity and may be potentially unreliable for race and ethnicity groups comprising extremely small portions of the total population.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal

97%

of people with food security

Calculated as the portion of people with incomes 400% FPL or greater with food security in DC, NY, RI, VT, and NJ.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



FOOD SECURITY

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to have food security to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity.^a

| | | Overall White | | nite | Black | | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial | |
|----------------------|------|-----------------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 6,327 | 1.0% | 2,297 | 1.0% | 2,684 | 0.9% | 207 | 0.3% | 921 | 4.1% | 53 | 3.8% | 165 | 1.3% |
| New York | 2 | 327,790 | 1.7% | 242,002 | 2.2% | 46,750 | 1.7% | 30,467 | 0.9% | - | 0.0% | 2,325 | 4.9% | 6,246 | 1.9% |
| New Jersey | 3 | 240,728 | 2.7% | 168,074 | 3.3% | 27,859 | 2.5% | 34,197 | 2.1% | 7,020 | 0.9% | 147 | 1.4% | 3,431 | 2.6% |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 243,147 | 3.7% | 183,900 | 3.7% | 21,657 | 5.1% | 26,950 | 4.0% | 6,071 | 1.6% | 636 | 7.8% | 3,934 | 3.1% |
| Pennsylvania | 5 | 492,374 | 3.9% | 389,063 | 3.9% | 45,151 | 3.4% | 33,174 | 4.2% | 15,329 | 4.1% | 564 | 3.7% | 9,093 | 4.5% |
| Hawaii | 6 | 54,123 | 3.9% | 14,312 | 4.5% | 750 | 3.0% | 5,568 | 4.2% | 23,386 | 3.6% | 138 | 7.2% | 9,968 | 3.7% |
| California | 7 | 1,713,298 | 4.5% | 711,275 | 4.8% | 96,235 | 4.5% | 760,903 | 5.2% | 89,232 | 1.7% | 11,368 | 7.8% | 44,285 | 4.2% |
| Nebraska | 8 | 90,400 | 4.9% | 78,025 | 5.2% | 3,295 | 3.9% | 4,429 | 2.5% | 2,168 | 6.0% | 421 | 3.3% | 2,062 | 6.1% |
| Connecticut | 9 | 190,198 | 5.3% | 105,018 | 4.2% | 27,232 | 8.0% | 46,737 | 9.1% | 6,431 | 4.4% | 165 | 3.4% | 4,614 | 6.9% |
| Utah | 10 | 154,681 | 5.4% | 117,350 | 5.1% | 2,041 | 7.1% | 26,306 | 6.9% | 6,032 | 7.0% | 762 | 2.7% | 2,189 | 4.2% |
| Maryland | 11 | 321,642 | 5.5% | 150,477 | 4.8% | 113,425 | 6.6% | 39,793 | 7.7% | 11,182 | 3.2% | 458 | 3.8% | 6,307 | 4.5% |
| Illinois | 12 | 754,354 | 5.9% | 562,079 | 6.9% | 74,068 | 4.1% | 78.069 | 3.7% | 27,754 | 4.4% | 843 | 5.7% | 11.541 | 5.6% |
| Vermont | 13 | 42,480 | 6.8% | 39,904 | 6.8% | 478 | 7.6% | 526 | 5.1% | 381 | 4.6% | 65 | 3.4% | 1,125 | 10.1% |
| Maine | 14 | 92,911 | 7.0% | 88,678 | 7.1% | 501 | 3.5% | 997 | 5.4% | 910 | 6.3% | 405 | 5.6% | 1.421 | 6.0% |
| Nevada | 15 | 207.862 | 7.5% | 117,712 | 8.1% | 14,893 | 6.8% | 53,615 | 7.1% | 13,295 | 6.0% | 2,269 | 9.3% | 6.078 | 7.2% |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 447.032 | 7.8% | 376.602 | 8.0% | 17.131 | 4.9% | 25.688 | 7.2% | 14,997 | 10.9% | 5.604 | 12.3% | 7.009 | 7.2% |
| Oregon | 17 | 329.063 | 8.5% | 277,786 | 9.2% | 5.037 | 7.5% | 25.808 | 5.4% | 6.668 | 4.1% | 3.560 | 9.4% | 10.204 | 8.2% |
| West Virginia | 18 | 157.268 | 8.5% | 148.841 | 8.7% | 3.793 | 6.5% | 1.974 | 8.2% | 706 | 5.2% | 264 | 9.2% | 1.688 | 4.9% |
| lowa | 19 | 261.813 | 8.5% | 217,242 | 8.0% | 7,583 | 8.1% | 25.751 | 15.8% | 5.050 | 8.3% | 1.537 | 19.5% | 4.651 | 9.7% |
| Michigan | 20 | 916.732 | 9.3% | 728.558 | 9.7% | 88.880 | 6.5% | 48.123 | 10.5% | 24,266 | 9.4% | 6.732 | 13.9% | 20.171 | 9.2% |
| New Hampshire | 21 | 123,334 | 9.4% | 112,282 | 9.3% | 1.647 | 11.4% | 4,224 | 10.5% | 2,810 | 9.2% | 224 | 10.5% | 2.147 | 10.5% |
| Kentucky | 22 | 438,990 | 10.0% | 385,152 | 10.2% | 28,295 | 8 3% | 14.011 | 10.0% | 4,359 | 7 9% | 733 | 9.9% | 6,441 | 8 5% |
| Wyoming | 23 | 59,497 | 10.3% | 43,293 | 8.9% | 1.942 | 33.7% | 8,515 | 15.7% | 864 | 15.5% | 3.451 | 30.7% | 1,432 | 13.7% |
| Minnesota | 24 | 567,831 | 10.6% | 462.887 | 10.5% | 36,464 | 12.8% | 30,133 | 11.4% | 22,418 | 9.7% | 2,753 | 5 3% | 13,174 | 10.8% |
| Washington | 25 | 735.804 | 10.7% | 527,900 | 10.7% | 26.685 | 11.1% | 89.511 | 11.1% | 52,906 | 9.5% | 8.283 | 10.1% | 30.518 | 10.9% |
| Florida | 26 | 2,126,792 | 11.0% | 1.371.086 | 12 5% | 317,585 | 10.7% | 340,482 | 7 5% | 53,545 | 10.9% | 6.047 | 14 3% | 38.047 | 11.9% |
| Montana | 27 | 112 756 | 11.2% | 99,178 | 11 3% | 357 | 8.1% | 2 834 | 8.9% | 486 | 6.8% | 7 962 | 12.6% | 1 939 | 8.9% |
| North Dakota | 28 | 79.077 | 11.2% | 68,158 | 11.0% | 1.498 | 14.4% | 2,117 | 11.6% | 761 | 9.1% | 4.802 | 13.3% | 1,741 | 13.4% |
| Delaware | 29 | 103 437 | 11.2% | 63,241 | 10.7% | 24 454 | 12.7% | 7 975 | 10.1% | 5 060 | 16.0% | 398 | 16.4% | 2 308 | 11.9% |
| Indiana | 30 | 766.354 | 11.3% | 588,292 | 11 1% | 92,617 | 15.7% | 54.624 | 13.3% | 15,859 | 13.7% | 1,126 | 9.2% | 13,835 | 11.8% |
| Colorado | 31 | 623,466 | 12.0% | 432 845 | 12.0% | 17 938 | 9.0% | 138,400 | 12.7% | 14 953 | 10.0% | 5 140 | 18.1% | 14 190 | 11.9% |
| Virginia | 32 | 990 370 | 12.0% | 602 434 | 11.5% | 222 714 | 14.4% | 84 913 | 12.1% | 53 045 | 11.1% | 2 004 | 11.6% | 25 260 | 12.1% |
| Idaho | 33 | 203 597 | 12.1% | 176 400 | 13.2% | 1 111 | 12.8% | 17 185 | 9.2% | 2 180 | 9.6% | 2,004 | 16.1% | 4 012 | 13.1% |
| Rhode Island | 34 | 137 701 | 13.2% | 99.626 | 12.6% | 6 780 | 12.3% | 22 331 | 16.0% | 5 894 | 17.9% | 690 | 18.1% | 2 382 | 10.3% |
| Ohio | 35 | 1 526 568 | 13.2% | 1 236 088 | 13.3% | 171 823 | 12.5% | 52 989 | 14.0% | 30,410 | 14.5% | 2 4 5 9 | 14.5% | 32,800 | 13.7% |
| North Carolina | 36 | 1,320,300 | 13.2% | 834 098 | 13.3% | 276 284 | 13.4% | 115 756 | 13.6% | 32 623 | 13.9% | 7 468 | 7.0% | 24 660 | 13.7% |
| Arizona | 37 | 930 150 | 14.2% | 433 104 | 11.5% | 26.431 | 10.3% | 318 974 | 16.1% | 16.036 | 8.1% | 121 233 | 46.2% | 14 372 | 11.6% |
| Oklahoma | 38 | 559 695 | 14.2% | 385 844 | 14.9% | 43 295 | 15.9% | 45 264 | 12.6% | 10,050 | 14.0% | 37 725 | 14 3% | 37 162 | 14.3% |
| Tennessee | 30 | 958.074 | 14.7% | 714 259 | 14.8% | 171 445 | 16.0% | 38 815 | 12.0% | 15 133 | 15.0% | 2 305 | 16.9% | 16 117 | 15.0% |
| Kansas | 40 | 430 297 | 14.9% | 334 200 | 15.0% | 23 477 | 14.4% | 45 924 | 14.5% | 11 768 | 16.0% | 3 301 | 16.5% | 11,625 | 15.0% |
| Missouri | 40 | 913 578 | 15.2% | 768.046 | 15.8% | 70 307 | 10.2% | 32 793 | 14.5% | 19,769 | 18.6% | 3 305 | 15.2% | 19358 | 15.1% |
| Alahama | 12 | 744 781 | 15.2% | 391 859 | 12.2% | 298 159 | 23.6% | 30 771 | 16.0% | 10,705 | 17.2% | 3,505 | 17.2% | 9.866 | 14.3% |
| Alaska | 42 | 114 713 | 15.3% | 69 373 | 15.1% | 2 30, 1 3 3 | 1/ 2% | 50,771 | 13.4% | 3 1/7 | 6.5% | 25 105 | 25 1% | 7 651 | 14.3% |
| Тохас | 43 | 1 225 909 | 16.6% | 2 003 298 | 17.170 | 102 825 | 16.2% | 1 558 097 | 15.470 | 207.050 | 10.3% | 11 827 | 17.0% | 62 801 | 16.5% |
| South Carolina | 44 | 4,333,909 | 17.1% | 504.406 | 16.7% | 492,023 | 17.7% | 1,550,057 | 17.6% | 12 509 | 10.2% | 2 952 | 20.2% | 12 047 | 19.0% |
| South Dakota | 45 | 152 / 12 | 17.170 | 116 / 21 | 16.7% | 229,002 | 26.0% | 43,034 | 20.3% | 12,300 | 15.5% | 2,035 | 20.270 | 5 28/ | 20.0% |
| | 40 | 1 <i>32,</i> 413 017 701 | 20.0% | 612 0/7 | 22.29/ | 2, 192 ספר ספר | 16.0% | 3,370 A0 A71 | 10.2% | 1,343 | 15.4% | 20,495 1 201 | 29.4% | 12 000 | 29.4% |
| Coorgia | 47 | 2 015 777 | 20.0% | 1 169 020 | 22.3% | 233,202 570 107 | 19.0% | 40,47 I 170 060 | 19.2% | 69 021 | 10.6% | 4,504 2 80C | 21.2% | 12,909 | 20.1% |
| Arkansas | 40 | 621 701 | 20.4% | 1, 100,929 AED GE1 | 21.5% | 570,197 | 10.9% | 170,903 | 19.1% | 6 0,03 I | 14.10 | 3,090 | 21.5% | 53,702 10,470 | 20.7% |
| Aikdiisds | 49 | 031,701 | 21.5% | 400,001 | 20.6% | 0.200 | 25.0% | 40,044 | 20.5% | 0,245 | 14.1% | 3,400 | 20.4% | 10,470 | 20.3% |
| Mississinni | 50 | 403,909 803 830 | 22.5% | 449 611 | 26.2% | 9,290 314 147 | 24.0% | 200,004 | 21.5% | 6 752 | 22.5% | 2 060 | 17.4% | 7,414 | 24.0% |

^a Estimates are based on census tract level population estimates by race and ethnicity and may be potentially unreliable for race and ethnicity groups

comprising extremely small portions of the total population.

HOPE Goal



of people with food security

Calculated as the portion of people with incomes 400% FPL or greater with food security in DC, NY, RI, VT, and NJ.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



FOOD SECURITY

0.0%

0.0% 0.3%

0.5% 0.6%

0.7% 2.1%

1.7%

1.1% 1.4% 1.5% 2.5% 2.3% 3.5% 3.3% 3.0% 2.8% 4.0% 3.3% 3.6% 4.9% 4.6%

4.2% 5.6%

6.5%

4.4%

5.6%

5.5%

7.7%

5.3%

4.2% 3.6%

4.9%

4.6%

5.2%

7.6%

5.5%

5.5%

5.7%

7.1%

7.2% 6.9%

7.8%

7.0%

8.2%

6.7%

10.0%

9.9%

13.4%

14.3%

17.6%

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to have food security to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-999 | % FPL | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+9 | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 4,222 | 0.7% | 1,408 | 1.3% | 1,168 | 1.4% | 830 | 1.3% | 815 | 1.3% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New York | 2 | 188,330 | 1.0% | 70,011 | 2.4% | 57,930 | 1.8% | 39,080 | 1.4% | 21,308 | 0.9% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Rhode Island | 3 | 19,353 | 1.9% | 5,733 | 4.0% | 4,061 | 2.4% | 4,158 | 2.7% | 4,049 | 3.0% | 1,351 | 0.3 |
| Vermont | 4 | 15,891 | 2.6% | 3,709 | 5.1% | 5,289 | 5.0% | 3,571 | 3.3% | 2,190 | 2.4% | 1,134 | 0.5 |
| New Jersey | 5 | 231,120 | 2.7% | 45,173 | 4.8% | 61,725 | 5.1% | 57,645 | 4.9% | 38,715 | 3.6% | 27,862 | 0.6 |
| Pennsylvania | 6 | 392,966 | 3.2% | 119,479 | 7.2% | 109,836 | 5.1% | 85,248 | 4.0% | 46,052 | 2.5% | 32,351 | 0.7 |
| Massachusetts | 7 | 274,715 | 4.3% | 51,606 | 6.9% | 63,826 | 7.4% | 52,691 | 6.1% | 41,170 | 5.0% | 65,421 | 2.1 |
| North Dakota | 8 | 29,841 | 4.4% | 9,006 | 11.1% | 7,977 | 7.5% | 5,130 | 4.3% | 3,247 | 3.0% | 4,480 | 1.7 |
| California | 9 | 1,716,771 | 4.6% | 505,445 | 8.3% | 547,450 | 7.3% | 341,899 | 5.9% | 177,991 | 4.1% | 143,986 | 1.1 |
| Illinois | 10 | 643,088 | 5.1% | 184,845 | 10.2% | 178,711 | 8.1% | 130,014 | 6.4% | 79,749 | 4.7% | 69,769 | 1.4 |
| Nevada | 11 | 143,567 | 5.3% | 48,357 | 11.4% | 43,355 | 7.6% | 26,703 | 5.2% | 12,912 | 3.4% | 12,240 | 1.5 |
| Maryland | 12 | 317,367 | 5.5% | 59,226 | 10.3% | 72,129 | 9.4% | 65,356 | 8.3% | 48,421 | 6.6% | 72,235 | 2.5 |
| Connecticut | 13 | 201,455 | 5.8% | 36,737 | 10.1% | 48,212 | 10.5% | 42,640 | 9.3% | 33,469 | 7.4% | 40,397 | 2.3 |
| Maine | 14 | 82,003 | 6.3% | 21,021 | 11.7% | 21,634 | 8.4% | 14,184 | 6.0% | 10,422 | 5.3% | 14,743 | 3.5 |
| Utah | 15 | 194,563 | 6.9% | 51,807 | 14.4% | 55,374 | 9.9% | 37,903 | 6.4% | 21,107 | 4.7% | 28,372 | 3.3 |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 394,985 | 7.1% | 98,028 | 13.3% | 106,439 | 10.9% | 79,675 | 8.0% | 51,872 | 6.0% | 58,971 | 3.0 |
| Nebraska | 17 | 132,617 | 7.4% | 34,797 | 15.0% | 38,116 | 11.3% | 27,261 | 8.1% | 15,322 | 5.4% | 17,121 | 2.8 |
| Iowa | 18 | 248,235 | 8.3% | 64,709 | 17.3% | 61,276 | 11.5% | 50,545 | 9.0% | 30,816 | 6.4% | 40,889 | 4.0 |
| Michigan | 19 | 815,762 | 8.4% | 260,336 | 15.9% | 213,270 | 11.9% | 146,192 | 8.6% | 92,080 | 6.6% | 103,884 | 3.3 |
| Hawaii | 20 | 119,514 | 8.8% | 28,065 | 18.3% | 27,448 | 13.7% | 27,657 | 12.3% | 16,099 | 7.6% | 20,245 | 3.6 |
| Kentucky | 21 | 389,841 | 9.2% | 120,950 | 15.0% | 104,640 | 11.8% | 66,715 | 8.9% | 38,719 | 6.4% | 58,817 | 4.9 |
| Minnesota | 22 | 485,588 | 9.2% | 101,873 | 16.8% | 117,861 | 14.4% | 94,285 | 11.2% | 70,102 | 8.8% | 101,468 | 4.6 |
| Washington | 23 | 647,855 | 9.6% | 144,873 | 15.8% | 176,654 | 15.6% | 129,518 | 11.8% | 82,442 | 8.9% | 114,368 | 4.2 |
| Delaware | 24 | 92,685 | 10.4% | 17,459 | 16.3% | 24,162 | 16.4% | 16,945 | 12.0% | 13,637 | 10.3% | 20,482 | 5.6 |
| Wyoming | 25 | 58,513 | 10.4% | 13,140 | 20.1% | 13,400 | 14.0% | 11,237 | 11.7% | 6,777 | 7.6% | 13,959 | 6.5 |
| Indiana | 26 | 662,505 | 10.4% | 197,565 | 20.1% | 181,186 | 14.5% | 124,690 | 10.4% | 73,183 | 7.5% | 85,880 | 4.4 |
| Idaho | 27 | 165,189 | 10.5% | 42,972 | 17.6% | 46,742 | 12.6% | 33,212 | 10.3% | 19,416 | 8.7% | 22,847 | 5.6 |
| Oregon | 28 | 405,689 | 10.6% | 102,399 | 16.0% | 107,653 | 13.9% | 75,610 | 11.3% | 53,013 | 10.4% | 67,014 | 5.5 |
| West Virginia | 29 | 191,134 | 10.6% | 50,165 | 15.4% | 46,126 | 11.8% | 31,454 | 9.4% | 25,838 | 9.9% | 37,551 | 7.7 |
| Montana | 30 | 105,071 | 10.7% | 29,097 | 19.4% | 29,065 | 14.2% | 18,252 | 10.0% | 12,988 | 8.8% | 15,669 | 5.3 |
| South Dakota | 31 | 89,056 | 11.1% | 32,881 | 28.7% | 22,895 | 14.9% | 14,914 | 9.6% | 7,660 | 5.9% | 10,707 | 4.2 |
| Alaska | 32 | 79,279 | 11.1% | 17,301 | 24.1% | 25,629 | 22.4% | 14,797 | 14.1% | 10,009 | 9.8% | 11,543 | 3.6 |
| Ohio | 33 | 1,260,855 | 11.2% | 374,972 | 20.9% | 325,765 | 15.7% | 227,514 | 11.4% | 150,289 | 9.1% | 182,316 | 4.9 |
| Colorado | 34 | 574,580 | 11.3% | 130,865 | 19.7% | 163,373 | 18.8% | 118,177 | 14.4% | 69,072 | 9.9% | 93,093 | 4.6 |
| Virginia | 35 | 928,228 | 11.7% | 199,789 | 21.9% | 227,536 | 18.5% | 190,741 | 15.7% | 127,984 | 12.0% | 182,179 | 5.2 |
| New Hampshire | 36 | 152,172 | 11.9% | 22,571 | 19.9% | 31,511 | 17.9% | 28,602 | 14.3% | 24,020 | 12.3% | 45,469 | 7.6 |
| Florida | 37 | 2,273,822 | 12.0% | 638,057 | 20.2% | 630,498 | 15.6% | 434,601 | 12.7% | 252,772 | 9.9% | 317,894 | 5.5 |
| Arizona | 38 | 873,268 | 13.7% | 276,646 | 23.7% | 244,551 | 18.3% | 154,796 | 13.8% | 90,680 | 10.8% | 106,595 | 5.5 |
| Kansas | 39 | 401,404 | 14.3% | 105,489 | 27.3% | 110,422 | 20.8% | 83,530 | 16.3% | 47,921 | 11.4% | 54,042 | 5.7 |
| Oklahoma | 40 | 536,382 | 14.5% | 155,609 | 24.9% | 151,067 | 18.7% | 96,751 | 14.1% | 57,709 | 11.2% | 75,246 | 7.1 |
| North Carolina | 41 | 1,377,586 | 14.5% | 397,420 | 23.8% | 383,068 | 19.1% | 243,837 | 14.7% | 144,990 | 11.4% | 208,271 | 7.2 |
| Missouri | 42 | 853,320 | 14.6% | 214,878 | 23.6% | 229,421 | 19.7% | 173,358 | 16.1% | 108,117 | 12.7% | 127,545 | 6.9 |
| Alabama | 43 | 691,289 | 14.7% | 222,381 | 25.0% | 179,180 | 17.9% | 113,700 | 13.9% | 69,355 | 11.0% | 106,673 | 7.8 |
| Tennessee | 44 | 945,164 | 15.0% | 295,435 | 26.3% | 259,521 | 19.2% | 167,713 | 14.7% | 94,990 | 11.0% | 127,505 | 7.0 |
| South Carolina | 45 | 738,276 | 16.1% | 220,992 | 26.3% | 205,670 | 20.7% | 123,784 | 15.3% | 78,403 | 12.7% | 109,427 | 8.2 |
| Texas | 46 | 4,335,004 | 17.0% | 1,302,950 | 29.0% | 1,285,872 | 23.9% | 766,004 | 18.1% | 426,580 | 13.4% | 553,598 | 6.7 |
| Louisiana | 47 | 819,619 | 18.3% | 258,841 | 29.6% | 207,926 | 22.5% | 128,473 | 17.9% | 87,994 | 15.1% | 136,385 | 10.0 |
| Georgia | 48 | 1,905,667 | 19.8% | 556,590 | 31.2% | 507,273 | 25.6% | 340,935 | 20.8% | 203,546 | 16.4% | 297,322 | 9.9 |
| Arkansas | 49 | 641,078 | 22.4% | 183,017 | 33.3% | 179,594 | 26.5% | 112,493 | 21.4% | 67,235 | 18.0% | 98,739 | 13.4 |
| New Mexico | 50 | 539,697 | 26.5% | 168,891 | 39.6% | 150,937 | 33.3% | 84,610 | 25.1% | 53,918 | 21.3% | 81,341 | 14.3 |
| Mississippi | 51 | 770,482 | 26.7% | 255,386 | 39.1% | 197,200 | 29.2% | 125,850 | 24.4% | 71,728 | 19.9% | 120,319 | 17.6 |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal



of people with food security

Calculated as the portion of people with incomes 400% FPL or greater with food security in DC, NY, RI, VT, and NJ.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



ACCESS TO PRIMARY CARE

INCOME (% FPL)

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with a population-to-primary care physician ratio of less than 2,000:1 in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2014 Area Health Resource File, Health Resources and Services Administration

| RACE AND ETHNICITY State Rank Overall White Black Hispanic Asian/PI Al/AN Multiracial | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|------|---------|----------------|------------------|----------|----------|--------------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | | |
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| Hawaiiª | 6 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | | |
| Vermont | 7 | 97.9% | 97.9% | 99.2% | 98.3% | 99.5% | 95.2% | 97.3% | | | |
| Oregon | 8 | 96.8% | 96.7% | 99.1% | 96.2% | 99.2% | 95.8% | 97.7% | | | |
| Nevada | 9 | 93.8% | 91.3% | 98.9% | 96.0% | 98.9% | 77.9% | 96.6% | | | |
| Florida | 10 | 91.8% | 90.8% | 91.8% | 93.6% | 95.9% | 87.4% | 91.9% | | | |
| Washington | 11 | 91.7% | 91.8% | 97.5% | 84.1% | 98.0% | 90.0% | 94.5% | | | |
| New York | 12 | 91.5% | 86.8% | 98.0% | 98.1% | 98.9% | 84.1% | 92.5% | | | |
| Maryland | 13 | 91.5% | 89.1% | 93.4% | 95.8% | 97.1% | 85.5% | 91.1% | | | |
| Montana | 14 | 89.6% | 90.0% | 94.6% | 94.2% | 94.8% | 80.3% | 88.7% | | | |
| New Jersey | 15 | 89.2% | 85.3% | 94.8% | 93.4% | 98.0% | 86.8% | 90.7% | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 16 | 88.9% | 87.2% | 95.8% | 94.0% | 97.7% | 86.6% | 90.8% | | | |
| California | 17 | 87.7% | 88.2% | 89.8% | 84.0% | 95.5% | 80.0% | 90.5% | | | |
| vinnesota | 18 | 87.3% | 85.8% | 97.2% | 91.2% | 96.9% | 79.9% | 91.8% | | | |
| Vebraska | 19 | 86.8% | 85.7% | 97.2% | 88.2% | 96.6% | 87.9% | 92.4% | | | |
| Arizona | 20 | 86.7% | 89.1% | 89.7% | 83.2% | 93.1% | 70.9% | 89.1% | | | |
| Colorado | 21 | 82.9% | 85.0% | 90.1% | 73.5% | 85.5% | 83.3% | 88.1% | | | |
| Aichigan | 22 | 82.4% | 78.7% | 97.7% | 85.8% | 95.8% | 82.9% | 87.4% | | | |
| Jew Mexico | 23 | 81.9% | 81.5% | 79.0% | 79.6% | 92.3% | 94.2% | 85.9% | | | |
|)elaware | 24 | 81.7% | 81.8% | 79.7% | 86.5% | 89.1% | 63.8% | 71.7% | | | |
| | 25 | 81.4% | 80.7% | 93.1% | 87.2% | 88.2% | 74.1% | 83.7% | | | |
| Nisconsin | 26 | 81.3% | 80.6% | 88.7% | 78.4% | 92.8% | 75.7% | 84.7% | | | |
| South Dakota | 20 | 81.0% | 82.8% | 95.4% | 85.9% | 94.3% | 52.5% | 79.4% | | | |
| | 28 | 80.8% | 79.7% | 95.470 | 84.3% | 93.3% | 72.7% | 88.4% | | | |
| Uwa Ilinois | 20 | 79.6% | 73.1% | 93.376 | 87.6% | 93.376 | 75.7% | 82.2% | | | |
| Thio | 20 | 75.078 | 73.470 | 92.076 | 85.0% | 01 7% | 70.9% | 02.370 02.370 | | | |
| JIIIO Virginia | 21 | 70.5% | 73.170 | 94.270 75.59/ | 76.7% | 91.770 | 7 9.0 % 6 9.0 % | 79.00/ | | | |
| Virginia | 21 | 7 3.1% | 75.5% 75.7% | 75.5% 64.0% | 70.7% | 00.0% | 00.5% 72.0% | 70.0% | | | |
| | 32 | 74.5% | 75.7% | 04.0% | 65.9% | 03.0% | 72.0% | 70.4% 92.10/ | | | |
| exds | 22 | 75.1% | 74.0% | 07.0% | 72.0% | 94.7% | 70.5% | 02.1% | | | |
| | 34 | 73.4% | 15.2% | 93.7% | 12.9% | 93.3% | 29.9% | 79.6% | | | |
| | 35 | 72.1% | 72.00 | 92.0% | 02.0% | 91.0% | 71.0% | 70.2% | | | |
| South Carolina | 30 | 70.6% | 72.6% | 05.0% | 74.9% | 77.0% | 53.2% | 69.0% | | | |
| | 37 | 70.3% | 69.0% | 72.1% | 75.1% | 90.1% | 33.4% C2.5% | 73.1% | | | |
| eorgia- | 30 | 68.4% | 62.3% | 75.4% | 74.7% | 84.5% | 63.5% | / 1.6% | | | |
| viapama Kantuala d | 39 | 67.0% | 65.4% | 70.5% | 68.4% | 78.8% | 56.7% | 68.0% | | | |
| ептиску» | 40 | 66.3% | 64.0% | 82.1% | 74.5% | 88.1% | 66.7% | /3.4% | | | |
| ennessee | 41 | 66.0% | 61.6% | 83.2% | 71.7% | 78.6% | 60.8% | 64.6% | | | |
| viissouri | 42 | 65.0% | 60.4% | 90.6% | 75.0% | 82.2% | 56.7% | 69.9% | | | |
| dano | 43 | 64.6% | 67.1% | 79.6% | 42.9% | 85.0% | 65.6% | 66.6% | | | |
| Arkansas | 44 | 64.3% | 62.7% | 63.7% | 77.3% | 84.9% | 70.7% | 67.6% | | | |
| Vest Virginia | 45 | 63.7% | 63.6% | 64.3% | 53.0% | 78.7% | 66.2% | 72.5% | | | |
| Oklahoma | 46 | 62.3% | 59.7% | 83.7% | 74.3% | 84.6% | 46.8% | 57.9% | | | |
| ouisiana | 47 | 61.6% | 56.3% | 70.1% | 68.1% | 80.8% | 33.2% | 58.3% | | | |
| Vississippi | 48 | 50.5% | 49.5% | 51.0% | 53.8% | 72.3% | 61.5% | 58.1% | | | |
| Jtah | 49 | 48.0% | 45.6% | 60.8% | 56.5% | 67.2% | 60.1% | 46.5% | | | |
| New Hampshire ^c | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% | | | |
| <i>N</i> vomina ^c | l | | 68.1% | 81.3% | 64.1% | | 91.8% | 70.5% | | | |

| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
|---------------------------|------|---------|--------|----------------|------------------|----------|----------------|
| Connecticut | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Hawaii ^a | 7 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Vermont | 8 | 97.8% | 97.8% | 97.4% | 97.6% | 97.8% | 98.1% |
| Oregon | 9 | 96.9% | 96.4% | 96.4% | 96.8% | 96.6% | 97.5% |
| Nevada | 10 | 93.9% | 94.4% | 93.9% | 94.0% | 93.1% | 94.0% |
| Florida | 11 | 92.0% | 90.7% | 91.2% | 91.4% | 91.8% | 93.9% |
| Washington | 12 | 91.7% | 89.5% | 88.8% | 90.3% | 91.5% | 94.3% |
| New York | 13 | 91.7% | 92.6% | 90.7% | 89.6% | 89.8% | 93.1% |
| Maryland | 14 | 91.5% | 91.7% | 91.8% | 91.4% | 91.1% | 91.6% |
| Montana | 15 | 89.5% | 89.1% | 88.5% | 89.0% | 89.8% | 90.6% |
| New Jersev | 16 | 89.3% | 88.6% | 88.1% | 87.8% | 88.2% | 90.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 17 | 88.9% | 88.8% | 86.7% | 87.1% | 87.9% | 91.2% |
| California | 18 | 87.8% | 85.0% | 85.3% | 86.4% | 87.6% | 91.2% |
| Minnesota | 19 | 87.3% | 88.2% | 86.0% | 85.4% | 85.5% | 89.0% |
| Arizona | 20 | 87.1% | 85.9% | 84 3% | 86.1% | 86.9% | 90.5% |
| Nebraska | 21 | 86.8% | 88.1% | 85.8% | 85.6% | 85.9% | 87.9% |
| Colorado | 22 | 82.9% | 81.8% | 79.0% | 80.0% | 81.9% | 86.4% |
| Michigan | 23 | 82.3% | 85.2% | 80.8% | 80.2% | 80.4% | 83.8% |
| New Mexico | 24 | 82.0% | 81.9% | 80.9% | 80.4% | 81.1% | 84.3% |
| | 25 | 81.8% | 80.5% | 78.2% | 80.1% | 80.2% | 84.9% |
| Wisconsin | 25 | 81.4% | 82.0% | 80.7% | 80.0% | 80.4% | 82.5% |
| Alacka | 20 | 81.3% | 77.8% | 70.0% | 80.0% | 81.3% | 82.0% |
| South Dakota | 28 | 80.8% | 74.7% | 78.6% | 80.5% | 82.8% | 84.0% |
| | 20 | 80.7% | 82.8% | 78.5% | 78.8% | 79.5% | 82.8% |
| Illinois | 20 | 70.8% | 81.8% | 78.8% | 70.076 | 79.576 | 81.3% |
| Ohio | 21 | 75.6% | 01.076 | 70.076 | 77.570 77.570 | 77.470 | 70.7% |
| Virginia | 22 | 70.078 | 74.2% | 74.470 | 73.776 | 74.576 | 78.6% |
| Virginia Kansas | 22 | 7/ 3% | 74.270 | 71.470 | 71.0% | 73.0% | 70.078 |
| | 24 | 74.576 | 60.10/ | 70.376 | 71.070 | 73.076 | 19.070 |
| Texas | 24 | 74.0% | 69.6% | 70.4% | 72.5% | 74.4% | 00.4% 75.4% |
| | 35 | 75.1% | 00.0% | / 1./ % | 72.0% | 72.5% | 75.4% |
| Indiana Couth Coroline | 30 | 72.3% | 74.6% | 69.6% C0.5% | 69.0% | 70.4% | 75.9% |
| South Carolina | 37 | 70.5% | 66.6% | 69.5% | 70.3% | 70.0% | 72.1% |
| | 30 | 70.4% | 60.5% | 66.2% | 67.9% | 70.1% | 77.2% |
| Georgia | 39 | 68.5% | 69.0% | 66.4% | 65.7% | 66.1% | 72.0% |
| Wyoming | 40 | 68.3% | 70.2% | 70.3% | 68.3% | 67.8% | 67.0% |
| Alabama | 41 | 67.2% | 63.5% | 64.0% | 65.3% | 67.6% | 72.9% |
| Kentucky | 42 | 66.2% | 62.5% | 61.8% | 64.4% | 66.4% | 73.1% |
| Tennessee | 43 | 66.1% | 66.4% | 62.4% | 63.3% | 64.4% | 71.1% |
| Missouri | 44 | 65.0% | 68.0% | 63.5% | 62.1% | 63.0% | 67.3% |
| Arkansas | 45 | 64.4% | 63.9% | 62.8% | 63.3% | 63.3% | 67.5% |
| Idaho | 46 | 64.4% | 61.3% | 59.8% | 62.4% | 65.3% | 71.4% |
| West Virginia | 47 | 63.7% | 63.2% | 62.1% | 63.6% | 63.7% | 65.5% |
| Oklahoma | 48 | 62.2% | 63.2% | 60.4% | 60.1% | 61.0% | 65.0% |
| Louisiana | 49 | 61.8% | 63.8% | 60.1% | 60.7% | 60.0% | 63.0% |
| Mississippi | 50 | 50.6% | 47.5% | 47.1% | 50.5% | 52.2% | 56.5% |
| Utah | 51 | 48.1% | 49.8% | 47.7% | 44.5% | 46.5% | 50.9% |

^a State rate displayed as 100% due to rounding.

^b Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^c Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with access to primary care

All people in CT, DC, HI, ME, MA, NH, and RI live in counties with access to primary care.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



ACCESS TO PRIMARY CARE

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with access to primary care to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | W | nite | Bl | ack | Hisp | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii ^a | 6 | 73 | 0.0% | 32 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 4 | 0.0% | 32 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 5 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 7 | 13,202 | 2.1% | 12,541 | 2.1% | 49 | 0.8% | 175 | 1.7% | 41 | 0.5% | 90 | 4.8% | 306 | 2.7% |
| Oregon | 8 | 124,315 | 3.2% | 100,041 | 3.3% | 584 | 0.9% | 17,985 | 3.8% | 1,303 | 0.8% | 1,575 | 4.2% | 2,827 | 2.3% |
| Nevada | 9 | 170,002 | 6.2% | 127,089 | 8.7% | 2,533 | 1.1% | 29,732 | 4.0% | 2,413 | 1.1% | 5,375 | 22.1% | 2,860 | 3.4% |
| Florida | 10 | 1,589,717 | 8.2% | 1,006,511 | 9.2% | 244,687 | 8.2% | 287,168 | 6.4% | 20,070 | 4.1% | 5,327 | 12.6% | 25,954 | 8.1% |
| Washington | 11 | 571,533 | 8.3% | 401,723 | 8.2% | 6,126 | 2.5% | 129,062 | 15.9% | 10,832 | 2.0% | 8,247 | 10.0% | 15,543 | 5.5% |
| New York | 12 | 1,654,185 | 8.5% | 1,481,853 | 13.2% | 56,574 | 2.0% | 67,345 | 1.9% | 16,161 | 1.1% | 7,519 | 15.9% | 24,733 | 7.5% |
| Maryland | 13 | 500,632 | 8.5% | 342,900 | 10.9% | 112,107 | 6.6% | 21,510 | 4.2% | 9,949 | 2.9% | 1,754 | 14.5% | 12,412 | 8.9% |
| Montana | 14 | 104,925 | 10.4% | 87,574 | 10.0% | 241 | 0.0% | 1,845 | 5.8% | 369 | 5.2% | 12,422 | 19.7% | 2,474 | 11.3% |
| New Jersey | 15 | 950,273 | 10.8% | 752,811 | 14.7% | 58,500 | 5.2% | 109,562 | 6.6% | 15,640 | 2.0% | 1,369 | 13.2% | 12,391 | 9.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 16 | 1,413,799 | 11.1% | 1,280,558 | 12.8% | 56,469 | 4.2% | 47,399 | 6.0% | 8,844 | 2.3% | 2,044 | 13.4% | 18,485 | 9.2% |
| California | 17 | 4,667,624 | 12.3% | 1,760,562 | 11.8% | 220,014 | 10.2% | 2,324,136 | 16.0% | 234,822 | 4.5% | 29,196 | 20.0% | 98,894 | 9.5% |
| Minnesota | 18 | 685,423 | 12.7% | 626,435 | 14.2% | 7,900 | 2.8% | 23,274 | 8.8% | 7,251 | 3.1% | 10,485 | 20.1% | 10,078 | 8.2% |
| Nebraska | 19 | 244,593 | 13.2% | 215,511 | 14.3% | 2,357 | 2.8% | 21,356 | 11.8% | 1,242 | 3.4% | 1,557 | 12.1% | 2,570 | 7.6% |
| Arizona | 20 | 870,506 | 13.3% | 408,440 | 10.9% | 26,539 | 10.3% | 331,853 | 16.8% | 13,733 | 6.9% | 76,440 | 29.1% | 13,501 | 10.9% |
| Colorado | 21 | 888.466 | 17.1% | 540,214 | 15.0% | 19.602 | 9.9% | 287,984 | 26.5% | 21,721 | 14.5% | 4,741 | 16.7% | 14,204 | 11.9% |
| Michigan | 22 | 1,742,701 | 17.6% | 1,600,207 | 21.3% | 31,038 | 2.3% | 64,810 | 14.2% | 10,924 | 4.2% | 8,259 | 17.1% | 27,463 | 12.6% |
| New Mexico | 23 | 376.807 | 18.1% | 152,659 | 18.5% | 7.880 | 21.0% | 199.462 | 20.4% | 2,159 | 7.7% | 10,305 | 5.8% | 4,342 | 14.1% |
| Delaware | 24 | 167,136 | 18.3% | 107,420 | 18.2% | 39,261 | 20.3% | 10.648 | 13.5% | 3,459 | 10.9% | 875 | 36.2% | 5,473 | 28.3% |
| Alaska | 25 | 133,870 | 18.6% | 88,382 | 19.3% | 1,572 | 6.6% | 5,772 | 12.8% | 5,721 | 11.8% | 24,049 | 25.9% | 8,374 | 16.3% |
| Wisconsin | 26 | 1,069,714 | 18.7% | 917,548 | 19.4% | 39,527 | 11.3% | 76,773 | 21.6% | 9,852 | 7.2% | 11,094 | 24.3% | 14,920 | 15.3% |
| South Dakota | 27 | 155.565 | 19.0% | 120,177 | 17.2% | 563 | 4.6% | 3,720 | 14.1% | 550 | 5.7% | 26.816 | 47.5% | 3,739 | 20.6% |
| lowa | 28 | 590.088 | 19.2% | 548,282 | 20.3% | 4,411 | 4.7% | 25,639 | 15.7% | 4,109 | 6.7% | 2,070 | 26.3% | 5,577 | 11.6% |
| Illinois | 29 | 2.622.310 | 20.4% | 2,155,229 | 26.6% | 131,383 | 7.2% | 259,384 | 12.4% | 36,379 | 5.8% | 3,573 | 24.3% | 36,362 | 17.7% |
| Ohio | 30 | 2,707,970 | 23.5% | 2,507,600 | 26.9% | 80,014 | 5.8% | 56,953 | 15.0% | 17,369 | 8.3% | 3,432 | 20.2% | 42,602 | 17.8% |
| Virginia | 31 | 2,032,346 | 24.9% | 1,386,494 | 26.5% | 379,888 | 24.5% | 160,025 | 23.3% | 54,462 | 11.4% | 5,469 | 31.7% | 46,008 | 22.0% |
| Kansas | 32 | 740,629 | 25.7% | 543,200 | 24.3% | 58,599 | 36.0% | 104,589 | 33.1% | 10,476 | 14.2% | 5,597 | 28.0% | 18,168 | 23.6% |
| Texas | 33 | 6,865,421 | 26.3% | 2,934,820 | 25.4% | 372,982 | 12.4% | 3,413,513 | 34.3% | 56,514 | 5.3% | 19,479 | 29.5% | 68,113 | 17.9% |
| North Dakota | 34 | 187,764 | 26.6% | 153,602 | 24.8% | 659 | 6.3% | 4,941 | 27.1% | 555 | 6.7% | 25,347 | 70.1% | 2,660 | 20.4% |
| Indiana | 35 | 1,820,592 | 27.9% | 1,663,877 | 31.5% | 47,308 | 8.0% | 70,717 | 17.2% | 9,445 | 8.2% | 3,540 | 29.0% | 25,705 | 21.8% |
| South Carolina | 36 | 1,389,398 | 29.4% | 828,349 | 27.4% | 453,124 | 35.0% | 62,372 | 25.1% | 14,908 | 23.0% | 6,628 | 46.8% | 24,017 | 31.0% |
| North Carolina | 37 | 2,885,608 | 29.7% | 1,950,985 | 31.0% | 562,508 | 27.3% | 228,252 | 26.9% | 23,326 | 9.9% | 70,783 | 66.6% | 49,754 | 26.9% |
| Georgia ^b | 38 | 3,125,742 | 31.6% | 2,051,781 | 37.7% | 740,457 | 24.6% | 226,865 | 25.3% | 53,665 | 15.5% | 6,667 | 36.5% | 46,307 | 28.4% |
| Alabama | 39 | 1.587.188 | 33.0% | 1,109,832 | 34.6% | 372.074 | 29.5% | 60.618 | 31.6% | 12,526 | 21.2% | 10.016 | 43.3% | 22,122 | 32.0% |
| Kentucky ^b | 40 | 1,477,809 | 33.7% | 1,352,195 | 36.0% | 60,854 | 17.9% | 35,544 | 25.5% | 6,521 | 11.9% | 2,457 | 33.3% | 20,238 | 26.6% |
| Tennessee | 41 | 2,191,196 | 34.0% | 1,857,786 | 38.4% | 180,720 | 16.8% | 87,681 | 28.3% | 21,532 | 21.4% | 5,354 | 39.2% | 38,123 | 35.4% |
| Missouri | 42 | 2,107,465 | 35.0% | 1,920,304 | 39.6% | 64,637 | 9.4% | 56,599 | 25.0% | 18,987 | 17.8% | 9,390 | 43.3% | 37,548 | 30.1% |
| Idaho | 43 | 566.462 | 35.4% | 438,770 | 32.9% | 1.771 | 0.0% | 106.490 | 57.1% | 3,425 | 15.0% | 5,779 | 34.4% | 10,227 | 33.4% |
| Arkansas | 44 | 1.051.664 | 35.7% | 813,125 | 37.3% | 165,197 | 36.3% | 45.047 | 22.7% | 6.673 | 15.1% | 4,892 | 29.3% | 16,730 | 32.4% |
| West Virginia | 45 | 671.605 | 36.3% | 626.057 | 36.4% | 20.829 | 35.7% | 11.304 | 47.0% | 2.876 | 21.3% | 976 | 33.8% | 9,563 | 27.5% |
| Oklahoma | 46 | 1,439.628 | 37.7% | 1,042.259 | 40.3% | 44.391 | 16.3% | 91.855 | 25.7% | 11.495 | 15.4% | 139.888 | 53.2% | 109.740 | 42.1% |
| Louisiana | 47 | 1,764.517 | 38.4% | 1,199.985 | 43.7% | 438.591 | 29.9% | 67.242 | 31.9% | 14,714 | 19.2% | 17.036 | 66.8% | 26.949 | 41.7% |
| Mississippi | 48 | 1,475.254 | 49.5% | 868.317 | 50.5% | 543.295 | 49.0% | 38.801 | 46.2% | 7.850 | 27.7% | 4.583 | 38.5% | 12.408 | 41.9% |
| Utah | 49 | 1,483.843 | 52.0% | 1,240.652 | 54.4% | 11.267 | 39.2% | 164.963 | 43.5% | 28.056 | 32.8% | 11.212 | 39.9% | 27.693 | 53.5% |
| New Hampshire ^c | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^c | | | | 155.723 | 31.9% | 1.078 | 18.7% | 19.456 | 35.9% | | | 927 | 8.2% | 3.077 | 29.5% |

^a State Percent to Goal overall and for some race and ethnic groups displayed as 0.0% due to rounding.

^b Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^c Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY



of people live in counties with access to primary care

All people in CT, DC, HI, ME, MA, NH, and RI live in counties with access to primary care.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



ACCESS TO PRIMARY CARE

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with access to primary care to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by income.

| | | Overall | | 0-99% FPL | | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+9 | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Connecticut | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Maine | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Rhode Island | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Hawaii ^a | 7 | 68 | 0.0% | 12 | 0.0% | 5 | 0.0% | 4 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 47 | 0.0 |
| Vermont | 8 | 13,170 | 2.2% | 1,596 | 2.2% | 2,753 | 2.6% | 2,584 | 2.4% | 1,968 | 2.2% | 4,269 | 1.9 |
| Oregon | 9 | 120,349 | 3.1% | 22,945 | 3.6% | 27,577 | 3.6% | 21,587 | 3.2% | 17,350 | 3.4% | 30,890 | 2.5 |
| Nevada | 10 | 166,043 | 6.1% | 23,850 | 5.6% | 34,938 | 6.1% | 31,000 | 6.0% | 26,224 | 6.9% | 50,031 | 6.0 |
| Florida | 11 | 1,507,608 | 8.0% | 294,817 | 9.3% | 358,073 | 8.8% | 296,049 | 8.6% | 208,801 | 8.2% | 349,868 | 6.1 |
| Washington | 12 | 559,809 | 8.3% | 96,049 | 10.5% | 127,119 | 11.2% | 105,849 | 9.7% | 78,284 | 8.5% | 152,508 | 5.7 |
| New York | 13 | 1,588,322 | 8.3% | 221,334 | 7.4% | 299,743 | 9.3% | 293,452 | 10.4% | 245,728 | 10.2% | 528,065 | 6.9 |
| Maryland | 14 | 486,485 | 8.5% | 47,536 | 8.3% | 62,572 | 8.2% | 67,967 | 8.6% | 65,556 | 8.9% | 242,854 | 8.4 |
| Montana | 15 | 102,895 | 10.5% | 16,390 | 10.9% | 23,541 | 11.5% | 20,070 | 11.0% | 15,092 | 10.2% | 27,802 | 9.4 |
| New Jersey | 16 | 928,849 | 10.7% | 106,970 | 11.4% | 143,184 | 11.9% | 142,458 | 12.2% | 126,458 | 11.8% | 409,779 | 9.5 |
| Pennsylvania | 17 | 1,369,084 | 11.1% | 186,155 | 11.2% | 283,538 | 13.3% | 275,315 | 12.9% | 218,245 | 12.1% | 405,831 | 8.8 |
| California | 18 | 4,543,377 | 12.2% | 918,018 | 15.0% | 1,097,951 | 14.7% | 796,386 | 13.6% | 546,316 | 12.4% | 1,184,706 | 8.8 |
| Minnesota | 19 | 666,227 | 12.7% | 71,587 | 11.8% | 114,512 | 14.0% | 123,402 | 14.6% | 114,837 | 14.5% | 241,889 | 11.0 |
| Arizona | 20 | 825,526 | 12.9% | 164,460 | 14.1% | 210,314 | 15.7% | 155,878 | 13.9% | 110,537 | 13.1% | 184,337 | 9.5 |
| Nebraska | 21 | 238,118 | 13.2% | 27,518 | 11.9% | 47,918 | 14.2% | 48,494 | 14.4% | 39,852 | 14.1% | 74,336 | 12.1 |
| Colorado | 22 | 869,653 | 17.1% | 120,767 | 18.2% | 181,975 | 21.0% | 164,486 | 20.0% | 125,542 | 18.1% | 276,883 | 13.6 |
| Michigan | 23 | 1,706,684 | 17.7% | 241,988 | 14.8% | 343,941 | 19.2% | 335,457 | 19.8% | 272,475 | 19.6% | 512,823 | 16.2 |
| New Mexico | 24 | 367,172 | 18.0% | 77,004 | 18.1% | 86,785 | 19.1% | 66,088 | 19.6% | 47,953 | 18.9% | 89,342 | 15.7 |
| Delaware | 25 | 162,184 | 18.2% | 20,938 | 19.5% | 32,028 | 21.8% | 28,134 | 19.9% | 26,136 | 19.8% | 54,948 | 15.1 |
| Wisconsin | 26 | 1,037,868 | 18.6% | 132,837 | 18.0% | 188,570 | 19.3% | 198,856 | 20.0% | 170,185 | 19.6% | 347,420 | 17.5 |
| Alaska | 27 | 131,745 | 18.7% | 15,419 | 22.2% | 22,469 | 20.1% | 20,753 | 20.0% | 18,975 | 18.7% | 54,129 | 17.0 |
| South Dakota | 28 | 151,772 | 19.2% | 27,151 | 25.3% | 32,212 | 21.4% | 29,901 | 19.5% | 22,237 | 17.2% | 40,271 | 16.0 |
| Iowa | 29 | 574,122 | 19.3% | 64,434 | 17.2% | 114,397 | 21.5% | 119,239 | 21.2% | 98,650 | 20.5% | 177,402 | 17.2 |
| Illinois | 30 | 2,537,768 | 20.2% | 328,671 | 18.2% | 465,351 | 21.2% | 456,419 | 22.5% | 387,090 | 22.6% | 900,237 | 18.7 |
| Ohio | 31 | 2,634,378 | 23.4% | 400,052 | 22.3% | 530,441 | 25.6% | 527,544 | 26.3% | 422,785 | 25.5% | 753,556 | 20.3 |
| Virginia | 32 | 1,965,110 | 24.8% | 236,077 | 25.8% | 351,284 | 28.6% | 344,246 | 28.4% | 281,012 | 26.4% | 752,491 | 21.4 |
| Kansas | 33 | 718,309 | 25.7% | 114,736 | 29.7% | 156,678 | 29.5% | 144,542 | 28.2% | 110,578 | 26.2% | 191,775 | 20.2 |
| Texas | 34 | 6,617,789 | 26.0% | 1,434,586 | 31.9% | 1,589,581 | 29.6% | 1,168,973 | 27.7% | 812,891 | 25.6% | 1,611,758 | 19.6 |
| North Dakota | 35 | 182,902 | 26.9% | 25,359 | 31.4% | 30,046 | 28.3% | 32,765 | 27.2% | 29,905 | 27.7% | 64,827 | 24.6 |
| Indiana | 36 | 1,756,363 | 27.7% | 250,259 | 25.4% | 379,195 | 30.4% | 371,095 | 31.0% | 289,468 | 29.6% | 466,346 | 24.1 |
| South Carolina | 37 | 1,353,309 | 29.5% | 262,117 | 31.2% | 302,632 | 30.5% | 240,099 | 29.7% | 185,614 | 30.0% | 362,847 | 27.3 |
| North Carolina | 38 | 2,808,014 | 29.6% | 558,653 | 33.5% | 676,964 | 33.8% | 534,094 | 32.1% | 380,740 | 29.9% | 657,563 | 22.8 |
| Georgia | 39 | 3,040,470 | 31.5% | 552,245 | 31.0% | 666,586 | 33.6% | 561,396 | 34.3% | 421,200 | 33.9% | 839,043 | 28.0 |
| Wyoming | 40 | 177,971 | 31.7% | 19,439 | 29.8% | 28,371 | 29.7% | 30,413 | 31.7% | 28,689 | 32.2% | 71,059 | 33.0 |
| Alabama | 41 | 1,541,287 | 32.8% | 324,547 | 36.5% | 359,393 | 36.0% | 282,775 | 34.7% | 203,832 | 32.4% | 370,740 | 27.1 |
| Kentucky | 42 | 1,434,623 | 33.8% | 301,799 | 37.5% | 338,929 | 38.2% | 266,380 | 35.6% | 202,648 | 33.6% | 324,867 | 26.9 |
| Tennessee | 43 | 2,134,337 | 33.9% | 376,994 | 33.6% | 508,547 | 37.6% | 418,560 | 36.7% | 306,742 | 35.6% | 523,494 | 28.9 |
| Missouri | 44 | 2,043,674 | 35.0% | 292,340 | 32.0% | 423,607 | 36.5% | 409,319 | 37.9% | 315,543 | 37.0% | 602,865 | 32.7 |
| Arkansas | 45 | 1,019,582 | 35.6% | 198,570 | 36.1% | 252,347 | 37.2% | 192,367 | 36.7% | 136,983 | 36.7% | 239,315 | 32.5 |
| Idaho | 46 | 558,832 | 35.6% | 94,657 | 38.7% | 148,969 | 40.2% | 121,250 | 37.6% | 77,510 | 34.7% | 116,446 | 28.6 |
| West Virginia | 47 | 652,806 | 36.3% | 120,051 | 36.8% | 147,601 | 37.9% | 121,513 | 36.4% | 94,487 | 36.3% | 169,154 | 34.5 |
| Oklahoma | 48 | 1,399,571 | 37.8% | 230,320 | 36.8% | 320,547 | 39.6% | 274,436 | 39.9% | 201,858 | 39.0% | 372,410 | 35.0 |
| Louisiana | 49 | 1,708,721 | 38.2% | 317,046 | 36.2% | 367,789 | 39.9% | 282,886 | 39.3% | 234,009 | 40.0% | 506,991 | 37.0 |
| Mississippi | 50 | 1,425,018 | 49.4% | 343,111 | 52.5% | 357,831 | 52.9% | 255,383 | 49.5% | 171,948 | 47.8% | 296,745 | 43.5 |
| Utah | 51 | 1,460,148 | 51.9% | 180,116 | 50.2% | 292,877 | 52.3% | 327,945 | 55.5% | 238,828 | 53.5% | 420,382 | 49.1 |

^a State Percent to Goal overall and for some income groups displayed as 0.0% due to rounding.

0.0%

0.0% 0.0%

0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

1.9% 2.5% 6.0% 6.1% 5.7% 6.9% 8.4% 9.4% 9.5% 8.8% 8.8% 11.0% 9.5% 12.1%

13.6%

16.2%

15.7%

15.1%

17.5%

17.0%

16.0%

17.2%

18.7%

20.3%

21.4%

20.2%

19.6%

24.6%

24.1%

27.3%

22.8%

28.0%

33.0% 27.1% 26.9%

28.9%

32.7%

32.5%

28.6%

34.5%

35.0%

37.0%

43.5% 49 1%

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with access to primary care

All people in CT, DC, HI, ME, MA, NH, and RI live in counties with access to primary care.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



ACCESS TO PSYCHIATRIC CARE

Tables show the portion of people living in counties with a population-to-psychiatrist ratio of less than 30,000:1 in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Source: 2014 Area Health Resource File, Health Resources and Services Administration

| RACE AND ETHNICITY State Rank Overall White Black Hispanic Asian/PI Al/AN Multiracial | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|------|---------|--------|--------|------------------|----------|--------|-------------|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | |
| Delaware | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 99.8% | 99.8% | 99.8% | 99.9% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 99.6% | | |
| New Jersey | 5 | 99.3% | 99.0% | 99.2% | 99.7% | 99.9% | 99.2% | 99.3% | | |
| alifornia | 6 | 97.4% | 96.9% | 98.5% | 97.1% | 99.2% | 91.9% | 97.8% | | |
| Connecticut | 7 | 96.7% | 96.0% | 99.3% | 97.6% | 99.0% | 97.1% | 96.7% | | |
| lew York | 8 | 94.4% | 91.3% | 98.6% | 99.0% | 99.4% | 87.0% | 95.5% | | |
| lorida | 9 | 92.3% | 90.9% | 94.6% | 93.6% | 96.2% | 88.0% | 92.9% | | |
| levada | 10 | 91.0% | 87.1% | 98.5% | 94.5% | 98.5% | 66.6% | 94.3% | | |
| larvland | 11 | 90.8% | 88.2% | 93.3% | 95.5% | 95.9% | 85.7% | 89.7% | | |
| ennsylvania | 12 | 88.8% | 86.5% | 98.0% | 96.7% | 98.0% | 88.6% | 92.4% | | |
| hode Island | 13 | 87.9% | 85.3% | 96.6% | 97.5% | 92.8% | 72.5% | 93.2% | | |
| ermont | 14 | 87.4% | 87.2% | 94.4% | 89.9% | 94 7% | 80.4% | 84.8% | | |
| laska | 15 | 86.9% | 93.3% | 95.1% | 93.0% | 89.8% | 48.4% | 88.5% | | |
| olorado | 16 | 85.8% | 85.6% | 94 5% | 83.1% | 93.1% | 83.4% | 91.3% | | |
| rizona | 17 | 83.7% | 86.4% | 89.1% | 81 5% | 92.1% | 18 5% | 86.4% | | |
| /achington | 18 | 82.7% | 83.6% | 95.2% | 63.5% | 96.3% | 67.3% | 80.3% | | |
| ragon | 10 | 90.6% | 70,7% | 93.270 | 91.2% | 90.378 | E7 0% | 09.370 | | |
| lingia | 19 | 77.0% | 79.770 | 95.0% | 01.570 | 94.370 | 74.69/ | 02.070 | | |
| IIIIOIS Ieur Merrice | 20 | 77.9% | 70.1% | 09.070 | 92.370 75.39/ | 95.570 | 96.99/ | 19.5/0 | | |
| | 21 | 77.9% | 70.1% | 02.5% | 15.2% | 91.4% | 00.0% | 04.5% | | |
| Suth Carolina | 22 | 76.7% | 78.1% | / 1.0% | 82.9% | 87.0% | 62.1% | 80.2% | | |
| laine | 23 | 76.3% | 76.3% | 82.2% | 77.2% | 85.4% | 69.7% | 66.3% | | |
| exas | 24 | 74.3% | 72.2% | 86.5% | 70.7% | 93.7% | 70.7% | 82.9% | | |
| linnesota | 25 | 13.1% | /1.3% | 93.8% | 79.0% | 90.6% | 49.3% | 81.5% | | |
| lichigan | 26 | 72.7% | 68.8% | 90.0% | 76.0% | 90.3% | 50.2% | 76.3% | | |
| hio | 27 | 71.0% | 67.2% | 91.2% | 80.3% | 87.3% | 72.0% | 76.0% | | |
| lisconsin | 28 | 70.9% | 67.9% | 93.2% | 82.5% | 84.7% | 61.1% | 78.1% | | |
| lontana | 29 | 70.6% | 72.3% | 83.1% | 76.4% | 80.8% | 41.3% | 73.1% | | |
| irginia | 30 | 69.2% | 66.5% | 70.6% | 73.0% | 87.4% | 64.9% | 72.0% | | |
| lorth Carolina | 31 | 68.9% | 65.6% | 74.4% | 73.0% | 88.7% | 74.7% | 73.5% | | |
| ndiana | 32 | 68.0% | 63.4% | 93.9% | 81.0% | 87.8% | 64.5% | 78.6% | | |
| ennessee | 33 | 67.4% | 62.2% | 86.7% | 76.4% | 87.6% | 60.9% | 64.3% | | |
| eorgiaª | 34 | 66.6% | 60.0% | 73.8% | 74.8% | 83.9% | 62.6% | 73.3% | | |
| lorth Dakota | 35 | 64.1% | 63.7% | 88.9% | 64.0% | 88.0% | 55.3% | 73.1% | | |
| ansas | 36 | 64.1% | 61.4% | 83.3% | 68.2% | 86.3% | 54.9% | 67.7% | | |
| lissouri | 37 | 62.9% | 57.8% | 91.4% | 71.8% | 81.3% | 56.5% | 69.6% | | |
| aho | 38 | 62.7% | 64.5% | 80.4% | 46.1% | 80.8% | 70.0% | 65.2% | | |
| labama | 39 | 62.0% | 58.5% | 70.3% | 61.0% | 82.7% | 46.8% | 63.2% | | |
| ebraska | 40 | 62.0% | 59.8% | 93.1% | 59.5% | 88.2% | 35.3% | 75.9% | | |
| ouisiana | 41 | 60.7% | 56.6% | 66.6% | 69.6% | 79.5% | 38.9% | 57.8% | | |
| /est Virginia | 42 | 59.9% | 58.7% | 74.4% | 75.5% | 84.6% | 59.0% | 75.0% | | |
| klahoma | 43 | 58.9% | 56.2% | 83.4% | 71.7% | 80.7% | 40.9% | 54.1% | | |
| entucky ^a | 44 | 56.6% | 53.1% | 81.5% | 72.4% | 85.5% | 60.1% | 67.8% | | |
| tah | 45 | 55.6% | 53.8% | 71.9% | 62.1% | 75.3% | 34.5% | 57.5% | | |
| outh Dakota | 46 | 52.8% | 53.7% | 81.3% | 60.6% | 60.6% | 27.8% | 58.2% | | |
| wa | 47 | 51.0% | 50.2% | 71.0% | 44.8% | 66.3% | 34.0% | 59.6% | | |
| rkansas | 48 | 49.1% | 47.0% | 55.7% | 53.0% | 66.6% | 44.0% | 51.9% | | |
| lississippi | 49 | 40.6% | 38.8% | 43.1% | 38.5% | 61.1% | 16.2% | 44.6% | | |
| lew Hampshire ^b | | | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | | 100.0% | | |
| Woming ^b | | | 65.2% | 82.8% | 68.2% | | Q1 0% | 70.0% | | |
| yoning | | | 05.2% | 05.0% | 00.2% | | 51.070 | 10.0% | | |

| | | | | INCOME (% FF | PL) | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% |
| Delaware | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% |
| Massachusetts | 5 | 99.8% | 99.9% | 99.9% | 99.8% | 99.8% | 99.8% |
| New Jersey | 6 | 99.3% | 99.1% | 99.2% | 99.2% | 99.1% | 99.4% |
| California | 7 | 97.5% | 96.6% | 96.7% | 97.2% | 97.5% | 98.4% |
| Connecticut | 8 | 96.8% | 96.5% | 96.1% | 96.0% | 95.6% | 97.5% |
| New York | 9 | 94.6% | 94.8% | 93.8% | 93.2% | 93.2% | 95.8% |
| Florida | 10 | 92.5% | 91.5% | 91.5% | 91.9% | 92.2% | 94.2% |
| Nevada | 11 | 91.1% | 92.4% | 91.6% | 91.3% | 90.0% | 90.4% |
| Maryland | 12 | 90.7% | 92.6% | 92.5% | 91.5% | 89.8% | 89.9% |
| Pennsylvania | 13 | 88.9% | 89.0% | 86.9% | 87.0% | 88.0% | 91.0% |
| Rhode Island | 14 | 88.1% | 92.1% | 92.6% | 89.9% | 87.9% | 84.2% |
| Vermont | 15 | 87.1% | 87.5% | 85.7% | 85.0% | 86.4% | 88.9% |
| Alaska | 16 | 86.8% | 76.5% | 80.5% | 85.0% | 89.6% | 91.1% |
| Colorado | 17 | 86.1% | 85.1% | 83.5% | 84.2% | 86.0% | 88.4% |
| Arizona | 18 | 84.2% | 81.6% | 80.9% | 83.1% | 84.2% | 88.7% |
| Washington | 19 | 82.7% | 77.0% | 76.3% | 80.3% | 83.4% | 88.1% |
| Oregon | 20 | 80.8% | 79.1% | 78.6% | 79.1% | 78.9% | 84.9% |
| New Mexico | 21 | 78.1% | 77.2% | 76.0% | 76.4% | 77.2% | 81.9% |
| Illinois | 22 | 78.1% | 80.0% | 77.2% | 75.4% | 75.0% | 80.0% |
| South Carolina | 23 | 76.8% | 72.4% | 73.6% | 76.0% | 77.3% | 82.3% |
| Maine | 24 | 76.2% | 72.8% | 73.2% | 74.6% | 76.4% | 80.4% |
| Texas | 25 | 74.7% | 70.2% | 72.2% | 73.4% | 74.1% | 79.7% |
| Minnesota | 26 | 73.9% | 75.7% | 71.5% | 70.0% | 70.9% | 76.8% |
| Michigan | 27 | 72.8% | 74.0% | 70.6% | 69.5% | 70.6% | 76.3% |
| Ohio | 28 | 71.1% | 72.0% | 68.0% | 68.2% | 69.2% | 75.0% |
| Wisconsin | 29 | 71.0% | 73.3% | 68.4% | 68.1% | 68.8% | 73.7% |
| Montana | 30 | 70.6% | 66.8% | 67.7% | 69.0% | 72.2% | 74.7% |
| Virginia | 31 | 69.3% | 66.6% | 63.8% | 64.3% | 67.2% | 74.3% |
| North Carolina | 32 | 68.9% | 66.9% | 65.5% | 66.4% | 68.2% | 74.0% |
| Indiana | 33 | 67.9% | 72.8% | 67.2% | 65.7% | 65.0% | 68.6% |
| Tennessee | 34 | 67.4% | 65.1% | 62.1% | 64.5% | 66.7% | 74.9% |
| Georgia | 35 | 66.7% | 65.7% | 64.2% | 64.6% | 64.4% | 71.0% |
| Wvomina | 36 | 66.1% | 71.7% | 67.8% | 65.8% | 65.8% | 63.8% |
| Kansas | 37 | 64.4% | 64.2% | 59.2% | 60.0% | 63.1% | 70.4% |
| North Dakota | 38 | 63.9% | 67.0% | 63.7% | 63.0% | 62.8% | 63.8% |
| Missouri | 39 | 62.9% | 65.8% | 60.7% | 59.6% | 61.0% | 65.6% |
| Idaho | 40 | 62.8% | 54.4% | 57.9% | 61.7% | 65.0% | 71.9% |
| Alabama | 41 | 62.0% | 58.6% | 57.6% | 59.2% | 62.3% | 69.1% |
| Nebraska | 42 | 61.9% | 64.2% | 57.6% | 57.0% | 60.2% | 66.9% |
| Louisiana | 43 | 61.1% | 60.1% | 57.7% | 59.7% | 60.8% | 64.8% |
| West Virginia | 44 | 60.0% | 57.2% | 56.2% | 58.0% | 60.6% | 65.9% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 58.8% | 58.7% | 56.0% | 56.5% | 57.6% | 62.9% |
| Kentucky | 46 | 56.4% | 52.5% | 52.4% | 54.6% | 55.6% | 63.4% |
| Utah | 47 | 55.9% | 52.4% | 52.2% | 53.0% | 55.8% | 61.8% |
| South Dakota | 48 | 53.0% | 45.3% | 49.9% | 51.9% | 55.3% | 57.5% |
| lowa | 49 | 50.9% | 50.8% | 46.9% | 48.2% | 50.5% | 54.7% |
| Arkansas | 50 | 49.1% | 48.1% | 46.2% | 47.5% | 48.5% | 54.2% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 40.4% | 38.4% | 36.8% | 38.8% | 41.3% | 46.5% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with access to psychiatric care

All people in DE, DC, HI, NH, and MA live in counties with access to psychiatric care.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



ACCESS TO PSYCHIATRIC CARE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with access to psychiatric care to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | nite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Delaware | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% |
| Massachusetts | 4 | 9,071 | 0.1% | 7,170 | 0.1% | 768 | 0.2% | 625 | 0.1% | 58 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 449 | 0.4% |
| New Jersey | 5 | 63,733 | 0.7% | 48,836 | 1.0% | 8,851 | 0.8% | 4,573 | 0.3% | 445 | 0.1% | 85 | 0.8% | 943 | 0.7% |
| California | 6 | 977,219 | 2.6% | 458,076 | 3.1% | 31,192 | 1.4% | 414,564 | 2.9% | 38,900 | 0.7% | 11,828 | 8.1% | 22,659 | 2.2% |
| Connecticut | 7 | 117,106 | 3.3% | 99,163 | 4.0% | 2,204 | 0.6% | 11,974 | 2.3% | 1,424 | 1.0% | 139 | 2.9% | 2,202 | 3.3% |
| New York | 8 | 1,080,964 | 5.5% | 977,097 | 8.7% | 38,983 | 1.4% | 34,848 | 1.0% | 9,129 | 0.6% | 6,128 | 13.0% | 14,778 | 4.5% |
| Florida | 9 | 1,488,916 | 7.7% | 991,783 | 9.1% | 161,266 | 5.4% | 289,467 | 6.4% | 18,705 | 3.8% | 5,046 | 12.0% | 22,649 | 7.1% |
| Nevada | 10 | 248,045 | 9.0% | 187,186 | 12.9% | 3,234 | 1.5% | 41,381 | 5.5% | 3,341 | 1.5% | 8,104 | 33.3% | 4,799 | 5.6% |
| Maryland | 11 | 538,108 | 9.2% | 371,045 | 11.8% | 113,579 | 6.6% | 23,325 | 4.5% | 14,055 | 4.1% | 1,736 | 14.3% | 14,369 | 10.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 12 | 1,425,798 | 11.2% | 1,348,976 | 13.5% | 26,117 | 1.9% | 26,054 | 3.3% | 7,600 | 2.0% | 1,725 | 11.4% | 15,325 | 7.6% |
| Rhode Island | 13 | 126,323 | 12.1% | 116,064 | 14.7% | 1,849 | 3.4% | 3,423 | 2.4% | 2,368 | 7.2% | 1,050 | 27.5% | 1,570 | 6.8% |
| Vermont | 14 | 79,040 | 12.6% | 75,151 | 12.8% | 351 | 5.6% | 1,027 | 10.0% | 439 | 5.3% | 370 | 19.6% | 1,702 | 15.2% |
| Alaska | 15 | 93,861 | 13.0% | 30,761 | 6.7% | 1,165 | 4.9% | 3,149 | 7.0% | 4,921 | 10.2% | 47,947 | 51.6% | 5,919 | 11.5% |
| Colorado | 16 | 736,826 | 14.2% | 517,205 | 14.3% | 10,957 | 5.5% | 183,309 | 16.8% | 10,264 | 6.9% | 4,725 | 16.6% | 10,367 | 8.7% |
| Arizona | 17 | 1,067,286 | 16.3% | 507,575 | 13.6% | 27,977 | 10.9% | 364,741 | 18.4% | 15,093 | 7.6% | 135,088 | 51.4% | 16,812 | 13.5% |
| Washington | 18 | 1,189,553 | 17.3% | 805,682 | 16.4% | 11,568 | 4.8% | 295,320 | 36.5% | 20,215 | 3.6% | 26,866 | 32.7% | 29,902 | 10.7% |
| Oregon | 19 | 753,248 | 19.3% | 614,322 | 20.3% | 4,263 | 6.3% | 88,382 | 18.7% | 9,048 | 5.5% | 15,868 | 42.1% | 21,364 | 17.2% |
| Illinois | 20 | 2,841,607 | 22.1% | 2,419,827 | 29.9% | 189,364 | 10.4% | 156,696 | 7.5% | 29,485 | 4.7% | 3,727 | 25.4% | 42,508 | 20.7% |
| New Mexico | 21 | 459,124 | 22.1% | 179,977 | 21.8% | 6,551 | 17.5% | 241,919 | 24.7% | 2,389 | 8.6% | 23,444 | 13.2% | 4,844 | 15.7% |
| South Carolina | 22 | 1,100,296 | 23.3% | 661,002 | 21.9% | 367,729 | 28.4% | 42,413 | 17.1% | 8,430 | 13.0% | 5,359 | 37.9% | 15,363 | 19.8% |
| Maine | 23 | 314,473 | 23.7% | 295,439 | 23.6% | 2,569 | 17.8% | 4,232 | 22.8% | 2,112 | 14.6% | 2,196 | 30.3% | 7,925 | 33.7% |
| Texas | 24 | 6,688,618 | 25.7% | 3,212,776 | 27.8% | 406,801 | 13.5% | 2,917,279 | 29.3% | 67,649 | 6.3% | 19,337 | 29.3% | 64,775 | 17.1% |
| Minnesota | 25 | 1,413,850 | 26.3% | 1,270,199 | 28.7% | 17,503 | 6.1% | 55,365 | 21.0% | 21,719 | 9.4% | 26,396 | 50.7% | 22,669 | 18.5% |
| Michigan | 26 | 2,693,885 | 27.3% | 2,347,011 | 31.2% | 136,401 | 10.0% | 109,551 | 24.0% | 25,129 | 9.7% | 24,122 | 49.8% | 51,671 | 23.7% |
| Ohio | 27 | 3,341,889 | 28.9% | 3,057,070 | 32.8% | 121,359 | 8.7% | 74,589 | 19.7% | 26,639 | 12.7% | 4,761 | 28.0% | 57,471 | 24.0% |
| Wisconsin | 28 | 1,664,199 | 29.1% | 1,518,119 | 32.1% | 23,981 | 6.8% | 61,978 | 17.4% | 21,040 | 15.3% | 17,753 | 38.9% | 21,328 | 21.9% |
| Montana | 29 | 295,259 | 29.3% | 242,774 | 27.7% | 747 | 0.0% | 7,518 | 23.6% | 1,370 | 19.2% | 36,992 | 58.7% | 5,858 | 26.8% |
| Virginia | 30 | 2,516,256 | 30.8% | 1,751,619 | 33.5% | 455,036 | 29.4% | 185,234 | 27.0% | 59,855 | 12.5% | 6,051 | 35.1% | 58,461 | 28.0% |
| North Carolina | 31 | 3,020,619 | 31.0% | 2,161,967 | 34.3% | 527,601 | 25.6% | 228,707 | 27.0% | 26,629 | 11.3% | 26,890 | 25.3% | 48,824 | 26.4% |
| Indiana | 32 | 2,089,620 | 32.0% | 1,931,878 | 36.5% | 36,166 | 6.1% | 77,921 | 18.9% | 14,122 | 12.2% | 4,322 | 35.4% | 25,211 | 21.4% |
| Tennessee | 33 | 2,102,444 | 32.6% | 1,829,933 | 37.8% | 143,243 | 13.3% | 73,016 | 23.6% | 12,474 | 12.4% | 5,343 | 39.1% | 38,435 | 35.7% |
| Georgiaª | 34 | 3,299,323 | 33.4% | 2,176,657 | 39.9% | 790,535 | 26.2% | 225,871 | 25.2% | 55,849 | 16.1% | 6,828 | 37.4% | 43,582 | 26.7% |
| North Dakota | 35 | 252,563 | 35.8% | 224,181 | 36.2% | 1,155 | 11.1% | 6,569 | 36.0% | 1,002 | 12.0% | 16,147 | 44.6% | 3,509 | 26.9% |
| Kansas | 36 | 1,033,101 | 35.9% | 861,535 | 38.6% | 27,156 | 16.7% | 100,452 | 31.8% | 10,118 | 13.7% | 9,019 | 45.1% | 24,822 | 32.3% |
| Missouri | 37 | 2,235,095 | 37.1% | 2,044,988 | 42.2% | 59,168 | 8.6% | 63,738 | 28.2% | 19,915 | 18.7% | 9,436 | 43.5% | 37,851 | 30.3% |
| Idaho | 38 | 595,508 | 37.3% | 473,303 | 35.5% | 1,703 | 0.0% | 100,473 | 53.9% | 4,365 | 19.2% | 5,030 | 29.9% | 10,634 | 34.8% |
| Alabama | 39 | 1,828,810 | 38.0% | 1,331,378 | 41.5% | 374,674 | 29.7% | 74,778 | 39.0% | 10,179 | 17.2% | 12,321 | 53.2% | 25,480 | 36.8% |
| Nebraska | 40 | 704,934 | 38.0% | 605,402 | 40.2% | 5,816 | 6.9% | 72,958 | 40.4% | 4,294 | 11.8% | 8,345 | 64.7% | 8,119 | 24.1% |
| Louisiana | 41 | 1,805,542 | 39.3% | 1,193,578 | 43.4% | 489,546 | 33.3% | 63,922 | 30.4% | 15,640 | 20.4% | 15,566 | 61.0% | 27,290 | 42.2% |
| West Virginia | 42 | 743,070 | 40.1% | 710,287 | 41.3% | 14,936 | 25.6% | 5,889 | 24.5% | 2,085 | 15.4% | 1,181 | 41.0% | 8,691 | 25.0% |
| Oklahoma | 43 | 1,567,740 | 41.1% | 1,132,112 | 43.7% | 45,106 | 16.5% | 101,252 | 28.3% | 14,323 | 19.3% | 155,371 | 59.1% | 119,576 | 45.9% |
| Kentucky ^a | 44 | 1,899,331 | 43.4% | 1,762,743 | 46.9% | 62,715 | 18.4% | 38,539 | 27.6% | 7,947 | 14.5% | 2,949 | 39.9% | 24,439 | 32.1% |
| Utah | 45 | 1,265,930 | 44.4% | 1,052,607 | 46.2% | 8,073 | 28.1% | 143,738 | 37.9% | 21,121 | 24.7% | 18,414 | 65.5% | 21,978 | 42.5% |
| South Dakota | 46 | 387,295 | 47.2% | 322,499 | 46.2% | 2,296 | 18.7% | 10,350 | 39.3% | 3,790 | 39.4% | 40,756 | 72.1% | 7,604 | 41.8% |
| Iowa | 47 | 1,507,755 | 49.0% | 1,345,577 | 49.8% | 27,032 | 29.0% | 90,041 | 55.2% | 20,515 | 33.7% | 5,190 | 66.0% | 19,400 | 40.4% |
| Arkansas | 48 | 1,498,770 | 50.9% | 1,154,886 | 53.0% | 201,828 | 44.3% | 93,137 | 47.0% | 14,739 | 33.3% | 9,343 | 56.0% | 24,838 | 48.1% |
| Mississippi | 49 | 1,771,624 | 59.4% | 1,052,143 | 61.2% | 630,407 | 56.8% | 51,683 | 61.5% | 11,004 | 38.9% | 9,963 | 83.8% | 16,425 | 55.4% |
| New Hampshire ^b | | | | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | | | 0 | 0.0% |
| Wyoming ^b | | | | 169,727 | 34.8% | 935 | 16.2% | 17,193 | 31.7% | | | 1,014 | 9.0% | 3,124 | 30.0% |

^a Estimates potentially unreliable due to having one or more highly variable county-level population estimates.

^b Data not reported due to highly variable estimates for one or more counties comprising more than 10% of the state's population for at least one race and ethnicity group.



of people live in counties with access to psychiatric care

All people in DE, DC, HI, NH, and MA live in counties with access to psychiatric care.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



ACCESS TO PSYCHIATRIC CARE

Table shows the number of additional people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population (% to Goal) who would need to live in counties with access to psychiatric care to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by income.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-99 | % FPL | 100-19 | 9% FPL | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | % FPL | 400+ | % FPL |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Delaware | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| District of Columbia | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Hawaii | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| New Hampshire | 1 | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0% | 0 | 0.0 |
| Massachusetts | 5 | 9,087 | 0.1% | 808 | 0.1% | 646 | 0.1% | 1,186 | 0.1% | 1,549 | 0.2% | 4,897 | 0.2 |
| New Jersey | 6 | 62,649 | 0.7% | 8,518 | 0.9% | 9,274 | 0.8% | 8,987 | 0.8% | 9,532 | 0.9% | 26,337 | 0.6 |
| California | 7 | 930,710 | 2.5% | 205,555 | 3.4% | 242,148 | 3.2% | 161,587 | 2.8% | 108,351 | 2.5% | 213,068 | 1.6 |
| Connecticut | 8 | 112,431 | 3.2% | 12,878 | 3.5% | 17,865 | 3.9% | 18,263 | 4.0% | 19,584 | 4.4% | 43,841 | 2.5 |
| New York | 9 | 1,032,070 | 5.4% | 154,089 | 5.2% | 199,393 | 6.2% | 192,162 | 6.8% | 164,975 | 6.8% | 321,453 | 4.2 |
| Florida | 10 | 1,417,550 | 7.5% | 268,491 | 8.5% | 343,461 | 8.5% | 275,533 | 8.0% | 197,669 | 7.7% | 332,396 | 5.8 |
| Nevada | 11 | 242,367 | 8.9% | 32,251 | 7.6% | 48,158 | 8.4% | 44,675 | 8.7% | 38,047 | 10.0% | 79,237 | 9.5 |
| Maryland | 12 | 531,722 | 9.3% | 42,306 | 7.4% | 56,739 | 7.4% | 67,431 | 8.5% | 74,465 | 10.1% | 290,781 | 10.1 |
| Pennsylvania | 13 | 1,371,279 | 11.1% | 182,743 | 11.0% | 279,045 | 13.1% | 277,024 | 13.0% | 217,447 | 12.0% | 415,020 | 9.0 |
| Rhode Island | 14 | 120,633 | 11.9% | 11,386 | 7.9% | 12,181 | 7.3% | 15,320 | 10.0% | 16,511 | 12.0% | 65,234 | 15.8 |
| Vermont | 15 | 77,546 | 12.9% | 8,988 | 12.5% | 15,229 | 14.3% | 16,015 | 14.9% | 12,300 | 13.6% | 25,015 | 11.1 |
| Alaska | 16 | 92,429 | 13.1% | 16,285 | 23.5% | 21,761 | 19.5% | 15,565 | 15.0% | 10,552 | 10.4% | 28,267 | 8.9 |
| Colorado | 17 | 703,369 | 13.8% | 98,631 | 14.9% | 143,130 | 16.5% | 130,020 | 15.8% | 97,185 | 14.0% | 234,403 | 11.6 |
| Arizona | 18 | 1,014,216 | 15.8% | 215,242 | 18.4% | 256,450 | 19.1% | 190,252 | 16.9% | 132,971 | 15.8% | 219,301 | 11.3 |
| Washington | 19 | 1,167,611 | 17.3% | 210,365 | 23.0% | 269,071 | 23.7% | 215,594 | 19.7% | 153,145 | 16.5% | 319,437 | 11.9 |
| Oregon | 20 | 732,780 | 19.2% | 133,707 | 20.9% | 165,899 | 21.4% | 140,217 | 20.9% | 107,367 | 21.1% | 185,591 | 15.1 |
| New Mexico | 21 | 445,472 | 21.8% | 96,864 | 22.7% | 108,750 | 24.0% | 79,482 | 23.5% | 57,716 | 22.8% | 102,661 | 18.0 |
| Illinois | 22 | 2,750,977 | 21.9% | 362,069 | 20.0% | 499,441 | 22.8% | 498,912 | 24.6% | 428,276 | 25.0% | 962,280 | 20.0 |
| South Carolina | 23 | 1,062,922 | 23.2% | 231,623 | 27.6% | 262,193 | 26.4% | 194,245 | 24.0% | 139,983 | 22.6% | 234,878 | 17.7 |
| Maine | 24 | 306,936 | 23.7% | 48,921 | 27.2% | 68,865 | 26.8% | 59,808 | 25.4% | 46,169 | 23.6% | 83,172 | 19.5 |
| Texas | 25 | 6,444,878 | 25.3% | 1,338,177 | 29.7% | 1,494,361 | 27.8% | 1,123,954 | 26.6% | 820,698 | 25.8% | 1,667,688 | 20.3 |
| Minnesota | 26 | 1,373,987 | 26.1% | 147,130 | 24.3% | 233,668 | 28.5% | 252,596 | 30.0% | 230,973 | 29.1% | 509,621 | 23.2 |
| Michigan | 27 | 2,623,228 | 27.1% | 424,748 | 26.0% | 527,069 | 29.4% | 515,290 | 30.5% | 408,281 | 29.4% | 747,839 | 23.7 |
| Ohio | 28 | 3,241,727 | 28.8% | 501,848 | 28.0% | 661,297 | 32.0% | 637,030 | 31.8% | 510,668 | 30.8% | 930,884 | 25.0 |
| Wisconsin | 29 | 1,616,186 | 29.0% | 197,071 | 26.7% | 308,621 | 31.5% | 316,798 | 31.8% | 270,468 | 31.1% | 523,228 | 26.3 |
| Montana | 30 | 288,443 | 29.4% | 49,807 | 33.2% | 66,123 | 32.3% | 56,403 | 31.0% | 41,012 | 27.7% | 75,098 | 25.3 |
| Virginia | 31 | 2,436,962 | 30.7% | 305,111 | 33.4% | 444,868 | 36.2% | 433,105 | 35.7% | 349,271 | 32.8% | 904,607 | 25.7 |
| North Carolina | 32 | 2,955,631 | 31.1% | 552,641 | 33.1% | 690,557 | 34.5% | 558,292 | 33.6% | 404,249 | 31.8% | 749,891 | 25.9 |
| Indiana | 33 | 2,035,176 | 32.1% | 267,462 | 27.2% | 409,424 | 32.8% | 410,069 | 34.3% | 341,905 | 35.0% | 606,315 | 31.3 |
| Tennessee | 34 | 2,048,831 | 32.6% | 390,964 | 34.9% | 512,548 | 37.8% | 404,210 | 35.5% | 286,404 | 33.3% | 454,706 | 25.1 |
| Georgia | 35 | 3,208,863 | 33.3% | 610,461 | 34.3% | 710,132 | 35.8% | 578,349 | 35.3% | 442,090 | 35.6% | 867,831 | 29.0 |
| Wyoming | 36 | 190,377 | 33.9% | 18,457 | 28.3% | 30,768 | 32.2% | 32,806 | 34.2% | 30,448 | 34.1% | 77,898 | 36.2 |
| Kansas | 37 | 995,216 | 35.5% | 137,986 | 35.7% | 216,311 | 40.8% | 204,791 | 40.0% | 155,555 | 36.9% | 280,574 | 29.6 |
| North Dakota | 38 | 245,578 | 36.1% | 26,673 | 33.0% | 38,559 | 36.3% | 44,678 | 37.0% | 40,146 | 37.1% | 95,522 | 36.2 |
| Missouri | 39 | 2,170,473 | 37.1% | 311,900 | 34.2% | 456,738 | 39.3% | 436,063 | 40.4% | 332,782 | 39.0% | 632,990 | 34.4 |
| Idaho | 40 | 583,459 | 37.2% | 111,477 | 45.6% | 156,154 | 42.1% | 123,374 | 38.3% | 78,004 | 34.9% | 114,450 | 28.1 |
| Alabama | 41 | 1,783,102 | 37.9% | 368,115 | 41.4% | 423,226 | 42.4% | 332,505 | 40.8% | 237,511 | 37.7% | 421,744 | 30.9 |
| Nebraska | 42 | 685,761 | 38.1% | 82,913 | 35.8% | 143,483 | 42.4% | 144,217 | 43.0% | 112,634 | 39.8% | 202,514 | 33.1 |
| Louisiana | 43 | 1,738,957 | 38.9% | 348,705 | 39.9% | 389,711 | 42.2% | 289,564 | 40.3% | 229,325 | 39.2% | 481,652 | 35.2 |
| West Virginia | 44 | 719,801 | 40.0% | 139,652 | 42.8% | 170,624 | 43.8% | 140,042 | 42.0% | 102,561 | 39.4% | 166,922 | 34.1 |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 1,526,679 | 41.2% | 258,124 | 41.3% | 355,736 | 44.0% | 299,522 | 43.5% | 219,137 | 42.4% | 394,160 | 37.0 |
| Kentucky | 46 | 1,851,218 | 43.6% | 381,287 | 47.4% | 421,859 | 47.6% | 339,196 | 45.3% | 268,005 | 44.4% | 440,871 | 36.6 |
| Utah | 47 | 1,239,503 | 44.1% | 170,759 | 47.6% | 267,382 | 47.8% | 277,737 | 47.0% | 196,965 | 44.2% | 326,661 | 38.2 |
| South Dakota | 48 | 372,343 | 47.0% | 58,646 | 54.7% | 75,374 | 50.1% | 73,588 | 48.1% | 57,880 | 44.7% | 106,855 | 42.5 |
| lowa | 49 | 1,460,920 | 49.1% | 183,862 | 49.2% | 282,096 | 53.1% | 290,550 | 51.8% | 238,126 | 49.5% | 466,286 | 45.3 |
| Arkansas | 50 | 1,455,293 | 50.8% | 284,841 | 51.9% | 365,052 | 53.8% | 275,331 | 52.5% | 192,423 | 51.5% | 337,645 | 45.8 |
| Mississippi | 51 | 1,721,094 | 59.6% | 402,297 | 61.5% | 427,281 | 63.2% | 315,612 | 61.2% | 211,128 | 58.7% | 364,776 | 53.5 |

0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.2%

0.6% 1.6%

2.5%

4.2% 5.8% 9.5% 10.1% 9.0% 15.8% 11.1% 8.9% 11.6% 11.3% 11.9% 15.1% 18.0%

20.0%

17.7%

19.5%

20.3%

23.2%

23.7%

25.0%

26.3%

25.3%

25.7%

25.9%

31.3%

25.1%

29.0%

36.2%

29.6%

36.2%

34.4%

28.1% 30.9%

33.1% 35.2%

34.1%

37.0%

36.6%

38.2%

42.5%

45.3%

45.8%

53.5%

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

HOPE Goal 100%

of people live in counties with access to psychiatric care

All people in DE, DC, HI, NH, and MA live in counties with access to psychiatric care.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE

Tables show the portion of non-elderly people with any kind of health insurance in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and income. Non-elderly people are defined as those under age 65. Source: 2011-2015 American Community Survey Public Use Microdata Sample, U.S. Census Bureau

| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial |
|----------------------|-----------|---------|--------|--------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|
| Massachusetts | 1 | 95.8% | 96.7% | 92.5% | 92.0% | 96.1% | 92.7% | 95.4% |
| District of Columbia | 2 | 93.5% | 96.9% | 92.4% | 86.2% | 92.3% | 98.4% | 95.8% |
| Hawaii | 3 | 93.2% | 92.2% | 95.5% | 92.8% | 93.3% | 89.4% | 93.8% |
| Vermont | 4 | 92.9% | 93.2% | 92.2% | 91.5% | 88.9% | 79.8% | 89.2% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 91.7% | 93.7% | 86.9% | 72.8% | 90.4% | 76.1% | 91.5% |
| lowa | 6 | 91.2% | 92.4% | 84.8% | 80.1% | 90.6% | 74.9% | 92.1% |
| Connecticut | 7 | 90.8% | 93.7% | 88.0% | 80.6% | 90.7% | 79.5% | 94.1% |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 90.2% | 92.2% | 84.6% | 75.9% | 87.3% | 77.1% | 90.2% |
| Delaware | 9 | 89.9% | 91.6% | 90.1% | 78.4% | 89.8% | 87.3% | 95.0% |
| Maryland | 10 | 89.6% | 93.5% | 89.0% | 70.9% | 88.6% | 87.2% | 93.1% |
| Rhode Island | 11 | 89.1% | 91.9% | 84.7% | 78.2% | 87.2% | 86.7% | 89.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 12 | 89.1% | 90.9% | 83.5% | 80.1% | 86.8% | 81.1% | 90.3% |
| North Dakota | 13 | 89.0% | 91.7% | 75.2% | 75.0% | 83.2% | 66.6% | 79.5% |
| New Hampshire | 14 | 88.7% | 89.2% | 79.5% | 80.7% | 88.9% | 76.0% | 87.6% |
| New York | 15 | 88.7% | 92.6% | 87.5% | 79.9% | 85.5% | 82.7% | 91.1% |
| Michigan | 16 | 88.3% | 89.7% | 83.8% | 81.5% | 88.6% | 80.2% | 89.5% |
| Nebraska | 17 | 88.3% | 90.9% | 81.3% | 74.2% | 90.8% | 63.1% | 87.1% |
| Ohio | 18 | 88.1% | 89.3% | 83.9% | 78.6% | 88.2% | 82.9% | 89.0% |
| Maine | 19 | 87.7% | 87.8% | 90.4% | 82.3% | 85.6% | 85.1% | 87.7% |
| Illinois | 20 | 87.2% | 91.5% | 82.6% | 76.2% | 87.6% | 85.6% | 91.4% |
| Virginia | 21 | 86.8% | 90.3% | 83.5% | 71.1% | 85.9% | 79.9% | 89.7% |
| South Dakota | 22 | 86.8% | 90.6% | 83.9% | 71.1% | 82.6% | 62.5% | 81.4% |
| Washington | 23 | 86.8% | 89.4% | 85.5% | 73.6% | 87.7% | 74.6% | 89.9% |
| Kansas | 24 | 86.4% | 89.4% | 80.2% | 71.8% | 86.6% | 75.2% | 85.2% |
| New Jersev | 25 | 86.3% | 91.9% | 83.7% | 72.6% | 87.1% | 89.3% | 89.1% |
| Kentucky | 26 | 86.1% | 87.3% | 81.9% | 68.5% | 85.2% | 83.8% | 87.3% |
| Colorado | 27 | 86.0% | 89.5% | 85.7% | 75.4% | 86.9% | 74 9% | 89.6% |
| West Virginia | 28 | 85.7% | 86.1% | 77.0% | 79.6% | 86.5% | 86.3% | 87.1% |
| Utah | 29 | 85.4% | 89.3% | 83.2% | 65.1% | 84.8% | 68.3% | 89.0% |
| Oregon | 30 | 85.3% | 87.3% | 83.9% | 74.6% | 87.0% | 76.1% | 87.7% |
| Missouri | 31 | 85.3% | 86.8% | 79.7% | 72.3% | 85.2% | 76.6% | 87.3% |
| Wyoming | 32 | 84.7% | 86.2% | 87.5% | 75.8% | 91.6% | 62.1% | 84.9% |
| Alabama | 33 | 84.7% | 87.3% | 82.0% | 63.4% | 85.3% | 81.7% | 87.3% |
| Tennessee | 34 | 84.6% | 86.8% | 82.9% | 61.5% | 82.4% | 76.2% | 86.3% |
| Indiana | 35 | 84.5% | 86.4% | 79.6% | 71.7% | 82.6% | 74.6% | 85.9% |
| California | 36 | 83.2% | 89.4% | 85.4% | 75.7% | 87.3% | 77.4% | 89.6% |
| North Carolina | 37 | 83.2% | 87.1% | 81.8% | 61.4% | 83.5% | 77.0% | 88.2% |
| Arkansas | 38 | 83.1% | 84.7% | 82.6% | 69.1% | 82.2% | 80.4% | 86.9% |
| Idaho | 39 | 82.9% | 85.3% | 84.6% | 68.9% | 85.3% | 68.0% | 85.3% |
| South Carolina | 40 | 82.5% | 85.4% | 80.6% | 62.1% | 79.4% | 78.2% | 86.0% |
| Arizona | 41 | 81.6% | 87.4% | 83.1% | 73.1% | 86.2% | 71.1% | 85.7% |
| Louisiana | 42 | 81.3% | 85.4% | 77.3% | 62.8% | 76.1% | 76.5% | 85.4% |
| Montana | 43 | 81.1% | 83.7% | 59.4% | 75.8% | 78.0% | 54.8% | 77.8% |
| Mississippi | 44 | 80.9% | 83.9% | 78.8% | 59.5% | 73.7% | 64.6% | 85.3% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 80.2% | 84.6% | 76.8% | 66.5% | 83.5% | 68.0% | 77.0% |
| New Mexico | 46 | 80.2% | 87.4% | 84.4% | 77.6% | 85.8% | 63.5% | 86.9% |
| Alaska | _+0 ⊿7 | 80.0% | 85.0% | 83.0% | 80.7% | 77.9% | 61.5% | 73.3% |
| Georgia | 47 | 79.9% | 8/ 7% | 78.5% | 59.0% | 78.7% | 72.3% | 8/ 1% |
| Nevada | 40 20 | 78.9% | 84.6% | 79.2% | 68.3% | 82.3% | 70.9% | 85.4% |
| Florida | 50 | 77.7% | 82.6% | 75.4% | 68.6% | 79.5% | 69.1% | 84.3% |
| Texas | 50 | 76.5% | 85.4% | 79.2% | 65.9% | 81.6% | 80.6% | 85.0% |
| | | 10.570 | 00.170 | 13.270 | | 01.070 | 00.070 | 00.070 |

| | INCOME (% FPL) | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|----------------|----------------|----------|----------|----------|-----------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | 0-99% | 100-199% | 200-299% | 300-399% | 400+% | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 95.4% | 93.0% | 92.2% | 93.2% | 95.4% | 98.2% | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 2 | 93.5% | 92.3% | 89.4% | 88.7% | 92.2% | 96.5% | | | | |
| Hawaii | 3 | 93.2% | 85.4% | 88.4% | 92.4% | 95.0% | 96.9% | | | | |
| Vermont | 4 | 92.9% | 92.1% | 88.7% | 90.2% | 92.9% | 96.4% | | | | |
| Minnesota | 5 | 91.7% | 84.1% | 83.6% | 88.2% | 93.3% | 97.4% | | | | |
| lowa | 6 | 91.4% | 82.4% | 84.6% | 90.2% | 94.3% | 97.4% | | | | |
| Connecticut | 7 | 90.7% | 83.8% | 80.8% | 84.9% | 90.6% | 96.1% | | | | |
| Delaware | 8 | 90.5% | 85.8% | 83.2% | 87.3% | 91.8% | 95.7% | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 9 | 90.5% | 81.5% | 82.5% | 88.6% | 94.0% | 96.9% | | | | |
| Maryland | 10 | 89.9% | 80.7% | 79.4% | 84.5% | 90.1% | 95.9% | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 11 | 89.5% | 81.4% | 79.8% | 87.1% | 92.5% | 96.4% | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 12 | 89.2% | 82.5% | 81.0% | 85.0% | 90.9% | 95.6% | | | | |
| North Dakota | 13 | 89.0% | 76.9% | 80.5% | 86.3% | 92.0% | 95.8% | | | | |
| New York | 14 | 88.7% | 84.0% | 81.0% | 84.6% | 89.1% | 95.1% | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 15 | 88.6% | 76.2% | 76.6% | 82.9% | 89.1% | 95.8% | | | | |
| Michigan | 16 | 88.6% | 80.4% | 81.1% | 87.5% | 92.4% | 96.2% | | | | |
| Ohio | 17 | 88.4% | 80.8% | 79.3% | 86.6% | 92.4% | 96.3% | | | | |
| Nebraska | 18 | 88.1% | 73.8% | 77.6% | 88.4% | 93.6% | 96.8% | | | | |
| Maine | 19 | 87.7% | 82.2% | 81.5% | 83.8% | 89.0% | 95.2% | | | | |
| Illinois | 20 | 87.4% | 77.8% | 77.6% | 84.1% | 90.3% | 95.8% | | | | |
| Virginia | 21 | 87.0% | 71.8% | 74.6% | 82.8% | 90.2% | 95.7% | | | | |
| Washington | 22 | 86.9% | 76.5% | 76.9% | 83.3% | 89.7% | 95.3% | | | | |
| South Dakota | 23 | 86.9% | 72.2% | 78.2% | 88.1% | 91.8% | 95.6% | | | | |
| Kansas | 24 | 86.6% | 71.9% | 77.3% | 85.9% | 92.2% | 96.1% | | | | |
| Kentucky | 25 | 86.6% | 77.0% | 79.6% | 86.1% | 91.9% | 95.8% | | | | |
| New Jersev | 26 | 86.6% | 73.8% | 71.8% | 79.3% | 87.2% | 95.0% | | | | |
| West Virginia | 27 | 86.1% | 78.9% | 79.1% | 85.2% | 90.5% | 94.7% | | | | |
| Colorado | 28 | 86.0% | 76.1% | 74.8% | 81.0% | 88 5% | 95.2% | | | | |
| Missouri | 29 | 85.5% | 72.7% | 75.4% | 85.1% | 91.4% | 95.8% | | | | |
| Utah | 30 | 85.5% | 69.9% | 76.6% | 86.6% | 91.0% | 94 7% | | | | |
| Oregon | 31 | 85.4% | 77.0% | 76.4% | 83.5% | 89.6% | 95.3% | | | | |
| Alahama | 32 | 85.2% | 72.6% | 78.0% | 86.1% | 91.4% | 95.7% | | | | |
| Tennessee | 33 | 84.9% | 74.6% | 76.6% | 84.8% | 90.5% | 95.3% | | | | |
| Indiana | 34 | 84.9% | 72.7% | 75.4% | 83.7% | 90.7% | 95.3% | | | | |
| Wyoming | 35 | 84.7% | 71.7% | 73.8% | 83.3% | 88.6% | 92.6% | | | | |
| Arkansas | 36 | 83.4% | 71.7% | 73.0% | 83 7% | 88.7% | 94.3% | | | | |
| California | 30 | 83.3% | 74.8% | 72.6% | 79.5% | 86.2% | 94.376 | | | | |
| North Carolina | 20 | 92.20/ | 74.0% | 72.07 | 9.5% | 90.2% | 94.276 | | | | |
| Idaha | 20 | 03.270 | 70.070 | 75.570 | 02.0% | 09.0% | 93.270 | | | | |
| South Carolina | 40 | 03.270 | 7 1.5 /0 | 70.1% | 05.0% | 09.3 <i>/</i> 0 | 93.970 | | | | |
| Louisiana | 40 | 02.770 | 70.0% | 74.170 | 02.7 % | 09.970 | 94.270 | | | | |
| Louisiana | 41 | 02.3% 02.1% | 72.0% | 74.2% | 80.9% | 86.9% 97.5% | 93.1% | | | | |
| Arizona | 42 | 02.1% | 73.5% | 71.9% | 01.0% | 87.5% | 93.7% | | | | |
| Mississippi | 43 | 81.8% | 72.2% | 75.7% | 82.7% | 88.1% | 93.6% | | | | |
| Montana | 44 | 81.2% | 69.5% | 70.0% | 81.7% | 86.0% | 92.7% | | | | |
| New Mexico | 45 | 80.8% | 71.9% | 73.6% | 79.2% | 86.2% | 92.5% | | | | |
| Okiahoma | 46 | 80.6% | 68.1% | 71.6% | 80.3% | 86.1% | 92.9% | | | | |
| Georgia | 47 | 80.6% | 65.9% | 70.2% | 80.4% | 87.2% | 94.0% | | | | |
| Alaska | 48 | 80.2% | 69.1% | 69.7% | 75.5% | 76.4% | 89.4% | | | | |
| Nevada | 49 | 79.3% | 63.7% | 69.7% | 78.5% | 85.9% | 92.3% | | | | |
| Florida | 50 | 78.2% | 66.5% | 67.8% | 75.6% | 83.6% | 91.8% | | | | |
| rexas | 51 | 76.9% | 64.0% | 64.4% | 73.6% | 82.4% | 92.2% | | | | |

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND INCOME

HOPE Goal

97% of non-elderly people with health insurance

coverage

Calculated as the average portion of non-elderly adults with incomes 400% FPL or greater who have health insurance coverage in MA, IA, MN, WI, and HI.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional non-elderly people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's non-elderly population (% to Goal) who would need to obtain health insurance coverage to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by race and ethnicity. Non-elderly people are defined as those under age 65.

| | | Ove | Overall White Black His | | Hispa | Hispanic A: | | Asian/PI | | AI/AN | | Multiracial | | | |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-------------------------|-----------|-----------|-------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 91,355 | 1.6% | 28,571 | 0.7% | 19,440 | 4.9% | 35,871 | 5.3% | 4,759 | 1.3% | 328 | 4.7% | 2,387 | 2.0% |
| District of Columbia | 2 | 22,514 | 3.9% | 937 | 0.5% | 13,206 | 4.9% | 7,019 | 11.2% | 1,148.23 | 5.1% | - | 0.0% | 204.02 | 1.6% |
| Hawaii | 3 | 50,084 | 4.2% | 13,779 | 5.2% | 481 | 1.9% | 6,000 | 4.5% | 20,681 | 4.1% | 145 | 8.0% | 8,997 | 3.5% |
| Vermont | 4 | 23,322 | 4.5% | 20,518 | 4.2% | 334 | 5.2% | 558 | 5.9% | 772 | 8.5% | 368 | 17.6% | 771 | 8.2% |
| Minnesota | 5 | 266,072 | 5.7% | 138,118 | 3.7% | 29,710 | 10.5% | 64,659 | 24.6% | 16,189 | 7.0% | 10,239 | 21.3% | 7,158 | 5.9% |
| Iowa | 6 | 160,603 | 6.2% | 112,547 | 5.0% | 11,496 | 12.6% | 28,127 | 17.3% | 4,302 | 6.8% | 1,642 | 22.5% | 2,489 | 5.2% |
| Connecticut | 7 | 200,481 | 6.6% | 74,957 | 3.7% | 29,676 | 9.4% | 83,777 | 16.8% | 9,249 | 6.6% | 764 | 17.9% | 2,058 | 3.3% |
| Wisconsin | 8 | 349,396 | 7.1% | 202,383 | 5.1% | 41,781 | 12.7% | 75,639 | 21.5% | 13,680 | 10.0% | 8,783 | 20.2% | 7,129 | 7.2% |
| Delaware | 9 | 57,828 | 7.4% | 27,304 | 5.8% | 12,829 | 7.3% | 14,702 | 19.0% | 2,317 | 7.6% | 219 | 10.1% | 456 | 2.4% |
| Maryland | 10 | 399,830 | 7.8% | 99,851 | 3.8% | 129,301 | 8.4% | 135,650 | 26.5% | 28,065 | 8.8% | 1,012 | 10.1% | 5,951 | 4.3% |
| Rhode Island | 11 | 72,778 | 8.2% | 34,731 | 5.4% | 6,496 | 12.7% | 26,301 | 19.2% | 3,106 | 10.1% | 380 | 10.7% | 1,764 | 7.9% |
| Pennsylvania | 12 | 886,282 | 8.3% | 530,454 | 6.5% | 167,075 | 13.9% | 134,595 | 17.3% | 38,082 | 10.6% | 1,975 | 16.3% | 14,101 | 7.1% |
| North Dakota | 13 | 51,833 | 8.4% | 30,077 | 5.7% | 2,423 | 22.2% | 4,413 | 22.4% | 1,180 | 14.2% | 11,273 | 30.8% | 2,466 | 17.9% |
| New Hampshire | 14 | 96,949 | 8.7% | 82,914 | 8.2% | 2,473 | 17.8% | 6,645 | 16.6% | 2,502 | 8.5% | 392 | 21.3% | 2,023 | 9.7% |
| New York | 15 | 1,456,690 | 8.7% | 435,304 | 4.7% | 247,429 | 9.9% | 581,064 | 17.5% | 166,774 | 11.9% | 5,902 | 14.7% | 20,217 | 6.3% |
| Michigan | 16 | 763,188 | 9.1% | 481,708 | 7.7% | 165,119 | 13.5% | 70,459 | 15.9% | 21,663 | 8.8% | 7,317 | 17.2% | 16,921 | 7.9% |
| Nebraska | 17 | 146,282 | 9.1% | 81,644 | 6.5% | 12,871 | 16.1% | 41,570 | 23.2% | 2,387 | 6.6% | 4,504 | 34.3% | 3,305 | 10.3% |
| Ohio | 18 | 908,216 | 9.3% | 629,424 | 8.1% | 168,148 | 13.5% | 69,913 | 18.8% | 18,246 | 9.2% | 2,068 | 14.5% | 20,416 | 8.4% |
| Maine | 19 | 105,720 | 9.7% | 97,467 | 9.6% | 1,036 | 6.9% | 2,628 | 15.1% | 1,550 | 11.8% | 794 | 12.3% | 2,245 | 9.7% |
| Illinois | 20 | 1,130,130 | 10.2% | 390,082 | 5.8% | 241,301 | 14.8% | 428,982 | 21.2% | 56,221 | 9.7% | 1,432 | 11.8% | 12,113 | 6.0% |
| Virginia | 21 | 753,142 | 10.6% | 308,896 | 7.0% | 194,182 | 13.9% | 179,513 | 26.3% | 52,020 | 11.5% | 2,573 | 17.4% | 15,959 | 7.6% |
| South Dakota | 22 | 75,721 | 10.6% | 39,346 | 6.8% | 1,815 | 13.4% | 7,193 | 26.3% | 1,456 | 14.8% | 22,952 | 34.9% | 2,959 | 16.0% |
| Washington | 23 | 637,097 | 10.6% | 330,278 | 8.0% | 26,987 | 11.9% | 191,738 | 23.7% | 49,565 | 9.7% | 16,771 | 22.8% | 21,757 | 7.5% |
| Kansas | 24 | 273,816 | 11.0% | 147,894 | 7.9% | 25,575 | 17.2% | 79,340 | 25.6% | 7,533 | 10.8% | 4,001 | 22.2% | 9,472 | 12.2% |
| New Jersey | 25 | 839,545 | 11.1% | 225,193 | 5.4% | 137,500 | 13.6% | 390,398 | 24.8% | 74,887 | 10.3% | 673 | 8.1% | 10,894 | 8.3% |
| Kentucky | 26 | 423,594 | 11.3% | 320,396 | 10.1% | 48,395 | 15.4% | 40,049 | 28.9% | 6,558 | 12.2% | 847 | 13.6% | 7,348 | 10.1% |
| Colorado | 27 | 528,560 | 11.4% | 246,118 | 7.9% | 22,089 | 11.7% | 230,336 | 22.0% | 15,100 | 10.5% | 5,856 | 22.5% | 9,061 | 7.8% |
| West Virginia | 28 | 179,212 | 11.7% | 159,048 | 11.3% | 11,185 | 20.4% | 4,219 | 17.7% | 1,337 | 10.9% | 265 | 11.0% | 3,157 | 10.3% |
| Utah | 29 | 312,926 | 12.0% | 164,730 | 8.0% | 3,995 | 14.2% | 121,488 | 32.3% | 10,226 | 12.6% | 7,816 | 29.0% | 4,670 | 8.4% |
| Oregon | 30 | 400,621 | 12.0% | 250,342 | 10.1% | 8,554 | 13.5% | 106,689 | 22.8% | 15,965 | 10.4% | 7,270 | 21.3% | 11,801 | 9.7% |
| Missouri | 31 | 622,420 | 12.1% | 427,468 | 10.6% | 109,919 | 17.6% | 55,795 | 25.1% | 12,367 | 12.2% | 4,218 | 20.7% | 12,654 | 10.1% |
| Wyoming | 32 | 63,433 | 12.6% | 46,517 | 11.1% | 562 | 9.9% | 11,273 | 21.5% | 295 | 5.8% | 3,324 | 35.3% | 1,462 | 12.5% |
| Alabama | 33 | 522,717 | 12.7% | 266,813 | 10.1% | 175,411 | 15.4% | 63,853 | 34.0% | 6,624 | 12.1% | 3,078 | 15.6% | 6,937 | 10.0% |
| Tennessee | 34 | 707,379 | 12.8% | 424,431 | 10.5% | 142,844 | 14.4% | 111,282 | 35.9% | 14,000 | 15.0% | 2,871 | 21.2% | 11,950 | 11.1% |
| Indiana | 35 | 724,535 | 12.8% | 491,786 | 11.0% | 96,054 | 17.8% | 103,791 | 25.7% | 17,148 | 14.8% | 2,404 | 22.8% | 13,351 | 11.5% |
| California | 36 | 4,755,437 | 14.2% | 960,199 | 8.0% | 229,124 | 12.0% | 2,997,440 | 21.6% | 465,743 | 10.0% | 24,976 | 20.0% | 77,955 | 7.7% |
| North Carolina | 37 | 1,197,212 | 14.2% | 532,626 | 10.2% | 291,313 | 15.6% | 304,757 | 36.0% | 32,178 | 13.9% | 19,633 | 20.3% | 16,706 | 9.2% |
| Arkansas | 38 | 356,585 | 14.3% | 225,058 | 12.6% | 61,567 | 14.8% | 55,733 | 28.3% | 6,538 | 15.2% | 2,487 | 17.0% | 5,202 | 10.5% |
| Idaho | 39 | 201,386 | 14.4% | 136,942 | 12.1% | 1,080 | 12.7% | 52,411 | 28.5% | 2,393 | 12.1% | 4,710 | 29.3% | 3,849 | 12.0% |
| South Carolina | 40 | 602,140 | 14.9% | 298,237 | 12.0% | 194,634 | 16.8% | 86,560 | 35.2% | 11,378 | 18.0% | 2,447 | 19.2% | 8,884 | 11.4% |
| Arizona | 41 | 886,874 | 15.8% | 291,267 | 10.0% | 35,155 | 14.3% | 461,143 | 24.3% | 20,773 | 11.2% | 63,960 | 26.3% | 14,577 | 11.7% |
| Louisiana | 42 | 643,020 | 16.1% | 275,996 | 12.0% | 269,162 | 20.1% | 70,443 | 34.6% | 15,429 | 21.3% | 4,564 | 20.9% | 7,426 | 11.9% |
| Montana | 43 | 138,875 | 16.3% | 99,255 | 13.7% | 1,619 | 38.0% | 6,835 | 21.5% | 1,372 | 19.4% | 25,810 | 42.6% | 3,984 | 19.6% |
| Mississippi | 44 | 422,596 | 16.4% | 189,978 | 13.5% | 187,938 | 18.6% | 31,314 | 37.9% | 6,137 | 23.7% | 3,890 | 32.8% | 3,339 | 12.0% |
| Oklahoma | 45 | 566,418 | 17.2% | 272,115 | 12.8% | 51,682 | 20.6% | 111,130 | 30.9% | 10,071 | 13.9% | 72,822 | 29.4% | 48,598 | 20.3% |
| New Mexico | 46 | 304,975 | 17.2% | 63,474 | 10.0% | 4,388 | 13.0% | 175,795 | 19.8% | 3,010 | 11.6% | 55,293 | 33.9% | 3,014 | 10.5% |
| Alaska | 47 | 115,862 | 17.4% | 50,716 | 12.4% | 3,321 | 14.4% | 7,675 | 16.7% | 9,178 | 19.5% | 32,815 | 35.9% | 12,157 | 24.1% |
| Georgia | 48 | 1,538,067 | 17.5% | 581,298 | 12.7% | 527,373 | 18.8% | 340,657 | 38.3% | 62,961 | 18.7% | 3,981 | 24.1% | 21,797 | 13.2% |
| Nevada | 49 | 445,466 | 18.5% | 149,574 | 12.8% | 37,048 | 18.2% | 213,065 | 29.1% | 29,914 | 15.1% | 5,817 | 26.5% | 10,050 | 12.0% |
| Florida | 50 | 3,144.686 | 19.7% | 1,215,737 | 14.7% | 603.537 | 21.9% | 1,193.992 | 28.8% | 80.865 | 17.9% | 9.997 | 28.3% | 40.558 | 13.1% |
| Texas | 51 | 4,907,228 | 20.8% | 1,160,839 | 12.0% | 512,863 | 18.2% | 3,012,928 | 31.5% | 163,626 | 15.7% | , 9,341 | 16.8% | 47,631 | 12.4% |

HOPE Goal

97%

of non-elderly people with health insurance coverage

Calculated as the average portion of non-elderly adults with incomes 400% FPL or greater who have health insurance coverage in MA, IA, MN, WI, and HI.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?



HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE

Table shows the number of additional non-elderly people (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's non-elderly population (% to Goal) who would need to obtain health insurance coverage to achieve the HOPE Goal in each state, overall and by income. Nonelderly people are defined as those under age 65.

| | | Ove | erall | 0-99% | 6 FPL | 100-199% FPL | | 200-299 | 9% FPL | 300-399 | 400+% FPL | | |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|---|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 107,490 | 2.0% | 29,133 | 4.4% | 35,383 | 5.2% | 29,477 | 4.2% | 13,497 | 2.0% | 0 | |
| District of Columbia | 2 | 20,642 | 3.9% | 5,068 | 5.1% | 5,584 | 8.0% | 5,033 | 8.7% | 2,793 | 5.2% | 2163 | |
| Hawaii | 3 | 47,665 | 4.2% | 16,536 | 12.0% | 15,240 | 9.0% | 9,577 | 4.9% | 4,268 | 2.4% | 2,044 | |
| Vermont | 4 | 22,520 | 4.4% | 3,432 | 5.3% | 7,318 | 8.7% | 6,371 | 7.2% | 3,431 | 4.5% | 1,968 | |
| Minnesota | 5 | 258,612 | 5.7% | 73,002 | 13.3% | 92,647 | 13.7% | 65,028 | 9.2% | 27,935 | 4.1% | 0 | |
| lowa | 6 | 152,303 | 6.0% | 51,101 | 15.0% | 54,997 | 12.8% | 33,467 | 7.2% | 12,738 | 3.1% | 0 | |
| Connecticut | 7 | 198,800 | 6.7% | 44,597 | 13.6% | 61,405 | 16.6% | 46,740 | 12.5% | 25,884 | 6.8% | 20,173 | |
| Delaware | 8 | 51,737 | 6.9% | 11,241 | 11.5% | 17,418 | 14.2% | 11,792 | 10.1% | 6,132 | 5.6% | 5,153 | |
| Wisconsin | 9 | 330,754 | 6.9% | 107,495 | 15.9% | 118,571 | 14.9% | 71,894 | 8.8% | 25,215 | 3.4% | 7,579 | |
| Maryland | 10 | 375,560 | 7.5% | 86,417 | 16.7% | 116,262 | 18.0% | 87,439 | 12.9% | 46,830 | 7.3% | 38,613 | |
| Pennsylvania | 11 | 822,948 | 7.9% | 240,948 | 16.0% | 292,480 | 17.5% | 176,798 | 10.3% | 73,555 | 4.9% | 39,168 | |
| Rhode Island | 12 | 70,773 | 8.2% | 19,394 | 14.9% | 21,791 | 16.4% | 15,557 | 12.4% | 7,643 | 6.5% | 6,388 | |
| North Dakota | 13 | 49,190 | 8.4% | 14,553 | 20.4% | 14,464 | 16.9% | 11,391 | 11.1% | 5,032 | 5.4% | 3,749 | |
| New York | 14 | 1,424,737 | 8.7% | 357,797 | 13.4% | 439,728 | 16.4% | 303,213 | 12.8% | 171,276 | 8.3% | 152,723 | |
| New Hampshire | 15 | 96,274 | 8.8% | 21,674 | 21.2% | 28,897 | 20.8% | 23,822 | 14.5% | 13,786 | 8.3% | 8,094 | |
| Michigan | 16 | 728,709 | 8.8% | 258,667 | 17.0% | 242,274 | 16.3% | 136,863 | 9.9% | 57,795 | 5.0% | 33,109 | |
| Ohio | 17 | 861,902 | 9.0% | 275,561 | 16.6% | 306,355 | 18.1% | 175,694 | 10.7% | 69,663 | 5.0% | 34,629 | |
| Nebraska | 18 | 144,633 | 9.3% | 50,107 | 23.6% | 56,333 | 19.8% | 25,675 | 9.0% | 9,413 | 3.8% | 3,105 | |
| Maine | 19 | 103,489 | 9.6% | 24,298 | 15.1% | 32,020 | 15.9% | 25,907 | 13.6% | 13,583 | 8.4% | 7,680 | |
| Illinois | 20 | 1.094.495 | 10.0% | 326.944 | 19.6% | 367,273 | 19.8% | 226,596 | 13.3% | 105,194 | 7.1% | 68,488 | |
| Virginia | 21 | 719,179 | 10.4% | 213,391 | 25.6% | 235,191 | 22.8% | 151,485 | 14.6% | 66,172 | 7.2% | 52,940 | |
| Washington | 22 | 616,751 | 10.5% | 176.720 | 20.9% | 199.451 | 20.5% | 131,908 | 14.1% | 60.319 | 7.7% | 48,353 | |
| South Dakota | 23 | 72.638 | 10.5% | 25,649 | 25.1% | 24,448 | 19.2% | 12,363 | 9.3% | 6.360 | 5.6% | 3,817 | |
| Kansas | 24 | 260.354 | 10.7% | 90,990 | 25.4% | 90.508 | 20.1% | 49,919 | 11.4% | 18.839 | 5.2% | 10.098 | |
| Kentucky | 25 | 394,851 | 10.8% | 150,246 | 20.4% | 129,693 | 17.8% | 70,156 | 11.2% | 28.337 | 5.5% | 16,418 | |
| New Jersev | 26 | 808.910 | 10.8% | 198,109 | 23.6% | 253.938 | 25.6% | 175.443 | 18.1% | 93.276 | 10.2% | 88.143 | |
| West Virginia | 27 | 168.421 | 11.3% | 54.991 | 18.5% | 55.013 | 18.3% | 32,190 | 12.2% | 14.794 | 6.9% | 11.433 | |
| Colorado | 28 | 512,196 | 11.4% | 131.540 | 21.3% | 170.921 | 22.6% | 117.308 | 16.4% | 54.108 | 8.9% | 38.319 | |
| Missouri | 29 | 595.600 | 11.9% | 206.843 | 24.7% | 210.859 | 22.0% | 110.360 | 12.3% | 43.039 | 6.0% | 24,499 | |
| Utah | 30 | 303,368 | 11.9% | 93.757 | 27.4% | 106.006 | 20.7% | 58.041 | 10.8% | 25.554 | 6.3% | 20.010 | |
| Oregon | 31 | 388,938 | 12.0% | 120.633 | 20.4% | 136.202 | 21.0% | 77,156 | 13.9% | 33,101 | 7.8% | 21.845 | |
| Alabama | 32 | 490,533 | 12.2% | 202.264 | 24.8% | 160.301 | 19.4% | 76.311 | 11.3% | 32.027 | 6.0% | 19.631 | |
| Tennessee | 33 | 673.047 | 12.5% | 235.575 | 22.8% | 233.715 | 20.8% | 120.863 | 12.6% | 50.732 | 6.9% | 32,162 | |
| Indiana | 34 | 685.392 | 12.5% | 227.217 | 24.6% | 231,359 | 22.0% | 136,458 | 13.6% | 55,253 | 6.6% | 35,104 | |
| Wyoming | 35 | 61.771 | 12.7% | 15.612 | 25.7% | 18.658 | 23.6% | 11.583 | 14.1% | 6.825 | 8.8% | 9.093 | |
| Arkansas | 36 | 340,590 | 14.0% | 123.043 | 24.4% | 111.222 | 19.8% | 59,876 | 13.7% | 27.096 | 8.7% | 19,352 | |
| California | 37 | 4.605.960 | 14.0% | 1,278,086 | 22.6% | 1.623.101 | 24.8% | 910,110 | 17.9% | 426.379 | 11.2% | 368,283 | |
| North Carolina | 38 | 1,160,023 | 14.2% | 411.680 | 26.7% | 406,146 | 24.1% | 206.068 | 14.6% | 82.723 | 7.6% | 53,406 | |
| Idaho | 39 | 192,752 | 14.2% | 59,187 | 26.1% | 68,244 | 21.3% | 38.036 | 13.7% | 15.262 | 8.0% | 12.024 | |
| South Carolina | 40 | 572.854 | 14.7% | 205.001 | 26.5% | 193,245 | 23.3% | 99,738 | 14.7% | 39.343 | 7.5% | 35,527 | |
| Louisiana | 41 | 588,477 | 15.1% | 203.857 | 25.4% | 178,957 | 23.2% | 100.110 | 16.5% | 53,382 | 10.5% | 52,171 | |
| Arizona | 42 | 830,987 | 15.3% | 259,819 | 23.9% | 290.327 | 25.5% | 153,319 | 16.4% | 68,699 | 9.9% | 58,823 | |
| Mississippi | 43 | 388,715 | 15.6% | 151,118 | 25.1% | 122.273 | 21.7% | 64.630 | 14.7% | 28.576 | 9.2% | 22,118 | |
| Montana | 44 | 133.908 | 16.2% | 38.283 | 27.9% | 46.322 | 27.3% | 23.600 | 15.7% | 14.057 | 11.3% | 11.646 | |
| New Mexico | 45 | 290.560 | 16.6% | 99.709 | 25.5% | 91.667 | 23.8% | 52.230 | 18.2% | 23.891 | 11.2% | 23.064 | |
| Oklahoma | 46 | 535.042 | 16.8% | 169.386 | 29.3% | 175.592 | 25.7% | 99.556 | 17.0% | 49.812 | 11.2% | 40.698 | |
| Georgia | 47 | 1.434.799 | 16.8% | 523.884 | 31.5% | 469.511 | 27.2% | 242.477 | 17.0% | 111.015 | 10.2% | 87.911 | |
| Alaska | 48 | 111.619 | 17.2% | 19.453 | 28.3% | 28.632 | 27.7% | 20.904 | 21.9% | 19.673 | 20.9% | 22.957 | |
| Nevada | 49 | 427.853 | 18.1% | 132.818 | 33.7% | 137.810 | 27.7% | 84.212 | 18.9% | 37.329 | 11.4% | 35.684 | |
| Florida | 50 | 2,975,891 | 19.2% | 865,331 | 30.8% | 971.092 | 29.6% | 599.327 | 21.8% | 284.015 | 13.8% | 256.126 | |
| Texas | 51 | 4,650,768 | 20.5% | 1,400,999 | 33.4% | 1,568,663 | 33.0% | 882,301 | 23.7% | 421,910 | 15.0% | 376,895 | |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY INCOME

to Goal 0.0% 0.9% 0.4% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 1.7% 0.4% 1.5% 1.0% 1.8% 1.6% 2.3% 1.5% 1.2% 1.1% 0.6% 2.1% 1.6% 1.7% 2.1% 1.8% 1.2% 1.6% 2.3% 2.7% 2.2% 1.5% 2.7% 2.1% 1.7% 2.1% 2.1% 4.8% 3.1% 3.1% 2.2% 3.5% 3.2% 4.3% 3.7% 3.8% 4.7% 4.9% 4.5% 3.4% 8.0% 5.1% 5.6% 5.2%

HOPE Goal

97%

of non-elderly people with health insurance coverage

Calculated as the average portion of non-elderly adults with incomes 400% FPL or greater who have health insurance coverage in MA, IA, MN, WI, and HI.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?


AFFORDABLE HEALTH CARE

Tables show the portion of adults age 25 and older who did not delay or forego any medical care they needed due to cost in the past year in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2012-2014 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------|-------|----------|-------------------|--------|------------------|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/PI | AI/AN | Multiracial | | | | |
| North Dakota | 1 | 92.8% | 93.5% | 87.2% | 84.1% | 93.8% | 88.1% | 75.0% | | | | |
| Hawaii | 2 | 91.8% | 92.1% | 97.4% | 83.0% | 93.6% | 96.1% | 89.8% | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 3 | 91.5% | 93.1% | 88.6% | 79.5% | 93.4% | 90.2% | 83.0% | | | | |
| Vermont | 4 | 91.0% | 91.4% | 74.1% | 90.5% | 89.1% | 74.8% | 85.5% | | | | |
| Iowa | 5 | 90.7% | 91.7% | 83.5% | 75.3% | 90.3% | 80.6% | 81.9% | | | | |
| Minnesota | 6 | 90.3% | 91.7% | 77.9% | 76.0% | 91.1% | 86.6% | 82.0% | | | | |
| South Dakota | 7 | 89.8% | 91.4% | 75.0% | 78.9% | 92.7% | 79.0% | 72.3% | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 8 | 89.8% | 93.7% | 87.4% | 84.8% | 90.5% | 89.8% | 90.5% | | | | |
| Maine | 9 | 89.6% | 89.9% | 84.4% | 85.5% | 86.6% | 81.8% | 83.2% | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 88.8% | 89.5% | 68.3% | 77.8% | 90.4% | 65.3% | 72.8% | | | | |
| Delaware | 11 | 88.4% | 90.8% | 84.4% | 75.7% | 91.1% | 77.5% | 89.9% | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 12 | 88.4% | 90.2% | 74.9% | 74.6% | 88.7% | 89.5% | 75.0% | | | | |
| Maryland | 13 | 88.3% | 91.9% | 86.1% | 69.6% | 90.3% | 90.0% | 84.7% | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 14 | 88.3% | 90.4% | 81.8% | 72.2% | 86.6% | 85.3% | 70.3% | | | | |
| Connecticut | 15 | 88.3% | 91.2% | 83.4% | 74.2% | 91.5% | 82.2% | 87.8% | | | | |
| Nebraska | 16 | 87.7% | 89.8% | 71.4% | 74.0% | 90.7% | 75.3% | 80.6% | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 86.9% | 89.8% | 84.8% | 70.0% | 84.5% | 74.7% | 70.5% | | | | |
| Kansas | 18 | 86.9% | 89.3% | 75.9% | 74.1% | 87.3% | 75.6% | 75.0% | | | | |
| Illinois | 19 | 86.8% | 90.6% | 82.2% | 72.6% | 90.6% | 70.5% | 75.7% | | | | |
| Wyoming | 20 | 86.6% | 88.4% | 84.7% | 70.3% | 98.7% | 70.9% | 83.2% | | | | |
| Ohio | 21 | 86.5% | 87.6% | 81.2% | 79.6% | 87.1% | 63.5% | 79.5% | | | | |
| Alaska | 22 | 86.5% | 87.9% | 75.6% | 75.6% | 81.6% | 89.0% | 87.2% | | | | |
| Missouri | 23 | 86.1% | 87.2% | 80.2% | 76.7% | 92.9% | 76.6% | 81.7% | | | | |
| Virginia | 24 | 86.1% | 88.9% | 82.5% | 69.1% | 87.7% | 69.5% | 86.5% | | | | |
| Colorado | 25 | 86.0% | 89.1% | 77.5% | 75.3% | 88.0% | 77.6% | 81.1% | | | | |
| New York | 26 | 85.7% | 90.0% | 82.5% | 73.4% | 85.6% | 79.4% | 81.5% | | | | |
| Washington | 27 | 85.6% | 87.6% | 80.9% | 69.4% | 90.4% | 85.8% | 79.4% | | | | |
| New Jersev | 28 | 85.4% | 90.1% | 81.8% | 69.9% | 88.8% | 85.1% | 83.6% | | | | |
| Utah | 29 | 85.1% | 87.4% | 75.4% | 71.6% | 84.4% | 71.6% | 77.6% | | | | |
| Michigan | 30 | 84.9% | 86.6% | 79.2% | 71.2% | 89.3% | 77.5% | 75.8% | | | | |
| Indiana | 31 | 84.8% | 86.6% | 77.2% | 70.8% | 87.9% | 73.0% | 71.9% | | | | |
| California | 32 | 84.8% | 89.6% | 86.4% | 77.2% | 88.0% | 78.6% | 81.1% | | | | |
| Oregon | 33 | 84.1% | 85.6% | 77.3% | 72.6% | 88.0% | 79.0% | 75.0% | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 34 | 83.9% | 85.8% | 78.0% | 67.6% | 86.2% | 87.7% | 80.2% | | | | |
| Tennessee | 35 | 83.1% | 84.1% | 80.6% | 71.0% | 88.1% | 77.5% | 83.3% | | | | |
| Arizona | 36 | 82.8% | 87.2% | 78.6% | 71.0% | 91.2% | 83.3% | 76.8% | | | | |
| West Virginia | 37 | 82.6% | 83.2% | 71.9% | 74.2% | 87.1% | 76.6% | 70.0% | | | | |
| Alahama | 38 | 82.6% | 84.8% | 71.5% | 68.8% | 94.6% | 73.3% | 78.9% | | | | |
| North Carolina | 30 | 82.5% | 85.6% | 78.0% | 68.3% | 85.2% | 70.3% | 70.576 | | | | |
| North Carolina | 39 | 02.370 | 05.070 | 70.0% | 74.4% | 03.3 /0 99 70/ | 70.3% | 74.1% | | | | |
| Kontucky | 40 | 82.3% | 82.9% | 79.5% | 74.4% | 82.2% | 60.4% | 73.5% | | | | |
| Now Movico | 41 | 02.570 | 97.6% | 9.5% | 74.370 | 03.3% | 92 19/ | 91.9% | | | | |
| South Carolina | 42 | 81 /% | 8/ 1% | 76.7% | 70.1% | 92.376 88.4% | 60.0% | 70.2% | | | | |
| Elorida | 45 | 91.39/ | 86.09/ | 76.6% | 71.470 | 00.4% | 60.9% | 71.00/ | | | | |
| Louisiana | 44 | 01.2% | 84.0% | 70.0% | 71.4% | 02.0% | 62.0% | / 1.0% / 1.0% | | | | |
| Louisiana | 45 | 01.0% | 04.5% | 74.5% | 71.5% | 06.50 | 05.0% | 01.2% | | | | |
| rexds Coordin | 40 | 80.5% | 07.9% | 77.9% | 71.4% | 00.5% | 00.1% | 79.2% | | | | |
| Georgia | 4/ | 80.5% | 84.8% | 74.9% | 66.7% | 88.2% | 77.9% | 76.2% | | | | |
| Arkansas | 48 | 80.4% | 83.4% | 12.1% | 61.6% | 86.2% | 73.5% | 65.7% | | | | |
| iviississippi | 49 | 79.1% | 83.7% | /1./% | 72.1% | 80.0% | 69.2% | /5.9% | | | | |
| idano" | | | 85.6% | | 72.3% | 84.0% | 81.0% | 67.1% | | | | |
| wontana | | | 8/8% | | /8.5% | 86 /% | /8.9% | /6.6% | | | | |

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|---------|--------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 1 | 92.7% | 89.2% | 91.8% | 92.3% | 95.6% | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 2 | 91.6% | 85.3% | 89.8% | 91.8% | 95.2% | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 3 | 91.4% | 81.5% | 90.3% | 90.7% | 95.5% | | | | | |
| Vermont | 4 | 91.0% | 85.6% | 89.5% | 90.0% | 94.4% | | | | | |
| lowa | 5 | 90.9% | 81.2% | 91.0% | 90.1% | 95.0% | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 6 | 90.3% | 82.0% | 89.3% | 90.0% | 93.3% | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 7 | 90.3% | 84.9% | 86.1% | 87.5% | 93.7% | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 8 | 90.1% | 83.7% | 89.1% | 90.3% | 93.1% | | | | | |
| Maine | 9 | 89.7% | 86.8% | 88.1% | 88.7% | 93.6% | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 88.8% | 79.8% | 86.3% | 88.0% | 93.7% | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 11 | 88.6% | 77.4% | 87.9% | 87.6% | 94.4% | | | | | |
| Maryland | 12 | 88.6% | 75.5% | 86.3% | 88.1% | 94.4% | | | | | |
| Delaware | 13 | 88.5% | 75.8% | 88.6% | 88.0% | 93.9% | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 14 | 88.4% | 82.0% | 87.6% | 86.8% | 93.5% | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 15 | 88.4% | 76.9% | 86.0% | 87.2% | 94.3% | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 16 | 87.9% | 72.8% | 87.3% | 87.8% | 93.6% | | | | | |
| Montana | 17 | 87.1% | 75.7% | 86.2% | 86.4% | 91.7% | | | | | |
| Kansas | 18 | 87.0% | 73.8% | 85.9% | 86.2% | 93.3% | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 86.9% | 74.6% | 86.5% | 86.2% | 93.9% | | | | | |
| Illinois | 20 | 86.8% | 73.5% | 86.0% | 87.0% | 92.6% | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 21 | 86.8% | 73.6% | 84.9% | 86.4% | 93.4% | | | | | |
| Ohio | 22 | 86.6% | 76.9% | 85.3% | 85.8% | 93.4% | | | | | |
| Alaska | 23 | 86.5% | 81.5% | 85.7% | 85.6% | 89.7% | | | | | |
| Virginia | 24 | 86.1% | 72.3% | 83.6% | 85.1% | 93.4% | | | | | |
| Colorado | 25 | 86.1% | 71.9% | 84.5% | 84.0% | 92.3% | | | | | |
| Washington | 26 | 85.8% | 73.1% | 83.5% | 84.7% | 92.6% | | | | | |
| New York | 27 | 85.7% | 74.4% | 85.9% | 84.1% | 91.8% | | | | | |
| New Jersev | 28 | 85.7% | 72.6% | 83.4% | 85.0% | 92.1% | | | | | |
| Missouri | 29 | 85.5% | 76.0% | 85.0% | 84.4% | 91.7% | | | | | |
| Utah | 30 | 85.2% | 71.5% | 82.5% | 85.1% | 91.4% | | | | | |
| California | 31 | 85.1% | 74.8% | 83.2% | 86.0% | 91.7% | | | | | |
| Indiana | 32 | 85.0% | 70.4% | 85.2% | 83.9% | 93.6% | | | | | |
| Michigan | 33 | 84.9% | 73.8% | 83.9% | 83.6% | 92.5% | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 34 | 84.2% | 68.6% | 83.0% | 85.2% | 93.2% | | | | | |
| Oregon | 35 | 84.1% | 69.8% | 81.9% | 83.3% | 91.9% | | | | | |
| Idaho | 36 | 84.0% | 70.1% | 83.1% | 84.1% | 90.8% | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 37 | 83.4% | 73.8% | 81.5% | 83.9% | 91.4% | | | | | |
| Arizona | 38 | 83.3% | 66.5% | 81.6% | 84.6% | 92.1% | | | | | |
| Alahama | 30 | 83.1% | 70.7% | 81.3% | 84.2% | 92.8% | | | | | |
| Most Virginia | 40 | 82.8% | 75.6% | 82.3% | 82.0% | 92.076 | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 40 | 82.8% | 73.078 | 80.6% | 82.0% | 91.1% | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 41 | 02.070 | 60.0% | 92.10/ | 02.470 | 91.470 | | | | | |
| Nevaua New Movico | 42 | 02.070 | 70.4% | 91.0% | 02.0% | 90.276 | | | | | |
| Kentuelus | 45 | 02.4% | 70.4% | 01.970 | 02.0% | 90.4% | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 44 | 82.4% | 74.1% | 81.0% | 81.9% | 91.6% | | | | | |
| Towas | 45 | 01.0% | 69.6% | 79.0% | 00.0% | 91.4% | | | | | |
| Texas | 40 | 81.2% | 68.0% | 79.8% | 82.2% | 90.6% | | | | | |
| Fiorida | 4/ | 81.2% | 71.7% | 79.8% | 80.3% | 88.5% | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 48 | 81.1% | 69.8% | 80.2% | 81.6% | 90.7% | | | | | |
| Georgia | 49 | 80.8% | 65.3% | 79.3% | 81.2% | 90.2% | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 50 | 80.7% | 68.0% | 80.6% | 81.3% | 89.8% | | | | | |
| Mississippi | 51 | 79.5% | 68.4% | 77.2% | 81.6% | 89.6% | | | | | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

HOPE Goal

95% of adults with affordable health care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults who had affordable health care in ND, MA, HI, IA, and MD.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO **THEY SHOW?**

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



AFFORDABLE HEALTH CARE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to have affordable health care to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ονε | erall | Wh | ite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | AI/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|------------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 12,998 | 2.4% | 8,259 | 1.7% | 597 | 7.9% | 1,236 | 11.0% | 96 | 1.4% | 1,652 | 7.0% | 1,157 | 20.1% |
| Hawaii | 2 | 36,174 | 3.3% | 8,465 | 3.1% | - | 0.0% | 10,135 | 12.1% | 8,464 | 1.6% | - | 0.0% | 9,110 | 5.4% |
| Massachusetts | 3 | 189,487 | 3.6% | 83,161 | 2.0% | 21,443 | 6.6% | 72,225 | 15.7% | 5,314 | 1.7% | 455 | 4.9% | 6,888 | 12.2% |
| Vermont | 4 | 20,595 | 4.1% | 18,020 | 3.8% | 925 | 21.0% | 340 | 4.7% | 408 | 6.0% | 334 | 20.4% | 567 | 9.6% |
| Iowa | 5 | 104,721 | 4.5% | 72,548 | 3.4% | 7,343 | 11.7% | 19,206 | 19.9% | 2,298 | 4.9% | 914 | 14.6% | 2,412 | 13.3% |
| Minnesota | 6 | 200,303 | 4.9% | 120,846 | 3.4% | 32,810 | 17.3% | 30,409 | 19.2% | 6,733 | 4.1% | 3,331 | 8.5% | 6,175 | 13.1% |
| South Dakota | 7 | 33,628 | 5.4% | 20,419 | 3.7% | 1,793 | 20.2% | 2,588 | 16.3% | 170 | 2.4% | 7,021 | 16.2% | 1,637 | 22.8% |
| District of Columbia | 8 | 28,191 | 5.4% | 2,876 | 1.4% | 18,825 | 7.8% | 4,980 | 10.4% | 1,000 | 4.7% | 66 | 5.4% | 444 | 4.7% |
| Maine | 9 | 58,799 | 5.5% | 53,467 | 5.3% | 1,107 | 10.7% | 1,153 | 9.7% | 943 | 8.6% | 843 | 13.4% | 1,286 | 11.9% |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 66,435 | 6.4% | 55,064 | 5.7% | 2,942 | 26.8% | 4,506 | 17.3% | 1,110 | 4.7% | 664 | 29.8% | 2,149 | 22.4% |
| Delaware | 11 | 48,098 | 6.7% | 21,290 | 4.4% | 15,212 | 10.7% | 9,714 | 19.4% | 1,012 | 4.1% | 416 | 17.6% | 455 | 5.2% |
| Wisconsin | 12 | 297,551 | 6.8% | 188,668 | 5.0% | 49,312 | 20.3% | 43,849 | 20.6% | 6,300 | 6.4% | 2,008 | 5.6% | 7,414 | 20.1% |
| Maryland | 13 | 309,333 | 6.8% | 82,835 | 3.2% | 116,256 | 9.0% | 89,665 | 25.6% | 13,397 | 4.9% | 575 | 5.1% | 6,605 | 10.4% |
| Pennsylvania | 14 | 686,099 | 6.8% | 388,976 | 4.8% | 132,743 | 13.3% | 116,155 | 22.9% | 25,242 | 8.5% | 1,350 | 9.8% | 21,633 | 24.8% |
| Connecticut | 15 | 191,769 | 6.9% | 81,782 | 4.0% | 30,377 | 11.7% | 72,630 | 21.0% | 4,184 | 3.7% | 697 | 12.9% | 2,099 | 7.4% |
| Nebraska | 16 | 104,048 | 7.5% | 62,643 | 5.3% | 13,745 | 23.7% | 22,589 | 21.1% | 1,221 | 4.4% | 1,978 | 19.8% | 1,871 | 14.6% |
| Rhode Island | 17 | 68,890 | 8.2% | 35,211 | 5.3% | 4,417 | 10.4% | 23,199 | 25.2% | 2,813 | 10.6% | 669 | 20.5% | 2,580 | 24.7% |
| Kansas | 18 | 178,840 | 8.3% | 101,480 | 5.8% | 23,264 | 19.2% | 39,869 | 21.0% | 4,500 | 7.9% | 3,436 | 19.6% | 6,291 | 20.2% |
| Illinois | 19 | 821,108 | 8.4% | 295,202 | 4.5% | 173,545 | 12.9% | 308,873 | 22.6% | 22,759 | 4.6% | 3,609 | 24.6% | 17,120 | 19.5% |
| Wyoming | 20 | 37,531 | 8.6% | 25,705 | 6.8% | 568 | 10.4% | 8,738 | 24.9% | - | 0.0% | 1,950 | 24.3% | 570 | 11.9% |
| Ohio | 21 | 769,159 | 8.7% | 556,521 | 7.6% | 141,991 | 13.9% | 36,892 | 15.6% | 13,342 | 8.1% | 5,517 | 31.7% | 14,895 | 15.6% |
| Alaska | 22 | 46,837 | 8.7% | 26,390 | 7.3% | 3,614 | 19.5% | 5,720 | 19.5% | 4,868 | 13.5% | 4,358 | 6.2% | 1,887 | 8.0% |
| Missouri | 23 | 417,287 | 9.0% | 302,963 | 7.9% | 75,235 | 15.0% | 26,200 | 18.4% | 1,923 | 2.2% | 3,565 | 18.5% | 7,401 | 13.4% |
| Virginia | 24 | 572,652 | 9.1% | 262,244 | 6.3% | 148,374 | 12.6% | 121,537 | 26.0% | 27,860 | 7.4% | 4,475 | 25.7% | 8,163 | 8.7% |
| Colorado | 25 | 363,147 | 9.2% | 175,452 | 6.0% | 26,447 | 17.7% | 140,286 | 19.8% | 8,533 | 7.2% | 4,513 | 17.5% | 7,917 | 14.0% |
| New York | 26 | 1,453,517 | 9.5% | 471,508 | 5.2% | 275,884 | 12.7% | 557,534 | 21.7% | 118,560 | 9.5% | 6,742 | 15.8% | 23,289 | 13.6% |
| Washington | 27 | 504,823 | 9.5% | 302,919 | 7.6% | 26,175 | 14.2% | 127,125 | 25.7% | 20,981 | 4.7% | 6,271 | 9.4% | 21,352 | 15.7% |
| New Jersey | 28 | 666,663 | 9.7% | 210,492 | 5.1% | 115,014 | 13.4% | 294,196 | 25.2% | 38,589 | 6.4% | 959 | 10.1% | 7,413 | 11.6% |
| Utah | 29 | 198,889 | 10.1% | 125,701 | 7.8% | 3,676 | 19.8% | 54,240 | 23.6% | 6,755 | 10.7% | 4,523 | 23.5% | 3,996 | 17.5% |
| wichigan | 30 | 779,611 | 10.2% | 512,951 | 8.6% | 161,691 | 16.0% | 67,599 | 24.0% | 11,515 | 5.9% | 7,320 | 17.6% | 18,534 | 19.4% |
| Indiana | 31 | 510,254 | 10.3% | 353,425 | 8.6% | 75,848 | 17.9% | 61,186 | 24.3% | 6,522 | 7.3% | 2,558 | 22.2% | 10,714 | 23.3% |
| California | 32 | 2,996,526 | 10.4% | 093,057 | 5.6% | 148,604 | 0.0% | 1,753,489 | 17.9% | 301,445 | 7.2% | 21,250 | 10.5% | 10,001 | 14.1% |
| Oregon | 33 | 337,071 | 11.1% | 235,055 | 9.5% | 8,934 | 17.9% | 65,279 | 22.5% | 9,286 | 7.1% | 5,351 | 10.2% | 13,167 | 20.2% |
| Toppossoo | 24 | 524,910 | 11.3% | 192,019 | 9.5% | 54,797 | 17.1% | 29,037 16 122 | 27.5% | 5,201 | 9.0% | 10,102 | 1.5% | 5 505 | 11.0% |
| Arizona | 36 | 608 255 | 12.170 | 245 082 | 8.0% | 30.956 | 14.5% | 202 602 | 24.170 | 6 244 | 1.1% | 2,433 | 11.0% | 11 542 | 18.4% |
| Wost Virginia | 30 | 183 860 | 12.570 | 165 020 | 12.0% | 11 560 | 22.3% | 292,092 | 20.9% | 0,244 | 8.0% | 575 | 18.6% | 2 271 | 17.478 |
| Alahama | 38 | 466,000 | 12.5% | 263 563 | 10.3% | 160 248 | 17.3% | 31.946 | 26.3% | 2/1 | 0.0% | ۶۲5 ۸ ۸89 | 21.9% | 5 5 1 3 | 16.3% |
| North Carolina | 30 | 943 268 | 12.0% | 484 151 | 9.6% | 265 379 | 17.3% | 139 563 | 26.9% | 17 645 | 9.8% | 20,420 | 24.8% | 16 109 | 21.0% |
| Nevada | 40 | 266 662 | 12.076 | 113 110 | 9.0% | 203,373 | 17.2% | 101 288 | 20.3% | 11,043 | 6.4% | 20,420 4 484 | 24.0% | 6 999 | 16.0% |
| Kentucky | 40 | 433 240 | 12.7% | 361 746 | 12 3% | 39 376 | 15.6% | 18 094 | 20.6% | 4 959 | 11.8% | 2 5 3 3 | 34.8% | 6 5 3 2 | 21.7% |
| New Mexico | 42 | 203,100 | 12.9% | 52,644 | 7.6% | 3.623 | 12.4% | 128,740 | 19.0% | 4,555 690 | 2.9% | 15,116 | 12.0% | 2,286 | 13.3% |
| South Carolina | 43 | 499,822 | 13.7% | 268,164 | 11.0% | 177,197 | 18 5% | 38,317 | 23.8% | 3,563 | 6.8% | 4.665 | 35.1% | 7,916 | 24.9% |
| Florida | 44 | 2,139,045 | 13.9% | 838,287 | 9.1% | 403.178 | 18.6% | 801.330 | 23.8% | 49,726 | 12 3% | 10,160 | 25.4% | 36,364 | 23.4% |
| Louisiana | 45 | 494 563 | 14.2% | 222,335 | 10.2% | 217,534 | 20.6% | 35,258 | 23.6% | 10,480 | 17.3% | 6.613 | 31.3% | 2,343 | 7 9% |
| Texas | 46 | 2,718.107 | 14.2% | 671.730 | 7.2% | 380.810 | 17.2% | 1,555.619 | 23.7% | 72.264 | 8.7% | 9,968 | 15.0% | 27.716 | 15.9% |
| Georgia | 47 | 1,085.432 | 14.6% | 447.249 | 10.4% | 440.951 | 20.2% | 160.911 | 28.4% | 18.610 | 6.9% | 3.021 | 17.2% | 14.689 | 18.9% |
| Arkansas | 48 | 328.959 | 14.7% | 202.664 | 11.8% | 72.185 | 22.4% | 40.163 | 33.6% | 3.050 | 9.0% | 3.419 | 21.6% | 7.479 | 29.5% |
| Mississippi | 49 | 360.551 | 16.1% | 154.506 | 11.4% | 184.174 | 23.5% | 13.205 | 23.0% | 3.397 | 15.2% | 2.547 | 25.9% | 2.722 | 19.2% |
| Idahoª | | | | 96,622 | 9.6% | | | 25,443 | 22.9% | 1,913 | 11.1% | 1,851 | 14.2% | 4,254 | 28.1% |
| Montanaª | | | | 51,460 | 7.3% | | | 3,338 | 16.6% | 516 | 8.5% | 6,523 | 16.2% | 2,368 | 18.6% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.



of adults with affordable health care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults who had affordable health care in ND, MA, HI, IA, and MD.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The percent distance values in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile, closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles, farther from the HOPE Goal.



AFFORDABLE HEALTH CARE

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to have affordable health care to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | an HS | HS G | Grad | Some | College | College | e Grad |
|----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|----------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| North Dakota | 1 | 11,317 | 2.5% | 2,360 | 5.9% | 4,203 | 3.3% | 4,754 | 2.8% | - | 0.0% |
| Hawaii | 2 | 33,410 | 3.5% | 8,645 | 9.8% | 14,398 | 5.4% | 10,366 | 3.4% | - | 0.0% |
| Massachusetts | 3 | 171,314 | 3.8% | 65,295 | 13.6% | 57,018 | 4.9% | 49,002 | 4.5% | - | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 4 | 17,977 | 4.1% | 3,489 | 9.5% | 7,559 | 5.7% | 5,785 | 5.2% | 1,145 | 0.7% |
| Iowa | 5 | 86,868 | 4.3% | 24,803 | 14.0% | 27,930 | 4.2% | 33,386 | 5.1% | 749 | 0.1% |
| Minnesota | 6 | 174,172 | 4.8% | 36,674 | 13.1% | 55,427 | 5.8% | 60,677 | 5.2% | 21,395 | 1.8% |
| District of Columbia | 7 | 21,557 | 4.9% | 5,063 | 10.2% | 7,451 | 9.1% | 5,696 | 7.6% | 3,348 | 1.4% |
| South Dakota | 8 | 27,670 | 5.1% | 5,715 | 11.4% | 10,358 | 6.0% | 8,700 | 4.9% | 2,898 | 2.0% |
| Maine | 9 | 51,619 | 5.4% | 6,931 | 8.4% | 22,546 | 7.1% | 17,979 | 6.4% | 4,162 | 1.6% |
| New Hampshire | 10 | 58,584 | 6.4% | 11,457 | 15.4% | 23,691 | 8.8% | 18,803 | 7.2% | 4,634 | 1.5% |
| Wisconsin | 11 | 251,855 | 6.5% | 63,673 | 17.7% | 90,751 | 7.2% | 89,349 | 7.5% | 8,083 | 0.8% |
| Maryland | 12 | 260,499 | 6.6% | 86,272 | 19.7% | 90,340 | 8.8% | 72,841 | 7.1% | 11,046 | 0.7% |
| Delaware | 13 | 41,447 | 6.7% | 14,287 | 19.4% | 12,827 | 6.5% | 12,060 | 7.2% | 2,273 | 1.3% |
| Pennsylvania | 14 | 590,820 | 6.7% | 127,972 | 13.2% | 245,415 | 7.6% | 176,340 | 8.3% | 41,092 | 1.7% |
| Connecticut | 15 | 166,068 | 6.8% | 47,360 | 18.2% | 62,282 | 9.2% | 49,017 | 8.0% | 7,409 | 0.8% |
| Nebraska | 16 | 87,498 | 7.3% | 25,672 | 22.3% | 26,492 | 7.9% | 29,899 | 7.4% | 5,436 | 1.6% |
| Montana | 17 | 55,343 | 8.1% | 10,073 | 19.4% | 18,329 | 8.9% | 20,048 | 8.7% | 6,893 | 3.5% |
| Kansas | 18 | 150.881 | 8.1% | 39.804 | 21.3% | 46.824 | 9.2% | 53,710 | 9.0% | 10.542 | 1.9% |
| Rhode Island | 19 | 58,769 | 8.2% | 21.732 | 20.5% | 16,988 | 8.7% | 17,195 | 9.0% | 2.854 | 1.3% |
| Illinois | 20 | 713.137 | 8.3% | 230.690 | 21.7% | 212,995 | 9.2% | 200.865 | 8.2% | 68.587 | 2.5% |
| Wyoming | 21 | 31.886 | 8.4% | 6,216 | 21.5% | 11,496 | 10.3% | 12.477 | 8.7% | 1.697 | 1.8% |
| Ohio | 22 | 668 697 | 8.6% | 160 684 | 18.3% | 264 425 | 9.8% | 209 310 | 9.4% | 34 277 | 1.7% |
| Alaska | 23 | 39 988 | 8.7% | 5 096 | 13.6% | 11 951 | 9.4% | 16.033 | 9.5% | 6 909 | 5.4% |
| Virginia | 24 | 495 477 | 9.0% | 152.248 | 22.8% | 159 / 87 | 11.6% | 1/0 715 | 10.0% | 34.026 | 1.7% |
| Colorado | 25 | 212 208 | 9.0% | 77 812 | 22.0% | 80 977 | 10.6% | 118 263 | 11.1% | 36 255 | 2.8% |
| Washington | 25 | /3/ 318 | 9.1% | 100 108 | 23.576 | 127 460 | 11.7% | 168 162 | 10.5% | 38 589 | 2.0% |
| Now York | 20 | 1 252 975 | 9.478 | 404 790 | 22.078 | 225.062 | 0.2% | 264 500 | 10.576 | 140 422 | 2.078 |
| New Jorcov | 27 | 572 762 | 9.470 | 404,730 | 20.778 | 205 209 | 11 7% | 1/2 502 | 10.1% | 66 350 | 3.4% |
| Miccouri | 20 | 200 / 12 | 9.5% | 02 721 | 10.2% | 120,509 | 10.2% | 142,392 | 10.1% | 27 021 | 3.078 2.E% |
| litab | 29 | 164.061 | 9.0% | 32,721 | 19.270 | 129,009 | 10.2% | 61 252 | 10.7 /0 | 10 019 | 5.J/0 2.90/ |
| California | 21 | 2 400 905 | 10.0% | 027 171 | 25.770 | 40,000 | 12.0% | 670.067 | 0.1% | 264 921 | 3.070 2.E9/ |
| Ladiana | 21 | 2,499,005 | 10.1% | 957,171 121 955 | 20.5% | 010,750 | 0.0% | 140.255 | 9.2% | 204,031 | 3.3% 1.E% |
| Mishimu | 32 | 436,119 | 10.2% | 131,055 | 24.8% | 146,904 | 9.9% | 140,255 | 11.3% | 15,105 | 1.5% |
| Wichigan | 33 | 0/0,019 | 10.2% | 152,031 | 21.3% | 226,170 | 11.3% | 250,694 | 11.6% | 40,325 | 2.1% |
| Oklanoma | 34 | 273,081 | 11.0% | 00,430 71,100 | 20.0% | 95,910 | 12.1% | 110.057 | 9.9% | 11,059 | 2.0% |
| Oregon | 35 | 295,702 | 11.0% | 71,198 | 25.3% | 87,590 | 13.2% | 110,957 | 11.9% | 25,957 | 3.2% |
| idano | 36 | 113,270 | 11.2% | 27,252 | 25.0% | 34,184 | 12.1% | 40,592 | 11.1% | 11,242 | 4.4% |
| Tennessee | 37 | 508,653 | 11.7% | 139,802 | 21.4% | 196,044 | 13.6% | 133,218 | 11.2% | 39,589 | 3.8% |
| Arizona | 38 | 506,326 | 11.8% | 174,536 | 28.7% | 142,673 | 13.5% | 154,195 | 10.5% | 34,923 | 3.0% |
| Alabama | 39 | 388,365 | 12.1% | 128,822 | 24.5% | 138,372 | 13.8% | 103,748 | 10.9% | 17,422 | 2.4% |
| West Virginia | 40 | 159,955 | 12.3% | 39,619 | 19.5% | 68,425 | 12.9% | 42,104 | 13.1% | 9,807 | 4.1% |
| North Carolina | 41 | 804,100 | 12.4% | 227,384 | 24.0% | 255,400 | 14.6% | 254,753 | 12.8% | 66,563 | 3.7% |
| Nevada | 42 | 231,522 | 12.5% | 71,027 | 25.2% | 62,435 | 11.7% | 77,371 | 12.5% | 20,688 | 5.0% |
| New Mexico | 43 | 172,716 | 12.7% | 54,339 | 24.8% | 47,657 | 13.2% | 53,867 | 12.6% | 16,854 | 4.8% |
| Kentucky | 44 | 374,389 | 12.7% | 102,511 | 21.1% | 140,762 | 14.1% | 108,807 | 13.3% | 22,309 | 3.5% |
| South Carolina | 45 | 429,515 | 13.6% | 120,072 | 25.3% | 145,856 | 15.3% | 133,929 | 14.3% | 29,659 | 3.7% |
| Texas | 46 | 2,281,808 | 13.9% | 825,135 | 27.2% | 639,037 | 15.4% | 618,239 | 12.9% | 199,397 | 4.5% |
| Florida | 47 | 1,894,353 | 14.0% | 430,451 | 23.4% | 620,124 | 15.4% | 602,989 | 14.8% | 240,788 | 6.7% |
| Louisiana | 48 | 422,068 | 14.0% | 130,880 | 25.4% | 153,530 | 15.0% | 108,460 | 13.5% | 29,198 | 4.4% |
| Georgia | 49 | 920,124 | 14.4% | 287,498 | 29.9% | 291,849 | 15.9% | 251,253 | 14.0% | 89,525 | 5.0% |
| Arkansas | 50 | 280,850 | 14.4% | 83,054 | 27.1% | 99,476 | 14.5% | 77,065 | 13.9% | 21,254 | 5.3% |
| Mississippi | 51 | 300,833 | 15.7% | 92,972 | 26.8% | 105,118 | 18.0% | 81,260 | 13.5% | 21,483 | 5.5% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION

HOPE Goal



of adults with affordable health care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults who had affordable health care in ND, MA, HI, IA, and MD.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The percent distance values in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile, closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles, farther from the HOPE Goal.



USUAL SOURCE OF CARE

Tables show the portion of adults age 25 and older who have someone they consider their personal health care provider in each state, overall and by race, ethnicity, and education. Source: 2012-2014 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| RACE AND ETHNICITY | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|-------|-----------------|---------------|----------|--------|-----------------|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | White | Black | Hispanic | Asian/Pl | AI/AN | Multiracial | | |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 90.2% | 92.3% | 88.2% | 79.2% | 85.5% | /6./% | 88.1% | | |
| Maine | 2 | 89.4% | 89.8% | 72.0% | 84.0% | 85.3% | 83.0% | /5./% | | |
| Vermont | 3 | 88.7% | 89.2% | 66.4% | 86.9% | 73.3% | 82.2% | 88.0% | | |
| Delaware | 4 | 88.1% | 90.5% | 87.9% | 67.5% | 78.0% | 96.8% | 88.5% | | |
| New Hampshire | 5 | 87.9% | 88.4% | 81.1% | 73.2% | 88.1% | 81.9% | 78.6% | | |
| Rhode Island | 6 | 87.9% | 91.4% | 78.3% | 69.0% | 73.3% | 81.0% | 83.2% | | |
| Pennsylvania | 7 | 87.7% | 89.3% | 84.2% | 74.7% | 77.7% | 85.6% | 78.0% | | |
| Hawaii | 8 | 87.5% | 82.4% | 84.8% | 83.2% | 91.3% | 85.6% | 86.0% | | |
| Connecticut | 9 | 86.8% | 90.6% | 81.5% | 69.1% | 78.9% | 81.1% | 83.9% | | |
| Michigan | 10 | 85.6% | 87.0% | 80.3% | 80.0% | 81.0% | 81.3% | 80.4% | | |
| New York | 11 | 84.0% | 88.1% | 84.7% | 72.4% | 75.8% | 76.9% | 81.7% | | |
| New Jersey | 12 | 83.9% | 88.9% | 83.4% | 65.6% | 83.2% | 83.6% | 88.0% | | |
| Maryland | 13 | 83.6% | 87.5% | 84.6% | 54.0% | 77.5% | 78.6% | 83.7% | | |
| lowa | 14 | 83.5% | 85.1% | 76.6% | 55.8% | 71.1% | 75.1% | 77.3% | | |
| Ohio | 15 | 83.3% | 85.2% | 75.6% | 68.6% | 66.5% | 70.9% | 78.1% | | |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 83.3% | 85.0% | 77.8% | 60.2% | 71.8% | 82.3% | 81.0% | | |
| Indiana | 17 | 83.0% | 85.6% | 75.8% | 56.6% | 68.2% | 74.7% | 76.4% | | |
| Illinois | 18 | 82.8% | 86.8% | 81.4% | 65.4% | 77.5% | 85.4% | 82.7% | | |
| Nebraska | 19 | 82.7% | 85.4% | 77.2% | 56.3% | 77.9% | 70.5% | 75.3% | | |
| Missouri | 20 | 82.6% | 83.6% | 81.0% | 69.5% | 72.0% | 81.1% | 75.3% | | |
| Kansas | 21 | 82.5% | 86.0% | 75.9% | 56.1% | 73.6% | 75.5% | 77.5% | | |
| Kentucky | 22 | 82.3% | 83.6% | 77.5% | 62.1% | 56.9% | 69.0% | 78.5% | | |
| Alabama | 23 | 80.7% | 83.0% | 76.5% | 62.2% | 79.4% | 85.6% | 81.2% | | |
| Arkansas | 24 | 80.2% | 83.4% | 75.0% | 47.0% | 60.9% | 81.2% | 84.5% | | |
| Virginia | 25 | 79.9% | 82.5% | 79.4% | 58.1% | 78.1% | 78.6% | 77.8% | | |
| Tennessee | 26 | 79.9% | 81.5% | 78.1% | 55.4% | 71.5% | 74.6% | 82.1% | | |
| South Carolina | 27 | 79.6% | 82.5% | 76.2% | 56.6% | 73.4% | 71.7% | 67.7% | | |
| West Virginia | 28 | 79.5% | 80.1% | 69.9% | 66.8% | 66.3% | 76.0% | 75.8% | | |
| Oregon | 29 | 78.9% | 80.8% | 80.1% | 64.1% | 75.8% | 72.3% | 74.2% | | |
| Oklahoma | 30 | 78.8% | 82.4% | 74.7% | 51.5% | 75.6% | 74.8% | 74.3% | | |
| District of Columbia | 31 | 78.8% | 78.8% | 81.6% | 70.6% | 63.8% | 83.0% | 79.3% | | |
| Colorado | 32 | 78.7% | 81.8% | 72.9% | 66.7% | 78.0% | 75.1% | 77.6% | | |
| North Carolina | 33 | 78.6% | 83.4% | 77.2% | 36.2% | 64.1% | 81.5% | 77.6% | | |
| Mississinni | 34 | 78.6% | 82.1% | 74.6% | 55.9% | 55.0% | 64 9% | 74 5% | | |
| South Dakota | 35 | 77.8% | 80.8% | 56.2% | 66.7% | 58.1% | 51.0% | 52.7% | | |
| Florida | 36 | 77.6% | 82.8% | 77.5% | 63.4% | 73.1% | 72 7% | 75.6% | | |
| Minnesota | 37 | 77.0% | 78.9% | 72.7% | 56.5% | 62.9% | 73.2% | 66.0% | | |
| Louisiana | 38 | 76.8% | 80.3% | 72.6% | 62.3% | 60.8% | 62.0% | 70.8% | | |
| Washington | 39 | 76.7% | 80.1% | 70.6% | 54.1% | 72.3% | 73.0% | 70.6% | | |
| North Dakota | 40 | 75.8% | 77.2% | 60.9% | 57.9% | 70.1% | 60.2% | 63.7% | | |
| Georgia | 40 | 75.6% | 81.2% | 73.5% | 45.9% | 60.8% | 73.0% | 75.3% | | |
| California | 41 | 75.6% | 83.4% | 85.4% | 43.9 <i>%</i> | 79.0% | 73.0% | 75.3% | | |
| Utab | 42 | 73.070 | 79.1% | 74 5% | E 4 99/ | 64.29/ | 62.4% | 70.1% | | |
| Arizona | 45 | 74.0% | 70.1% | 74.5% | 61 19/ | 71 79/ | 62.2% | 70.0% | | |
| Now Movico | 44 | 74.2% | 79.0% | 70.5% | 67.6% | 69.4% | 58 70/ | 70.0% | | |
| Webening | 45 | 72.5% | 70.0% | 70.5% 91.00/ | C 200 | 70.5% | 70.0% | 12.1% 60.00/ | | |
| Toyos | 40 | 72.2% | 73.0% | 01.0% | 50.3% | 70.5% | 70.9% | 72.10 | | |
| i exdS | 47 | 70.5% | 01.0% | 73.4% | 53.6% | 07.1% | 00.2% | 72.1% | | |
| Alaska | 48 | 68.8% | 70.7% | 64.0% | 68.2% | 61.8% | 63.6% | 69.5% | | |
| INEVADA | 49 | 68.2% | 74.3% | 68.7% | 51.3% | 70.5% | 48.7% | 62.3% | | |
| iuano" | | | 76.8% | | 55.6% | 67.0% | 68.7% | 70.6% | | |
| พบกาสกละ | | | /5.4% | | 64.0% | 63.8% | h5 8% | 63.0% | | |

| StatePankOverallless than HSHS GraduateSoMassachusetts190.2%84.0%82.9%87.1%1Vermont388.7%85.8%87.1%1Delaware488.2%77.5%88.8%1New Hampshire588.0%79.8%87.8%1Rhode Island687.8%87.8%88.0%1Pennylvania787.7%83.6%88.0%1Connecticut986.8%75.4%84.4%1Michigan1085.6%80.1%84.3%1New Jersey1183.9%76.1%83.2%1Naryland1383.6%74.5%83.3%1Naryland1383.3%74.5%83.3%1Naryland1483.5%74.5%83.2%1Indiana1783.0%74.5%83.2%1Nisconrin1683.2%74.5%83.2%1Niscouri2281.8%74.5%84.4%1Alabama2380.4%77.9%82.2%1Nissouri2480.4%77.9%82.2%1Alabama2380.4%77.9%79.3%1Alabama2480.4%77.9%79.3%1Nest Virginia2877.6%77.6%77.6%1North Carolina3777.8%76.4%76.5%1North Carolina <t< th=""><th></th><th colspan="10">EDUCATION</th></t<> | | EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | |
|--|----------------------|-----------|---------|--------------|-------------|----|--|--|--|--|--|
| Massachusetts 1 99.02% 84.0% 88.8% Maine 2 89.0% 82.9% 87.1% Vermont 3 88.7% 85.8% 87.1% Delaware 4 88.2% 75.7% 88.8% New Hampshire 5 88.0% 79.8% 86.3% Pennsylvani 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 85.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.2% Iowa 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Indiana 17 83.0% 74.9% 82.2% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 83.2% Netorsin 16 83.3% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri | State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Graduate | So | | | | | |
| Maine 2 89.0% 82.9% 87.1% Vermont 3 88.7% 85.8% 87.1% Delaware 4 88.2% 75.7% 88.6% New Hampshire 5 88.0% 77.8% 86.3% Rhode Island 6 87.8% 78.2% 87.8% Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 86.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 66.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.3% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Nebraska 19 82.7% 66.3% 80.4% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kansas 24 80.4% 691% 79.3% Arkansas | Massachusetts | 1 | 90.2% | 84.0% | 88.8% | | | | | | |
| Vermont 3 88.7% 85.8% 87.1% Delaware 4 88.2% 75.7% 88.8% New Hampshire 5 88.0% 79.8% 86.3% Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 88.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 66.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 66.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Imfaina 17 83.0% 74.9% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Missouri 22 81.8% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri | Maine | 2 | 89.0% | 82.9% | 87.1% | | | | | | |
| Delaware 4 88.2% 75.7% 88.8% New Hampshire 5 88.0% 79.8% 86.3% Rhode Island 6 87.8% 78.2% 87.8% Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 85.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 663.6% 83.2% Iowa 12 83.8% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Imiois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 80.4% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kansas | Vermont | 3 | 88.7% | 85.8% | 87.1% | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire 5 88.0% 79.8% 86.3% Rhode Island 6 87.8% 78.2% 87.8% Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 68.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Misconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 82.7% 66.3% 80.4% Kansas 20 82.7% 66.3% 80.2% Kansas 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 80.9% 75.3% 81.1% South | Delaware | 4 | 88.2% | 75.7% | 88.8% | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island 6 87.8% 78.2% 87.8% Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 85.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 68.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 74.5% 83.0% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.2% Imaina 17 83.0% 74.9% 82.2% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina | New Hampshire | 5 | 88.0% | 79.8% | 86.3% | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania 7 87.7% 83.6% 88.0% Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 85.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 68.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Idiana 17 83.0% 74.9% 82.3% Illinois 18 82.8% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.7% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Arkansa 24 80.9% 71.1% 79.7% South Carolina | Rhode Island | 6 | 87.8% | 78.2% | 87.8% | | | | | | |
| Hawaii 8 87.0% 83.9% 85.4% Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.8% 69.9% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.9% 82.3% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Nebraska 19 82.7% 66.3% 80.4% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 77.0% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% District of Columbia <td< td=""><td>Pennsylvania</td><td>7</td><td>87.7%</td><td>83.6%</td><td>88.0%</td><td></td></td<> | Pennsylvania | 7 | 87.7% | 83.6% | 88.0% | | | | | | |
| Connecticut 9 86.8% 75.4% 84.4% Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 68.6% 83.2% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 83.2% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 66.3% 80.4% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Missouri 22 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Yirgina 26 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% Missisisipipi< | Hawaii | 8 | 87.0% | 83.9% | 85.4% | | | | | | |
| Michigan 10 85.6% 80.1% 84.3% New Jersey 11 83.9% 66.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Kansas 24 80.9% 77.1% 80.1% Arkansas 24 80.9% 77.1% 80.1% Virginia 26 80.0% 77.1% 80.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 70.5% Oregon | Connecticut | 9 | 86.8% | 75.4% | 84.4% | | | | | | |
| New Jersey 11 83.9% 68.6% 83.2% New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Nebraska 19 82.7% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 80.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 76.5% Oregon | Michigan | 10 | 85.6% | 80.1% | 84.3% | | | | | | |
| New York 12 83.8% 76.1% 83.7% Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% Missisippi 30 78.9% 60.1% 76.5% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% North Carolina <td>New Jersey</td> <td>11</td> <td>83.9%</td> <td>68.6%</td> <td>83.2%</td> <td></td> | New Jersey | 11 | 83.9% | 68.6% | 83.2% | | | | | | |
| Maryland 13 83.6% 69.9% 83.2% Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 82.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Akasas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Akasas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Akasas 21 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 77.6% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Oklahoma <td>New York</td> <td>12</td> <td>83.8%</td> <td>76.1%</td> <td>83.7%</td> <td></td> | New York | 12 | 83.8% | 76.1% | 83.7% | | | | | | |
| Iowa 14 83.5% 74.5% 83.0% Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Ilinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 76.4% Oregon 31 78.8% 64.1% 76.5% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 61.1% 76.5% North Carolina | Maryland | 13 | 83.6% | 69.9% | 83.2% | | | | | | |
| Ohio 15 83.3% 74.9% 82.9% Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.1% South Carolina 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.2% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% North Caroli | lowa | 14 | 83.5% | 74.5% | 83.0% | | | | | | |
| Wisconsin 16 83.3% 74.9% 82.3% Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.8% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 76.6% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oclorado 33 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% North Ca | Ohio | 15 | 83.3% | 74.9% | 82.9% | | | | | | |
| Indiana 17 83.0% 72.4% 83.2% Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 78.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.2% Colarado 33 78.7% 66.1% 76.6% North Carolina 34 77.6% 77.5% 75.6% | Wisconsin | 16 | 83.3% | 74.9% | 82.3% | | | | | | |
| Illinois 18 82.8% 67.8% 83.6% Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.6% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.6% North Carolina 34 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 77.6% 74.8% <tr< td=""><td>Indiana</td><td>17</td><td>83.0%</td><td>72.4%</td><td>83.2%</td><td></td></tr<> | Indiana | 17 | 83.0% | 72.4% | 83.2% | | | | | | |
| Nebraska 19 82.7% 64.3% 82.2% Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.6% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 77.6% 67.2% 67.5% Koth Dakota 35 78.0% 77.5% 74.6% 67.5 | Illinois | 18 | 82.8% | 67.8% | 83.6% | | | | | | |
| Kansas 20 82.5% 66.3% 80.4% Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississispi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.6% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 71.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 77.6% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 77.6% Kasington 39 76.5% 77.6% 74.8% | Nebraska | 19 | 82.7% | 64.3% | 82.2% | | | | | | |
| Kentucky 21 82.4% 77.9% 82.2% Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.2% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.1% 76.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 67.1% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 76.5% 76.2% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 77.6% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.6% 74.2% < | Kansas | 20 | 82.5% | 66.3% | 80.4% | | | | | | |
| Missouri 22 81.8% 75.3% 81.1% Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 69.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 74.0% 74.6% < | Kentucky | 21 | 82.4% | 77.9% | 82.2% | | | | | | |
| Alabama 23 80.9% 75.2% 79.3% Arkansas 24 80.4% 669.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 66.5% 76.2% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 77.0% 75.6% Florida 36 77.6% 66.1% 76.5% 75.6% Kinnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% 64.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 66.5% 77.6% 74.0% 75.6% 74.6% 74.0% 75.6% 74.6% 74.6% 74.6% 74.6% 74.6% | Missouri | 22 | 81.8% | 75.3% | 81.1% | | | | | | |
| Arkansas 24 80.4% 669.1% 79.7% Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 64.1% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 66.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 66.3% 77.6% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 75.6% 67.1% Iouisiana 36 77.6% 66.3% 74.4% 67.4% Vashington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% 66.5% Georgia 40 76.0% 66.6% 74.2% 60.6% 74.2% 74.6% 72.2% | Alabama | 23 | 80.9% | 75.2% | 79.3% | | | | | | |
| Tennessee 25 80.3% 77.0% 77.6% Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 66.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 66.3.1% 76.1% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% 6 Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% 6 Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% 6 Louisiana 38 77.0% 66.6% 74.2% 6 Georgia 40 76.0% 66.6% 74.2% 7.8% North Dakota 42 | Arkansas | 24 | 80.4% | 69.1% | 79.7% | | | | | | |
| Virginia 26 80.0% 71.1% 78.1% South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% <td>Tennessee</td> <td>25</td> <td>80.3%</td> <td>77.0%</td> <td>77.6%</td> <td></td> | Tennessee | 25 | 80.3% | 77.0% | 77.6% | | | | | | |
| South Carolina 27 79.8% 70.9% 78.1% West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 66.6% 74.2% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% | Virginia | 26 | 80.0% | 71.1% | 78.1% | | | | | | |
| West Virginia 28 79.6% 77.0% 78.6% District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% <t< td=""><td>South Carolina</td><td>27</td><td>79.8%</td><td>70.9%</td><td>78.1%</td><td></td></t<> | South Carolina | 27 | 79.8% | 70.9% | 78.1% | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia 29 79.0% 77.1% 80.1% Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.1% 76.2% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 57.6% 72.2% Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% Montana 45 74.4% 59.4% 71.8% | West Virginia | 28 | 79.6% | 77.0% | 78.6% | | | | | | |
| Mississippi 30 78.9% 76.4% 76.0% Oregon 31 78.8% 66.1% 76.3% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 73.8% 1 North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% Montana 45 74.4% 59.0% 70.7% New Mexico <t< td=""><td>District of Columbia</td><td>29</td><td>79.0%</td><td>77.1%</td><td>80.1%</td><td></td></t<> | District of Columbia | 29 | 79.0% | 77.1% | 80.1% | | | | | | |
| Oregon 31 78.8% 66.1% 76.3% Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% 76.1% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% 76.5% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% 76.3% California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% 73.8% North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% 74.2% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% 74.4% Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% 74.6% Arizona 46 74.1% <td< td=""><td>Mississippi</td><td>30</td><td>78.9%</td><td>76.4%</td><td>76.0%</td><td></td></td<> | Mississippi | 30 | 78.9% | 76.4% | 76.0% | | | | | | |
| Oklahoma 32 78.8% 66.5% 76.2% Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% Montana 45 74.4% 59.0% 70.7% New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% W | Oregon | 31 | 78.8% | 64.1% | 76.3% | | | | | | |
| Colorado 33 78.7% 60.1% 76.5% North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% 5 South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% 6 Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% 6 Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% 6 Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% 6 Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% 6 Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% 6 California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% 7 North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% 7 Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% 7 Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% 7 Montana 45 74.4% 50.9% 70.7% 7 New Mexico 47 | Oklahoma | 32 | 78.8% | 66.5% | 76.2% | | | | | | |
| North Carolina 34 78.7% 64.3% 77.5% 2 South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% 2 Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% 2 Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% 2 Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% 2 Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% 2 Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% 2 California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% 2 North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% 2 Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% 2 Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% 4 Montana 45 74.4% 59.0% 70.7% 2 New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% 2 Wyoming < | Colorado | 33 | 78.7% | 60.1% | 76.5% | | | | | | |
| South Dakota 35 78.0% 72.0% 76.5% I Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% I Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% I Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% I Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% I Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% I California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% I North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% I Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% I Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% I Montana 45 74.4% 59.0% 70.7% I Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 71.8% I New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% I Yopoming 48< | North Carolina | 34 | 78.7% | 64.3% | 77.5% | | | | | | |
| Florida 36 77.6% 63.1% 76.1% Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% Montana 45 74.4% 70.6% 71.8% Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 72.8% New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% Wyoming 48 72.3% 56.9% 71.5% Texas 49 70.5% 50.6% 68.9% Alaska 50 68.6% 57.1% 64.8% | South Dakota | 35 | 78.0% | 72.0% | 76.5% | | | | | | |
| Minnesota 37 77.1% 68.3% 74.8% I Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% I Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% I Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% I California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% I North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% I Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% I Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% I Montana 45 74.4% 59.4% 71.8% I Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 72.8% I New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% I Wyoming 48 72.3% 56.9% 71.5% I Texas 49 70.5% 50.6% 68.9% I Alaska 50 | Florida | 36 | 77.6% | 63.1% | 76.1% | | | | | | |
| Louisiana 38 77.0% 67.9% 77.6% 77.6% Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% 6 Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% 6 California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% 7 North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% 7 Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% 7 Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% 7 Montana 45 74.4% 70.6% 71.8% 7 Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 72.8% 7 New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% 7 Wyoming 48 72.3% 56.9% 71.5% 7 Texas 49 70.5% 50.6% 68.9% 4 Alaska 50 68.6% 57.1% 64.8% 65.0% | Minnesota | 37 | 77.1% | 68.3% | 74.8% | | | | | | |
| Washington 39 76.5% 57.7% 74.0% I Georgia 40 76.0% 60.6% 74.2% I California 41 75.8% 58.5% 73.8% I North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% I Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% I Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% I Montana 45 74.4% 70.6% 71.8% I Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 72.8% I New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% I Wyoming 48 72.3% 56.9% 71.5% I Alaska 50 68.6% 57.1% 64.8% I | Louisiana | 38 | 77.0% | 67.9% | 77.6% | | | | | | |
| Georgia4076.0%60.6%74.2%California4175.8%58.5%73.8%North Dakota4275.8%74.4%74.6%Utah4374.9%57.6%72.2%Idaho4474.4%59.4%71.7%Montana4574.4%70.6%71.8%Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Washington | 39 | 76.5% | 57.7% | 74.0% | | | | | | |
| California4175.8%58.5%73.8%North Dakota4275.8%74.4%74.6%Utah4374.9%57.6%72.2%Idaho4474.4%59.4%71.7%Montana4574.4%70.6%71.8%Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Georgia | 40 | 76.0% | 60.6% | 74.2% | | | | | | |
| North Dakota 42 75.8% 74.4% 74.6% 74.6% Utah 43 74.9% 57.6% 72.2% 1 Idaho 44 74.4% 59.4% 71.7% 1 Montana 45 74.4% 59.4% 71.8% 1 Arizona 46 74.1% 56.9% 72.8% 1 New Mexico 47 72.4% 59.0% 70.7% 1 Wyoming 48 72.3% 56.9% 71.5% 1 Texas 49 70.5% 50.6% 68.9% 1 Alaska 50 68.6% 57.1% 64.8% 1 | California | 41 | 75.8% | 58.5% | 73.8% | | | | | | |
| Utah4374.9%57.6%72.2%Idaho4474.4%59.4%71.7%Montana4574.4%70.6%71.8%Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | North Dakota | 42 | 75.8% | 74.4% | 74.6% | | | | | | |
| Idaho4474.4%59.4%71.7%Montana4574.4%70.6%71.8%Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Utah | 43 | 74.9% | 57.6% | 72.2% | | | | | | |
| Montana4574.4%70.6%71.8%Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Idaho | 44 | 74.4% | 59.4% | 71.7% | | | | | | |
| Arizona4674.1%56.9%72.8%New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Montana | 45 | 74.4% | 70.6% | 71.8% | | | | | | |
| New Mexico4772.4%59.0%70.7%Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Arizona | 46 | 74.1% | 56.9% | 72.8% | | | | | | |
| Wyoming4872.3%56.9%71.5%Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | New Mexico | 47 | 72.4% | 59.0% | 70.7% | | | | | | |
| Texas4970.5%50.6%68.9%Alaska5068.6%57.1%64.8%Nevada5168.1%52.6%65.0% | Wyoming | 48 | 72.3% | 56.9% | 71.5% | | | | | | |
| Alaska 50 68.6% 57.1% 64.8% Nevada 51 68.1% 52.6% 65.0% | Texas | 49 | 70.5% | 50.6% | 68.9% | | | | | | |
| Nevada 51 68.1% 52.6% 65.0% | Alaska | 50 | 68.6% | 57.1% | 64.8% | | | | | | |
| | Nevada | 51 | 68.1% | 52.6% | 65.0% | | | | | | |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.

STATE RATES BY RACE, ETHNICITY, AND EDUCATION

| me College | College Grad |
|------------|--------------|
| 01 7% | |
| 00.4% | 02.9% |
| 90.4% | 92.970 |
| 09.5% | 90.5% |
| 89.3% | 91.7% |
| 88.0% | 91.4% |
| 89.4% | 90.8% |
| 87.7% | 88.9% |
| 87.5% | 88.8% |
| 88.5% | 90.6% |
| 85.5% | 89.3% |
| 85.8% | 88.2% |
| 85.7% | 85.8% |
| 85.1% | 86.9% |
| 85.2% | 85.2% |
| 83.5% | 87.5% |
| 83.4% | 87.3% |
| 84.0% | 87.2% |
| 85.3% | 85.8% |
| 84.7% | 87.0% |
| 84.1% | 88.1% |
| 83.2% | 85.3% |
| 03.270 | 05.5% |
| 02.0% | 05.5% |
| 82.4% | 05.4% |
| 83.1% | 86.8% |
| 82.1% | 84.2% |
| 81.4% | 83.3% |
| 81.6% | 84.9% |
| 80.3% | 83.0% |
| 78.8% | 79.1% |
| 79.3% | 84.9% |
| 81.4% | 83.2% |
| 81.6% | 85.4% |
| 79.2% | 84.5% |
| 81.0% | 84.8% |
| 78.4% | 81.5% |
| 80.1% | 83.9% |
| 78.4% | 79.7% |
| 77.4% | 82.9% |
| 78.3% | 82.2% |
| 78.4% | 83.6% |
| 79.8% | 83.7% |
| 76.1% | 77.0% |
| 78.0% | 78.2% |
| 77.5% | 79.4% |
| 74.2% | 78.3% |
| 77.4% | 80.2% |
| 7/ 2% | 80.4% |
| 74.270 | 77 20/ |
| 74.00/ | 01.10 |
| 74.0% | 01.1% |
| 68.7% | /5.6% |
| 72.7% | 75.7% |

HOPE Goal

92%

of adults with a usual source of care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with a usual source of care in ME, MA, DE, NH, and RI.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles.



USUAL SOURCE OF CARE

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY RACE AND ETHNICITY

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to obtain a usual source of care to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by race and ethnicity.

| | | Ove | erall | Wł | nite | Bla | ack | Hispa | anic | Asia | n/Pl | Al/ | AN | Multi | racial |
|----------------------|------|-----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| State | Rank | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 74,756 | 1.6% | 0 | 0.0% | 9,744 | 3.6% | 46,100 | 12.6% | 16,182 | 6.3% | 1,182 | 15.1% | 1,549 | 3.8% |
| Maine | 2 | 23,589 | 2.5% | 18,891 | 2.1% | 1,539 | 19.8% | 728 | 7.8% | 593 | 6.6% | 476 | 8.9% | 1,361 | 16.1% |
| Vermont | 3 | 13,561 | 3.1% | 11,217 | 2.7% | 811 | 25.5% | 259 | 4.9% | 959 | 18.5% | 139 | 9.6% | 176 | 3.9% |
| Delaware | 4 | 23,512 | 3.8% | 5,830 | 1.4% | 4,710 | 4.0% | 9,773 | 24.3% | 2,981 | 13.9% | 0 | 0.0% | 218 | 3.4% |
| New Hampshire | 5 | 36,270 | 3.9% | 29,600 | 3.4% | 946 | 10.8% | 3,823 | 18.7% | 747 | 3.7% | 187 | 10.0% | 967 | 13.2% |
| Rhode Island | 6 | 28,329 | 4.0% | 2,374 | 0.4% | 4,680 | 13.6% | 16,500 | 22.9% | 3,838 | 18.6% | 299 | 10.9% | 638 | 8.6% |
| Pennsylvania | 7 | 361,405 | 4.1% | 184,667 | 2.6% | 63,114 | 7.7% | 68,814 | 17.1% | 35,360 | 14.2% | 741 | 6.3% | 8,711 | 13.8% |
| Hawaii | 8 | 41,202 | 4.3% | 23,331 | 9.5% | 1,155 | 7.1% | 5,685 | 8.6% | 2,798 | 0.6% | 138 | 6.3% | 8,095 | 5.9% |
| Connecticut | 9 | 124,512 | 5.1% | 23,100 | 1.3% | 22,515 | 10.4% | 64,012 | 22.7% | 12,714 | 12.9% | 496 | 10.7% | 1,676 | 8.0% |
| Michigan | 10 | 411,590 | 6.2% | 257,846 | 4.9% | 97,716 | 11.6% | 26,630 | 11.9% | 17,687 | 10.8% | 3,710 | 10.6% | 8,001 | 11.4% |
| New York | 11 | 1,044,835 | 7.8% | 305,403 | 3.8% | 132,134 | 7.2% | 415,654 | 19.5% | 172,781 | 16.0% | 5,389 | 15.0% | 13,474 | 10.1% |
| New Jersey | 12 | 479,592 | 7.9% | 111,060 | 3.0% | 61,907 | 8.4% | 257,013 | 26.3% | 46,994 | 8.7% | 682 | 8.3% | 1,937 | 3.8% |
| Maryland | 13 | 329,019 | 8.3% | 98,778 | 4.3% | 80,047 | 7.2% | 110,203 | 37.8% | 34,776 | 14.3% | 1,297 | 13.2% | 3,918 | 8.1% |
| Iowa | 14 | 170,273 | 8.4% | 125,570 | 6.8% | 7,432 | 15.3% | 27,050 | 36.0% | 7,573 | 20.8% | 853 | 16.7% | 1,794 | 14.6% |
| Ohio | 15 | 663,771 | 8.5% | 432,343 | 6.6% | 138,934 | 16.3% | 44,140 | 23.3% | 35,636 | 25.4% | 3,187 | 20.9% | 9,531 | 13.7% |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 330,956 | 8.6% | 228,181 | 6.8% | 27,705 | 14.1% | 54,023 | 31.7% | 15,325 | 20.0% | 2,852 | 9.6% | 2,870 | 10.9% |
| Indiana | 17 | 379,493 | 8.8% | 228,040 | 6.3% | 56,576 | 16.1% | 71,287 | 35.2% | 16,808 | 23.6% | 1,710 | 17.2% | 5,072 | 15.5% |
| Illinois | 18 | 775,256 | 9.1% | 291,119 | 5.0% | 118,197 | 10.5% | 296,859 | 26.4% | 62,297 | 14.4% | 827 | 6.5% | 5,957 | 9.1% |
| Nebraska | 19 | 110,206 | 9.1% | 66,914 | 6.5% | 6,918 | 14.6% | 30,003 | 35.5% | 3,149 | 14.0% | 1,726 | 21.4% | 1,497 | 16.5% |
| Missouri | 20 | 372,575 | 9.2% | 279,273 | 8.3% | 45,206 | 10.8% | 25,239 | 22.3% | 14,163 | 19.9% | 1,774 | 10.7% | 6,921 | 16.6% |
| Kansas | 21 | 173,406 | 9.3% | 89,680 | 5.9% | 15,807 | 16.0% | 53,747 | 35.7% | 8,575 | 18.2% | 2,328 | 16.3% | 3,270 | 14.4% |
| Kentucky | 22 | 282,010 | 9.6% | 214,532 | 8.3% | 29,769 | 14.3% | 20,916 | 29.7% | 12,344 | 35.0% | 1,446 | 22.8% | 3,002 | 13.4% |
| Alabama | 23 | 357,246 | 11.1% | 200,821 | 8.9% | 118,701 | 15.3% | 28,818 | 29.6% | 4,930 | 12.4% | 1,114 | 6.3% | 2,862 | 10.6% |
| Arkansas | 24 | 227,669 | 11.7% | 128,031 | 8.4% | 45,039 | 16.8% | 42,864 | 44.8% | 8,842 | 30.9% | 1,424 | 10.6% | 1,470 | 7.3% |
| Virginia | 25 | 655,828 | 11.9% | 345,187 | 9.3% | 124,002 | 12.5% | 129,318 | 33.8% | 45,578 | 13.8% | 1,952 | 13.3% | 9,791 | 14.1% |
| Tennessee | 26 | 518,942 | 12.0% | 353,626 | 10.4% | 89,629 | 13.8% | 56,373 | 36.5% | 13,756 | 20.4% | 2,065 | 17.2% | 3,492 | 9.8% |
| South Carolina | 27 | 388,553 | 12.3% | 200,831 | 9.3% | 125,834 | 15.6% | 45,749 | 35.2% | 8,257 | 18.4% | 2,290 | 20.2% | 5,591 | 24.1% |
| West Virginia | 28 | 159,962 | 12.3% | 143,214 | 11.7% | 9,005 | 21.9% | 3,327 | 25.1% | 2,404 | 25.6% | 435 | 15.8% | 1,576 | 16.1% |
| Oregon | 29 | 346,141 | 12.9% | 245,012 | 11.1% | 4,891 | 11.7% | 64,091 | 27.8% | 17,794 | 16.1% | 5,471 | 19.6% | 8,881 | 17.6% |
| Oklahoma | 30 | 324,535 | 13.0% | 173,640 | 9.5% | 28,569 | 17.2% | 68,179 | 40.3% | 7,732 | 16.3% | 30,555 | 17.0% | 15,861 | 17.5% |
| District of Columbia | 31 | 57,873 | 13.1% | 22,207 | 13.0% | 21,180 | 10.3% | 8,523 | 21.3% | 4,934 | 28.1% | 92 | 8.9% | 937 | 12.6% |
| Colorado | 32 | 453,940 | 13.1% | 260,278 | 10.1% | 23,944 | 19.0% | 145,786 | 25.2% | 14,310 | 13.9% | 3,575 | 16.8% | 6,046 | 14.3% |
| North Carolina | 33 | 861,814 | 13.3% | 379,996 | 8.4% | 190,880 | 14.7% | 232,728 | 55.6% | 42,826 | 27.8% | 7,280 | 10.4% | 8,103 | 14.2% |
| Mississippi | 34 | 256,890 | 13.3% | 116,720 | 9.8% | 112,526 | 17.2% | 16,702 | 36.0% | 6,878 | 36.9% | 2,197 | 26.9% | 1,867 | 17.4% |
| South Dakota | 35 | 76,367 | 14.0% | 52,788 | 11.0% | 2,487 | 35.6% | 3,072 | 25.1% | 1,842 | 33.7% | 14,145 | 40.9% | 2,033 | 39.1% |
| Florida | 36 | 1,927,415 | 14.2% | 753,955 | 9.0% | 259,980 | 14.4% | 820,665 | 28.4% | 66,371 | 18.8% | 6,712 | 19.1% | 19,732 | 16.2% |
| Minnesota | 37 | 532,590 | 14.8% | 405,025 | 13.0% | 29,407 | 19.1% | 44,837 | 35.4% | 38,711 | 28.9% | 5,975 | 18.7% | 8,635 | 25.9% |
| Louisiana | 38 | 453,503 | 15.1% | 221,776 | 11.6% | 168,946 | 19.3% | 36,675 | 29.5% | 15,914 | 31.0% | 5,315 | 29.8% | 4,878 | 21.1% |
| Washington | 39 | 705,874 | 15.2% | 418,055 | 11.7% | 32,792 | 21.2% | 147,551 | 37.7% | 75,171 | 19.6% | 10,592 | 18.9% | 21,713 | 21.2% |
| North Dakota | 40 | 73,446 | 16.0% | 61,062 | 14.6% | 1,602 | 31.0% | 2,671 | 33.9% | 1,069 | 21.8% | 5,928 | 31.7% | 1,113 | 28.1% |
| Georgia | 41 | 1,038,954 | 16.2% | 407,785 | 10.7% | 334,664 | 18.3% | 211,927 | 46.0% | 72,007 | 31.0% | 2,831 | 18.8% | 9,741 | 16.5% |
| California | 42 | 4,044,402 | 16.3% | 951,063 | 8.5% | 93,143 | 6.5% | 2,441,416 | 30.7% | 474,283 | 12.8% | 16,444 | 14.8% | 68,053 | 15.8% |
| Utah | 43 | 279,875 | 17.0% | 188,015 | 13.8% | 2,514 | 17.3% | 67,445 | 37.0% | 14,109 | 27.5% | 4,508 | 29.5% | 3,285 | 21.3% |
| Arizona | 44 | 757,128 | 17.7% | 340,070 | 12.3% | 25,938 | 16.7% | 314,561 | 30.7% | 27,423 | 20.2% | 42,627 | 28.6% | 6,507 | 13.8% |
| New Mexico | 45 | 266,499 | 19.6% | 82,568 | 13.1% | 5,157 | 21.3% | 137,214 | 24.3% | 4,745 | 22.4% | 34,263 | 33.1% | 2,552 | 19.2% |
| Wyoming | 46 | 74,757 | 19.6% | 61,184 | 18.3% | 454 | 10.8% | 10,161 | 35.6% | 745 | 21.3% | 1,378 | 21.0% | 835 | 23.1% |
| Texas | 47 | 3,513,755 | 21.4% | 898,183 | 10.9% | 344,127 | 18.5% | 2,050,047 | 38.1% | 179,816 | 24.7% | 14,616 | 25.7% | 26,965 | 19.8% |
| Alaska | 48 | 106,246 | 23.0% | 67,406 | 21.2% | 4,094 | 27.8% | 5,347 | 23.6% | 9,145 | 30.1% | 16,298 | 28.3% | 3,957 | 22.4% |
| Nevada | 49 | 437,666 | 23.7% | 192,240 | 17.5% | 32,372 | 23.2% | 161,494 | 40.5% | 34,626 | 21.3% | 6,896 | 43.1% | 10,038 | 29.6% |
| Idahoª | | | | 133,639 | 15.1% | | | 31,672 | 36.3% | 3,655 | 24.8% | 2,560 | 23.1% | 2,471 | 21.3% |
| Montanaª | | | | 101,743 | 16.4% | | | 4,311 | 27.8% | 1,346 | 28.1% | 8,535 | 26.1% | 2,846 | 28.9% |

^a Data not reported due to insufficient numbers of Black respondents.



of adults with a usual source of care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with a usual source of care in ME, MA, DE, NH, and RI.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL MEASURE?

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The percent distance values in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile, closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2^{nd} , 3^{rd} , and 4^{th} quartiles, farther from the HOPE Goal.



USUAL SOURCE OF CARE

Table shows the number of additional adults age 25 and older (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's adult population (% to Goal) who would need to obtain a usual source of care to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less than HS | | HS G | Grad | Some | College | College Grad | |
|----------------------|------|-----------|---------|--------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------------|---------|
| State | Rank | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go | # to Go | % to Go |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 75,100 | 1.6% | 35,783 | 7.8% | 1,855 | 3.1% | 0 | 0.2% | 37,462 | 0.0% |
| Maine | 2 | 26,749 | 2.8% | 15,319 | 9.0% | 3,986 | 4.8% | 0 | 1.4% | 7,445 | 0.0% |
| Vermont | 3 | 13,550 | 3.1% | 6,370 | 6.1% | 2,864 | 4.8% | 2,091 | 2.5% | 2,225 | 1.4% |
| Delaware | 4 | 22,459 | 3.6% | 5,982 | 16.1% | 4,346 | 3.1% | 255 | 2.6% | 11,877 | 0.1% |
| New Hampshire | 5 | 35,324 | 3.8% | 14,968 | 12.1% | 10,072 | 5.6% | 1,252 | 3.8% | 9,031 | 0.4% |
| Rhode Island | 6 | 29,298 | 4.1% | 7,955 | 13.6% | 4,615 | 4.1% | 2,297 | 2.4% | 14,431 | 1.0% |
| Pennsylvania | 7 | 363,709 | 4.2% | 123,516 | 8.2% | 87,113 | 3.8% | 73,135 | 4.1% | 79,946 | 3.0% |
| Hawaii | 8 | 46,465 | 4.9% | 17,300 | 7.9% | 13,494 | 6.4% | 8,674 | 4.4% | 6,997 | 3.0% |
| Connecticut | 9 | 125,015 | 5.1% | 50,383 | 16.4% | 20,587 | 7.4% | 11,384 | 3.4% | 42,660 | 1.3% |
| Michigan | 10 | 416,736 | 6.3% | 151,048 | 11.8% | 138,098 | 7.5% | 43,375 | 6.4% | 84,215 | 2.5% |
| New Jersey | 11 | 479,480 | 7.9% | 150,921 | 23.3% | 84,624 | 8.6% | 80,583 | 6.0% | 163,352 | 3.7% |
| New York | 12 | 1,072,401 | 8.1% | 292,864 | 15.8% | 202,043 | 8.1% | 269,408 | 6.1% | 308,086 | 6.0% |
| Maryland | 13 | 326,602 | 8.2% | 88,700 | 22.0% | 69,333 | 8.6% | 72,166 | 6.7% | 96,404 | 4.9% |
| lowa | 14 | 169,301 | 8.3% | 58,727 | 17.3% | 44,141 | 8.8% | 35,692 | 6.7% | 30,742 | 6.7% |
| Ohio | 15 | 662,939 | 8.5% | 240,508 | 16.9% | 187,842 | 9.0% | 85,594 | 8.4% | 148,994 | 4.3% |
| Wisconsin | 16 | 328,434 | 8.5% | 119,580 | 17.0% | 100,428 | 9.5% | 47,552 | 8.4% | 60,873 | 4.5% |
| Indiana | 17 | 377,589 | 8.8% | 129,822 | 19.4% | 97,482 | 8.6% | 46,826 | 7.8% | 103,460 | 4.7% |
| Illinois | 18 | 773,347 | 9.0% | 191,603 | 24.0% | 161,331 | 8.2% | 164,825 | 6.6% | 255,589 | 6.1% |
| Nebraska | 19 | 110,284 | 9.1% | 32,535 | 27.6% | 29,046 | 9.7% | 17,004 | 7.2% | 31,698 | 4.9% |
| Kansas | 20 | 173,237 | 9.3% | 58,125 | 25.5% | 46,293 | 11.5% | 21,199 | 7.7% | 47,620 | 3.7% |
| Kentucky | 21 | 276,222 | 9.4% | 95,599 | 13.9% | 71,253 | 9.6% | 41,758 | 8.7% | 67,612 | 6.6% |
| Missouri | 22 | 403,065 | 10.0% | 136,534 | 16.6% | 119,004 | 10.7% | 67,321 | 9.9% | 80,206 | 6.3% |
| Alabama | 23 | 350,560 | 10.9% | 125,848 | 16.7% | 89,631 | 12.6% | 47,342 | 9.5% | 87,740 | 6.4% |
| Arkansas | 24 | 222,080 | 11.4% | 83,525 | 22.8% | 48.576 | 12.2% | 20.333 | 8.7% | 69.645 | 5.1% |
| Tennessee | 25 | 498,649 | 11.5% | 204,974 | 14.8% | 116,224 | 14.2% | 80,543 | 9.8% | 96,907 | 7.7% |
| Virginia | 26 | 650,550 | 11.8% | 190,418 | 20.8% | 155,084 | 13.8% | 166,416 | 10.4% | 138,632 | 8.5% |
| South Carolina | 27 | 381,605 | 12.1% | 130,623 | 20.9% | 96,399 | 13.7% | 55,251 | 10.3% | 99,332 | 6.9% |
| West Virginia | 28 | 158,696 | 12.3% | 70,391 | 14.8% | 36,941 | 13.2% | 21,249 | 11.5% | 30,115 | 8.8% |
| District of Columbia | 29 | 56,538 | 12.8% | 9,648 | 14.8% | 9,744 | 11.8% | 29,825 | 13.1% | 7,322 | 12.7% |
| Mississippi | 30 | 248,735 | 12.9% | 92,847 | 15.4% | 75,139 | 15.9% | 27,175 | 12.5% | 53,574 | 7.0% |
| Oregon | 31 | 348,176 | 13.0% | 103.292 | 27.8% | 97.624 | 15.6% | 69,140 | 10.5% | 78,121 | 8.6% |
| Oklahoma | 32 | 325,841 | 13.1% | 123,606 | 25.4% | 79,633 | 15.6% | 38,158 | 10.3% | 84,444 | 6.5% |
| Colorado | 33 | 452,835 | 13.1% | 117,077 | 31.7% | 134,230 | 15.3% | 95,347 | 12.6% | 106,180 | 7.4% |
| North Carolina | 34 | 855,018 | 13.2% | 251,190 | 27.6% | 217,049 | 14.3% | 125,789 | 10.9% | 260,990 | 7.0% |
| South Dakota | 35 | 75,251 | 13.8% | 26,392 | 19.8% | 23,933 | 15.4% | 15,010 | 13.5% | 9,915 | 10.4% |
| Florida | 36 | 1,927,276 | 14.2% | 633,438 | 28.8% | 477,519 | 15.7% | 287,578 | 11.8% | 528,740 | 8.0% |
| Minnesota | 37 | 531,373 | 14.8% | 163,134 | 23.6% | 158,159 | 17.1% | 144,297 | 13.4% | 65,784 | 12.1% |
| Louisiana | 38 | 444,966 | 14.8% | 146,561 | 23.9% | 115,845 | 14.3% | 59,057 | 14.4% | 123,503 | 8.9% |
| Washington | 39 | 711,622 | 15.3% | 194,406 | 34.1% | 218,273 | 17.8% | 143,776 | 13.6% | 155,168 | 9.7% |
| Georgia | 40 | 1,014,565 | 15.9% | 324,440 | 31.3% | 241,361 | 17.6% | 147,590 | 13.4% | 301,174 | 8.2% |
| California | 41 | 3,986,625 | 16.1% | 932,760 | 33.3% | 892,847 | 18.0% | 624,573 | 12.1% | 1,536,445 | 8.2% |
| North Dakota | 42 | 73,919 | 16.1% | 21,809 | 17.4% | 26,541 | 17.3% | 18,628 | 15.8% | 6,940 | 14.9% |
| Utah | 43 | 279,199 | 17.0% | 75,701 | 34.2% | 84,627 | 19.7% | 68,263 | 13.9% | 50,608 | 13.6% |
| Idaho | 44 | 176,669 | 17.4% | 57,031 | 32.4% | 52,415 | 20.2% | 31,851 | 14.3% | 35,372 | 12.4% |
| Montana | 45 | 119,422 | 17.5% | 41,044 | 21.3% | 40,418 | 20.0% | 26,917 | 17.6% | 11,043 | 13.6% |
| Arizona | 46 | 758,849 | 17.7% | 200,880 | 34.9% | 211,065 | 19.1% | 134,603 | 14.4% | 212,301 | 11.6% |
| New Mexico | 47 | 264,048 | 19.4% | 76,072 | 32.9% | 75,644 | 21.2% | 40,217 | 17.7% | 72,115 | 11.4% |
| Wyoming | 48 | 74,281 | 19.5% | 22,712 | 34.9% | 27,458 | 20.3% | 14,023 | 19.2% | 10,088 | 14.5% |
| Texas | 49 | 3,495,349 | 21.3% | 951,491 | 41.2% | 816,018 | 22.9% | 475,554 | 17.0% | 1,252,286 | 10.8% |
| Alaska | 50 | 106,962 | 23.3% | 34,318 | 34.7% | 39,028 | 27.1% | 20,625 | 23.1% | 12,990 | 16.2% |
| Nevada | 51 | 439,019 | 23.8% | 142,823 | 39.3% | 118,623 | 26.8% | 67,164 | 19.2% | 110,409 | 16.2% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION



of adults with a usual source of care

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults with a usual source of care in ME, MA, DE, NH, and Rl.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The percent distance values in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile, closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles, farther from the HOPE Goal.



COLORECTAL CANCER SCREENING

Table shows the portion of adults age 50-75 receiving recommended colorectal cancer screenings in each state, overall and by education. Source: 2012-2014 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

| EDUCATION | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------------|---------|------------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| State | Rank | Overall | Less than HS | HS Grad | Some College | College Grad | | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 76.5% | 70.8% | 73.6% | 76.6% | 82.3% | | | | | | |
| Maine | 2 | 75.0% | 63.6% | 71.6% | 77.4% | 80.0% | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | 3 | 74.7% | 64.7% | 73.0% | 75.2% | 80.3% | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | 4 | 74.1% | 62.6% | 70.3% | 76.0% | 78.5% | | | | | | |
| Connecticut | 5 | 74.0% | 60.2% | 70.4% | 75.6% | 79.6% | | | | | | |
| Marvland | 6 | 73.4% | 61.5% | 69.8% | 74.9% | 78.6% | | | | | | |
| Delaware | 7 | 73.2% | 61.6% | 71.5% | 73.3% | 79.5% | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 8 | 72.6% | 63.8% | 69.1% | 71.1% | 78.4% | | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | 9 | 72.3% | 64.1% | 67.8% | 74.8% | 78.4% | | | | | | |
| Minnesota | 10 | 72.1% | 60.0% | 68.5% | 72.7% | 77.7% | | | | | | |
| Vermont | 11 | 71.8% | 63.8% | 65.2% | 74.0% | 77 9% | | | | | | |
| Michigan | 12 | 71.6% | 56.6% | 68.8% | 74 3% | 77.8% | | | | | | |
| North Carolina | 13 | 71.0% | 57.0% | 67.7% | 73.8% | 79.4% | | | | | | |
| Virginia | 1/ | 70.8% | 57.3% | 67.7% | 73.6% | 76.4% | | | | | | |
| lltah | 15 | 70.0% | 51.5% | 67.7% | 71.0% | 70.4% | | | | | | |
| Washington | 16 | 70.0% | 10 0% | 65.9% | 71.0% | 78.6% | | | | | | |
| New York | 17 | 70.5% | 70.2% | 65.5% | 60.7% | 70.078 | | | | | | |
| Florida | 18 | 69.5% | 57.6% | 66.2% | 70.3% | 74.7% | | | | | | |
| Goorgia | 10 | 69.9% | 57.0% | 66.9% | 70.3% | 76.9% | | | | | | |
| Bennsuluania | 19 | 69.79/ | 52.270 | 66.99/ | 12.370 69.00/ | 70.0% | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 20 | 00.7% | 59.5% | 00.0% | 60.9% | 75.0% | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 21 | 68.7% | 49.1% | 65.2% | 00.3% | 77.0% | | | | | | |
| Iowa Califanaia | 22 | 68.7% | 51.6% | 66.0% | 70.8% | 75.4% | | | | | | |
| | 23 | 68.3% | 48.2% | 65.5% | 72.6% | 77.6% | | | | | | |
| South Carolina | 24 | 68.3% | 54.7% | 64.8% | 71.3% | 77.5% | | | | | | |
| Alabama | 25 | 67.8% | 55.7% | 65.4% | 70.8% | 76.0% | | | | | | |
| Kansas | 26 | 66.9% | 51.9% | 62.9% | 67.0% | 75.3% | | | | | | |
| Tennessee | 27 | 66.9% | 56.6% | 63.9% | 69.7% | /5.3% | | | | | | |
| Colorado | 28 | 66.1% | 47.4% | 60.5% | 66.3% | /3.5% | | | | | | |
| New Jersey | 29 | 66.0% | 57.3% | 61.7% | 66.8% | 72.2% | | | | | | |
| Kentucky | 30 | 65.9% | 55.0% | 65.1% | 68.7% | 73.8% | | | | | | |
| Ohio | 31 | 65.7% | 55.9% | 63.3% | 67.0% | 72.9% | | | | | | |
| Hawaii | 32 | 65.3% | 44.0% | 59.8% | 67.2% | 75.0% | | | | | | |
| South Dakota | 33 | 65.2% | 52.4% | 61.6% | 67.2% | 71.5% | | | | | | |
| Missouri | 34 | 65.2% | 50.8% | 62.6% | 65.5% | 75.2% | | | | | | |
| Arizona | 35 | 65.2% | 52.7% | 61.7% | 66.0% | 72.7% | | | | | | |
| West Virginia | 36 | 65.1% | 55.1% | 63.2% | 68.8% | 75.2% | | | | | | |
| Indiana | 37 | 64.3% | 53.2% | 61.6% | 66.3% | 72.5% | | | | | | |
| Illinois | 38 | 63.9% | 50.0% | 62.6% | 64.9% | 70.1% | | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 39 | 63.7% | 53.6% | 61.4% | 66.9% | 72.2% | | | | | | |
| Texas | 40 | 63.5% | 45.1% | 60.8% | 68.2% | 73.5% | | | | | | |
| North Dakota | 41 | 62.8% | 55.2% | 59.2% | 63.5% | 68.2% | | | | | | |
| Idaho | 42 | 62.3% | 47.5% | 56.9% | 64.8% | 70.1% | | | | | | |
| Mississippi | 43 | 62.1% | 51.0% | 59.9% | 64.2% | 73.0% | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | 44 | 61.8% | 46.0% | 58.3% | 62.2% | 69.6% | | | | | | |
| Nevada | 45 | 61.5% | 42.3% | 58.0% | 64.2% | 72.4% | | | | | | |
| Arkansas | 46 | 61.2% | 49.4% | 59.0% | 64.1% | 70.6% | | | | | | |
| Wyoming | 47 | 60.9% | 48.2% | 55.3% | 62.3% | 68.6% | | | | | | |
| Alaska | 48 | 59.7% | 49.4% | 52.5% | 60.8% | 67.3% | | | | | | |
| Montana | 49 | 59.6% | 44.9% | 52,9% | 60.6% | 68.6% | | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | 50 | 59.5% | 43.3% | 56.5% | 62.2% | 68.5% | | | | | | |
| New Mexico | 51 | 58.8% | 40.5% | 56.4% | 59.2% | 70.1% | | | | | | |

Data not reported by race and ethnicity due to insufficient group sizes.

STATE RATES BY EDUCATION



HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The rates in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile -- i.e., those with the best opportunities or outcomes. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2^{nd} , 3^{rd} , and 4^{th} quartiles.



COLORECTAL CANCER SCREENING

Table shows the number of additional adults age 50-75 (# to Goal) and additional portion of each group's population age 50-75 (% to Goal) who would need to receive recommended colorectal cancer screening to achieve the HOPE Goal, overall and by education.

| | | Ove | erall | Less th | an HS | HS C | Grad | Some | College | College | e Grad |
|-----------------------|------|-----------|-----------|-----------|---------------|------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|----------------|------------------|
| State | Rank | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal | # to Goal | % to Goal |
| Massachusetts | 1 | 72,207 | 3.8% | 19,845 | 9.5% | 34,813 | 6.8% | 17,548 | 3.7% | - | 0.0% |
| Maine | 2 | 23,681 | 5.3% | 6,031 | 16.7% | 13,530 | 8.7% | 3,678 | 2.9% | 443 | 0.3% |
| Rhode Island | 3 | 17,332 | 5.7% | 6,829 | 15.6% | 6,392 | 7.3% | 4,064 | 5.1% | 46 | 0.0% |
| New Hampshire | 4 | 26,107 | 6.2% | 5,941 | 17.8% | 12,419 | 10.0% | 5,225 | 4.3% | 2,522 | 1.8% |
| Connecticut | 5 | 66,693 | 6.3% | 21,600 | 20.1% | 29,862 | 10.0% | 12,611 | 4.7% | 2,620 | 0.7% |
| Maryland | 6 | 113,351 | 6.9% | 32,359 | 18.8% | 47,746 | 10.5% | 23,093 | 5.4% | 10,153 | 1.7% |
| Delaware | 7 | 19,503 | 7.2% | 5,429 | 18.7% | 8,149 | 8.8% | 5,280 | 7.0% | 645 | 0.9% |
| District of Columbia | 8 | 11,310 | 7.7% | 3,538 | 16.5% | 3,889 | 11.2% | 2,695 | 9.2% | 1,188 | 1.9% |
| Wisconsin | 9 | 133,052 | 8.0% | 22,357 | 16.2% | 75,011 | 12.5% | 27,638 | 5.5% | 8,046 | 1.9% |
| Minnesota | 10 | 124,107 | 8.2% | 20,043 | 20.4% | 54,502 | 11.8% | 37,881 | 7.7% | 11,681 | 2.6% |
| Vermont | 11 | 17,539 | 8.5% | 2,773 | 16.5% | 9,766 | 15.1% | 3,219 | 6.3% | 1,780 | 2.4% |
| Michigan | 12 | 254,216 | 8.7% | 67,931 | 23.7% | 110,194 | 11.5% | 57,405 | 6.0% | 18,686 | 2.6% |
| North Carolina | 13 | 252,876 | 9.3% | 90,592 | 23.3% | 102,496 | 12.7% | 53,101 | 6.5% | 6,686 | 0.9% |
| Virginia | 14 | 214,592 | 9.5% | 67,922 | 23.0% | 76,284 | 12.7% | 40,451 | 6.7% | 29,936 | 3.9% |
| Utah | 15 | 56,820 | 9.8% | 13,061 | 29.2% | 17,449 | 12.6% | 20,391 | 9.4% | 5,918 | 3.3% |
| Washington | 16 | 194,232 | 10.0% | 51,865 | 31.3% | 64,889 | 14.4% | 66,952 | 9.6% | 10,525 | 1.7% |
| New York | 17 | 557,257 | 10.2% | 83,673 | 10.2% | 236,862 | 14.8% | 143,754 | 10.6% | 92,968 | 5.6% |
| Florida | 18 | 636.639 | 10.8% | 176.621 | 22.8% | 251,551 | 14.1% | 175.701 | 10.0% | 32,766 | 2.1% |
| Georgia | 19 | 295,142 | 11.5% | 108.977 | 28.1% | 106.408 | 13.5% | 55.494 | 8.1% | 24,263 | 3.5% |
| Pennsylvania | 20 | 443,439 | 11.6% | 84.085 | 21.0% | 209.688 | 13.6% | 103.391 | 11.4% | 46.275 | 4.8% |
| Oregon | 21 | 134,561 | 11.6% | 30,825 | 31.2% | 43,731 | 15.1% | 51.451 | 12 1% | 8,554 | 2.5% |
| lowa | 22 | 101 835 | 11.7% | 18 773 | 28.6% | 47 037 | 14 3% | 25 903 | 9.5% | 10 123 | 4 9% |
| California | 23 | 1 160 980 | 12.0% | 563 617 | 32.1% | 284 021 | 14.8% | 232 637 | 7.8% | 80 704 | 2.7% |
| South Carolina | 24 | 167 526 | 12.0% | 53 915 | 25.7% | 68 538 | 15.5% | 35 312 | 9.0% | 9 761 | 2.8% |
| Alahama | 25 | 174 889 | 12.1% | 54,856 | 24.6% | 68 880 | 14.9% | 37,817 | 9.5% | 13 336 | 4 3% |
| Kansas | 26 | 103 760 | 13.4% | 18 933 | 28.4% | 39 984 | 17.4% | 33 295 | 13.4% | 11 548 | 5.0% |
| Tennessee | 27 | 249 551 | 13.4% | 69 187 | 23.7% | 105 997 | 16.4% | 53 246 | 10.7% | 21 121 | 5.0% |
| Colorado | 28 | 198 235 | 14.2% | 37 283 | 33.0% | 64 123 | 19.8% | 61 432 | 14.0% | 35 396 | 6.8% |
| New Jersey | 29 | 360 356 | 14.2% | 66 665 | 23.0% | 145 003 | 18.7% | 78 283 | 13.5% | 70,405 | 8.2% |
| Kentucky | 30 | 181 592 | 14.4% | 57 234 | 25.0% | 70 848 | 15.2% | 37 188 | 11.5% | 16 322 | 6.5% |
| Ohio | 31 | 101,552 | 14.4% | 92 1/18 | 24.4% | 220.284 | 17.0% | 124 150 | 13.4% | 58 402 | 7.4% |
| Намаіі | 32 | 59 388 | 15.0% | 14 684 | 36.3% | 21 744 | 20.5% | 16 359 | 13.4% | 6 601 | 5.3% |
| South Dakota | 32 | 35,083 | 15.0% | 5 302 | 28.0% | 14 788 | 18.7% | 9 680 | 13.7% | 5 313 | 8.8% |
| Missouri | 34 | 262 021 | 15.1% | 58 364 | 20.070 | 107 184 | 17.7% | 74 749 | 14.9% | 21 724 | 5.1% |
| Arizona | 25 | 202,021 | 15.1% | 61 256 | 25.5% | 81 710 | 18.7% | 90.021 | 14.3% | 21,724 | 7.6% |
| West Virginia | 36 | 91 025 | 15.7% | 26 1/3 | 25.2% | 01,710 AA A15 | 10.7% | 90,021 15 181 | 14.5% | 5 286 | 5.1% |
| Indiana | 37 | 201 575 | 16.1% | 57 789 | 25.270 | 132 /81 | 18.7% | 69.449 | 14.0% | 30.857 | 7.8% |
| Illinois | 38 | 571 1/7 | 16.4% | 128 597 | 27.270 | 181 827 | 17.7% | 157 5/1 | 14.076 | 103 182 | 10.2% |
| Louisiana | 30 | 209 236 | 16.6% | 57 750 | 26.8% | 87.966 | 18.0% | 137,341 | 13.4% | 21 287 | 8.1% |
| Toyac | 40 | 1 060 647 | 16.8% | 408 591 | 20.078 | 316 785 | 10.5% | 210 600 | 13.470 | 115 572 | 6.8% |
| North Dakota | 40 | 33 460 | 10.0% | 3 367 | 25.1% | 12 517 | 21.1% | 219,099 | 16.8% | 5 822 | 12.1% |
| Idaho | 41 | 77 282 | 18.0% | 13 656 | 23.178 | 27 815 | 21.170 | 24 517 | 15.5% | 11 30 <i>4</i> | 10.3% |
| Mississippi | 42 | 1/0.010 | 10.0% | 15,050 | 20.0% | E2 106 | 25.470 | 24,317 | 15.5% | 11,394 | 10.3 /0 7 20/ |
| Nebroska | 45 | 149,919 | 10.570 | 40,303 | 29.470 | 35,100 | 20.4% | 20,277 | 10.170 | 11,952 | 1.370 |
| Neurada | 44 | 92,020 | 10.5% | 12,759 | 54.5 <i>%</i> | 55,229 | 22.0% | 29,920 | 10.1% | 14,750 | 7.00 |
| Arkapsas | 45 | 142,200 | 10.6% | 37,440 | 30.0% | 40,097 | 22.3% | 42,300 | 10.1% | 14,357 | 7.9% |
| Arkansas | 40 | 159,547 | 19.1% | 40,226 | 30.9% | 66,3/9 | 21.3% | 30,952 | 10.2% | 15,990 | 9.7% |
| Alacka | 4/ | 32,401 | 19.4% | 3,509 | 32.1% | 12,05/ | 25.0% | 11,008 | 10.0% | 5,087 | 11.7% |
| Alaska | 48 | 38,746 | 20.6% | 4,701 | 30.9% | 13,314 | 27.8% | 13,498 | 19.5% | 1,233 | 13.0% |
| iviontana Oldahama | 49 | 65,974 | 20.7% | 7,553 | 35.4% | 26,220 | 27.4% | 21,191 | 19.7% | 11,009 | 11.7% |
| Oklahoma | 50 | 218,257 | 20.8% | 47,984 | 37.0% | 82,177 | 23.8% | 58,497 | 18.1% | 29,599 | 11.8% |
| New Mexico | 51 | 128,333 | 21.5% | 35,524 | 39.8% | 37,045 | 23.9% | 38,206 | 21.2% | 17,558 | 10.2% |

STATE DISTANCE TO HOPE GOAL BY EDUCATION



of adults age 50-75 are up to date with colorectal cancer screening

Calculated as the average portion of college graduate adults age 50-75 who are up to date with colorectal cancer screening in MA, RI, ME, CT, and DE.

WHAT DOES THE DISTANCE TO HOPE **GOAL MEASURE?**

It is an estimate of how far each state has to go to achieve the HOPE Goal. It is measured as the number of people (# to Goal) and portion of populations (% to Goal) within a state whose health opportunity would need to improve in order for that state to meet the HOPE Goal.

HOW WERE SHADES ASSIGNED AND WHAT DO THEY SHOW?

The percent distance values in every group were divided into quartiles. Lightest shades were applied to values in the top quartile, closest to the HOPE Goal. Progressively darker shades were given to values in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quartiles, farther from the HOPE Goal.

